
 

 

 
 
 

Council 
 
 
 

Wednesday 5 July 2023 
2.00 pm 
 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend - Please see “PUBLIC 
ACCESS TO THE MEETING” below, for details of how to access the 
meeting, and the safety measures which apply. 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

COUNCIL 
 

Wednesday 5 July 2023, at 2.00 pm 
 

 
 

MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Colin Ross) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Jayne Dunn) 

 
1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Richard Shaw 
Sophie Thornton 
 

 Craig Gamble Pugh 
Robert Reiss 
Alan Woodcock 
 

 Nighat Basharat 
Maroof Raouf 
Ibby Ullah 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne Ward 
 Kurtis Crossland 

Ian Horner 
Ann Woolhouse 
 

 Roger Davison 
Barbara Masters 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
 

 Ben Miskell 
Nabeela Mowlana 
Sophie Wilson 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Fran Belbin 
Abdul Khayum 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 David Barker 
Mike Drabble 
Dianne Hurst 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Angela Argenzio 

Maleiki Haybe 
Brian Holmshaw 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Peter Price 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Mark Jones 
Safiya Saeed 
 

 Alexi Dimond 
Marieanne Elliot 
Paul Turpin 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Ruth Mersereau 
Martin Phipps 

 Ian Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
Mohammed Mahroof 
 

 Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Richard Williams 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 
 Tim Huggan 

Ruth Milsom 
Minesh Parekh 

 Christine Gilligan Kubo 
Toby Mallinson 
Henry Nottage 
 

 Lewis Chinchen 
Julie Grocutt 
Janet Ridler 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Terry Fox 
Laura Moynahan 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
 

 Tom Hunt 
Bernard Little 
Laura McClean 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 Glynis Chapman 
Tony Downing 
Gail Smith 
 

 Alan Hooper 
Mike Levery 
Ann Whitaker 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Alison Norris 

Mick Rooney 
Paul Wood 
 

 



 

 

 
Contact: Paul Robinson, Democratic Services 
 Tel: 0114 2734029 
 paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The Council is composed of 84 Councillors with one-third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their Ward. The 
overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special 
duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them. 
 
All Councillors meet together as the Council. Here Councillors decide the Council’s 
overall policies and set the budget each year. The Council appoints the Leader and 
at its Annual Meeting will appoint Councillors to serve on its Committees.  It also 
appoints representatives to serve on joint bodies and external organisations.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=154.  You may 
not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential information.  
These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to most 
Council meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  Please 
see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information regarding 
public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Council meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Council may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last. 
 
Meetings of the Council have to be held as physical meetings. If you would like to 
attend the meeting, please report to an Attendant in the Foyer at the Town Hall 
where you will be directed to the meeting room.  However, it would be appreciated if 
you could register to attend, in advance of the meeting, by emailing 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk, as this will assist with the management of attendance 
at the meeting. 
 
Please do not attend the meeting if you have COVID-19 symptoms. It is also 
recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test within two 
days of the meeting.  To aid safe access and protect all attendees, you are welcome 
to wear a face covering within the venue. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: The Public Gallery in the Town Hall Council Chamber can 
accommodate 50 persons.  Social distancing may not be possible in the Gallery 
depending on the numbers of members of the public in attendance at the meeting.  
An overspill area will be provided in the event that more than 50 members of the 
public attend - the webcast of the meeting will be live streamed to that room. 

mailto:paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk
http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=154
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 
We are unable to guarantee entrance to the Public Gallery for observers, as priority 
will be given to registered speakers and those that have registered to attend.  
 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
 

FACILITIES 
 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=154


 

 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA 

5 JULY 2023 
 

Order of Business 
  
1.   
 

WELCOME AND HOUSEKEEPING ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  

2.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

3.   
 

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 
and public. 
  

4.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 
considered at the meeting. 
  

5.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 To receive any questions or petitions from the public, or communications 
submitted by the Lord Mayor or the Chief Executive and to pass such 
resolutions thereon as the Council Procedure Rules permit and as may be 
deemed expedient. 
  
  
(NOTE: There is a time limit of one hour for the above item of business.  In 
accordance with the arrangements published on the Council’s website, 
questions/petitions are required to be submitted in writing, to 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk, by 9.00 a.m. on Monday 3rd July. 
Questions/petitions submitted after the deadline will be asked at the 
meeting subject to the discretion of the Chair.) 
  
  

6.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

 6.1      Questions relating to urgent business – Council Procedure Rule 
16.6(ii). 

  
6.2      Questions relating to the discharge of the functions of the South 

Yorkshire Joint Authorities (under the provisions of Section 41 of 
the Local Government Act 1985) and of the South Yorkshire 
Mayoral Combined Authority – Council Procedure Rule 16.6(i). 

  
6.3      Supplementary questions on written questions submitted at this 

meeting – Council Procedure Rule 16.4. 

mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

  
  

7.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "A BETTER, BRIGHTER FUTURE 
FOR SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR TOM HUNT AND TO BE 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR FRAN BELBIN 
 

 That this Council:-  
  
(a)      notes the hugely positive recent developments in our city, 

including:- 
  

(i)             the exciting proposals for the Cole Brothers building; 
  

(ii)           the ongoing progress with the Heart of the City 
developments; improvements to Fargate; pedestrianisation 
of Division Street and the planning permission to transform 
Castlegate; 
  

(iii)          over £100m to be invested in Sheffield’s leisure and 
entertainment venues; 
  

(iv)          the development agreement for Attercliffe Waterside which 
will see the creation of a new low-carbon neighbourhood 
with 1000 homes; 
  

(v)           the creation of the Sheffield Policy Campus which will 
further develop Sheffield as a leading centre for policy 
making in Britain; and 
  

(vi)          the two fantastic promotions for Sheffield United and 
Sheffield Wednesday; 

  
(b)      notes new developments that will help to improve the lives of 

people in Sheffield:- 
  

(i)             the launch of Family Hubs, one-stop shops supporting 
families, children and young people to have the best start 
in life; and 
  

(ii)            Sheffield being chosen to be part of a new five-year project 
which will support early intervention work to prevent 
homelessness; 

  
(c)      believes that:- 
  

(i)             Sheffield is changing for the better and will continue getting 
better still; and 
  

(ii)            it is time to talk Sheffield up – not talk it down; 
  



 

 

(d)      further believes that:-  
  

(i)             the Council’s Future Sheffield programme will deliver a 
modern council with a culture founded on trust and 
openness, with greater connection to our communities, 
where staff are engaged and where equality and diversity 
are celebrated; and 
  

(ii)       the City Goals is a great initiative that will provide a set of 
goals, shaped by residents, and shared with our partners, 
that will guide the future of Sheffield; and 

  
(e)      resolves to:-  
  

(i)             serve the people of Sheffield; 
  

(ii)            work collaboratively through our committees and with our 
partners to continue to:-  
  
(A) help people with the cost-of-living crisis; 
(B) fix our public transport and make it easier to get around 
our city; 
(C) secure new investment in the city; 
(D) ensure that public money is always spent wisely; 
(E) invest in our neighbourhoods and devolve power to 
communities; 
(F) tackle the climate emergency; and 
(G) ensure that politics in Sheffield is conducted in a 
competent, open and inclusive way; and 
  

(iii)          always be guided by our values: people are at the heart of 
what we do; openness and honesty are important to us, 
and together we get things done serve the people of 
Sheffield. 

  
  
  

8.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "RESPONDING TO THE 
CHANGING SHAPE OF THE COST OF LIVING CRISIS LOCALLY" - 
GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR SHAFFAQ MOHAMMED AND TO BE 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR SOPHIE THORNTON 
 

 That this Council:- 
  
(a)      praises the cross party response to the Cost of Living crisis, which 

has delivered 173 welcome places, £15m in hardship payments 
to residents, and support for affected businesses; 

  
(b)      notes with concern that despite the Council’s interventions, the 

Cost of Living crisis is now impacting a much larger group of 



 

 

people, as:- 
  

(i)      Council Homeless Services received 500 more 
presentations in 2022/23 than in 2021/22; 

  
(ii)       the Trussell Trust delivered 28% more food parcels across 

Yorkshire in 2022/23 than in 2021/22, with 27 Trussell 
Trust and Independent food banks in Sheffield; 

  
(iii)      nationally, food prices have risen by 18.4% since January; 

and 
  

(iv)      the recent rise in the Bank Base Rate to 5% will seriously 
impact many of Sheffield’s low income mortgage holders; 

  
(c)      notes that:- 
  

(i)             research has found that an estimated £18.7bn in benefits 
and social tariffs go unclaimed across the UK every year; 

  
(ii)           similarly, an estimated £17m of Pension Credit goes 

unclaimed in Sheffield every year; 
  

(iii)          take-up is lower for locally administered benefits such as 
Council Tax Support than DWP administered benefits; and 

  
(iv)          Sheffield Citizens Advice Bureau (which provides support 

to maximise household income) has provided primarily 
online support since the pandemic, which can be 
challenging to access for residents who are elderly or 
facing digital exclusion; 

  
(d)      believes that accessing locally administered benefits in Sheffield 

is made more difficult due to the many barriers residents face in 
contacting the Council, and reaffirms that the Council has an 
utmost responsibility to assist residents to access all the benefits 
and support they are entitled to; 

  
(e)      notes that the Local Area Committees have been a vital part of 

the Cost of Living response in their localities, including working 
closely with Welcome Places, providing grants to Voluntary, 
Community and Faith organisations, and producing locally 
tailored communications; and 

  
(f)       therefore, requests that the Strategy and Resources Policy 

Committee considers allocating from unallocated resources from 
the 2023/24 budget setting process:- 

  
(i)             £200k in additional grant funding to Citizens Advice 

Services, to expand their employment of Volunteer 



 

 

Trainers and provide increased face to face support; and 
  

(ii)            £400k in additional citywide LAC funding, to be allocated 
by Indices of Multiple Deprivation and spent on the 
response to the Cost of Living crisis. 

  
  
  

9.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "REAFFIRMING SHEFFIELD AS A 
CITY OF SANCTUARY" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ALEXI DIMOND 
AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR MALEIKI HAYBE 
 

 That this Council:- 
  
(a)            notes that:- 
  

(i)       Sheffield, the UK’s first City of Sanctuary, has a proud 
history of welcoming people seeking safety; 

  
(ii)       the climate crisis increases the risk of displacing people; 

  
(iii)      the Illegal Migration Bill in Parliament has already been 

voted through by the majority of the House of Commons; 
  

(iv)      people seeking safety, including children, will be effectively 
detained in camps, barges, large-scale institutional 
accommodation, containment sites; segregated from 
communities, and denied support and threatened with 
removal to Rwanda; and 

  
(v)      over 500 charities and faith groups have signed a pledge to 

‘Fight the Anti-Refugee Laws’, including at least 7 local 
groups such as City of Sanctuary Sheffield, ASSIST 
Sheffield, DEWA, South Yorkshire Migration and Asylum 
Action Group (SYMAAG) and Sheffield Association for the 
Voluntary Teaching of English (SAVTE); 

  
(b)            believes that:- 
  

(i)       everyone’s claim for asylum should be treated equally and 
fairly; 

  
(ii)       the Government’s anti-refugee laws deny internationally 

recognised rights and will create ever-longer delays in the 
asylum process; 

  
(iii)      the UK needs an asylum system that empowers people 

seeking safety to rebuild their lives, not segregated but 
housed as our neighbours, enabling communities to 
welcome them; and 



 

 

  
(iv)      the Illegal Migration Bill punishes people and will 

effectively destroy the right to seek safety in the UK; and 
  
(c)            resolves to:- 
  

(i)       sign the ‘Fight the Anti-Refugee Laws’ pledge and join the 
“Lift the Ban” coalition; 

  
(ii)       use our powers to ensure migrants do not suffer lengthy 

stays in temporary, sub-standard or far-distant 
accommodation; 

  
(iii)      ask the Chief Executive to make representations to HM 

Government expressing this Council’s deep concern about 
the impact of the new housing regulations1; 

  
(iv)      call on the Government to withdraw the UK-Rwanda 

agreement, repeal the Nationality and Borders Act and 
Illegal Migration Bill; 

  
(v)      call on the Government to recognise the impact of climate 

change as a legitimate reason to seek safety; 
  

(vi)      reaffirm our status as a City of Sanctuary, and work with 
the Local Authorities of Sanctuary network to ensure we 
are meeting the accreditation criteria; 

  
(vii)     investigate ways to fund advice to asylum seekers which 

was previously delivered by the Sheffield Law Centre; 
  

(viii)    work in partnership with organisations and people with 
lived experience of the asylum system to identify strategies 
for mitigating the adverse effects of government policies 
within Sheffield; and 

  
(ix)      introduce a Councillor ‘Migrant Champion’ who would:- 

  
(A)      be a point of contact for migrants, community 

groups and organisations to raise concerns; 
  

(B)      seek to ensure council services are open and 
available to migrants who need them; 

  
(C)      seek to ensure that the Council is not sharing 

information about individual migrants in the area 
with the Government unless there is a lawful basis 
for doing so; and 

  
(D)      seek to make sure the needs of vulnerable migrants 



 

 

are met. 
  
 1  Homelessness (Suitability of Accommodation) (Amendment) (England) 
Order 2022, (SI 521/2022), as amended by the 2023 order which extends the 
effect of the Regulations until 1 June 2024. 
  

  
  

10.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "MITIGATING THE IMPACT OF 
HOUSING GROWTH" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR LEWIS CHINCHEN 
AND TO BE SECONDED BY THE LORD MAYOR (COUNCILLOR 
COLIN ROSS) 
 

 That this Council:-  
  
(a)      recognises that housing growth must be supported by sufficient 

investment in infrastructure and services, including transport, 
education, active travel improvements and public spaces; 

  
(b)      believes the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a crucial tool 

that the Council has at its disposal to achieve this objective; 
  
(c)      believes that the Neighbourhood Portion of CIL, allocated to 

wards using the Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD), is not 
meeting its intended objective as there is little connection 
between where it is spent and the number of houses built in these 
areas (except for localities that have a Town/Parish Council or 
Neighbourhood Plan); 

  
(d)      believes the CIL funding formula for the Neighbourhood Portion 

must be more closely linked to housing growth, given that the 
purpose of CIL is to support new development; 

  
(e)      believes that a bespoke formula can be created that ensures 

zero-rate charging areas still receive a fair allocation, whilst 
ensuring sufficient funds go to the areas experiencing the 
greatest pressure from new development; 

  
(f)       notes that Cornwall County Council ensures that zero-rate 

charging areas still receive an allocation of CIL funds, whilst 
awarding parishes an amount proportionate to the scale of 
development in their area; 

  
(g)      also, notes that a large proportion of Neighbourhood CIL that is 

allocated to wards is not spent, with some wards not spending 
any of their allocated funds within a financial year; 

  
(h)      therefore, invites:- 
  

(i)             the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee 



 

 

to commission an investigation into the feasibility of a new 
formula for Neighbourhood CIL that more closely links 
Neighbourhood CIL allocations to housing growth, whilst 
ensuring that zero/low-rate charging areas receive their fair 
share; 

  
(ii)            Local Area Committees (LACs) to feature an item on every 

meeting agenda on the spending of Neighbourhood CIL 
monies so that we have proper political accountability; 

  
(iii)          LACs to seek the co-operation of Town and Parish 

Councils to enable LACs to understand and review their 
spending of Neighbourhood CIL monies; 

  
(iv)          officers to create working groups with ward members and 

the relevant council officers (for example, Highways or 
Parks & Countryside) to identify suitable schemes to fund 
using Neighbourhood CIL monies and create action plans 
to take those schemes forward; 

  
(v)          LACs to oversee the establishment of inter-ward 

collaboration between wards; and 
  

(vi)          the Governance Committee to satisfy itself that Members 
receive sufficient training regarding CIL so they understand 
how to make best use of the funding available. 

  
   

11.   
 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE - STANDARDS REPORT 2022 
 

 To receive the Annual Standards Report for 2022 which was approved for 
submission to full Council by the Audit and Standards Committee at its 
meeting held on 16th February 2023. 
 
  

12.   
 

CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 

 To approve, with or without amendment, the recommendations in the 
report of the Interim General Counsel (and Monitoring Officer), published 
with this agenda, regarding changes proposed to be made to the Council’s 
Constitution. 
 
  

13.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 

 To receive the record of the proceedings of (a) the ordinary meeting of the 
Council held on 20th February, (b) the special meeting of the Council held 
on 1st March, (c) the extraordinary meeting of the Council held on 10th 
May and (d) the annual meeting of the Council held on 17th May 2023, 
and to approve the accuracy thereof. 



 

 

  
  

14.   
 

MEMBERSHIPS OF COUNCIL BODIES, REPRESENTATIVES TO 
SERVE ON OTHER BODIES AND RELATED ISSUES 
 

 To consider any changes to the memberships and arrangements for 
meetings of Committees etc., delegated authority, and the appointment of 
representatives to serve on other bodies. 
 
 
 

 
David Hollis 
Interim General Counsel   
 
 
Dated this 27 day of June 2023 
 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Council will be held on 6 September 2023 at 
the Town Hall 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 16



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, Interim General Counsel by 
emailing david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 17

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



REPORT OF THE INTERIM GENERAL 
COUNSEL 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
5TH JULY, 2023 

  

  

AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE – STANDARDS REPORT 2022 
 
 
1. At its meeting on 16th February 2023, the Audit and Standards Committee received a 
report of the (then) Interim Director of Legal and Governance, which highlighted the 
activities of the Committee and provided details of the outcome of the Standards 
complaints received from January to December 2022.  This detail was set out in the 
“Standards Report 2022” which was included as an appendix to the Director’s report. 
 
2. Following consideration of the report by members of the Audit and Standards 
Committee, it was resolved to approve the report for submission to Full Council. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
That the Council notes the Annual Standards Report for 2022, showing details of the 
outcome of the Standards complaints received from January to December 2022. 
 
 
 
 
(NOTE: A copy of the report submitted to the Audit and Standards Committee, together 

with its “Standards Report 2022” appendix, are attached.) 
 
 
 
 
David Hollis, Interim General Counsel 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 

 

 
 
 
Report of:   David Hollis, Interim Director Legal & Governance 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    16th February 2022 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Audit and Standards Committee Annual Report  

2022 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Sarah Hyde, Democratic Services Team Manager
    
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The report highlights the activities of the Committee and provides details of the 
outcome of the Standards complaints received from January to December 2022. 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
That the Committee:- 
 
(a) Comments on the Annual Report; and 

 
(b) Approves the report for submission to Full Council. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 
   
 

Audit and Standards
Committee Report

Page 21



 

 

  
 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Legal Implications 
 

NO Cleared by: 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
NO Cleared by: 

 
Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

 
NO 

 
Human rights Implications 

 
NO: 

 
Environmental and Sustainability implications 

 
NO 

 
Economic impact 

 
NO 

 
Community safety implications 

 
NO 

 
Human resources implications 

 
NO 

 
Property implications 

 
NO 

 
Area(s) affected 

 
NONE 

 
Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



 

 

 Audit and Standards Annual Report 2022 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
  
1.1 
 
 

This is the sixth Annual Report of the merged Audit and Standards 
Committee and covers the period from January 2022 – December 2022.  
The Committee will receive this information on a yearly basis and 
although named the Audit and Standards Annual Report, the information 
contained within the reports will be primarily Standards related. 

  
2.0 BACKGROUND 
  
2.1 Changes to the Standards regime were introduced in July 2012 following 

the Localism Act 2011. Although it was no longer a statutory requirement 
to have a Standards Committee, Full Council approved the retention of a 
Committee to deal with complaints and adopted a new Members’ Code of 
Conduct and a Procedure for Dealing with Standards Complaints.  

  
3.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 

Including Legal, Financial and all other relevant implications (if any) 
  
3.1 The Standards responsibilities of the merged Audit and Standards 

Committee include monitoring the Council’s complaints process, training, 
learning and development, and advising the Council on the adoption and 
revision of relevant policies and corporate issues.  

  
3.2 As such, the attached report covers these areas in detail, summarising 

Standards activities from January 2022 - December 2022. 
  
4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
4.1 That the Committee comments on the attached report; and approves the 

report for submission to Full Council. 
  

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



 

1 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

AUDIT AND STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 

 
STANDARDS REPORT  

2022 
 
To be considered at the Audit & Standards Committee on 16th February 

2023 and at a forthcoming Council Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 

Foreword 
 

I am pleased to present this report which provides a summary of 
Standards activities from January 2022 – December 2022. 
 
I would like to thank our Independent Persons, David Waxman and 
Karen Widdowson for their work in assisting the Monitoring Officer.  I 
would also like to thank Democratic Services, for providing support to 
the committee. 
 
I recommend that Council receives this report on Standards Committee 
activities in 2022.  
 

 
Councillor Colin Ross 
Chair of the Audit and Standards Committee 
February 2023 

   

Page 26



 

3 
 

CONTENTS 
   

 
           Page 
  
Foreword by the Chair of the Committee      1 
  
1.  Introduction         4 
 
2. Standards-Specific Role of the Audit and Standards Committee 4 
   
3. Membership of the Committee      5 
 
4.  Monitoring Officer/Support to the Committee    5 
   
5. Complaints         6 
   
6. Independent Persons       7 
   
7. Parish and Town Councils       8 
 
8. Training and Development       8 
   
9. Policy and Corporate Issues      9 
      
10. Other Areas of Work       9 
   
11. The Year Ahead        10 
   
12. Recommendation        10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

4 
 

1. Introduction 
  
1.1 This is the sixth Standards Annual Report of the merged Audit and Standards 

Committee and covers the period from January 2022 to December 2022. 
  
1.2 Changes to the Standards regime were introduced in July 2012 by the Localism 

Act 2011. Although it was no longer a statutory requirement to have a Standards 
Committee, Full Council approved the retention of a Committee to deal with 
complaints and adopted a new Members’ Code of Conduct and a Procedure for 
Dealing with Standards Complaints.  
 
As of today a response to the recommendation put forward are still awaited from 
Government in the 2019 report on Local Government Ethical Standards, A Review 
by the Committee on Standards In Public Life. 

  
1.3 Two Independent Persons as required by the Localism Act 2011 are appointed 

jointly, with Barnsley MBC to assist the Monitoring Officer in dealing with 
complaints. 

  
2. Standards-Specific Role of the Audit and Standards Committee  
  
2.1 The Standards responsibilities of the Committee, as set out in the Constitution, 

are: 
  
 • To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors, Co-

opted Members and Representatives on Committees and Sub-
Committees. 
 

 • To assist Councillors, Co-opted Members and Representatives to observe 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 • To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct and Protocols relating to Councillor and Officer behaviour. 
 

 • To monitor the operation of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 • To advise, train or arrange to train Councillors, Co-opted Members and 
Representatives on matters relating to the Members' Code of Conduct. 
 

 • To monitor, review and make recommendations to the Council with regard 
to the Learning and Development policy for Councillors, Co-opted 
members and Representatives.  
 

 • To discharge the functions of dealing with complaints against Councillors 
and Co-opted Members as set out in Procedure for Dealing with 
Complaints Regarding City, Parish and Town Councillors and Co-opted 
Members. 
 

 • To advise the Council on the adoption and revision of its Whistleblowing 
Policy and monitoring the operation of that Policy. 

Page 28



 

5 
 

 
 • To monitor and review procedures relating to gifts, hospitality and personal 

interests, for Councillors and officers. 
 

 • To monitor the Council’s complaints process and the Council’s response to 
complaints to the Ombudsman. 

  
3. Membership of the Committee 
  
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

The Audit and Standards Committee has 7 Members with proportionality applied 
and a maximum of 3 non-voting co-opted members. (Where standards related 
matters are to be considered by the Committee, the three Parish/Town Councils 
would be invited to jointly send one representative to attend the meeting for those 
items as an observer). 
 
Meetings of the Consideration and Hearing Sub-Committees are arranged as and 
when required to deal with complaints referred on following assessment.  The 
Sub-Committees are made up of 3 members of the Audit and Standards 
Committee, usually the Chair, Vice-Chair and another member of the Committee, 
a non-voting co-opted member is also required to sit on the Sub-Committee.  

  
4. Monitoring Officer/Support to the Committee 
  
4.1 David Hollis is the Council’s Monitoring Officer and Interim Director of Legal and 

Governance. Robert Parkin and Sarah Bennett are the Deputy Monitoring Officers 
and Assistant Directors Legal and Governance. The Monitoring Officer is a 
statutory role that:-  

  
 • Supports the Standards Committee together with the Independent 

Persons; 
• Contributes to the promotion and maintenance of high standards of 

conduct within the Council; 
• Maintains systems and processes for dealing with allegations of breaches 

of the Code of Conduct for Members; 
• Investigates and reports to the Standards Committee on allegations of 

breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members; 
• Has rights of access to any information from Members and/or officers in 

connection with a standards complaint; 
• Establishes and maintains registers of members' interests, gifts and 

hospitality; 
• Acts as a point of contact for advice and/or queries by elected members 
• Maintains and updates the Constitution; 
• Advises on various issues, poor administration and impropriety; 

  
4.2 Further support to the Committee was provided by Jay Bell, Committee Secretary 

and Sarah Hyde, Democratic Services Team Manager who assists the Monitoring 
Officer with complaints concerning Councillors and provides support to 
Consideration/Hearing Sub-Committees. 

  

Page 29



 

6 
 

4.3 The Council is required by the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 Act to 
provide the Monitoring Officer with “such staff, accommodation and other 
resources as are, in their opinion, sufficient to allow those duties to be performed”. 
The Monitoring Officer has confirmed that he has the necessary resources to meet 
the requirements of his role. 

  
5. Complaints 
  
5.1 The number of complaints made and a breakdown by the findings is set out 

below: - 
  
 Complaint Outcome 2022 (Jan-Dec)  
    
 Take No Action (no breach) 4  
    
 Withdrawn or Invalid 1  
    
 Rejected 7  
    
 Informal Resolution 2  
    
 Refer to Consideration Sub-Committee 

with an Investigation 0  

    
 Refer to Consideration Sub-Committee 

without an Investigation 0  

    
 Open 0  
    
 Total 14  
  
5.2 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In the period 2022, the Consideration Sub-Committee did not meet, subsequently 
no cases have been referred on to a Hearing Sub-Committee.  An interim 
standards complaint report will be submitted at half yearly intervals. 
 
Key 
 
Take No Action or Rejection  
 
It is likely that no action will be taken where: -  
 
• A significant amount of time has elapsed since the events which are the subject 
of the complaint.  
• The allegation relates to a cultural or recurring issue relating to standards within 
the Council.  
• The matter should be dealt with by some other method.  
• Complaints have been made about the Member relating to similar issues that 
have previously been dealt with through this Procedure.  
• The complaint appears to be trivial, vexatious, repetitious or a general misuse of 
the opportunity.  

Page 30



 

7 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. 

• The conduct occurred during political debate or could be regarded as a political 
expression of views or opinion. 
 
Withdrawn or invalid 
 
The complainant can withdraw a complaint if they so wish, however the 
Monitoring Officer reserves the right to pursue the issues in the complaint. 
 
Informal Resolution 
 
Informal resolution may be the simplest and most cost-effective way of resolving 
the complaint and without determining if an actual breach of the Code has taken 
place. 
 
Refer to Consideration Sub-Committee with an investigation 
 
It is expected that the Monitoring Officer will refer only the most serious breaches 
for investigation or where the Member fundamentally disputes or does not accept 
the allegations in the complaint. 
 
Refer to Consideration Sub-Committee without an investigation 
 
The Monitoring Officer can refer a complaint direct to the Sub-Committee if it is 
considered that there is a breach of the Code but there is no dispute over the 
events in relation to the complaint and an investigation is not considered 
necessary. 
 
Open 
 
Complaints logged, but still going through the initial assessment process 
 
Independent Persons 

  
6.1 The Council must appoint at least one Independent Person. Their role is advisory, 

and they do not have a vote on any Council committee. An Independent Person 
can be consulted by the Monitoring Officer, the Member who is subject to a 
complaint and the Audit and Standards Committee.  

  
6.2 The two Independent Persons, David Waxman and Karen Widdowson, provide 

invaluable assistance to the Monitoring Officer in dealing with Standards 
complaints. 

  
6.3 
 
 
6.4 

An Independent Person is involved in each complaint and consulted at various 
stages of the process. 
 
A joint recruitment process took place with Barnsley MBC mid-2022 to reappoint 
to the positions of Independent Person as the terms of the then Independent 
Persons had come to an end.  Following interview David Waxman and Karen 
Widdowson were appointed to the roles for a four-year term. 

  

Page 31



 

8 
 

7. Parish and Town Councils 
  
7.1 
 
 

The Monitoring Officer provides advice and support to the three Parish and Town 
Councils, and these are reflected in the numbers of reported Standards 
complaints dealt with in 2022. 

  
8. Training and Development 
  
8.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
8.3 
 
 
8.4 
 
 
8.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

As part of the induction for new Councillors, information was provided on the 
Members’ Code of Conduct, the Standards regime, the Register of Interests, the 
key principles of good governance, the Member/Officer Relations Protocol and 
how the Council and decision-making works. The induction also covered sessions 
on Empowering Communities through LACS, handling complaints and enquiries, 
revenues and benefits, how the council and decision making works, equality and 
diversity, public health and emergency planning, AMEY and streetsahead, waste 
collection and the housing service. 
 
Further training was provided, which was open to all Members, on the role of 
Councillors, good governance and Standards. 
 
A dedicated officer from Democratic Services leads on formulating the Member’s 
training programme. 
 
Over the last year training has been offered as part of the Induction process, 
committee system specific or as additional training. 
 
Induction 
 
Licensing – Introduction to equalities act – disability and equality awareness; 
Licensing – Introduction to sex establishment and sexual entertainment venues; 
Public Health; 
An introduction to the Full Council Meeting and Voting; 
Introduction to Planning. 
 
Committee Specific 
 
Education, Children and Families – Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Good Governance in a Committee System; 
Strategy and Resources Chair/VC; 
Housing – Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Transport, Regen and Climate – Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Adult Health and Social Care– Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Economic Development and Skills– Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Communities, Parks and Leisure– Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Waste and Streetscene– Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Finance Sub-Committee– Whole Committee and Chair/VC; 
Chairing in a Committee System; 
Successful Officer/Member Relations; 
EDI – Public Sector and Equality Impact Assessment; 
An Effective Council – Learning from Recent reports; 

Page 32



 

9 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.6 
 
 
 
8.7 

Planning - Knowledge briefing, SHU Masterplan; 
 
Introduction to the Licensing Act 2003 and Safeguarding – Protection of Children 
and the vulnerable; 
Introduction to Taxi Licensing; 
Introduction to Street Trading; 
Driver Policy Briefing; 
Hackney Carriage Vehicle Licence Policy – Knowledge Briefing. 
 
Audit – Account sign off. 
 
Additional Training 
 
Technology Enabled Care; 
Freedom of Information (FOI) Training; 
Adult Social Care Strategy Briefing; 
Climate Emergency; 
Carbon Literacy Project; 
Migration; 
Social Media; 
Equality Diversity and Inclusion (EDI)-Public sector duties and Equality Impact 
Assessment; 
Information Management. 
 
All training was provided either in house by council officers, the Local Government 
Association (LGA) or through a private facilitator.  Various members have also 
attended training with the Local Government Information Unit (LGIU). 
 
The Member Development Working Group will meet in February to discuss the 
Member Development budget for the coming year, and this will be subsequently 
agreed at Governance Committee. 

  
8.8 
 

Information and details of upcoming Member Development can be found in the 
Members’ area of SharePoint. 

  
9. Policy and Corporate issues 
  
9.1 The Committee has provided oversight and responded to the following policies, 

protocol, reports and consultations: 
 

 • Whistleblowing Policy Review Report 
• Reviews of the Members Code of Conduct and Procedures for dealing with 

complaints against an elected member, Town/Parish Councillor or Co-
opted Member. 

 • Information Governance Annual Report 
• Annual Ombudsman Report 

  
10. Other Areas of Work 
  

Page 33



 

10 
 

10.1 The Monitoring Officer ensures that all new Councillors submit their Register of 
Interests form relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other Interests and 
that existing Councillors review and update their interests. 

  
10.2 The Monitoring Officer maintains a regular dialogue with the Council’s other 

Statutory officers to consider and review governance arrangements. The 
Monitoring Officer also maintains a dialogue around governance with the Leaders 
and/or Whips of the political groups represented on the Council.  

  
11. The Year Ahead 
  
11.1 The work programme continues to ensure the Audit and Standards Committee 

receives updates on Standards related issues including an Annual Report 
throughout the year and will also include consideration of Ombudsman and 
Whistleblowing reviews of procedures. 

  
12. Recommendation 
  
12.1 That Audit and Standards Committee receives and notes this report 

acknowledging the work of the Audit and Standards Committee in January – 
December 2022 and forwards to full Council.  

 

Page 34



 

 
 
 
Report of: Interim General Counsel (and Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
Date: 5th July 2023 
 
 
Subject: Changes to the Constitution 
 
 
Author of Report: Jason Dietsch, Head of Democratic Services  
 
 

Purpose of Report: 
This report seeks approval for changes to be made to various elements of the 
Council’s Constitution, to bring it up to date.  The changes proposed fall into three 
categories:-  
 
(a) to reflect the changes to the structure of the Council’s (officer) Senior 
Leadership Team, under the Future Sheffield Programme, including incorporating 
the changes of designations from Executive Directors to Strategic Directors and 
any other changes to officer job titles and responsibilities; 
 
(b) recommendations made by the Council’s Monitoring Officer for reasons of 
clarification/simplification, or otherwise to reflect recent changes; and 
 
(c) other changes or updates, including the annual review of Financial Procedure 
Rules (Financial Regulations), and changes to the Monitoring Officer Protocol and 
Procedure For Dealing With Complaints Regarding City, Parish And Town 
Councillors And Co-Opted Members as recommended by the Audit & Standards 
Committee on 16th February 2023. 
 
The report also provides an update on changes to the Constitution approved at 
the Council Annual Meeting on 17th May 2023 under the items on the Six Month 
Review of Governance Arrangements and the Establishment of Council 
Committees. 
 
 

 

 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Report to Council 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 12



Page 2 of 12 

Recommendations:  
 
That the Council approves the changes to the various Parts of the Constitution, as 
outlined in sections 3.2 to 3.6 of the report and as set out in appendices 1 to 20;   
 
That where the agenda of any Committee meeting has already been published but 
the meeting has not yet taken place any change now approved to the remit of that 
Committee does not take effect until the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers: NONE 
 
 
Category of Report: OPEN 

Page 36



Page 3 of 12 

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial & Commercial Implications 
 

NO Cleared by:  Liz Gough 
 

Legal Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Andrea Simpson 
 

Equality of Opportunity Implications 
 

YES Cleared by: Ed Sexton (as per the report to the Governance Committee) 
 

Climate impact 
 

NO 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 
 

NO 
 

Human rights Implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
 

None 
 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?  
   

YES 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

 

  

Page 37



Page 4 of 12 

  
1. Introduction  
  
1.1 This report seeks approval for changes to be made to various elements of 

the Council’s Constitution, to bring it up to date.  The changes proposed 
fall into three categories:-  
 
(a) to reflect the changes to the structure of the Council’s (officer) Senior 
Leadership Team, under the Future Sheffield Programme, including 
incorporating the changes of designations from Executive Directors to 
Strategic Directors and any other changes to officer job titles and 
responsibilities;  
 
(b) recommendations made by the Council’s Monitoring Officer for 
reasons of clarification/simplification, or otherwise to reflect recent 
changes; and  
 
(c) other changes or updates, including the annual review of Financial 
Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations), and changes to the Monitoring 
Officer Protocol and Procedure For Dealing With Complaints Regarding 
City, Parish And Town Councillors And Co-Opted Members as 
recommended by the Audit & Standards Committee on 16th February 
2023. 

  
 The report also provides an update on changes to the Constitution 

approved at the Council Annual Meeting on 17th May 2023 under the items 
on the Six Month Review of Governance Arrangements and the 
Establishment of Council Committees. 

  
  
2. Background 
  
2.1 An updated constitution for the City Council, reflecting the committee 

system of governance to be operated by the Council from the Municipal 
Year 2022-23, was approved at the annual meeting of the Council held on 
18th May 2022.  In approving the Constitution, the Council authorised the 
Director of Legal and Governance to undertake any minor and 
consequential drafting changes as may be necessary as the new system 
is embedded. 

  
2.2 The Council’s Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how 

decisions are made and the procedures that are followed to ensure that 
these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. Some of 
these processes are required by law, whilst others are a matter for the 
Council to choose.  The Constitution contains 17 Articles in Part 2, which 
set out the basic rules governing the Council’s business. Part 3 of the 
Constitution sets out who is responsible for making what decisions, 
including remits of Committees and arrangements for delegation to 
officers.  More detailed procedures and codes of practice are provided in 
separate rules and protocols contained within the other parts of the 
Constitution. 

Page 38



Page 5 of 12 

  
2.3 The Council has a legal duty to keep its constitution up to date.  In 

accordance with Article 16 of the Constitution (Review and Revision of the 
Constitution), changes to the Constitution will only be made with the 
approval of the Full Council, after consideration of the proposal by a 
Committee of the Council, the Chief Executive or the Monitoring Officer. 

  
2.4 In addition, however, the Director of Legal and Governance (now the 

General Counsel), in consultation with the Lord Mayor, has delegated 
authority to make any minor and consequential drafting changes to the 
Constitution. 

  
2.5 Updates to the Constitution have subsequently been approved at the 

Council meetings held on 20th July, 14th September, 2nd November and 
14th December 2022 and on 20th February, 2023, in accordance with this 
duty to keep the Constitution up to date. 

  
  
3. Proposed Changes and Reasons 
  
3.1 As mentioned in section 1 of this report, the latest proposed changes 

broadly fall into three categories.  Further details of the changes are set 
out in sections 3.2 to 3.6 below. In addition, certain changes were 
approved at the Council’s Annual Meeting on 17th May 2023 as a 
consequence of the decisions on the Six Month Review of Governance 
Arrangements and the Establishment of Council Committees. For 
completeness these changes are described below and shown highlighted 
in the appendices, but they do not require further approval.  

  
  
3.2 Part 1 – Summary and Explanation and Part 2 - Articles of the Constitution 
  
3.2.1 Part 1 – Summary and Explanation: 

 
Minor amendment as a consequence of the establishment of the Finance 
Committee as a full committee, not a sub-committee.  

  
3.2.2 Part 2 Article 15 - Finance, Contracts & Legal Matters:  

 
Minor amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 

  
3.2.3 Part 2 Article 16 - Review & Revision of the Constitution:  

 
Minor amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 

  
3.2.4 Part 2 Article 17 – Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the 

Constitution:  
 

Page 39



Page 6 of 12 

Amendments have been made to the Definitions in Art 17.04. “Strategic 
Director” replaces “Executive Director”; and for clarification any 
reference to a job title in the Constitution is deemed to include an Interim 
appointment to a role with responsibility for the time being for the 
function concerned. 

  
3.2.5 The proposed changes are set out in Appendices 1, 2, 3 and 4 to this 

report. 
  
  
3.3 Part 3 - Responsibility For Functions 
  
3.3.1 Part 3.3 – Matters Delegated to Committees: 

 
Amendments have been made throughout to reflect changes to the 
Council’s management structure and job titles. 
 
Amendments have been made on the recommendation of the Monitoring 
Officer  

• The wording of some of the general reservations to Policy 
Committees has been simplified;  

• Decisions relating to Grants are reserved to Policy Committees 
rather than Finance Committee for consistency with Contracts 
decisions;  

• The wording of some Policy Committee remits has been changed 
to make the functions clearer rather than to reflect Officer posts; 

• The wording of the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee remit has 
been expanded to be clearer on what “decisions of Council as 
charity trustee” encompasses; 

• Where Urgent Decisions are taken by an Officer the Officer 
should, if possible, consult the Deputy Chair and Group 
Spokesperson as well as the Chair of the appropriate Committee.  

 
Amendments have been made to reflect the Governance Committee’s 
recommendations and as a consequence of the decision on the 
Establishment of Council Committees:  

• The general reservations to all Policy Committees include the 
power to set up Task & Finish groups for policy development;  

• Terms of Reference of Strategy & Resources Policy Committee 
have been amended to confirm that substitutes are permitted, 
reflecting the amendment to Council Procedure Rule 33(d) 
described below in paragraph 3.4.1; 

• The Education, Children and Families Policy Committee Terms of 
Reference reflect the role of the Chair as the designated Lead 
Member for Children’s Services;  

• The Terms of Reference of the relevant committees ensure that 
Policy Committees developing regulatory policies must form 
working groups with members of the relevant regulatory 
committee to inform the process; 

• Finance Committee is established as a full committee;  

Page 40



Page 7 of 12 

• Parent Policy Committees, rather than Full Council, may establish 
specified sub-committees (and no others) - the sub-committees 
themselves are not changed; 

 
The Governance Committee may further review the remits of Policy 
Committees over the coming year and make such recommendations to 
Full Council as it thinks necessary. 
 
The agendas of certain Committee meetings which have not yet taken 
place may have been published ahead of this meeting. For the avoidance 
of doubt it is recommended that any change to the remit of such a 
Committee approved by the Council at this meeting does not take effect 
until the conclusion of the meeting of the Committee.  

  
3.3.2 Part 3.4 – Joint Arrangements: 

 
Amendments have been made on the recommendation of the Monitoring 
Officer  

• The name, but not the function, of the Emergency Planning joint 
committee has changed; 

• The Joint Commissioning Committee is removed from the list; 
• The South Yorkshire Integrated Care Partnership is added. 

 
The Joint Commissioning Committee was a joint arrangement between 
the Council and the Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). The 
CCG no longer exists following the NHS reorganisation under the Health 
and Care Act 2022 and so the committee is disestablished. 
 
It is a statutory requirement under the Local Government and Public 
Health Act 2007 (as amended by the Health and Care Act 2022) that an 
Integrated Care Board (which has replaced the CCG) and each 
responsible local authority whose area coincides with or falls wholly or 
partly within the board’s area must establish a joint committee for the 
board’s area (an “integrated care partnership”); Full Council must 
therefore agree to the establishment of the South Yorkshire Integrated 
Care Partnership. 

  
3.3.3 Part 3.5 – Arrangements for the Delegation of Functions to Officers: 

 
Amendments have been made throughout to reflect changes to the 
Council’s management structure and job titles. 
 
Amendments have been made on the recommendation of the Monitoring 
Officer  

• Clarification of functions delegated to the Chief Legal Officer, 
Chef Finance Officer and Director of HR and Employee 
Engagement; 

• Decisions of Extreme Urgency should be reported to the Deputy 
Chair and Group Spokesperson as well as the Chair of the 
appropriate Committee. 

Page 41



Page 8 of 12 

  
3.3.4 The proposed changes are set out in Appendices 5, 6 and 7 to this report. 
  
  
3.4 Part 4 - Rules Of Procedure 
  
3.4.1 Part 4A - Council Procedure Rules: 

 
Amendments have been made throughout to reflect changes to the 
Council’s management structure and job titles. 
 
Amendments have been made on the recommendation of the Monitoring 
Officer  

• In CPR 2 and throughout the defined terms “Body” and “Bodies” 
are used to replace repetitive lists of Council and Committee 
meetings,  
 

Amendments have been made to reflect the Governance Committee’s 
recommendations, including recommendations relating to the Full 
Council Operation Review, and as a consequence of the decision on the 
Establishment of Council Committees: 

• CPRs 5.2 and 25.3 confirm the appointment of sub-committees by 
committee, not Full Council, as noted above at in paragraph 3.3.1. 

• CPRs 10 and 12 are amended to set word limits for motions and 
amendments to motions; 

• CPR 16 is amended to clarify the purpose of Members’ 
Questions, the capacity in which a Committee Chair is expected 
to respond, and that questions to a Chair from a Member of the 
same Committee are not permitted at Full Council, but provision is 
made for questions to the Chair from a Committee Member at a 
meeting of that committee; 

• CPR 18.3 is amended to confirm that voting in parts is permitted; 
• CPR 25.2 is amended to reflect the changes to the right of Policy 

Committees to set up Task & Finish Groups noted above at in 
paragraph 3.3.1;  

• CPR 33(d) is amended to permit substitutes at Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee. 

 
In respect of the amendment to CPR 33(d), the full recommendation of 
the Governance Committee, as approved at the Council’s Annual 
Meeting, was “Substitutes should be permitted at S&R. Where the 
committee member is Chair of a Policy Committee the substitute must 
have sufficient knowledge of their committee's work, and political 
proportionality must be maintained”. There is no comparable knowledge 
requirement for substitute members of any other Policy Committee and it 
places an expectation on that substitute greater than on any other 
member of the Committee who is not a Policy Committee Chair. The 
requirement is therefore disproportionate and, having consulted the 
Members of the Governance Committee, the Monitoring Officer has 
recommended that it be omitted from the amendment.  

Page 42



Page 9 of 12 

  
3.4.2 Part 4B - Contracts Standing Orders: 

 
Minor amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 

  
3.4.3 Part 4C - Access to Information Procedure Rules:  

 
Amendments have been made throughout to reflect changes to the 
Council’s management structure and job titles. 
 
Amendments have been made on the recommendation of the Monitoring 
Officer  

• Additional wording for clarification of Members’ rights of access to 
documents at paragraphs 15.2 and 15.3. 

  
3.4.4 Part 4E - Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations): 

 
Has been completely reviewed and revised, including  

• Amendments to reflect changes to the Council’s management 
structure and job titles;  

• Roles and responsibilities have been made clearer;  
• Minor amendments have been made to ensure that the 

Regulations are internally consistent, as well as consistent with the 
rest of the Council’s constitution; 

• All jargon, acronyms and initialisms are defined in an appropriate 
level of detail. 

  
3.4.5 Part 4F - Officer Employment Procedure Rules:  

 
Amendments have been made throughout to reflect changes to the 
Council’s management structure and job titles. 

  
3.4.6 Part 4G – Area Committee Procedure Rules: 

 
Minor amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 

  
3.4.7 The proposed changes are set out in Appendices 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 

to this report. Appendix 11 does not show individual changes as the 
Financial Procedure Rules have been completely revised. 

  
  
3.5 Part 5 - Codes & Protocols 
  
3.5.1 Part 5B - Monitoring Officer Protocol: 

 
Minor amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 
 

Page 43



Page 10 of 12 

Amendments have been made to the Procedure For Dealing With 
Complaints Regarding City, Parish And Town Councillors And Co-Opted 
Members in accordance with the resolution by the Audit & Standards 
Committee on 16th February 2023 “that the Committee recommends to 
Full Council the adoption of the revised Procedure and that the 
Constitution is amended accordingly”. 

  
3.5.2 Part 5C - Officers' Code of Conduct (including Appendix - Politically 

Restricted Posts): 
 
Minor amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 

  
3.5.3 Part 5D - Protocol for Member/Officer Relations: 

 
Amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 
 
Amendments have been made to reflect the Governance Committee’s 
recommendations 

• The way Members and Officers should work together on 
Committee briefings is clarified;  

• Development of work programmes and what this involves is 
clarified;  

• Sections 6 and 7 are amended to reflect the changes on Task & 
Finish Groups in Part 3.3 and the Council Procedure Rules noted 
above at in paragraphs 3.3.1 and 3.4.1. 

  
3.5.4 Part 5H – Chair Job Share Protocol: 

 
Amendments have been made to reflect the Governance Committee’s 
recommendations 

• Clarification on attendance at briefings; 
• To reflect that sub-committees may not have co-chairing 

arrangements.   
  
3.5.5 Part 5I - Protocol for the Use of the Coat of Arms: 

 
Minor amendments have been made to reflect changes to the Council’s 
management structure and job titles. 

  
3.5.6 The proposed changes are set out in Appendices 14, 15, 16, 17 and 18 

to this report. 
  
  
3.6 Part 7 - Statutory/Proper Officers and Management Structure   
  
3.6.1 Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers:  

 

Page 44



Page 11 of 12 

Amendments have been made throughout to reflect changes to the 
Council’s management structure and job titles. 

  
3.6.2 Part 7B – Management Structure: 

 
Has been completely revised to reflect changes to the Council’s 
organisational structure and job titles and has been reformatted for clarity. 

  
3.6.3 The proposed changes are set out in Appendices 19 and 20 to this report. 

Appendix 20 does not show individual changes as the Management 
Structure has been completely revised. 

  
  
4. Risk Analysis and Implications of the Recommendations 
  
4.1 Legal Implications 
  
4.1.1 Except where delegated by Council as indicated at paragraphs 2.1 and 

2.4, variations to the Constitution may only be made by Full Council. 
  
4.1.2 Under Section 9P of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council must 

prepare a constitution and keep it up to date. It must be available to the 
public and, under the Local Government Transparency Code 2015, be 
published on the Council’s website. The proposed changes in this report 
will bring parts of the Constitution up to date to comply with the legislation. 

  
4.1.3 Other legal implications are stated in the body of the report. 
  
  
4.2 Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
4.2.1 There are no financial or commercial implications. 
  
  
4.3 Equality of Opportunity Implications 
  
4.3.1 As a public sector organisation, the Council has a number of statutory 

duties with regards to equality.  The Council must consciously think about 
its statutory duties, both in the way we behave as an employer and when 
we develop and review policy and set our budgets. 

  
4.3.2 There are several changes that have been made to the Constitution that 

result from the six-month review of the operation of the Council’s new 
governance arrangements, which was led by the Governance Committee 
and which were approved at the Council’s Annual Meeting on 17th May 
2023.  Equality, diversity and inclusion was a specific theme in the scope 
of the review.  Section 3.3 of the report on the review on the Annual 
Meeting agenda outlined the equality of opportunity implications 
associated with the Committee’s recommendations. 

  
  

Page 45



Page 12 of 12 

5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
  
5.1 The Council could choose not to approve the various changes being 

recommended, but this would mean that the Constitution would not reflect 
the revised officer designations and allocation of responsibilities 
introduced under the Future Sheffield Programme, nor the changes 
proposed by the Monitoring Officer for reasons of 
clarification/simplification, or otherwise to reflect recent changes, nor the 
recommendation made by the Audit & Standards Committee at its meeting 
in February 2023.  This would conflict with the Council’s aim to keep its 
constitution under review and its duty to keep it up to date. 

  
  
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
6.1 The approval of the updates to the Council’s Constitution will enable the 

Council to meet its duty to keep its Constitution up to date.  This is 
especially relevant and important as the Council’s new committee system 
form of governance develops over the coming months and early years 
ahead, and especially as some of the proposed updates relate directly to 
the operation of that system following its review by the Governance 
Committee. 

  
  
  

 
 
David Hollis 
Interim General Counsel (and Monitoring Officer) 
 
 

Page 46



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 1 – Summary and Explanation  
 
______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Page 1 of 4 

 

        Appendix 1 

Summary and Explanation          

 

The Council’s Constitution 
 
The Sheffield Metropolitan District Council (known as The Sheffield City 
Council) has agreed a Constitution that sets out how the Council operates, 
how decisions are made and the procedures that are followed to ensure that 
these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. Some of 
these processes are required by law, whilst others are a matter for the Council 
to choose. 
 
The Constitution contains 17 Articles in Part 2, which set out the basic rules 
governing the Council’s business. More detailed procedures and codes of 
practice are provided in separate rules and protocols contained within the 
other parts of this Constitution. 
 
What is in the Constitution 
 
Article 1 of the Constitution commits the Council to be amongst the best 
performing Councils, providing the best quality services in the Country.  
 
Articles 2 to 17 explain the rights of citizens and how the key parts of the 
Council operate. These are: 
 
▪ Members of the Council (Article 2). 
▪ Citizens and the Council (Article 3). 
▪ The Full Council (Article 4). 
▪ Chairing the Council (Article 5). 
▪ The Leader, Deputy Leader and Group Leaders (Article 6). 
▪ Policy Committees (Article 7). 
▪ Regulatory and Other Council Committees (Article 8). 
▪ The Audit and Standards Committee (Article 9).  
▪ Health and Wellbeing Board (Article 10). 
▪ Area Committees (Article 11). 
▪ Joint Arrangements (Article 12). 
▪ Officers (Article 13). 
▪ Decision Making (Article 14). 
▪ Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters (Article 15). 
▪ Review and Revision of the Constitution (Article 16). 
▪ Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the Constitution (Article 

17). 
 
Part 3 of the Constitution sets out who is responsible for making what 
decisions, including remits of Committees and arrangements for delegation to 
officers.  

Page 47



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 1 – Summary and Explanation  
 
______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Page 2 of 4 

 
Part 4 of the Constitution details the framework for the administrative and 
procedural conduct of the Council and its committees, including Council 
Procedure Rules for meetings, Contracts Standing Orders, Access to 
Information Procedure Rules, Budget & Policy Framework Procedure Rules, 
Financial Regulations, Officer Employment Procedure Rules and Area 
Committee Procedure Rules.  
 
Part 5 comprises a number of codes and protocols which councillors and 
employees of the Council should comply with, including Codes of Conduct for 
Members and Officers, Protocols for Member/Officer Relations and Sharing 
the Committee Chair role, and some guidance on the Council’s practices. 
 
Part 6 is the current Members’ Allowances Scheme.  
 
Part 7 is the Council’s Statutory and Proper Officers and Management 
Structure. 
 
How the Council Operates 
 
The Council is composed of 84 Councillors with one-third elected three years 
in four. Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their 
Ward. The overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they 
have a special duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for 
them. Councillors must agree to follow a Code of Conduct to ensure high 
standards in the way they undertake their duties. The Audit and Standards 
Committee ensures that Councillors have access to training and advice on the 
Code of Conduct. 
 
Councillors have no individual powers. Councillors influence and make 
decisions corporately through Council and committee meetings.  
All Councillors meet together as the Full Council. Here Councillors decide the 
Council’s overall policies, set the budget each year and set the Council’s 
major plans, policies and strategies. The statutory and other responsibilities 
reserved to the Council are set out in Part 3, subject to any amendment 
necessary to comply with legal requirements. Meetings of the Council are 
normally open to the public. 
 
At the Annual Council Meeting, usually in May, Full Council elects a Lord 
Mayor and a Deputy Lord Mayor. During his or her period of office, the Lord 
Mayor is the first citizen of the City and chairs meetings of the Full Council. 
 
At the Annual Meeting Full Council also appoints the Leader and Deputy 
Leader, the Chairs and Deputy Chairs of Committees (as set out in Part 3) 
and the Councillors to serve on those Committees. Appointments to all 
committees, except Area Committees, comply with the requirements of 

Page 48



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 1 – Summary and Explanation  
 
______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Page 3 of 4 

political proportionality set out in the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989. 
Full Council also appoints representatives to serve on joint bodies and 
external organisations.  
 
The Council is responsible for functions as provided by statute and also has a 
general power of competence. The Council arranges for its functions to be 
carried out through its committee system and by delegated responsibilities to 
its senior officers. All committees are subordinate to the Full Council and 
dependent on it, through this Constitution and the policies and decisions 
agreed by it, for the delegation of powers and duties.  
 
How Decisions Are Made 
 
The Council has set up procedures to ensure that its functions are carried out 
effectively and efficiently in accordance with the principles of good 
administration.  
 
Eight Policy Committees and the Finance Committee are responsible for most 
of the Council's functions. Their full terms of reference are set out in Part 3 of 
this Constitution. These committees meet on a planned basis in public (except 
where personal, exempt or confidential matters are being discussed – see 
Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4) to take operational, policy 
and strategic decisions within their remit, other than those reserved to Full 
Council or delegated to other committees or senior officers.  
 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee is made up of the Leader, the 
Chairs of each of the Council’s other Policy Committees, the Chair of the 
Finance Sub-Committee, and such other Members as are necessary for 
political proportionality. There are procedures so that controversial decisions 
that would normally be made by another Policy Committee may be referred to 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee or Full Council to determine. 
 
Other Committees with decision making powers include the Planning and 
Highways Committee, the Statutory and Regulatory Licensing Committees, 
and the other committees whose terms of reference are set out in Part 3 of 
this Constitution.  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board is a Committee of the Council whose 
members include Councillors, officers of the Council and representatives from 
local health and other organisations. It is a statutory forum required for 
discussing shared health and wellbeing issues and concerns.  
 
Access to Information Requirements  
 
Meetings of Full Council and its Committees are subject to the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution. The rights of 

Page 49



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 1 – Summary and Explanation  
 
______________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 Page 4 of 4 

citizens to inspect agendas and reports and attend meetings are set out in 
more detail in these Rules. 
 
Working groups and task and finish groups do not meet in public session and 
are not subject to these Rules. 
 
The Council’s Staff 
 
The Council has people working for it (called ‘Officers’) to give advice, 
implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. 
Some Officers have a specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the 
law and uses its resources wisely. A Protocol in Part 5 of the Constitution 
governs the relationships between Officers and Members of the Council. 
 
Citizens’ Rights 
 
Citizens have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council. These are 
set out in more detail in Article 3. Some of these are legal rights, whilst others 
depend on the Council’s own processes. The local Citizens’ Advice Bureau 
can advise on individuals’ legal rights. 
 
Where members of the public use specific Council services, for example as a 
parent of a school pupil or as a Council tenant, they have additional rights. 
These are not covered in this Constitution. 
 
The Council welcomes participation by its citizens in its work. For further 
information on your rights as a citizen, please contact the First Point 
Reception at Howden House, Union Street, Sheffield or by e-mailing 
firstpoint@sheffield.gov.uk. The Reception service is open during normal 
working hours. 
 
 
 

Page 50



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 2 – Article 15 – Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 1 of 2 

Appendix 2 
 
Article 15 - Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 
 
15.01 Financial management 
 

The management of the Council’s financial affairs will be conducted in 
accordance with the Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations) 
set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 
15.02 Contracts 
 

Every contract made by the Council will comply with the Contracts 
Standing Orders set out in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 
15.03 Legal proceedings 
 

The Director of Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer is authorised 
to institute, defend or participate in any legal proceedings in any case 
where such action is necessary to give effect to decisions of the 
Council or in any case where the Director of Legal and Governance 
Chief Legal Officer considers that such action is necessary or 
appropriate to protect the Council’s interests. 

 
15.04 Authentication of documents 
 

Where any document is necessary to any legal procedure or 
proceedings on behalf of the Council, it will be signed by the Director of 
Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer or other person authorised 
by him/her, unless any enactment otherwise authorises or requires or 
the Council has given requisite authority to some other person. 

 
All contracts entered into on behalf of the local authority, including 
contracts placed or confirmed by order, shall be in writing. Contracts 
with a value of £500,000 or more shall be by deed and under the 
Common Seal of the Council except with the approval of the Director of 
Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer. Contracts with a value of 
less than £500,000 shall be by deed and under the Common Seal of 
the Council if the Director of Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer 
so recommends.  
 

15.05 The Common Seal of the Council 
 

The Common Seal of the Council will be kept in a safe place in the 
custody of the Director of Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer.  A 
decision of the Council, or of any part of it, including a properly 

Page 51



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 2 – Article 15 – Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 2 of 2 

delegated decision by an officer, will be sufficient authority for sealing 
any document necessary to give effect to the decision. The Common 
Seal will be affixed to those documents which in the opinion of the 
Director of Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer should be 
sealed. The affixing of the Common Seal will be attested by the 
Director of Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer, an Assistant 
Director of Legal Servicesand Governance, or some other person 
authorised by the Director of Legal and Governance Chief Legal 
Officer. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 52



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 2 – Article 16 – Review and Revision of the Constitution 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 1 of 1 

Appendix 3 
 
Article 16 - Review and Revision of the Constitution 
 
16.01 Duty to Monitor and Review the Constitution 
 

The Monitoring Officer will monitor and review the operation of the 
Constitution to ensure that the aims and principles of the Constitution 
are given full effect. 

 
16.02 Protocol for Monitoring and Review of the Constitution by the 

Monitoring Officer 
 
A key role for the Monitoring Officer is to be aware of the strengths and 
weaknesses of the Constitution adopted by the Council, and to make 
recommendations for ways in which it could be amended in order to 
achieve better the purposes set out in Article 1.  In undertaking this 
task the Monitoring Officer may: 
 
(a) observe meetings of different parts of the Councillor and Officer 

structure; 
 
(b) undertake an audit trail of a sample of decisions; 
 
(c) record and analyse issues raised with him/her by Councillors, 

Officers, the public and other relevant stakeholders; and  
 
(d) compare practices in the Council with those in other comparable 

authorities, or national examples of best practice. 
 
16.03 Changes to the Constitution 

 
Changes to the Constitution will only be made: 
 
(a)  with the approval of the Full Council after consideration of the 

proposal by a Committee of the Council, the Chief Executive or 
the Monitoring Officer; or 

 
(b)  by the Director of Legal and Governance Monitoring Officer, in 

consultation with the Lord Mayor, in accordance with any 
powers explicitly delegated by Full Council in relation to minor or 
consequential amendments. 

 
 

Page 53



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 2 – Article 17 – Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the 
Constitution (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 1 of 1 

Appendix 4 
 
Article 17 - Suspension, Interpretation and Publication 
of the Constitution  
 
17.01 Suspension of the Constitution 

 
(a) Limit to suspension.  The Articles of this Constitution may not 

be suspended.  The Rules in other Parts of this Constitution may 
be suspended as set out in and to the extent permitted within 
those Rules and the law. 

 
(b) Procedure to suspend.  A motion to suspend any rules will not 

be moved without notice unless at least one half of the 
Councillors entitled to vote are present.  The extent and duration 
of suspension will be proportionate to the result to be achieved, 
taking account of the purposes of the Constitution set out in 
Article 1. 

 
17.02 Interpretation   
 
 The ruling of the Lord Mayor as to the construction or application of this 

Constitution or as to any proceedings of the Council shall not be 
challenged at any meeting of the Council.  Such interpretation will have 
regard to the purposes of this Constitution contained in Article 1. 

 
17.03 Publication 
 

(a) The Monitoring Officer will ensure that copies are available for 
inspection at Council offices, libraries and other appropriate 
locations, and on the Council’s website. 

 
(b) The Monitoring Officer will ensure that a summary of the 

Constitution is made widely available within the area and is 
updated as necessary. 

 
17.04 Definitions 
  
 In this Constitution ‘Executive Strategic Director’ means an Officer 

who reports directly to the Chief Executive (other than an officer whose 
duties are solely secretarial or clerical).  

 
 Any reference to an Officer job title is deemed to include an Interim 

appointment to a post with responsibility for the time being for the 
function concerned.  

Page 54



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 2 – Article 17 – Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the 
Constitution (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 2 of 1 

 
 

Page 55



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

Appendix 5 
 
3.3.  MATTERS DELEGATED TO COUNCIL COMMITTEES AND SUB-

COMMITTEES  
 
The current Council Committees, their terms of reference, and the functions 
delegated to them are set out in detail below: 
3.3.1 Policy Committees 
3.3.2 Arrangements for Urgent Decision Making 
3.3.3 Area Committees 
3.3.4 Regulatory Committees 
3.3.5 Other Committees 
3.3.6 Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Unless otherwise stated, a Committee may further delegate to a Sub-
Committee or Council Officer and a Sub-Committee may further delegate to a 
Council Officer. 
 
The Full Council will decide the constitution, membership and terms of 
reference of each Committee (except for those matters relating to Area 
Committees which are set out in legislation). 
 
The Monitoring Officer shall ensure that all consequential amendments to this 
part of the Constitution are made promptly. 
 
 
3.3.1  POLICY COMMITTEES 
 
The Council has established eight Policy Committees aligned with the 
functions of the Council: 

1. Strategy and Resources 
2. Communities, Parks and Leisure 
3. Education, Children and Families 
4. Adult Health and Social Care 
5. Housing 
6. Waste and Street Scene 
7. Economic Development and Skills 
8. Transport, Regeneration and Climate 

 
A Finance Committee has also been established to make specific financial 
decisions on behalf of the Council. 
 
Matters Reserved to All Policy Committees  
 
Within the remit of each Policy Committee and subject to decisions being (i) 
within the approved Bbudget (including any virement), (ii) not contrary to the 

Page 56



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

Budget and Policy Framework, (iii) in accordance with the priorities set out in 
the Council’s Corporate Plan, and (iv) any Capital Programme expenditure 
having been approved by the Strategy and Resources Policy Finance 
Committee, the following matters are reserved to Policy Committees: 
 
Strategic Service and Financial Planning and Review 

• Agreeing statutory and other strategies; 

• Agreeing policy issues;  

• Approval of the proposed withdrawal or variation of any service where 
this is outside the scope of an agreed Service Plan and the likely 
impact on present or future users of the service is considered 
significant; 

• Any alterations to agreed budgets or Council Service Plans which the 
Chief Finance Officer considers to be significant (provided these 
remain within the constraints of the Budget and Policy Framework); 

• Agreeing fees and charges (other than any set by Full Council as part 
of the budget process) in line with the medium term financial strategy 
and any policies in respect of fees and charges; 

• Agreeing to policy and performance priorities for the short and medium 
term, taking into account the needs of the Council as a whole; 

• Considering reviews of Service performance against approved plans. 
 
In connection with this role a Policy Committee may, subject to sufficient 
Officer and Member capacity, appoint Task and Finish Groups as appropriate 
to assist in the completion of their duties. Membership of such a Task and 
Finish Group is not limited to Members of the appointing Policy Committee 
and may include in an advisory capacity people who are not elected 
Members. Where a Policy Committee is developing a regulatory policy, it shall 
form a working group with Members of the relevant Regulatory Committee to 
inform the process. 
 
Consultation and Petitions 

• Agreeing the Council’s response to consultation by Government or 
other external agencies where this relates to proposed policy changes 
which the Chair of the Committee or of the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee consider to be significant; 

• DealConsidering withpublic petitions that have been presented or 
referred to the Committeein accordance with Council procedure. 

 
Contracts 

Agreeing the commission or purchasing decision (or a variation to an 
existing commission or purchasing decision) and the budget on any 
given requirement is reserved to a Policy Committee except where the 
proposed course of action is a contract or contracts which together: 

Page 57



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• is within available budget (including any proper virement) and 
does not, in the opinion of either the Chief Finance Officer, 
significantly affect the Council’s overall budget strategy; 

• isare not contrary to any duly approved policy of the Council; 

• is not a significant departure from a relevant Council Service 
Plan; 

• haves with a service delivery period of 4 years or less; and 
• (a) haves (or, is expected to have) an estimated Contract Vvalue 

over the lifetime of the contracts which does not exceed 
£250,000 or (b) isare for Commonly Recurring Items. 

 
‘Commonly Recurring Items’ means (a) those consumables that the 
Council routinely purchases to enable the continuation of its day to day 
business activities (such as for example office supplies, fuel, utilities, 
travel tickets, maintenance supplies, tyres and protective clothing); 
and/or (b) services purchased by the Council for which there is an 
ongoing need, which facilitate the delivery of its functions rather than 
being the mechanism for delivery of those functions, e.g. IT support 
and back office IT systems, and which do not have customer facing 
interactionthings which the Council routinely purchases to enable the 
continuation of its day to day business activities (such as for example 
office supplies, fuel, utilities, IT support, travel and transport services, 
maintenance supplies and protective clothing); and (b) services 
purchased by the Council for which there is a constant need and where 
a break in provision could lead to the Council incurring a legal liability 
for breach of duty (such as for example adult social care services); but 
it does not simply mean any thing or service of a kind which has been 
purchased by the Council, whether from the same or a different 
supplier, by way of a previous Contract. 

 
After a Policy Committee has made a reserved commissioning or purchasing 
decision, procurement and contracting decisions are reserved to Committee 
only if: 

• It is proposed that the contract is not awarded to the person submitting 
the most economically advantageous tender decided by reference to 
pre-determined award criteria, where payment is to be made by the 
Council, or the highest, where payment is to be received by the 
Council, unless the decision maker has decided on a single tender 
procurement strategy for the contract; or 

• The contract is not within the approved budget (including any proper 
virement); or 

• The contract is inconsistent with the approved commissioning / 
purchasing strategy; or 

• Award of the contract would contravene a Council policy.; or 

• Award of the contract would represent a significant departure from a 
relevant Council Service Plan. 

Page 58



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• A variation of an existing contract results in: 
o An increase in contract value of more than £250,000; 
o An increase in service delivery period of more than four years;  
o A significant effect on Council’s overall budget strategy; or 
o It is not within the available budget, contravenes policy or is a  

significant departure from a service plan. 

• There are any additional procurement requirements imposed by an 
external funder which require consideration by the Committee 

 
Council Supply Agreements 
A Council Supply Agreement is a contractually binding agreement under 
which the Council agrees to provide works, services or supplies to a third 
party in return for payment, in money or in-kind, otherwise than in fulfilment of 
a statutory duty, but does not include an agreement under which the Council 
receives grant aid. 
 
The decision to enter into a proposed Council Supply Agreement or to agree a 
variation where one of the following criteria applies or to terminate an existing 
Council Supply Agreement which fulfils any of the following criteria is reserved 
to the Committee only if: 

• in the opinion of the Chief Finance Officer it would significantly affect 
the Council’s overall budget strategy; 

• in the opinion of the either the Chief Finance Officer or the Chief Legal 
Officer it would involve a significant level of risk to the Council; 

• it would require the Council to incur gross expenditure in order to 
discharge its obligations under the agreement which is (a) reasonably 
anticipated to be in excess of £100,000 or (b) not provided for in a 
relevant budget; 

• it would involve the Council in receiving payment the value of which is 
reasonably anticipated to be in excess of £250,000; 

• it would require the Council to provide works, services or supplies for a 
period exceeding 3 years; or 

• it would contravene a Council policy. 
 
Grant Aid, Loans and Guarantees 

• Making any decision in relation to grant aid which is not within an 
agreed strategy; 

• Agreeing to establish a fund in excess of £100,000 from which 
individual grants or loans will be paid and agreeing the eligibility criteria 
for these grants or loans; 

• approving the payment of any grant or loan in excess of £50,000 
(including a grant or loan paid wholly or in part by the Council out of 
external grant aid) except where (a) paying the grant or loan to that 
specific recipient, or to a recipient for a specific purpose, is required or 
clearly intended by the terms of the Council’s agreement with an 

Page 59



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

external funder, and (b) a decision has been made to accept the 
external funding in knowledge of this requirement/intention; 

• Approving the withdrawal or reclaiming of grant aid which has been 
awarded to a third party where the amount of grant aid to be withdrawn 
or reclaimed is in excess of £25,000; 

• Agreeing to the Council becoming the Accountable Body for any award 
of grant aid from an external funder to the Council or to a third party 
where:- 
 (i) the grant aid to be received by the Council is anticipated to 
 be in excess of £750,000; or 
 (ii) the grant aid to be received by the third party is anticipated to 
 be in excess of £50,000; 

• Agreeing to the Council guaranteeing the liabilities of a third party 
where the financial exposure of the Council under the guarantee is or 
may be in excess of £50,000. 

 
Community Right to Challenge  

• The decision to accept an expression of interest (including a modified 
expression of interest) submitted pursuant to the Community Right to 
Challenge contained in Part 5 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
Urgent decisions  

• Establishing an Urgency Sub-Committee with a quorum of three 
members (to include the Chair or Deputy Chair of the Policy 
Committee) to take Urgent Decisions in accordance with the 
Arrangements for Urgent Decision Making set out at Part 3 3 2 below; 
all members of the parent committee and their named substitutes 
(where applicable) may act as substitute members of an Urgency Sub-
Committee. 

 
The Terms of Reference, including any Sub-Committees, for each Policy 
Committee and the Finance Committee are detailed below. 
 
 
STRATEGY AND RESOURCES POLICY COMMITTEE 

The Leader of the Council is the Chair of the Committee. Membership 
includes the Chairs of each of the Council’s other Policy Committees, the 
Chair of the Finance Sub-Committee, and such other Members as are 
necessary for political proportionality, and to ensure an odd number of 
Members.  Members of the Committee may not nominate substitute members. 
 
Corporate responsibilities 
The following Corporate responsibilities are within the remit of the Committee: 

• Cross-cutting responsibility for development and submission to Full 
Council for adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework  

Page 60



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• Providing strategic direction to the operation of the Council by 
developing and recommending the Corporate Plan (including 
determination of the priorities set out therein) to Full Council and making 
decisions on cross-cutting policies and practice where such decisions 
are not reserved to full Council 

• Responsibility for decisions on any commitments to funding in future 
years not covered within the Council’s medium term financial plan  

• Responsibility for any issue identified as being of significant strategic 
importance or financial risk to the Council (which is considered to be by 
its nature cross-cutting)  

• Responsibility, including referral to another Policy Committee for 
consideration if appropriate, for any policy matter not otherwise allocated 
to a Committee 

• Considering reports which an Ombudsman requires to be published by 
the Council where it is proposed that the Council take the recommended 
action 

 
 
Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee: 

• Finance and Commercial Services 

• Legal Servicesand Governance 

• Policy and Democratic Engagement 

• Human Resources and Employee EngagementCustomer Services 

• Organisational Strategy, Performance and Delivery 

• ICT and Digital InnovationBusiness Change and Information Solutions 
 
The Committee will take decisions within its remit on any reserved matter and 
may take decisions on any matter otherwise reserved to Finance Committee 
provided that, so far as practicable, Members of the Finance Committee have 
first been briefed on the matter.  
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 

•  Climate and Bio-diversity 

 
Relationship with the other Policy Committees 
The Committee is responsible for: 

• Developing an annual work plan (including work programming), with 
reference to the Corporate Plan, in consultation with the other Policy 
Committees. The Committee co-ordinates and implements the 
Corporate Plan and will consider the combined Policy Committee Work 
Programme every other meeting to ensure corporate objectives are 
being achieved.  

Page 61



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• Determining key cross-cutting policies and key plans that impact on 
more than one Policy Committee, decisions that have a significant 
impact on a cross cutting issue, strategy or plan, and determining any 
matter that has a major impact on a number of Council services or the 
Council as a whole. 

• Determining any matter of dispute or difference between any Policy 
Committees. 

• A co-ordinating role across all other Policy Committees and exercising a 
corporate view of outcomes, performance, budget monitoring and risk 
management. 

• Considering the overall performance of the Authority and the 
performance of other Policy Committees, including holding them to 
account with regard to delivery against the Corporate Plan. Where there 
is a serious performance concern, the Committee may refer this concern 
to Full Council for consideration. 

• The exercise of any function not otherwise allocated and, if it considers 
appropriate, the exercise of functions of any Policy Committee or Sub-
Committee. 

• Monitoring referrals from Area Committees to Policy Committees, 
including monitoring patterns and lessons to be learned, in consultation 
with Area Committee chairs. For the avoidance of doubt an Area 
Committee may only refer a matter to the Committee if it is the 
appropriate Policy Committee for that referral. 

 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee may refer any issue falling within 
its remit to another Policy Committee for decision if it considers appropriate.  
 
Another Policy Committee may refer any matter within its remit to Strategy 
and Resources Policy Committee if it considers appropriate.  
 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee may refer any matter (within its 
own remit or the remit of another Policy Committee) to Full Council only in 
exceptional circumstances. 
 
Charity Trustee Sub-Committee 
The Strategy and Resources Policy Committee shall establish a politically 
proportionate Charity Trustee Sub-Committee, whose membership is not 
limited to members of the Committee, as a standing sub-committee to meet 
as required. 
 
The Charity Trustee Sub-Committee shall take all decisions of the Council as 
charitable trustee, including but not limited to  

• Disposals of and other dealings with charitable land  

• Matters about which the Charity Commission must be contacted 

• Matters of which charitable trustees should be aware in accordance 

with Charity Commission Guidance 

Page 62



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• Use of charitable assets by the Council for purposes that do not directly 

meet the charitable aims 

• Any other matter that has a significant impact on the use of a charitable 

asset for the charitable purposes for reasons of duration, area of the 

asset impacted, or other restriction 

• Matters relating to land that is not itself charitable and other incidental 
matters which depend on or are directly related to a decision that must 
be made by the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee 

 

FINANCE SUB-COMMITTEE 
 
The Finance Sub-Committee is established as a sub-committee of the Strategy 
and Resources Policy Committee. Its membership may include Councillors who 
are not members of, and it may be chaired by a Member who is not the Chair 
of, the Committee.  
 
It may take decisions in respect of the following Finance and Property matters 
which are otherwise reserved to the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee(but for the avoidance of doubt not those matters which are reserved 
to the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee), more particularly detailed below: 

a. Strategic financial overview  
b. Property decisions  
c. Accountable Body decisions  
d. Corporate Revenue and Capital monitoring and capital 

allocations 
 
Finance 

• Agreement upon the annual budget for Services within Portfolios 
including the application of the overall capital programme (within the 
Budget and Policy Framework);Monitoring Council budget each month; 

• Agreement of Council policies in respect of fees and charges;  

• Commitments to funding in future years not covered within the 
Council’s medium term financial plan; 

• Agreement upon virements of £500,000 and over or representing a 
major change of policy (any value) from one division of a Service to 
another or between Services within Portfolios Directorates or between 
Portfolios Directorates and within the approved budget. 

 
Capital Programme 
Agreement of reports on the implementation of the capital programme 
provided under the Capital Programme Financial Reporting and Control  
Procedures, including:- 

Page 63



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

(a) approval of all new schemes, except expenditure relating to 
feasibility works up to the value of £100,000, in accordance with 
the Financial Procedure Rules and 

(b) approval of a variation to an existing scheme which increases 
the value of the scheme by more than £100,000. 

 
Property 

(a) Acquisitions of Property where the consideration to be paid by the 
Council exceeds £250,000, but not including any acquisition of 
Property that the Council is obliged by Llaw to complete; 

(b) Disposals of Property, being of the freehold or leasehold but not 
including a mortgagee sale or disposal that Council must by law 
complete such as Right to Buy, lease enfranchisement or easements to 
certain service providers  

o Where the Council has been required by Llaw to publicly 
advertise the proposed Disposal (e.g. public open space); and 
one or more objections to the proposed Disposal has been 
received; 

o Which are not subject to a competitive process where the 
consideration to be received by the Council exceeds £300,000; 

o For less than the best consideration reasonably obtainable; 
o Which are clearly controversial; 
o Which for any statutory or other legal reason need to be decided 

by a committee, not an officer; 
o Which involve the transfer of a freehold interest, the grant of a 

lease for a term of not less than twenty-five years or the 
assignment of a lease with a remaining term of not less than 
twenty-five years AND a relevant councillor or parish/town 
council has objected; 

(c) Appropriation to another purpose of surplus property that has not been 
identified for disposal by the Finance Sub-Committee or Strategy and 
Resources Committee to another purpose.  

 
The Finance Committee shall establish an Urgency Sub-Committee 
with a quorum of three members (to include the Chair or Deputy Chair 
of the Committee) to take Urgent Decisions in accordance with the 
Arrangements for Urgent Decision Making set out at Part 3 3 2 below; 
all members of the Committee and their named substitutes (where 
applicable) may act as substitute members of the Urgency Sub-
Committee. 
 
Grant Aid, Loans and Guarantees 
Provided that no decision that the Council will act as the Accountable 
Body for 
external grant aid or provide a guarantee in relation to the liabilities of a 
third 

Page 64



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

party shall be taken unless the Chief Finance Officer has been 
consulted and 
has approved the arrangement: 

• Making any decision in relation to grant aid which the Leader 
identifies as being of strategic importance; 

• Agreeing to establish a fund (not being a fund wholly established 
with external grant aid for which the Council is the Accountable Body 
and which is received for this purpose) in excess of £100,000 from 
which individual grants or loans will be paid and agreeing the eligibility 
criteria for these grants or loans; 

• approving the payment of any grant or loan in excess of £50,000 
(including a grant or loan paid wholly or in part by the Council out of 
external grant aid) subject to the proviso that an officer may make the 
decision where (a) paying the grant or loan to that specific recipient is 
required or clearly intended by the terms of the Council’s agreement 
with the external funder, and (b) the committee has made the decision 
to accept the external funding and act as Accountable Body in 
knowledge of this requirement/intention; 

• Approving the withdrawal or reclaiming of grant aid which has 
been awarded to a third party where the amount of grant aid to be 
withdrawn or reclaimed is in excess of £25,000; 

• Agreeing to the Council becoming the Accountable Body for any 
award of grant aid from an external funder to the Council or to a third 
party where:- 
 (i) the grant aid to be received by the Council is anticipated to 
 be in excess of £750,000; or 
 (ii) the grant aid to be received by the third party is anticipated to 
 be in excess of £50,000; 

• Agreeing to the Council guaranteeing the liabilities of a third 
party where the financial exposure of the Council under the guarantee 
is or may be in excess of £50,000. 
 

Charity Trustee Sub-Committee 
A standing sub-committee of the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee is 
established to take all decisions of the Council as charitable trustee, including 
but not limited to disposals of and other dealings with charitable land, and will 
meet as required. 
 
 
COMMUNITIES, PARKS AND LEISURE POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Community, Parks and Leisure 
Policy Committee: 

• Communities 
o Community Development 

Page 65



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

o Cohesion and Migration 
o Community Safety including Anti-Social Behaviour 
o Prevention and Early Intervention 
o Youth Services 

• Parks, Leisure and Libraries 
o Sport, physical activity and leisure facilities 
o Community events 
o  
o Parks and Countryside (including non-highway Trees and  

Woodlands (including non-highway trees) 
o Allotments 
o Ecology 
o Bereavement Services 
o Libraries 

• Voluntary Sector 
o Voluntary Sector Liaison  
o Voluntary Sector Grants including Grant Aid Programme 
o Strategic lead on rRelationships and development with the 

Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector building capacity and 
sustainability in the sector 
 

 
Within its remit the Committee: 

• Takes decisions on any reserved matter;  

• Is responsible for regular monitoring of data including performance and 
financial information and for monitoring the performance of services; 

• Is responsible for working within the budget framework agreed by 
Council, including taking timely action to address any overspend within 
services;  

• Is responsible for delivery against the Corporate Plan and any 
associated Annual Plans and reporting performance to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee; 

• Must keep its work programme under review at each meeting; 

• May consider any matters referred by an Area Committee. 
 
The Committee may refer matters within its own remit (but not matters within 
the remit of any other Policy Committee) to Full Council only in exceptional 
circumstances. The Committee may refer matters to Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee but to no other Policy Committee. It is responsible for 
delivery on matters referred by Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
and, in the case of cross-cutting issues, for communication, through the 
Chairs, with any affected Policy Committee.  
 
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

Page 66



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 
• Climate and Bio-diversity 

 
Matters Reserved to Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee 
Decision making in respect of Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs):  

• To approve a draft PSPO, including the proposed restrictions, and to 
carry out consultation;  

• To consider the outcome of the consultation and to approve the making 
of the PSPO with such amendments as are necessary or to decide not 
to proceed; 

• To approve the making of an expedited PSPO. 
 
The Committee oversees any communities or localism strategy within which 
Area Committees operate. 
 
The Committee is the Council’s Crime and Disorder Committee and exercises 
the functions under Section 19, Police and Justice Act 2006. 
 
 
EDUCATION, CHILDREN AND FAMILIES POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Education, Children and Families 
Policy Committee: 

• Education and Skills, including 
o Schools (including sufficiency of school places) 
o Mainstream and specialist education (early years, children and 

young people) 
o Special Educational Needs and Disabilities  
o Learning and Skills policy, programmes and interventions 

(children and young people) 

• Children and Families 
o Children and family support and social work 
o Fostering and adoption 
o Children in care, care leavers and corporate parenting 
o Residential services 
o Youth justice 
o Children’s wellbeing 
o Child safeguarding 
o Early childhood services 

o  
 
The Education, Children and Families Policy Committee has political oversight 
of the statutory functions of the Director of Children’s Services under the 
Children’s Act 2004. The Chair of the Committee is the Council’s designated 
Lead Member for Children’s Services. 

Page 67



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
Within its remit the Committee: 

• Takes decisions on any reserved matter;  

• Is responsible for regular monitoring of data including performance and 
financial information and for monitoring the performance of services; 

• Is responsible for working within the budget framework agreed by 
Council, including taking timely action to address any overspend within 
services; 

• Is responsible for delivery against the Corporate Plan and any 
associated Annual Plans and reporting performance to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee; 

• Must keep its work programme under review at each meeting; 

• May consider any matters referred by an Area Committee. 
 
The Committee may refer matters within its own remit (but not matters within 
the remit of any other Policy Committee) to Full Council only in exceptional 
circumstances. The Committee may refer matters to Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee but to no other Policy Committee. It is responsible for 
delivery on matters referred by Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
and, in the case of cross-cutting issues, for communication, through the 
Chairs, with any affected Policy Committee.  
 
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 

• Climate and Bio-diversity 
 
Matters Reserved to the Education, Children and Families Policy Committee 
Decision making in respect of the establishment, alteration or  
discontinuance of schools, other than those that must be referred to the 
Schools Adjudicator. 
 
 
 
ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Adult Health and Social Care 
Policy Committee: 

• Adult Health and Social Care 

• Adult social work, care and support including specialist social work 

• Adult Future Options 

• Access, Mental Health and Wellbeing 

• Adult Living and Ageing Well 

• Care Governance and Financial Inclusion 

Page 68



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• Adult Safeguarding 
o  
o Carers 
o Occupational therapy, enablement and support for independent living 

o Adult safeguarding 
 
Within its remit the Committee: 

• Takes decisions on any reserved matter;  

• Is responsible for regular monitoring of data including performance and 
financial information and for monitoring the performance of services; 

• Is responsible for working within the budget framework agreed by 
Council, including taking timely action to address any overspend within 
services; 

• Is responsible for delivery against the Corporate Plan and any 
associated Annual Plans and reporting performance to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee; 

• Must keep its work programme under review at each meeting; 

• May consider any matters referred by an Area Committee. 
 
The Committee may refer matters within its own remit (but not matters within 
the remit of any other Policy Committee) to Full Council only in exceptional 
circumstances. The Committee may refer matters to Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee but to no other Policy Committee. It is responsible for 
delivery on matters referred by Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
and, in the case of cross-cutting issues, for communication, through the 
Chairs, with any affected Policy Committee.  
 
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 

• Climate and Bio-diversity 
 
Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee 
The Adult Health and Social Care Policy Committee is responsible for the 
review and scrutiny of local health services, including the power of referral to 
the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care, under the Local Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) 
Regulations 2013. It shall exercises this function establish athrough the 
politically proportionate Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee, which is a standing 
sub-committee established for this purpose and whose membership 
comprises members of this Committee and Education, Children’s and 
Families Policy Committee, as a standing sub-committee solely for the 
purpose of exercising the statutory health scrutiny functions described in 
Article 7 at Part 2 of this Constitution.  
 

Page 69



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
HOUSING POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Housing Policy Committee: 

• Functions of the Council as Local Housing Authority, including  
o Public sector  
o Private sector 
o Homelessness 

• Supported housing 

• Relationships with other social housing providers  

o• Refugee resettlement programmes 

o• Gypsy and traveller sites 
 
Within its remit the Committee: 

• Takes decisions on any reserved matter;  

• Is responsible for regular monitoring of data including performance and 
financial information and for monitoring the performance of services; 

• Is responsible for working within the budget framework agreed by 
Council, including taking timely action to address any overspend within 
services; 

• Is responsible for delivery against the Corporate Plan and any 
associated Annual Plans and reporting performance to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee; 

• Must keep its work programme under review at each meeting; 

• May consider any matters referred by an Area Committee. 
 
The Committee may refer matters within its own remit (but not matters within 
the remit of any other Policy Committee) to Full Council only in exceptional 
circumstances. The Committee may refer matters to Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee but to no other Policy Committee. It is responsible for 
delivery on matters referred by Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
and, in the case of cross-cutting issues, for communication, through the 
Chairs, with any affected Policy Committee.  
 
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 

• Climate and Bio-diversity 
 
Matters Reserved to Housing Policy Committee 
Delivery of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan 
 
WASTE AND STREET SCENE POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

Page 70



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Waste and Street Scene Policy 
Committee: 

• Highway maintenance and management 
• Waste management 
• Parking Services (management and enforcement) 

• City Centre management 

• Markets 

• Regulatory licensing policy 
• Statutory licensing policy development (to be referred to Strategy and 

Resources Policy Committee for decision on submission to Full Council 
as part of Budget and Policy Framework)  

• Environmental Regulation 
 

  
 

• Street Scene and Regulation 
o Parking 

o Emergency Planning 
o Highway maintenance and management 
o City Centre management 
o Waste management 
o Markets 
o Regulatory licensing policy 
o Environmental Protection 

 
Within its remit the Committee: 

• Takes decisions on any reserved matter;  

• Is responsible for regular monitoring of data including performance and 
financial information and for monitoring the performance of services; 

• Is responsible for working within the budget framework agreed by 
Council, including taking timely action to address any overspend within 
services; 

• Is responsible for delivery against the Corporate Plan and any 
associated Annual Plans and reporting performance to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee; 

• Must keep its work programme under review at each meeting; 

• May consider any matters referred by an Area Committee. 
 
The Committee may refer matters within its own remit (but not matters within 
the remit of any other Policy Committee) to Full Council only in exceptional 
circumstances. The Committee may refer matters to Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee but to no other Policy Committee. It is responsible for 
delivery on matters referred by Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
and, in the case of cross-cutting issues, for communication, through the 
Chairs, with any affected Policy Committee.  

Page 71



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 
• Climate and Bio-diversity 

 
Matters Reserved to Waste and Street Scene Policy Committee 
The ‘Streets Ahead’ Project (Highways PFI): 
Decisions taken pursuant to the Highways Maintenance PFI Contract dated 
31st July 2012 between (1) the Council and (2) Amey Hallam Highways 
Limited (‘the Streets Ahead Contract’) are reserved to the Committee where 
they relate to:- 

• termination of the Streets Ahead Contract; 

• the final approval of the making of High Value Changes (as defined in 
the Streets Ahead Contract); or 

• step-in by the taking of any Required Action (as defined in the Streets  
Ahead Contract). 

 
Functions arising from the Council’s roles as the Highways Authority, 
including transport and parking matters, where these relate to:- 

• The Capital Programme; 

• policy statements; 

• matters that have drawn objections from members of the public; 

• schemes with a value in excess of £250,000. 
 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND SKILLS POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Economic Development and 
Skills Policy Committee: 

• Economic Development, Skills and Culture 

o• Business growth and economic strategy 

o• Arts development and projects 

o• Theatres. Museums, galleries etc 

o• City and communityMajor and Cty Centre events 

o• Employment policy and programmes 

• Adult education and Skills 

o• Enterprise, employment and digital skills 
o• Adult skills policy and programmes 

 
Within its remit the Committee: 

• Takes decisions on any reserved matter;  

Page 72



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• Is responsible for regular monitoring of data including performance and 
financial information and for monitoring the performance of services; 

• Is responsible for working within the budget framework agreed by 
Council, including taking timely action to address any overspend within 
services; 

• Is responsible for delivery against the Corporate Plan and any 
associated Annual Plans and reporting performance to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee; 

• Must keep its work programme under review at each meeting; 

• May consider any matters referred by an Area Committee. 
 
The Committee may refer matters within its own remit (but not matters within 
the remit of any other Policy Committee) to Full Council only in exceptional 
circumstances. The Committee may refer matters to Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee but to no other Policy Committee. It is responsible for 
delivery on matters referred by Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
and, in the case of cross-cutting issues, for communication, through the 
Chairs, with any affected Policy Committee.  
 
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 

• Climate and Bio-diversity 
 
 
TRANSPORT, REGENERATION AND CLIMATE POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
Council Functions  
The following functions are within the remit of Transport, Regeneration and 
Climate Policy Committee: 

• City Centre Regeneration and Central Area Portfolio Development, 
including 

o Heart of the City 2 
o City Centre and Central Area major developments 
o Development and Regeneration Partnerships 
o Housing Growth 
o Strategic Development 

• Investment, Climate Change and Sustainable City 

• Planning Policy 

• Flood Protection 

• Building Standards and Public Safety 

• Strategic Transport, Sustainability and Infrastructure 
o Regeneration 
o Strategic Development 
o Sustainable City 

Page 73



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

o Flood Protection 
o Building standards and public safety 
o Planning policy 
o Strategic transport sustainability and infrastructure 

 
Within its remit the Committee: 

• Takes decisions on any reserved matter;  

• Champions heritage; 

• Is responsible for regular monitoring of data including performance and 
financial information and for monitoring the performance of services; 

• Is responsible for working within the budget framework agreed by 
Council, including taking timely action to address any overspend within 
services; 

• Is responsible for delivery against the Corporate Plan and any 
associated Annual Plans and reporting performance to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee; 

• Must keep its work programme under review at each meeting; 

• May consider any matters referred by an Area Committee. 
 
The Committee may refer matters within its own remit (but not matters within 
the remit of any other Policy Committee) to Full Council only in exceptional 
circumstances. The Committee may refer matters to Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee but to no other Policy Committee. It is responsible for 
delivery on matters referred by Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
and, in the case of cross-cutting issues, for communication, through the 
Chairs, with any affected Policy Committee.  
 
When devising policy, evaluating service delivery and taking decisions the 
Committee must consider: 

• Public engagement in informing its work 

• Equality, diversity and inclusion implications 

• Climate and Bio-diversity 
 
Matters Reserved to Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee 
Functions arising from the Council’s roles as Highways Authority and Road 
Traffic Authority, including transport and parking matters, where these relate 
to:- 

• The Capital Programme; 

• policy and strategy statements; 

• matters that have drawn objections from members of the public; or 

• strategic issues and schemes with a value in excess of £250,000. 
 
Review and scrutiny of the exercise by risk management authorities of flood 
risk management functions under section 9JB of the Local Government Act 
2000. 
 

Page 74



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
3.3.2  ARRANGEMENTS FOR URGENT DECISION MAKING 
 
An Urgency Sub-Committee is established for eEach Policy Committee and 
the Finance Committee shall establish an Urgency Sub-Committee with a 
quorum of three members (to include the Chair or Deputy Chair). All members 
of the parent committee and their named substitutes (where applicable) may 
act as substitute members of an Urgency Sub-Committee. 
 
A meeting of an Urgency Sub-Committee may be convened to take any 
decision reserved to the parent Policy Committee PROVIDED THAT the 
Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Chair has confirmed that the 
decision could not have been foreseen and to delay taking the decision until 
the next scheduled meeting of the Policy Committee would seriously prejudice 
either the Council’s or the public’s interests (“Urgent Decision”).  
 
Any Urgent Decision may be taken at a scheduled meeting of Strategy & 
Resources Policy Committee for reasons of efficiency ONLY IF the Urgency 
Sub-Committee of the relevant Policy Committee has been unable to meet in 
the necessary timeframe. 
  
An Urgent Decision may be taken by certain Officers in consultation 
(wherever practicably possible) with the Chair, Deputy Chair and Group 
Spokesperson of the appropriate Policy Committee, ONLY IF, in the opinion 
of the Monitoring Officer in consultation (wherever practicably possible) with 
the Chair, it would not be possible to convene an Urgency Sub-Committee 
Meeting or take the decision to a scheduled meeting of Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee within a timescale that would not seriously 
prejudice either the Council’s or the public’s interests. In the Chair’s absence 
the Deputy Chair should be consulted or in their absence the Leader of the 
Council.  
 
The Officers who may take an Urgent Decision are: 

Any matter: 

• The Chief Executive 
 
Where the matter falls within his/her portfolio directorate, service or 
budget area or such other corporate area of responsibility to which s/he 
may be nominated from time to time: 

• Executive Strategic Director 

• Chief Legal Officer 

• Director ofChief Finance Officerand Commercial Services 

• Director of Adult Health and Social Care 

• Director of Children’s Services 
 

Page 75



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

In cases of Extreme Urgency (where a decision-maker reasonably believes 
that a failure to deal with a matter immediately would be likely to result in an 
appreciable risk of significant administrative, financial or other detriment to the 
Council and/or another individual or organisation) decisions may be taken by 
certain Officers in accordance with the provisions for Extreme Urgency at 
paragraph 3.5.7 of the Arrangements for the Delegation of Functions to 
Officers at Part 3.5 of this Constitution. 
 
All decisions taken in accordance with these Arrangements for Urgent 
Decision Making must be reported at the next scheduled meeting of the 
relevant Policy Committee. Use of these Arrangements shall be monitored by 
the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee and shall be considered by the 
Governance Committee in reviews of the Constitution and of the effectiveness 
of the current arrangements for a committee system of governance. 
 
 
3.3.3 AREA COMMITTEES 
 
Terms of Reference  
 

(a) To promote the involvement of local people in the democratic process 

and to bring decision making closer to local people.  

 
(b) To agree a Community Plan setting priorities for the area of the 

committee, monitor delivery of that plan and keep it under review.  

(c) To agree a plan for engaging with local residents and voluntary and 

community sector organisations in improving the committee area.  

 
(d) To take decisions about local matters delegated by the Council after 

engagement with the community or public consultation carried out 

pursuant to a prior decision.  

 
(e) To make decisions relating to funding as delegated from time to time 

by the Council to fit with the priorities set out in the Community Plan 

and following engagement with the community: 

 
(i) Approve grants from budgets allocated to the Area Committee. 

 
(ii) Approve the funding of community projects from budgets 

allocated to the Area Committee. 
 

(iii)  Approve other expenditure from the Area Committee budgets 

 
(f) To act as a formal consultation mechanism on Council and partner 

strategies and policies.  

Page 76



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
(g) To engage with local people and oversee an ongoing programme of 

events to enable local people to influence Council decisions.  

 
(h) To act as a focal point for the results of consultation and engagement 

exercises and respond appropriately.  

 
(i) Where a matter does not fall within the powers delegated to the Area 

Committee, to make recommendations to the appropriate decision-

maker or body.  

 
(j) Where a matter under consideration impacts on another Area 

Committee’s area, the Area Committee shall not take a decision 

without first consulting the other Area Committee.  

 
(k) To meet a minimum of four times in every year. 

 
(l) To provide a report to Full Council on its Community Plan and progress 

against objectives no more than once in a municipal year. 
 

(l)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3.4 REGULATORY COMMITTEES 
 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
The Licensing Committee operates as two distinct Committees (Statutory 
Licensing Committee and Regulatory Licensing Committee) with identical 
membership and in accordance with the Terms of Reference set out below. 
 
Terms of Reference  
 
(a) Statutory Licensing Committee 

The Statutory Licensing Committee shall be the licensing committee for 
the purposes of Section 6, Licensing Act 2003, and shall exercise the 
functions of the Council as licensing authority under the Licensing Act 
2003 and Gambling Act 2005, when it shall operate in accordance with 
the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 and regulations made 
thereunder. 

 

Page 77



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

Where licensing matters (including policy and adoption of legislation) are 
to be determined by Full Council the Statutory Licensing Committee shall 
be consulted by the relevant Policy Committee in considering the matters 
and the Policy Committee shall make recommendations to Full Council. 

 
(b) Regulatory Licensing Committee 
 Except where by law or this Part of the Constitution they are functions 

reserved to Full Council, or where by virtue of this Constitution 
responsibility is delegated elsewhere, the Regulatory Licensing 
Committee (which may include a Regulatory Licensing Sub-committee) 
shall exercise all other functions of the Council relating to licensing, 
registration and ancillary matters, when it shall operate as a Committee 
of the Council in accordance with the Council Procedure Rules at Part 4 
of this Constitution. Such functions include but are not limited to:  

 

• acupuncture, tattooing, ear-piercing, electrolysis; 

• animal breeding, boarding, training and exhibiting, zoos, dangerous 
wild animals etc;   

• caravan sites;   

• charity collections and street collections;  

• hackney carriage and private hire vehicle licences, drivers and 
operators;  

• hypnotism exhibitions, demonstrations or performances; 

• market and street trading,  

• pavement licences; 

• pleasure boats and pleasure vessels;  

• scrap metal dealers and motor salvage operators;  

• sex establishments including sexual entertainment venues;  

• solemnisation of marriages;  

• sports ground safety; 

• theatres, cinemas and entertainments. 
  
The Regulatory Licensing Committee shall exercise the powers of the Council  
as Commons Registration Authority to register common land or town and 
village greens, and to exercise the power to register variation of rights of 
common, PROVIDED that authority to determine the validity of an application 
to register land as common land or a town or village green is delegated to the 
Director of Chief Legal Officerand Governance. 
 
 
PLANNING AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE 
 
The Committee exercises the Council’s Planning and Highways functions with 
the following terms of reference.  
 
Terms of Reference  

Page 78



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
(a) To exercise the functions of the Council as planning and highways 

authority including 
 

• development control 

• advertisement control 

• building control 

• conservation matters 

• tree preservation orders 

• listed buildings 

• enforcement 

• removal of permitted development rights 

• “hybrid” applications or notifications 

• street naming 

• functions relating to public rights of way under the Highways Act 
1980 and other legislation 

• control of scaffolding and hoarding 
 
Including but not limited to considering and determining applications 
submitted under the Planning Acts and related legislation for planning 
permission, permission in principle, technical details consent, listed building 
consent, and reserved matters pursuant to major planning applications. 

 
(b) To exercise the function under Section 278, Highways Act 1980 

(agreements for the execution of works and payment of costs). 
 
Matters Reserved 
 
Matters are reserved to the Planning and Highways Committee where the 
matter falls within the Committee’s Terms of Reference and:-  
(a) the proposal is a major opportunity for development that represents a 

significant regeneration opportunity for the City; 
 
(b) the decision would represent a significant departure from policy; 
 
(c) the Council’s policy position is unclear or difficult to determine; 
 
(d) the decision would be in conflict with a substantial number of 

representations made on planning grounds and where the outcome is 
not clearly predetermined by approved planning policy; 

 
(e) the matter relates to a planning application submitted by or on behalf of 

a Council officer who is involved in the planning application process or a 

Member of the Planning and Highways Committee where the matter 

relates to the exercise of a planning function; 

Page 79



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
(f) the matter relates to an application submitted by or on behalf of an 

officer of the Local Highway Authority or by a Member of the Planning 

and Highways Committee where the matter relates to the exercise of a 

highway function; 

 
(g) formal enforcement or legal proceedings in respect of unauthorised 

development which are subject to the appropriate application of criteria 

(a) to (e). 

 
For the avoidance of doubt, functions falling within the Planning and Highways 
Committee’s Terms of Reference but which are not reserved to the Planning 
and Highways Committee are exercisable by the Planning and Highways 
Committee but are also exercisable by Council officers in accordance with the 
Arrangements for Delegation of Functions to Officers at Part 3.5 of this 
Constitution. 
 
 
3.3.5 OTHER COMMITTEES 
 
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Terms of Reference 
 

(a) To keep the Council’s constitutional arrangements, including the 
Constitution and the governance system it describes, under review. 
 

(b) To consider officers’ proposals for changes to the Constitution, other 
than those made by the Monitoring Officer under powers delegated by 
Full Council, and recommend such changes as it considers necessary 
to Full Council for approval. 
 

(b)  
(c) To keep the thresholds for decisions reserved to Policy Committees 

under review and recommend any changes as it considers necessary 
to Full Council. 
 

(d) To seek direct engagement and participation of the public and 
stakeholders and partners in the Committee’s ongoing consideration of 
the health of Sheffield’s democratic environment. 
 

(e) To be responsible for the Council’s Member Development Strategy and 
annual Member Development and Induction Plan, including to monitor, 
review and make recommendations to the Council with regard to the 

Page 80



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

Learning and Development policy for Councillors, Co-opted members 
and Representatives.  

(f) To conduct a keep under review of the effectiveness of the 
arrangements for a committee system of governance, commencing six 
months after implementation (November 2022) with a view to Full 
Council implementing any necessary changes at its Annual Meeting in 
May 2023. This review will:  

a. Takinge account of any changes to the local and national 
context;  

b. Includeing the previously any agreed ‘strategic aims’ and ‘design 
principles’ in its assessment criteria; and 

c. Actively seeking and usinge feedback from residents, 
stakeholders, councillors, officers and partners to inform its 
judgements against those criteria. 

 
 
AUDIT AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
Accounts 
(1) To approve the Council’s Statement of Accounts and the Annual 

Governance Statement in accordance with the Accounts and 
 Audit Regulations 2015. 

 
(2) To consider and accept the Annual Letter from the Local Auditor in 

 accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and to 
monitor the Council’s response to any issues of concern identified. 

 
(3)  To consider whether appropriate accounting policies have been 

followed and whether there are concerns arising from the financial 
statements or from the audit that need to be brought to the attention of 
the Council. 

 
 
Audit Activity 
(4) To consider the Internal Audit annual report and opinion, and a 

summary of internal audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of 
assurance it can give over the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements. 

 
(5) To consider summaries of specific Internal Audit reports as requested. 
 

Page 81



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

(6)  To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of 
the Internal Audit service, including compliance with Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards. 

 
(7)  To consider reports dealing with the implementation of agreed Internal 

Audit recommendations. 
 
(8)  To consider any report from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations 

not implemented within a reasonable timescale. 
 
(9)  To consider specific reports as agreed with the local auditor. 
 
(10) To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to 

ensure it gives value for money. 
 
(11) To liaise with the Public Sector Audit Appointments or any relevant 

organisation over the appointment of the Council’s local auditor and to 
decide upon the appointment process for the local auditor and to 
participate in the process, as and when required. 

  
Regulatory Framework and Risk Management 
(12) To maintain an overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of 

contracts standing orders, financial regulations and codes of conduct 
and behaviour. 

 
(13) To monitor the effective development and operation of risk 

management in the Council.  
 
(14) To monitor Council policies on the anti-fraud and anti-corruption 

strategy. 
 
(15) To oversee the production of the Council’s Annual Governance 

Statement and monitor progress on any issues and consider the 
Council’s compliance with its own and other published standards and 
controls. 

 
 
 
Standards 
(16) To promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Councillors, Co-

opted Members and Representatives on Committees and Sub-
Committees. 

 
(17) To assist Councillors, Co-opted Members and Representatives to 

observe the Councillor Code of Conduct.  
 

Page 82



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

(18) To advise the Council on the adoption or revision of the Councillor 
Code of Conduct and Protocols relating to Councillor and Officer 
behaviour. 

 
(19) To monitor the operation of the Councillor Code of Conduct.  
 
(20) To advise, train or arrange to train Councillors, Co-opted Members and 

Representatives on matters relating to the Councillor Code of Conduct.  
 
(21) To discharge the functions of dealing with complaints against 

Councillors and Co-opted Members as set out in Procedure for Dealing 
with Complaints Regarding City, Parish and Town Councillors and Co-
Opted Members.  

 
(22) To advise the Council on the adoption and revision of its Whistle-

blowing Policy and monitoring the operation of that Policy.  
 
(23) To monitor and review procedures relating to gifts, hospitality and 

personal interests, for Councillors and officers. 
 
(24) To monitor the Council’s complaints process and the Council’s 

response to complaints to the Ombudsman. 
 
 
ADMISSIONS COMMITTEE 
 
Terms of Reference 

 
To hear and determine:- 

 
(a) admission cases and appeals against decisions of the Executive Director 

of Children’s Services, People relating to parental choice of schools; and 
 

(b) appeals against decisions of the Executive Director of Children’s 
Services, People relating to the issue of home to school travel passes. 

 
 
 
APPEALS AND COLLECTIVE DISPUTES COMMITTEE 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
(a) To hear and determine all matters which require Member decision 

relating to processes in connection with:- 
 

Page 83



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

(i) the discipline and dismissal of staff (other than senior officers 
within the terms of reference of the Senior Officer Employment 
Committee); and 

 
(ii) disputes between the Council and its employees. 

 
(b) To establish such Sub-Committees as appropriate to undertake the 

hearing or determination of matters relating to the discipline and 
dismissal of staff (other than Senior Officers within the terms of reference 
of the Senior Officer Employment Committee) and disputes between the 
Council and its employees. 

 
 
SENIOR OFFICER EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 
Terms of Reference  
 
(a) To consider, subject to legal requirements relating to the Council’s 

Statutory Officers (within the meaning of section 2 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989) and to the Officer Employment 
Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution, and to make 
recommendations to the Council on all matters relating to the 
appointment of the Chief Executive and the dismissal of the Chief 
Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer.  

 
(b)  To determine, subject to legal requirements relating to the Council’s 

Statutory Officers and to the Officer Employment Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution, all matters relating to the appointment of:-  
•  Executive Strategic Directors and other Officers who report directly to 

the Chief Executive; 
•  The Council’s Statutory Chief Officers, other than the Chief Executive.  

 
(c) To determine, subject to legal requirements relating to the Council’s 

Statutory Officers and to the Officer Employment Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution, all matters relating to the dismissal of:-  
•  Executive Strategic Directors and other Officers who report directly to 

the Chief Executive; 
•  The Council’s Statutory Officers, other than the Chief Executive, 

Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer. 
  

(d) To determine, subject to legal requirements relating to the Council’s 
Statutory Officers and to the Officer Employment Rules in Part 4 of this 
Constitution, all matters relating to the discipline short of dismissal of:-  
•  Executive Strategic Directors and other Officers who report directly to 

the Chief Executive;  
•  The Council’s Statutory Officers. 

Page 84



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
(e)  To determine, subject to legal requirements relating to the Council’s 

Statutory Officers and to the Officer Employment Rules in Part 4 of this 
Constitution, all matters relating to the appointment, discipline and 
dismissal of:-  
•  Officers who report directly to any of the Officers described above 

(other than the Monitoring Officer) for all or most of their duties (but 
not any person whose duties are solely secretarial or clerical).  

 
(f)  To establish such Sub-Committees as appropriate to undertake 

recruitment and to hear individual matters, which may include authority to 
make appointments and other decisions, and authority to make 
recommendations direct to the Council.  

 
 
COMPLAINTS REVIEW PANEL 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
To consider and determine, in accordance with legislative requirements, 
complaints in relation to the discharge of, or any failure to discharge the 
Council's social services functions in relation to an individual. 
 
 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
To make recommendations to the Council on the allowances to be paid to 
elected Members, as laid down in the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 and Section 7, Superannuation Act 
1972, namely:- 
 
(a) the level of basic allowance for all Members;  
 
(b) categories of special responsibility for which a special responsibility 

allowance should be paid and the levels of those allowances; 
 
(c) the rate of childcare / dependency allowance; 
 
(d) Travel & Subsistence Allowance; 
 
(e) any annual uplift; 
 
(f) which Members of the Council are entitled to join the Local Government 

Pension Scheme; 

Page 85



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
(g) which aspect of Members’ Allowance is to be pensionable. 
 
 
3.3.6 SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 
Terms of Reference  
 
1. Role and Function of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
1.1 The Sheffield Health and Wellbeing Board (the Board) is established 

under the Health and Social Care Act 2012 as a statutory committee of 
Sheffield City Council (the Council) from 1 April 2013. However, it will 
operate as a multi-agency board of equal partners.  

 
1.2 The Board will develop and maintain a vision for a city free from 

inequalities in health and wellbeing, taking a view of the whole 
population from pre-birth to end of life. 

 
1.3 The Board will be the system leader for health & wellbeing, acting as a 

strong and effective partnership to: 

• Maximise the impact of all institutions in Sheffield on reducing health 
inequalities in the city; and  

• Improve the planning, commissioning, and delivery of services across 
the NHS and Council. 

 
1.4 In doing this, the Board will take an interest in all the determinants of 

health and wellbeing in Sheffield and will work across organisational 
boundaries in pursuit of this. 

 
1.5 The Board will be ambitious for Sheffield and hold organisations in 

Sheffield to account for the delivery of the Board’s vision for the city. It 
will support organisations to work in an integrated way, for the purpose 
of advancing the health and wellbeing of people in Sheffield. 

 
1.6 The Board is statutorily required to carry out the following functions: 
 

• To undertake a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA1); 

• To undertake a Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA)2;  

• To develop and publish a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) 
for Sheffield3; 

 
1 Section 116 Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (the LGPIHA 2007) 
2 Section 128A National Health Service Act 2006 (the NHSA 2006) 
3 Under Section 116A LGPIHA 2007 

Page 86



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• To provide an opinion on whether the Council is discharging its duty to 
have regard to the JSNA, and the JHWS, in the exercise of its 
functions4; 

• To contribute to the NHS South Yorkshire Integrated Care 
Partnership’s Integrated Care Strategy, setting the direction for the 
Integrated Care Board;  

• To engage with the Integrated Care Board on their five year forward 
plan, setting out how the ICB will deliver its core duties including what it 
will do to implement the JHWS, before the start of each financial year;  

• To produce a statement on the Board’s final opinion on this plan, 
following consultation with the ICB;  

• To contribute to NHS England’s annual performance assessment of 
how well the ICB is discharging its duties, including its contribution to 
delivery of the JHWS; 

• To support joint planning and commissioning and encourage integrated 
working and pooled budget arrangements5  in relation to arrangements 
for providing health, health-related or social care services; 

• To discharge all functions relating to the Better Care Fund that are 
required or permitted by law to be exercised by the Board; and 

• To receive and approve any other plans or strategies that are required 
either as a matter of law or policy to be approved by the Board. 

 
1.7 In addition to these the Board will also take an interest in how all 

organisations in Sheffield function together to deliver on the Joint Health 
& Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
1.8 The Board will own and oversee the strategic vision for health and 

wellbeing in Sheffield, hold all partners and organisations to account for 
delivering against this by taking an interest in all associated strategies 
and plans and when appropriate requesting details on how specific 
policies or strategies help to achieve the aims of the Joint Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
1.9 The Board will continue to oversee the strategic direction of the Better 

Care Fund and the delivery of better integrated care, as part of its 
statutory duty to encourage integrated working.  This will include signing 
off quarterly and annual Better Care Fund submissions. 

 
2. Membership 
 
2.1 The membership of the Board is as follows: 
 

• Chair of Sheffield City Council 

 
4 Under Section 116B LGPIHA 2007 
5 In accordance with Section 195 Health and Social Care Act 2012. This includes encouraging 

arrangements under Section 75 NHSA 2006 

Page 87



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

• Chair of Sheffield City Council Adult Health and Social Care Policy 
Committee 

• Chair of Sheffield City Council Education, Children and Families Policy 
Committee 

• Chair of Sheffield City Council Housing Policy Committee 

• Sheffield City Council Chief Executive 

• Sheffield City Council Director of Adult Social Services appointed under 
section 6 of the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970 

• Sheffield City Council Director of Children’s Services appointed under 
section 18 of the Children Act 2004 

• Sheffield City Council Executive Director, City Futures as the Executive 
Strategic Director with responsibility for economic development 

• Sheffield City Council Director of Public Health appointed under section 
73A National Health Service Act 2006 

• NHS South Yorkshire Executive Director for Sheffield 

• NHS Sheffield Director with responsibility for strategic leadership 

• NHS Sheffield Director with responsibility for clinical leadership 

• Nominated representative of the Health and Care Partnership 

• Nominated representative of NHS Acute Provider Trusts 

• Nominated clinical representative of Primary Care Networks 

• Nominated representative of partners working with or for children and 
young people 

• Nominated representative of partners working to support mental health 
and wellbeing 

• Representative from a VCF organisation working citywide 

• Representative from a VCF organisation working within a locality 

• Representative from a VCF organisation working with a specific group 

• Representative of South Yorkshire Police 

• Chair of Healthwatch Sheffield 

• Representative of University of Sheffield 

• Representative of Sheffield Hallam University 
 
2.2 Citizens or other representatives from the wider health and wellbeing 

community in Sheffield may be invited to attend the Board to contribute 
to discussions. The Board may also co-opt members where it will be 
beneficial to ongoing conversations and related work.   

 
2.3 Broader attendance will be especially encouraged outside of the formal 

committee meetings, with larger conference events aiming to link Board 
members as key decision makers in the city with a citizen and service 
user perspective, and with organisations, individuals and experts in the 
field who can bring a diverse range of insights into the discussion. 
Attendance at events should be representative of the city as a whole, as 
appropriate for the issue at hand, and the Board will ensure that 

Page 88



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

everyone attending these events speaks on the same terms and with the 
same expectations of being heard. 

 
2.4 Any changes to personnel will be approved through Full Council on an 

annual basis. 
 
2.5 Where places are or become vacant and are not related to a specified 

individual, these will be recruited to through an exercise conducted by 
the Board’s Steering Group. 

 
3. Governance  

 
3.1 Chair: The Board will be co-chaired by the Chair of the SCC Adult 

Health and Social Care Policy Committee and the NHS Sheffield 
Director with responsibility for clinical leadership, with chairing of 
meetings generally alternating between them.  

 
3.2 These are chosen to ensure chairing of the Board is done with an 

understanding of the democratic decision-making process, and with 
clinical primary care experience and expertise in mind. Chairing 
arrangements will be reviewed whenever the individuals occupying those 
roles changes in order to maintain this. 

 
 
3.3  Attendance at meetings and deputies: In order to maintain 

consistency it is assumed that Board members will attend all meetings 
as far as possible. Each member must name 1 deputy, who should be 
well briefed on the Board’s purpose and activities, fulfil the same or 
similar function in their primary role (as opposed to being from the same 
organisation), and attend meetings and vote on behalf of the member 
when they are absent.  

 
3.4 Quorum: The quorum for a meeting of the Board shall be one quarter of 

the whole number of the membership (including vacancies).   
 
3.5 Decision-making and voting: The Board will operate on a consensus 

basis. Where consensus cannot be achieved the matter will be put to a 
vote. Decisions will be made by simple majority: the Chair will have the 
casting vote. All votes shall be taken by a show of hands unless decided 
otherwise by the Chair.  

 
3.6 Authority of representatives: It is accepted that some decisions and/or 

representations will need to be made in accordance with the governance 
procedures of the organisations represented on the Board: however, 
representatives should have sufficient authority to speak for their 
organisations and make decisions within their own delegations.  

Page 89



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 
3.7 Accountability and scrutiny: As a Council committee, the Board will be 

formally accountable to Full Council.  
 
3.8 Relationship to other groups: The Board has formally agreed a 

protocol with the city’s Safeguarding Boards.  The Board will seek to 
develop close relationships with the city’s Health and Care Partnership, 
Sheffield City Council’s Policy Committees and any Committee or Sub-
Committee with responsibility for the review and scrutiny of local health 
services, the NHS South Yorkshire Integrated Care System, and the 
Sheffield Joint Commissioning Committee as part of its work to hold the 
health and wellbeing system to account.  It will also develop 
relationships with other bodies in the city such as the Sheffield City 
Partnership Board and Sheffield Community Safety Partnership, 
especially where the agendas of such bodies overlap with the Board’s. 

 
4. Meetings, agendas and papers  
 
4.1  The Board will normally meet quarterly in public. There will be no fewer 

than 2 meetings per financial year, with a maximum of 32 weeks 
between meetings.  

 
4.2 Dates, venues, agendas and papers for public meetings will be 

published in advance on the Council’s website. 
 
4.3 The Chair will agree the agenda for each meeting, supported by the 

Board’s Steering Group.  
 
4.4 Agendas and papers will be circulated to all members and be available 

on the Council’s website 7 days in advance of the meeting.  
 
4.5 Minutes will be circulated to all members and published on the Council’s 

website as soon as possible after the meeting.  
 
5. Role of a Health and Wellbeing Board member  
 
5.1 All members of the Board, as a statutory committee of the Council, must 

observe the Council’s code of conduct for members and co-opted 
members. Other responsibilities include:  

• Prioritising their attendance at Board meetings and positively 
contributing to discussions, reading and digesting any documents 
and information provided prior to meetings; 

• Playing a strong role in promoting the Board conference events, and 
identifying relevant people to attend and contribute; 

• Fully and effectively communicating outcomes and key decisions of 
the Board to their own organisations, acting as ambassadors for the 

Page 90



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

work of the Board, and participating where appropriate in 
communications/marketing and stakeholder engagement activity to 
support the objectives of the Board, including working with the 
media; 

• Contributing to the development of the JSNA and JHWS; 

• Ensuring that planning and commissioning are in line with the 
requirements of the JHWS and working to deliver improvements in 
performance against measures within the public health, NHS and 
adult social care outcomes frameworks; 

• Declaring any conflict of interest, particularly in the event of a vote 
being required and in relation to the providing of services; 

• Acting in a respectful, inclusive and open manner with all colleagues 
to encourage debate and challenge.  

 
5.2 The membership of the Health & Wellbeing Board is constructed to 

provide a broad range of perspectives on the development of strategy.  
With this in mind, members are asked to bring the insight, knowledge, 
perspective and strategic capacity they have as a consequence of their 
everyday role, and not act simply as a representative of their 
organisation, but with the interests of the whole city and its residents at 
heart. 

 
6. Engagement with the public  
 
6.1 Healthwatch Sheffield is the Board’s statutory partner for involving 

Sheffield people in discussions and decision-making around health and 
wellbeing in the city. It is expected that the Healthwatch Sheffield 
representative(s) will clearly ensure Sheffield people’s views are 
included in all Board discussions, with all other Board members also 
expected to contribute in this regard. 

 
6.2 Formal public meetings will be held quarterly, with members of the public 

invited to ask questions. An answer may take the form of:  
 

• An oral answer 

• A written answer to the member of the public, circulated to the Board 
and placed on the Council’s website 

• Where the desired information is contained in a publication, a 
reference to that publication 

 
The Board’s chairs retain the right to restrict the length of time given to 
answering public questions at any meetings held. 

 
6.3 The Board will work with Healthwatch Sheffield to engage with the public 

on the issues affecting health and wellbeing in Sheffield through a range 
of means, ensuring. This will include conferences, which will:  

Page 91



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)   
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.3 –Matters Delegated to Committees 
and Sub-Committees (updated November 2022 & February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 34 

 

• Bring in a broader range of voices and more diverse insight into 
health and wellbeing priorities set out by the Board;  

• Provide opportunity for decision makers in the city to come 
together with people experiencing health inequalities, working 
towards co-produced solutions; and  

• Where possible, provide the opportunity for the Board to get out of 
its normal meeting settings and into communities. 

 
6,4 The Board will work with Healthwatch and voluntary sector organisations 

to ensure the output from engagement is linked to the Board’s Forward 
Plan, and is fed into and reflected in Board discussions.  This work will:  

 

• Provide an avenue for members of the public to impact on the 
Board’s discussions and work;  

• Engage the public and/or providers in the development of the Joint 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy; 

• Develop the Board’s understanding of local people’s and providers’ 
experiences and priorities for health and wellbeing; 

• Communicate the work of the Board in shaping health and wellbeing 
in Sheffield; 

• Develop a shared perspective of the ways in which providers can 
contribute to the Board’s delivery. 

 
7. Review 
 
7.1 These Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually. 
 

Page 92



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.4 – Joint Arrangements 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 2 

Appendix 6 
 
3.4 JOINT ARRANGEMENTS  
 
The following functions are discharged by way of the specified joint 
arrangements.  
 
 

Function 
 

Joint Arrangement 
 

 
Archaeology Service 

 
Joint Advisory Committee for the 
South Yorkshire Archaeology 
Service 
 

 
Archives 

 
South Yorkshire Joint Advisory 
Committee on Archives 
 

 
Emergency Planning 
 

 
Sheffield and Rotherham Emergency 
Planning (Shared Services) Joint 
Committee (Sheffield and 
Rotherham) 
 

Health Scrutiny South Yorkshire, Derbyshire and 
Nottinghamshire Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

Health and SocialIntegrated Care 
Strategy Commissioning Plans 
 

Joint Commissioning Committee 
South Yorkshire Integrated Care 
Partnership  

  
The Council will make appointments to joint committees as appropriate.  

Page 93



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.5 – Delegation to Officers (updated 
November 2022) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 1 of 5 

Appendix 7 
 
3.5 ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS TO 

OFFICERS  
 
3.5.1 General Delegations to Officers 
 

Subject to the provisions set out below, any function, unless reserved 
to a committee or to Full Council, is deemed delegated to and 
individually exercisable by:- 

• the Chief Executive; 

• an ExecutiveStrategic Director where the matter falls within his/her 
area of portfolio directorate, service or budgetary responsibility or 
such other corporate area of responsibility to which s/he may be 
nominated from time to time; 

• a Director where the matter falls within his/her area of service or 
budgetary responsibility or such other corporate area of 
responsibility to which s/he may be nominated from time to time; or 

• a Head of Service designated as having specific responsibility for a 
function by the Chief Executive or Executive Strategic Director. 

 
Responsibilities are set out in the Management Structure at Part 7 of 
this Constitution. The Chief Executive and Executive Strategic 
Directors are responsible for ensuring that this Management Structure 
is kept up to date so that the Officer responsible for the exercise of any 
function may be identified. 

 
An Executive Strategic Director or Director with delegated authority to 
exercise a function may authorise an Officer of suitable experience and 
seniority to exercise that function on behalf of and in the name of the 
Executive Strategic Director or Director without having delegated 
authority in his/her own right to do so, subject to any procedural 
safeguards considered necessary being put in place.  The Executive 
Strategic Director or Director will remain responsible for any decision 
taken pursuant to such arrangements. 

 
Each Director will maintain a list of the Officers authorised to exercise 
any function. Each Executive Strategic Director will be responsible for 
ensuring that such lists are kept up to date and that a central record is 
held for each portfolio directorate. 

An Executive Strategic Director or Director with delegated authority to 
exercise a function or a Head of Service designated in the 
Management Structure as having specific responsibility for a function 
may authorise any particular named officer:- 

• to carry out inspection and enforcement duties, 

Page 94



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.5 – Delegation to Officers (updated 
November 2022) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 2 of 5 

• to enter land and premises (whether specifically or in general) and / 
or  

• to require information as to interests in land and premises; 

where this is (i) authorised by law and (ii) necessary in the performance 
of any function or duty of the service and may sign identity cards in 
connection with the exercise of this authority, PROVIDED that a list 
shall be maintained of all officers so authorised with a description of the 
extent of such authorisation and the relevant statutory power. 

All existing delegations to officers made by way of an Executive 
decision prior to the coming into force of this Constitution continue in 
force and effect, save that a requirement to act in consultation with an 
Individual Executive Member will be read as a requirement to act in 
consultation with the appropriate Policy Committee Chair, until revoked 
by a decision of Full Council or a Policy Committee. 

3.5.2 Grant Aid 

Unless reserved to a committee or to Full Council, the decision to apply 
for external grant aid is delegated to and exercisable by an Executive 
Director and must be made in consultation with the Chief Finance 
Officer. 

3.5.3  Chief Legal Officer 
 

The Chief Legal Officer is the General Counsel Director of Legal and 
Governance. 
 
The Chief Legal Officer has general authority to commence, defend or 
settle any legal proceedings as s/he considers necessary or 
appropriate to protect the interests of the Council. 
 
The Chief Legal Officer is authorised: 

• to exercise the function of carrying out a review of a decision in 
respect of including land in the authority’s list of Assets of 
Community Value and making any decision regarding  
compensation in respect of land listed therein 

 

• to determine the validity of an application to register land as 
common land or a town or village green 

 

• to grant approval for the use of the City Council’s Coat of Arms 
 

Subject to the ability of any Officer or decision-making body to 
discharge any Council function relating to anti-social behaviour where 

Page 95



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.5 – Delegation to Officers (updated 
November 2022) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 3 of 5 

this is or required by law, the Chief Legal Officer is authorised to 
discharge any Council function relating to measures to counter anti-
social behaviour, including giving any consents or confirmations on 
behalf of the Council. With the exception of any action taken under the 
general authority in respect of legal proceedings, this authorisation 
shall not extend to a Council function relating to anti-social behaviour 
relating to a particular tenancy. 
 
The Chief Legal Officer may arrange for the discharge of any of the 
functions delegated to him/her to be undertaken by other Officers as 
s/he considers appropriate including, for example, authorising such 
Officers to take particular steps. 

 
3.5.4 Chief Finance Officer 
 

The Chief Finance Officer is the Director of Finance and Commercial 
Services as being the Proper Officer for the purpose of the proper 
administration of financial affairs pursuant to Section 151 of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 
 and The Chief Finance Officer such officers who may be nominated by 
him such officers as he considers necessary from time to time to 
exercise those duties on his behalf. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the maintenance and 
operation of the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules (Financial 
Regulations) and Contracts Standing Orders, both at Part 4 of this 
Constitution. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer is authorised to agree that the Council will 
act as Accountable Body for annually recurring grants from government 
departments, the South Yorkshire Combined Mayoral Authority and 
other external organisations. 

 
3.5.5 Chief Property Officer 
 

The Chief Property Officer is the Head of Regeneration and Property  
Services. 
 
The Chief Property Officer is authorised to make any decision in 
respect of Property matters not reserved to a committee or Full Council 
with the exception of the following decisions which shall be made by an 
Executive Strategic Director: 

• a declaration that operational property is surplus to the 
requirements of a service within the PortfolioDirectorate 

 

Page 96



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.5 – Delegation to Officers (updated 
November 2022) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 4 of 5 

3.5.6 Chief Planning Officer 
 

The Chief Planning Officer is the Head of Planning. 
 
The Chief Planning Officer is authorised to make any decision in 
respect of the following areas of responsibility to the extent that they 
are not reserved to the Planning and Highways Committee or Full 
Council: 

• Planning applications and permissions 

• Development control 

• Development management 

• Local Plan 
 
 
3.5.7 Human Resources Matters and Appointments to External Bodies 
 

The Director of Human Resources and Employee Engagement is 
authorised to determine applications for Voluntary Early Retirement 
and Voluntary Severance in consultation with the Chief Legal Officer 
and Chief Finance Officer meeting as the Chief Officer Panel in 
accordance with the Council’s Pay Policy. 
 
No Officer at Director grade or above shall be seconded by an Officer 
to a body outside the Council without prior consultation with the 
relevant Policy Committee Chair.  

 
Prior to taking steps to restructure a Council service the relevant 
Executive Strategic Director or Director must seek advice from the 
Director of Human Resources and Employee Engagement Customer 
Services. 

 
Appointments of Officers to serve on external bodies shall be made in 
accordance with established Council procedures and any guidance 
issued by the Chief Legal Officer. 

 
3.5.8 The ‘Streets Ahead’ Project (Highways PFI)  
 

The Director of Street Scene and Regulation is authorised to make 
decisions, other than those reserved to a Committee or Full Council, on 
behalf of the Council as the ‘Authority Representative’ under the 
Highways Maintenance PFI Contract dated 31st July 2012 between (1) 
the Council and (2) Amey Hallam Highways Limited (‘the Streets 
Ahead Contract’), including authorising the making of call-off contracts 
(as deeds and in the agreed contractual form) for the provision of non-
core services pursuant to the Streets Ahead Contract’. 

 

Page 97



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.5 – Delegation to Officers (updated 
November 2022) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 5 of 5 

3.5.9 Other Highways Related Issues 
 

Other than those matters reserved to a committee or Full Council, any 
functions in relation to the Council’s roles as Highways Authority and  
Road Traffic Authority, including transport and parking (except any 
function that relates to highways maintenance and street naming and 
numbering and section 287, Highways Act 1980 (power to erect 
barriers in streets in cases of emergency)) may be discharged by the 
Chief Executive, by the Executive Director, City Futures, by the 
Director of Investment, Climate Change and Planning and by the Head 
of Strategic Transport, Sustainability and Infrastructure in each case 
acting individually. 

 
Other than those matters reserved to a committee or Full Council, any  
functions in relation to the Council’s role as Highways Authority in so 
far as they relate to highways maintenance and street naming and 
numbering and section 287, Highways Act 1980 (power to erect 
barriers in streets in cases of emergency) may be discharged by the 
Chief Executive, by the Executive Director, Operational Neighbourhood 
Services, by the Director of Street Scene and Regulation and by the 
Head of [Waste and] Highways Maintenance in each case acting 
individually. 

 
3.5.10 Extreme Urgency 
 

‘Extreme Urgency’ means a situation where a decision-maker 
reasonably believes that a failure to deal with a matter immediately 
would be likely to result in an appreciable risk of significant 
administrative, financial or other detriment to the Council and/or 
another individual or organisation. 
 
The following Officers may make a decision in a case of Extreme 
Urgency, other than a decision which is reserved to Full Council, 
subject to the conditions set out below.  

• In all cases a decision must comply with the Council’s Financial 
Regulations and Contracts Standing Orders, and the statutory 
and Constitutional requirements for the making, recording and 
publicising of decisions. 

 

• The action being taken and the reasons for it being taken must 
be reported as soon as possible to the Chief Executive (except 
for those decisions taken by the Chief Executive) and the Chair 
(or in their absence, the Deputy Chair and Group 
Spokesperson) of the appropriate Policy Committee or of the 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee. 

 

Page 98



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 3 (Responsibility for Functions) – 3.5 – Delegation to Officers (updated 
November 2022) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
   Page 6 of 5 

• Where the matter requires expenditure which has not been 
budgeted for, prior consultation must take place with the Chief 
Finance Officer (except for those decisions taken by the Chief 
Finance Officer). 

 
Any matter: 

• The Chief Executive 
 
Where the matter falls within his/her portfolio directorate, service or 
budget area or such other corporate area of responsibility to which s/he 
may be nominated from time to time: 

• Executive Strategic Director 

• Chief Legal Officer 

• Director of Chief Finance Officer and Commercial Services 

• Director of Adult Health and Social Care 

• Director of Children’s Services 
 

 

Page 99



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 1 of 29 

Appendix 8 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULES  

 
These Procedure Rules are Standing Orders made under section 106 
and paragraph 42 of Schedule 12 to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
1 Interpretation 
 
1.1 The expression "the Lord Mayor" when used in these Procedure Rules 

as relates to procedure at meetings of the Council shall, where the 
context so allows, include the Deputy Lord Mayor or the Chair of the 
meeting for the time being. 
 

1.2 The expressions “Body” or “Bodies” when used in these Procedure 
Rules shall mean the Council, Policy Committees (which, for the purpose 
of this Council Procedure Rule, includes any Sub-Committee of a Policy 
Committee), Audit and Standards Committee, Regulatory Committees, 
Area Committees and other such meetings. 

 
2 Council Procedure Rules to apply to all Bodies 
 
 These Council Procedure Rules shall, where appropriateunless 

otherwise stated, apply to the Council and all other Bodies, Policy 
Committees, Audit and Standards Committee, Regulatory Committees, 
Area Committees and other such meetings. 

 
3 Ruling on Council Procedure Rules 
 
 The ruling of the Lord Mayor or Chair of a Body, after consultation with 

the Chief Executive (or his/her representative) or the Monitoring Officer 
as to the construction or application of any of these Council Procedure 
Rules, or as to any proceedings of the Council or other Body, shall not 
be challenged at any meeting of the Council or other Body. 

 
4 Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules  
 
4.1 All of these Council Procedure Rules, except Rules 6.1 and 18.5 may be 

suspended by motion on notice or without notice if a minimum of 42 
Members are present, and a majority of those present vote in favour. 
Suspension can only be for the duration of the meeting. 

 
4.2 Except in the case of a recommendation from the Governance 

Committee or Monitoring Officer, any motion put to the Council to 
permanently add to, vary or revoke these Council Procedure Rules shall, 
when moved and seconded, be deferred without discussion to the next 
ordinary meeting of the Council. 

Page 100



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 2 of 29 

 
 
 
 
 
5 Meetings of the Council and Other Bodies 
 
5.1 The annual meeting of the Council shall be held in the Town Hall at 11.30 

a.m. on the third Wednesday in May or, in particular circumstances, at 
such other venue as may be determined by the Lord Mayor or the City 
Council. 
 

5.2 The annual meeting will: 
 
(a) elect a person to preside if the Chair is not present; 

 
(b) elect the Lord Mayor (Chair) of Council; 
 
(c) elect the Deputy Lord Mayor (Deputy Chair) of Council; 
 
(d) receive any apologies for absence from Members of the Council; 
 
(e) receive declaration from Members of interests in the matters to be 

considered at the meeting; 
 
(f) approve the minutes of the last meeting; 
 
(g) appoint a Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council; 
 
(h) receive any announcements from the Chair, Leader and/or Chief 

Executive; 
 
(i) appoint such Committees and Sub-Committees as the Council 

considers appropriate to deal with matters which are not reserved 
to Full Council (as set out in Part 3 of this Constitution); 

 
(j) decide the size and terms of reference for those Committees and 

Sub-Committees; 
 

(k) decide the allocation of seats and any substitutes to Political 
Groups in accordance with the political balance rules; 

 
(l) receive nominations of Councillors to serve on each Committee 

or Sub-Committee and appoint Members of those Committees 
and Sub-Committees;  

 

Page 101



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 3 of 29 

(m) receive nominations to the positions of Chair and Deputy Chair 
for each Committee and Sub-Committee (other than Area 
Committees and any other Committee which the Council has 
decided should appoint the Chair itself) and appoint the Chairs 
and Deputy Chairs of those Committees and Sub-Committees;  

 
(n) receive nominations to serve on and appoint Members to panels, 

advisory groups, working parties and miscellaneous other bodies 
and appoint Members (and/or other individuals) to outside bodies 
and organisations, except where appointment to those bodies has 
been delegated by the Council;  

 
(p) approve a programme of ordinary meetings of the Council and a 

schedule of Committee meetings for the year;  
 
(q) agree the formula for determining the order in which Notices of 

Motion will be set out in the Council Summons for ordinary 
meetings of the Council during the year; and  

 
(r) consider any other business set out in the notice convening the 

meeting. 
 

5.3 In the event that any of the tasks outlined in paragraph 5.2 above are 
unable to be completed at the annual meeting, they will be undertaken 
at the next, or subsequent, ordinary meeting. 
 

5.4 Ordinary meetings of the Council shall normally be held in the Town Hall 
at 2.00 p.m. on the first Wednesday in months to be determined at the 
Annual Council Meeting or, in particular circumstances, at such other 
dates and venues as may be determined by the Lord Mayor or the City 
Council. 

 
5.5 Ordinary meetings will terminate at no later than 5.30 p.m.  Any 

unfinished business will normally be voted on without debate at the end 
of that time.  Any meeting starting other than at 2.00 p.m. shall finish no 
later than three hours and 30 minutes after the start. Special and 
Extraordinary meetings of the Council shall also be subject to this rule. 
 

5.6 In exceptional circumstances, with the consent of the majority of 
Members present and voting, the Council meeting may be adjourned in 
accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rules 11(a)(iv) and 
17.14(d) and where an adjournment is agreed in the above 
circumstances, the remaining business of the day shall be considered at 
a date and time fixed by the Lord Mayor, or if he/she does not fix a date 
and time, at the next ordinary meeting of the Council. 

 
5.7 Ordinary meetings will: 

Page 102



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 4 of 29 

 
(a) elect a person to preside if the Chair and Deputy Chair are not 

present; 
 

(b) consider the extent to which the public and press may be 
excluded from the meeting; 

 
(c) receive any apologies for absence from Members of the Council; 

 
(d) receive declarations by Members of interest in the matters to be 

considered at the meeting; 
 
(e) receive any communications or announcements from the Lord 

Mayor, the Leader or the Chief Executive; 
 

(f) receive public questions and petitions in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 13 and 15; 

 
(g) receive questions from Members of the Council in accordance 

with Council Procedure Rules 16 and 32; 
 
(h) receive any reports relating to matters reserved to the Council. 
 
(i) consider motions of which notice has been submitted by Members 

of the Council in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10. 
 
(j) receive any recommendations from the Council’s Committees.  
 
(k) receive any presentations on matters of significant interest to the 

City; 
 
(l) approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting; and 

 
(m) make any changes to the memberships of its Committees and 

appointments to other bodies. 
 
5.8 The Council will not ordinarily receive any reports requiring decision in 

respect of matters delegated to a Committee. Exceptionally, it may 
receive 

  

• a motion notice of which has been submitted by Members of the 
Council in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10, or  

• a report from Strategy and Resources Policy Committee or from 
the relevant Policy Committee  

 
in either case recommending that the Council rescinds the authority of 
a Committee to make a decision on a particular matter within that 

Page 103



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 5 of 29 

Committee’s work programme where that decision has not yet been 
made. If such a recommendation is agreed then the decision will fall to 
be made by the Council itself on consideration of a report which meets 
the requirements of Access to Information Procedure Rule 13 in Part 4 
of this Constitution.  

 
5.9 Any five Members may give notice in writing to the Lord Mayor to call an 

Extraordinary Meeting of the Council to consider a specified item of 
business and this will take place at a date and time to be determined by 
the Lord Mayor in consultation with the Monitoring Officer. If the Lord 
Mayor refuses, or fails, to call an Extraordinary Meeting within seven 
days of receipt of such notice, then those five Members may call the 
meeting. An extraordinary meeting may also be called by the Lord 
Mayor, the Monitoring Officer or by resolution of the Full Council. 
 

5.10 In special circumstances, the Lord Mayor may fix some other hour of 
commencement of any meeting of the Council. 
 

5.11 Meetings of Policy Committees shall be conducted according to the 
following procedures:- (a) Meetings shall last no longer than 2.5 hours, 
subject to the proviso that Members may, by agreement, continue 
beyond such time limit by a period of not more than 30 minutes on up to 
two occasions in any one meeting; (b) Any unfinished business after the 
period of 2.5 hours (or up to 3.5 hours by agreement) shall be deferred 
to the next meeting of the Body, or be voted on without debate. 
Extraordinary meetings may be called by the Chair of the Committee, in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 
5.12 Meetings of all other Bodies, with the exception of Regulatory 

Committees, shall be conducted according to the following procedures:- 
 

(a) Meetings shall last no longer than four hours, subject to the 
proviso that Members may, by agreement, continue beyond such 
time limit by a period of not more than 30 minutes. 

 
(b) Any unfinished business after the period of four hours (or four 

hours and 30 minutes by agreement) shall be deferred to the next 
meeting of the Body, or be voted on without debate. 

 
6 Signing of Minutes 
 
6.1  Where in relation to any meeting of the Council, the next meeting is a 

meeting called under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12 to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (an Extraordinary Meeting), then the next 
following meeting (being a meeting called otherwise than under that 
paragraph) will be treated as the next suitable meeting for the purposes 

Page 104



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 6 of 29 

of paragraph 41(1) and (2) of that Schedule relating to the signing of 
minutes. 
 

6.2 In relation to the signing of the minutes of other Bodies, the next suitable 
meeting of that Body shall be the next ordinary meeting and not a special 
meeting for the purposes of paragraph 44 of Schedule 12 to the Local 
Government Act 1972 

 
7 Quorum 
 
7.1 The quorum for a meeting of the Council shall be one quarter of the 

whole number of the Council (including vacancies). During any meeting 
at the instigation of the Lord Mayor, or at the request of a Member of the 
Council, the number of Members present shall be ordered to be counted 
and if there is not a quorum present, then the meeting will adjourn 
immediately. Remaining business will be considered at a time and date 
fixed by the Lord Mayor. If he/she does not fix a date, the remaining 
business will be considered at the next ordinary meeting. 
 

7.2 Provided that, where more than one third of the Members are disqualified 
at the same time and until the number of Members in office is increased 
to not less than two thirds of the whole, the quorum shall be determined 
by reference to the number of Members remaining qualified. 
 

7.3 The quorum for meetings of Policy Committees, Policy Committee Sub-
Committees and Regulatory Committees shall be three. The quorum for 
meetings of Area Committees shall be determined by the Council.  
Unless statutory regulations or legislation require otherwise, the quorum 
for meetings of other Bodies shall be two. 

 
8 Notice of and Summons to Council Meetings 
 
 The Director of Policy and Democratic Engagement Legal and 

Governance will give notice to the public of the time and place of any 
meeting in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 26 and 27 and 
existing legislation relating to access to information, as amended from 
time to time. At least five clear working days before a meeting, the 
Director of Policy and Democratic Engagement Legal and Governance 
will send a summons signed by him/her to every member of the Council 
giving the date, time and place of each meeting and specify the business 
to be transacted and will be accompanied by such reports as are 
available. 

 
9 Order of Council Business 
 
9.1 The business of the Council shall be ordered in the Council Summons 

so as to include items of public engagement and public interest before 

Page 105



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 7 of 29 

other business items, and the business shall be taken in the order in 
which it appears in the Council Summons. However, the Council may, 
by a resolution passed on a motion duly moved and seconded, direct the 
order of precedence to be changed, in circumstances where the subject 
of a motion proves to generate public interest reflected by a significantly 
increased attendance by members of the public at a Council meeting 
and it is therefore deemed appropriate to take the motion in question as 
an earlier item of business.  The motion to change the order of business 
shall be dealt with in accordance with the process set out in Council 
Procedure Rule 11(b). 
 

9.2 The Council shall, where appropriate, consider any item referred from a 
Committee and shall take such action on the issues as may be deemed 
appropriate.   

 
10 Notices of Motion to Council 
 
10.1 Deadline for receipt of notices of motion 

 
Except for motions which can be moved without notice, as set out under 
Council Procedure Rule 11, written notice of every motion to be included 
in the Council Summons for each ordinary meeting of the Council 
(except January) must be delivered to the Chief Executive not later than 
12.00 noon on the Tuesday in the week prior to the next meeting of the 
Council or the day earlier where a Bank Holiday falls within the 
intervening period.  

 
10.2 Motions set out in agenda 

 
(a) For each Motion delivered to the Chief Executive, the written 

notice must include a subject title and the names of the Members 
who propose to move and second the Motion at the meeting.  The 
subject title and names will be included in the Council Summons. 

 
(b) Unless the Member giving notice states, in writing, that he/she 

proposes to move it to a later meeting or withdraw it, motions for 
which notice has been given will be listed on the Council 
Summons in an order based on a pre-determined formula 
according to the relative size of the various Party Groups on the 
Council, with Motions being considered in an order of priority 
identified by the various recognised Groups. The formula shall be 
agreed at the start of each municipal year, to take account of any 
changes in size of the Groups etc.  The number of Motions 
submitted through the recognised groups for each ordinary 
meeting of the Council will be limited to no more than four. 
Provision shall also be made for the inclusion of any individual 
Motions that are not submitted through the recognised Groups. 

Page 106



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 8 of 29 

 
(c) In addition, the formula shall include an allocation for having the 

first Motion listed on the Council Summons, with the frequency 
being determined according to the relative size of the Party 
Groups. Any Group not sufficient in size to be entitled to a meeting 
at which it would have the first Motion listed on the agenda, shall 
be entitled to have the first Motion listed on the Council Summons 
once within a period of two Municipal years. In-year variations to 
the scheduling of a Group’s first Motion shall be permitted, in 
exceptional circumstances, with the prior agreement of each of 
the Groups. 

 
10.3 Scope 

 
The Chief Executive, on the advice of the Monitoring Officer, may reject 

a Motion if it:- 
(a) is more than 400 words; 
 
(b) is not a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or which 

affects the City, or its inhabitants; 
 

(bc) is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
 
(cd) is substantially the same as a Motion which has been put at a 

meeting of the Council in the past six months, unless Council 
Procedure Rule 10.4 has been complied with; 

 
(de) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information; 
 
(ef) contains information which is factually inaccurate; or 
 
(fg) seeks to overturn a resolution made by the Council to rescind the 

authority of a Policy Committee in the circumstances described in 
Council Procedure Rule 5.8. 
 

10.4 Motion similar to one previously rejected 
 
A motion or amendment in similar terms to one that has been rejected 
at a meeting of the Council in the past six months cannot be moved 
unless the notice of motion or amendment is signed by at least ten 
Members. Once the motion or amendment is dealt with, no one can 
propose a similar motion or amendment for six months. 
 

10.5 Motions which commit the Authority to new or additional expenditure 
 

(a) Members moving a motion at Council the net effect of which, if 
accepted, is to commit the Authority to new or additional 

Page 107



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 9 of 29 

expenditure or cause loss of income shall before moving such 
motion clearly demonstrate that they have taken appropriate 
officer advice on all the following issues (1) whether or not the 
proposal set out in the motion is within current budgets, (2) what 
the implications of incurring the expenditure or loss of income 
would be, (3) if not within current budgets how any expenditure or 
loss of income is to be funded and (4) any change in priorities as 
a result of the proposal.  The relevant information and 
consequences of the proposal must be clearly set out in the 
motion together with the fact that, in voting for the motion, 
Members will also be voting to amend the previously agreed 
expenditure or income and/or change in priorities for the services 
or areas affected.   
 

(b) Failure to comply with the above requirements in total means that 
the motion cannot be implemented until such time as the 
requirements are met. 

 
10.6 Motions regarding a matter which is delegated to a Committee 
 

A motion will not be valid if it would have the effect of binding a 
Committee on a matter which falls within that Committee’s delegated 
authority, to the extent that the decision of that Committee becomes 
predetermined. The Committee will have regard to the resolution of the 
Council when it considers the matter at a meeting which meets the 
requirements set out in the Access to Information Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution. 
 

11 Motions which may be moved without notice at Council Meetings 
 

(a) Subject, where appropriate, to the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 17.13, the following motions may be moved 
without notice:- 

 
(i) Appointment of Chair at a meeting from which the Lord 

Mayor and Deputy Lord Mayor are absent. 
 

(ii) Motions and Amendments where it is not reasonably 
possible to comply with Council Procedure Rules 10.1 and 
12.1. 

 
(iii) To proceed to the next business, subject to the provisions 

of Council Procedure Rule 17.14. 
 

(iv) That the question be now put, subject to the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 17.14. 

 

Page 108



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 10 of 29 

(v) That the meeting or debate be adjourned, subject to the 
provisions of Council Procedure Rule 17.14. 

 
(vi) Suspending all or any particular Council Procedure Rule 

and Financial Regulations, subject to the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 4. 

 
(vii) That a member be no longer heard and/or be excluded 

from the meeting, subject to the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 19. 

 
(viii) To vary the order of business, subject to the provisions of 

Council Procedure Rule 9.1.  
 

(ix) To alter a motion or amendment, subject to the provisions 
of Council Procedure Rule 17.10. 

 
(x) To withdraw a motion or amendment, subject to the 

provisions of Council Procedure Rule 17.11. 
 

(xi) Motions referred to in Council Procedure Rule 13.1 (a) and 
(b). 

 
(xii) To exclude the public and press pursuant to existing 

legislation relating to access to information, as amended 
from time to time, subject to the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 28. 

 
(xiii) In relation to the accuracy of the minutes. 

 
(xiv) To refer something to an appropriate body or individual. 

 
(xv) To appoint a Committee or Member arising from an item 

on the Summons for the meeting. 
 

(xvi) To give the consent of the Council where it is required by 
the Constitution. 

 
(b) After the mover has spoken to his/her motion for a maximum of 

30 seconds, it shall be formally seconded.  A maximum of one 
speaker from each political group officially recognised by the 
Council, other than that of the mover’s Group, shall be allowed to 
speak to the motion for a maximum of 30 seconds per speaker.  
The mover shall not have a right of reply.  The Lord Mayor will 
then put the motion to the vote. 

 
12 Amendments to Motions 

Page 109



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 11 of 29 

 
12.1 Subject to the provisions of Council Procedure Rules 11, 13 and 17.13, 

every amendment shall be submitted in writing to the Chief Executive 
(except for an amendment to any motion not detailed in the Council 
Summons), by not later than 12 noon on the day preceding the Council 
Meeting to which it is proposed to be submitted.  
 

12.2 An amendment to a motion must be relevant to the motion and will either 
be:- 
 
(i) to refer the matter to an appropriate body or individual for 

consideration or reconsideration. 
(ii) to leave out words; 
(iii) to leave out words and insert or add others; or 
(iv) to insert or add words, as long as the effect of (ii) to (iv) is not to 

negate the motion such that it departs from the subject of the 
motion. 

12.3 The Chief Executive, on the advice of the Monitoring Officer, may reject 
an amendment if it:- 
 
(a) is more than 250 words; 
(b) negates the motion such that it departs from the subject of the 

motion; 
(bc) is not a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or 

which affects the City or its inhabitants; 
(cd) is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
(de) is substantially the same as a motion or amendment which  has 

been put at a meeting of the Council in the past six months, 
unless Council Procedure Rule 10.4 has been complied with; 

(ef) requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt information;  
(fg) contains information which is factually inaccurate; or 
(gh) seeks to overturn a resolution made by the Council to rescind the 

authority of a Policy Committee in the circumstances described in 
Council Procedure Rule 5.8. 

 
12.4 Each amendment shall be numbered and include the names of the 

Members who propose to move and second the amendment at the 
meeting, and a copy shall be placed on each Member's desk in the 
Council Chamber before the commencement of the Council Meeting. 
 

12.5 The names of the mover and the seconder of any motion or amendment 
may be changed at any time prior to its being spoken upon. 

 
13 Petitions 

 
13.1 The Council recognises that the presentation of petitions is one way in 

which citizens can express their concerns and priorities to the Council.  

Page 110



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 12 of 29 

The Council’s Petitions Scheme is at Part 5 of this Constitution.  Petitions 
that can be presented to a meeting of the Council, Policy Committee 
(which, for the purpose of this Council Procedure Rule, includes any 
Sub-Committee of a Policy Committee), Regulatory Committee or Area 
Committee fall into three main types:- 

 
(a) Ordinary Petitions 

 
Comprising at least five signatures from members of the public 
requesting some form of action.  As a courtesy, the Head of 
Democratic Services should be notified of the intention to present 
a petition at the earliest opportunity and no later than 9.00 a.m. 
two working days before the day of the meeting.  The Council, on 
a Motion which need not be in writing and which shall be put 
without discussion, may (i) refer the matter to the appropriate 
body for consideration or (ii) decide that no further action be taken 
on the matter. Where the appropriate Policy Committee Chair 
wishes to respond to the petition at the meeting, his/her speech 
shall be limited to 5 minutes. 
 

 
(b) Petitions requiring a Council Debate 

 
 A petition containing 5,000 signatures or more will trigger a 

debate by Full Council.  Seven working days' notice submitted to 
the Head of Democratic Services should be given prior to a 
Council meeting to ensure Members have adequate preparation 
time.  The Council will endeavour to consider the petition at its 
next meeting, but due to other Council business it may not be 
possible to debate every eligible petition at the next Council 
meeting, and it is unlikely that any more than two eligible petitions 
will be debated at any one meeting.  Therefore, on occasions, an 
eligible petition may be debated at the next but one Council 
meeting. 
 

 The debate will be conducted and concluded as follows:- 
 

• A 25 minute time limit for the item, with Members able to 
speak for up to two minutes each, except for the appropriate 
Policy Committee Chair’s initial contribution which shall be for 
up to five minutes. 

 

• The petition representative will be given 3 minutes to present 
the petition at the beginning of the debate at the meeting. 

 

• The Lord Mayor will facilitate discussion of the petition by 
Members, offering the relevant Policy Committee Chair and 

Page 111



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 13 of 29 

then the relevant Group Spokespersons the opportunity to 
make the first and next contributions. Members’ contributions 
will be summarised within the minutes of the meeting in order 
for the reasons for any subsequent referral to another body to 
be captured and communicated along with the petition, or for 
the reasons for the Council subsequently deciding to take no 
action on the petition to be recorded. 

 

• At the conclusion of the debate, the Lord Mayor will offer a 
“right of reply” to the representative of the petitioners so that 
he/she can respond for up to three minutes to any matters 
raised in the debate. With the consent of the Lord Mayor, the 
representative may nominate another representative, who is 
entitled to speak under the Constitution, to provide that reply. 

 

• The Lord Mayor shall then offer a Right of Reply to the 
relevant Policy Committee Chair who shall respond for up to 
two minutes and then propose the course of action to be taken 
in response to the petition.  The courses of action available to 
the Council will be either to:- 

 
o note and take no action for the reasons put forward in the 

debate, or 
 

o take the action requested by the petitioners (if it is within 
the Council’s remit to do so), or 

 
o refer the matter to either a Committee or an 

StrategicExecutive Director for consideration having 
regard to the comments made by Members during the 
course of the debate. 

 

• The Lord Mayor shall seek a seconder for the motion 
proposed by the relevant Policy Committee Chair, and then 
enquire whether any Member wishes to propose an 
alternative course of action.  Any motion proposed will need 
to be seconded. 
 

• If only one motion has been proposed and seconded, the Lord 
Mayor will call for a vote on that motion, which will either be 
carried or lost. 

 

• Should multiple motions have been proposed and seconded, 
the Lord Mayor will outline each motion and then call for a 
vote on each motion in turn until a motion is carried and an 
outcome is achieved. 

 

Page 112



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 14 of 29 

(c) Petitions requesting evidence from an Officer 
 
A petition containing 2,500 signatures may ask that a Senior 
Officer gives evidence at a public meeting of a Policy Committee 
about something which falls within that Officer’s remit. 

 
13.2 Members of the public shall have an opportunity to address the Council 

or relevant Committee in respect of their petition for which they are the 
lead petitioner for a maximum of three minutes within the allocated time 
under Council Procedure Rule 15.1 for Public Question Time and 
Petitions, with the exception of petitions requiring a debate under Council 
Procedure Rule 13.1(b) in which a total of 25 minutes will be available 
for the debate, inclusive of the three minutes for the lead petitioner to 
present the petition. 

 
14 Communications 
 
 Each meeting of the Council will include an item of business to receive 

any communications or announcements that the Lord Mayor, the Leader 
of the Council or the Chief Executive may wish to place before the 
Council. 

 
15 Public Question Time and Petitions  

 
15.1 At Council Meetings 
 

(a) A period of up to one hour shall be allocated at each ordinary 
meeting of the Council for the presentation of ordinary petitions 
and for written or oral questions submitted by members of the 
public on matters relating to the City of Sheffield or the services 
provided by the Council. Questions will be answered by the 
Leader of the Council (on matters relating to the City) or the 
appropriate Committee Chair, including the Leader as Chair of 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee. Committee Chairs will 
answer on behalf of the Committee and not in a personal capacity. 
Employees of the City Council will not be permitted to ask 
questions where they relate directly or indirectly to their 
employment and where there are other more appropriate 
channels of communication, unless previously authorised by the 
appropriate Executive Strategic Director in advance of the 
meeting and a copy of such authorisation has been passed to the 
Head of Democratic Services  Director of Legal and Governance 
before the meeting in question. 

 
(b) Questions should be submitted to the Head of Democratic 

Services no later than 9.00 a.m. two working days before the day 
of the meeting. Advice will be given on the most appropriate Body 

Page 113



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 15 of 29 

to receive the question but a member of the public has the right 
to choose the meeting at which the question is submitted. 
Questions submitted after the deadline will be asked at the 
meeting subject to the discretion of the Chair.  

 
(c) Where a submitted question cannot be answered because time 

does not allow, or where a Committee Chair undertakes to 
provide a written answer, the written answer will be provided 
within ten working days of the Council meeting and will be 
published on the Council website. 

 
(d) With the consent of the Council, by a simple majority vote, the 

Lord Mayor may extend the one hour period of public question 
time, having regard to the number and type of issues to be 
covered.   

 
(e) On the advice of the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer, the 

Lord Mayor may not accept questions which relate to:- 
 
(i) matters not being within the responsibility of the Local 

Authority or which do not affect the City or its inhabitants; 
(ii) judicial or quasi-judicial matters; 
(iii) individual planning/licence/grant applications or appeals 
(iv) named officers or Members of the Council; 
(v) confidential matters of the type referred to in Schedule 12A 

to the Local Government Act, 1972; and 
(vi) matters of an irrelevant, repetitious, defamatory, frivolous 

or offensive nature or a general misuse of the opportunity. 
 
15.2 Meetings other than Council 

 
(a) A period of up to thirty minutes shall be allocated at meetings of 

Policy Committees and other appropriate Bodies for members of 
the public to present ordinary petitions or to ask questions of 
Members and officers present. Employees of the City Council will 
not be permitted to ask questions where they relate directly or 
indirectly to their employment and where there are other more 
appropriate channels of communication, unless previously 
authorised by the appropriate Executive Strategic Director in 
advance of the meeting and a copy of such authorisation has 
been passed to the Head of Democratic Services Director of 
Legal and Governance before the meeting in question. 

 
(b) The ability of a member of the public to ask questions or present 

petitions in the allotted time at relevant meetings shall be subject 
to the discretion of the Chair and, in normal circumstances, such 
discretion shall be exercised in favour of the question being asked 

Page 114



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 16 of 29 

or petition being presented. However, the Chair may decide that 
the individual is asking irrelevant, repetitious, defamatory, 
frivolous or offensive questions or generally misusing the 
opportunity, in which event he/she may decline to allow the 
individual to put questions to the meeting and such person will 
instead be invited to put the questions in writing. At the discretion 
of the Chair, a period longer than the stipulated three minutes for 
the presentation of a petition may be allowed. 

 
16 Members' Questions at Ordinary Meetings of the Council 
 
16.1 Provision shall be made in the Council Summons for each ordinary 

meeting of the Council (except January), for Members of the Council to 
ask the Leader of the Council, any Policy Committee (or Sub-Committee) 
or Regulatory Committee Chair, or a Member appointed by the Council 
to serve on an external body or joint committee, any question on matters 
within the functions of that Body.  The Chairs of Regulatory Committees 
can only be asked questions relating to policy and practice rather than 
individual cases. A Chair of a Policy Committee or Sub-Committee is 
expected to respond only on behalf of the Committee or Sub-Committee, 
and not in a personal capacity, and therefore questions of the Chair by 
another Member of the same Committee or Sub-Committee will not be 
permitted. 
 

16.2 Written notice of questions is required to be given to the Head of 
Democratic Services by not later than 12.00 noon on the Tuesday in the 
week prior to the next meeting of the Council or the day earlier where a 
Bank Holiday falls within the intervening period. The Member giving the 
reply shall have the option to reply by way of:- 

 
(a) an oral or written answer at the Council Meeting; 
(b) reference to a previously published document; or 
(c) a written reply provided, wherever possible, within 10 working 

days of the Council meeting and circulated to all Council Members 
and published on the Council website. 
 

16.3 Where an oral answer has not been commenced during question time, it 
shall be answered by written answer, wherever possible, within 10 
working days of the Council meeting and circulated to all Council 
Members and published on the Council website. 
 

16.4 No discussion shall be permitted on any such question or answer but, 
with the permission of the Lord Mayor and at the appropriate time as set 
out in the Council Summons, one supplemental question on each 
question may be asked by the Member who had submitted the original 
question within the time allocated for Members’ questions. 
 

Page 115



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 17 of 29 

16.5 If, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer, a Member asks questions that 
are of no discernible value, that Member may be asked to justify the cost 
of supplying such information. 
 

16.6 Provision shall also be made in the Council Summons (i) for each 
ordinary meeting of the Council, for Members, with the permission of the 
Lord Mayor, to ask questions relating to the discharge of the functions of 
the South Yorkshire Joint Authorities and of the South Yorkshire Mayoral 
Combined Authority, and (ii) for each meeting of the Council, for 
Members, with the permission of the Lord Mayor, to ask questions 
relating to urgent business of which notice in writing has been given to 
the Chief Executive Head of Democratic Services not later than 12.00 
Noon on the day of the meeting. 
 

16.7 A period of up to 30 minutes shall be allocated for Members’ questions.   
 
16.8 Provision shall be made on the agenda of each meeting of a Policy 

Committee or Sub-Committee for Members' questions to the Chair from 
Members of that Committee on issues which are not already the 
subject of an item of business on the Committee agenda. The 
procedures set out in this Council Procedure Rule 16 shall apply to 
such meetings as they do for Council meetings, save that (a) written 
notice of questions shall be given no later than five clear working days 
before the date of the meeting, and (b) a period of up to 10 minutes 
shall be allocated for Members’ supplementary questions. 

 
 

17 Rules of Debate at Council Meetings 
 

The rules of debate set out in Council Procedure Rule 17 shall apply to 
all meetings of all Bodiesthe Council and its Committees, Sub-
Committees and Area Committees. 
 

17.1 Addressing the Lord Mayor 
 
When a Member speaks, he/she must stand (if possible) and address 
the meeting through the Lord Mayor. If more than one Member stands, 
the Lord Mayor will ask one to speak and the others to sit down. Other 
Members must remain seated whilst a Member is speaking unless 
he/she wishes to make a point of order or a point of personal explanation. 
Whenever the Lord Mayor addresses the meeting, all other Members 
shall not attempt to address the meeting.  When the Lord Mayor stands 
during a debate, any Member speaking at the time must stop and sit 
down.  The meeting must be silent. 

 
17.2 No speeches until motion seconded 

 

Page 116



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 18 of 29 

 No speeches may be made after the mover has moved a proposal and 
explained the purpose of it until the motion has been seconded, subject 
to the other provisions of these Council Procedure Rules and particularly 
Council Procedure Rules 17.13 and 17.14. 
 

17.3 Right to require motion in writing 
 

 Unless notice of the motion has already been given, the Lord Mayor may 
require it to be written down and handed to him/her before it is discussed. 
 

17.4 Seconder's speech 
 

 When seconding a motion or amendment, a Member may reserve their 
speech until later in the debate, subject to the other provisions of these 
Council Procedure Rules and particularly Council Procedure Rules 
17.13 and 17.14. 
. 

17.5 Content and length of speeches 
 

 Speeches must be directed to the question under discussion or to a 
personal explanation or point of order. Subject to the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rules 11, 17.6, 17.13 and 17.14, speeches on 
motions or amendments shall be subject to a time limit of 3 minutes for 
the proposer of a motion and 2 minutes for the seconder of the motion, 
the mover and seconder of amendments, all other speakers on the 
debate, and for the right of reply for the mover of the motion. 
  

17.6 Time limit for debate  
 
 All Motions for which notice has been given in the Council Summons and 

all items of business relating to matters reserved to the Council, shall be 
subject to a maximum time limit of 25 minutes debate in total per 
Motion/item, including any amendments relating thereto. Upon expiry of 
the time limit, any and all outstanding business relating to that 
Motion/item, including any amendments relating thereto, will be voted 
upon without further debate. Presentations to be considered at ordinary 
meetings of the Council shall not be subject to a maximum time limit. 

 
 
 
 
 
17.7 Procedure for debate 
 
 Debates on items of business relating to matters reserved to the Council, 

and on motions for which notice has been given in the Council 
Summons, shall be conducted as follows:- 

Page 117



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 19 of 29 

 
(a) The motion shall be moved and seconded; 
(b) Any amendments to the motion shall be moved and seconded in 

turn; 
(c) The subject matter under consideration shall be debated as a 

whole; 
(d) The mover of the original motion shall have a right of reply at the 

end of the debate; and 
(e) Votes shall be taken on each amendment and the substantive or 

original motion.  
 
17.8 When a member may speak again 

 
 A Member who has spoken on an item of business may not speak again 

whilst it is the subject of debate, except:- 
 
(a) in exercise of a right of reply; 
(b) on a point of order; and 
(c) by way of personal explanation. 
 

17.9 Amendments to motions  
 
(a) If an amendment is not carried, any further amendments that have 

been moved will apply to the original motion. If no further 
amendments have been moved, the original motion is put to the 
vote. 
 

(b) If an amendment is carried, the motion as amended takes the 
place of the original motion.  This becomes the substantive motion 
to which any further amendments will apply.  If there are no further 
amendments, the substantive motion is put to the vote. 
 

(c) If an amendment submitted under Council Procedure Rule 11(a) 
(ii) is carried, no further amendment relating to the same matter 
shall be moved unless the further amendment has been handed 
in writing to the Lord Mayor prior to the vote being taken on the 
previous amendment. 

 
17.10 Alteration of motion or amendment 

 
(a) A member may alter a motion or amendment of which he/she has 

given notice with the consent of the meeting.   
 
(b) A member may alter a motion or amendment which he/she has 

moved without notice with the consent of both the meeting and 
the seconder.   

 

Page 118



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 20 of 29 

(c) The motion to alter a motion or amendment shall be dealt with in 
accordance with the process set out in Council Procedure Rule 
17.13(b). 
 

17.11 Withdrawal of motion or amendment 
 
(a) A member may withdraw a motion or amendment which he/she 

has moved, or given notice of, with the consent of both the 
meeting and the seconder.  No member may speak on the motion 
after the mover has asked permission to withdraw it unless 
permission is refused. 

 
(b) The motion to withdraw a motion or amendment shall be dealt 

with in accordance with the process set out in Council Procedure 
Rule 17.13(b). 

 
17.12 Right to reply 

 
(a) The mover of a motion has a right to reply at the end of the debate 

on the motion, immediately before it is put to the vote.  
 

(b) The mover of an amendment has no right of reply to the debate 
on his or her amendment. 
 

(c) Subject to the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 17.14, a 
Member who has formally seconded a motion or amendment and 
who has been permitted to reserve his/her speech until a later 
period in the debate will not be deemed a speaker for the 
purposes of counting five persons, but will lose his/her right to 
speak if he/she has not spoken prior to the passing of a motion 
that the question be now put. 
 

17.13 Motions which may be moved during debate 
 
(a) When an item of business is under debate, no other motion may 

be moved except the following procedural motions:- 
 

(i) to withdraw a motion or amendment; 
(ii) to alter a motion or amendment; 
(iii) to proceed to the next business, subject to the provisions 

of Council Procedure Rule 17.14; 
(iv) that the question be now put, subject to the provisions of 

Council Procedure Rule 17.14; 
(v) to adjourn a debate or the meeting, subject to the 

provisions of Council Procedure Rule 17.14; 
(vi) to suspend a particular Council Procedure Rule, subject to 

the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 4; 

Page 119



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 21 of 29 

(vii) to exclude the public and press in accordance with existing 
legislation relating to access to information, as amended 
from time to time; 

(viii) to not hear further a Member or to exclude him/her from 
the meeting, subject to the provisions of Council Procedure 
Rule 19. 

 
(b) After the mover has spoken to his/her motion for a maximum of 

30 seconds, it shall be formally seconded.  A maximum of one 
speaker from each political group officially recognised by the 
Council, other than that of the mover’s Group, shall be allowed to 
speak to the motion for a maximum of 30 seconds per speaker.  
The mover shall not have a right of reply.  The Lord Mayor will 
then put the procedural motion to the vote. 

 
17.14 Closure motions 

 
(a) A Member may move the following motions at the end of a speech 

of another Member:- 
 
(i) to proceed to the next business; 
(ii) that the question be now put; 
(iii) to adjourn a debate; or 
(iv) to adjourn a meeting. 

 
(b) If a motion to proceed to next business is moved, seconded and 

spoken upon, and not less than five persons have spoken on the 
item of business under debate, and at least one member of each 
of the political parties recognised by the Council as constituting 
an identifiable and separate Party Group, having previously 
indicated to him/her a wish to contribute to the debate, has been 
given the opportunity so to do, then the Lord Mayor will give the 
mover of the original motion a right of reply and then put the 
procedural motion to the vote. 
 

(c) If a motion that the question be now put is moved, seconded and 
spoken upon, and not less than five persons have spoken on the 
item of business under debate, and at least one member of each 
of the political parties recognised by the Council as constituting 
an identifiable and separate Party Group, having previously 
indicated to him/her a wish to contribute to the debate, has been 
given the opportunity so to do, then the Lord Mayor will put the 
procedural motion to the vote.  If it is passed, he/she will give the 
mover of the original motion a right of reply and shall then put any 
outstanding amendments and the substantive or original motion 
to the vote. 
 

Page 120



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 22 of 29 

(d) If a motion to adjourn the debate or to adjourn the meeting is 
seconded and the Lord Mayor thinks the item has not been 
sufficiently discussed and cannot reasonably be so discussed on 
that occasion, then he/she will put the procedural motion to the 
vote without giving the mover of the original motion the right of 
reply. If a majority of Members vote in favour of the motion, the 
remaining business of the day shall stand adjourned to a time 
fixed by the Lord Mayor at the time the meeting is adjourned, or, 
if he/she does not fix a time, to the next ordinary meeting of the 
Council. 

 
17.15 Point of Order 

 
(a) A Member may raise a point of order at any time.  The Lord Mayor 

will hear the Member immediately.  A point of order may only 
relate to an alleged breach of these Council Procedure Rules or 
the law. The Member must indicate the Rule or law and the way 
in which he/she considers it has been broken.  The ruling of the 
Lord Mayor on the matter will be final. 
 

(b) A Member may call upon the Lord Mayor to advise the meeting 
as to whether an issue has arisen of factual inaccuracy, or 
defamation or discrimination.  The Lord Mayor, advised by the 
Chief Executive, will advise the meeting as to what action should 
be taken if such an issue has arisen. 

 
17.16 Personal Explanation 

 
A Member may, at any time, request to address the meeting to provide 
a personal explanation where he/she has made a mis-statement that is 
being quoted by a later speaker, or where another Member has 
misquoted or misunderstood what the Member had said.  The Lord 
Mayor will decide whether or not to permit the request, and the Lord 
Mayor's ruling shall not be challenged. The Member shall confine his/her 
personal explanation to correcting the misunderstanding. 

 
18 Voting at Meetings of the Council and Other Bodies 
 
18.1 Majority 

 
 Unless otherwise indicated within the Constitution or required by 

legislation, any matter will be decided by a simple majority of those 
Members present in the room and voting at the time the question was 
put. 

 
18.2 Chair's casting vote 

 

Page 121



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 23 of 29 

 If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chair will have 
a second or casting vote.  There will be no restriction on how the Chair 
chooses to exercise a casting vote. 
 

18.3 Method of Voting 
 
 Unless a recorded vote is demanded in accordance with Rule 18.6, the 

Chair will take the vote by show of hands or electronically by using the 
available technology, or if there is no dissent, by seeking the affirmation 
of the meeting. In the interests of aiding clarity and transparency ’ 
‘vVoting in parts’ shall not be permitted other than in exceptional 
circumstances at the discretion of the Chair, acting in the interests of 
aiding clarity and transparency. 

 
18.4 Show of Hands 

 
 Where there is not a consensus (and no electronic system is available), 
the Chair will ask for a show of hands, in turn, for those Members voting 
for, those voting against, and those abstaining from voting, and will 
announce the number of Members voting for, against and abstaining and 
then announce the outcome of the vote. 

 
18.5 Electronic voting 
 
 Where facilities for electronic voting or the electronic recording of votes 

are available, this system will be used. The vote will be recorded and 
published but (unless demanded) such a vote shall not be a recorded 
vote as described in paragraph 18.6 below and shall not be entered into 
the minutes as such. At the meeting the Chair will announce the number 
of Members voting for, against and abstaining and then announce the 
outcome of the vote. 

 
18.6 Recorded Votes 

 
(a) If not less than ten Members present at a meeting of the Council 

or, in the case of meetings of other Bodies, one third of the 
Members present demand it, the names for and against the 
motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be taken down 
in writing and entered into the minutes. The recording of votes at 
a meeting of the Council shall be carried out by roll-call or 
electronically by using the available technology after a period of 
approximately one minute has elapsed. 

(b) In accordance with the requirements in the Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as amended), on 
any vote relating to the calculation of the council tax taken at a 
budget decision meeting of the Council the names for and against 

Page 122



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 24 of 29 

the motion or amendment or abstaining from voting will be 
recorded and entered into the minutes. 

 
18.7 Right to require individual vote to be recorded 

 
 Where any Member requests it immediately after the vote is taken, 

his/her vote will be so recorded in the minutes to show whether he/she 
voted for or against the motion or abstained from voting. 

 
18.8 Voting on appointments 

 
 If there are more than two people nominated for any position to be filled 

and there is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then 
the name of the person with the least number of votes will be taken off 
the list and a new vote taken.  The process will continue until there is a 
majority of votes for one person.  In the event of a tie between the last 
two persons, the Chair shall have a second or casting vote. 

 
19 Misconduct, Irrelevance Etc. 
 
19.1 The Chair of a Body of his/her own volition or at the request of any 

Member of the Body may call the attention of the Body to irrelevance, 
tedious repetition, repeated breach of order, unbecoming language, 
racist, sexist, homophobic or other offensive behaviour or conduct on the 
part of a Member of a manner which could reasonably be regarded as 
bringing his/her office or the Authority into disrepute and will issue a 
warning to such Member. If a Member disregards the warning, the Chair 
of the Body will, immediately and without debate, put to the vote that the 
Member be excluded for the remainder of the meeting  
 

19.2 If a majority of the Members of the Body present vote in favour, the Chair 
shall order the Member to leave the meeting and/or may adjourn the 
meeting for such period as he/she in his/her discretion shall consider 
expedient. 

 
19.3 In the event of a general disturbance which in the opinion of the Chair 

renders the due and orderly despatch of business impossible, the Chair 
in addition to any other power vested in him/her may, without the 
question being put, adjourn the meeting for such period as he/she in 
his/her discretion shall consider expedient. 
 

19.4 Any complaint about alleged misconduct on the part of a Member which 
may give rise to a breach of the Councillor Code of Conduct must be 
reported to the Monitoring Officer. 

 
20 Disturbance by Members of the Public 
 

Page 123



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 25 of 29 

 If a Member of the public interrupts proceedings of a meeting the Chair 
shall warn him/her.  If he/she continues the interruption or repeatedly 
interrupts, the Chair shall order his/her removal from the meeting room.  
In the case of meetings where there is a general disturbance in any part 
of the meeting room open to the public the Chair shall order that part to 
be cleared. 

 
21 Use of Equipment such as Mobile Phones and Recording 

Equipment 
 
21.1 Mobile telephones, pagers and other such equipment must be switched 

to silent mode during meetings of the Council and other Bodies so as not 
to disturb the conduct of the meeting.  Photography, video and sound 
recording of the proceedings of meetings whilst open to the public shall 
be permitted under the direction of the Chair of the meeting and in 
accordance with any protocols and guidance issued by the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer.   

 
21.2 The Chair has discretion to withdraw or suspend this permission should 

he or she deem it necessary, for example if the recording is disrupting 
the conduct of the meeting, or where a member of the public participating 
in a meeting objects to being recorded. In order to assist the Chair to 
manage the recording of the meeting, any member of the public wishing 
to record must inform the Chair and the recording must be clearly visible. 

 
22 Budget and Policy Framework  

 
22.1 In reaching a decision concerning the adoption of any plan, strategy or 

budget that forms part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework, 
the Council may either approve the proposals, amend them or substitute 
and approve its own proposals. 

 
22.2 The Monitoring Officer and/or the Chief Finance Officer shall determine 

whether a decision is considered to be contrary to the Policy Framework 
or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the approved Budget. 
 

22.3 Further details are contained in the Budget and Policy Framework 
Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. 
 

 
 
23 Minutes of Meetings 
 
23.1 Minute books of all meetings shall be open to the inspection of Members 

of the Council during normal office hours at the offices of Democratic 
Services and can also be accessed electronically on the Council's 
website. 

Page 124



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 26 of 29 

 
23.2 The minutes will be submitted to the next ordinary meeting of the Body 

for approval and will contain the names of Members and any co-opted 
Members present, those Members present who are not members of that 
particular Body and apologies for non-attendance by Members. 

 
24 Appointment and Removal of Leader and Deputy Leader  
 
24.1 The Council shall at its Annual Meeting appoint a Leader and a Deputy 

Leader for a period of one year.  If the Council fails to elect the Leader 
at the relevant Annual Meeting, the Leader is to be elected at a 
subsequent meeting. 
 

24.2 The Leader, and/or the Deputy Leader may be removed from office by 
resolution of the Council.  

 
24.3 Where there is a vacancy in the office of Leader, the Deputy Leader will 

assume the responsibilities of the Leader until a new Leader is 
appointed at an ordinary meeting of the Council. Where both the 
Leader and Deputy Leader cease to hold office at the same time, the 
Lord Mayor shall call a meeting of the Full Council as soon as possible, 
to appoint a new Leader and Deputy Leader.  

 
25 Appointment and Membership of Council Committees 
 
25.1 The Council shall at its Annual Meeting appoint and agree, in 

accordance with political balance rules if applicable, membership and 
terms of reference for its Committees. It shall also appoint such other 
Committees and Sub-Committees as it considers appropriate, such as 
Regulatory Committees, an Audit and Standards Committee, Area 
Committees and such other Bodies as it is required by law and as it 
deems necessary to appoint for the ensuing year. 
 

25.2 Those Bodies will be granted delegated powers, as appropriate, by the 
Council and may appoint any Task and Finish Groups as appropriate to 
assist in the completion of their duties subject to any constraints on this 
power set out in the Matters Delegated to Council Committees and Sub-
Committees at Part 3.3 of this Constitution save that each Policy 
Committee may have no more than one appointed Task and Finish 
Group at any time. 

 
25.3 A Policy Committee may not appoint a Sub-Committee but may 

delegate powers to a Sub-Committee appointed by the Council for that 
purpose. Other Committees may appoint Sub-Committees if permitted 
to do so by their Terms of Reference. 

  A Policy Committee may only appoint a Sub-Committee to the extent 
and for the purpose permitted by its Terms of Reference or in 

Page 125



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 27 of 29 

accordance with the Arrangements for Urgent Decision Making at Part 
3.3.2 of this Constitution. It may delegate powers to a Sub-Committee 
within the purposes for which it has been appointed. Other Committees 
may appoint Sub-Committees if permitted to do so by their Terms of 
Reference. 

 
25.4 A Policy Committee may co-opt non-voting members who are not 

elected Members of the Council to the Committee or a Task and Finish 
Group to assist in its consideration of an issue.  
 

25.5 Subject to any statutory provisions in that behalf, the Council may at any 
time dissolve a Body or alter its membership. 
 

25.6 Every Member of the Council shall be appointed a member of at least 
one Policy Committee or Regulatory Committee, unless otherwise 
determined by the Council. 
 

26 Urgent Business 
 
An item of business may be considered at a meeting of any Body the 
Council, a Committee or Sub-Committee as a matter of urgency, where 
it has not been possible to give five clear working days’ notice, on the 
recommendation of the Chair but the reason for such urgency must be 
recorded in the minutes. Any non-confidential or non-exempt report 
relating to such item must be made available for public inspection once 
it has been issued. 

 
27 Public Notice of Meetings and Availability of Documents 
 
27.1 At least five clear working days’ notice must be given of the date, time 

and place of a meeting of a Body. 
 

27.2 The agenda and reports (except confidential or exempt reports) must be 
made available for public inspection at all reasonable times. The public 
may also inspect any non-confidential /exempt background documents 
used in the preparation of, and listed in, each report. The Council may, 
on request, supply a copy of any agenda, reports and background 
documents to a member of the public on payment of a reasonable fee. 
 

27.3 A number of copies of the agenda and non-confidential/exempt reports 
will be made available at meetings for public use free of charge. 

 
28 Public Admission to Meetings 
 
 Meetings of all Bodies are generally open to the public, but the public 

may be excluded from a meeting either in accordance with existing 
legislation relating to access to information as amended from time to 

Page 126



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 28 of 29 

time, or in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 20 relating to 
disturbance by the public. 

 
29 Casual Vacancy on a Body 
 
 A casual vacancy on a Body occasioned by the resignation of a Member 

from that Body may be filled by a resolution of the Council at the next 
following or any subsequent meeting. A casual vacancy on a Body 
occasioned by a Member ceasing to be a Member of the Council shall 
not be filled by the Council until after the consequential vacancy in the 
office of Councillor has been filled. 
 

30 Meetings of Bodies 
 
30.1 The Director of  Policy and Democratic Engagement HLegal and 

Governance, shall summon a meeting of every Body to be held within 
14 days after its appointment. At its first meeting a Body will consider the 
meeting schedule approved by the annual meeting of the Council at its 
first meeting and may, within the constraints of the overall schedule, 
request alterations. Thereafter meetings shall be summoned by the 
Director of Policy and Democratic Engagement Legal and Governance 
to be held on such days and at such times as accord with the approved 
schedule as amended.  
 

30.2 An Extraordinary meeting of any Body shall be called by the Chair, in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer, within 7 days of the receipt by 
the Monitoring Officer of a requisition in that behalf signed by not less 
than five members of the Body. An Extraordinary meeting may also be 
called by the Chair, the Monitoring Officer or by resolution of the Body. 

 
31 Appointment of Chair 
 
31.1 Unless appointments to the positions have been made at the annual 

meeting of the Council, every Body at its first meeting shall commence 
its proceedings by electing a Chair and a Deputy Chair. In the event that 
there are more than two people nominated for either position and there 
is not a clear majority of votes in favour of one person, then the process 
outlined in Council Procedure Rule 18.8 shall be followed.  However, in 
the event of a tie between the last two persons for the position of Chair, 
the person from the Group with the highest number of Members on the 
Council shall become the Chair.  

 
31.2 In the absence of the Chair and Deputy Chair at a meeting, the Body 

shall elect a Chair for that meeting. 
 
32 Questioning of Council Representatives on Companies 
 

Page 127



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 29 of 29 

32.1 In any case where a Member or Officer of the City Council has been 
authorised to act as its representative at a general meeting (or at 
meetings which include a general meeting) of a company which is an 
authorised company for the purposes of Part V of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989, members shall be entitled, subject to paragraphs 
32.2 and 32.3 below, to put to the Member or Officer concerned at 
meetings of the Council or other Body questions about the activities of 
the company. 
 

32.2 The right to put questions to Members or Officers contained in paragraph 
32.1 above shall only be exercisable where:- 
 
(a) the Member wishing to put the question has given notice to the 

Head of Democratic Services Director of Legal and Governance 
of the precise wording of the question and the person(s) to whom 
it is to be addressed not later than 12.00 noon on the day which 
precedes by five normal working days of the Authority, 
disregarding the day on which the notice is given and the day of 
the meeting, the date of the meeting at which the question is to 
be put; 
 

(b) in the case of a question to be put at a meeting of a Body, the 
Monitoring Officer Director of Legal and Governance, or his/her 
nominee, in consultation with the Chair of the meeting to which 
the question is to be put, is satisfied that the activities of the 
company are of relevance to that meeting; and 
 

(c) it is reasonable in all the circumstances to expect the Member or 
Officer to whom the question is to be put to attend the meeting at 
which the question is to be put. 

 
32.3 Nothing in paragraph 32.1 above shall require any Member or Officer to 

whom a question is addressed to disclose any information about the 
company which has been communicated to him/her in confidence. 

 
33 Appointment of Substitutes on Committees 
 

Where an Appointed Member of a Committee is unable to attend a 
meeting of that Committee, he/she may arrange for a Substitute Member 
to attend, subject to the following conditions:- 
 
(a) a Committee Member wishing to be substituted will seek a 

substitute from the approved list for his/her Party Group; 
 
(b) the Chief Executive or his/her representative must be notified in 

writing of the substitution at least one full working day before the 
day of the Committee;   

Page 128



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Council Procedure Rules (amended Dec 2022 & Feb 2023)  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 30 of 29 

 
(c) the substitution shall last for the duration of the meeting, including 

an adjourned meeting;  
 

(d) Ssubstitute Members are not permitted to attend a meeting of 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee; and 

 
(e) Tthe Monitoring Officer in consultation with the relevant Chair, 

may permit a substitute if the notice under (b) above has not been 
given, if satisfied there is a good reason why the required notice 
was not given. 

 
 
 

Page 129



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

1 
 

Appendix 9 

STANDING ORDERS OF THE COUNCIL  

Summary and explanation 

The Council must operate in an open, fair and transparent manner in all its 
procurement and contract management activity.  
 
As such, these Standing Orders have been put together to help staff who need to 
obtain goods, services or construction work on behalf of the Council, to ensure 
that the process followed is fair and proportionate.  
 
These Orders are in addition to the Council’s decision-making processes under its 
Constitution.   

 
 

What is in this document? 

1. Who do these Standing Orders apply to? 
2. Commissioning goods, services and construction 
3. Do these Standing Orders apply to the proposal? 
4. Contract Value 
5. Goods, services or construction? 
6. Which process applies? 
7. Tenders 

8. Awarding the contract 
9. Contracts register 
10. Contract management 
11. Waivers of Standing Orders 

     12. Trading and charging 
13. Transparency 
14. Glossary of terms 

 
 
 

1. Who do these Standing Orders apply to? 
 
Everyone is responsible for ensuring that they refer to these Orders when they 
are applicable. Senior Responsible Officers (SRO) must ensure that all Contracts 
let by his or her Service comply with these Orders. 
 
All breaches of these Orders will be presented to the Audit and Standards 
Committee in the form of a report. 
 
  

Page 130



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

2 
 

2. Commissioning goods, services and construction 

 
Before commencing any procurement exercise, it is important to consider whether 
the Council can deliver the goods, services or works internally. This is called a 
‘make or buy’ decision and involves consideration of the associated costs, quality, 
and social value aspects of delivery. It also involves consideration of the Council’s 
level of capability and capacity to deliver the requirements.  
 
Any ‘make or buy’ considerations must be documented and involve the relevant 
service area. 
 
All portfolio directorate commissions are required to gain approval following their 
respective decision-making process and the arrangements for the delegation of 
functions in Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution and engage with Finance & 
Commercial Services and the Capital Programme Group for all capital projects at 
the beginning of the Commissioning process. 
 
Additionally, there are a range of factors which may affect the most appropriate 
commissioning route. These will include the matters below plus any specific factors 
relating to the commission: 
 

What is the best way to meet the need? Is it to make?  
something bespoke, or to buy an existing product or service? 
 

Which of the Council’s objectives and priorities does the proposed contract 
relate to? 
 

Have the relevant stakeholders been consulted? 
 

What approvals are required? (Consider the Council’s Arrangements for 
Delegation) 
 

How much is it likely to cost? Is it affordable? Has budget been allocated to 
this activity? 

 
The requirements: What are your desired quality standards and outcomes? 
 

If an in-house service exists that can fulfil this requirement, it must be used. 

 
Likely length of the need: Is it a one off? Is it a recurring need? 
 
Are there any existing contracts that meet the requirements? 
 
 

Consider the Council’s Ethical Procurement Policy.  
Does the proposal create any implications in relation to: 

• Human resource? 

• Sustainability? 

• Climate impact? 

• Health and Safety? 
Page 131



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

3 
 

• Real Living Wage? 

• Legal implications & statutory duties e.g. (Equality Act, Best Value duty, 
Public Services (Social Value) Act  duties, public law consultation duties, 
requirements of Compact with voluntary sector etc.), Subsidy Control 
and Public Contracts Regulations 

 

 
The type of contract: eg goods/services/works/purchase order/concession 

 

 
The length of time the service will take to procure, or make and mobilise 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 132



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

4 
 

3. Do these Standing Orders apply to the proposal? 
 
 
 

 

 

 
  

Is another local authority identifying and obtaining 
something on behalf of SCC? 

 

Are conditions applied to the funding available?  
(e.g. if SCC is using money from a grant which has 

conditions attached?) 
 

Is the proposed expenditure through a Framework 
Agreement? 

 

These orders apply  

The other local authorities may rely on its 
own financial regulations and procurement 
rules.  Where possible you should act in a 

way compatible with these orders 

You should comply with these Orders as far 
as is permitted by the funding conditions 

You should obtain the goods, works or 
services within SCC* 

You should use the existing contract** 

These types of expenditure are not subject 
to these orders 

No 

Yes 

Are the services, goods or works available from 
elsewhere in the council? 

 

Does the Council have an existing contract in 
place, which is capable of meeting the 

requirements? 
 

* In some circumstances the Director of Finance & Commercial Services will advise on using an external provider.  Benchmarking and a 
competitive process will likely apply 

** A list of existing contracts is held by Finance & Commercial Services and published at YORtender (eu-supply.com) 

No 

These Standing Orders will 
not apply 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

Is the proposed expenditure of a type listed in 
Fig A below? 

 

Yes 

No 

Yes 

No 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

Is the proposal to obtain something for the 
Council, using Council funds and facilities? 

 

Page 133

https://uk.eu-supply.com/login.asp?B=YORTENDER


Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

5 
 

 

 
 Page 134



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

6 
 

4. Contract Value 
 
An estimated Contract Value must be established at the start of every procurement 
process. This will help ensure that you seek the appropriate level of support and 
approvals are gained for the procurement.  
 
The Contract Value is the estimated total value of the contract over its full duration 
(not just one year) and must include any extension options and permissible 
variations.  

 

Where the duration of the Contract cannot be determined, the Contract Value must 
be the estimated value of the Contract over 48 months.  

 

For example… 

A contract for goods or services which is £4000 per month: 

• £4000 x 48 = £192,000 

• The Contract Value is £192,000 and would therefore be subject to the Public 
Contracts Regulations 

 

The Contract Value must be referenced in any relevant reports required for 
approval as part of the Council’s Arrangements for Delegation.  

 

The Contract Value will also inform the procurement strategy and the appropriate 
contract award forms. 

 

For Concession Contracts, the relevant contract value is the anticipated turnover 
of the provider. Estimates of the benefit to the Council must be realistic. 
 
If the procurement relates to a recurring need or service (e.g. stationery supplies), 
or is for goods, services or works which may also be procured by another part of 
the Council, it could affect the Contract Value and the requirements for 
aggregation may apply. Officers should obtain guidance from Finance and 
Commercial Services before commencing any procurement activity for related 
services.  
 
The value of Contracts must never be deliberately or artificially underestimated or 
split. 
 
Deliberately or artificially underestimating or disaggregating the Contract value as 
part of any procurement procedure is a clear breach of Procurement Contract 
Regulations and these Orders.  
 
 

5. Goods, services or works 
 
Different processes apply to contracts for goods, services and works depending 
on their value. The Procurement Professional is responsible for determining the 

Page 135



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

7 
 

most appropriate contracting terms in consultation with Legal Services where 
required.  
 

 
6. Which process applies? 

 
It is important that the right decision as to how goods and services should be 
acquired is made. See the Council’s acquisition model below for guidance for 
values below £150,000, if above this value contact Procurement and Supply 
Chain for assistance. 
 

 
 

 

 
      7. Tenders 

 
 

7.1 The Public Contract Regulations 2015 apply to all requirements (other than 
concessions for which The Concession Contracts Regulations 2016 apply) and 
the Construction Design and Management Regulations 2015 apply to all works 
requirements irrespective of size, duration, complexity and whether the project is 
notifiable to the Health and Safety Executive.  
 
A Procurement Professional will advise on the most suitable and compliant 
process in line with these regulations.  
 
 

 Page 136



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

8 
 

7.2 Selecting the successful contractor 
 
Contracts must be awarded to the contractor submitting the most economically 
advantageous tender. 
 

The award of the contract will be made in line with the procurement procedure.  
 
The reasons for such a decision shall be formally recorded. 
 
 

8. Awarding the contract 

 

8.1 Authority to award contracts 

 
Contracts shall only be entered into in accordance with the Council’s 
Arrangements for Delegation. 
 

8.2 Forms of contract 
 

Goods and Service contracts with a value of >£2,.500K must be evidenced in 

writing. 
 
8.3 Signed or sealed?  
 
A contract may only be signed or sealed when the necessary approvals are in 
place for the award of the Contract. 
 
The process of signing or sealing a contract will be determined by value and any 
special circumstances.  
 
 

Contract value Signed or sealed? Exceptions 

Up to £2,500 Signed A good reason not to 
sign. 

Between £2,500 and 

£500,000 

Signed The Director of Legal 
and Governance 
recommends that the 
contract should be made 
by way of a deed. 
 
The law requires that the 
contract has to be made 
by way of a deed or 
additional warranties are 
required. 

Over £500,000 Sealed The Director of Legal 
and Governance 
recommends that the 
contract can be signed. 
 Page 137



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

9 
 

The contract is part of a 
framework requiring 
contracts to be signed or 
the use of a standard 
form. 

 
 
8.4 Who can sign? 
 
The following people are authorised to sign contracts on behalf of the Council 
using handwritten or electronic signatures: 
 

• The Director of Finance and Commercial Services; 

• The Head of Procurement 

• The  Director of Legal and GovernanceChief Legal Officer; 

• Any Assistant Director of Legal Services and Governance; and  

• The relevant SRO. 
 

 
9. Contracts register 

 
The Council is required by the Government to publish all contracts above an 
estimated value of £5000 on an online Contracts Register.  
 
All contracts with an estimated value above £10,000 (excluding VAT) must also 
be published on the Government’s Contract Finder website. 
 
The e-tendering system automatically updates the Contracts Register for 
contracts awarded through e-tendering.   

 
Where the e-tendering system has not been used to let the contract, the SRO 
must ensure that full details are provided to Finance and Commercial Services as 
soon as possible to update the register.   
 
 

10. Contract management 
 
It is the responsibility of the SRO to ensure appropriate Contract management 
arrangements are put in place as defined by Finance & Commercial Services. The 
Contract management arrangements will relate to the value, scope and risk of the 
contract. 
 
Contract management arrangements must be defined in the Contract award. 
 
 
10.1 Payment 

 
The Councils standard payment terms are within 30 calendar days of the invoice 
date.  
 
Any variation to this standard must be agreed by the Director of Finance & Page 138



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

10 
 

Commercial Services either as part of the letting of a contract or by ad-hoc 
exception to the standard terms, or where suppliers participate in the Council’s 
early payment scheme 
 
Approval to vary these terms must be in writing.  
 
 
10.2 Extensions and variations of contracts 

 
Sometimes it may be necessary or desirable to extend or otherwise change an 
agreement after it has been confirmed. If you wish to extend or change an 
agreement, you must engage with Finance & Commercial Services and obtain 
any necessary approvals prior to making any commitments. 
 
Consent should be sought at an early stage to allow for other procurement 
methods to be undertaken where appropriate.  
 
All extensions to agreements must demonstrate value for money and should not 
be instigated to avoid or delay the requirement to conduct a competitive 
procurement. 
 
All variations and extensions to agreements must be evidenced in writing. 
 
 
    11. Waiver of Standing Orders 

 
Where necessary, the Director of Finance and Commercial Services may grant a 
Waiver to all or part of the requirements of these Orders.  
 
When applying for a Waiver of these Orders, the procurement professional must 
set out why the competitive processes in these Orders should not apply.  
 
Where a Waiver request relates to a proposed contract value over £50,000, the 
request must be reviewed and approved by the relevant Executive Strategic 
Director. 
 
The Director’s decision to waive the requirements must be recorded and must 

include the reasons for the waiver. 
 
Waiver cannot, as a matter of law, excuse non-compliance with any law 
pertaining to public procurement.   

 
Guidance on Waivers is available from Finance and Commercial Services and 
must be adhered to. Applications for a Waiver shall be made in the form of a 
procurement strategy document. 
 
 

    12. Trading and charging 

 
Advice must be sought from the Director of Finance and Commercial Services 

Page 139



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

11 
 

when engaging in commercial trading activity in the following circumstances: 
 

• Where the Council have not delivered the goods, service or works before 
 

• Where professional advice is being delivered 
 

• Where there are health & safety implications 
 
 

    13. Transparency 

 

The Council is required to publish any spending over £500 in accordance with the 

Local Government Transparency Code.  

 

Additionally, the Council is required to publish all tendered contracts that are 
awarded following a procurement process.  

 

Contracts will be published electronically with commercially confidential information 
subject to redaction. 

 

14. Glossary of terms 

 

In these Contracts Standing Orders the following words shall have the 
meanings given to them below: 

 

“Best Value” The Council’s duty to make arrangements to 
secure continuous improvement in the way in 
which its functions are exercised, having 
regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

“Commissioning” A continuous process through which 
Commissioners identify need, analyse, plan, 
source, deliver and performance 
management activity. See “The 
Commissioning Process‟ document available 
from Finance and Commercial Services for 
more information. 

“Concession” An agreement where the supplier has an 
obligation to the Council to deliver services or 
construction. This obligation is in exchange 
for a right, granted by the Council, to exploit 
some or all of those services or construction 
to make a profit.  It may also include a 
payment to and/or from the Council. 

“Contract” An agreement between the Council (or by a 
company under the control of the Council Page 140



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Contracts Standing Orders  
 

 
 

12 
 

within the meaning of section 68 Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989) and the 
supplier for the delivery of goods, 
construction, or services, in exchange for 
payment. This can include contracts made on 
a Concession basis. 

"Contractor" Includes a tenderer or any other person 
or organisation delivering a Contract. 
 

“Contract Value” The estimated total of the money 
payments to be made by the Council and 
the value of materials or other benefits to 
be retrieved or enjoyed by the 
Contractor for the whole period of the 
Contract, including any potential 
extensions, exclusive of VAT. 

“Framework Agreement” An agreement between one or more 
purchasers (including the Council or a party 
which gives access to the Council) and one or 
more Contractors, establishing the terms on 
which goods, construction or services may be 
purchased during the period of the 
agreement, in particular with regard to price 
and, where appropriate, the quantity 
envisaged. Framework Agreements may allow 
Contracts to be placed without the need for a 
further public procurement exercise. 

 

“Orders” These Standing Orders for Contracts. 

“Procurement 
Professional” 

A Council Officer who is either: a 
qualified procurement professional or a 
procurement professional by way of their 
role as a buyer of goods, construction or 
services.  

 “Regulations” The Public Contracts Regulations 2015, 
the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2016 
and the Concession Contracts 
Regulations 2016. 

"Senior Responsible 
Officer” or “SRO" 

In accordance with the Council’s 
Arrangements for Delegation in place at 
the time The Head of Service or other 
Officer nominated in writing by the Head 
of Service to act in their place. 

 
 

 

Page 141



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 1 of 8 

Appendix 10 
 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION PROCEDURE RULES     
 
1. SCOPE 
 

These rules apply to all meetings of the Council, its Policy Committees, 
Area Committees, the Audit and Standards Committee, Regulatory 
Committees and any other Committees established by the Council 
(together called meetings). 
 

 
2. ADDITIONAL RIGHTS TO INFORMATION 
 
 These rules do not affect any more specific rights to information 

contained elsewhere in this Constitution or the law. 
 
 
3. RIGHTS TO ATTEND MEETINGS 
 
3.1 Members of the public and the media shall, subject to the exceptions 

contained in these and other Rules in this Constitution, be entitled to 
attend all meetings to which these Rules apply. 

 
3.2  Attendance at meetings may be limited by the capacity of the room in 

which the meeting is held.  The Chair of the meeting may eject 
members of the public from a meeting in respect of disturbance or 
unruly behaviour.  At meetings of the Full Council, in addition to 
Members and officers of the Council, admittance to the floor of the 
Council Chamber shall be at the discretion of the Lord Mayor. 
 

3.3  Photography, video and sound recording at meetings shall be permitted 
under the direction of the Chair of the meeting in accordance with 
Council Procedure Rule 21. 

 
 

4. NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

The Council will give at least five clear working days’ notice (excluding 
the days on which the meeting is called and on which it is held) of any 
meeting to which these Rules apply by posting details of the meeting at 
Sheffield Town Hall and/or Howden House and on the Council’s 
website, except that where the meeting is convened at shorter notice in 
accordance with these Rules, details shall be posted from the time the 
meeting is convened. 

 

Page 142



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 2 of 8 

5. ACCESS TO AGENDA AND REPORTS BEFORE THE MEETING 
 
 The Council will make copies of the agenda and reports which are 

open to the public available for inspection at Sheffield Town Hall and 
on the Council’s website at least five clear working days before the 
meeting except that: 

 
(a) where the meeting is convened at shorter notice in accordance with 

these Rules, copies of the agenda and reports shall be available for 
inspection from the time the meeting is convened; and 

 
(b) where an item is added to an agenda in accordance with these Rules, 

copies of which are open to inspection by the public, copies of the 
item (and of the revised agenda) and copies of any report for the 
meeting relating to that item, shall be available for inspection for the 
time the item was added to the agenda. 

 
Nothing in this section requires copies of any agenda, item or report to 
be open to inspection by the public until copies are available to members 
of the Council. 
 

 
6. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
 

An item of business may not be considered at a meeting unless: 
 
(a) A copy of the agenda including the item (or a copy of the item) is 
available for inspection by the public for at least five clear days before 
the meeting; or, 
 
(b) Where the meeting is convened at shorter notice in accordance with 
these Rules, such copies are available for inspection from the time the 
meeting is convened; or 
 
(c) There are, in the opinion of the Chair of the meeting, special 
circumstances for considering the item as a matter of urgency, which 
shall be specified in the minutes of the meeting. 
 
 

7. SUPPLY OF COPIES 
 
 The Council will supply to any person, on payment of a charge for 

copying, postage and any other costs, copies of:-: 
 

(a) any agenda and reports which are open to public inspection; 
 

Page 143



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 3 of 8 

(b) any further statements or particulars necessary to indicate the 
nature of the items on the agenda; and 

 
(c) if the Monitoring Officer thinks fit, any other documents supplied 

to Councillors in connection with an item. 
 
 

8. ACCESS TO MINUTES AND DOCUMENTS AFTER THE MEETING 
 

The Council will make available for inspection and, upon payment of a 
charge for copying, postage and any other costs, copies of the 
following for six years after a meeting: 

 
(a) the minutes of the meeting, excluding any part of the minutes of 

proceedings when the meeting was not open to the public or 
which disclose exempt or confidential information; 

 
(b) a summary of any proceedings not open to the public where the 

minutes open to inspection would not provide a reasonably fair 
and coherent record; 

 
(c) the agenda for the meeting; and 

 
(d) reports relating to items when the meeting was open to the public. 
 

 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
9.1 List of background papers 
 

The officer responsible for a report will set out in it a list of those 
documents (called background papers) relating to the subject matter of 
the report which in his/her opinion: 

 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important 

part of the report is based; and 
 

(b) which have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the 
report  

 
but does not include published works or those which disclose exempt 
or confidential information (as defined in these Rules). 
 

9.2 Public inspection of background papers 
 

The Council will make available for public inspection for four years after 
the date of the meeting one copy of each of the documents on the list of 

Page 144



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 4 of 8 

background papers. These documents will be available on the Council’s 
website and at the Sheffield Town Hall. 
 
 

10. SUMMARY OF THE PUBLIC’S RIGHTS 
 
10.1 A written summary of the public’s rights to attend meetings and to inspect 

and copy documents will be included in each agenda for Council 
meetings which will be available to the public at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield S1 2HH and on the Council’s website. 

 
 
11 EXCLUSION OF ACCESS BY THE PUBLIC TO MEETINGS AND 

DOCUMENTS 
 
11.1 Confidential information – requirement to exclude public 
 

The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely that 
confidential information would be disclosed. 
 
Confidential information means: 
 
(a) information provided to the Council by a Government Department 
upon terms (however expressed) which forbid the disclosure of the 
information to the public; and 
 
(b) information the disclosure of which to the public is prohibited by or 
under any enactment or by order of the Court. 

 
11.2 Exempt information – discretion to exclude public 
 

The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view 
of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings that exempt information, as described in Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972, would be disclosed. 

 
Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, 
or adversely affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 
1998 establishes a presumption that the meeting will be held in public 
unless a private hearing is necessary for one of the reasons specified in 
Article 6. 

 
Exempt information means information falling within one or more of the 
following categories, subject to the conditions relating to that category. 

  

Page 145



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 5 of 8 

Category Condition 

1. Information relating to an 
individual 
 

Information is exempt information if and so 
long as in all the circumstances the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information and provided the information does 
not relate to proposed development for which 
the Local Planning Authority may grant itself 
planning permission under Planning 
Regulations. 
  

2. Information which is likely to 
reveal the identity of an individual 

Information is exempt information if and so 
long as in all the circumstances the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, provided the information does not 
relate to proposed development for which the 
Local Planning Authority may grant itself 
planning permission under Planning 
Regulations. 
 

3. Information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of 
any particular person (including 
the authority holding the 
information) 
 

Information falling within this paragraph is not 
exempt if it must be registered under various 
statutes, such as the Companies Acts, 
Charities Acts, Friendly Societies Acts, Co-
operative and Community Benefit Societies 
Acts or the Building Societies Acts. Information 
is exempt information if and so long as in all 
the circumstances the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information, 
provided the information does not relate to 
proposed development for which the Local 
Planning Authority may grant itself planning 
permission under Planning Regulations.  
 

4. Information relating to any 
consultations or negotiations, or 
contemplated consultations or 
negotiations, in connection with 
any labour relations matter 
arising between the Council or a 
Minister of the Crown and 
employees of, or office holders 
under, the Council. 

Information is exempt information if and so 
long as in all the circumstances the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, provided the information does not 
relate to proposed development for which the 
Local Planning Authority may grant itself 
planning permission under Planning 
Regulations. 
 

  

Page 146



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 6 of 8 

5.Information in respect of which 
a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in 
legal proceedings 
 

Information is exempt information if and so 
long as in all the circumstances the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, provided the information does not 
relate to proposed development for which the 
Local Planning Authority may grant itself 
planning permission under Planning 
Regulations. 
 

6. Information which reveals that 
the Council proposes 

a) to give under any 
enactment a notice under 
or by virtue of which 
requirements are imposed 
on a person;  or 

b) to make an order or 
direction under any 
enactment 

 

Information is exempt information if and so 
long as in all the circumstances the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, provided the information does not 
relate to proposed development for which the 
Local Planning Authority may grant itself 
planning permission under Planning 
Regulations. 

7. Information relating to any 
action taken or to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, 
investigation or prosecution of 
crime 
 

Information is exempt information if and so 
long as in all the circumstances the public 
interest in maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information, provided the information does not 
relate to proposed development for which the 
Local Planning Authority may grant itself 
planning permission under Planning 
Regulations. 
 

 
11.3 Exclusion of access by the public to reports 
 

If the Monitoring Officer thinks fit the Council may exclude access by the 
public to reports which in his or her opinion relate to items during which, 
in accordance with this Rule, the meeting is likely not to be open to the 
public.  Where the whole or part of any report for a public meeting is not 
available for inspection by the public, every copy of the report shall be 
marked “not for publication” and it shall be stated on the report: 

• that it contains confidential or exempt information; and  

• Identifies which of the descriptions of confidential or exempt 
information in this Rule may apply. 
 

 
 
 

Page 147



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 7 of 8 

12. PUBLIC ACCESS TO MEETINGS 
 
12.1 A meeting of the Council or a Committee must comply with the public 

access requirements of these Rules when it meets collectively. 
 
 
13. BASIS OF DECISIONS 
 
13.1 A decision may only be taken: 

 
(a) on the basis of a written report, setting out key legal, financial, 

service, equal opportunities, human rights, land and property and 
corporate implications, as well as the reasons for report 
recommendations and the alternatives considered and rejected; and 

 
(b) when the Monitoring Officer or his or her nominee is present. 

 
 
14. DECISIONS MADE BY OFFICERS 
 
14.1 As prescribed by the Openness of Local Government Bodies 
           Regulations 2014 certain categories of decisions taken 
           by officers are required to be recorded. 
 

Officers must comply with the above Regulations and general 
principles of open and transparent decision making. The Monitoring 
Officer Director of Legal and Governance will provide guidance as to 
which decisions fall within the regulation.  

  
14.2  The written record must be produced as soon as is reasonably 

practicable after the decision is made and must contain the following 
information: 

  

• the date the decision was made;  
 

• a record of the decision taken along with reasons for the decision;  
 

• details of any alternative options considered and rejected when the 
decision was made; 

 

• (if the decision was made under an express specific authorisation) 
the name of any Member who has declared a conflict of interest in 
relation to the decision. 

 
14.3 The Regulations also require the written record, together with any 

background papers to be published on the website. To simplify this 
procedure a short report, including the key legal, financial, service, 

Page 148



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 4 – Access to Information Procedure Rules  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 8 of 8 

equal opportunities, human rights, land and property and corporate 
implications, should be prepared for the decision maker to base their 

  decision on.        
 
 
15. ADDITIONAL COUNCILLORS’ RIGHTS OF ACCESS TO 

DOCUMENTS 
 
15.1 Material relating to previous business 
 

Subject to the following exception, all Councillors will be entitled to 
inspect any document (except those in draft form) which: 

 
(a) is in the possession of or under the control of the Council; and  

 
(b) contains material relating to any business which has been transacted 
at a meeting of the Council or a Committee or Sub-Committee of the 
Council. 
 

15.2 Exception 
 

This provision does not require a document to be available if it appears 
to the Monitoring Officer that it contains confidential or exempt 
information as defined in these Rules. 
 
Notwithstanding this exception, the document must be open to 
inspection if it falls within paragraph 3 (except to the extent that the 
information relates to any terms proposed or to be proposed by or to the 
authority in the course of negotiations for a contract) or paragraph, (other 
than paragraphs 3 and 6 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 (as stated at section 11.2 above). 

 
15.3 Rights to be additional 

 
These rights are additional to any other rights Councillors may have, as 
described more fully at Section 14 of the Protocol for Member/Officer 
Relations at Part 5 of this Constitution. 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 149



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 1 

Appendix 11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sheffield City Council 

Financial Regulations  

2023 

 

VERSION: 0.7 

DATE OF ISSUE: TBC 

AUTHOR: Tony Kirkham - Director of Finance & Commercial Services (CFO) 

APPROVED BY:  Full Council - 5th July 2023 

 

Page 150



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 2 

 

Contents 
 

Key Terms and Definitions ........................................................................................... 3 

1. Background ........................................................................................................... 10 

2. Financial Management .......................................................................................... 27 

3. Financial Planning ................................................................................................. 30 

4. Financial Implications ........................................................................................... 35 

5. Capital Programme ................................................................................................ 36 

6. External Funding / Grants ..................................................................................... 41 

7. Income Management ............................................................................................. 43 

8. Purchasing ............................................................................................................. 52 

9. Internal Charges .................................................................................................... 56 

10. Payroll, Expenses and Petty Cash Floats ........................................................... 56 

11. Bank Accounts and Credit Cards ......................................................................... 57 

12. Taxation .................................................................................................................. 58 

13. Stores, Stock, Assets and Security ..................................................................... 59 

14. Retention of Records ............................................................................................ 60 

15. Financial Systems ................................................................................................. 60 

16. Accounting ............................................................................................................. 61 

17. Internal Audit ......................................................................................................... 62 

18. Companies, Joint Ventures, Partnerships, Joint Committees etc. ................... 62 

19. Grant (Gift) Arrangements .................................................................................... 63 

20. Council Supply Agreements ................................................................................. 63 

 

Appendices: ................................................................................................................ 65 

A. Financial Records: Recommended  Retention Schedule .................................. 65 

 

 

 

Page 151



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 3 

Key Terms and Definitions 

Accountable Body (for 
external funding) 

A body receiving funding who becomes legally responsible 
for ensuring that requirements of the funder are met.  This 
usually includes, for example, putting in place audit trails, 
overseeing contract management with suppliers, ensuring 
the project has sufficient cash flow and generally meeting 
the liabilities (e.g. clawback) that flow from the conditions 
of the funding. 

Accountability 
Framework 

A written framework to explain accountability within a 
Directorate for the budgets held by each Director and Head 
of Service.  The Framework is reviewed annually to ensure 
it is still fit for purpose and refreshed when parties involved 
change. 

It has been developed to protect the Council’s overall 
financial interest and to meet all statutory requirements. 

Accounting Team and 
Finance & Commercial 
Business Partnering 
Team 

Members of Finance & Commercial Services with specific 
responsibility for supporting members of the Senior 
Management Team and their teams through the provision 
of financial advice and decision support. 

Accounting Policies Accounting policies are the rules used by an organisation 
to ensure that transactions are lawful, recorded properly 
and that the financial statements are produced correctly.  At 
SCC, the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) must select the 
accounting policies and ensure they are properly followed.  

The Accounting Policies are included in the Statement of 
Accounts produced each year. 

Acquisition The process of getting something – this may be bought, 
leased or donated. 

Annual Revenue Budget This is the Council’s total Revenue spending plans for the 
year including the level of Council Tax for the coming year. 
It is set by Council following receipt of the Annual Budget 
Report. 

Asset(s) The CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the UK defines an asset as ‘a resource controlled by the 
authority as a result of past events and from which future 
economic benefits or service potential is expected to flow 
to the authority’. 

Bad and Doubtful Debt A bad debt is a debt which the Council thinks will never be 
paid by the customer.   A doubtful debt is a debt which is 
likely to become a bad debt, but there is still a chance that 
the customer will pay. 

Budget  As per the Council’s Constitution (Part 2, Article 4), only 
Full Council can approve and adopt the annual budget. It 

Page 152



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 4 

includes the allocation of financial resources to different 
service and projects, including: 

• Revenue expenditure 

• Proposed contingency funds including reserves and 
balances 

• Setting the Council Tax (and any other local tax which 
may be within the control of the Council) 

• Decisions relating to the control of the Council’s 
borrowing requirement 

• Capital expenditure, 

• The Treasury Management Strategy, and 

• The Housing Revenue Account. 

Budget carry forward A budget carry forward is an underspend of an amount of 
budget, which is planned for, and then transferred to an 
earmarked reserve to be spent in a future year(s), for a 
specified purpose. For the purposes of these Financial 
Regulations this is treated as a Virement (See below). 

Budget Implementation 
Plan (BIP) 

Business planning is an ongoing process which ensures 
that we understand needs, agree priorities and strategic 
outcomes, for the medium to long-term, and allocate and 
develop resources needed to deliver them. The decisions 
from the process – both quantitative and qualitative - allow 
the production of the Budget Implementation Plans (BIPs) 
in the Budget Book. 

Business Rates Also referred to as National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) 
and are a levy on business properties based on a national 
rate in the pound applied to the ‘rateable value’ of the 
property. 

The Government determines the national rate multiplier 
and the Valuation Office Agency determine the rateable 
value of each business property. 

Business Rates are collected by the Local Authority and 
paid into their collection fund, this amount is then 
distributed 49% to the Local Authorities general fund, 1% 
to the South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority and 50% 
to Central Government. 

The Central Government share is then redistributed 
nationally, partly back to Local Authorities through 
Revenue Support Grant. 

Capital Expenditure Expenditure that is incurred to acquire, create or add value 
to a non-current asset. 

Page 153



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 5 

Capital Programme The sum of all the Council’s individual capital projects and 
programmes that the Council is planning to undertake, 
together with the funding to support the Programme. 

The Capital Programme is made up of several different 
projects, ranging from large scale projects, such as 
Building Schools for the Future, to smaller projects, such 
as children’s play equipment. 

The number and size of the projects may change, which 
means that Capital Programmes may not be comparable in 
terms of size and scope over time. 

Capital Project A project which spends capital resources to acquire assets, 
and/or build, improve, increase the market value of, or 
substantially lengthen the useful life of an asset. 

Capital Reporting and 
Approval Timetable 

This sets out the submission deadlines of Capital Approval 
Forms, dates of review meetings, monitoring and 
forecasting cycles, reporting dates and finance system 
schedules. 

Chief Finance Officer 
(CFO) 
 
 

The Chief Finance Officer (CFO) has a statutory 
responsibility under section 151 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 and s114 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1988 to ensure that the Council makes arrangements for 
the proper administration of its financial affairs. These laws 
govern the way in which the Authority’s financial affairs are 
managed.  The CFO is the Director of Finance & 
Commercial Services. 

Chief Property Officer Authorised to make any decision in respect of property 
matters not reserved to a Committee or Full Council, except 
when a member of the Senior Management Team can 
make a declaration that operational property is surplus to 
the requirements of a service within the Directorate. 

The Chief Property Officer is responsible for Property Asset 
Management across the Council. 

Constitution It describes the arrangements made by the Council for the 
discharge of its functions, the appointment of its 
Committees and the way that it meets other statutory 
requirements concerning governance arrangements. 

The ways in which the Council’s functions will be 
discharged are set out in (Part 3) of the Constitution and 
include functions to be exercised by a Committee of the 
Council and functions delegated to officers. 

If any lawfully made provision of the Constitution 
contradicts any provision of these Financial 
Regulations, the Constitution shall prevail. 

Page 154



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 6 

Consultative Committee 
of Accountancy Bodies 
(CCAB) 

A forum of chartered accountancy bodies which individually 
provide professional accountancy qualifications. The 
member bodies are: 

• The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England 
and Wales (ICAEW) 

• Association of Chartered Certified Accountants 
(ACCA) 

• Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) 

• The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland 
(ICAS) 

• Chartered Accountants Ireland 

Corporate Plan Any plan approved in line with the Constitution which sets 
out the vision for the Council and Sheffield. It includes what 
the Council will do to deliver the vision.  

Council Supply 
Agreements 

A Council Supply Agreement is a contractually binding 
agreement under which the Council agrees to provide 
works, services or supplies to a third party in return for 
payment, in money or in-kind, otherwise than in fulfilment 
of a statutory duty, but does not include an agreement 
under which the Council receives grant aid. 

Council Tax 

 

A banded property tax that is levied on domestic properties. 
The banding is based on assessed property values as at 
1st April 1991, and ranges from Band A to H. 

Debtor Account 
(Account Receivable) 

Records which show who owes the Council money, what 
they owe the money for and the amount. 

Director An officer who is a direct report of a member of the Senior 
Management Team (see definition below) 

External Funding  External Funding is discretionary money not accounted for 
within the normal funding from central government or 
equivalent, distributed by various Funders on a business 
case and/ or competitive basis requiring an application. 

Financial Policies The Council has a detailed set of financial policies which 
support these Financial Regulations. 

Financial Protocol The Financial Protocol describes the roles and 
relationships of the main parties involved in the Council’s 
financial management arrangements.  The protocol is 
reviewed annually to ensure it is still fit for purpose and 
refreshed when parties involved change. 

Forward Capital 
Programme 

This is the term used to describe the projects that are 
planned to be in the Council’s Capital Programme for the 
following financial year. Information is usually prepared and 

Page 155



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 7 

collated in the autumn/ winter for presentation to Council in 
March. 

Internal Control An internal control is a procedure or policy put in place by 
the Council to: 

• protect assets and resources,  

• to deter and detect errors, fraud or theft,  

• to ensure accurate and complete accounting records, 

• to produce reliable and timely financial information. 

Irregularity Something that is irregular, such as improper or dishonest 
conduct. 

Liability Obligations that the Council may need to fulfil. 

Match Funding Funds that are set to be paid in equal amount to funds 
available from other sources.  Match funding requirements 
can be met by in-kind contributions of staff time/ resource 
as well as actual cash/ budget. 

Medium Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) 

The Council’s MTFS presents an overview of the Council’s 
Financial position over the next three to five year period, 
including revenue and capital spending plans linked to 
priorities. 

Overhead Overheads are the expenses of a business which cannot 
be directly linked to the delivery of a service; but are 
necessary for the running of the organisation, e.g. building 
rent or light & heating costs. 

Overhead Apportionment The distribution of various overhead items, in proportion, to 
the department on a logical basis for example, building 
rents apportioned to services based on the floor space 
used by departments. 

Directorate A group of sections and services managed by a Strategic 
Director (member of the Senior Management Team). 

Project Manager The officer who is responsible for the day to day running of 
the project on behalf of the Project Sponsor / Board.  They 
are also responsible for delivery of the projects to budget, 
time and specification. Project Managers are also known 
as Budget Managers. 

Property Asset 
Management 

A mechanism to ensure that property assets are managed 
and used efficiently and effectively to support the main 
objectives of an organisation. 

Provision Amounts charged to revenue during the year for costs with 
uncertain timing, though a reliable estimate of the cost 
involved can be made. 

Reconciliation An accounting process that compares two sets of records 
to check that figures are correct and in agreement. 

Page 156



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 8 

Revenue Spending Any expenditure by the Council that falls outside the 
definition of Capital Spending. Typically, the day-to-day 
running costs of the Council, such as, salaries, rent, utility 
bills and payments to service providers. 

Reserves Money set aside from anticipated expenditure postponed 
or cancelled, or by capital accounting arrangements. 

Risk Management Risk management refers to the practice of identifying 
potential risks in advance, analysing them, and taking steps 
to reduce/ curb the risk.  Risks could include financial 
uncertainty, legal liabilities, strategic management errors, 
accidents and natural disasters. 

The Risk Management Framework has been produced by 
the Corporate Risk Management Group (CRMG).   

Financial Risk Management is built into the Financial 
Regulations and the processes that staff are expected to 
follow daily.  Key processes that promote good financial 
risk management include: 

• monitoring budgets, 

• complying with processes in the Financial Regulations, 

• following the decision-making framework, 

• maintaining and monitoring key financial risk registers. 

Senior Management 
Team (Strategic 
Directors) 

The senior managers who report directly to the Chief 
Executive who, at the date of issue of these Regulations, 
are: 

• Executive Director – City Futures 

• Executive Director – Neighbourhood Services 

• Strategic Director - Public Health and 
Commissioning 

• Strategic Director - Adults Care and Wellbeing 
Service 

• Strategic Director - Children’s Services 

• Chief Operating Officer 

Sundry Debt Miscellaneous income that is due to the Council that can 
be collected by payment up front or raising a sundry debt 
invoice. 

Local taxation, housing benefit overpayments and rental 
income are not included in this definition. 

Transfer to a specific 
reserve 

This is funding that is being put to one side (in a reserve) 
as part of the service’s budget strategy. The funding will be 
used in future years for reinvestment back into the service 
area. 

Page 157



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 9 

For the purposes of these Financial Regulations this is 
treated as a Virement (See below). 

Treasury Management The management of the local authority’s borrowing, 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market 
and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of 
optimum performance consistent with those risks. 

Utilities/ Utility Bill As approved by the CFO, payments for the following 
services are Utilities (Gas, Electricity, Water, Telecoms, 
Mail Services and Photocopiers). 

Variation/ Change in 
Scope (Capital) 

This is where there are changes in the agreed capital 
project cost or outputs. This could be an increase in the 
cost of the project, a change in available funding, or what 
will be delivered (the outputs). For example, funding to 
refurbish six schools is reduced to three schools. This 
would create a financial variation and change of scope, 
requiring approval in accordance with the Constitution. 

Variations (Revenue)  Variations are changes to the total amount of expenditure 
across either a Service, Directorate or the Council resulting 
in a change to the Council’s overall Budget. 

Virement The transfer of underspending on one budget head to 
finance additional spending on another budget head. 
Virements are also used to move budgets where a function 
is moved from one Directorate or Service to another. 

Where cash limit is moved to be spent on achieving a 
different purpose to that approved in the annual budget, 
this is a policy choice and is classed as a virement. 

Write-Off Removing a debt from the Council’s accounts using money 
that has been set aside as part of the bad and doubtful debt 
provision. It relates to debts that are correctly due to the 
Council but are no longer collectable. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 158



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 10 

1. Background 

This section explains what the Financial Regulations are, who must follow them and how 
the Council knows they are being followed. 

It also outlines what training is available to help understand the Financial Regulations. 

The Financial 
Regulations are 
rules and 
instructions to 
help officers and 
Members to 
manage the 
Council’s 
finances properly 

These Financial Regulations are part of the Council’s Constitution 
(part 4). The Financial Regulations set out the policies that are in 
place to help officers and Members of the Committees to manage 
the Council’s finances.  They are a key part of the Council’s 
financial governance arrangements. 

They are very technical in places as they describe accounting 
practices and standards that have been set by law and/or 
professional accountancy bodies.  They are used by officers who 
have an accepted level of understanding of the subject matter.  As 
such there is likely to be content that will not be easy for the public 
to understand. 

The CFO must make sure that standards, procedures, and 
processes are in place across the Council to support the 
implementation of these Financial Regulations. 

These Financial Regulations are regularly checked to ensure they 
reflect accounting best practice, legislation and changing needs of 
services. 

Officers should initially contact the Accounting Team if they wish 
to query the content of these Financial Regulations.  Any changes 
to the Financial Regulations must be approved by Full Council. 

If any part of these Financial Regulations contradicts another part 
of the Constitution that other part shall take precedence. 

All officers, 
including 
voluntary staff 
must follow the 
rules in the 
Financial 
Regulations 

All officers, including those working for the Council on a voluntary 
basis, must follow the rules set out in these Financial Regulations. 
It is important that all managers and staff are familiar with these 
Financial Regulations and the rules they contain. Using the 
Council’s financial system (Integra) properly is also essential to 
ensure the Financial Regulations are followed. 

If managers and staff do not follow the rules this may result in the 
withdrawal of delegated financial authority and/ or the application 
of disciplinary procedures. 

Members of the 
Senior 
Management 
Team and 
Directors must 
confirm they 
follow the 
Financial 
Regulations as 
part of their 
Annual 

As part of the Annual Governance process, all members of the 
Senior Management Team and Directors must sign a statement to 
say that they comply with the governance arrangements of the 
Council including the Financial Regulations and Risk 
Management Framework. 

They also must confirm that they have appropriate internal 
controls in place in their Directorate to protect the Council’s 
assets. 

Any occasions where the internal controls have not worked 
properly must be declared. 

Page 159



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 11 

Governance 
statement 

The Annual Governance Statement is a statutory document which 
describes the governance framework and highlights any 
significant issues which have occurred in a financial year. 

The Annual Governance Statement is approved by the Audit & 
Standards Committee and is published with the Annual Accounts. 

To support 
understanding, 
procedures and 
processes are 
available 

Financial 
Protocol 

E-Learning about 
the finance 
System (Integra) 
and Qtier is also 
available 

Guidance is available which supports these Financial Regulations.  
The guidance sets out in more detail the Council’s procedures and 
processes related to financial management and administration. 

The Financial Protocol complements the Financial Regulations 
and Policies by describing the roles and relationships of the main 
parties involved in the Council’s financial management 
arrangements, helping to ensure sound financial management. 

Training is made available by Finance and Commercial Services 
to support the Financial Regulations.  This includes e-training and 
guidance for the finance system (Integra) and Qtier reporting tool. 

All staff should follow the guidance and other documentation to 
ensure full compliance with the Financial Regulations. 

Who Has Responsibility for Finance? 

Many of the Council’s responsibilities for finances are delegated from Council to its 
Committees.  Ensuring expenditure remains within the resources available to it. 

The table below summarises the key financial responsibilities: 

Full Council 

 

Functions that can only be carried out by Full Council include: 

• Approving or adopting the Policy Framework 

• Approving or adopting the Budget, including approval of variations. 

• Agreeing the capital strategy and programme 

All the functions carried out by Full Council are set out in Part 2, Article 
4 of the Council’s Constitution and/ or prescribed by law. 

Strategy & 
Resources 
Policy 
Committee 

The Strategy & Resources Policy Committee has a co-ordinating role 
across all other Policy Committees and exercises a corporate view of 
outcomes, performance, budget monitoring and risk management. 

The Strategy & Resources Policy Committee has overarching 
responsibility for the development and submission to Full Council for 
adoption of the Budget and Policy Framework. 

The Strategy & Resources Policy Committee may take any decision 
otherwise reserved to the Finance Committee and will ensure revenue 
and capital budget monitoring takes place with sufficient regularity. 

Either the Strategy & Resources Policy Committee or the Finance 
Committee will receive: 

• At least a quarterly budget monitoring report outlining the financial 
position for the whole Council. 

Page 160



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 12 

• The out-turn report following the end of the financial year to 
approve decisions on the carry-forward/ carry-back of resources 
from one year to the next. 

• Financial information during the year if support is needed for an in-
year decision on the Council’s budget (variation). 

Finance 
Committee 

The Finance Committee may take decisions in respect of specific 
Finance, Capital Programme and Property matters, including but not 
limited to: 

• Corporate Revenue and Capital monitoring and capital allocations 

• Agreement upon the annual budget for Services within 
Directorates including the application of the overall capital 
programme (within the Budget and Policy Framework). 

• Agreement of Council policies in respect of fees and charges. 

• Commitments to funding in future years not covered by the MTFS. 

• Agreement upon virements of £500,000 and over or representing 
a major change of policy (any value) from one division of a Service 
to another or between Services within Directorates or between 
Directorates, and within the approved budget. 

• Approval of all new capital schemes, except expenditure relating 
to feasibility works up to the value of £100,000. 

• Approval of a variation to an existing capital scheme which 
increases the value of the scheme by more than £100,000 

Any reference in these Financial Regulations to the Finance 
Committee shall mean the Finance Committee or the Strategy & 
Resources Policy Committee taking decisions on matters otherwise 
reserved to the Finance Committee. 

Policy 
Committees 

Once a Budget and/or a Policy Framework (or any constituent part of 
this) is in place, it will be the responsibility of the Policy Committees to 
implement it to the extent that this involves the discharging of any 
functions delegated to a Committee in Part 3 of the Constitution. 

No changes to any policy or strategy which make up the Budget 
(revenue or capital) and Policy Framework may be made, as they are 
reserved to the Council; which will result in the closure or 
discontinuance of a service or part of service to meet a budgetary 
constraint may be made provided they remain within the constraints 
of the Budget and Policy Framework. 

Agreeing fees and charges (other than any set by Full Council as part 
of the budget process) in line with the MTFS and any policies in 
respect of fees and charges. 

All Policy Committees will receive at least a quarterly budget 
monitoring reports for their areas of responsibility, via their Accounting 
Team contact. 

Page 161



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 13 

Local Area 
Committees 
(LACs) 

 

LACs have powers to approve expenditure of any amounts delegated 
to them by the Council.  LACs cannot spend money other than that 
allocated by Council. 

Whenever LACs spend money, they must comply with these Financial 
Regulations, Contracts Standing Orders, Procurement Guidelines and 
any other relevant policies or procedures. 

LACS are constituted and operate in accordance with Part 2, Article 
11 of the Constitution, and the Procedure Rules in Part 4. 

Audit & 
Standards 
Committee 

The Audit & Standards Committee is a key part of the governance of 
the Council. The terms of reference for the Audit & Standards 
Committee are set out in the Council’s Constitution (Part 3.3). 

Finance 
Design 
Assurance 
Group (FDA) 

The FDA ensures changes to the Council’s financial systems and 
processes are effectively managed. 

It aids compliance with relevant legal, regulatory and policy 
requirements and ensures changes integrate effectively with existing 
financial systems and processes. 

Assessing and reviewing proposals that have a material impact on the 
Council’s financial systems and processes. 

Provides assurance to the CFO on relevant project and programme 
deliverables and outcomes and compliance with the Council’s 
financial strategies. 

Either of the co-chairs of the FDA may approve exceptions to the 
standard payment methods outlined in chapter 7, in line with the Non-
Standard Purchase to Pay Policy developed and maintained by the 
Standards and Policy Group. 

Standards 
and Policy 
Group 

The Group develops, maintains, and communicates the principles and 
standards applied to all financial activities (policies, procedures, and 
systems). 

Developing, maintaining and communicating the standard for 
documents, setting out the format, the ownership and the review 
frequency. 

Ensuring that there is clear line of sight to the Financial Regulations 
and Contracts Standing Orders. 

The Group reviews operating policies and procedures from other 
services, making suitable recommendations on their content and 
application, which may be presented to the appropriate decision-
making body.  

The Group works in conjunction with the FDA to participate in high-
level project design activities to ensure alignment with key financial 
principles and accounting standards. 

 

 

Page 162



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 14 

Detailed Officer Roles and Responsibilities 

The following tables provide details about the financial management roles and 
responsibilities of key officers within the Council. 

The responsibilities have been broken down into the main areas of financial management 
and be read alongside these sections of the Financial Regulations. 

The Director of Finance & Commercial Services 

S151 and 
deputy s151 
officers 
 
 

Fulfilling the statutory role of the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) for the 
purposes of s151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and s114 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1988. 

A statutory responsibility to ensure that the Council plans for the 
proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs. 

Ensuring the production and monitoring of these Financial 
Regulations. 

Ensuring that the s151 role is fulfilled at a strategic level. 

On a day-to-day basis, all s151 responsibilities may be discharged 
by the Head of Accounting and the Head of Finance & Commercial 
Business Partnering.  They will act on behalf of the CFO in ensuring 
proper discharge of these statutory responsibilities. 

Nothing in the above paragraph diminishes the ultimate financial 
responsibilities of the CFO. 

Financial 
Management 
 

Signing grant Funder offer letters, or documentation, to accept a 
grant of £1m or more, although this is usually discharged by the 
Head of Accounting or the Head of Finance & Commercial Business 
Partnering. 

Signing statutory returns or other documents that require the 
authority of the CFO, although this is usually discharged by the 
Head of Accounting or the Head of Finance & Commercial Business 
Partnering. 

Reporting significant risks to the Council’s Leadership Boards and 
to the Policy Committees in quarterly budget monitoring reports. 

Agreeing borrowing and investment transactions, although this is 
usually discharged by the Head of Accounting or nominated 
deputies. 

Maintaining a record of all financial information and approvals in 
relation to leases, and other credit arrangements, and work with 
service to approve all leases, except property related leases. 

Ensuring that appropriate training is made available to support the 
Financial Regulations and operational procedures. 

Writing financial standards, policies, procedures, forms, etc. which 
support the Financial Regulations. 

Overall responsibility for the financial elements of Council’s Asset 
Register and for making sure all necessary accounting 
requirements are followed. 

Page 163



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 15 

Arranging the insurances considered necessary to cover risks to 
which the Council is exposed. 

Determining the premiums to be charged to Directorates for 
Insurance as part of the Annual Budget process. 

Financial 
Planning 

Producing the MTFS with members of the Senior Management 
Team. 

Preparing Directorate spending proposals with the Finance & 
Commercial Business Partnering Team and members of the Senior 
Management Team. 

Advising on any contingency budgets required to cover exceptional 
in-year costs, such as price increases and commitments which are 
uncertain in terms of their timing and cost. 

Approving the in-year flow of money to and from reserves, and/or 
creating or consolidating reserves. 

Ensuring the Budget meets relevant statutory requirements. 

Issuing guidance regarding decisions referred. 

Signing off all Financial Implications summaries, directly or by an 
authorised officer on their behalf. 

Purchasing 
 

Ensuring Contracts Standing Orders are correct, up to date and fit 
for purpose and adhered to. 

Reporting all unauthorised breaches of the Contracts Standing 
Orders to the Audit & Standards Committee in the form of a report. 

Consider requests for waivers of the Contracts Standing Orders and 
allowing them where appropriate. 

Ensuring procedures are in place for the ordering and procurement 
of goods and/ or services. 

Providing advice and guidance on the procurement process. 

Ensuring training and guidance is available for all officers involved 
in the Purchasing to Payment (P2P) process. 

Approving suppliers of goods and/ or services. 

Setting and revising the values in the Authorisation Matrix for the 
authorisation of Purchase Orders. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are discharged by the 
Head of Procurement & Supply Chain or authorised officers. 

Internal 
Charges 

Making sure that there are proper processes and procedures in 
place to support the internal charging system. 

Internal Audit Maintaining a continuous internal audit of all the Council’s financial 
systems, records and operations. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by 
Internal Audit. 

Companies, 
Joint Ventures, 

Agreeing the arrangements for robust financial governance and 
control where the Council is involved as a minority interest in 

Page 164



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 16 

Partnerships, 
Joint 
Committees 

partnership arrangements or Joint Committees that use their own 
finance systems. 

Council 
Supply 
Agreements 

Providing an opinion to relevant members of the Senior 
Management Team on the financial aspects of Council Supply 
Agreements. 

Grant (Gift) 
Arrangements 

Ensuring there are proper processes and procedures in place for 
the making of grant aid. 

The Head of Accounting 

Financial 
Management 

Undertaking day-to-day s151 responsibilities on behalf of the CFO. 

Recommending amendments of the Financial Regulations to Council 
to mirror any changes to recommended best practice or essential 
service requirements. 

Fulfilling the role of the Money Laundering Reporting Officer (MLRO). 

Co-Chair of the FDA and the Standards and Policy Group. 

Budget 
Monitoring 

Treasury 
Management 

Carry forward 
requests 

Virements 

Annually producing the budget monitoring reporting timetable. 

Reporting to the Finance Committee on the overall revenue out-turn 
position including details of reserves, balances and provisions held 
by Directorates. 

Producing an annual Borrowing and Treasury Management Strategy 
for approval by Council. 

Agreeing any borrowing or investment on behalf of the Council 
ensuring compliance with the Borrowing Strategy and the Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

Producing an annual report to Council on treasury management 
activities, transactions and decisions. 

Reviewing requests by Directors to carry forward underspends into 
the following financial year. 

Approving virements under £500,000. 

Reviewing Budget variations and ensuring correct approval as per 
these Financial Regulations and the Constitution. 

Income 
Management 

Reporting on levels of debts, and the changes in the bad debts 
provision, to the Audit & Standards Committee as part of the annual 
accounts process. 

Purchasing – 
verbal orders, 
urgent and 
non-order 
payments 

Ensuring verbal orders have appropriate supporting documentation. 

Approving any exceptions to the standard payment methods outlined 
in chapter 7, in line with the Non-Standard Purchase to Pay Policy 
developed and maintained by the Standards and Policy Group. 
Keeping the arrangements under regular review and maintaining a 
list of these payments and exemptions. 

Page 165



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 17 

Authorising urgent payments that do not require a Purchase Order 
and do not comply with the Authorisation Matrix.  Additional 
assurance is provided by the FDA. 

Payroll, 
Expenses, 
and Petty 
Cash Floats 

Approving the arrangements made by the Director of HR and 
Employee Engagement for approving and controlling payments to all 
current and former employees. 

Developing and approving procedures related to payments to 
individuals and the management of petty cash floats. 

Approving changes to the accounting and taxation elements of the 
payroll system. 

Bank 
Accounts 

Banking 

Opening or closing bank accounts in the name of Sheffield City 
Council; this includes associated bank accounts which the Council 
does not directly control such as joint arrangements. 

Responsibility for all negotiations of banking terms with the Council’s 
Bankers. 

Maintaining an authorised signature list for banking transactions. 

Authorise the execution of Amendment Agreements. 

Opening, closing and managing all credit cards, charge cards and 
other payment cards held in the Council’s name. 

Determining monthly credit and individual transaction limits for each 
card.  Reviewing requests for alterations to these limits. 

Ensuring that reconciliations of bank accounts and credit cards are 
supported by evidence/ documentation, reviewed and certified. 

Ensuring that a register of all procurement cards is kept, containing 
employee details, credit and transaction limits and the date of issue. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are discharged by the 
Treasury Team. 

Procurement 
/ Credit Cards 

Approving officer applications for procurement/ credit cards. 

Retention of 
Records 

Producing and maintaining a schedule on the retention periods of 
financial records in accordance with current best practice. 

Financial 
Systems 

Maintaining the Council’s accounting system, which the Council’s 
Accounts are produced from. 

Controlling access to the Council’s systems and information. 

Ensuring both the accuracy and security of the data held in the 
Council’s accounting system. 

Ensuring the financial controls of feeder systems to Integra are 
robust and in line with information governance regulations. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Finance Systems / Training Team. 

Accounting Producing the Council’s Accounts in line with Accounting Standards, 
for approval by the Audit & Standards Committee. 

Page 166



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 18 

Producing a timetable and guidance to produce the Final Accounts. 

Reviewing the evidence supporting material year-end accruals. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Financial Accounting Team. 

Head of Finance & Commercial Business Partnering 

Financial 
Management 

Undertaking day-to-day s151 responsibilities on behalf of the CFO. 

Act on behalf of the Head of Accounting, as and when required, if the 
authorisations in these Financial Regulations are not clear. 

Recommending amendments of the Financial Regulations to Council 
to mirror any changes to recommended best practice or essential 
service requirements. 

Reserves Produce an annual Reserves Strategy for approval by Council. 

Approving the transfer of restricted grants to reserves. 

Capital 
Programme 
 

Propose the Capital Programme for the next financial year and then 
present this to the Capital Programme Group, Strategy & Resources 
Policy Committee and then Council. 

Ensuring that Capital projects have financial approval. 

Report on the overall Capital outturn position to the Finance 
Committee. 

Producing a timetable for reviewing, approving, managing and 
reporting Capital spending. 

Approving projects with expenditure of up to £100,000, for feasibility 
works on potential projects to be carried out, provided that: 

• Evidence confirms that the project is viable.  Any 
recommendations from the feasibility works should be able to be 
implemented so that the cost of the works is not wasted. 

• There is sufficient funding in place to cover the entire project, 
including the feasibility works. 

• The project is classified as Capital expenditure, in line with the 
capital accounting rules. 

Approving Capital expenditure in line with the emergency approvals 
procedure together with the members of the Senior Management 
Team. 

As budget holder for the Council’s Capital Financing costs, approving 
Financial Implications. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Capital Team. 

External 
Funding 

Ensuring grant applications are correctly completed and submitted 
by the required date. 

Ensuring all grant offers of External Funding made to the Council are 
appropriately accepted and approved. 

Page 167



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 19 

Ensuring all completed grant claims and certifications are approved. 

Providing advice and guidance on funder requirements regarding 
match funding sources and approving documentation. 

Ensuring all statutory financial returns related to external funding are 
completed and submitted in line with relevant guidelines. 

Confirming the income due from grant claims is received. 

Ensuring the required financial records are kept for the reconciliation 
of grant income to meet External Audit requirements. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
External Funding Team (EFT). 

Taxation Ensuring compliance with relevant legislation by ensuring 
appropriate taxation advice is available to members of the Senior 
Management Team. 

Seeking appropriate external advice where the tax implications of a 
project are sufficiently complex. 

Ensuring the employment status of individuals, limited companies 
and partnerships are valid, and records are stored in line with HMRC 
requirements. 

Complying with the requirements of the Construction Industry 
Scheme (CIS) in relation to tax deductions on the payment of 
invoices for construction work, repairs and renovation. 

Establishing an appropriately skilled team to manage the Council’s 
VAT responsibilities. 

Preparing and submitting VAT Returns to HMRC which maximise the 
cash flow benefit to the Council, but no later than the deadlines 
agreed with HMRC. 

Ensuring Value Added Tax (VAT) related records (e.g. invoices or 
credit notes) are stored and in line with HM Revenue and Customs 
(HMRC) requirements. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Tax Team. 

Procurement 
/ Credit Cards 

If the Head of Accounting is unavailable, approve officer applications 
for procurement/ credit cards. 

Head of Revenues & Benefits 

Financial 
Management 

Recommending amendments of the Financial Regulations to Council 
to mirror any changes to recommended best practice or essential 
service requirements. 

Co-Chair of the FDA and the Deputy Chair of the Standards and 
Policy Group. 

Income 
Management 
 

Determining the standard payments methods that may be used to 
collect income, as outlined in chapter 7. 

Page 168



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 20 

Approving any exceptions to the standard payment methods, in line 
with the Non-Standard Purchase to Pay Policy developed and 
maintained by the Standards and Policy Group. Keeping the 
arrangements under regular review and maintaining a list of these 
payments and exemptions. 

Providing training and advice on these payment methods and raising 
of invoices. 

Approving procedures for the receipting and banking of income. 

Providing advice on best practice for cash storage and banking. 

Managing all debt recovery actions except Housing Rents. 

Approving exceptions to the 60-day debt rule. 

Agreeing payment arrangements that last longer than 12 months. 

Having procedures and policies in place for the administration of 
Direct Debits for the collection of Sundry Debts. 

Review debts covered by a Land Charge that remain outstanding 
after 6 years, to determine whether the debt should be written off in 
the Finance system. 

Approving proposed write offs. 

Receiving information about suspected Money Laundering activities 
within the Council. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Income Collection and Management Team (ICAM). 

Council Tax Administration, billing and collection of Council Tax. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Revenues & Benefits Team. 

Business 
Rates 

Administration, billing and collection of Business Rates. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Revenues & Benefits Team. 

Benefits Administration and payment of Housing Benefit, Discretionary 
Housing Payment & Council Tax Hardship Schemes as well as the 
recovery of any overpayments. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Revenues & Benefits Team. 

Accounts 
Payable 

Ensuring arrangements are in place for paying supplier invoices. 

On a day-to-day basis these responsibilities are carried out by the 
Accounts Payable Team. 

Members of the Senior Management Team 

Financial 
Management 

Ensuring the proper financial management of their Directorate. 

 

Page 169



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 21 

Accountability 
Framework 

Producing and maintaining an up-to-date Accountability Framework 
for the Directors and Heads of Service in each Directorate. 

All their Directorate staff comply with the Financial Regulations. 

Ensuring the training available on the Financial Regulations is 
accessed by their staff. 

Asset 
management  

 

Ensuring adequate arrangements are in place for maintaining and 
protecting the Council’s property assets. 

Ensuring that any acquisition, including leases, or disposal of assets 
is approved in accordance with the Constitution and the Council’s 
Disposal Framework policy and that Finance are informed. 

Financial risk 
management 
and Money 
Laundering 

 

Ensuring that risk management and business continuity are 
embedded at all levels within their Directorates in line with the Risk 
Management Framework. 

Identifying and controlling risks in their area. 

Notifying the CFO of any circumstances which could result in the 
Council incurring a substantial liability. 

Ensuring adherence to the Anti-Money Laundering Policy. 

Notifying the CFO where there is any actual or suspected irregularity 
affecting the Council’s assets. 

Insurance Ensuring that the insurance cover chargeable to their Directorate 
budgets is accurate and up to date.  

Providing renewal information annually to the Insurance Team. 

Notifying the Insurance Team of any loss, liability or damage or any 
event likely to lead to a claim and taking any action that may be 
necessary to satisfy any policy conditions. 

Informing the CFO of any vehicle purchases (or leases) or disposals, 
premises purchases (or leases) or disposals and of any occupations 
or vacations of premises. 

Financial 
Planning 
covers 

MTFS 

Annual 
revenue 
budget setting 
and approval 

Budget 
Monitoring 

Virements and 
variations 

Preparing detailed spending proposals for their Directorate in 
conjunction with Finance & Commercial Business Partnering and the 
CFO. 

Informing the CFO of any exceptional expenditure items so that an 
appropriate level of contingency can be agreed. 

Ensuring their approved Directorate Revenue Budget is not 
overspent. 

Managing their approved Revenue Budgets within the cash 
allocations and financial targets approved by the Council, unless 
specific and approved additional resources are provided in year. 

Page 170



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 22 

including 
approvals 

Financial 
Implications 
and sign-off 

 

Reviewing requests to carry forward underspends. This should be 
linked to the annual revenue budget and, where possible, identified 
in the business planning process. 

Not making commitments to spend in future years without 
consultation with the CFO and the Finance Committee. 

Ensuring that all managers in their Directorates adhere to the budget 
monitoring and reporting timescales set by the CFO. 

Proposing budget variations – please see the Virements and 
Variations to the Annual Revenue Budget section below. 

Ensure all reports supporting decisions that go to the Policy 
Committees or Council, contain a section, ‘Financial Implications’. 

Capital 
Programme 

Ensuring that managers within their Service Area comply with the 
procedures and timescales related to capital project management. 

Approving capital expenditure in line with the emergency approvals 
procedure, together with the Head of Finance & Commercial 
Business Partnering. 

Ensure adherence to SCC’s Project Management Guidelines. 

Ensuring that the relevant procurement procedures have been 
followed in relation to Capital projects. 

External 
Funding 

Ensuring all applications for external funding are made in line with 
the Funder requirements and EFT are consulted. 

Ensuring all offers of external funding are only accepted in 
accordance with the Constitution. 

Ensuring all the terms and conditions attached to a grant are met 
and evidence to confirm this is collected and retained. 

Ensuring grant claims are prepared, checked by the Accounting 
Team and EFT, and submitted as per the Funder’s requirements. 

Managing all external funding within their area of responsibility using 
the Council’s systems and processes. 

Income 
Management 

Setting fair fees and charges to cover the cost of the spending in 
their services. 

Allowing customers to make payment up front wherever possible and 
ensuring that their services can safely store and bank cash. 

Ensuring that cash can be transported securely and that their 
services have insurance to cover the storage and transport of cash. 

Immediately informing the Police, Internal Audit and the Insurance 
Team where any theft of cash (or its equivalent e.g. debit or credit 
cards) is discovered or suspected. 

Ensuring that where customers do not pay up front, that account 
receivable accounts are created, and the customer(s) are informed 
within the required timescales. 

Page 171



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 23 

Ensuring that staff use only approved payment methods to collect 
payments from customers and that more than one option is offered 
so that customers have a choice. 

Determining how their Directorate and, where applicable, their 
partner organisations, manage each payment option. 

Ensuring partner organisations only use the standard payment 
methods which are approved by the Head of Revenues & Benefits. 

Ensuring that all systems and processes related to customer 
payments comply with all relevant legal and security requirements 
e.g. the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard (PCI DSS). 

Effectively managing the level of debt within their Directorate, in 
conjunction with the ICAM Team: 

• Reduce the level of payments which are not automatically linked 
to a specific debt. 

• Resolve customer disputes within the required timescales. 

• Identify debts that will never realistically be paid by the customer 
and recommend for write off (joint authorisation with the Head of 
Revenues & Benefits). 

Ensuring that all relevant documentation is kept and is accessible in 
case it is required for debt recovery procedures, up to and including 
court action. 

Ensuring that their staff are aware of the possibility of money 
laundering activities and that they comply with the Council’s Anti-
Money Laundering Policy. 

Purchasing Ensuring expenditure is not incurred if it represents a departure from 
Council policy or not in line with the approved budget. 

Ensuring expenditure incurred in the name of the Council is 
appropriate and legal. 

Ensuring suppliers of the Council have the necessary HMRC 
certification enabling them to be paid through the Council’s 
payments system. 

Ensuring that P2P arrangements comply with The Council’s 
Constitution and Contracts Standing Orders, HMRC requirements, 
Health and Safety Regulations, Environmental Policy and Domestic 
Law. 

Informing the Head of Accounting, if action must be taken to cancel 
stolen or lost credit/procurement cards, or those issued to 
employees who have resigned from the Council. 

Internal 
Charges 

Ensuring that their managers and staff follow the procedures for 
internal charges, including the requirement for an internal order and 
the use of specified financial codes. 

Payroll, 
Expenses and 

Providing correct payroll information, as per the agreed timetables. 

Ensuring any changes to the payroll, (e.g. post, establishment and 
contract of employment changes, etc.) are communicated in line with 

Page 172



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 24 

Petty Cash 
Floats 

the procedures approved by the Director of HR and Employee 
Engagement. 

Ensuring all payments to employees are: 

• Made through the payroll. 

• Made only to official employees. 

• In accordance with individual contracts of employment. 

Ensuring all necessary information is supplied so that deductions 
such as PAYE and superannuation are correctly applied. 

Determining petty cash requirements for their Directorate. 

Taxation Ensuring that the VAT element of any transaction is considered with 
the objective of maximising VAT recovery and minimising the level 
of irrecoverable VAT being incurred by the Council. 

Ensuring that VAT is properly accounted for on all transactions 
entered by the Council. 

Keeping VAT records within their area of activity. 

Complying with all VAT legislation and regulations applicable to the 
delivery of their service. 

Monitoring and planning for any changes in VAT legislation or 
regulations which affect their areas of activity. 

Advising the Head of Finance & Commercial Business Partnering of 
any capital projects that are under consideration which contain the 
risk of irrecoverable VAT being incurred by the Council, whether by 
way of exempt input tax or otherwise. 

In circumstances where an individual, rather than a company, is 
engaged to provide a service to the Council; ensuring that all HMRC 
regulations relating to that engagement are adhered to. 

Stores, 
Stocks, 
Assets and 
Security 

Controlling access to stores, etc. and making sure that stocks and 
assets are only used on Council business. 

Ensuring the control arrangements are robust for additional stock to 
stores and items issued.   Appropriate records must be maintained. 

Maintaining a record of stock levels for each item which should be 
physically checked at a frequency agreed by members of the Senior 
Management Team which reflects factors such as stock values, 
usage etc. 

Maintaining an inventory of all assets over £100 in value, together 
with all attractive and portable items below this figure. 

Ensuring an annual physical check of assets is undertaken. 

Reporting obsolete or missing items for write-off. Documenting 
approval and amending Inventory Records accordingly. 

Maintaining a register of assets removed from Council premises for 
use on official Council business. 

Page 173



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 25 

Providing the Head of Accounting with a certificate of the stock value 
held by their Directorates at the end of the financial year. 

Retention of 
Records 

Ensuring that all records, are managed in line with the Council’s 
Document and Records Management Policy. 

Ensuring records are retained for a period that meets the 
requirements of HMRC, the Council’s External Auditors and any 
other appropriate Body.  

Financial 
Systems 

Reconciling Directorate feeder systems to the information reported 
in the Council’s financial system. 

Ensuring that Directorate systems, e.g. Controcc, promptly produce 
financial returns in a format required by the Head of Accounting. 

Controlling the access to Directorate systems and information and 
ensuring both the accuracy and security of the data. 

Ensuring that the data on their systems (whether this is hard copy or 
in electronic format) is held in accordance with domestic data 
protection legislation. 

Ensuring that the CFO and the ICT and Digital Innovation Team are 
consulted prior to the purchase and implementation of new 
computerised financial systems. 

Internal Audit Engaging with Internal Audit to produce an annual Internal Audit plan 
for the following financial year. 

Agreeing and implementing relevant Audit recommendations. 

Companies, 
Joint 
Ventures, 
Partnerships, 
Joint 
Committees 

Reporting at least annually to the appropriate Policy Committee on 
the financial affairs of any partnership bodies. 
 

Grant (Gift) 
Arrangements 

Ensuring that any funds set aside to make individual grants are 
properly approved in line with the Constitution. 

Ensuring that all grant payments to voluntary organisations (or other 
recipients) are properly approved in line with the Constitution, these 
Financial Regulations and all other relevant documentation. 

Where a grant payment is withdrawn or reclaimed, ensuring that this 
is agreed in line with the Constitution. 

Ensuring that the external relationship with any recipient of grant aid 
is managed in line with all guidance provided by the Chief Legal 
Officer. 

Ensuring that any Grant/ Gift arrangements within their area of 
responsibility are made in line with the Constitution. 

Council 
Supply 
Agreements 

Ensuring that Council Supply Agreements within their area of 
responsibility are approved in accordance with the requirements of 
the Constitution. 

This includes seeking the opinion of the CFO. 

Page 174



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 26 

Back to Contents page 

Page 175



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 27 

2. Financial Management 

The Cycle 

The following diagram shows the financial management process starting with Service 
Planning and ending with the review of performance before the cycle starts again. 

These Financial Regulations and the operational financial policies and procedures issued 
by the CFO support the financial management process. 

 

 

 

Asset Management 

This section outlines how the Council will manage, maintain and protects its assets. 

The Asset 
Management 
Strategy 

The Chief Property Officer is responsible for Property Asset 
Management across the Council. This includes considering the 
disposal of surplus capital assets as part of the Sheffield Land and 
Property Plan. 

Any acquisition or disposal of assets must be approved in line with 
the Constitution and the Council’s Disposal Framework policy. 

One Council 
Planning 

Performance 
Review 

Budget 
Implementation 
Plans / Budget 

Setting 

Financial 
Planning / 
Business 

Plans 

Financial 
Regulations 

Financial 
Monitoring & 

Administration 

Standards, Policies, 
Procedures & 

Processes 

Page 176



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 28 

Risk Management 

This section details the arrangements for risk management, including financial risk 
management. 

Risk 
management is 
the practice of 
identifying 
potential risks 
in advance, 
analysing them 
and taking 
steps to 
reduce/curb the 
risk 

 

Specific responsibilities relating to risk management are set out in 
the Risk Management Framework and Guidance. 

The Council's Risk Management Strategy is based on good risk 
management being an integral part of good management and not a 
separate activity. 

Risk management and business continuity must be embedded at 
all levels within Directorates in line with the Risk Management 
Framework. 

Directors are responsible for maintaining and monitoring a Service 
Risks and Assurances log which must include financial risks. 

Financial risk management is built into these Financial Regulations 
and many of the core processes that the Council expects managers 
to follow on a day-to-day basis. 

Good practices for good financial risk management include: 

• monitoring budgets, 

• complying with processes in the Financial Regulations, 

• following the decision-making framework, and 

• maintaining and monitoring key financial risk registers. 

Money 
Laundering 

The Anti-Money Laundering Policy was produced by Internal Audit 
on behalf of the CFO. 

In line with the Anti-Money Laundering Policy, the Head of 
Accounting is the Officer nominated to receive information about 
possible Money Laundering activity within the Council – the MLRO. 

The roles and responsibilities of the MLRO are set out in Appendix 
B to the Policy. 

Where there are significant cash payments, i.e. £1,000 or more in 
cash, or up to £2,500 in linked transactions, officers should check 
the identity of the client in line with the Council’s Anti-Money 
Laundering Policy. 

Payments in cash must not be accepted by employees of the 
Council or any of its agents where the amount is over the current 
limit of £2,500.  This limit is set by the Council’s MLRO. 

Fraud The Council’s “Code of Conduct for Employees” and 
‘Whistleblowing Policy’ requires any Council officer, who becomes 
aware of potential theft, fraud or corruption, to bring this to the 
attention of the appropriate manager. 

Members of the Senior Management Team are responsible for 
notifying the CFO (or deputy) where there is any actual or 
suspected irregularity affecting the Council’s assets. 

Page 177



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 29 

The reporting of concerns to the Council’s Internal Audit Service is 
considered adequate for discharging this responsibility. 

Insurance 

 

Appropriate Insurances will be in place to cover the risks that the 
Council is exposed to.  The cost of insurance cover will be 
chargeable to Directorates. 

Insurance arrangements are reviewed regularly in consultation with 
the members of the Senior Management Team. 

On a day-to-day basis, Insurance arrangements are managed by 
the Insurance Team.  This team should be notified of any loss, 
liability or damage or any event likely to lead to a claim. 

Additionally, the Insurance Team should be promptly notified of any 
circumstances involving both existing and new risk, which could 
result in the Council incurring a substantial liability. This will include 
details about Members, Officers, service users, third parties, 
property, vehicles, plant/ other assets, trading activities undertaken 
with organisations external to the Council, and any alterations 
affecting existing insurances. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 178



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 30 

3. Financial Planning 

There are 3 key elements to Financial Planning at Sheffield City Council: 

• Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS). 

• Capital Programme. 

• Annual Revenue Budget. 

Each element has a specific purpose and is designed to ensure the robustness of the 
Council’s overall financial arrangements. 

The MTFS is an 
integrated 
financial plan 

The MTFS is a key part of good governance and is a tool to help 
the Council deliver its priorities. 

The MTFS links closely to the Corporate Plan.  The Corporate Plan 
in turn, informs the spending priorities included in the MTFS. 

The CFO will be responsible for producing the MTFS along with 
members of the Senior Management Team. This will be supported 
by policy options, savings and efficiencies, and both financial and 
non-financial information to assist decision-making. 

The MTFS sets an integrated financial plan, usually for a three to 
five year period, and will form the basis for the following years 
Annual Revenue Budget and Capital Programme, with projections 
for future years. 

This includes details of the amount of money available or financial 
targets for members of the Senior Management Team for the 
forthcoming financial year and guideline allocations / targets for the 
following years. 

The MTFS will also include projections of the Council’s reserves 
and balances. 

Capital 
Programme lists 
the projects that 
involve capital 
expenditure 

The Capital Programme is a list of planned capital projects, together 
with their supporting funds, which are linked to the Council’s 
outcomes and objectives. 

The Programme is agreed by Council in March each year. 

The Revenue 
Budget sets the 
budget 
proposals for 
the Council for 
a one-year 
period. 

It also sets the 
City Council 
element of the 
Council Tax 

 

The Budget is informed by the policy options that form part of the 
MTFS. 

Each Directorate will prepare detailed spending proposals.  These 
financial estimates are then finalised with members of the Senior 
Management Team before inclusion in the Revenue Budget. 

The CFO will advise on any contingency budgets required to cover 
exceptional in-year costs such as price increases and commitments 
which are uncertain in terms of their timing and likely cost. 

Members of the Senior Management Team must inform the CFO 
as soon as they become aware of any exceptional items.  An 
appropriate level of contingency can then be provided for. 

As part of the Revenue Budget, the CFO will ensure that the budget 
proposed meets relevant statutory requirements. 

Page 179



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 31 

The Revenue 
Budget 
approval must 
be complete by 
11th March each 
year 

 

The Council is responsible for agreeing the annual budget for 
services within Directorates, including the overall capital 
programme, within the Budget and Policy Framework. 

The Strategy & Resources Policy Committee will recommend the 
Budget to Council for final approval together with a recommended 
level of Council Tax to be set for the coming financial year. 

To meet statutory requirements this must be done by the 11th March 
each year. 

Once the Revenue Budget has been approved by Council, 
members of the Senior Management Team may spend up to the 
amount approved for the period covered by that budget. 

Individual items of expenditure within the budget must still be 
approved in line with the Council’s Contracts Standing Orders, 
Procurement Guidelines and the requirements of the Constitution. 

Revenue 
Budget 
Monitoring is 
undertaken in 
line with an 
agreed 
timetable 

 

An annual timetable for budget monitoring reporting is produced 
and the following principles will apply: 

• Monitoring reports, prepared on an accrued basis, will be 
reported to Directorate Management Teams monthly (except 
month 1). 

• At least quarterly overall monitoring reports will be reported to 
the Leadership Boards, Finance Committee and the Policy 
Committees. 

As soon as practical after the end of the financial year, the Head of 
Accounting will report to the Strategy & Resources Policy 
Committee on the overall revenue out-turn position including details 
of reserves, balances and provisions held by Directorates. 

The report should include recommendations relating to the 
treatment of any under and overspending by Directorates. 

Virements and Variations to the Annual Revenue Budget 

This section explains what virements and variations are and how they should be 
approved. 

A virement is 
the transfer of 
monies from 
one budget 
head to another  

For example, 
one budget is 
overspending, 
or a function 
has moved from 
one Directorate 
or service to 
another 

Virements allow the members of the Senior Management Team to 
manage budgets with some flexibility, provided they remain within 
the overall Budget and Policy Framework as agreed by Council. 

Key controls for virements are that: 

• They must be approved in line with these Financial Regulations. 

• They must not create an increase in expenditure, for example 
by creating future commitments from one-off additional 
spending. 

• Both parties to the virement must agree to it. 

Page 180



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 32 

Virements will not be allowed from capital financing charges, levies 
or other areas of spending without the specific approval of the Head 
of Accounting. 

Virements 
between 
Services and 
Directorates 
must be 
approved in line 
with specific 
limits 

Approval of virements must be made in line with the following limits:  

• Less than £500,000:  the virement may be approved by the 
Head of Accounting. 

• £500,000 and over or represents a major change of policy: the 
virement may only be approved by the Finance Committee. 

Carry forward 
requests from 
Base Budget  

 

A request to carry forward a base budget underspend must made 
by Month 8, the December monthly accounting cycle. A form should 
be completed (available on Finance Point) detailing the reasons for 
the underspend, impact and approval should be sought from the 
relevant service Director. 

A key requirement of submitting requests for carry forward of base 
budget is that the Committee cannot exceed its approved budget.  

The request must be forecast at the earliest opportunity, but by no 
later than the Month 8 forecast in December, on the agreed form. 

The Head of Accounting will then review the request and if 
approved, it will be presented to the Finance Committee as part of 
the quarterly Revenue Budget monitoring process. 

Approved requests will be included, where feasible, in the Budget 
Implementation Plan for the relevant Service. 

The Annual 
Reserves 
Strategy 

An annual Reserves Strategy is produced as part of the revenue 
budget setting process and informs the Council’s budget decision. 
The Head of Finance & Commercial Business Partnering, or 
authorised officer, will then manage the need for transfers to and 
from reserves. 

Where the proposed transfer does not relate to an approved 
strategy and is not a restricted grant then, subject to the urgency 
procedure, the decision may only be taken by Full Council. 

Transfer to 
Reserves of 
Restricted 
grants and one-
off investments 

Requests by members of the Senior Management Team to set up 
earmarked reserves, may only be done following approval by the 
CFO. 

Approving the in-year flow of money to and from reserves, and/or 
creating or consolidating reserves is at the discretion of the CFO. 

The Head of Finance & Commercial Business Partnering, or 
authorised officer, can approve the transfer to reserves of a 
restricted grant or one-off investment budget where some (or all) 
the expenditure is not expected to occur in the current financial 
year. 

Page 181



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 33 

The anticipated level of underspend should be forecast monthly 
throughout the year using the anticipated cash limit expense code 
(which at the time of writing is the Integra expense code 4038-000). 

Restricted grants & investments must be used for their specific 
activity/purpose and any restricted grant balances carried forward 
at year end will be drawdown in full in M1 (April) of the following 
financial year. 

Variations are 
changes to the 
total amount of 
expenditure 

Variations are changes to the total amount of expenditure across a 
Directorate, service or the Council as a whole that results in a 
change to the Council’s overall level of resources as set out in the 
Revenue Budget Report that is approved by Council. 

Any changes to 
the overall level 
of resources set 
out in the 
budget must be 
appropriately 
approved 

Changes to the overall level of available resources as per the 
Budget must be approved in line with the Constitution. 

Requests for variations may be submitted to Council for approval 
as detailed below: 

• Under £500,000 and not representing a major change of policy:  
may be approved by a member of the Senior Management Team 
or a Director after consulting with the Head of Accounting and 
informing the Chair of the relevant Policy Committee where 
appropriate. 

• £500,000 and over or representing a major change of policy:  
may only be approved by Finance Committee in line with the 
Constitution.  These will be proposed by the relevant member of 
the Senior Management Team actioned by the Head of 
Accounting. It is also good practice to inform the Chair and 
spokespersons of the relevant Policy Committee. 

Variations requiring support will be presented to the Policy 
Committees initially and included as part of budget monitoring. 

All approved Virements and Variations must be recorded on the 
Council’s Finance System. 

Cash Limit 
Adjustments 

Cash Limit adjustments can be done between services, within a 
service or between months on the Qtier system. 

If the adjustment does not meet the definition of a virement and is 
under £100,000, these can be signed off by the relevant Finance 
Manager (one for each side of the transaction). 

Over £100,000 and a Senior Finance Manager for the Directorate 
will need to authorise the adjustment. 

Borrowing and Investment (Treasury Management) 

The Council must make sure it has sufficient money to cover payments, such as salaries, 
supplier payments and interest payments, when they become due. 

Page 182



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 34 

This section outlines the arrangements for entering and agreeing any borrowing or 
investments that may be required. 

Treasury 
Management 
involves 
undertaking 
investments and 
borrowing 
transactions for 
the Council 

 

An annual Treasury Management Strategy is produced for 
approval by Council as part of its annual budget decision. This 
covers the borrowing and investment strategies and Capital 
Programme financing. 

The Head of Accounting must ensure compliance with the 
Treasury Management Strategy. 

Managing borrowing and investments is key to supporting the 
Council’s Strategic Planning process. 

The capital programme provides a guide to the borrowing needs 
of the Council; informing longer term cash flow planning to make 
sure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. 

The Head of Accounting must agree any borrowing or investment 
on behalf of the Council.  In the absence of the Head of 
Accounting, the CFO may agree borrowing and investment 
transactions. 

Twice per year (mid-year and at the end of a financial year) a 
report is produced for the Strategy & Resources Policy 
Committee on treasury management activities, transactions and 
decisions. 

The reports will focus on the identification, monitoring and control 
of risk as this is key to the effectiveness of Treasury 
Management.   The mid-year report is presented alongside 
budget monitoring information. 

If income over 
£50,000 is 
expected, the 
Treasury Team 
should be notified 

 

Where amounts of £50,000 or over is expected, e.g. completion 
of property purchases, this must be reported to the Treasury 
Team. 

Knowing that a large receipt is due will help the Treasury Team 
to manage the Council’s cash flow which may well reduce the 
need for short term loans to cover Council expenditure. 

If services have 
any special 
payment 
requirements over 
£50,000, the 
Treasury Team 
should be notified 

The Treasury Team should be notified a week in advance of any 
special payment requirements above £50,000. 

If this is not possible, to make any special payments, the 
Treasury Team must be notified by no later than 10am on the 
day the payment is expected to be made. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 183



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 35 

4. Financial Implications 

This section explains the process for considering the financial implications of decisions.  

Before any 
decision is made 
by Officers, the 
financial 
implications of 
that decision 
need to be 
considered 

 

The financial implications section of reports must summarise the 
capital and revenue implications of the proposals, together with 
details of any potential risks. 

Officers involved in making decisions (that are not published) must 
also give proper thought to the financial implications. This includes 
consulting with their Finance contact where necessary. The 
implications identified should be documented and retained, in case 
of future challenge or audit requirement. 

Whilst it is not compulsory, it is good practice, for reports made to 
other meetings, such as management team meetings, etc. to also 
include a Financial Implications section. 

Arrangements for 
the sign–off of 
Financial 
Implications 

 

All Financial Implications summaries must be signed off by the CFO, 
or an authorised officer on their behalf. 

Only the Head of Finance & Commercial Business Partnering, as 
the budget holder for the Council’s Capital Financing costs, (or 
officers specifically authorised to do this on their behalf) may 
approve Financial Implications which impacts on cash-flow. 

Before signing off Financial Implications, the officer who has 
prepared the report has taken all relevant advice, e.g. specialist 
financial, commercial or taxation advice. 

The name of the Officer who has signed-off the Financial 
Implications must appear on the Financial Implications section of the 
covering checklist. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 184



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 36 

5. Capital Programme 

The following section explains what the capital programme is, factors that are considered 
when it is planned and the arrangements for approving and amending capital projects. 

What is the 
Capital 
Programme? 

The Capital Programme is a list of planned projects which involve 
capital expenditure, together with their supporting funds, which are 
linked to the Council’s outcomes and objectives. The Programme 
is agreed by Council in March each year. 

As the Capital Programme is made up of several different projects, 
the size and scope of the Programme can vary over time.  

The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the 
Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice (SORP) provide 
guidance on accounting for Capital projects. 

The revenue expenditure implications of the proposed Capital 
Programme will be considered as part of the approval process, as 
well as the Revenue Budget and MTFS processes. 

How is the 
Capital 
Programme 
approved? 

The proposed Capital Programme for the next financial year is put 
together by the Head of Finance & Commercial Business 
Partnering, together with the members of the Senior Management 
Team. 

The Programme must be reviewed by the Capital Programme 
Group before being recommended to the Leadership Boards. It is 
then taken to the Strategy & Resources Policy Committee, before 
being presented to Council at the same time as the Revenue 
Budget. 

Just because a project is included within the Programme, this 
does not mean it has automatic approval to take place. 

What are Capital 
Approval Forms 
(CAFs) used 
for? 

CAFs are used to obtain financial approval for projects within the 
Capital Programme.   Capital expenditure can only occur if fully 
funded, unless any funding gaps are approved by the Head of 
Finance & Commercial Business Partnering. 

A CAF must be completed for any new projects added to the 
Programme, or changes to existing approved projects. 

A CAF must be approved, via email, by the appropriate manager 
and include all relevant documentation. The CAF is then approved 
at the Finance Committee. 

The CAF requires the following signatures (email approval): 

• For new projects and changes to existing projects - the 
signatures of the Project Manager, sponsoring Director, and 
Capital Team. 

• For emergency approvals - the signatures of the Project 
Manager, sponsoring Director, Capital Team, a member of the 
Senior Management Team and the Head of Finance & 
Commercial Business Partnering. 

Page 185



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 37 

• For cases considered sensitive by the member of the Senior 
Management Team and/or the Head of Finance & Commercial 
Business Partnering, the signatures of the Project Manager, 
sponsoring Director, Capital Team and the relevant Policy 
Committee Chair. 

Project Stage 
Approval 

 

Approval for the Design, Procure and Build stages of a project will 
not be granted without recommendations from the Head of 
Finance & Commercial Business Partnering in respect of funding 
implications. 

As part of this process the Head of Finance & Commercial 
Business Partnering will need to consider both the Revenue and 
Capital implications of these approvals. The level of contractual 
commitments in future years must be considered. 

The Project Manager must obtain approval for each stage of the 
project from the Head of Finance & Commercial Business 
Partnering, the Chief Property Officer (if appropriate) and the 
Capital Programme Group. 

Only the Capital Programme Group can recommend to the CFO 
the award of a contract for Capital works in line with the Council’s 
Contracts Standing Orders. 

The build stage of a project cannot take place until a thorough 
review has been completed by the Project Manager.  This must 
be approved by the sponsoring Director, as well as reported to the 
Capital Programme Group. 

What to do if 
External 
Funding is used 
to support a 
capital project? 

If external funding, e.g. a grant is needed to support a Capital 
project, this must be approved by either the Head of Finance & 
Commercial Business Partnering or an authorised Finance 
Officer. 

If the grant requires the Council to become the Accountable 
Body for the funding, agreement for this must be obtained 
BEFORE any offers of funding are accepted. 

Funding can only be accounted for once all conditions of the grant 
have been met.  Before this point, expenditure must be covered 
by either the relevant Directorate’s budget, or by corporate funding 
sources by agreement. 

If any part of a Capital project involves the Council guaranteeing 
the liabilities of a third party, then this must also be approved in 
accordance with the requirements of the Constitution. 

Capital Grant Funding cannot be used to fund day-to-day revenue 
expenditure. 

Arrangements 
for making 
variations to 
Projects in the 

Changes to a project’s finance are known as ‘Variations’. Any 
variations made to a project require approval and will depend on 
whether there are the Capital resources available. 

For existing projects, the approval levels for variations are: 

Page 186



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 38 

Capital 
Programme 

• Variations of up to £25k can be approved by the responsible 
Director. 

• Variations between £25k and £100k require approval from the 
relevant member of the Senior Management Team. 

• Variations above £100k require Finance Committee approval. 
These are raised in the monitoring reports. 

For approval purposes, the limits apply to the total of all variations 
since the last time approval was granted was by Council. 

Virements between Capital projects are not allowed. Any change 
to a project budget is treated as a variation. 

Emergency 
Approvals 

 

Where an emergency approval is required, this must be obtained 
in line with urgency procedures in the Constitution. 

Emergency approvals must also be referred to the CFO, the 
Head of Finance & Commercial Business Partnering, or an 
officer authorised to act on their behalf. 

All emergency approvals within a month should be reported to 
the Finance Committee in the next monitoring report. If, by the 
time the decision has been reported, and no action has been 
taken, the emergency approval may be cancelled. 

Slippage and / or 
accelerated 
spend within a 
project 

When projects are approved, an annual profile is created which 
forecasts at which point in the year spending will occur. 

Accelerated spend occurs when a project has spent more than 
expected at a set point in time.  Slippage occurs when a project 
has spent less than expected at a set point in time. 

This should be reflected in monthly forecasts, and Capital 
Finance should be made aware of the situation. 

Where spending is forecast to move between financial years, this 
must be included in the monitoring reports to the Finance 
Committee requesting approval. 

Where an overspend is anticipated, despite actions being taken 
to prevent this, the overspend must be covered from revenue. 

Capital Receipts 

 

Capital Receipts are the proceeds the Council receives from a 
buyer when it sells a capital asset. This can be used to fund new 
Capital projects. 

Any decision on the use of Capital Receipts will be taken as part 
of the overall approval for the project through recommendation 
by the Capital Programme Group. 

Procurement for 
capital projects 

 

Directors and members of the Senior Management Team must 
ensure relevant procurement procedures are followed for Capital 
projects. 

The Head of Capital Delivery Service (CDS) and the CFO must 
be made aware of any procurement activity. 

Page 187



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 39 

Where the project is financed, either fully or in part through 
external funding, then the requirements of the Funder in relation 
to procurement must also be met. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

Several specific groups, teams and managers have additional roles in relation to the 
capital programme.  These are included in the table below: 

The Capital 
Programme 
Group 

Is responsible for: 

• Overseeing Capital Management. 

• Providing advice and recommendations to the Leadership 
Boards on new projects. These recommendations will be made 
to the Finance Committee. 

• Approving variations to existing projects, as well as the 
progression of projects to their next stages. 

• Approving the use of Capital receipts and grants. 

Directors and 
Project Managers 

Are responsible for: 

• Ensuring that all projects comply with the relevant laws and 
regulations. Complying with the Constitution. 

• Complying with the relevant external funding procedures. 

Project/ Budget 
Managers 

All projects must be managed in line with the Council’s Project 
Management Guidelines. 

Project Managers are responsible for: 

• Considering revenue, environmental, property, and 
opportunity costs related to a project. 

• Considering the legal, human resources, equalities impact 
and sustainability implications of the project. 

• Considering the impact of VAT on Capital projects and 
property transactions (disposals, purchases and leasing of 
land/property) and seek the advice of the Head of Finance & 
Commercial Business Partnering if required.  On a day-to-day 
basis this advice will be provided by the Council’s Tax 
Manager. 

Managing the project within budget and preventing overspends. 

Project Managers must consider the risks of, and the solutions to, 
any forecast Capital overspends. 

The Capital Team Are responsible for: 

• Steering a project through the financial approval process, 
alongside the Project Manager. 

• Reviewing, quality checking and challenging the monthly 
actuals and forecast expenditure and income. 

Reporting monthly on Capital expenditure and its financing, in line 
with the Capital Projects Approval Route. 

Page 188



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 40 

Capital Projects Approval Route 

The diagram below shows the stages a project must go through to be approved for 
inclusion in the Capital Programme. 

Financial Management and Reporting for Capital Accounts 

This section details how projects within the Capital Programme are monitored and 
reported on. 

Financial 
Management 

The Council’s financial management system is used to manage the 
projects within the Capital Programme. 

Project Managers are required to carry out monthly monitoring and 
forecasting for both Revenue and Capital expenditure. 

Reporting 
Process 

Monthly Capital reporting is based on CAF, Project Closure Forms 
(PCF), financial monitoring and approval request reports. 

At year end, the Head of Finance & Commercial Business Partnering 
reports on the overall Capital outturn position to the Finance 
Committee. The Revenue outturn position is also reported at this 
time. 

Back to Contents page 

Approval for New Projects (inclusions) 
Regardless of £ value 

D
e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 

 Full Council - for approval of the Capital Forward Programme only, at 
the recommendation of the Strategy & Resources Policy Committee 

Finance Committee and/or Policy Committees – for formal Council 
decision to approve/reject the new project. Note that the stages below do 
not constitute a formal decision 

Leadership Boards 

Capital Programme Group (CPG) 

Directorate Leadership Team (DLT) 

Director (Discussions only) 

Page 189



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 41 

6. External Funding / Grants 

External Funding refers to additional resources, above and beyond those normally 
provided to the Council.   This funding can be used to develop and improve the quality of 
services, better meet the needs of clients or to do something that would not otherwise be 
affordable. 

Accountable 
Body status 
must be agreed 
before any 
external funding 
is accepted 

The Accountable Body is legally responsible for making sure that 
the requirements of the funder are met. 

The decision to agree to the Council becoming the Accountable Body 
for external funding must be taken BEFORE any offers of funding are 
accepted, in line with the Constitution. 

Grant Funder offer letters, or documentation, requiring signature to 
accept a grant of £1m or more must be completed by the CFO (or 
deputy) as per these Financial Regulations. 

Offer letters or documentation of less than £1m can be signed off by 
any of the Senior Finance Managers (SFM), except for the SFM’s 
that are responsible for Internal Audit and EFT or who are not a 
CCAB qualified accountant. 

Where the Council is guaranteeing the liabilities of a third party this 
must also be approved in line with the Constitution. 

The External 
Funding Team 
(EFT) have day-
to-day 
responsibility 
for the 
management of 
external funding 

EFT, on behalf of the Head of Finance & Commercial Business 
Partnering, is responsible for ensuring grant applications and 
subsequent offers are appropriately completed and authorised. 

Grant claims of £100k or more, statutory grant returns or other grant 
related documents can be signed off by the SFM’s, except for the 
SFM’s that are responsible for Internal Audit and EFT or who are not 
a CCAB qualified accountant. 

Grant claims of less than £100k can be signed off by the EFT Finance 
Manager. 

Grant claims that are submitted via a Funder portal still require sign 
off as per these Financial Regulations. 

If a grant requires match funding, EFT will provide guidance on 
sources of match funding and how this can be evidenced. 

Audits of 
External 
Funding may be 
required 

Internal and External audits may be carried out.  If required, this will 
be detailed in the terms and conditions from the grant Funder. 

Any associated costs will need to be funded from the relevant 
business unit’s budget. 

Retention of 
documentation 

 

All evidence required by the funding body must be collected and held 
in line with the terms and conditions of the grant. 

Documents supporting European projects must be stored for at least 
3 years after the UK receives its final payment to the programme or 
for the period defined by the Funder. 

Page 190



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 42 

Where the retention period in the grant agreement is longer than the 
one prescribed in the Financial Records Retention Schedule 
(Appendix A), the funder’s requirements will take priority. 

In all other cases, the Records Retention Schedule should be 
followed. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 191



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 43 

7. Income Management 

Many of the services which are delivered by the Council are funded by Government 
grants and local taxation (Council Tax and Business Rates). There are also some 
services that service users and other customers pay a fee for. 

This section explains how fees and charges are set, how income is collected and what 
the Council will do to recover debts. 

Separate detailed rules apply to Housing Rent, Council Tax, Business Rates and Benefit 
Overpayment debt, so the regulations below do not apply to these. 

Refer to section 20 for Council Supply Agreements. 

Roles and Responsibilities 

Committees and Officers involved in the sundry debt process have the following specific 
roles and responsibilities in relation to income management: 

Policy 
Committees 

 

Policy Committees are responsible for agreeing fees and charges 
in relation to their service areas, other than any set by Full Council 
as part of the budget process. 

The fees and charges must be in line with the MTFS and any 
policies in respect of fees and charges 

All Officers 
involved in the 
sundry debt 
process 

Officers who are responsible for raising invoices, credit notes, 
refunds, debt recovery and write-offs must not carry out these 
activities where they relate to debts owed by themselves or family 
members, or where they have a vested interest. 

Officers with 
Authority to 
collect cash 

Only officers with specific authorisation from their manager may 
collect cash on behalf of the Council.  These officers will be issued 
with a “Style 1” photo identification card, which clearly states that 
they are authorised to collect cash. 

Before any new Style 1 photo identification card is issued, the 
request must be approved by the Head of Revenues & Benefits, 
or authorised officer, in line with the procedure for the issue of 
photo identification cards. 

Managers should keep a register containing details of the style of 
card held by each member of staff and ensure that the card held 
is appropriate to the officer’s current duties. 

Separation of Duties  

The system in place for the collection and banking of income must include separation of 
duties between the different functions as a key form of internal control. This means that 
a single person should not be responsible for all the activities related to the collection 
and banking of income.  The activities should be carried out by different people. This is 
to help prevent fraud. 

To comply with this principle, Managers must ensure that an officer does not carry out 
functions from both Table 1 and Table 2 (below) in any given period. This ensures that, 
for example, an officer does not check that the amount of money they themselves have 
collected equals the money that they have banked. 

Page 192



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 44 

Table 1 

Function Examples 

Identifying charges or 
taking a booking 

Telling a customer the cost of a particular service, e.g. removing 
a wasp’s nest. 

Booking an appointment for removal of a wasp nest. 

Billing Sending an invoice (if appropriate to do so). 

Collection and receipt 
of income 

Collecting the payment, irrespective of the method of payment 
(i.e. cash/ credit card) for removing the nest and giving the 
customer a receipt for the payment. 

Receipts might be a ‘till receipt’ or handwritten one from a pre-
printed receipt book. 

Table 2 

When money needs to be transferred between members of staff, this must be evidenced 
by the recorded signature of the officer receiving the money. 

Paying Fees and Charges 

All systems and processes related to customer payments must comply with all relevant 
legal and security requirements, e.g. the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard 
(PCI DSS), which is a set of guidelines designed to help keep customer’s payment card 
data secure. 

Non-invoiced 
income  

Wherever possible, customers should be asked to pay for services up-
front or at the time they receive the service they are paying for. 

Allowing customers to pay on credit, e.g. by issuing an invoice, should 
be avoided as often as possible. This reduces both the potential for 
invoices not being paid by customers and the administration costs to 
the Council. 

The Council is legally required to provide a tax invoice, if a customer 
asks for one. 

Function Examples 

Reconciling receipts to 
income 

Adding up the payments received, and all the receipts issued and 
then making sure they come to the same amount. 

Banking income Doing the Cash Management lodgement journals so the income 
appears on the finance system as being in the bank. This also 
puts it into the correct Business Unit. 

Arranging for cash to be physically put into the Council’s Bank 
Account. This may be done via the cash collection service – 
currently provided by LOOMIS. 

Monitoring income 
received, banked and 
outstanding 

Checking money that has been banked equals the amount that 
is on the receipts. 

Monthly monitoring of outstanding debts. 

Page 193



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 45 

Any requests received should be referred to the Tax Team within 
Finance & Commercial Services. 

Invoiced 
Income 

The minimum value for a sundry debt invoice is £25.  If a Council 
service area wishes to raise an invoice for lower than this amount, they 
will need to obtain the approval of the Head of Revenues & Benefits, 
or authorised officer. 

All sundry debt accounts must be raised on the Accounts Receivable 
section of the finance system unless exceptions have been agreed 
with the Head of Revenues & Benefits, or authorised officer. 

Invoices should be issued within 10 working days of the: 

• goods or services being supplied, or 

• month end if there is an on-going service provision. 

In line with standard accounting practice, income will be credited to the 
relevant Business Unit at the point the invoice is raised on the finance 
system - not when the money is received. 

To comply with all relevant HMRC regulations, the date of the invoice 
must be within 60 days of the actual date that the goods or services 
were supplied. If you cannot meet this timescale, you must contact the 
Council’s Tax Manager for advice. 

The information on the Sundry Debt invoice must be correct, complete 
and supported by all necessary and relevant evidence to show that the 
Council is actually owed the income.  If debt recovery action needs to 
be taken, including Court proceedings, this evidence will be required. 

Officers raising invoices are also responsible for ensuring that the 
correct amount of VAT is applied. If an officer is not sure what the 
correct VAT treatment is, they should contact the Tax Team. 

To ensure that invoices are raised correctly, they must only be raised 
by officers who have had appropriate training. 

Standard Payment Methods 

Only the payment methods outlined in the tables below can be used by all Services and 
partner organisations. These are the payment methods which have been approved by 
the Head of Revenues & Benefits. 

Not all methods are relevant to every Council service area or customer group, but they 
are all the options the Council will support. 

Debit/Credit 
cards 
(including the 
payment of 
transaction 
fees) 

 

The Council will accept all major debit and credit cards, except 
American Express, Diners Club, JCB and Solo. 

Credit cards may be used for both non-commercial debts (such as 
Business Rates and rent arrears) and commercial debts (such as 
hire of sporting facilities and pest control). 

Card transaction fees will be funded centrally from within Finance & 
Commercial Services, subject to annual reviews of costs.  They may 
also be recharged to the Housing Revenue Account. 

Page 194



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 46 

Direct Debits Direct debits must only be used to collect payment: 

• For invoices that are raised on a regular basis (e.g. monthly rental 
agreements). 

• Where an arrangement to pay an invoice in instalments has been 
agreed by the Head of Revenues & Benefits, or authorised officer. 

Direct debits should not be used where the annual value to be 
collected is less than £100. This amount may be changed at any time 
by the Head of Revenues & Benefits. 

If a customer’s Direct Debit fails twice in a 12-month period then the 
option to pay by Direct Debit must be withdrawn from that customer 
and may only be reinstated with the agreement of the Head of 
Revenues & Benefits, or authorised officer. 

Under the Direct Debit Guarantee scheme, the Council must give 
customers at least 10 working days’ notice if the amount that is due 
to be collected will change. 

If the amount changes on a regular basis, such as Home Support, an 
invoice must be issued. This is for information purposes only and the 
customer does not need to pay the invoice separately to their Direct 
Debit. 

Cash The option of cash payments is considered on a case-by-case basis. 

Cash can be used to pay bills at Post Offices and PayPoint outlets 
subject to maximum values of £1000 and £200 respectively. 

Where there are significant cash payments, i.e. £1,000 or more in 
cash, or up to £2,500 in linked transactions, officers should check the 
identity of the client as per the Council’s Anti-Money Laundering 
Policy. 

Payments in cash must not be accepted by employees of the Council 
or any of its agents where the amount is over the current limit of 
£2,500.  This limit is set by the Council’s MLRO. 

Administration 
Costs 

If there are any administrative costs associated with implementing a 
particular payment method, this will be funded by the Service 
requesting the method. 

Expected 
income over 
£50,000 

 

Where amounts of £50,000 or over is expected, e.g. completion of 
property purchases, this must be reported to the Treasury Team. 

Knowing that a large receipt is due will help the Treasury Team to 
manage the Council’s cash flow, which may well reduce the need for 
short term loans to cover Council expenditure. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 195



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 47 

Payment Channels  

The following tables outline the payment methods and payment channels for both 
invoiced and non-invoiced income: 

Invoice/ Not 
Invoiced 

Payment Method Payment Channel 

Invoice/ Not 
Invoiced   

Credit or debit card online via the Council 
website. 

On-line - Customer self-
service 

Invoiced Credit or debit card using an automated 
telephone service. 

Telephone - Customer 
self-service 

Invoice/ Not 
Invoiced   

Credit or debit card over the phone where a 
member of staff transfers the customer to 
Call Secure so they can enter the payment 
details using touch-tone functionality. 

Telephone - Customer 
assisted service 

Invoice/ Not 
Invoiced   

Credit or debit card using chip-and-pin 
machine (either mobile or at a Council/ 
partner office). 

Face to face - Customer 
assisted service 

Invoiced Cash at a Post Office; or PayPoint up to a 
certain value. 

Face to face - Customer 
assisted service 

Invoiced Cheques and debit card at a Post Office up 
to a certain value. 

Face to face - Customer 
assisted service 

Invoiced Direct Debit – within the parameters set by 
the Head of Revenues & Benefits. 

Face to face - Customer 
assisted service 

Invoiced BACS/ CHAPS – within the parameters set 
by the Head of Revenues & Benefits. 

Face to face - Customer 
assisted service 

Credit Notes and Refunds 

The following section outlines the use of credit notes and refunds on invoiced income. 

Credit notes 
are used to 
correct an 
invoice that 
has been 
raised 
incorrectly 

Credit notes are issued to customers to correct an invoice that has 
been incorrectly raised. However, credit notes represent a control risk 
and as such must be appropriately authorised. 

Credit notes must be authorised by the manager responsible for the 
corresponding budget. 

Customers can use credit notes to pay future invoices, but they can 
also request a refund if they have already paid an incorrect invoice, or 
paid money into a Council bank account in error. 

Refunds may only be actioned by the Head of Revenues & Benefits, 
or authorised officer. 

Where a refund is for a significant amount, i.e. £1,000 or more, officers 
should check the identity of the client in line with the Council’s Anti-
Money Laundering Policy, fees and interest charges. 

Page 196



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 48 

Banking of Collected Income 

The following section outlines arrangement for receipting, storing and banking collected 
income. 

All income 
must be 
receipted and 
banked 
promptly 

All income received by the Council must be receipted and paid into the 
appropriate bank account as soon as possible following the 
procedures approved by the Head of Accounting for the banking of 
income. 

Income must be paid into the bank account in full.  Third party and 
personal cheques must not be cashed from monies held on behalf of 
the Council. 

Collected 
income must 
be stored 
safely and 
adequately 
insured 

 

Members of the Senior Management Team are responsible for 
ensuring that all income collected prior to banking is kept in a safe 
location and that adequate insurance cover has been arranged. 

The amount of cash which a Service can keep in a safe overnight will 
depend on the insurance arrangements. If the amount needed to be 
stored is higher than the agreed limit, then arrangements must be 
made to bank the income as soon as possible. 

Reconciliation 
of receipts to 
banked income 
should be 
performed at 
least monthly 

Reconciliation of receipts to banked income should be performed at 
least monthly. The higher the value and quantity of the receipts, the 
more often reconciliations should be performed. 

Staff responsible for reconciliation should not be involved in day-to-
day banking or receipting procedures.  There needs to be a clear 
separation of duties. 

Debt Recovery 

The Council will do everything in its power to recover money owed to it.  The following 
sections outline the recovery process and debt management arrangements. 

Recovery 
Process 

The Council’s standard payment terms and conditions state sundry 
debts should be paid immediately and in full, unless there is a 
contract in place to agree alternative payment terms, or unless the 
debt is payable by instalments. 

The Council will do everything within its power, up to and including 
Court action, to recover money owed to it.  The costs of recovering 
sundry debts, including court fees, will be funded by the relevant 
Business Unit which is owed the debt. 

Arrangements 
to Pay 

If a customer is unable to pay the full amount of a sundry debt invoice 
immediately, arrangements can be negotiated to clear the debt in the 
shortest possible amount of time. 

These arrangements can be negotiated by the ICAM Team on behalf 
of the Business Unit Manager, or directly by the Manager. 

If the Business Unit Manager chooses to negotiate arrangements 
themselves, they must tell the ICAM Team so that the arrangement 
can be documented and monitored. 

Page 197



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 49 

The Head of Revenues & Benefits, or authorised officer, must agree 
payment arrangements that last longer than 12 months. 

If the customer does not follow the arrangement to pay, then debt 
recovery action will be commenced or continued. 

Interest on late 
payment of 
debt 

Interest on late payment of debt by commercial customers will be 
applicable where agreed by the Head of Revenues & Benefits. 

Disputed 
Debts 

A ‘dispute’ is an issue that must be resolved before a customer pays 
an outstanding sundry debt. 

When a debt is put into dispute, debt recovery action is suspended 
to allow time for the issue to be resolved. 

The relevant Business Unit Manager is responsible for resolving the 
dispute and they must do so within 28 days. 

Where the Business Unit Managers thinks that a longer timescale is 
required to resolve the dispute, they must contact the ICAM Team to 
request an extension. 

The request must be supported by details about the customer, what 
the dispute is about, and the extra time required. 

If a request to extend a dispute beyond 28 days has not been 
received, the appropriate debt recovery action will be re-instated, or 
where appropriate the debt will be written off. 

Legal action 

 

Legal action will only be used as the last resort in the recovery 
process, and the final decision to act will be made by the ICAM Team 
Finance Manager. 

Legal action will only be taken if: 

• The full end to end legal enforcement process can be used (e.g. 
County Court bailiffs, High Court Enforcement action, etc.). 

• The total balance of the debt is greater than £500.  The ICAM 
Team Finance Manager can agree to lower this balance. 

• The debt is less than 12 months old, meaning the invoice date is 
less than 12 months ago.  This deadline may be extended in 
exceptional circumstances by the ICAM Team Finance Manager. 

Bad and Doubtful Debt Provisions 

When an invoice is raised, the Business Unit is immediately credited with the income, but 
if the debt is not paid within 60 days, the Business Unit Manager should not rely on that 
income to cover expenditure. 

Bad and 
doubtful debt 
provision  

Unless agreed otherwise by the CFO, if a debt is not paid by day 60 
after the invoice date, the Business Unit will be debited to make full 
provision for the debt not being paid. 

This means that money is set aside in the Council’s accounts to cover 
the possibility of the debt not being paid. 

Page 198



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 50 

Exceptions to this can only be approved by the Head of Revenues & 
Benefits.  A list of the agreed exceptions is kept by the ICAM Team. 

At the year-end, a bad debt provision will be estimated based on 
historic trends in debts not being recovered. 

Creating a provision for bad or doubtful debt does not mean that 
recovery action will stop. The Council will continue to take recovery 
action after the provision is made. 

Payments 
received after 
60 days  

 

Unless agreed otherwise by the CFO, if an outstanding debt is paid 
after day 60 and before day 91 the Business Unit will be credited with 
50% of the income. The remaining 50% will be diverted to help 
balance the Council’s overall budget. 

If the debt is paid after day 90, 100% of the income will be diverted 
to help balance the Council’s overall budget and the Business Unit 
will not receive any income. 

Bad Debt Write-offs 

If recovery action is unsuccessful, the Council may write-off debts or register the debt as 
a local land charge.  The following section explains these processes. 

Write-off of 
bad debts  

Bad debt write-offs will usually be done after 12 months have passed 
since the invoice date and all debt recovery procedures have been 
attempted, unless: 

• The debt is covered by an on-going payment arrangement. 

• There is on-going action, up to and including Court action, to 
recover the debt. 

• The debt has been recorded on the Local Land Charges Register. 

Write-offs must be proposed by the member of the Senior 
Management Team responsible the Directorate which holds the debt.  
A list of proposed write offs will be passed to the Head of Revenues & 
Benefits to approve. 

The ICAM Team, on behalf of the Head of Revenues & Benefits, will 
then update Integra to complete the write off. 

If a debt is to be written off a full provision must have been created. 

The Head of Accounting will report debts, and changes in the bad debt 
provision, to the Audit & Standards Committee as part of the annual 
accounts process. 

Local Land 
Charges 

 

One option for recovering a debt is to register the debt as a local land 
charge. 

By law, the Council must keep and regularly update a register of all 
the local land charges they have created, e.g. road and other financial 
charges, home improvement grants, tree preservation orders, notices 
of restriction, etc., that will either secure the payment of a sum of 
money or limit the use of the said property. 

This is known as the Local Land Charges Register. 

Page 199



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 51 

Anybody who is thinking of purchasing a piece of land or property can 
then search the register and establish if there are any charges. 

When Services secure a Sundry Debt account in the Local Land 
Charge Register, the following will apply: 

• Sundry Debt accounts recorded in the Land Charge Register will 
be managed using the Council’s standard debt recovery process 
and taking a bad debt provision. 

• The Business Unit Manager who is responsible for any debt that 
is listed in the Land Register must ensure that the debt is still valid 
and collectible on an annual basis. 

• Debts covered by a Land Charge that remain outstanding after 6 
years will be reviewed by the Head of Revenues & Benefits to 
determine whether the debt should be written off. 

The above requirements relate specifically to sundry debt invoices, 
and do not apply to any debts in the Local Land Registry manually 
raised outside of the Finance System. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 200



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 52 

8. Purchasing  

Roles and Responsibilities 

Budget managers and all officers involved in the P2P process have the following specific 
roles and responsibilities: 

Budget 
Managers 

 

Ensuring that the Council is obtaining value for money, and that all 
expenditure complies with the Council’s Contracts Standing Orders. 

Using in–house and existing contracted providers wherever possible. 
If not possible, advice must be sought from Finance & Commercial 
Services on choosing an alternative supplier. 

Complying with the relevant procurement processes, with all steps 
documented and evidenced. 

Declaring any relationships with existing or potential Council 
contractors prior to obtaining quotations or awarding of contracts. 

All Officers 
involved in 
P2P process 

 

Referring to the Council’s Contracts Standing Orders for details of 
procurement procedures, with special attention to the need to use in–
house and existing contracted providers. 

Formally declaring any relationships with existing or potential Council 
contractors, prior to obtaining quotations, or the awarding of 
contracts. (Failure to do so may be punishable as a criminal offence) 

Withdrawing from any P2P process when either they themselves, a 
member of their family or one of their close associates are involved 
directly or indirectly with the transaction. 

Ordering and Authorisation of Expenditure 

This section covers the principles of procurement in the Council. These are standard 
across the Council and must be complied with unless written exception has been 
approved by the Director of Finance & Commercial Services. 

General 
Procurement 
Principles  

All orders for goods or services are to be placed on the Council’s 
Finance system.  The controls, approval routes and processes 
detailed in these Financial Regulations will apply. 

All procurement must comply with Contracts Standing Orders and 
the Constitution.  Any breaches are immediately reported to the 
Director of Finance & Commercial Services.  

Suppliers of the Council must have the necessary HMRC certification 
enabling them to be paid through the Council’s payments system. 

Contractors who do not comply with these conditions, or those who 
do not provide the necessary evidence, should be set up as 
temporary employees and paid through payroll. 

Ordering of 
Goods and 
Services 

 

A Purchase Order is required for all purchases and must be fully 
approved before requesting the supply of goods and services. 

Exceptions to this would be for the payment of those deemed as 
‘employed’ by the HMRC Employment Status Enquiry Tool. 

Page 201



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 53 

Payment of these has to be made via Payroll in order to account for 
the correct taxation, recurring payments, ‘multiple’ and ‘one-off’ 
payments. 

Verbal orders should take place only in exceptional circumstances 
and should be followed immediately by a fully authorised order. 
Officers making verbal orders will be asked to support their decision 
by the Head of Accounting. 

Orders must fully detail the goods and services to be supplied and 
the budget from which the expenditure is to be met.  Final costs or 
an estimate of the costs (net of VAT) should also be provided in the 
order. 

Orders can only be raised for goods and services provided to the 
Council or for official Council business. Individuals must not raise 
official orders for their own private use. 

Variations to an order can only be made if properly authorised, 
issued orders cannot be verbally amended. 

Procurement 
Cards 

A small number of credit and procurement cards are available. The 
use of credit/ procurement cards is intended to complement, rather 
than replace, the Purchase Order procedure, and should only be 
used when the use of a Purchase Order is not possible. 

Members of the Senior Management Team must promptly inform the 
Head of Accounting, if action must be taken to cancel stolen or lost 
cards, or those issued to employees who have resigned from the 
Council. 

Authorisation 
of Expenditure 

 

Before authorising an order, approvers must ensure that the 
decision to spend the money has been taken in line with the 
Constitution. 

These Officers must also ensure that the Council’s procurement 
rules and Contracts Standing Orders have been complied with 
before approving. 

Approvers should be satisfied that: 

• The Order represents a legitimate cost to the Council. 

• The required checks have been evidenced and necessary 
documentation attached. 

• Sufficient budgetary provision exists to cover the payment. 

• Expenditure will be paid through the correct business unit. 

An 
Authorisation 
Matrix will be 
held in the 
Finance 
System 

A list will be held in the finance system containing the officers 
authorised to approve Purchase Orders, Recurring Payments, 
Foreign Payments and Individuals paid via payroll. 

Non-order payments, e.g. multiple, one-off, BACS, CHAPS 
payments, direct creditors payments or Interfaces must only be used 
in exceptional circumstances and must only be approved by the 
Head of Accounting, in consultation with the FDA. 

Page 202



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 54 

This matrix will apply to all orders including those connected to the 
spending of grant funding, payments made by the Treasury Team, 
contract payments and partnership arrangements. 

A report approving a grant payment or awarding a contract will not 
over-ride this authorisation hierarchy. 

This hierarchy, in conjunction with approval from the Head of 
Accounting and assurance from the FDA, will apply to the 
authorisation of payments that do not require a Purchase Order. 

Authorisation Matrix 

All Purchase Orders must be approved in line with the Council’s authorisation hierarchy 
levels, as set by the CFO and shown below: 

Approver 

Level 

From Order 

Amount 

To Order 

Amount 
Typical approver role 

N/A £0.01 £499.99 No further financial approval required 

Level 1 £500.00 £2,499.99 Business Unit Manager 

Level 2 £2,500.00 £24,999.99 Head of Service / Assistant Director 

Level 3 
£25,000.00  
and above 

Director / Member of Senior 

Management Team / Chief Executive 

Delivery of Goods and Services 

The following section details arrangements for checking and receipting goods and 
services. 

Goods 
receipting 

When goods/services are delivered, they should be checked against 
the following to ensure the delivery is correct: 

• Cost. 

• Quantity. 

• Quality. 

• Fitness for purpose. 

Delivery notes must be retained in accordance with the Financial 
Documents Retention Schedule (appended to these Financial 
Regulations). Where possible, the reference from these documents 
should also be recorded in the Finance system. 

Officers are required to enter a receipt (Goods Received Note) on 
the Council’s finance system to confirm delivery of the goods or 
services. 

 

 
Page 203



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 55 

Payments to Suppliers 

The table below details the arrangements for paying supplier invoices together with the 
standard payment terms of the Council. 

Supplier 
invoices 

 

Suppliers will be expected to provide an electronic invoice. These 
should be sent directly to the accounts payable processing facility, as 
detailed on the Council’s Purchase Order. 

Where paper invoices are unavoidable these should be sent directly 
to this same address for prompt processing. On no account should 
they be sent to the service requesting the supply. 

Failure to adhere to this rule may result in delays to the payment 
process. Paper invoices will be scanned and attached to the invoice 
records. 

Payments No payment will be made unless it is supported by an authorised 
Purchase Order and Goods Received Note, to acknowledge the 
receipt of goods and services. 

Exceptions to this are Recurring, Multiple, One-Off, Individuals paid 
via Payroll, Foreign Payments and purchases made using a Credit or 
a Procurement Card. 

Where the details on the supplier invoice, the Goods Received Note 
and the Purchase Order are the same, the matching process will clear 
the invoice for payment.  This is referred to as a 3-way matching 
process. 

Where the details are not the same, the order raiser should liaise with 
the supplier to resolve the mismatch. 

Standard 
payment 
terms 

The Council’s standard payment terms are to make payment within 30 
calendar days of the invoice date. 

Agreed exceptions are made in the case of non-trade suppliers, trade 
suppliers participating in the early payment discount scheme and 
small local providers (based in Sheffield), who are all paid 
immediately. 

Any other variation to the standard payment terms must be agreed by 
the Head of Procurement & Supply Chain, either as part of the letting 
of a contract or by ad-hoc exception to the standard terms. 

Where a supplier makes a request for payment in advance, advice 
must be sought from the Head of Procurement & Supply Chain. 

 Back to Contents page 

Page 204



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 56 

9. Internal Charges  

This section explains what internal charges are, and when they will be used. 

Internal charges 
are used to 
recharge costs 
between services/ 
Directorates 

The Council’s internal charging system covers: 

• Specific ordering and the recharges for these. 

• Agreed Annual Service Level Agreements and the recharges 
for these. 

• Overhead apportionment. 

All parties must 
be clear that the 
charging system 
exists 

A key requirement of the internal charging system is that both 
customers and suppliers are clear that the system is in operation 
and that they adhere to the relevant procedural guidance. 

This includes the need for an internal order and the use of 
specified financial codes. 

Back to Contents page 

10. Payroll, Expenses and Petty Cash Floats 

This section details arrangements for payments to all employees and the use of petty 
cash. 

Payroll Payments to all employees and former employees of the Council 
must only be made under arrangements approved and controlled 
by the Director of HR and Employee Engagement and approved by 
the Head of Accounting.   This includes, salaries, wages, pensions, 
expenses, and any other payments. 

Amendments to the payroll, e.g. for absences and variations to pay, 
is limited to those Officers authorised to do so. 

Payment of fees to individuals who are not Council employees must 
be made through the P2P system, in accordance with HMRC 
requirements and relevant procedures laid down by the CFO 

All Payment and personnel records must be held securely. 

Expenses Members and officers are only entitled to incidental, subsistence 
and travel expenses if these are incurred legitimately in performing 
Council duties. 

Claims must be made in line with relevant Council policies including 
the requirement to upload receipts to the iTrent (Payroll/HR) 
system. All such payments will be made through the payroll system 
and are paid in line with the agreed policy and rates. 

Payments of expenses to individuals who are not Council 
employees must be made through the P2P system, following the 
procedures set out by the CFO. 

Any Expense incurred by agency staff is included in the Agency 
charge and paid through the P2P system. 

Page 205



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 57 

Petty Cash – 
payments from 
a float and 
reimbursements 

The use of money from petty cash floats must be limited to non-
payroll related expenditure up to a maximum of £25, which does not 
justify an order being raised through the P2P system. 

Petty cash should not be used for the payment of regular suppliers 
other than in exceptional circumstances, with prior approval from 
Heads of Service. 

Wherever possible purchases should be made in advance and, if 
applicable, VAT receipts provided before the petty cash is issued. 

At the manager’s discretion, a maximum of £5 employee-related 
expenses may be paid from a petty cash float where an employee 
has been asked to travel to meet a service need and has no way of 
funding this. 

The following rules apply to the use of petty cash floats: 

• Personal or third-party cheques must not be cashed. 

• Money cannot be borrowed from petty cash floats. 

• Private monies must not be used to supplement the floats. 

Cash income from other sources must not be used to reimburse 
petty cash unless specific arrangements are in place. 

Officers who have been assigned responsibility for a float must 
follow the administration procedures of petty cash floats as laid 
down by the Head of Accounting. 

Back to Contents page 

11. Bank Accounts and Credit Cards  

The following sections details arrangements for opening and closing bank accounts, 
banking transactions, credit cards and reconciliations.  On a day-to-day basis these 
responsibilities are carried out by the Treasury Team. 

Bank Accounts Bank accounts can only be opened or closed in the name of 
Sheffield City Council with the authority of the Head of Accounting.  
This includes associated bank accounts which the Council does not 
directly control, such as joint arrangements. 

The Head of Accounting is responsible for all negotiations of 
banking terms with the Council’s Bankers and is approved to 
authorise the execution of Amendment Agreements when required. 

All stand-alone systems which create payments and do not link with 
the financial ledgers must have a separate bank account and 
subsequent local reconciliation responsibilities. 

The Payroll interfaces and systems which create BACS files or print 
cheques are currently the stand-alone systems which have these 
additional requirements. 

Banking 
transactions 

The authorised signatories list for banking transactions is developed 
and approved by the Head of Accounting. 

Page 206



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 58 

Authorised signatories will normally be senior Finance officers, as 
per the Financial Protocol. 

Credit/ 
Procurement 
cards 

Credit cards, charge cards and other payment cards held in the 
Council’s name are opened, closed and managed by the Head of 
Accounting. 

Reconciliations Bank reconciliations and reconciliations of credit cards, etc. are 
completed on at least a monthly basis by an officer who is not 
responsible for the processing of transactions through the bank 
accounts. 

The Head of Accounting, or authorised officer, is responsible for 
ensuring that reconciliations, together with supporting 
documentation, are reviewed and appropriately certified. 

Back to Contents page 

12. Taxation 

The following section outlines the arrangements for managing the impact of VAT. 

Overall aim to 
maximise VAT 
recovery and 
minimise 
unrecoverable 
VAT incurred 

The overall aim of SCC in relation to taxation is to maximise VAT 
recovery where this is consistent with effective delivery of the service, 
while minimising the level of irrecoverable VAT being incurred. 

In practice this means: 

• Ensuring that VAT is properly accounted for on all transactions 
entered by the Council. 

• Keeping VAT records with a proper allocation of costs to exempt 
and other activities. 

• Complying with all VAT legislation and regulations. 

• Monitoring and planning for any changes in VAT legislation or 
regulations. 

The Tax Team An appropriately skilled team has been established to manage the 
Council’s VAT responsibilities. This Team will receive all training 
necessary to provide appropriate service delivery and challenge. 

The Tax Team prepare and submit VAT Returns to HMRC.  Such 
returns are submitted at times to maximise the cash flow benefit to the 
Council, but no later than the deadlines agreed with HMRC. 

Where required appropriate external advice is sought where the tax 
implications of a project are sufficiently complex. 

Tax 
avoidance 

SCC will not knowingly and actively co-operate with third-party 
schemes designed purely for tax avoidance purposes. 

Penalties and 
charges 

Directorate budgets will bear the financial impact of any penalties or 
other charges imposed by HMRC for transactions entered into by that 
Directorate. 

Back to Contents page Page 207



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 59 

13. Stores, Stock, Assets and Security 

This section details the controls required to effectively manage stores, stock and assets. 

Stores and 
Stock 

Access to stores is controlled and measures are in place to ensure 
that stocks and assets are only used on Council business. 

Appropriate records must be maintained for adding new stock to 
stores and for controlling the issue of items. 

The record of stock levels for each item is physically checked at a 
frequency agreed by members of the Senior Management Team, 
which reflects factors such as stock values, usage, etc. 

At the end of each financial year a certificate of the stock value held 
by each Directorate, as well as information required for the 
accounting, costing and financial records. 

This should be provided to the Head of Accounting. 

Assets and 
Security 

An inventory of all assets over £100 in value, together with all 
attractive and portable items below this figure is maintained within 
each Directorate.  The inventory will include the make, model, serial 
number and purchase value of each item. 

Items should be recorded promptly in the inventory, at the point of 
purchase. 

A physical check of assets is undertaken on an annual basis.  This 
should be completed by an officer not involved in control of the 
inventory. 

The Head of Service will be informed of obsolete or missing items for 
approval to write-off.  Following formal, documented approval, the 
inventory records should be amended accordingly. 

A register of assets removed from Council premises for use on official 
Council business is maintained by each Directorate. This includes 
assets such as laptops, mobile phones and RAS cards issued to 
officers. 

Assets should not be used other than for official Council purposes or 
in line with arrangements sanctioned by Council, a member of the 
Senior Management Team or Director. 

All information assets such as non-public paper records, IT 
equipment used to access information and the computer network, 
must be identified, recorded and have an appointed asset owner. 

All information assets must always be appropriately protected.  
Further details can be found in the Council’s Information Governance 
and Security Policy. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 208



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 60 

14. Retention of Records 

The following section details requirements for retaining records. 

Record 
retention 

All records must be managed in line with the Council’s Document and 
Records Management Policy.   

Records must be retained for a period that meets the requirements of 
HMRC, the Council’s External Auditors and any other appropriate 
Body or Funder.  

The Financial Records Retention Schedule, provides guidance on 
appropriate retention schedules (Appendix A). 

Back to Contents page 

15. Financial Systems 

The following section outlines the key function of the finance system and how it is 
controlled. 

Integra The Council’s finance system (Integra) is the source of accounting and 
financial information to produce the Annual Financial Accounts. 

Any Directorate systems that feed into Integra must have robust 
financial controls in place for ensuring both the accuracy and security 
of the data. 

Access to all Council’s systems must be controlled. 

Data on these systems, whether held as hard copy or in electronic 
format, must be retained in accordance with domestic data protection 
legislation. The Organisational Strategy, Performance and Delivery 
Team should be consulted for advice and guidance on data protection 
and information management issues. 

Prior to the purchase and implementation of any new computerised 
financial systems, including any income collection systems, the CFO 
and the ICT and Digital Innovation Team must be consulted. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 209



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 61 

16. Accounting 

The following section details arrangements for producing the Council’s Accounts as well 
as accounting requirements throughout the year and at year-end. 

Statement of 
Accounts  

The Council’s Accounts are produced annually for approval by the Audit 
& Standards Committee. 

The Accounts must present a true and fair view of the financial position 
and transactions for that financial year and must be prepared in 
accordance with statutory requirements and all applicable professional 
Codes of Practice. 

The Accounts will be prepared on an accruals basis. 

The Accounts will be prepared on a prudent basis with income only 
included if it is likely to be received.  Proper allowance should be made 
for known liabilities and losses. 

Accounting 
during the 
Financial 
Year 

 

All Accounts and Accounting Systems must be properly maintained 
throughout the year to provide timely and accurate information. 

All financial transactions must be adequately supported and referenced 
back to original documents and working papers, which started the 
transaction. 

Control Accounts, Holding and Suspense Accounts must be reconciled 
at least monthly. Reconciliations must be produced and authorised by 
Officers not directly responsible for the transactions in the accounts. 

Year-end 
requirements 

Each financial year end the Head of Accounting will produce a timetable 
and guidance to produce the Final Accounts. 

All balances on Control Accounts, e.g. Account Receivables Control, 
must be explained.  Balances may only be carried forward into the next 
year if there is a reasonable prospect that they will be cleared. 

The Accounts for the year should be “closed” at the end of business on 
31st March and all income received and payments made to that date 
must be accounted for.  The Officers responsible must certify sums held, 
i.e. not banked, at the close of business on 31st March. 

Accruals must be supported by evidence and the Head of Accounting 
will require evidence for material accruals. The process and amounts 
will be included in the year-end guidance issued on behalf of the Head 
of Accounting. 

The Officers responsible for cash floats and other cash accounts must 
balance and certify the amount of cash held at the close of business on 
31st March.  Officers responsible for stocktaking must certify the value 
of stock/ stores at close of business on 31st March. 

Expenditure and income due for the year, but not paid or received by 
31st March must be accounted for.  The Officers responsible must certify 
the transactions concerned. 

Appropriate working papers, records and prime documentation must be 
maintained in support of the above requirements. 

Page 210



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 62 

These will be used to support the Accounts and provide a clear Audit 
trail for the external auditors. 

Back to Contents page 

17. Internal Audit 

This section outlines the role and remit of Internal Audit. 

Internal Audit  A continuous internal audit of all the Council’s financial records and 
operations must be maintained. 

Internal Audit has the authority to access any Council officer and 
information necessary to carry out their duties on behalf of the CFO. 

An annual audit plan is prepared by the Senior Finance Manager 
(Internal Audit) and agreed by the Audit & Standards Committee 
and the CFO. 

The strategy for Internal Audit work is to focus on areas of high-risk 
activity to provide assurance that risk and internal control systems 
are being properly managed by Directors in service areas. 

As part of the audit planning process, members of the Senior 
Management Team are responsible for managing risk and for 
informing Internal Audit of the risks in their area. They are also 
responsible for agreeing and implementing relevant Audit 
recommendations. 

Internal Audit reports on the output of its activity to the Council’s 
Audit & Standards Committee.  The Senior Finance Manager will 
provide an annual audit opinion to assess the adequacy of the risk 
management, governance and internal control framework. 

This opinion supports the Annual Governance Statement. 

Back to Contents page 

18. Companies, Joint Ventures, Partnerships, Joint Committees etc. 

This section details the arrangements where the Council has a controlling or minority 
interest in a Company, Joint Venture, Partnership or Joint Committee. 

Companies, 
Joint Ventures, 
Partnerships 
and Joint 
Committees 

Where the Council has a controlling interest in Companies, Joint 
Ventures, Partnerships, Joint Committees, or is the Lead Authority, 
then these organisations will be required to use the Council’s 
finance system and to follow these Financial Regulations. 

Where the Council is involved as a minority interest in partnership 
arrangements or Joint Committees that use their own finance 
systems, the CFO must agree the arrangements for robust financial 
governance control. 

Page 211



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 63 

The controls in these Financial Regulations will be used as a 
starting point for that agreement. 

No agreement shall be entered into with a Partnership which 
commits the Council to additional expenditure or other financial risk 
without approval as set out in the Constitution. 

The relevant member of the Senior Management Team, in 
conjunction with the CFO will report at least annually to the 
appropriate Policy Committee on the financial affairs of the 
partnership body. 

Back to Contents page 

19. Grant (Gift) Arrangements 

The following sections outlines the control and approvals required for grant (gift) 
arrangements. 

Grant (Gift) 
Arrangements 

Any funds set aside from which to make individual grants must be 
properly approved in line with the Constitution. 

All grant payments to voluntary organisations (or other recipients) 
must be approved in line with the Constitution, these Financial 
Regulations and all other relevant documentation. 

Where a grant payment is withdrawn or reclaimed, members of the 
Senior Management Team are responsible for ensuring that this is 
agreed in line with the Constitution. 

The external relationship with any recipient of grant aid must be 
managed in line with all guidance provided by the Chief Legal 
Officer. 

Any Grant/ Gift arrangements must be made in line with the 
Procurement Guidelines, and all other relevant processes and 
procedures. 

Back to Contents page 

20. Council Supply Agreements 

This section details arrangements for the Council delivering non-statutory services, works 
or supplies to individuals or other organisations and receiving payment for this. 

What is a 
Council Supply 
Agreement? 

A Council Supply Agreement is a contractually binding agreement 
where the Council agrees to provide works, services or supplies to 
a third party in return for payment, either in money or in-kind. 

This does not apply to the delivery of statutory services, or 
instances where the Council receives a grant to fund an activity. 

Members of the Senior Management Team are responsible for 
ensuring that Council Supply Agreements within their area of 

Page 212



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 64 

responsibility are approved in accordance with the requirements of 
the Constitution.  This includes seeking the opinion of the CFO. 

Back to Contents page 

Page 213



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 65 

Appendices:  

A. Financial Records: Recommended Retention Schedule 

(Note that all figures used relate to years, e.g. Current + 6 is Current Year’s records plus 
the previous 6 years documents). 

 

A.1. Accountancy/Financial 

General example of 
type of Record 

Recommended 
Retention 

Action after retention 

Abstract of accounts Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Annual Budget Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Annual statements Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Budgetary control records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Costing records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Estimate working papers Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Financial ledgers Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Grant claim records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Investment records Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Journals Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Leasing Records Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Record re closing ledgers Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

School Fund records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Telephone call records Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

VAT claims Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

VAT records Current + 3 Destroy as confidential records 

Voluntary fund accounts Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

 

A.2. Bank related records 

Type of Record 
Recommended 

Retention 
Action after retention 

Bank pay-in books/slips Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Bank reconciliation Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Bank statements Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Cancelled cheques Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Cheque books and 
counterfoils 

Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Page 214



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 66 

Cheque lists (creditors/ 
payrolls) 

Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Loan records and 
correspondence 

Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Paid cheques Current + 4 Destroy as confidential records 

Returned cheque records Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

 

A.3. Contracts 

Type of Record 
Recommended 

Retention 
Action after retention 

Pre Contract Advice 

The process of calling for 
expressions of interest 

2 years after 
contract let or not 
proceeded with 

Destroy as confidential records 

Specification and Contract Development 

The process involved in 
the development and 
specification of a contract 

Ordinary Contract: 

6 years after the 
terms of contract 
have expired. 

Contracts Under 
Seal: 

12 years after the 
terms of the 
contract have 
expired. 

Destroy as confidential records 

 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Tender Issuing and Return 

The process involved in 
the issuing and return of 
a tender (Opening Notice) 

1 year after start of 
contract 

Destroy as confidential records 

Evaluation of Tender 

Successful tender 
document 

Ordinary Contract: 

6 years after the 
terms of contract 
have expired. 

Contracts Under 
Seal: 

12 years after the 
terms of the 
contract have 
expired. 

Destroy as confidential records 

 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Page 215



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 67 

Unsuccessful tender 
document 

1 year after start of 
contract 

Destroy as confidential records 

Post Tender Negotiation 

The process in 
negotiation of a contract 
after a preferred tender is 
selected 

1 year after the 
terms of contract 
have expired 

Destroy as confidential records 

Awarding of Contract 

The process of awarding 
contract 

Ordinary Contract: 

6 years after the 
terms of contract 
have expired. 

Contracts Under 
Seal: 

12 years after the 
terms of the 
contract have 
expired. 

Destroy as confidential records 

 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Contract Management 

Contract operation and 
monitoring 

2 years after terms 
of the contract have 
expired. 

Destroy as confidential records 

Management and 
amendment of contract 

Ordinary Contract: 

6 years after the 
terms of contract 
have expired. 

Contracts Under 
Seal: 

12 years after the 
terms of the 
contract have 
expired. 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

 

A.4. Creditor records 

Type of Record 
Recommended 

Retention 
Action after retention 

Copy orders Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Credit notes Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Creditor invoices Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Delivery notes Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Page 216



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 68 

Imprest documentation 
(petty cash) 

Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Period payment records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

 

A.5. Income records 

Type of Record 
Recommended 

Retention 
Action after retention 

Cash books Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Correspondence 
(income) 

Current + 2 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Debtor accounts (records 
non-current) 

Current + 2 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Dinner/milk registers Current + 6  Destroy as confidential records 

Income posting slips and 
tabulations 

Current + 2 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Periodic income records Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Receipt books Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Record of receipt books 
issued 

Current + 2 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Registrar’s quarterly 
returns 

Current + 2 

 

Destroy as confidential records 

Sales records Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

 

 

A.6. Insurance records 

Type of Record 
Recommended 

Retention 
Action after retention 

Expired insurance 
contracts 

Current & 
Permanent 
preservation 

Destroy as confidential records 

Insurance claims  Current + 7 from 
date of closure or 
year in which 
claimant reaches 
21 (paper) 

Up to 60 years 
(electronic) 

Destroy as confidential records 

Page 217



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 69 

Insurance policy 
documentation 

Current & 
permanent  

Destroy as confidential records 

Insurance register Current & 
permanent  

Destroy as confidential records 

 

A.7. Miscellaneous records 

Type of Record 
Recommended 

Retention 
Action after retention 

Capital works tabulations Current + 2  Destroy as confidential records 

Car leasing and mileage 
records 

Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Car Loans Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Computer system 
documentation 

Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Inland Revenue docs Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Internal requisitions Current + 1 Destroy as confidential records 

Inventory records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Land searches Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Member allowance 
(statutory registers) 

Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Minutes Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Postal remittance 
registers 

Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Road fund licence 
records  

Current + 2  Destroy as confidential records 

School meal records Current + 2  Destroy as confidential records 

Small holdings records Current + 2  Destroy as confidential records 

Stock lists Current + 2  Destroy as confidential records 

Travel claims Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Vehicle logs Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

 

A.8. Payroll Records 

Type of Record 
Recommended 

Retention 
Action after retention 

BACS amendments and 
output 

Current + 3 Destroy as confidential records 

Page 218



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 

Part 4 – Financial Procedure Rules (Financial Regulations)   
 
 

 70 

Copy payslips Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Correspondence Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Payroll adjustment 
documentation 

Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Part – time employees’ 
claim forms 

Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

SSP records Current + 4 Destroy as confidential records 

SSP variations Current + 3 Destroy as confidential records 

Staff transfer records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Starters forms Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Tax and NI records Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Tax code notifications Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Timesheets and Pay 
Returns  

Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Union documentation Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Personnel files  Current + 2 Destroy as confidential records 

Staff contracts  Current + 6 Destroy as confidential records 

Unsuccessful applications Current + 1 Destroy as confidential records 

Back to Contents page 

 

Page 219



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 1 of 9 

Appendix 12 
 
OFFICER EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURE RULES 
 
1.  Officers 

 

a) For the purposes of Section 4 of the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989 the Head of Paid Service shall be the Chief 

Executive. 

 

b) For the purposes of Section 5 of the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989 the Monitoring Officer shall be the Director of 

Legal and Governance General Counsel. 

 

c) For the purposes of Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 

the Officer with responsibility for the administration of the financial 

affairs of the Council, the ‘Chief Finance Officer’, shall be the 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services. 

 

d) Chief Officer for the purpose of these Officer Employment 

Procedure Rules means the Head of Paid Service, Chief Finance 

Officer, any Executive Strategic Director, any Officer who reports 

directly to the Chief Executive, or any Statutory Chief Officer as 

defined in section 2 (6) (a), (c) or (d) of the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989: 

 

• Director of Children’s Services appointed under section 18 of the 

Children Act 2004, who shall be the Strategic Director of 

Children’s Services 

 

• Director of Adult Social Services appointed under section 6 of 

the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970, who shall be the 

Director of Adults Health and Social Care and Wellbeing 

 

• Director of Public Health appointed under section 73A National 

Health Service Act 2006 (local authorities and NHS), who shall 

be the Strategic Director of Public Health and Commissioning 

and any Officer who reports directly to any of the Officers listed 
above for all or most of their duties, but not any person whose 
duties are solely secretarial or clerical. 

 

Page 220



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 2 of 9 

 
 
 
 

2.  Recruitment and Appointment 

 

2.1 Where the Council recruits officers, the Council will: 

(a) Draw up a job description, person and health specification which 
includes: 

 
(i) The duties of the officer concerned; 

(ii) Any skills, knowledge and attainments to be sought in the 

person to be appointed; and 

(iii) The identification of any job duties which have a potential to 

cause harm to the employee’s health. 

 

(b) Make arrangements for the post to be advertised in such a way as 
is likely to bring it to the attention of persons who are qualified to 
apply for it; 

 
(c) Make arrangements for a copy of the statement mentioned in 

paragraph (a) to be sent to any person on request; and 
 

(d) Where no qualified person has applied, the Council shall review 
(a) and (b) above and where required shall make further 
arrangements for advertisement. 

 

2.2 Declarations 

 

(a) The Council will draw up a statement requiring any candidate for 

appointment as an officer to state in writing whether they are the 

parent, grandparent, partner, child, stepchild, adopted child, 

grandchild, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew or niece of an 

existing Councillor or officer of the Council, or of the partner of 

such persons. 

 

(b) No candidate so related to a Councillor or an officer will be 

appointed without the authority of the relevant Chief Officer or an 

officer nominated by him/her. 

 

2.3 Seeking support for appointment 

 

Page 221



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 3 of 9 

(a) The Council will disqualify any applicant who directly or indirectly 

seeks the support of any Councillor for any appointment with the 

Council. The content of this paragraph will be included in any 

recruitment information.  No Councillor will seek support for any 

person for any appointment with the Council; and 

 

(b) Councillors may provide a reference for a candidate if they are not 

directly involved in the recruitment process.  However, any 

attempt by a Councillor to influence the process in the favour of 

the applicant will result in the applicant’s disqualification. 

 

2.4 Where a post has been advertised, the Council shall: 

 

(a) Interview all qualified applicants for the post, or 

 

(b) Select a shortlist of such qualified applicants and interview those 

included on the shortlist. 

 

2.5 Where the Council is seeking to reduce the number of employees, the 

Council may seek to mitigate redundancy through internal recruitment 

processes. 

 

3.  Recruitment of Head of Paid Service and Chief Officers 

 

3.1 Where the Council proposes to appoint a Chief Officer, and it is not 

proposed that the appointment be made exclusively from among the 

Council’s existing officers, the Council will follow Procedure Rule 2 

above. 

 

4. Appointment of Head of Paid Service 

 

4.1 The Full Council will approve the appointment of the Head of Paid 

Service following the recommendation of such an appointment by the 

Council’s Senior Officer Employment Committee or a sub-committee 

thereof (“the Committee”). Full Council will approve the appointment 

before an offer of appointment is made to that person. 

 

5. Appointment of Chief Officers 

 

(a) The Committee will appoint Chief Officers.   

 

Page 222



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 4 of 9 

(b) After the offer of appointment has been accepted, the 

appointment will be reported to the next available meeting of the 

Council for information. 

 

(c) Full Council must approve any salary package for any post (not 

including schools) that is in excess of £100,000 and not within the 

approved Pay Policy Statement before an offer of appointment is 

made. 

 

6. Appointment of Director of Public Health 

The Council is to act jointly with the Secretary of State for Health and 
Social Care when appointing a Director of Public Health.  The Council 
is to follow its established Officer Employment Procedure Rules, as set 
out here, and is also to: 
 
(a) Involve the UK Health Security Agency on behalf of the Secretary 

of State for Health and Social Care in all stages of the recruitment 

and appointment process and follow the guidance issued by the 

Secretary of State on appointing Directors of Public Health; 

 

(b) Engage with the Faculty of Public Health on the draft job 

description, person specification and advert to ensure it covers 

the statutory responsibilities of this role and necessary areas of 

professional and technical competence; 

 

(c) Ensure all candidates meet the statutory requirements for 

appropriate regulation and registration; and 

 

(d) Organise the Appointment Committee to include: 

 

• Members of the Committee at Procedure Rule 5 above 

• Chief Executive or his/her nominated deputy 

• UK Health Security Agency Regional Director or another 

senior professionally qualified member of Public Health 

Committee acting on his/her behalf 

• External professional assessor appointed after consultation 

with the Faculty of Public Health 

• Senior NHS representation. 

 

 

 

Page 223



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 

7. Other Appointments 

 

7.1 Officers below Chief Officer 

Appointments of officers below Chief Officer (other than Assistants to 
Political Groups) are the responsibility of the Head of Paid Service, or 
his/her nominee, and may not be made by Councillors. 
 

7.2 Appointment of Consultants in Public Health 

The Council is to be supported by the UK Health Security Agency and 
follow the statutory guidance on appointing Consultants in Public 
Health and is to: 

 

(a) Incorporate Faculty of Public Health role template into the job 

description and person specification; 

(b) Ensure all candidates are appropriately qualified and formally 

regulated; and 

(c) Consider who is to be involved in the appointment process, 

having regard to the list provided in the statutory guidance. 

 

7.3 Assistants to Political Groups 

 

(a) The Council can create up to three assistants for political groups, 

subject to certain qualifying criteria as defined in Section 9 of the 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989. 

 

(b) The Council can only allocate one Political Assistant post to each 

of the qualifying groups. 

 

(c) The Council shall only make an appointment to any Political 

Assistant post once it has allocated a Political Assistant to each of 

the qualifying groups. 

 

(d) Appointment of Political Assistants shall be an Officer 

Responsibility.  The selection process may include members of 

the relevant Political Group. 

 

(e) The Chair of the recruitment process shall be an Officer and the 

final recruitment decision shall be an Officer Responsibility, i.e. it 

Page 224



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 6 of 9 

is a matter for the Council as employer, under Section 112 of the 

Local Government Act 1972, to decide the terms on which the 

Political Assistant is employed. 

 

(f) The Political Assistant Post is a fixed term contract which must 

end at the first Annual Council meeting after the person has been 

in post for 3 years, as set out in the HR Protocol for Political 

Assistants held by the Director of Human Resources and 

Employee Engagement  Customer Services. 

 

8. Disciplinary Action and Dismissal of Certain Officers: 

Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer 

 

8.1 Throughout this process the Committee will seek advice from the 

Director of Human Resources and Employee Engagement Customer 

Services regarding guidance and procedures issued by the Joint 

Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Local Authority Chief Executives. 

 

8.2 Suspension – The Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief 

Finance Officer may be suspended by the Committee whilst an 

investigation takes place into alleged misconduct.  That suspension will 

be on full pay and last no longer than two months without review. 

 

8.3 Investigation - The Committee will: 

 

• Consider whether the alleged misconduct requires 

investigation and, if so, commission an Independent 

Investigator to carry out such an investigation; 

• Hear the evidence from the relevant Officer;  

• Consider the report and conclusions of the investigation; 

• Decide on appropriate action. 

 

8.4 Outcome – The Committee may: 

 

• Take no further action 

• Recommend informal resolution or other appropriate 

procedure 

• Refer back to the Independent Investigator for further 

investigation and report 

• Take disciplinary action short of dismissal 

• Propose dismissal and refer to the Panel for review 

Page 225



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 7 of 9 

 

8.5 The Panel will be established as set out in Appendix A of these 

procedure rules and will be responsible for advising the Council on 

dismissal. If the Panel considers dismissal to be the appropriate action 

they will: 

 

• Formulate advice, views or recommendations;  

• Present a report to Council, incorporating: 

− any advice, views or recommendations of the Panel; 

− the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed 

dismissal; 

− any representations from the relevant officer. 

 

8.6 The Council will make the final decision on the dismissal, considering 

the above. The Panel’s recommendations are not binding on the 

Council. 

 

8.7 If the Panel does not consider dismissal to be appropriate it will set out 

a clear rationale for this opinion in its report and refer the matter back 

to the Committee for a decision on any other disciplinary action. 

 

9. Disciplinary Action and Dismissal of other Chief Officers 

 

9.1 Throughout this process the Committee will seek advice from the 

Director of Human Resources and Employee Engagement Customer 

Services regarding guidance and procedures issued by the Joint 

Negotiating Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers of Local Authorities. 

 

9.2 Suspension –Chief Officers may be suspended whilst an investigation 

takes place. 

 

9.3 Investigation – The Committee will consider whether the alleged 

misconduct requires investigation and, if so, convene a Disciplinary 

Hearing to investigate the matter.  If the Committee considers it 

appropriate it may commission an Independent Investigator to 

investigate the alleged misconduct and report back to the Committee. 

 

9.4 Outcome – The Committee will take into account the conclusions of 

the investigation and may: 

 

• Take no further action 

Page 226



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 8 of 9 

• Recommend informal resolution or other appropriate 

procedure 

• Refer back to the Independent Investigator for further 

investigation and report 

• Take disciplinary action short of dismissal 

• Make the decision to dismiss the Officer 

 

9.5 Appeals against dismissal of these Officers will be heard by the 

members of the Senior Officer Employment Committee who were not 

involved in the original decision. 

 

9.6 No decision to dismiss the Director of Public Health will be taken unless 

the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care (or the UK Health 

Security Agency on his behalf) has been consulted; 

 

10. Disciplinary Action and Dismissal of other Officers 

 

(a) Councillors will not be involved in the disciplinary action against any 

officer below Chief Officers, except where such involvement is 

necessary for any investigation or inquiry into alleged misconduct 

though the Council’s disciplinary, capability and related procedures, as 

adopted from time to time, may allow a right of appeal to members in 

respect of disciplinary action. 

 

(b) Appeal against Dismissal for disciplinary, capability or other 

substantial reasons shall be to the Appeals and Collective Disputes 

Committee, which shall comprise of three Members who have attended 

appropriate training sessions. 

 

(c) Appeals against dismissal by reason of redundancy shall be to a 

panel of authorised Chief Officers. 

Page 227



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules (updated February 2023) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 9 of 9 

Appendix A: The Panel 
 
1.0 A statutory officer (Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer or Chief 

Finance Officer) cannot be dismissed unless these provisions relating 
to the Panel are complied with. 
 

2.0 The Panel is appointed (under section 102(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972) as an advisory committee of the Council for the purposes of 
advising the Council on matters relating to the dismissal of certain 
officers of the Council.  

 
3.0 The Council must invite independent persons (who have been 

appointed by this or another authority under section 28(7) of the 
Localism Act 2011) to be considered for appointment to the Panel. 

 
4.0 The Council must appoint to the Panel at least two independent 

persons who have accepted an invitation, in the following priority order: 
 

• an independent person who has been appointed by this authority 
and who is a local government elector; 

• any other independent person who has been appointed by this 
authority; 

• an independent person who has been appointed by another 
authority or authorities. 

 
5.0 The remuneration, allowances or fees paid to an independent person 

appointed to the Panel must be no more than the level of the 
remuneration, allowances or fees payable to them for their role as an 
Independent Person for the Standards regime. 

 
6.0 The Panel must be appointed at least 20 working days before a 

meeting of the authority to consider whether or not to approve a 
proposal to dismiss a statutory officer. 

 
7.0 A decision to dismiss must be taken by Full Council. In making the 

decision Council must take into account the factors as specified: 

a) any advice, views or recommendations of the Panel;  
b) the conclusions of any investigation into the proposed dismissal; 

and 
c) any representations from the relevant officer. 

The Panel’s recommendations are not binding on the Council 

Page 228



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Area Committee Procedure Rules  
 

 

 

Appendix 13 
 
AREA COMMITTEE PROCEDURE RULES 
 
1. ARRANGEMENTS FOR AREA COMMITTEES 
 
1.1   Composition 
 

There shall be seven Area Committees as set out in the table below. They shall 
be constituted and operate in accordance with Article 10 of this Constitution and 
these Procedure Rules. 

 

Name of Area Committee Comprising these Wards 
 

Central Broomhill and Sharrow Vale 
City  
Hillsborough 
Walkley 
 

East Darnall  
Manor Castle 
Park and Arbourthorne  
Richmond 
 

North East Ecclesfield  
Stannington  
Stocksbridge and Upper Don 
West Ecclesfield 
 

North East Burngreave  
Firth Park 
Shiregreen and Brightside 
Southey 
 

South Beauchief and Greenhill 
Gleadless Valley 
Graves Park  
Nether Edge and Sharrow 
 

South East Birley  
Beighton 
Mosborough 
Woodhouse 
 

South West Crookes and Crosspool 
Dore and Totley 
Ecclesall  
Fulwood 

Page 229



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Area Committee Procedure Rules  
 

 

 

 

 
1.2   Delegation of functions 
 

The Area Committees shall operate according to the Terms of Reference set 
out in Part 3 of this Constitution. They shall carry out such functions as are 
delegated by the Full Council. 

 
1.3   Sub-delegation of Functions 
 

(a) Where functions have been delegated to an Area Committee, they may be 
delegated further to an officer of the Council.  
 

(b) The further delegation of a function does not prevent it from being discharged 
by the Area Committee. 
 

1.4   Conflicts of Interest 
 

(a) Where the Chair or any Member of an Area Committee has a conflict of 
interest this will be dealt with as set out in the Councillor Code of Conduct in 
Part 5 of this Constitution.  

 
(b) If the exercise of a function has been delegated to an Officer, and should a 

conflict of interest arise, then the function will be exercised in the first instance 
by the person or body by whom the delegation was made and otherwise as 
set out in the Councillor Code of Conduct in Part 5 of this Constitution. 

 
2 THE OPERATION OF AREA COMMITTEES 
 
2.1   Frequency and location of meetings 
 

Each Area Committee will meet at least 4 times each year at a publicly 
accessible location agreed by its Chair. Meetings shall be convened more 
regularly if the Chair decides it is necessary. 

 
2.2   Public access to meetings and papers 
 

Meetings, agenda and minutes of Area Committees will be open to the public 
and press, except as provided under legislation and the Access to Information 
Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution. 

 
2.3   Quorum 
 

The quorum for a meeting of an Area Committee shall be half of its 
membership. 

 
2.4   Meetings of and decisions taken by an Area Committee 
 

Page 230



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Area Committee Procedure Rules  
 

 

 

Meetings of Area Committees will be convened and conducted in accordance 
with the Access to Information Procedure Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution.  

2.5   The Chair of Meetings 
 

Each Area Committee shall appoint a Chair and Deputy Chair for the year 
from its membership comprising the Ward Councillors of that Area Committee. 
Meetings will be chaired by the Chair if present and, in his or her absence, the 
Deputy Chair will chair. In the absence of both the Chair and the Deputy 
Chair, the Members present shall elect one of their number to chair. 

 
2.6   The Business to be Conducted 
 

At each meeting of an Area Committee, the following business will be 
conducted: 

 
(i) exclusion of the public and press;  

 
(ii) consideration of the minutes of the last meeting; 
 

(iii) declarations of interest, if any;  
 

(iv) public questions and petitions;  
 

(v) any matters referred to the Area Committee for consideration by the 
Full Council or a Council Committee;  

 

(vi) matters set out in the agenda for the meeting. 
 

2.7   Placing items on the Area Committee agenda 
 

(a) A Chief Officer may, in consultation with the Chair and subject to compliance 
with the Access to Information Rules in Part 4 of this Constitution, put on the 
agenda of an Area Committee meeting, any matter which he or she considers 
necessary or appropriate,  
 

(b) A matter referred to an Area Committee by Full Council or a Council 
Committee shall be placed on the agenda for the next Area Committee 
meeting, subject to compliance with the Access to Information Rules. The 
Leader of the Council, or the Chair or other Member of a referring Council 
Committee may address the Area Committee on a matter referred to it but 
shall not be entitled to participate in debate or to vote on the item unless he or 
she is a Member of the Area Committee  
 

(c) The Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer 
may, subject to compliance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules in 
Part 4 of this Constitution, put any matter they consider necessary or 
appropriate on the agenda of any Area Committee meeting. Any of those 

Page 231



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 4 – Area Committee Procedure Rules  
 

 

 

officers may, where they consider it necessary to do so, require a meeting of 
an Area Committee to be called to consider a particular matter. 
 

2.8   Attendance by others 
 

(a) Area Committees may, through the Chair, invite representatives of other 
public, private or voluntary/community organisations with an interest in the 
issue and/or members of the general public to meetings to contribute to their 
discussions. 
 

(b) External experts and other persons identified as possible contributors may be 
invited to attend meetings to give evidence and advice and answer questions 
put to them by an Area Committee, but cannot be required to do so and 
therefore their participation will be on a voluntary basis. 

 
2.9   Placing items on a Council Committee agenda 
 

(a) An Area Committee can request that an item discussed at one of its meetings 
is placed on the agenda of the next meeting of the relevant Committee of the 
Council; 

  
(b) The request will be forwarded in writing by the Chair to the Chair of the 

relevant Committee who will take one of the following actions: 
(i) refer the matter to an Executive Strategic Director  
(ii) refer the matter to another relevant officer  
(iii) refer the matter to the Committee by way of a report; 
 
 

 

Page 232



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 1 of 16 

Appendix 14 
 
MONITORING OFFICER PROTOCOL  
 
 
1.  STATUTORY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
1.1 The Monitoring Officer is a statutory appointment pursuant to Section 5 of the Local 

Government and Housing Act 1989 This Protocol sets out the Monitoring Officer's 
role in relating to the statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct under the Localism Act 2011.  

 
1.2 The role of the Monitoring Officer rests with the Director of Legal and Governance 

General Counsel.  The Monitoring Officer may nominate a member of staff to act as 
Deputy Monitoring Officer while absent or ill and has appointed the Assistant 
Directors of Legal Services and Governance as Deputy Monitoring Officers.  The 
Deputies will act only in the absence of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
1.3  This Protocol should be read in conjunction with Articles 13 and 16 of the 

Constitution which set out all Monitoring Officer functions. It should also be read in 
conjunction with the procedure for investigating standards complaints.  A list of the 
functions of the Monitoring Officer appears in the attached Schedule. 

 
 
2. WORKING ARRANGEMENTS 
 
2.1 It is vital that Members and Officers work with the Monitoring Officer and his or her 

staff, to effectively discharge the Council business, statutory responsibilities and 
promote the corporate health of the Council.  

 
2.2 The Monitoring Officer’s duties will be discharged in accordance with the Council’s 

Constitution, legislative requirements and relevant Government guidance.  The 
Monitoring Officer’s ability to discharge these duties and responsibilities will 
depend, to a large extent, on Members and Officers:- 

 
(a) complying with the law (including any relevant Codes of Conduct); 
 
(b) complying with any general guidance, codes or protocols issued from time to 

time by the Monitoring Officer; 
 
(c) making lawful and proportionate decisions; 
 
(d) generally, not taking action that would bring the Council, their offices or 

professions into disrepute; 
 
(e) seeking early advice on issues relating to constitutional or ethical matters; 
 

Page 233



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 2 of 16 

(f) raising alerts to issues that may become of concern to the Authority about 
legal powers to do something or not, ethical standards, probity, propriety, 
procedural or other constitutional issues that are likely to (or do) arise; and 

 
(g) Reporting to the Monitoring Officer at the earliest opportunity convictions of 

criminal offences which might amount to a breach of the Members Code of 
Conduct. 

 
2.3 The Monitoring Officer will: 
 

2.3.1 Have advance notice and access to information (including agendas, minutes, 
reports and related papers) of all relevant meetings of the Authority, 
(including meetings at which Officer delegated decisions are taken) at which 
a binding decision may be made (including meetings where there may be a 
failure to take a decision which should be taken); 

 
2.3.2 Have the right to attend (and be heard) any meeting of the Authority 

(including meetings at which Officer delegated decisions are taken) before 
any binding decision is taken (including a meeting where there may be failure 
to take a decision where one should be taken). 

 
2.3.3  Meet regularly with the Head of Paid Service and the Chief Finance Officer to 

consider and recommend action in connection with corporate Governance 
issues, matters of concern regarding legal, ethical standards probity, 
procedural, constitutional issues that are likely and do arise; 

 
2.3.4 In undertaking or arranging investigations will have unqualified access to any 

information held by the Council and to any Officer who can assist in the 
discharge of the functions. 

 
2.3.5 Report to Council as necessary on resources. 
 

 
3. RELATIONSHIPS 
 
3.1 The Monitoring Officer will develop effective working liaison and relationship to 

ensuring effective and efficient discharge of Council business with: 
 

(a)   The Lord Mayor, Chairs of Policy, Regulatory, Audit and Standards and 
other Committees of the Council; and 

 
(b)  The Local Auditor and the Local Government Ombudsman or their 

successors; 
 

3.2 Refer any breaches to, or give and receive any relevant information, whether 
confidential or otherwise, (through appropriate protocols, if necessary), to the 
bodies in 3.1 (b).  

Page 234



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 3 of 16 

4. PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS REGARDING CITY, PARISH 
AND TOWN COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS 

 
4.1 The procedure for dealing with complaints that a member of the City Council, 

Parish and Town Councils or a Co-opted Member has failed to comply with the 
Councillor Code of Conduct is set out in Appendix A. 

 
4.2 The Monitoring Officer reserves the right to deal under the procedure with any 

issues arising in the course of business that concerns the conduct or alleged 
conduct of a Member, in the absence of a complaint, if the Monitoring Officer 
deems it reasonable and appropriate to do so. If doing so the Monitoring Officer 
shall set out the issue in writing as a complaint. 

 
  

Page 235



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 4 of 16 

SCHEDULE  
 
A list of the functions of the Monitoring Officer 
 

1.  Report on contraventions or likely 
contraventions of any enactment or 
rule of law   

Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

2.  Report on any maladministration or 
injustice where Ombudsman has 
carried out an investigation  

Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

3.  Appointment of Deputy Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

4.  Report on resources Section 5 Local Government and Housing 
Act 1989 

5.  Maintain register of Members Interests 
and gifts and hospitality 

Localism Act 2011 

6.  To be responsible for the operation 
and maintenance of the whistleblowing 
policy 

Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure (in 
the Officers’ Code of Conduct) 

7  Proper Officer – Local Government 
Access to Information Regulations 

Part 2 of the Constitution Article 13.03  

8  Advise on vires, maladministration, 
impropriety, probity 

Part 2 of the Constitution Article 13.03  

 
  

Page 236



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 5 of 16 

Appendix A 
 
SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
 
PROCEDURE FOR DEALING WITH COMPLAINTS REGARDING CITY, PARISH AND 
TOWN COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS 
  
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 Under the Localism Act 2011, the Council has a duty to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct for its elected and co-opted 
members and have arrangements in place to deal with complaints. 

  
1.2 This Procedure sets out how the Council will deal with a complaint 

alleging a breach of the Councillor Code of Conduct by:-  
  
 • Sheffield City Councillors   
 • Voting and non-voting co-opted members of the Council 
 • Bradfield Parish Councillors 
 • Ecclesfield Parish Councillors 
 • Stocksbridge Town Councillors 
  
 (In this Procedure the term ‘Member’ is used to describe a Councillor or 

Co-opted Member) 
  
1.3 In dealing with complaints we will be fair to both the complainant and 

Member and progress matters in accordance with the timescales set out 
in the Procedure. Complaints will be handled in the strictest confidence 
at all times. 

  
1.4 The Council has a duty to ensure no conflict of interest with officers 

when undertaking standards investigations.  If a conflict of interest is 
identified, it will be determined in consultation with the Independent 
Person whether the matter should be dealt with by an alternative 
Monitoring Officer. 

  
1.5 The Council has a clear and straightforward public interest test, which is 

used by the Monitoring Officer when considering complaints.   
  
2. Monitoring Officer 
  
2.1 David Hollis, Director of Legal and GovernanceGeneral Counsel, is the 

Council’s Monitoring Officer. This is a statutory role, responsible for 
ensuring that the Council, its Members and officers carry out their 
functions in a lawful and ethical manner. The role includes supporting 
the Audit and Standards Committee and the Independent Persons in 

Page 237



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 6 of 16 

dealing with complaints alleging a breach of the Councillor Code of 
Conduct. 

  
3. Independent Persons 
  
3.1 The Council appoints Independent Persons from outside the Council to 

assist the Monitoring Officer and the Audit and Standards Committee in 
considering complaints. This is statutory requirement under the 
Localism Act 2011. Sheffield has appointed two Independent Persons - 
David Waxman and Karen Widdowson. 

  
3.2 The Independent Person must be consulted at various stages in the 

complaints process: 
 

1. The Independent Person should be consulted on an allegation 
and should be given the option to review and comment on 
allegations which the Monitoring Officer is minded to dismiss as 
being malicious, without merit, vexatious or trivial. 
 

2. As to whether to undertake a formal investigation. 
 

3. Before the Hearing Sub-Committee. 
  
3.3 An elected member who is the subject of a Standards Complaint is 

entitled to process / procedural advice from an Independent Person, 
and any request shall be made via the Monitoring Officer.  
 
If the elected member requires any other form of support, a request can 
be made through Democratic Services. Advice on this is available on 
the members SharePoint site. 

  
4. Making a Complaint/Withdrawing a Complaint 
  
4.1 Complaints alleging a breach of the Councillor Code of Conduct should 

be made in writing using the complaint form and sent to David Hollis, 
Monitoring Officer, Sheffield City Council, Town Hall, Sheffield S1 2HH 
or email david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. The complaint form is available 
from:- 

  
 • Website -  http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-

council/council-meetings 
 • Email - committee@sheffield.gov.uk 
 • Phone -  Democratic Services on 0114 273 4015 
  
4.2 If you need advice or assistance in submitting a complaint concerning 

an elected member please contact Sarah Hyde in Democratic Services 
(email sarah.hyde@sheffield.gov.uk or phone 0114 273 4015). 

Page 238

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/council-meetings
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/council-meetings
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk
mailto:sarah.hyde@sheffield.gov.uk


Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 7 of 16 

  
4.3 Details of the complaint, including the name of the complainant, will be 

shared with the Member. The complainant can request at section 2 of 
the complaint form for their identity to be kept confidential. Requests for 
confidentiality will be considered by the Monitoring Officer, in 
consultation with the Independent Person, and the complainant will be 
informed in writing of the outcome. In the interest of fairness and natural 
justice, we believe Members who are complained about have a right to 
know who has made the complaint.  We are unlikely to withhold your 
identity unless there are exceptional circumstances; for example, that 
you can demonstrate that you will suffer significant harm or distress as 
a result of disclosure. In exceptional circumstances where the matter 
complained about is very serious, we can proceed with an investigation 
or other action and disclose your name even if you have expressly 
asked us not to. 

  
4.4 Anonymous complaints will not be considered. 
  
4.5 The complainant can withdraw their complaint at any time by informing 

the Monitoring Officer in writing. The Monitoring Officer will confirm this 
in writing with the complainant within 5 working days and also inform the 
Member that the complaint has been withdrawn. 

  
4.6 Where a complaint has been withdrawn, the Monitoring Officer reserves 

the right to pursue the issues in the complaint. 
  
5.0 Acknowledging the Complaint/Rejecting a Complaint/Informing the 

Member 
  
5.1 The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of the complaint in 

writing within 5 working days, with details of how the complaint will be 
dealt with and providing a copy of this Procedure and the Code of 
Conduct.  

  
5.2 If necessary, the Monitoring Officer will clarify any matters with the 

complainant as soon as possible before the Member is informed. 
 

5.3 The Monitoring Officer also reserves the right to reject a complaint if it is 
considered to be trivial, vexatious, repetitious, not a standards matter or 
a general misuse of the opportunity. The complainant will be informed of 
the reasons why a complaint has been rejected.  

  
5.4 The Member will be informed in writing within 5 working days that a 

complaint has been made about them within 5 working days of receipt 
of the complaint or clarification under, subject to paragraph 5.2. This will 
include the name of the complainant (unless the Monitoring Officer has 
agreed to the complainant’s request that their name is kept confidential) 

Page 239



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 8 of 16 

and details of the complaint. They will also receive a copy of this 
Procedure and the Code of Conduct. To assist the Monitoring Officer in 
assessing the complaint, the Member will be invited to submit within 10 
working days a written statement of fact in response to the complaint. 
Members will not be notified of complaints that are rejected under 
paragraph 5.3. 

  
5.5 The Monitoring Officer will also inform the Leader of the relevant 

political Group, Group Whip and Chair of the Audit and Standards 
Committee that an accepted complaint has been received and provide a 
summary of the complaint. If he considers it appropriate the Monitoring 
Officer may also inform the Chief Executive. 

  
5.6 Where a complaint relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the 

Monitoring Officer will also inform the Clerk of that Council of the name 
of the Member and details of the complaint. The Clerk will also be kept 
informed of the progress and the outcome of the complaint. 

  
6. Assessment by the Monitoring Officer 
  
6.1 Before assessment of the complaint, it may be necessary for the 

Monitoring Officer to request further information or clarification from the 
complainant and/or Member and, where necessary, obtain other 
available information, such as the minutes of a meeting. 

  
6.2 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, will 

consider (a) the complaint, any remedy sought by the complainant, any 
written statement of fact submitted by the Member and any other 
information obtained; (b) whether the member was acting in their official 
capacity and that the Code of Conduct does apply; (c) if the allegation 
constitutes a potential breach of the Code of Conduct; and (d) would 
consideration of the complaint be in the public interest; and then take 
one of the following courses of action:- 

  
 1. Take no action or 
 2. Take other action through informal resolution or 
 3. Refer the matter for investigation 
 4. Refer the matter to the Consideration Sub-Committee 
  
6.3 The complainant and the Member will be informed in writing within 10 

working days of the outcome and the reasons for the decision. 
  
6.4 The Monitoring Officer will also inform the Leader of the relevant 

political Group, Group Whip, and Chair of the Audit and Standards 
Committee and, where the Monitoring Officer considers it appropriate, 
the Chief Executive of the assessment decision. Where a complaint 

Page 240



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 9 of 16 

relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Monitoring Officer will also 
inform the Clerk of that Council. 

  
6.5 Where a complaint is not referred for investigation, the Monitoring 

Officer will seek to deal with the matter within 8 weeks. 
  
6.6 Take No Action 
  
6.6.1 It is likely that no action will be taken where:- 
  
 • A significant amount of time has elapsed since the events 

which are the subject of the complaint. 
 

• The allegation relates to a cultural or recurring issue relating 
to standards within the Council.  
 

• The matter should be dealt with by some other method. 
 

• Complaints have been made about the Member relating to 
similar issues that have previously been dealt with through 
this Procedure. 
 

• The complaint appears to be trivial, vexatious, repetitious or a 
general misuse of the opportunity. 
 

• The conduct occurred during political debate or could be 
regarded as a political expression of views or opinion. 

  
6.7 Take Other Action Through Informal Resolution 
  
6.7.1 Informal resolution may be the simplest and most cost effective way of 

resolving the complaint and without determining if an actual breach of 
the Code has taken place. It may be appropriate where: 

  
 • The Monitoring Officer considers that this is the most effective 

way of resolving the matter to the complainant’s satisfaction; 
  
 • The Member appears to have a poor understanding of the Code 

of Conduct and/or related Council procedures;  
  
 • The conduct complained of appears to be a symptom of wider 

underlying conflicts which, if unresolved, are likely to lead to 
further misconduct or allegations of misconduct;  

  
 • The conduct complained of appears to the Monitoring Officer not 

to require a formal sanction; 
  

Page 241



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 10 of 16 

 • The complaint appears to reveal a lack of guidance, protocols 
and procedures within the District or Parish/Town Council; 

  
 • The complaint consists of allegations and retaliatory allegations 

between councillors; 
  
 
 

• The complaint consists of allegations about how formal meetings 
are conducted; and 

  
 • The conduct complained of may be due to misleading, unclear or 

misunderstood advice from officers. 
  
6.7.2 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, 

may take any of the following actions:- 
  
 • Take such steps as they think appropriate to prevent a future  

breach of the Code including training, guidance and introducing 
or amending policies/protocols. 

  
 • Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political 

parties or with an individual Member. 
  
 • Mediate between the parties involved to resolve the issues. 
  
 • Seek an apology from the Member. 
  
 • Any other action capable of resolving the complaint. 
  
6.7.3 If a member of the public making a complaint is not satisfied with the 

action to be taken through informal resolution they can make a request 
in writing to the Monitoring Officer for reconsideration. If appropriate, the 
Monitoring Officer may then recommend additional mediation, 
reconsider the original action proposed, or refer the complaint to 
Consideration Sub-Committee.  

  
6.8 Refer the Matter for Investigation 
  
6.8.1 It is expected that the Monitoring Officer will refer only the most serious 

breaches for investigation or where the Member fundamentally disputes 
or does not accept the allegations in the complaint. 

  
6.8.2 If a complaint has been referred for investigation, the Monitoring Officer, 

in consultation with the Independent Person, will appoint a person to 
undertake the investigation and this may be either a Council Officer or 
an outside agent, depending on the complexity and subject of the 
complaint. 

  

Page 242



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 11 of 16 

6.8.3 The Investigating Officer will inform the complainant and Member of the 
process and proposed timescale of the investigation. The investigation 
may involve interviewing both parties and possibly other witnesses, 
together with reviewing any relevant documentation or paperwork.  

  
6.8.4 The Investigating Officer will prepare a draft report on the outcome of 

the investigation and provide the complainant and Member with a copy 
for review and comment. 

  
6.8.5 The Investigating Officer will submit a final version of the report to the 

Monitoring Officer that will make a finding that either (a) there has been 
a breach of the Code of Conduct or (b) there has not been a breach of 
the Code of Conduct. The final report will also be sent to the 
complainant and Member. 

  
6.8.6 The Monitoring Officer will submit the Investigating Officer’s report to 

the Consideration Sub-Committee. 
  
6.8.7 An investigation will be completed within 12 weeks of a referral by the 

Monitoring Officer. The Consideration Sub-Committee will meet within 
two months of the final report being submitted to the Monitoring Officer. 

  
6.9 Refer the matter to the Consideration Sub-Committee 
  
6.9.1 The Monitoring Officer can refer a complaint direct to the Sub-

Committee if it is considered that there is a breach of the Code but there 
is no dispute over the events in relation to the complaint and an 
investigation is not considered necessary. 

  
6.9.2 If a member of the public making a complaint is not satisfied with the 

action to be taken through informal resolution they can make a request 
in writing to the Monitoring Officer for reconsideration. If appropriate, the 
Monitoring Officer may then recommend additional mediation, 
reconsider the original action proposed, or refer the complaint to 
Consideration Sub-Committee. 

  
7 Consideration Sub-Committee 
  
7.1 The Consideration Sub-Committee comprises 3 Councillors and 1 non-

voting co-opted Independent Member. 
  
7.2 The complainant and Member are not required to attend the meeting of 

the Sub-Committee. 
  
7.3 The Monitoring Officer will submit a report on the outcome of an 

investigation or a matter referred to the Sub-Committee. The 
Investigating Officer will attend the meeting. 

Page 243



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 12 of 16 

  
 7.4 The Sub-Committee will consider the Monitoring Officer’s report and, 

after taking the views of the Independent Person into account, can:- 
  
 (a) take no action; or 
  
 (b)  take other action including any of the following actions:- 
  
 • Take such steps as the Sub-Committee considers appropriate to 

prevent a future breach of the Code including training, guidance 
and introducing or amending policies/protocols. 
 

• Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political 
parties or with an individual Member. 
 

• Request the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 
Independent Person, to mediate between the parties involved to 
resolve the issues. 
 

• Seek an apology from the Member. 
 

• Any other action capable of resolving the complaint. 
  
 (c) refer the matter to a Hearing Sub-Committee. 
  
7.5 Where the Consideration Sub-Committee is considering a report on the 

referral of a complaint where a member of the public is not satisfied with 
the action to be taken through informal resolution, the only option 
available to the Sub-Committee is to ratify the original informal 
resolution, or to take other action including any of the following actions:- 

  
 • Take such steps as the Consideration Sub-Committee considers 

appropriate to prevent a future breach of the Code including 
training, guidance and introducing or amending policies/protocols. 
 

• Ask the Whips to address the issue raised within their political 
parties or with an individual Member. 
 

• Request the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the 
Independent Person, to mediate between the parties involved to 
resolve the issues. 
 

• Seek an apology from the Member. 
 

• Any other action capable of resolving the complaint. 
  

Page 244



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 13 of 16 

7.6 The Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant and Member in 
writing within 10 working days of the outcome and the reasons for the 
Sub-Committee’s decision. 

  
8. Hearing Sub-Committee 
  
8.1 The Hearing Sub-Committee comprises 3 Councillors and 1 non-voting 

co-opted Independent Member. 
  
8.2 The Sub-Committee will meet within two months of a referral by the 

Consideration Sub-Committee to consider the allegation. 
  
8.3 The Sub-Committee will meet in public unless it decides that all or part 

of the meeting should be held in private in accordance with the Access 
to Information Procedure Rules in the Council’s Constitution. 

  
8.4 In advance of the Hearing, there will be a pre-hearing process to allow 

matters at the Hearing to be dealt with more fairly and economically. 
  
8.5 The complainant and member will be given the opportunity to attend the 

Hearing and present witnesses. The Monitoring Officer, any 
Investigating Officer and Independent Person will also attend. The 
procedure at the Hearing will include:- 

  
 • Making findings of fact 
 • Deciding if there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct 
 • Consider the remedies/sanctions available if there is a finding 

that the Member has breached of the Code of Conduct 
  
8.6 Full details of the pre-hearing and hearing process are set out in the 

Procedure at Hearings. The Member and complainant will be provided 
with a copy of the Procedure. 

  
8.7 A Finding of No Breach of the Code of Conduct 
  
8.7.1 If the Sub-Committee finds that the Member did not breach the Code of 

Conduct no further action will be taken in respect of the complaint. 
However, the Sub-Committee can make a recommendation to the 
authority with a view to promoting and maintaining high standards of 
conduct in general (e.g. proposed changes to internal procedures or 
training for Members). 

  
8.8 A Finding of a Breach of the Code of Conduct 
  
8.8.1 If the Sub-Committee finds that a breach of the Code of Conduct has 

occurred they may make any of the following recommendations and 
may specify to whom they wish them to be directed:- 

Page 245



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 14 of 16 

  
 • Recommending to the Member’s Group Leader and/or Group Whip 

(or in the case of un-grouped members, recommend to Council or to 
Committees) that he/she be removed from any or all Committees or 
Sub-Committees of the Council. 
 

• Instructing the Monitoring Officer to arrange training for the member. 
 

• That policies/procedures are amended. 
 

• That a briefing/information note be issued. 
 

• That an apology be given. 
 

• That the Member is censured in writing and a copy of the letter is 
published on the Council’s website.  
 

• Take no action where it is not considered appropriate in the 
circumstances to impose a sanction. 

  
8.8.2 The Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant and the Member of 

the outcome from the Sub-Committee hearing in writing within 10 
working days. 

  
8.8.3 The findings and decision of the Sub-Committee will be also be 

available on the Council’s website and copies will be supplied to the 
Chief Executive, Leaders of all the political Groups and the Group 
Whips. 

  
8.8.4 Where the matter relates to a Parish or Town Councillor, the Clerk of 

that Council will be informed of the outcome of a Hearing. 
  
9. Appeals 
  
9.1 There is no right of appeal for the complainant or Member against a 

decision of the Monitoring Officer, Consideration Sub-Committee or 
Hearing Sub-Committee. 

  
9.2 If the complainant feels that the Council has failed to deal with their 

complaint properly, they can make a complaint to the Local Government 
and Social Care Ombudsman (http://www.lgo.org.uk/make-a-
complaint/how-to-complain or phone 0300 061 0614). 

  
10. Reports 
  

Page 246



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 15 of 16 

10.1 An annual report and half yearly interim report will be submitted to the 
Audit and Standards Committee with a summary of all Standards 
Complaints received and their outcome.   

  
11. Data Protection 
  
11.1 Complaints will be handled in the strictest confidence at all times. We 

will ensure that any information received as part of the handling of the 
complaint is disclosed only to those who can demonstrate a valid need 
to know it. However, when a complaint is considered at a Standards 
Committee Hearing then any information will be dealt with in 
accordance with the Access to Information Procedure Rules in the 
Council’s Constitution. 

  

11.2 Complaints records will be stored safely and securely. Records of the 
number of complaints received, the outcomes and the subject 
Members, will be kept for so long afterwards as we consider it may be 
required to deal with any questions or complaints about the service 
which we provide. Personal information about the complainant and 
details of the complaint itself will be deleted after 7 years unless we 
elect to retain it for a longer period in order to comply with our legal and 
regulatory obligations. 

  

12. Review and Changes to the Procedure 
  

12.1 The Monitoring Officer will review the Procedure annually, in 
consultation with the Independent Persons, and submit a report on any 
proposed changes to the Audit and Standards Committee for 
consideration. In accordance with the Constitution, any changes will 
require final approval at Full Council. 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 247



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 - Monitoring Officer Protocol (updated November 2022) 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
  Page 16 of 16 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

Complaint 
Received 

Initial 
Assessment  

Take No 
Action 

No Breach 
 
 

N 

Informal 
Resolution 

Breach 
Found 

Refer for 
Investigation 

Refer to 
Consideration 

Sub-
Committee 

Investigation submitted to 
Consideration Sub-
Committee 

Consideration 
Sub-

Committee 

Take No 
Action 

No Breach 

Take Other 
Action 

Breach Found 

Refer to Hearing 
Sub-Committee 

Hearing 
Sub-

Committee 

No Breach 
Found 

Breach 
Found 

Page 248



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 1 of 20 
 

Appendix 15 
 

Sheffield City Council 

 
 

Officers’ Code of Conduct 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Publication Date: September 2019 
 

(Minor amendment: February 2023) 

 
 
 
 
 

Author:   HR Service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

   

Page 249



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 2 of 20 
 

Officers’ Code of Conduct 
 
This Code of Conduct applies to all non-school based employees. The Code of Conduct 
adopted by the relevant Governing Body will apply to employees within schools.  
 
Section Contents 

 
Page 
No 

1 Introduction   3 

2 Public Duty, Private Interest, Fraud and Theft 
(i) General 
(ii) Financial Inducements, Gifts and Hospitality 
(iii) Employee Declaration of Financial and Other Interests. 

  4 

   
3 Contractors   7 
   
4 Relationships with prospective or current Contractors   7 
   
5 Information Governance, Security and Social Networking   7 
   
6 Use of Council Systems, Property and Facilities   8 
   
7 Other Employment   9 
   
8 Disclosure of Information, Confidentiality and References   9 
   
9 Communications with the Media 10 
   
10 Political Neutrality 10 
   
11 The Local Community and Service Users 11 
   
12 Recruitment and other Employment Matters 12 
   
13 Equalities 12 
   
14 Dress and Personal Appearance 13 
   
15 Health and Safety 13 
   
16 Criminal Convictions/Barring 13 
   
17 Alcohol, Drugs and Substances 15 
   
18 General Conduct 15 
   
19 Date of Implementation 16 
   
20 List of Policies referred to in this Code of Conduct 16 
   
 Glossary 17 
   
 Appendix : Politically Restricted Posts (PoRPs) 18 

Page 250



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 3 of 20 
 

1.0  INTRODUCTION 
 
 About this Code of Conduct 
 
1.1 In the Code of Conduct, when we use the word “you” we mean a Council 

employee, casual worker, agency staff, contractors, volunteers, and consultants 
and self-employed people engaged in work for the Council. 

 
When we use the words “we” or “us”, we mean the Council. 

 
1.2 This Code of Conduct for Employees is based on key principles. These principles are 

developed from the work of the Nolan Committee for standards in public life. 
 
1.3 In the Code of Conduct you will find the minimum standards that all Council employees 

must keep to. These standards also apply to casual workers, agency staff, contractors, 
volunteers, and consultants and self-employed people engaged in work for the Council. 

 
1.4 If you are an employee, this Code of Conduct is part of your terms and conditions of 

employment. Some parts of the Council may have their own Codes in addition to this 
one.  

 
1.5 If your service area has its own Code, you should keep to that Code as well as this Code. 

You also need to follow any security policies or Codes of Practice that the council has. 
 
1.6  We believe that you are responsible for your own actions. That means it is your 

responsibility to read the Code of Conduct and the Policies referred to in it and listed at 
Section 20 of this Code of Conduct, and any other Code which may apply to your job. 

 
1.7 If there are any parts of this Code, or other Code, that you are unsure of or do not 

understand, you must ask your manager or someone in HR, to help you. This will ensure 
you are able to follow the Code. 
 

1.8 You can find explanations for some of the words and phrases in this Code in the 
Glossary on page 17 of this document. 

 
1.9 This Code is not a full list of what you are expected to do or not to do. There may be 

other things that the Council will look at as misconduct, or gross misconduct. If there is 
anything that you are unsure about, please ask your manager or HR Adviser. 

 
1.10 People who live in Sheffield expect you to have high standards of behaviour. If someone 

has suspicions that you could be influenced unfairly, this could damage confidence in the 
Council. You must not put yourself in a situation where anyone might think that you are 
dishonest. 

 
1.11 The Council has the right to monitor employees. This includes surveillance. If the Council 

monitors employees in this way, it will keep within the laws that deal with monitoring.  
 

Page 251



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 4 of 20 
 

1.12 You may have disciplinary action taken against you if you: 
 

• Do not keep to this Code of Conduct. 

• Commit a criminal offence. 

• Do something we would classify as misconduct. 

• Do something that may bring the Council into disrepute, whether during working hours 
or outside of them. 

• Do not properly perform your duties as an employee. 
 
Disciplinary action includes the possibility of being dismissed without notice being given. 

 
1.13 This Code is in accordance with the rules in the Human Rights Act 1998. 
 
2.0 PUBLIC DUTY, PRIVATE INTEREST, FRAUD AND THEFT 
 

(i) General 
 

2.1 Your duty as an employee and any interests outside your job must not conflict. If there is 
anything you are involved in outside of work which might affect your job, you must 
declare this to your manager. Read Declaration of Interests Policy.  

 
2.2 You must always do your job safely. To make sure you do not put the public, other 

employees or yourself at risk, you must follow Corporate and Directorate Health and 
Safety policies. You must also follow safe systems of work and any Codes of Practice 
that apply to your job. 

 
2.3 If you are a member of an organisation that: 
 

• Is not open to the public 

• Requires formal membership and an oath of allegiance 

• Has any secrecy about its rules, the process of becoming a member, or conduct of 
members 

 
 you must declare this in writing to your Head of Service or Director. See Declaration of 

Interests Policy. 
 
2.4 The Council has responsibility for the administration of public money. We emphasise to 

the public and to employees that we think honesty and that having proper control of 
finances is very important. 

 
2.5 The Council is committed to the fight against fraud, whether an employee, a contractor, 

or a member of the public has committed the fraud. 
  
2.6 You must not use the fact that you are a Council employee to obtain, gain directly or 

indirectly - for yourself, any business associates, your friends or your family.  This is 
covered in the Council’s Anti-Bribery Policy. 

 

Page 252



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 5 of 20 
 

2.7 As the Council is committed to the prevention and detection of fraud, we have an Anti-
Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Framework.  

 
2.8 We also have a Gifts and Hospitality Policy and Procedure. 
 
2.9 In addition to these two policies, we have a Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure, so that 

you can report any fraud or corruption more easily.  
 
2.10 If you are using public funds, you must use them responsibly, and you must keep within 

the law. You must make sure that we use our resources sensibly and legally, and that the 
community gets value for money. 

 
2.11 You must keep to the rules within the Council’s Standing Orders and Financial 

Framework. The Standing Orders and Financial Regulations are part of the Council’s 
Constitution, available on the Intranet or Council’s website. 

 
2.12  If you: 
 

• Commit fraud against the Council, or any person or organisation, or try to 

• Steal from the Council, or any person or organisation, or try to 
 

 this will be considered misconduct and may be considered gross misconduct. This 
includes deliberately putting false information on time sheets, subsistence claims or 
mileage claims. 

 
2.13 If you have concerns that someone is stealing, committing fraud or behaving in a way 

that might be unethical, you must report this to your manager, or someone named in the 
Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure.  

 

2.14 We know that it is not always easy to report on the behaviour of other people. We will 
give you full support if you raise concerns. If you wish to remain anonymous, we will 
make every effort to respect this.  

 
2.15 We know there are two sides to a story, and we will ensure hearings are fair. 
 
2.16 Sometimes allegations will turn out to be wrong. If you deliberately make false or 

malicious allegations, this will be treated as misconduct. 
 

(ii) Financial Inducements, Gifts and Hospitality 
 

2.17 You must never accept a financial payment, bribes or inducement from any individual, 
body, or organisation. For example: payments or inducements from contractors, 
developers, or consultants.  This is covered in the Council’s Anti-Bribery Policy. 

 
2.18 To take financial payments or inducements is against the law. It is an offence under 

Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Page 253



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 6 of 20 
 

2.19 You must refuse any gift or hospitality offered to you or your family that others may think 
could influence you. 

 
2.20 You may accept gifts of small value such as pens, diaries and calendars. 
 
2.21 For further guidance on gifts, hospitality and inducements, you can read the Gifts and 

Hospitality Policy and Procedure.  
 
2.22 Any gifts or hospitality you have been offered, whether you have turned them down or 

accepted them, must be recorded. If you are unsure of the process of recording goods 
and hospitality in your service area, seek advice from your manager. 

 
(iii) Employee Declarations of Financial and other interests 

 
2.23 You have a legal duty to declare any financial or other interest in an existing or proposed 

contract. See Declaration of Interests Policy. 
 
2.24 If the Council gives support in the community, through financial help or other help, you 

must make sure that any advice you give is fair and balanced. You must make sure that 
there is no conflict of interest. 

 
2.25 You are free to use all Council services. If you do so, you will not be treated more or less 

fairly because you work for the Council. 
 
2.26 Members of the public expect you to be fair and treat people equally, no matter who you 

are delivering services to.  
 
2.27 You must make sure you don’t do anything in your job that might make people think you 

are being unfair or biased. 
 
2.28 You must not try and obtain services in a different way to the public because you work for 

the Council. This includes putting pressure on colleagues to get services. 
 
2.29 If you think there might be a conflict of interest, you must look at the Declarations of 

Interest Policy. If you are not sure, you should ask your manager to help you. 
 
2.30 The Monitoring Officer will review any declarations that have been made every year. If 

the Monitoring Officer needs to make declarations, the Chief Executive will review them 
every year. 

 
2.31 The Director of Human Resources and Employee Engagement Customer Services is 

responsible for making sure all the Employment Policies, Practices and Procedures that 
the Council has are kept to. 

 
2.32 Every Head of Service, Director and Executive Strategic Director is responsible for 

monitoring their employees’ activities, making sure they have kept to this Code and any 

Page 254



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 7 of 20 
 

other Codes and made declarations when they need to.  Any monitoring will comply with 
all relevant laws.  

 
3.0 CONTRACTORS 
 
3.1 As part of your job, you may be required to supervise or engage contractors or have an 

official relationship with them. If you have any work relationship with contractors, or 
potential contractors, you must tell your Head of Service or Director in writing if you have 
ever had a private or domestic relationship with the contractors. 

 
3.2 The orders we place and contracts we give should be given fairly. This means that we 

must award orders and contracts based on merit and fair competition against other 
tenders. You must not show favouritism in doing this. For example, if your friends, 
partners or relatives run a business, you could not award them a contract unfairly 
because of this. You must not discriminate against anyone unfairly if you deal with 
tenders, evaluation or awarding contracts. 

 
4.0  RELATIONSHIPS WITH PROSPECTIVE AND CURRENT CONTRACTORS 
 
4.1 If you are involved in the process of tendering and dealing with contractors you should 

understand that being a client and being a contractor are two separate roles. If you have 
a client or contractor responsibility, you need to be open and accountable for your 
actions. 

 
4.2 If you work in a contractor or client unit you must be fair and impartial when you deal with 

customers, suppliers and any other contractors or subcontractors. 
 
4.3 If you have access to any information about contracts or costs for contracts that is not 

public, you must not disclose that information to anyone unauthorised. 
 
4.4 You must make sure that you don’t show special favour to anyone who works for us or 

used to work for us when you award contracts. You must make sure you do not show 
special favour to anyone who is a partner, associate or relative of an employee when you 
award contracts. 

 
4.5 If you are thinking about a ‘management buyout’, you must inform the Chief Executive as 

soon as you definitely intend to do it. You must also inform your Executive Strategic 
Director and Head of Service or Director. You must withdraw from doing any work for us 
that includes preparation, tendering, evaluation, and awarding contracts or orders. 

 
4.6 If Competitive tendering is being carried out, and you are involved in the process, you 

must let your Head of Service or Director know when you are a member of an 
organisation that is interested in tendering. You must also let your Head of Service or 
Director know if you have affiliation to an organisation that is interested in tendering. 

 
5.0  INFORMATION GOVERNANCE, SECURITY AND SOCIAL NETWORKING 
 

Page 255



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 8 of 20 
 

5.1 You are responsible for the information you handle for or on behalf of the Council and 
must ensure it is safe from unauthorised access, use, alteration, disclosure or deletion.  

 
5.2  You must comply with the Council’s information policies and take the time to read and 

understand the Information Governance and Security Policy, ICT Acceptable Usage 
Policy and Data Protection Policy. If you are unsure about these policies, you should 
speak to your manager in one to one discussions /supervision. The Council also has 
Information Management Officers who can help. 

 
5.3 You are personally responsible for content that you publish on-line and must follow the 

Social Networking Policy. 
 
5.4  You must take time to read the Social Networking Policy and understand your 

responsibilities and behaviours expected, when using social networking in a personal or 
work capacity. Ask you manager if you are unsure about the Social Networking Policy 
and Guidance. 

 
5.5  The City Council records the use of some electronic communication use in 

accordance with the law.  
 
5.6  Failure to comply with Council policy and / or the misuse any City Council information or 

resources could result in disciplinary action. 
 
6.0  USE OF COUNCIL SYSTEMS, PROPERTY AND FACILITIES 
 
6.1 Anything that belongs to the Council, including: 
 

• Telephones - including mobile phones, handsets, BlackBerry, smartphones 

• Computers - including laptops, tablets, i-pads 

• IT equipment –  including monitors, cameras, memory sticks, hard drives  

• Stationery 

• Offices  

• Car parks 

• Vehicles 

• Facilities 
 
 can only be used for Council business unless permission is given by management.  
 
6.2 If, with your managers’ permission, you use a Council telephone or mobile telephone to 

make private calls or text messages, or send private faxes using a Council fax machine, 
you must pay for this through the approved systems in place. If you are unsure about 
how to pay for calls, speak to your manager. 

 
6.3 The Council has systems in place that log telephone, email and Internet usage. These 

systems may be used to identify any usage for private purposes. We may monitor any 
communications using Council systems. If we monitor your use of Council resources, we 
will do it within the law and Council policy. 

Page 256

http://intranet/ict/howdoi/report-a-fault/intranet-and-internet-access/control-internet-use


Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 9 of 20 
 

 
6.4 You must keep to any Council system security measures. 
 
7.0 OTHER EMPLOYMENT 
 
7.1 If you do have any other employment whilst you are working for the Council, the work you 

do must not conflict with the interests of the Council or bring it into disrepute. You must 
only do other work outside of your working hours with the Council. You need formal prior 
permission of your manager to do any work outside your role with the Council. See 
Declaration of Interests Policy. 

 
7.2 If you do any work that is damaging to the interests or reputation of the Council, we may 

take disciplinary action against you, even if you have declared this work to your manager. 
 
7.3 If you are a: 

• School Governor 

• Councillor for another Local Authority 

• Member of a Voluntary Reserve Forces - Reservists and Adult Instructor of Cadets 

• Justice of the Peace 

• Member of an Employment Tribunal 
 
 these roles do not count as other employment. You should still make your manager 

aware of these duties and ask for any time off you need in a reasonable and timely 
manner. Unpaid voluntary work in the Community is not classed as other employment, 
but you still need to declare it to your manager, as there may be a conflict of interest with 
your Council job. 

 
7.4 You can find further guidance on receiving payment or fees for other work in the 

document “Other Employment Related Activities – Fees”. 
 
8.0  DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION, CONFIDENTIALITY AND REFERENCES 
 
8.1 You should be fair and open when you deal with others. You should make sure that 

elected members and members of the public have access to information they need 
unless there is a good reason not to allow this, according to the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000. 

 
8.2 You must act in accordance with the law when handling personal and other information. 

You must take special care when handling personal and confidential information, and 
never use it inappropriately. You may be prosecuted personally under the Data 
Protection Act 2018, so it is important you know what your responsibilities are. Please 
read the Council’s Data Protection Policy.  If you are unsure about this, consult your 
manager. The Council also has Information Management Officers who can help. 

 
8.3 You must not disclose any confidential, personal or financial information about an 

employee to an unauthorised person. You must not disclose any personal or financial 
information about an employee to any external agency without their approval. If you are 

Page 257



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 10 of 20 
 

not sure who is an authorised person, you should consult the Director of Human 
Resources and Employee Engagement Customer Services. 

 
8.4 If you are asked for personal information for a reference, for example for a job or 

mortgage application, you may provide information only after you confirm the identity of 
the enquirer. To do this, you can reply in writing to the enquirer, or call them back to 
make sure they are who they say they are.  

 

8.5 If the request is for a reference for a colleague or ex-employee, only the employee’s line 
manager can provide an employment reference. Any employee may give a reference in a 
personal capacity. If you misrepresent the Council, this will be treated as misconduct. 

 
8.6 You must not disclose confidential information to a third party. This includes information 

relating to: 

• Competitive tendering or tendering for work. 

• Exempt items under Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972  

• An employee, elected member or service user. 
 
8.7 You must not use any information that you get in the course of your employment for 

personal gain, or give it to anyone else who may use it in this way. 
 
8.8 If in the course of your job, you deal with someone you’re related to, or have a close 

relationship with, declare it to your manager. You must be fair and act in a professional 
way. 

 
8.9 Inappropriate disclosure of confidential information can be considered misconduct, and 

may be considered gross misconduct which can lead to dismissal. 
 
9.0 COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE MEDIA 
 
9.1 All contact with the media that is about Council activities is handled by the 

Communications Service, together with Heads of Service, Directors and Executive 
Strategic Directors. If you have an idea for a positive story about something the Council 
is doing, or if a journalist approaches you, you must contact the Communications Service 
to get approval before you give any information. This includes giving information verbally, 
through e-mail or in writing. 

 

9.2 If you are writing something that will be published, and it doesn’t talk about the Council 
but does relate to your job, you should tell your Head of Service or Director before it is 
published. An example of this might be an article in a professional journal. 

 
10.0  POLITICAL NEUTRALITY 
 
10.1 You must not allow your personal or political opinions to interfere with your work. Some 

posts are “politically restricted”. If this applies to you, you should already have been told 
about the restrictions separately.  

 

Page 258



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 11 of 20 
 

10.2 More information on this is available in the Politically Restricted Posts (PoRP) Policy at 
the Appendix to this Code of Conduct. If you need any more advice or information, ask 
your manager or HR Adviser. 

 
10.3 You work to all elected members and must ensure their rights are respected. You must 

not be biased in dealing with members of one political group rather than another.  
 
10.4 If your job requires you to advise political groups, you must make sure you take a neutral 

stance and point of view. 
 
10.5 If you have contact with an elected member, whether work related or of a personal 

nature, you must keep to the Protocol for Member/Officer Relations in Part 5 of the 
Council’s Constitution. 
 

10.6 If you are on Council business, you must not wear anything that shows you are in  
favour of or against a political party or a pressure group. You may not display any items 
showing political affiliation or opposition on your vehicle, or items like tools or other 
equipment. 

 
11.0 THE LOCAL COMMUNITY AND SERVICE USERS 
 
11.1 You must remember that you have a responsibility to people in Sheffield. You must make 

sure that you deliver services politely, efficiently and fairly to everyone in the community. 
 
11.2 You should be as open as possible about what you do, and the work of the Council. 
 
11.3 You must not do anything that might affect confidence in the Council. 
 
11.4 You should make sure that you keep to the law and any other guidance.  
 
11.5 We will not accept it if any employee physically or emotionally abuses a service user, 

member of the public or other employee. This includes any harassment, discrimination, 
victimisation or bullying. 

 
11.6 We have an Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy. You must keep to this policy at all 

times.  If you do not it may be decided that is misconduct or gross misconduct, which can 
result in disciplinary action including dismissal. 

 
11.7 When you work with young people or vulnerable adults you are in a position of trust. If 

you abuse that trust, it will be regarded as potential gross misconduct.  
 
11.8 Any sexual misconduct or assault will be regarded as potential gross misconduct.  
 
11.9 If you do not follow any policies or procedures meant to keep vulnerable service users or 

others safe, this will be regarded as potential gross misconduct. 
 

11.10 Any act of gross misconduct may lead to disciplinary action and the possibility of 
dismissal without notice. 

Page 259



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 12 of 20 
 

 
11.11 If you work with young people or vulnerable adults, you must read any relevant Codes of 

practice as well as this Code, and keep to them. You must keep to any relevant laws, 
such as the Children Act 1989 and the Child Protection and Adult Abuse Protection 
Procedures. 

 
11.12 If you see any abusive behaviour, you must report it to your line manager, or use the 

Whistleblowing Policy to report it. 
 
12.0 RECRUITMENT AND OTHER EMPLOYMENT MATTERS 
 
12.1 If you are involved in recruitment, you must take care not to discriminate against anyone, 

or in favour of anyone. You must keep to the Recruitment and Selection Code of Practice 
in full. 

 
12.2 To make sure you are not acting unfairly, you must not be involved  in any selection and 

appointment (for example, interviewing someone) when you are related to an applicant. 
You must not be involved in selection or appointment where you have a close 
relationship with an applicant- personal or business. 

 
12.3 If you think there might be a conflict of interest, you must inform your manager or HR 

Adviser. 
 
12.4 Decisions that you make at work should be fair and unbiased. You must not be involved 

with decisions to do with discipline, promotion, or pay for anyone who is related to you, or 
someone you have a close relationship with. This includes personal relationships and 
business relationships. 

 
12.5 If there are any reasons why 12.1-12.4 should not be followed, or you need help and 

advice with what to do next, you should contact the Director of Human Resources and  
Employee EngagementCustomer Services. 

 
13.0 EQUALITIES 
 
13.1 You must at all times make sure you keep to the Council’s policies on equality, diversity 

and inclusion including behaving and working in a way which eliminates discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation, advances equality of opportunity and fosters good 
relations. See Dignity and Respect at Work Policy.  

 
13.2 All employees, customers, elected members, partners, trade  union representatives, and 

members of the public must be treated in a way that creates mutual respect. You should 
promote equality, diversity and inclusion by providing an environment and services free 
from harassment, discrimination, victimisation and bullying and by treating people with 
respect, regardless of their age, disability, race, religion/ belief, sex, sexual orientation or 
marriage/civil partnership. 

 

Page 260



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 13 of 20 
 

13.3 At all times you must create an environment that, promotes fairness, equality, diversity 
and inclusion, promotes dignity and respect for all, recognises and values individual 
differences and the contributions of all and actively prevents and opposes intimidation, 
discrimination, harassment, bullying or victimisation.  

 
13.4 The Equality Act 2010 provides the legal framework for the Council in relation to equality, 

diversity and inclusion.  
 

13.5 Breaching equality policies and the law may be treated as misconduct, up to and 
including gross misconduct, which carries the possible penalty of dismissal without 
notice. 

 
14.0 DRESS AND PERSONAL APPEARANCE 
 
14.1 When you work for the Council, you are a representative of your service, and of the 

Council. You must dress in a way that is appropriate, or required, for your workplace and 
the work you are doing. You must be clean and tidy and make sure you have good 
personal hygiene.  

 
14.2 If you are provided with clothing for uniform or health and safety reasons, you must wear 

it. This includes your name badge and other identity badges where provided. 
 
15.0 HEALTH AND SAFETY 
 
15.1 You have a responsibility to work safely and make sure your working environment is 

healthy and safe. You are required to keep to Corporate Health and Safety Policies. You 
are also required to follow any policy, regulations or Codes of Practice on Health and 
Safety that apply to your Portfolio Directorate or area of work. 

 
15.2 You must keep to any relevant Health and Safety laws. 
 
16.0 CRIMINAL CONVICTIONS/ BARRING 
 
16.1 Before you started working for us, you must have told us about any unspent criminal and 

unprotected spent convictions and cautions. If you have more than one conviction or 
caution the rules of declaration apply to each individually, rather than all having to be 
automatically disclosed 

 
If you applied for a role which involves working with children and vulnerable adults and 
your job is covered by the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions) Order 1975 
as amended by the 2013 and 2020 Amendment Orders  you must have told us about  all 
convictions, formal cautions, warnings, reprimands, binding over or other orders, pending 
prosecutions or criminal investigations that are not ‘protected’ as defined by the 
Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions) Order 1975 as amended by the 2013 
and 2020 Amendment Orders  before you started working for us. 
 

Page 261



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 14 of 20 
 

For information on which convictions are protected visit www.gov.uk/dbs and 
22TUhttp://hub.unlock.org.uk/knowledgebase/filtering-cautions-convictions/U22T   
If you do not have internet access or do not understand what this means to you please 
discuss this with your line manager. 
 
You must tell us about : 

 
• All unspent convictions 

• Cautions relating to 22TUspecified offencesU22T  as listed by Government  
• Cautions given less than 6 years ago (where individual over 18 at the time of 

caution)  

• Convictions that resulted in a custodial sentence (regardless of whether served)  

• Convictions given less than 11 years ago (where individual over 18 at the time of 
conviction)  

• Similar offences committed overseas and in other legal jurisdictions 
 

16.2 If you are required, under the Act, to provide us with your Disclosure and Barring Service 
(DBS) Certificate, we will ask you to:- 

 
• Complete a DBS Application Form 

• Or give written permission for us to check your status on-line 
• Or give permission for us to view your personal file of a previous/other role within the 

Council to check the outcome from a recent Enhanced DBS check. 
 

You must bring in your DBS Certificate to show and discuss with us, when required 
 

16.3   If you have been barred from working with children and/or vulnerable adults and you seek 
employment to do so, this is a criminal activity and against the law and you will be 
dismissed without notice and immediately reported to the Police Authority. 

  
16.4   If your work involves driving, you must tell your manager about any driving offences, or 

pending driving offences. 
 
16.5 If you use your own vehicle for Council Business and carry passengers, you must also 

tell your manager about any driving offences or pending driving offences. 
 
16.6   When employed by us, you must tell your manager, if you have any criminal proceedings 

pending against you, if you are bound over, receive a conviction, formal caution, 
reprimand or warning. 

 
16.7  Once employed by us, you must tell your manager immediately, if you know that you are 

on, or will appear on, one or both of the DBS barred lists. 
 
16.8  If you do not tell us about these convictions, formal cautions, warnings, reprimands, 

binding over or other orders, pending prosecutions or criminal investigations,  this may be 
treated as possible gross misconduct and might lead to disciplinary action – including the 
possibility of dismissal without notice. 

Page 262

http://hub.unlock.org.uk/knowledgebase/filtering-cautions-convictions/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/dbs-list-of-offences-that-will-never-be-filtered-from-a-criminal-record-check


Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 15 of 20 
 

 
16.9   If you work with young people or vulnerable adults and you believe that you are or might 

be thought of as a risk to these groups it is extremely important that you seek advice from 
your manager. If you do not disclose this, this may be treated as possible gross 
misconduct and might lead to disciplinary action – including the possibility of dismissal 
without notice. 

 
16.10 If you work in a childcare role, as part of early or later years childcare provisions, or are 

directly involved in the line management of such provision, you must not be disqualified 
from working in such provision. Certain cautions, convictions, care orders may mean that 
you are automatically disqualified from such work.  

 
16.11 You must complete a childcare disqualification declaration in relation to yourself and 

discuss with us when required.  
 
16.12 You must tell your manager immediately, if you receive any convictions, cautions or other 

orders that may lead to your disqualification under the Childcare (Disqualification) and 
Childcare (Early Years Provision Free of Charge) (Extended Entitlement) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2018. 

 
17.0 ALCOHOL, DRUGS AND SUBSTANCES 
 
17.1 While you are at work, you must be in a condition to do your job safely. 
 
17.2 The effects of drinking alcohol cause you to perform your work less well. It is a health and 

safety risk. Because of this, you must not drink alcohol: 
 

• Before you start work 

• During your working hours 

• During a lunch break from work 

• On any other break during your working day 

• At functions such as conferences within working hours. 
 
17.3 If you drink alcoholic drinks at these times, this may be regarded as misconduct or gross 

misconduct, which could lead to dismissal. 
 
17.4 If you use substances, illegal drugs, or prescription drugs that have not been prescribed 

for you, or are not taken in accordance with your physician’s directions, this will not be 
accepted. This may result in the Council contacting the police to report it. Use of illegal 
drugs or prescription drugs that have not been prescribed for you or are not taken in 
accordance with your physician’s directions   before or during work, on breaks or at 
functions may be considered misconduct or gross misconduct, which could lead to 
dismissal.  
 

17.5 If you are concerned that you may have a dependence on alcohol, drugs or any other 
substances, you are encouraged  to seek help and advice from your General Practitioner 

Page 263



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 16 of 20 
 

and speak to your manager in confidence, who will discuss actions, that you could take 
to address the problem. See Alcohol, Drug and Substance Misuse Policy. 

 
18.0 GENERAL CONDUCT 
 
18.1 You must follow instructions, providing they are lawful. You must make sure you do not 

do anything that might affect the Council’s legal position. You should show respect for 
service users, colleagues and elected members. 

 
18.2 We expect you to use good judgement, and take account of other people’s views. We 

expect you to take responsibility and decide your own view on any issue that comes up 
while you work for the Council. 

 
18.3 If you need further information or advice about what to do in a situation, you should 

contact your manager, an HR Adviser or the Chief Internal Auditor. 
 
18.4  You should read this Code together with the policies referred to within it, and any other 

Codes of Practice or policies that are about conduct or security. 
 
19.0 DATE OF IMPLEMENTATION 
 

Revised 4 September 2019 (minor amendment February 2023) 
  
20.0 POLICIES REFERRED TO IN THIS CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
The most recent versions of these Policies may be accessed from the HR pages of the 
Intranet. 

 

A. Declaration of Interests Policy  
B. Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy Statement and Framework (including the Anti-

Bribery Policy and Procedures) 
C. Gifts and Hospitality Corporate Policy and Procedure  
D. Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure  
E. Information Governance and Security Policy 
F. ICT Acceptable Use Policy  
G. Data Protection Policy 
H. Social Networking Policy 
I. Other employment related activities – fees 
J. Dignity and Respect at Work Policy and Procedure 
K. Alcohol, Drug and Substance Misuse Policy  

 

 
  

Page 264



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 17 of 20 
 

 
GLOSSARY TO CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
Contractor- An individual, partnership, company or other service that has a contract with us to 
do or provide something. For example, to design, develop, manufacture, maintain or provide 
services. 
 

Conflict of Interest- A conflict between private interests and your duties with the Council. This 
can exist whether or not money is involved, and whether the conflict is actual or just perceived. 
 

Competitive Tender- Where several potential contractors are invited to prepare proposals to 
provide a project or service, on the basis of quality and price.  
 

Disciplinary- Disciplinary action is action taken by an employer for violating policy or procedure 
(including the Code of Conduct). For more details on this, see the Council’s Disciplinary Policy. 
 

Disrepute- To bring something into disrepute is to lower its reputation, damage its image. 
 

Misconduct- Breaking the Code of Conduct, another Code or terms and conditions may be 
considered misconduct. There are different types of misconduct depending on the exact 
circumstances and consequences. The most serious type is gross misconduct. For more 
information on this, see the Council’s Disciplinary Policy. 
 

Inducement- something that encourages you towards an action- an incentive. This could be 
money, food, gifts, or anything else that might benefit you. If you are offered or take something 
that people may think is an inducement, you could be accused of making decisions unfairly 
based on what you received.  
 

Whistleblowing (also ‘whistle blowing’) - Revealing wrongdoing to someone in authority. For 
more information on this, see the Whistleblowing Policy. 
 

 
RELEVANT LAW 
This section points to relevant law on some topics from the Code of Conduct. It should 
not be considered an exhaustive list as legislation frequently changes. If you are unsure 
about whether an action would be lawful, please investigate further. 
 

Monitoring and Surveillance: 
The Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 2018, and the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
 

Use of IT Equipment: 
The Data Protection Act 2018, The Obscene Publications Act 1959, 
The Computer Misuse Act 1980, The Theft Act 1968. 
 
Equalities: 
Equality Act 2010 
 
 
 
 

Page 265



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 18 of 20 
 

APPENDIX  
 
Politically Restricted Posts (PoRPs) (Revised May 2012/Minor Amendments 
February 2013 and April 2015, updated February 2023) 
 

Legal Background 
 

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 introduced the principle of Politically Restricted 
Posts (PoRPs) in local authorities. This Act had the effect of restricting the political activities of 
certain local authority employees.   
 

Restricted Posts 
 

Posts may be politically restricted because  
 

• they are specified as PoRPs in accordance with the legislation; or 
 

• it has been determined that they fall within the sensitive duties related criteria of the 
legislation 

 

Specified Posts within Sheffield City Council 
These post holders are politically restricted without the right of appeal 
 

Head of the Paid Service (Chief Executive) 
Monitoring Officer (General CounselDirector of Legal and Governance) 
 

Statutory Chief Officers 
Director of Children’s Services under Children’s Act 2004 (Strategic Director of Children’s 
Services ) 
Director of Adult Services under LASSA 1970 (Strategic Director of Adults Health and Social 
Care and Wellbeing) 
Chief Finance Officer under Section 151 of LGA 1972 (Director of Finance and Commercial 
Services) 
Director of Public Health under section 73A of the NHS Act 2006 (Strategic Director of Public 
Health and Commissioning) 
 
Non Statutory Chief Officers 
Officers reporting directly to the Head of the Paid Service excluding secretarial/clerical support. 
 
Deputy Chief Officers 
An officer reporting directly or is directly accountable to one or more of the statutory or non- 
statutory Chief Officers.  
 
Officers Exercising Delegated Powers 
Officers whose posts are specified by the authority in a list maintained in accordance with 
section 100G(2) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Page 266



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 19 of 20 
 

Assistants for Political Groups 
 
 
Sensitive Duties Posts within Sheffield City Council 
 
The duties of a post under a local authority fall within this subsection if they consist of or involve 
one or both of the following sensitive duties i.e. 

 

• giving advice on a regular basis to the authority itself, to any committee or sub-committee 
of the authority or to any joint committee on which the authority are represented 

 

• speaking on behalf of the authority on a regular basis to journalists or broadcasters 
 
These post holders can appeal against political restriction on the grounds that the criteria have 
been wrongly applied. 
 
Teachers and Head Teachers are exempt from political restriction, whatever their role. 
 
A list of all Politically Restricted Posts within Sheffield City Council is held by the relevant Proper 
Officer (Chief Executive). Any modifications to this list must be reported and recorded 
accordingly. 
 
Restrictions on Post Holders 
 
Employees in PoRPs are debarred from standing for or holding elected office as 
 

• Local councillors 

• MPs 

• Members of the Welsh Assembly 

• Members of the Scottish Parliament 
 
They are also restricted from: 
 

• Canvassing on behalf of a political party or a person who is or seeks to be a candidate 
 

• Speaking to the public at large or publishing any written or artistic work that could give 
the impression that they are advocating support for a political party 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 267



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Officers’ Code of Conduct (updated February 2023) 
 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 20 of 20 
 

 
 
 
Appeals against inclusion on the list of politically restricted posts 

 
Post holders who are politically restricted because they hold specified posts have no right of 
appeal. 

 
• Appeals are made to the Head of Paid Service 

 

• Post holders of sensitive posts that are politically restricted may appeal on the grounds 
that the authority has wrongly applied the duties-related criteria 

 

• Appeals may be made by the current post holder or by an individual who has been 
offered employment in a politically restricted post 

 

• There is no timescale during which a post holder must make an appeal 
 

• To appeal, employees should send a letter formally seeking exemption and a job 
description to the Monitoring Officer (Director of Legal and Governance), Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH  

 

• If the appeal is successful, the Monitoring Officer will notify HR, so that it may be noted 
on the records for the individual and for the post 

 
 
Please Note: This document is a summary, if you require further details or are unsure about 
any of the content please contact the Director of Human Resources and Employee 
Engagement Customer Services, Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield S1 2HH. 

 
 
 

Page 268



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 1 of 19 
 

Appendix 16 
 
PROTOCOL FOR MEMBER / OFFICER RELATIONS 

 

Summary 
 
The Protocol seeks to encourage a greater understanding and best practice of the 
various relationships between Members and Officers of all levels of the Council.  
 
This Protocol supplements but does not supplant other codes, procedures and 
protocols agreed by the Council that regulate the conduct of Members and Officers 
and should be read in light of the duties and expectations, for example those 
responsibilities set out in the Councillor and Officer Codes of Conduct.  
 

Mutual respect between Members and Officers is essential to good local 
government.  Close personal familiarity between individual Members and Officers 
can damage the working relationship.  The nature and complexity of the relationships 
means that this protocol cannot be exhaustive.  If any Member or Officer is unclear 
about a particular aspect of this Protocol they should contact the Monitoring Officer. 
 

It applies whenever Elected Members and Officers are undertaking the Council’s 
business in public and private meetings. 
 
This Protocol also applies to voting non-elected members of committees.  The 
Council expects Parish Members and Officers to adopt and adhere to the principles 
of the Protocol.  
 
The Audit and Standards Committee and the Monitoring Officer are to oversee 
review of this Protocol and make recommendations for changes as appropriate.   
 
 

Page 269



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 2 of 19 
 

1. DEFINING THE MEMBER AND OFFICER ROLES 
 
Mutual trust and respect are essential in setting the right tone for effective working 
relationships between Members and Officers.   
 
Both Officers and Members  
 

• Adhere to respective Codes of Conduct and uphold ethics and values of the 
Council 

• Are accountable for decisions and actions 

• Maintain confidentiality as appropriate 

• Act as an Ambassador for the Council 

• Continually develop knowledge and skills – keep up to date on Council policy 
and performance 

• Represent the Council on external bodies and provide feedback  
 
A Quick Guide to the Distinct Roles 

Members Officers 

Account to the electorate Accountable to the Council 

Community Leader/representative role 
for a Ward 

Serve the whole Council (with the 
exception of the Political Advisers 
appointed under statute). 

Add a political dimension Be politically impartial 

Set high level policy strategy and make 
high level decisions 

Provide guidance on policy.   
Ensure operational delivery 

Do not influence recommendations of 
reports but may at formal meetings, 
accept or reject recommendations 

Produce reports and make 
recommendations 

Are involved in senior 
appointments/dismissals 

Day to day staff management 

Regulate certain activities  Implement decisions 

 
 

Page 270



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 3 of 19 
 

Key Officer Roles 

Statutory Posts Certain Senior Officers hold posts with mandatory statutory 
responsibilities including the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer (General 
CounselDirector of Legal and Governance), appointed under Section 5 of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Chief Finance Officer (Director of 
Finance and Commercial Services) appointed under Section 151 Local Government 
Act 1972.  Members must respect these responsibilities and accept that these 
Officers may be required to give advice or make decisions which Members may not 
agree with or support.  

The Monitoring Officer role includes responsibility for reporting to the Council any 
case where s/he is of the opinion that a proposal or decision of the authority has 
given rise to or is likely to or would give rise to any illegality, maladministration or 
breach of statutory code and for investigating any such reportable incident including 
allegations of breach of Members standards of conduct.  

The Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) role includes responsibility for the 
strategic arrangements for the administration of the Council's financial affairs, 
delivery by the whole authority of good financial management to safeguarding public 
money and ensuring it is used appropriately, effectively, efficiently and economically. 

The ExecutiveStrategic Directors are individually responsible for their portfolio 
directorate of services and collectively responsible for management of staff their 
work and delivery of Council functions and priorities. 

Directors manage the service for which they have responsibility, ensure that the 
statutory responsibilities are properly discharged on a day to day basis, account for 
the efficiency and effectiveness and professional practice of their service. 

Officers and Members have day to day responsibilities for adhering to the rules of 
procedure and the financial regulations in the Constitution which are there to protect 
the whole Council.  

To further understand roles, Members and Officers refer to the Constitution and easy 
to read role profiles, job descriptions and induction materials 
 
In reality, there are grey areas, where Members and Officers need to work together 
and for this reason, it is important to set out ways of working, expectations, 
relationships and communications. 
 

Page 271



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 4 of 19 
 

2. THE PROFESSIONAL RELATIONSHIP  
 
A Guide to Expectations 
 
In forging an effective working relationship, Members and Officers will have certain 
basic expectations of each other. Much of this is about ensuring high standards of 
behaviour and acting within a clear framework of ethical governance. 
 
Members and Officers Expectations 
 
Courtesy 
 
It is important that Members and Officers are courteous to each other at all times, 
even if they disagree strongly with each other’s views 
 
Bullying 
 
Members and Officers must not bully any person. Bullying may be characterised as 
offensive, intimidating, malicious, insulting or humiliating behaviour. Such behaviour 
many happen once, or be part of a pattern of behaviour.  Members may from time to 
time become frustrated by what they regard as unacceptable or incompetent Officer 
behaviour.  It is self-evident that sometimes these feelings may be entirely justified 
although sometimes there may be a legitimate reason why Member expectations 
cannot be met – for example, due to Council Policy or a legal requirement. 
 
In these circumstances, Members are to take up their concerns through the Directors 
or the Chief Executive as set out in the dispute procedure described in this 
document, rather than through public criticism. They must bear in mind that Officers 
are instructed not to ‘answer back’ in public.  
 
Member and Officer Development 
 
Members and Officers should participate in the Council’s development programme, 
which is core to their role and to undertake individual learning and development 
discussions. 
 
Members should participate in the Core Development Programme for induction, all 
learning identified as mandatory from time to time, safeguarding, and Committees 
including Policy Committees, Area Committees, and Regulatory Committees such as 
Planning and Licensing. 
 

Page 272



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 5 of 19 
 

What Members can expect from Officers  
 

Officers Do Officers Don’t 

Pursue lawful policies and comply with 
the Officers’ Code of Conduct  

Deviate from the Constitution, legal or 
contractual obligations 

Promote equality, serve all Members 
equally with dignity, respect and 
courtesy, regardless of political group 
or position 

 

Comply with legal duty to provide 
professional advice, impartiality and 
implement Council policy 

Allow their personal or political 
opinions to interfere with their work or 
professional judgement and advice 

Avoid close personal familiarity with 
Members and follow guidelines on 
Personal Relationships 

Form friendships, close relations with 
Members  

Follow Council procedures for dealing 
with Member enquires effectively 
efficiently and within set timescales – 
as listed in 10.3  

 

Act with integrity and appropriate [not 
absolute] confidentiality  

 

• Seek to improperly influence 
Members;  

• Improperly disclose information 
received from one Member to 
another; or  

• Raise their personal circumstances 
or those of another directly with 
Members.  Personal issues that 
might be raised with a Ward 
Member should be raised in a 
private capacity outside of work 
time. 

Respect each other’s free (i.e. non-
Council) time 

 

Be prepared to justify and give reasons 
for decisions made under delegated 
powers; 

 

Report the least suspicion of fraud, 
corruption or impropriety 

Conceal any information which it is 
proper for them to disclose (particularly 
where they have a duty to reveal it); 

 

Page 273



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 6 of 19 
 

What Officers can expect from Members 
 

Members Do Members Don’t 

Comply with the Councillor Code 
of Conduct – ensuring the highest 
standards of behaviour 
 

 

Promote equality and treat all 
Officers with dignity and respect.  
 
Members are to comply with the 
equality laws prohibiting 
discrimination, harassment and 
victimisation 
 
Chairs of meetings are expected 
to apply the rules of 
debate/procedures to prevent 
abusive or disorderly conduct 
 

Subject individuals to unreasonable or 
excessive personal attack 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Undermine respect for Officers in public 
meetings, the media or at any other time 
when dealing with Council business;  
 

Only ask Officers to provide 
professional advice on matters 
that clearly arise from being an 
elected Councillor; 
 
Respect impartiality and integrity 
of Officers and do not compromise 
it 
 
Respect Officers’ free (i.e. non-
Council) time. 
 

Ask Council Officers to improperly spend 
Council time or resources for political 
purposes. 
 
 
Insist an Officer changes his/her 
professional advice 
 
 

Provide political leadership and 
direction, making timely decisions 

Get involved in day to day management 
 
Ask Officers to breach Council procedures 
or policy when acting on behalf of 
constituents 
 
Put pressure on an Officer on matters which 
have been delegated for Officer decision.   
A Member who behaves in this way may 
lead Officers to make decisions that are not 
objective and that cannot be accounted for 
 

 

Page 274



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 7 of 19 
 

Members Do Members Don’t 

 Seek special or adverse treatment for 
themselves or any individual by using 
his/her position as a Member, nor 
improperly seek to gain an advantage or 
disadvantage for his/herself or any other 
person when dealing with Council Officers 
 

Apply appropriate confidentiality to 
information 
 

 

Report the least suspicion of 
fraud, corruption or impropriety 

Instruct Officers to take actions which are 
unlawful, financially improper or likely to 
amount to maladministration.  Members 
have an obligation under their Code of 
Conduct to have regard, when reaching 
decisions, to any advice provided by the 
Monitoring Officer or the Chief Finance 
Officer. 
 

Where relevant to casework or a 
decision, declare any special 
relationships/personal interests 
with constituents to relevant 
Officers and/or constituents.  
Where the relationship causes a 
conflict of interests, Members will 
ask another Ward Member to 
assist. 
 

 

 

 
3 THE EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP 
 

3.1 Members should recognise and have regard for their role as employer as part 
of “the Council”.  The policies that govern equalities and employment relations 
apply equally to Members and Officers for example ‘Dignity and Respect at 
Work’. 

 
3.2 Issues relating to appointment, management and dismissal of most Officers 

are reserved by law to the Chief Executive or his/her nominated 
representative.  Members may be involved in the appointment of Chief 
Officers or Deputy Chief Officers or in employment appeals.   

 
 
 

Page 275



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 8 of 19 
 

When Acting in this Capacity Members 
 

Do Don’t  

Observe the law, standing orders, 
policies and procedures in relation to 
all appointments, discipline and 
dismissal of Officers. 

 

Declare any interest they have and 
ensure that they act to protect the 
public interest 

Take part in any process where friends, 
relatives or Members of their 
household are involved directly or 
indirectly 

Maintain appropriate confidentiality  

Attend relevant learning and 
development 

 

Make decisions based on merit and 
with access to all the facts 

Seek improperly to influence decisions 

 

Promote equality Canvass support for any candidate for 
a job 

Take continuing responsibility for their 
appointment decisions once the post 
holder is in place. 

 

 

 

4. PERSONAL RELATIONSHIPS  
 
4.1 Personal familiarity between Members and Officers can undermine public 

confidence in the Council. 
 
4.2  It is important that close relationships between Members and Officers are 

openly declared. 
 
4.3 Close working relationships should never be allowed to become so close, or 

appear to become so close, as to bring into question the Officer’s ability to 
deal impartially with another Member or other party groups, nor to undermine 
public trust and confidence in the Council. 

 
4.4  Where possible Members and Officers who have close personal relationships 

should try to avoid coming into contact on projects and in the day-to-day 
business of the Council. 

 

Page 276



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 9 of 19 
 

4.5 Member and Officers must declare to the Chief Executive any relationships, 
which might be seen as influencing their work. This includes any family, 
business or sexual relationships.  

 
4.6 The Chief Executive will advise both the Member and the Officer of the need 

to avoid creating any appearance of improper conduct on their part. 

5. THE POLITICAL RELATIONSHIP/ OFFICER ADVICE TO PARTY GROUPS 

5.1 Council Officers must be politically neutral in their work for the Council and 
depending on their role some may be restricted in law from political activity. 

 
5.1.1 In their dealings with party groups, Officers must treat each group in a 

fair and even-handed manner.  
 
5.1.2 Officers will only attend political group meetings on request made to 

the Chief Executive or Executive Strategic Director and when the 
business of the meeting is related to the City Council’s functions.  
Normally only Senior Officers should attend group meetings. 

 
5.1.3 Officers have the right to refuse such requests if they do not relate to 

the functions of the City Council and will normally not attend a 
meeting of a party group where some of those attending are not 
Members of the City Council.  

 
5.1.4 Such meetings shall be held at reasonable times and locations and 

should last no longer than a working day or three hours if held in the 
evening.  

 
5.1.5 Officers who provide information or briefing papers to a political 

group meeting must make the same information available to all 
political groups. Officers should avoid including any confidential or 
personal information in such briefings. Normally cross-party meetings 
shall be arranged so that the information is presented to and 
discussed with all the parties simultaneously. 

 
5.1.6 Officer support will not extend beyond providing factual information 

or professional advice in relation to matters of Council business. 
Officers must not be involved in advising on matters of party 
business, and therefore should not be expected to be present at 
meetings or parts of meetings when such matters are to be 
discussed. 

 
5.1.7 Where Officers provide factual information and advice to a party 

group in relation to a matter of Council business this is not a 
substitute for providing all the necessary information and advice when 

Page 277



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 10 of 19 
 

the matter in question is formally considered by the relevant part of 
the Council. 

 
5.1.8 It will not be assumed that an Officer is supportive of a particular 

policy or view considered at a party group meeting simply because 
he/she has attended or provided information to the meeting. 

 
5.1.9 Party group meetings are not empowered to make decisions on 

behalf of the Council.  The presence of an Officer confers no formal 
status on such meetings in terms of Council business and must not 
be interpreted as doing so.  Conclusions reached at these meetings 
do not rank as Council decisions. 

 
5.1.10 At party group meetings where some of those present are not 

Members of the City Council, care must be taken not to divulge 
confidential information relating to Council business.  Persons who 
are not Members are not bound by the Councillor Code of Conduct, 
in particular the declarations of interest and confidentiality provisions.  
They do not have the same rights to Council information as 
Members. 

 
5.1.11 Discussions between Officers and Members on policy issues are 

quite proper and Officers may wish to seek political guidance in 
framing policy proposals.  However, when Officers write Committee 
reports for Member decision, they have a duty to give their best 
professional advice and set out their options available. 

 
5.1.12 Party political groups have no right to instruct Officers to amend or 

change reports or their content.  Decisions by Members on Officer 
reports should be made in the correct decision-making forum based 
on clear factual and legal advice.  Officers are fully responsible for 
the content of any report submitted in their name.    

 
5.1.13 Officers in certain posts are statutorily prohibited from having any 

involvement in political activities.  A list of these positions is 
maintained by the Director of Human Resources and Employee 
Engagement Customer Services.  All Officers are required to ensure 
that Council resources are not used for party political purposes. 

 
5.1.14 Should a Senior Officer attend a group meeting they will respect the 

confidentiality of any party group discussions at which they are 
present and, unless requested to do so by that party group, will not 
relay the content of such discussions to another party group or to any 
other Members.  This shall not prevent an Officer providing feedback 
to other Senior Officers on a need-to-know basis. 

 

Page 278



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 11 of 19 
 

5.1.15 No Member will refer in public or at meetings of the Council to 
confidential advice or information that may prejudice the Council’s 
position given by Officers to a party group meeting.  

 

5.1.16 Any particular cases of difficulty or uncertainty in relation to this part 
of the protocol should be raised with the Chief Executive and the 
relevant party group leader.  

 
6. OFFICER/CHAIR RELATIONSHIPS 
 

6.1 Executive Strategic Directors and other Senior Officers are expected to work 
closely with Committee Chairs, Deputy Chairs and Group Spokespersons and 
to meet regularly with them.  Officers and Members must avoid the working 
relationship becoming so close that it could call into question the Officer’s 
ability to deal impartially with other Members and political groups.  

 
6.2 Senior Officers, the Leader and Chairs, Deputy Chairs and Group 

Spokespersons shall agree mutually convenient methods of regular contact.  
 
7. COMMITTEES  
 
7.1 Committee decisions cannot by law be made by the Chair alone but by the 

committee collectively.  The Chair should not seek to influence Officers to 
reduce the options or withhold information which s/he should properly report 
to a committee. 

 
7.2 The Senior Responsible Officers will offer to arrange regular informal 

meetings with the Chair and Deputy Chair and Group Spokespersons of 
committees and sub-committees. This will include the development of work 
programmes that address corporate, service plan and Member priorities, 
resulting in a balanced programme of decision making, policy development, 
and scrutiny and evaluation. 

 
7.3 Senior Officers (including the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance 

Officer) have the right to attend meetings and to present reports and give 
advice to committees and sub-committees.  

 
7.4 Members of a committee or sub-committee shall take decisions within the 

remit of that committee or sub-committee and will not otherwise instruct 
Officers to act.  

 
7.5 Chairs, Deputy Chairs, Group Spokespersons and, where appropriate, 

Members of the relevant committee (including substitutes) should accept 
briefings from the Senior Responsible Officer to inform decision making for 
complex or technical cases/items or where there is new national legislation or 
guidance. Where it has been agreed that Officers do not have to brief all 

Page 279



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 12 of 19 
 

Members of the committee Chairs, Deputy Chairs and Group Spokespersons 
should ensure that information is shared with the other Members. 

 
7.6 Committees may set up Task and Finish Groups, with Officer support, to 

further their policy development work. Such Officer support shall be subject to 
there being sufficient Officer capacity. Members shall respect the views of the 
Senior Responsible Officer in this regard. 

 
7.75 At some committee or sub-committee meetings, a resolution may be passed 

which authorises a named Officer to take action between meetings in 
consultation with the Chair (or other Members).  In these circumstances it is 
the Officer, not the Chair, who takes the action and is responsible for it.  A 
Chair has no legal power to take decisions on behalf of a committee or sub-
committee, neither should he/she seek inappropriately to influence the Officer. 
Whilst the Officer is required to consult the Chair, and the Chair may express 
a view, it is the Officer who takes the final decision. Though not part of the 
formal decision-making process under the authorisation the Officer may also 
choose to consult Group Spokespersons. 

 
8. PUBLIC MEETINGS  
 

8.1 If an Officer calls a public meeting, consultation exercise or launch event 
organised by the Council concerning a local issue, then the Officer will invite 
all Members for the Ward or Wards in question. 
 

8.2 If any of the Local Members of Parliament are involved in the local issue, the 
Officer at his or her discretion may invite the MP to the meeting in addition to 
the Ward Members but if it is considered inappropriate for any reason he or 
she may meet the MP separately. 
 

8.3 If a Ward Councillor calls or requests a meeting on a local issue at which an 
Officer(s) is/are requested to be in attendance the Officer(s) will be required to 
attend only if all the Councillors for the Ward have been invited to attend, or 
are agreeable to the meeting taking place, and if the subject matter of the 
meeting is not politically controversial. 
 

8.4 Similarly if an MP calls or requests a meeting upon a local issue which an 
Officer or Officers is/are requested to be in attendance the same criteria 
govern the Officers attendance. 

 
8.5 Meetings with Ward Councillors and/or MPs and others are generally private 

except where such meetings are arranged and set up by or under the 
auspices of Area Committees.  Accordingly, Officers may confirm the events 
which occurred at such private meetings and the outcome of it with Members 
who attended but will not reveal these matters to other Members or to other 
Political Groups except with the specific authority of the Members who 

Page 280



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 13 of 19 
 

attended or called the meeting.  
 

8.6 Information regarding activities in a particular Ward, should when appropriate, 
be copied to the Ward Councillors for information. 

 
8.7 Officers presenting at public meetings are to fully prepare for these meetings 

by taking advice from the Senior Responsible Officer.  Officers need to know 
what is specifically required, time slots available and key questions that have 
already been raised by Members/the public on this topic. 

 
 
 
9. SUPPORT SERVICES TO MEMBERS AND POLITICAL GROUPS 
 

9.1 The only basis upon which the City Council can lawfully provide support 
services such as secretarial support, stationery, typing, printing, 
photocopying, transport, etc., to Members is in order to assist them 
discharging their role as Members of the Council. 
 

9.2 Such support services must therefore only be used on Council business and 
must not be used in connection with any party political or campaigning activity 
or for private purposes. 

 

10. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
10.1 Correspondence  
 

10.1.1 Correspondence between an individual Member and an Officer should 
not normally be copied by the Officer to any other Member.  Where 
exceptionally it is necessary to copy the correspondence to another 
Member this should be made clear to the original Member.  In other 
words a system of “blind” or “silent copies” should not be employed. 

 
10.1.2 Official letters written on behalf of the Council dealing with Council 

business should normally be in the name of the relevant Officer.  It 
may be appropriate in some circumstances (e.g. representations to a 
Government Minister) for letters to appear in the name of the Leader 
or the Chair of a Policy Committee or an Area Committee or other 
Committee of the Council. 

 
10.1.3  Letters which create legally enforceable obligations or which give 

instructions on behalf of the Council should never be sent in the name 
of a Member.  Only certain Officers have delegated powers to create 
legal relations and all Officers must follow Standing Orders if entering 
into contractual arrangements.   

 

Page 281



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 14 of 19 
 

10.1.4 It is appropriate for Members to pass correspondence to Officers and 
ask them to respond on behalf of the Council.  Officers may only 
correspond for and on behalf of the Council in matters of Council 
business and not on behalf of the individual Member. Officers can 
provide Members with technical, Council information, which is used by 
Members as part of their correspondence.  

 
10.1.5 Members should correspond in their own name. When writing in an 

individual capacity, Members must make clear that fact. 
 
 
 

10.2 Email Communications 
 

10.2.1 Members and Officers are to follow the Council’s Electronic 
Communications Policy and are not to use electronic communications 
(emails, online communications, including social media, or texts) to 
store/send materials or requests, which are offensive, bullying or 
causes offence to others. 

 
10.2.2 Where Members and Officers receive any electronic communications, 

which may breach the Council’s Codes of Conduct or other Council 
policies and /or the law, they must follow the advice in section 16 on 
what to do when things go wrong. 

 
10.2.3 When considering sending emails and online communications to third 

parties, such as community groups, Members and Officers must be 
make a clear distinction between what is:- 
 

• Public information which can be shared with third parties  

• Internal Council Business which is confidential. 
 
10.3 Casework/Service Complaints 
 

10.3.1 The Council has a dedicated team which provides support for 
Members’ casework and enquiries. Members may also direct queries 
and service complaints to the relevant Director.  Officers should 
acknowledge the enquiry and if possible provide a response within 3 
working days.  If the enquiry requires some investigation and further 
work, Members should be informed about this and then the response 
is to be available within 10 working days.    

 
10.3.2 Members can escalate any service issue to the Chief Executive or the 

Director of Legal and Governance Policy and Democratic 

Page 282



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 15 of 19 
 

Engagement if they remain dissatisfied with the matter after referral to 
the Director. 

 
11. PUBLICITY AND DEALING WITH THE MEDIA  
 

11.1 Officers will not publish or assist in publishing material designed to affect 
public support for any political party this is to ensure compliance with the 
Local Government Act 1986, which prohibits such activities. 

 
11.2 All formal publicity material produced by the Authority will state the Council’s 

position and not an individual’s view or personal position.  Publicity should not 
be liable to misrepresentation as being party political. 

 
11.3 All formal relations with the media must be conducted in accordance with the 

Council’s agreed procedures and the Code of Recommended Practice on 
Local Authority Publicity.  

 
11.4 The Council’s contact with the media is led by the Communications Service.  

Officers or Members who have been contacted by the media or who wish to 
issue a press release or statement should seek advice from the 
Communications Service. 

 
12. PRE ELECTION RULES ON PUBLICITY 
 

12.1 If a Member is fighting an election the Code of Recommended Practice on 
Local Authority Publicity should be followed. 

 
12.2 The general rule is that a local authority must not at any time publish any 

material that in whole or in part appears to be designed to create support for a 
political party. 

 

12.3 Pre-Election this is even more sensitive and particular care needs to be taken 
to ensure that publicity could not be perceived as seeking to influence or to 
promote the public image of a particular candidate or group of candidates.  
During the PERP period Officers rather than Members should be quoted on 
news releases about Council initiatives, facilities and services. 

 
12.4 Individual Councillors can generate their own publicity during this period 

subject to their own party’s protocols but public funds must not be used to 
campaign to promote a particular point of view that could be associated with a 
political initiative.  The Council restrictions only apply to official Council 
organised publicity including press releases or events. 

 

12.5 Council events that cannot be re-scheduled for operational reasons must be 
arranged to ensure that there is no likelihood of criticism arising that the real 
purpose of the event is to publicise one particular party. 

Page 283



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 16 of 19 
 

 
12.6 Council functions such as Committee meetings may continue during the 

period. 
 
12.7 Council staff must always be careful not to give the impression of supporting a 

political party, set of policies or candidate. Council resources may not be used 
at any time to support party political activity.  Officers must not engage in 
political activity during working hours or with Council facilities.  Some staff 
hold politically restricted posts which limit the political activity they can be 
involved in outside work. 

 
 
 
13. MEMBERSHIP OF ORGANISATIONS 

 
13.1 Members and Officers are both required to declare in writing to the Monitoring 

Officer their membership of any organisation not open to the public that 
requires formal membership and oaths of allegiance and which has secrecy 
about rules, membership or conduct.   

 
13.2 The expectation of the City Council is that Members will declare publicly any 

such involvement. However, such interests will not be included on the 
Register of Members Interests.  

 
14. MEMBERS ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND TO COUNCIL DOCUMENTS 
 
14.1 Members are entitled to approach any Council Service to provide them with 

such information, explanation and advice with regard to that Service’s 
functions as they may reasonably require in order to assist them in 
discharging their role as Elected Members.  This can range from a request for 
general information about some aspects of a Service’s activities to requests 
for specific information on behalf of a constituent.  Such approaches should 
normally in the first instance be directed to the Head of the Service or the 
Executive appropriate Strategic Director for the Portfolio.  
 

14.2 A Member’s legal rights to inspect Council Documents are partly covered by 
statutes including Data Protection Act 2018 and Freedom of Information Act 
2000, Local Government Act 1972 and Environmental Information 
Regulations 2004 and partly by decided case law. 
 

14.3 Briefly, Members have a statutory right to inspect any Council document 
which contains material relating to any business which is to be transacted at a 
Council or Committee Meeting or Statutory Committee.  Such a right applies 
irrespective of whether the Member is a Member of the Body concerned and 
extends not only to reports which are to be submitted to the meeting but also 
to any relevant background documentation.  Such a right does not however 

Page 284



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 17 of 19 
 

apply to documents relating to items which are confidential.  Such matters are 
those which contain confidential information relating to employees, occupiers 
of Council property, applicants for grants and other services, the care of 
children and vulnerable adults, contracts, industrial relations negotiations, 
legal advice including counsel’s opinion and criminal or conduct 
investigations. 
 

14.4 Decided case law gives Members a somewhat broader right to documentation 
based on the principle that any Member has a prima-facie right to inspect 
Council documents “so far as his/her access to documents is reasonably 
necessary to enable the Member properly to perform his or her duties as a 
Member of the Council“.  Members will recognise this as the “need to know” 
principle. 

 
14.5 The exercise of such right depends upon a Member’s ability to demonstrate 

that he/she has got a need to know.  This does not entitle a Member to make 
speculative enquiries sometimes referred to as “a fishing expedition” i.e. mere 
curiosity is not sufficient.  The crucial issue is the determination of whether 
that Member has a need to know.  
 

14.6 In certain instances, such as an Elected Member wishing to inspect 
documents relating to the functions of the Body on which they serve, then 
there is a presumption that such Member already has a need to know.  
However, in other instances, for example a Member wishing to inspect 
documents that contain personal information about third parties, then that 
individual Member would be required to justify the request in specific terms. 
 

14.7 Whilst the expression “Council Document” is very broad and includes for 
example any document produced from Council resources a Member of one 
party group will not have a “need to know” and therefore a right to inspect a 
document which forms part of the internal workings of another party group. 

 
14.8 Where Officers consider access should be refused and Members disagree, or 

vice versa, the decision should be made by the relevant Head of Service or 
Executive Strategic Director.  This decision should be informed by best 
practice guidance to local authorities provided by the Information 
Commissioner’s Office. 
 

14.9 Officers and Members must follow the Council’s Information Security Policy 
which controls how Council information is managed. Members and Officers 
should be aware of the significant consequences of losing or wrongly 
disclosing information.  
 

14.10 Finally, and very importantly any Council information provided to a 
Member must only be used by the Member for the purpose which it was 

Page 285



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 18 of 19 
 

provided, i.e. in connection with the proper performance of a Member’s 
official duties. 

 
The Councillor Code of Conduct says that a Member must not disclose 
information given to them in confidence or information that they believe to be 
confidential, without consent of a person authorised to give consent, unless 
very specific requirements are met such as they are required to do so by law. 

 
Members are to take advice from the Monitoring Officer before releasing any 
confidential information or refusing access to information that a person is 
entitled to by law. 

 
14.11 Further and more detailed advice regarding Members’ right to inspect Council 

documents may be obtained from the Director of Legal and Governance 
Monitoring Officer.  
 

15. WHAT TO DO WHEN THINGS GO WRONG 
 
Officers Concerns about Members  
 
If an Officer feels that they have been asked/told to do things that appear to be 
outside the Councillor Code of Conduct or this Protocol:- 

 

• Officers are to raise the issue with appropriate senior manager; Officer, Manager 
and Member to have informal discussion; a record to be retained of salient points 
and actions. 

 

• If the conduct continues or is disputed, Officer may refer the complaint to the 
Monitoring Officer who will arrange for the Executive Strategic Director to 
investigate and report recommendations back in writing to Officer, Member and 
Monitoring Officer within a reasonable period of time.  

 

• If informal procedures do not reach a satisfactory conclusion Officer may 
consider using the Whistleblowing Procedure set out in the Officers’ Code of 
Conduct or, where an Officer feels a Member has breached the Councillor Code 
of Conduct, in particularly serious cases and with the advice of the Monitoring 
Officer referral of the matter to the Audit and Standards Committee. 

 
Members Concerns about Officers 
 
If a Member feels that an Officer has acted in a manner that is contrary to this 
Protocol:- 
 

Page 286



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 
___________________________________________________________________ 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
   Page 19 of 19 
 

• Members are to raise the matter with Officer and Officer’s Manager; Member and 
Officer and Manager to have informal discussion as soon as reasonably 
practicable; Manager to retain a record of salient points and actions. 

 

• If the conduct continues or is disputed, Member may refer the complaint to the 
Monitoring Officer who will arrange for the Executive Strategic Director to 
investigate and report recommendations back in writing to Member, Officer and 
Monitoring Officer within a reasonable period of time. 

 

• The Manager may decide that appropriate disciplinary action is required; if so, 
he/she will notify the Monitoring Officer who will decide in consultation with the 
relevant Human Resources Officer whether formal action, as set out in the 
Officers’ Code of Conduct and the Officer Employment Procedure Rules, should 
be taken. 

 
 
 
 
Members Concerns about Senior Officers 
 

• If the complaint concerns a Statutory Officer or Executive Strategic Director the 
complaint may be referred to the Chief Executive for the preliminary investigation 
and decision which will then be given to the Member concerned. 

 

• Where a complaint relates to the Chief Executive both the Chief Executive and 
the Member concerned shall consider whether a meeting facilitated by the 
relevant whip or party leader could resolve the situation. 

 

• In all situations the Officer (or Senior Officer) may involve their Trade Union 
representative and only Managers (not Members) in consultation with the 
relevant Human Resources Officer will decide whether formal action should be 
taken. 

 
 
 

Page 287



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Committee Chair Job-Share Protocol  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

 

Appendix 17 
 
COMMITTEE CHAIR JOB-SHARE PROTOCOL  
 
The Council may appoint two Members jointly to share the position of Committee, 
but not Sub-Committee, Chair (Job-Share Chairs, or “Co-Chairs”). This Protocol sets 
out the arrangements and expectations where the role is shared. 
 
Why have Job-Share Co-Chairs?  
 
The potential benefits include: 
 

• Making chairmanship (and leadership positions in general) potentially 
available to those Members who would not otherwise be able to make the 
necessary time commitment for whatever reason;  

• Ensuring that Sheffield City Council does not lose out on the leadership 
contribution of Chairs who are also carers, parents or in full-time education or 
work;  

• Increasing the capacity and broadening the capability of Chairs;  

• Recognising the likely workload of these positions;  

• Creating opportunities for a more representative sample of Members to take 
leadership roles, for example facilitating a gender balance. 

 
What is Job-Sharing?  
 

• Two Members essentially fulfil one Chair position on a job-share basis.  

• The posts could also be combined with the role of Deputy Chair, or where 
there is a single Chair the role of Deputy Chair may be job-shared, or the 
committee may decide that it does not need an additional Deputy Chair role. 

• There is only one formal Chair of a meeting at any one time and only that 
Chair has the casting vote.  

• The other Job-Share Co-Chair attends the meeting as an ordinary committee 
member when their counterpart is in the Chair.  

• Outside meetings, the Job-Share Co-Chairs arrange between themselves 
how their responsibilities are shared and ensure that other Members and 
Officers are informed. 

• Both Members receive a Special Responsibility Allowance, or a proportion of 
one, recognising the scale of the role they are undertaking and the associated 
time commitment. 

 
Ways of Working 
 

1. Job-Share Co-Chairs will agree between themselves the arrangements for 
chairing meetings. They may take turns at alternate meetings, or on a periodic 
rotation, or otherwise, providing that when the relevant Job-Share Co-Chair is 
not available the other Job-Share Co-Chair or in their absence the Deputy 
Chair will chair the meeting.  

 

Page 288



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Committee Chair Job-Share Protocol  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

 

2. Pre-Agenda Meetings, Pre-Meetings, other cross-party briefings for Chairs 
and spokespersons, and any other Chair’s briefings by Officers may be 
attended by both Job-Share Co-Chairs and the Deputy Chair. 

3. Cross-party briefings for Chairs and spokespersons may be attended by both 
Job-Share Chairs provided only one of them speaks. Where briefings are for 
all Members, or members of a committee, both may attend and speak.  

 
4.3. Where there are Job-Share Co-Chairs for a Policy Committee only one 

may be appointed to Strategy and Resources Policy Committee by virtue of 
being the Chair of their committee. The other Co-Chair may not attend briefing 
sessions for Strategy and Resources members unless appointed to that 
committee in another capacity (including as a substitute member for the 
specific meeting). The appointment will be made at the Annual Meeting of the 
Council but as with any committee membership Full Council may agree a 
change at a subsequent meeting provided that this does not affect the political 
proportionality of the committee.  

 
5.4. Job-Share Co-Chairs must arrange between themselves how their 

responsibilities are to be shared and ensure that other Members and Officers 
are informed about the arrangements. This is important for clarity and 
certainty.  

 
6.5. The arrangements may include dividing responsibilities so that each 

leads on separate specific areas of the committee’s remit. The Job-Share Co-
Chairs shall provide Officers with a breakdown of those areas indicating who 
is the first point of contact where guidance from the Chair is required.  

 
7.6. Outside of formal committee meetings, Job-Share Co-Chairs will each 

act as the first point of contact for their areas of the committee’s business 
when working with council officers, residents, partners etc. 

 
8.7. Email correspondence from Members and Officers should be sent to 

both Job-Share Co-Chairs, ideally addressed to the one who is responsible 
for the particular area covered in the communication, with the other copied in.  

 
9.8. Officers are not required to obtain agreement from both Job-Share Co-

Chairs when seeking guidance on a course of action. They will assume that 
any steer or guidance provided by one Job-Share Co-Chair is on behalf of 
both. Job-Share Co-Chairs shall be responsible for consulting each other on 
issues and for reaching a consensus prior to providing guidance to Officers. 

 
10.9. These arrangements are the minimum expected. Job-Share Co-Chairs 

are expected to consult with relevant Officers and supplement them with 
additional requirements as necessary.  

 
11.10. The above arrangements are for guidance only and failure to comply 

with the proposed arrangements shall not affect the legal validity of any action 
taken by an Officer, the Chair or the Committee. 

 

Page 289



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 5 – Committee Chair Job-Share Protocol  
______________________________________________________________ 
 

 

12. The ongoing review process into the operation of the Committee System shall 
include a full review of these Job-Share Chair arrangements after such a role 
has been shared for the first time. The review may consider the option for 
Job-Share Chairs who are members of the same political group to decide 
between themselves which one should attend a meeting of Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee. 

 
Remuneration 
 
It is a matter for the Independent Remuneration Panel to consider the workloads of 
Job-Share Co-Chairs and make recommendations on their remuneration. For 
example, it may be that in a new system, the roles of Chairs could be designed to be 
more time consuming than one person could manage, meaning that each Job-Share 
Co-Chair is doing more than half of a role. 
 
It is however the responsibility of the Job-Share Co-Chairs to make sure that their 
joint workload is spread proportionately so that, for example, neither is doing a full-
time post for half the Special Responsibility Allowance. 
 
 
 
Joint Chairs 
 
Two Chairs (“Joint Chairs”), each with equal full responsibility for the role, may be 
appointed to the Regulatory Committees in recognition of the fact that they meet 
more frequently than other committees.  
 
A maximum of two jJoint Chairs may be appointed to any one committee. If jJoint 
Chairs are appointed then a Deputy Chair shall not be appointed to that committee. 
The Chair role cannot be job-shared if there are jJoint Chairs. 
 
As with Job-Share Co-Chairs, only one jJoint Chair can chair a committee meeting 
and have the casting vote at any one time. The other attends the meeting as an 
ordinary committee member. The Chair will be identified at the start of the meeting. 
 
 

Page 290



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022)  
Part 5 – Protocol for the Use of the City’s Coat of Arms  
 

Appendix 18 
 

PROTOCOL FOR THE USE OF THE CITY'S COAT OF ARMS 
 
 
Granting approval for the use of the Coat of Arms is delegated to the Director of 
Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer. 
 
On receipt of a request for its use, Democratic Services will notify the Director of 
Legal and Governance Chief Legal Officer of the request and provide a suggested 
recommendation, based on previous approvals (precedents), in order to promote 
consistency. 
 
Whilst each application is considered on its merits, the following general criteria will 
be taken into account:- 
 
(1) If use is not for commercial purposes and is for an "official" event or activity, 

such as for use by the Authority or a third party on behalf of the Authority, 
approval will generally be given and the person requesting use will usually be 
sent a pdf.doc, containing the Coat of Arms. 

 
(2) If use is for purposes such as a logo for an organisation (for example a sports 

club) and is not for commercial purposes, permission to use the central shield 
from the Coat of Arms, rather than the Coat of Arms itself, will usually be 
granted. 

 
(3) If use is for commercial purposes, permission will generally be refused. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 291



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 1 of 14 
  

         Appendix 19  
 

STATUTORY AND PROPER OFFICERS 

1 The Local Government Act 1972 and other legislation require local 
authorities to make specific statutory appointments and designations 
(Statutory and Proper Officers) which carry specific responsibilities. For 
the avoidance of doubt, any post mentioned below will also include an 
interim appointment to that position. 

 
 In the event of the officers named below in 3 and 4 being unable to act 

or of any of the posts being vacant, the Chief Executive, or in his/her 
absence the relevant Executive Strategic Director, will appoint an 
officer to act in their place. 

3 The following are the Statutory Officers of the Council for the purposes 
 stated:- 

 

Legislation 
 

Description Allocated To 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 
Section 4 
 

Head of Paid Service Chief Executive 

Local Government 
Act 1972 
Section 151 
 

Chief Finance Officer Director of Finance 
and Commercial 
Services 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 
Section 5 
 

Monitoring Officer Director of Legal and 
GovernanceGeneral 
Counsel 

Local Authority 
Social Services 
Act 1970 
Section 6 
 

Director of Adult Social 
Services 

Strategic Director of 
Adults Health and 
Social Care and 
Wellbeing 

Children Act 2004 
Section 18 
 

Director of Children’s Services Strategic Director of 
Children’s Services   

Page 292



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 2 of 14 
  

National Health 
Service Act 2006 
Section 73A  

Director of Public Health  Strategic Director of 
Public Health and 
Commissioning  
 

4 The following are the Proper Officers of the Council for the purposes 
 stated:- 

 

Local Government 
Act 1972 
 

Description Proper Officer  

Section 83 Officer  who takes 
declarations of acceptance 
of office 
 

General Counsel 
Director of Legal 
and Governance 

Section 84 Officer to whom a person 
elected to any office listed 
in Section 83 may give 
written notice  of 
resignation 
 

Director of Policy 
and Democratic 
Engagement Legal 
and Governance 

Section 88(2) Officer who may convene a 
meeting of the Council for 
the election to fill casual 
vacancy of chairman of the 
Council  
 

Director of Policy 
and Democratic 
Engagement Legal 
and Governance 

Section 89(1) Officer who may receive 
notice in writing of a casual 
vacancy in the office of 
Councillor from two local 
government electors for the 
area 
 

Electoral Services 
Manager 

Section 100B(2) Officer who may think fit to 
exclude from reports open 
to inspection by members 
of the public parts relating 
to items during which the 
meeting is likely not to be 
open to the public  
 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel in 
consultation with the 
relevant Executive 
Strategic Director 

Section 100B(7)(c) Officer who makes 
available to the press 

Head of Democratic 
Services  

Page 293



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 3 of 14 
  

copies of documents 
already supplied to 
Councillors in connection 
with an item on the agenda 
for a meeting of the Council 
 

Section 100C(2) Officer responsible for 
preparing a written 
summary of those parts of 
the committee proceedings 
which disclose exempt 
information 
 

Head of Democratic 
Services 

Section 100D(1)(a) Officer responsible for 
identifying background 
papers for the report for a 
meeting of the Council and 
compiling a list of such 
documents 
 

Relevant Executive 
Strategic Director  

Section 100F(2) Officer who makes 
decisions as to documents 
disclosing exempt 
information which are not 
required to be open to 
inspection by Councillors  
 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel in 
consultation with the 
relevant Executive 
Strategic Director 

Section 115 Officer to whom all officers 
shall pay monies received 
by them and due to the 
Local Authority  
 

Executive Director 
of Finance and 
Commercial 
Services, Resources 
or  their nominee 

Section 146(1)(a) Officer authorised to 
produce a statutory 
declaration specifying 
securities and verifying the 
change of name and 
identity of the authority 
 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
Geeral Counsel 

Section 151 
 
 

Officer responsible for the 
proper administration of the 
authority’s financial affairs 
(“Chief Finance Officer”) 
 

Director of Finance 
and Commercial 
Services  

Page 294



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 4 of 14 
  

Section 191 Officer who receives 
applications from Ordnance 
Survey Office in relation to 
examining, ascertaining 
and marking out reputed 
Local Authority boundaries  
 

Director of Policy 
and Democratic 
Engagement Legal 
and Governance  

Section 210(6) and (7)  Officer in whom power is 
vested to exercise any 
power with respect to a 
charity exercisable by any 
officer of a former 
corresponding authority  
 

General Counsel 
Director of Legal 
and Governance  

Section 225 Officer with whom 
documents may be 
deposited pursuant to law, 
who can make notes or 
endorsements and give 
acknowledgements or 
receipts  
 

Director of Legal 
and 
GovernanceGeneral 
Counsel 

Section 229(5) Officer who signs a 
certificate that a document 
is a photographic copy of a 
document in the custody of 
the Council  
 

Director of Legal 
and 
GovernanceGeneral 
Counsel 

Section 234(1) Officer who signs notices, 
orders or other documents 
on behalf of the Council  
 

Director of Legal 
and 
GovernanceGeneral 
Counsel 

Section 236(9) Officer who sends copies of 
byelaws made by the 
Council to parish councils 
or parish meetings 
 

Director of Policy 
and Democratic 
Engagement Legal 
and Governance 

Section 238 Officer responsible for 
certifying copies of byelaws 
 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

Schedule 12 Para 
4(1A)(b) 

Officer who may sign and 
send to all Councillors a 
summons to attend Council 
meetings  
 

Director of Policy 
and Democratic 
Engagement Legal 
and Governance 

Page 295



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 5 of 14 
  

Schedule 14 Para 25 Officer who may certify 
copies of resolutions 
passed under this 
Paragraph  
 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

Public Health Act 
1936 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 84 Officer who certifies that an 
article is filthy or verminous 
 

Director of Street 
Scene and 
Regulation 
 

Section 85(2) Officer who reports that any 
person or the clothing of 
any person is verminous 
 

Director of Street 
Scene and 
Regulation 

Section 85(4) Officer who authorises a 
woman to carry out 
cleansing of females 

Director of Street 
Scene and 
Regulation 

   

Registration Service 
Act 1953  
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 9 Officer who determines or 
appoints interim 
superintendent registrar or 
interim registrar of births 
and deaths 
 

Director of 
Operational Human 
Resources and 
Customer Services  

Section 13 Officer on whom powers 
are conferred under the 
local scheme of 
organisation 

Director of 
Operational Human 
Resources and 
Customer Services 

   

Local Authority 
Social Services Act 
1970 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 6 Officer appointed as 
Director of Adult Social 
Services 

Strategic Director of 
Adults Health and 
Social Careand 
Wellbeing 

   

Page 296



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 6 of 14 
  

Local Government 
Act 1974 
 

Description  Proper Officer 

Section 30(5) Officer responsible for 
arranging publication in 
newspapers of a notice that 
a Local Commissioner’s 
report on an investigation of 
a matter is available for 
inspection by the public 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

   

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 
  

Description  Proper Officer  

Section 41 Officer responsible for 
certifying copies of 
resolutions, orders, reports, 
minutes of Council 
meetings and other 
documents or authorising a 
person in that behalf  

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

   

Rent Act 1977 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Schedule 15, Part IV Officer who signs certificate 
that the local housing 
authority will provide 
suitable alternative 
accommodation 

Director of Housing  

   

Highways Act 1980 
 

Description  Proper Officer  

Section 59 Officer responsible for 
certifying that extraordinary 
expenses have been or will 
be incurred in maintaining 
the highway by reason of 
damage caused by 
excessive weight passing 
along the highway or other 
extraordinary traffic 
 

Head of Waste and 
Highway 
Maintenance  

Page 297



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 7 of 14 
  

Section 205 Officer responsible for 
undertaking duties as 
specified in this Section 
and Schedule 16 in relation 
to private street works 
 

Head of Waste and 
Highway 
Maintenance 

Section 210 Officer responsible for 
certifying amendments to 
estimated costs and 
consequential provisional 
apportionment of costs 
under the private street 
works code 
 

Head of Waste and 
Highway 
Maintenance 

Sections 211, 212 and 
216 

Officer responsible for 
making a final 
apportionment of costs 
under the private street 
works code 
 

Head of Waste and 
Highway 
Maintenance 

Section 295 Officer responsible for 
issuing notices requiring 
removal of materials from 
non-maintainable streets in 
which works are due to 
take place  
 

Head of Strategic 
Transport 
Sustainability and 
Infrastructure  

Section 321 Officer responsible for 
signing notices, consents, 
approvals, orders, 
demands, licences, 
certificates and other 
documents 
 

Head of Strategic 
Transport 
Sustainability and 
Infrastructure  

Schedule 9 Para 4  Officer responsible for 
signing plans showing 
proposed prescribed 
improvement lines or 
building lines 

Head of Waste and 
Highway 
Maintenance  

   

Representation of the 
People Act 1983 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Page 298



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 8 of 14 
  

Section 8 
 

Officer appointed as 
Registration Officer for the 
registration of 
Parliamentary and Local 
Government Electors 
 

 Chief Executive 
 
 

Section 28  Officer to discharge duties 
of the returning officer as 
Acting 
Returning Officer at 
Parliamentary Elections 
 

Chief Executive 

Section 35 Officer appointed as 
Returning Officer for local 
elections 
 

Chief Executive 

Section 52 
 

Officer approved as deputy 
to perform the powers and 
duties of the Registration 
Officer and officer 
appointed to carry out any 
acts of the Registration 
Officer in the event of his 
incapacity or a vacancy 
 

Electoral Services 
Manager 
 

Section 67 Officer to whom 
declarations 
and public notice of election 
agents’ appointments are 
made 
 

Chief Executive for 
Parliamentary 
Elections; 
Electoral Services 
Manager for local 
elections 
 

Section 131 Officer responsible for 
providing 
accommodation for holding 
election court 

Electoral Services 
Manager 
 

   

Building Act 1984 
 

Description  Proper Officer 

Section 78(1) and (8) Officer who may take 
immediate action in relation 
to dangerous buildings, 
structures or parts thereof 

Director of 
Investment, and 
Climate Change and 
Planning 

   

Page 299



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 9 of 14 
  

Public Health 
(Control of Disease) 
Act 1984  
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 48 Officer who certifies that it 
would be a health risk to 
retain a body in a place 

Any person for the 
time being 
employed as a 
Consultant in 
Communicable 
Disease Control / 
Consultant in Health 
Protection at the 
Yorkshire and 
Humber Health 
Protection team of 
the UK Health 
Security Agency 
(UKHSA) 
 

Section 59 Officer who signs and 
authenticates notices, 
orders or other documents 
 

Director of Street 
Scene and 
Regulation 

Section 61 Officer with power to enter 
premises 

Director of Street 
Scene and 
Regulation and any 
officer personally 
authorised by him 

   

Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 
 

Description  Proper Officer 

Section 114 Officer responsible for 
making financial reports to 
the authority  
 

Director of Finance 
and Commercial 
Services 

Section 116 Officer responsible for 
notifying the authority’s 
auditor of the date, time 
and place of meeting to 
consider s114 report and of 
decision of such meeting  
 

Director of Finance 
and Commercial 
Services 

   

Page 300



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 10 of 14 
  

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 
 

Description  Proper Officer 

Section 2(4) Officer with whom the list of 
politically restricted posts 
shall be deposited  
 

Chief Executive 

Section 4 
 

Officer designated as Head 
of Paid Service  
 

Chief Executive  

Section 5 
 

Officer designated as 
Monitoring Officer  

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

   

Local Government 
(Committees and 
Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990  
 

Description   Proper Officer  

Regulation 8(1) and (5) Officer to whom notice in 
writing is delivered about 
the constitution of a political 
group or the change of 
name of a political group  
 

Head of Democratic 
Services  

Regulations 9 and 10  Officer to whom notice in 
writing is delivered about a 
Councillor’s membership, 
or cessation of 
membership, in a political 
group 
 

Head of Democratic 
Services 

Regulation 13 Officer to whom the wishes 
of a political group are 
expressed 
 

Head of Democratic 
Services 

Regulation 14 Officer responsible for 
notifying in writing the 
leader or deputy leader of a 
political group about 
allocations and vacations of 
seats  
 

Head of Democratic 
Services 

Page 301



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 11 of 14 
  

   

Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 149 Officer responsible for 
discharging functions 
conferred by this section for 
dealing with stray dogs 

Director of Street 
Scene and 
Regulation 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Food Safety Act 1990 Description Proper Officer 

Section 49 Officer who signs any 
document authorised or 
required by or under the 
Act 

Director of Street 
Scene and 
Regulation 

   

The Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) 
(England) 
Regulations 2001 
 

Description  Proper Officer 

Schedule 1, Part 2, 
Paragraphs 5 and 6 

Officer responsible for 
receiving notification of 
proposed appointment or 
dismissal of certain officers, 
notifying executive 
members of that proposed 
appointment or dismissal 
and for receiving and 
notifying of objections to 
the proposed appointment 
or dismissal 

Director of Human 
Resources and 
Customer Services 

   

Children Act 2004 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 18 Officer appointed as 
Director of Children’s 
Services 

Strategic Director of 
Children’s Services  

   

Housing Act 2004 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 4 Officer responsible for 
inspection of premises and 

Director of Housing  

Page 302



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 12 of 14 
  

who gives an opinion as to 
the existence of category 1 
or 2 hazards or the need to 
declare a clearance area 
 

Section 239 Officer with power to enter 
premises in connection with 
a section 4 inspection  
  

Director of Housing  

Section 249 Officer who signs certificate 
on copy of designation by 
the authority of an area as 
subject to additional or 
selective licensing  

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

   

National Health 
Service Act 2006 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 73A Officer appointed as 
Director of Public Health 

Strategic Director of 
Public Health and 
Commissioning 

   

Local Elections 
(Principal Areas) 
(England and Wales) 
Rules 2006 

Description Proper Officer 

Schedule 2 Rule 50 
Schedule 3 Rule 50 

Officer to whom Returning 
Officer gives notice of 
candidates elected to the 
Council 

Director of Policy 
and Democratic 
Engagement Legal 
and Governance  

   

Local Authority 
Social Services and 
National Health 
Service Complaints 
(England) 
Regulations 2009 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Regulation 4(1)(a) and 
(4) 

Officer designated as 
Responsible Person to 
ensure compliance with 
arrangements made under 
these Regulations 
 

Chief Executive 

Page 303



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 13 of 14 
  

Regulation 4(2) Officer authorised by the 
Council to perform the 
functions of the 
Responsible Person 

Strategic Director of 
Adults Health and 
Social Care and  
Wellbeing 
Director of 
Integrated 
Commissioning 

Regulation 4(1)(b) and 
(5) 

Officer designated as 
complaints manager to 
manage the procedures for 
handling and considering 
complaints 

Complaints 
Manager 

   

Health Protection 
(Notification) 
Regulations 2010 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Regulations 2, 3 and 6 Receipt and disclosure of 
notification of suspected 
notifiable disease, infection 
or contamination in patients 
and dead persons. 

Any person for the 
time being 
employed as a 
Consultant in 
Communicable 
Disease Control / 
Consultant in Health 
Protection at the 
Yorkshire and 
Humber Health 
Protection team of 
the UK Health 
Security Agency 
(UKHSA) 

   

Localism Act 2011 Description Proper Officer 

Section 33 Officer to whom request is 
made for dispensation from 
the restrictions in section 
31(4) on participation 
where a member has a 
disclosable pecuniary 
interest 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

   

Local Authorities 
(Referendums) 
(Petitions) (England) 
Regulations 2011 

Description Proper Officer 

Page 304



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7A – Statutory and Proper Officers (updated September 2022) 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 14 of 14 
  

 

Regulation  4(1) Officer who publishes the 
number that is equal to 5 
per cent of the number of 
local government electors 
for the authority’s area 

Director of Policy 
and Democratic 
Engagement Legal 
and Governance  

   

Openness of Local 
Government Bodies 
Regulations 2014 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Regulation 6 Officer who forms an 
opinion as to whether the 
documents relating to an 
officer delegated decision 
under Regulation 7(2) are 
background papers for the 
purpose of this Regulation 
 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

Regulation 9 Officer who determines 
whether a document 
contains or is likely to 
contain either exempt or 
confidential information 

Director of Legal 
and Governance 
General Counsel 

   

Counter Terrorism 
and Security Act 
2015 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 37 Officer designated to 
represent the authority on 
the statutory assessment 
and support panel (the 
“Channel Panel”) 

Service Manager – 
East Area (child 
protection) 
Fieldwork Team 

   

Data Protection Act 
2018 
 

Description Proper Officer 

Section 69 Officer designated as Data 
Protection Officer 

Senior Information 
Manager 

 

Page 305



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 1 of 20 
  

Appendix 20 
 
MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 
 

Designated as the Head of Paid Service under the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 section 4 
 
Has overall corporate and management responsibility for the work of the 
Council, including the number and grade of officers required for the discharge 
of functions 
 
Responsible for:- 
 
Senior Management Team: 

• Strategic Director of Public Health and Commissioning  

• Strategic Director of Adults Care and Wellbeing  

• Strategic Director of Children’s Services  

• Chief Operating Officer  
• Executive Director – City Futures  
• Executive Director –Neighbourhood Services  

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 306



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 2 of 20 
  

 
 

PUBLIC HEALTH AND COMMISSIONING  
 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH AND 

COMMISSIONING  
Designated as the Director of Public Health under the National Health Service 
Act 2006 section 73A 
 
Statutory Member of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Responsible for:- 
 

• Public Health functions: 
o Health Intelligence  
o Health Protection  
o Health Improvement 
o NHS and Cared Support 
o Public Health Grant 

• Public Health input to the (NHS) Integrated Care Board 

• Lead Director for the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

• Work with Director of Children’s Services, Director of Adult Social 
Services and NHS commissioners helping to lead a whole system 
approach to public health across the public sector 

• Planning for and responding to emergencies that present a risk to 
public health 

• Writing an Annual Report on the Health of the Population 
 

 
DIRECTOR OF INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING 

• Capital Strategy (jointly shared with Education and Skills)  

• Contracts and Partnerships  
 
Commissioning 

• Building Successful Families – Supporting Families 

• Domestic Abuse and Service Commissioning and Performance 
Management, MARAC and Domestic Homicide Review Processes 

• Women’s Refuge Commissioning  

• Housing Related Support Commissioning  

Page 307



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 3 of 20 
  

• Drug and Alcohol Strategy and Service Commissioning including drug 
and alcohol treatment, pharmacy services, outreach and detox/rehab 
services. 

• Information Advice and Guidance 

• Early Years and Education Sufficiency capital  

• Early Years and Education Sufficiency places  

• SEND and SEND Transitions Suffiency 

• Special Educational Needs and Disabilities Information Advice and 
Support Services (SENDIASS) 

• Transitions:  Emotional Wellbeing and Mental Health, Eating Disorders 
services, sexual health 

• Looked After Children and Care Leavers Sufficiency 

• Children’s Mental Health Strategic Development and Joint 
Commissioning 

• Leading commissioning of the Public Health Grant 

• Changing Futures Programme – supporting people with multiple 
disadvantage 

• Joint Commissioning Committee with NHS  

• Carers Strategy and Commissioning of Carer Services (Children, 
Families and Young People) 

• Sexual Health Service Commissioning 
 
Voluntary Sector  

• Voluntary Sector Liaison 

• Voluntary Sector Grant Aid Strategy and Programme (advice and 
management) 

• Strategic lead on relationships and development with the Voluntary, 
Community and Faith Sector building capacity and sustainability in the 
sector 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 308



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 4 of 20 
  

 

 

 

ADULTS WELLBEING AND CARE SERVICES 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF ADULTS CARE AND WELLBEING  
 
Designated as Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) under the Local 
Authority Social Services Act 1970 Section 6 
 

• Nominated Officer for CQC Regulated Adults Services  

• Statutory Member Health and Wellbeing Board 

• Member Health and Care Partnership Board 
 
Responsible for: - 
 
Chief Social Work Officer  
 

• Principial Social Worker 

• Principal Occupational Therapist 

• Adult Safeguarding - Serious Incidents, Safeguarding Adults Review, 
Domestic Homicide Reviews, Vulnerable Adults Panel, Organisational 
Safeguarding, Regulation 28 Reviews and Oversight 

• Council Wide Assurance regards Adult Safeguarding arrangements, 
policy, guidelines, and implementation.  

• Adult Safeguarding Board – Host management of manager and 
support posts on behalf Adult Safeguarding Partnership. 

• Adult Practice Development including Social Work Practice Guidance, 
Casefiles, Training & Standards.  

• Adult Caldicott Guardian and Adult Care Information Governance. 

• Social Work England Adult Nominated Representative. 

• Coordination of Adult Care Emergency Planning and Business 
Continuity 

 
Adult Care Operational Service Delivery 
 
Adult Future Options 

• Assessment, Support Planning, Review and Coordination of Support 
with people with a physical disability, people with a learning disability 
and/or who are autistic, people with a Sensory Impairment.  

Page 309



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 5 of 20 
  

• Assessment and support for Unpaid Carers supporting people with a 
disability, learning disability, sensory impairment and/ or who are 
autistic in partnership with Sheffield Carers Centre. 

• Transitions into Adulthood Assessment and Planning to ensure young 
people have the best start in life.  

• Future Options (Support to adults of working age living in care homes 
to increase their independence, inclusion and return to Sheffield where 
a person is living out of area). 

• Learning Disability Provider Services - Supported Living, Day Services, 
Residential Short Breaks, Adult Placement Shared Lives, Respite 

• Sensory Impairment Services including Sensory Impairment Register 
 

 Access, Mental Health and Wellbeing 

• Adult First Contact information, advice, first response and early 
intervention support and services, including multi-agency support and 
delivery. 

• Adult Safeguarding First Contact Investigations and Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub coordination.  

• Assessment, Support Planning, Review and Coordination of Support 
with people experiencing Mental Ill Health or who are vulnerable and at 
risk of harm.  

• Assessment and support to Unpaid Carers supporting people 
experiencing mental ill health in partnership with Sheffield Carers 
Centre.  

• Community Mental Health Social Work and Care Recovery Services – 
Council and Commissioned.  

• Forensic Mental Health Social Work Services 

• Approved Mental Health Professionals (AMHPS) 

• Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 

• Best Interest Assessments (BIA) 
 
Living and Ageing Well 

• Assessment, Support Planning, Review and Coordination of Support for 
Older Adults, people living with Dementia, people long term medical health 
conditions.  

• Assessment and Support for Unpaid Carers supporting older adults, 
people living with dementia and people living with long term medical health 
conditions in partnership with Sheffield Carers Centre.  

• Occupational Therapy, Equipment and Housing Adaptation Services – 
provision of equipment and adaptation services including joint equipment 
contract.  

• Support To Live Independently and Well at Home – Commissioned and 
Sheffield City Council Homecare (Care and Wellbeing Services, 

Page 310



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 6 of 20 
  

Community Reablement and enablement, Short Term Interventions, City 
Wide Care Alarms, Rapid Response and Enablement Services, Joint 
Pharmacy Support) 

• Long Term Residential Support - Residential Care, Supported Living and 
Extra Care.  

• First Response Services - Hospital Based Social Work Officer. 
 
Adult Care Strategy and Governance  
 
Care Governance and Financial Inclusion 

• Social Care Accounts Services including charging policy, financial 
assessments, charging, payments to providers and deferred payments.  

• Appointeeships and Deputyships services 

• Executor Services including house clearance, funerals and next of kin 
searches.  

• Income Management, maximisation, and financial inclusion and 
management of associated contracts. 

• Care Governance and Assurance including leadership of performance 
clinics 

• Care Financial Governance and business planning.  

• Business Support and Operational Governance coordination, work 
planning 

• Care Quality Commission Assurance coordination and ongoing 
planning. 

 
Adult Social Care Commissioning and Partnerships 

• Adult Social Care market position, shaping planning, management, and 
sufficiency plans including brokerage. 

• Adult Social Care Market Oversight, Sustainability and Provider Failure 
Contingency planning 

• Quality assurance and quality improvement support to all CQC 
regulated providers inclusive of Council, Commissioned and non-
commissioned provision to deliver excellent quality care.  

• Provision of Support (Adults and Young People in Transition) – 
Commissioning, oversight and contracting of support for all adults and 
young people in need of support inclusive of homecare and care in the 
home, residential care, supported living, extra care, technology 
enabled care, day services and activities, respite and short breaks and 
advocacy services.  

• Provision of Support (Unpaid Carers) - Commissioning, oversight and 
contracting of support for unpaid carers.  

Page 311



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 7 of 20 
  

• Strategic Planning - Strategic development, planning and support to 
the All-Age Partnership Boards, Operational Services, and other 
partnership boards as and when required.  

• Personalisation, Choice, and Control – Delivery of direct payments, 
including audit, commissioning of money management services, direct 
payment and personalisation strategy, market shaping and individual 
service funds.  

• Independent Living - Digital and Technology Enabled Care 
commissioning, strategic development, and delivery.  

• Health and Care Integration (Joint Commissioning and Joint Strategic 
Planning, with ICB and other relevant local and national partners) 

• Co-Production and Engagement – Charter, Think Act Local Personal, 
people and carer engagement and involvement and strategic delivery.   

 
Adult Social Care Strategy and Workforce Delivery 

• Adult Social Care Strategy delivery and co-designing and co-
production of a refresh of the strategy every three years.  

• Adult social care and care sector workforce strategy delivery, workforce 
planning including joint health and care workforce planning.  

• Coordination of Adult Care equity, equality, and social justice delivery  

• Adult Care Prevention strategy and coordination and oversight of 
associated delivery plans and partnership arrangements.  

• Support to and management of Adult Care Strategy Delivery and 
Workforce Partnership Boards.  

• Management of Healthwatch contract and partnership arrangements 

• Health and Care Integration – Better Care Fund Oversight and 
Management and Health and Wellbeing Board.  

• Adult Care stakeholder, partnership and workforce engagement and 
communications 

• Information and advice digital offer  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 312



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 8 of 20 
  

 
 
 
 

 

 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 

STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 
 
Designated as the Director of Children’s Services under the Children Act 2004 
section 18 
 
Statutory Member of the Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Responsible for:- 

 
DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES SERVICE 
 

• OFSTED Responsible Individual for Regulated Services 

• Children’s Social Work Services 

• Fostering Service 

• Adoption Service 

• Safeguarding Service 

• Children with Disabilities  

• Attendance Services 

• Children in Care Placement Quality Assurance and brokerage (joint 
responsibility with Integrated Commissioning) 

• Children in Care Services 

• Care Leavers Services 

• Corporate Parenting  

• Children’s Residential Services 

• Aldine House Secure Home 

• Youth Justice Service 

• Multi-Agency Support Teams (Early Intervention and Prevention 
Services)  
 

 
DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND SKILLS  

Page 313



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 9 of 20 
  

 
Schools and Education 

• Oversight Academies Programme 

• Liaison with Ofsted, Department for Education, Education and Skills 
Funding Agency, Regional DfE Director, Association of Directors of 
Children’s Services network  

• Advocacy for Children & Young People 

• Access and Inclusion Services - School Attendance, Admissions and 
Admission Appeals, Elective Home Education, Inclusion and 
Exclusions, Educational Attainment of Looked After Children – Virtual 
School, Children Missing from Education, Alternative Provision 

• Attendance Services 

• Learn Sheffield including commission for delivery of statutory functions 
for school improvement (Primary, Secondary and Special Schools)  

• School Governor Service 

• E-Learning 

• Maintaining Sufficiency of School Places 

• Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Services, including 
Education Psychology, Hearing Impaired, Visually Impaired and Autism 
Service  

• Services to Schools including Consultation and Engagement, Music 
Service, Children’s University, Outdoor Education Service (including 
Swimming and Thornbridge) 

• Targeted Support for Vulnerable Groups, including those with English 
as an Additional Language 

• School Improvement, and School Enquiries and Complaints 

• Community Cohesion (Engagement with Schools and Communities)  

• Early Years: Inclusion and Standards 

• Maintained Nursery Schools 

• Hospital and Home Tuition Service 

• Capital Strategy  

• Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education (SACRE) 

• Schools Financial and Resource Planning, including Resourcing 
Strategies, Transport Strategy, Food Services, Schools Forum 

• Refugee Resettlement Programmes (education element)  

• Family and Community Education 
 

Learning and Skills 

• Post 16 Learning Provision including 16 to 19 Study Programme, Post 
16 Transition, High Needs Learning Provision 

• Targeted Education Interventions including NEET (young people Not in 
Education, Employment or Training) prevention  

Page 314



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 10 of 20 
  

• Progression Programme Development – Enterprise, Employment & 
Digital Skills (cross-cutting with Director of Economic Development, 
Skills and Culture)  

• Skills Policy and Programmes (Children and Young People)   

• Apprenticeship Programme 
 

 
STRATEGIC SUPPORT SERVICES 

 

CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 
 
Responsible for:-  
 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & COMMERCIAL SERVICES 
 
Designated as the Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer) under the Local 
Government Act 1972 
 

Strategic Finance  

• Financial Planning, Accounting and Control 

• Financial Systems support  

• Internal Audit 

• External Grant Funding 

• Treasury: Banking, Cash Management and Investments 

• Taxation 

• Insurance  

• Risk Management Process 
 

Financial Business Partnering  

• Financial Business Partnering for all directorates 
 

Accounting and Infrastructure 

• Finance Systems and Training 

• Service finance and accounting support 

• Schools finance support 
 

Commercial Business Development 

• Capital Programme Budgeting and Accounting 

• Finance & Commercial Projects 

• Housing and Council Tax Benefits 

Page 315



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 11 of 20 
  

• Management of Hardship Payments and Discretionary Funding 
Arrangements 

• Council Tax and Business Rates Collection 

• Collection of Sundry Debt 

• Income & Commercialisation Agenda 

• Investment Strategy 

• Corporate Debt Recovery 
 

Procurement and Supply Chain 

• Commercial, Commissioning, Procurement and Contract Management, 
Processes and Support 

• Strategic Contract Management (e.g. Waste, Streets Ahead, Howden 
House) 

• Supplier Relationship Management 

• All External Spend Data and related Freedom of Information Requests 

• Approach/Process for Trade Supplier Payments 

• Managing Community Right to Challenge Submissions 
 
  

DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 
 

Human Resources 

• HR Policy and Specialist Advice on Employment Matters 

• HR Advice and Support on People Management 

• Workforce Development  

• Schools HR Service – Strategy and Governance 

• Learning and Development Delivery Service 

• HR Support for Major Change Projects 

• Occupational Health 

• Health, Safety and Wellbeing 

• HR Transactions 

• Payroll  
 

Employee Engagement 

• Engaging with and listening to employees to enable them to feel 
motivated and connected to the organisation  
 
 

DIRECTOR OF POLICY AND DEMOCRATIC ENGAGEMENT 
 

• Corporate Policy  

Page 316



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 12 of 20 
  

• Communications, including Campaigns, Marketing, Press and PR, Print 
and Design and Internal Communications 

• Corporate Consultation and Community Involvement 

• Equalities, Social Justice and Poverty Strategy  

• Sheffield Partnership Working at City Level 

• Elections, Referenda and Electoral Registration 

• Democratic Services 

• Member Development 

• Mayoral Team 

• Member Services 

• Governance 
 
 

GENERAL COUNSEL  
 
Designated as the Monitoring Officer under the Local Government and 
Housing Act 1989 section 5 
 

• Legal Services 

• Local Land Charges 

• Standards 

• Constitution 

• Maintaining the list of Assets of Community Value 

 
 
DIRECTOR OF ICT AND DIGITAL INNOVATION 
 

• IT Strategy and Planning 

• IT Service Management including ICT Governance and Assurance 

• Business Architecture  

• Enterprise Architecture and the Enterprise Programme Office  

• Digital Inclusion 

• City Connectivity & Smart City  

• Digital Services  

• Senior Information Risk Officer (SIRO) 
 
 

DIRECTOR OF ORGANISATIONAL STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND 

DELIVERY 
 

• Performance and Business Intelligence 

Page 317



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 13 of 20 
  

• Business Change including Business Analysis, Programme and Project 
Management 

• Strategic and Business Planning  

• Strategic Programme Support and Delivery 

• Information Governance and Management 

• Information Security and Management 

• Corporate Change Programme Development and Monitoring 

• Corporate Research and Analysis, including spatial analysis and GIS   

• Corporate Strategy 

CITY FUTURES 

 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, CITY FUTURES 
Strategic planning and partnerships for economy, culture, growth, planning, 
sustainability and investment. Lead for South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 
Authority (SYMCA) partnership, Core Cities and central government growth 
and investment partnerships. 
 
Responsible for:-  

 
DIRECTOR OF ECONOMY, SKILLS AND CULTURE  
 

• Business Growth and Economic Strategy 

• City Branding and Identity 

• External Marketing of Sheffield  

• Maximising Economic Impact of Major Events  

• Promoting Sheffield  

• Sector Development  

• Sheffield City Region and Local Enterprise Partnership 

• Arts development and major projects 

• Contracts and funding with major arts partners including Sheffield 
Theatres, Museums Trusts, Showroom and Site Gallery 

• Progression Programme Development – Enterprise, Employment & 
Digital Skills (cross-cutting with Director of Education and Skills) 

• Employment Policy and Programmes 

• Skills Policy and Programmes (adults) 

• SYMCA Local Authority Lead Officer for Skills & Employment (shared 
with Education & Skills) 

 
 

DIRECTOR OF INVESTMENT, CLIMATE CHANGE AND PLANNING 

Page 318



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 14 of 20 
  

 

• Building Standards and Public Safety  

• South Yorkshire Archaeology  

• Strategic Development and Funding 

• Climate Change and Sustainability, including Air Quality and Clean Air 
Zone 

• Flood and Water Management, including Flood Protection Programme, 
Natural Flood Management (NFM) and Sustainable Urban Drainage 
Systems (SUDS)  

Head of Strategic Transport Sustainability and Infrastructure 

• Transport Planning, Road Safety, Traffic and Network Management 
and Regulation 
 

Head of Planning 

• Planning applications and permissions  

• Development control 

• Development Management   

• Local Plan 
 
 

DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
 

• Development and Regeneration Partnerships 

• Heart of the City 2 Plan  

• City Centre and Central Area Major Developments 

• District Centre Plans  

• Strategic Asset Management Plan 

• One Public Estate Property Partnerships 

• Property & Regeneration  

• Capital Delivery Services and Partnerships 

• Housing Growth Plan  

• Homes England Agency – Growth Delivery Partnership  

• Housing Association / Developer Partnerships 

• Local Housing Company and Growth Partnership 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 319



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 15 of 20 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES 
 
Responsible for:- 

 
Business Strategy  

• Business Partner Relationship Management 

• Directorate Business Planning and Budget  

• Governance, Compliance and Assurance 

• Performance Management 

• Directorate Business Continuity, Organisational Resilience and Risk 
Management 

• Strategic Resource Planning for the Portfolio 

• Directorate Business Applications, Systems & Data  

• Directorate Information Risk Owner (PIRO) 

• Directorate Caldicott Guardian 
 

 
DIRECTOR OF PARKS, LEISURE AND LIBRARIES  

 
Parks and Countryside Services 

• Parks and green spaces, including playgrounds and park facilities, 
maintenance and development 

• Ecology services 

• Allotments 

• Trees, Woodlands & Plantations (non highways) 

• Graves Park Animal Farm 

• Closed Landfill sites 
 

Bereavement and Coronial Services 

Page 320



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 16 of 20 
  

• Cemeteries / Crematoriums / Grounds Maintenance and funerals 

• Coroner’s Service (Sheffield & Barnsley) including courts and inquests 

• Medico-Legal Centre (Mortuary) 

Sport, Physical Activity and Major Events  

• Sport, Physical Activity and Leisure including projects and programmes 
and relationship management with governing bodies / Sport England 

• Contracts and funding with sports and entertainment facility providers, 
e.g. Sheffield City Trust, Places Leisure, Sheffield Arena and City Hall 

• Community sport and leisure relationships 

• Major Events including City Centre 

• City and Community Events  
 

Libraries, Archive and Information Services  

• Community Libraries including partnerships with co-delivered and 
associate Library Groups 

• Central Library 

• Library Services: Home, Patient, Children’s and Schools 

• Governance of Library Assets 

• Business and Intellectual Property Centre 

• Archives and Heritage Services 

• Local Studies 

• Records Management 
 
 

DIRECTOR OF STREETSCENE AND REGULATION 
 

• Corporate Emergency Planning 
 

Head of Waste & Highways Maintenance 

• Highway maintenance and management including Streets Ahead PFI 

• Waste Management (including abandoned vehicles) 
 

Head of Street Scene 

• Regulatory licensing (Safety at Sports Grounds, Safety Advisory Group 
and Taxi Licensing) 

• Parking Services (parking and traffic management enforcement)  

• City Centre Management 

• Markets 
o Leases, tenancies and licences for stalls and markets 
o Protection of the Council’s market rights 
o Enforcement to secure and recover payments of rental fees  

Page 321



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 17 of 20 
  

o Adjudication over appeals relating to stall licences 
o Submitting planning application for minor schemes 
o Variation of fees and changes for premises, property or services 

(where not covered by any other agreement) 
 
Head of Environmental Regulation and Licensing  

• Health Protection 

• Environmental Protection  

• Trading Standards and Consumer Protection  

• Pest Control 

• Food Control and Safety  

• Animal Welfare and Control 

• Noise and Nuisance 

• Statutory licensing (including powers directly delegated by Statutory 
Licensing Committee) 

• Regulatory licensing (except Safety at Sports Grounds, Safety Advisory 
Group and Taxi Licensing) 

 
 

DIRECTOR OF HOUSING 
 

• Neighbourhood and Tenancy Management 

• Management of the Council’s housing stock, estates and related 
assets, including the Housing Revenue Account and HRA Business 
Plan, Capital Investment, Fire Safety Compliance and Building Safety 
(joint responsibility with Director of Operational Services)  

• Delivery of Housing Strategy and Policy 

• Registered Private Providers of Social Housing – strategic planning 
partnerships and social landlord relationships 

• Tenant, Resident and Leaseholder Engagement (including supporting 
Tenant Governance & Scrutiny roles)   

• Rehousing, Allocations Policy  

• Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Services  

• Management of Refugee Resettlement programmes 

• Supported housing (specialist, emergency and temporary 
accommodation, Gypsy and Travellers sites)  

• Housing Related Support Accomodation Services  

• Older Persons Independent Living and Extra Care 

• Leaseholder services including support and enforcement 

• Home Ownership and Revenue Services including Regional Homes 
and Loans Service and Administration of Right to Buy 

Page 322



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 18 of 20 
  

• Private Sector Housing regulation, licensing, tenant support services 
and enforcement including Building Safety and Fire Safety Compliance 

• Housing and Estate Regeneration 

• Net Zero investment for existing homes in Council housing and private 
sector 

• Directorate Safeguarding lead 

• Responsible officer to Regulator of Social Housing  
 

 
 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONAL SERVICES  
 

Direct Services 

• Facilities Management of the Corporate Estate 

• Facilities Management Contract Management 

• Duty Holder for Building Compliance of the Corporate Estate 

• School Facilities Management, Repair and Building Compliance 
Service  

• Property Records 

• Transport Management of the Corporate Fleet 

• Transport Contracts and Fleet Management 

• Passenger Transport for Vulnerable Adults and Children 

• Taxi Driver and Vehicle Testing 

• Vehicle Testing, Maintenance and Repairs 

• Operational Management of Repairs 

• Repairs and Maintenance and Building Compliance (joint responsibility 
with Director of Housing) to Council Homes and to Offices and other 
facilities  
 

Customer Services  

• Corporate Call Centre, Council Housing Call Centre and Repairs 
Service Centre 

• City Wide Alarms Call Handling Service 

• 101 Service/Out of Hours Service 

• E-Services (Council Website) 

• Corporate Complaints Team 

• Translation and Interpretation 

• Customer Service Strategy and Projects 

• First Point, Reception Service 

• Blue Badge Service 

• Armed Forces Community Covenant 

• Sheffield Register Office 

Page 323



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 19 of 20 
  

• Customer Fulfilment Centre (processing of applications for parking 
permits, travel passes, free school meals) 

• Revenue and Benefits Call Centre  

• Lead Director for Customer Experience  

 
 
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITIES 
 

Empowering, enabling and engaging with communities 

• Local Area Committees (LACs) 

• Building Community Assets 

• Increasing Community Resilience 

• Multi Agency and Partnership Working.  

• Ward Pots and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
 
Prevention and Early Intervention  

• Community Support Workers (CQC regulated service) 

• Team Around the Person 

• Covid Response  

• Age Well – (WHO accreditation) 

• Public Health Community Wellbeing Programme 

• Family Hubs (Centres) – (OFSTED regulated service)  

• UNICEF Baby Friendly City 

• Infant Feeding Peer Support Workers & Doula 

• 0–25 Whole Family Offer 

• Early Years Prevention Workers  

• Great Start to Life 

• Transformation to Family Hubs 

• Parenting, Groups, Community Outreach 

• Early Learning Community (in partnership with Save the Children) 
 

Cohesion and Migration 

• Refugee, Asylum and Migration Services 

• Cohesion (includes poverty, equalities, Community Champions) 

• Inclusive Cities 
 

Community Safety 

• Prevent, Channel, Hate Crime, Human Trafficking and Modern Slavery 
and Reducing Reoffending 

• Safer Neighbourhood Services including Tackling and prevention of 
Anti Social Behaviour  

• Neighbourhood Warden Service 

Page 324



Sheffield City Council – Constitution (May 2022) 
Part 7B – Management Structure  
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 Page 20 of 20 
  

• Lead Director for the Community Safety Partnership and Community 
Safety Plan and Allocation of the Community Safety Partnership Grant 
funding 

• Neighbourhood Management  

• Partnership and joint working with the Police, Violence Reduction Unit, 
Police and Crime Commissioner’s Office and other related agencies 
 

Youth Services 
● Youth work (including detached and community youth services and 

youth involvement) 
● Youth participation 
● Targeted careers advice including specialist careers and progression 

advice for children with special educational needs and disabilities 
● Duty and tracking of young people Not in Education, Employment or 

Training (NEET) 
● Child Sexual Exploitation and Criminal Exploitation Team Youth work  
● Missing young people return interviews 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 325



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 326



Minutes of the Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber, Town 
Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH, on Monday 20 February 2023, at 2.00 pm, pursuant to 
notice duly given and Summonses duly served. 

 
PRESENT 

 
THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Colin Ross) 

 
1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Richard Shaw 
Sophie Thornton 
 

 Vic Bowden 
Alan Woodcock 
 

 Nighat Basharat 
Peter Garbutt 
 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne 
 Kurtis Crossland 

Bob McCann 
Ann Woolhouse 
 

 Roger Davison 
Barbara Masters 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
 

 Ben Miskell 
Nabeela Mowlana 
 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Fran Belbin 
Abdul Khayum 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 David Barker 
Dianne Hurst 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Angela Argenzio 

Maleiki Haybe 
Brian Holmshaw 
 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Peter Price 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Mark Jones 
Safiya Saeed 
 

 Alexi Dimond 
Marieanne Elliot 
Paul Turpin 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Ruth Mersereau 
Martin Phipps 
 

 Ian Auckland 
Sue Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
 

 Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Richard Williams 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 
 Tim Huggan 

Ruth Milsom 
Minesh Parekh 
 

 Christine Gilligan Kubo 
Henry Nottage 
 

 Lewis Chinchen 
Julie Grocutt 
Janet Ridler 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Terry Fox 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
 

 Ben Curran 
Tom Hunt 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 Tony Downing 
Kevin Oxley 
Gail Smith 
 

 Alan Hooper 
Mike Levery 
Ann Whitaker 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Mick Rooney 

Jackie Satur 
 

 

Page 327

Agenda Item 13



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 2 of 66 
 

 
1.   
 

MINUTES SILENCE - DEATH OF COUNCILLOR ANNE MURPHY 
 

1.1 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) reported with sadness, the 
death, on 23rd December 2022, of Councillor Anne Murphy who had served as 
a Member of the Council since 2014 and was Lord Mayor during the Municipal 
Year 2017/18. 

    
1.2 Members of the Council observed a minute’s silence in memory of Councillor 

Murphy, and, at the conclusion of the meeting, several Members of the Council 
spoke to pay tribute to her. 

    
  
 
2.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

2.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mike Drabble, Craig 
Gamble Pugh, George Lindars-Hammond, Bernard Little, Maroof Raouf, Sophie 
Wilson, Cliff Woodcraft and Paul Wood. 

    
  
 
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 Councillor Tony Downing declared a personal interest in agenda item 6 
(Housing Revenue Account Business Plan and Budget 2023-24) (item 6 of 
these minutes) on the grounds that he is a tenant of a Council house. 

    
  
 
4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

4.1 Lord Mayor’s Communications 
    
  The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) referred to the anniversary, 

on 24th February, of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine, a major escalation of the 

Russo-Ukrainian War which began in 2014. She reported that on Thursday 23rd 

February, there would be a service in the Cathedral and also a photographic 

display, with the Service beginning at 6.30 p.m., and added that on Friday 24th 

February at 6.00 pm in the Winter Gardens, there would be a display of angels 
on a large tree, representing children that have died during the conflict.  She 
stated that Members of the Council were welcome to attend either of these 
events and the Lord Mayor’s office had issued email invites to that effect. 

    
  The Lord Mayor also reported that she had been incredibly privileged to travel 

to London recently to watch the London premiere of “Standing at the Skye’s 
Edge”, which had transferred from the Crucible Theatre to the National 
Theatre.  She commented that the production was stunning and the London 
audience were absolutely wowed by it, giving it a standing ovation at the end.  
She added that the newspaper reviews generally considered it to be a Sheffield 

Page 328



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 3 of 66 
 

success, and she wished to congratulate the Crucible Theatre and the people of 
Sheffield who inspired it. 

    
4.2 Earthquake in Turkey and Syria 
    
  The Lord Mayor reported that, in attendance at the meeting, were a group of 

students from the University of Sheffield, who were members of the Turkish 
society. The students had operated a fundraising stall at the University 
Students’ Union each day selling Turkish cakes, pastries and breads to raise 
funds for the Turkey/Syria earthquake emergency appeal.  She commented that 
she and the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin Ross) had visited the stall 
during the week and that the stall had been well attended, with people buying 
the goods and making donations in support of the people of Turkey and Syria 
affected by the recent earthquake.  The Lord Mayor stated that she had invited 
the students to come to the Council meeting to talk about the earthquake 
disaster which has affected Turkey and Syria, to outline what was happening 
back home in Turkey. 

    
  A representative from the University of Sheffield Turkish society spoke about 

the devastating impacts of the recent earthquakes in Turkey and Syria, and 
urged people to support the earthquake victims.  She thanked the Lord Mayor 
for her kind invitation to attend and speak at the meeting. 

    
  She stated that the recent earthquakes in Turkey had devastated nearly 20% of 

the country and resulted in over 40,000 deaths, with that number continuing to 
increase, and had left hundreds of thousands of citizens injured and in urgent 
need of basic necessities such as food and water.  The harsh freezing 
conditions was making life even more challenging for the survivors and urgent 
action was required in order to provide aid.  Critical infrastructure in Turkey, 
such as hospitals, schools, roads, public buildings and industrial areas had 
suffered significant damage.  Ongoing disruption to businesses and economic 
activity were adding to the instability.  Those impacted had not only lost their 
homes, but also their hope, shattered by loss and trauma.  Children had been 
trapped under debris for many hours, tragically some alongside deceased 
family members.  Homeless refugees once again faced dislocation and the 
whole nation was in shock and pain, with the ever-present anxiety of potential 
future earthquakes on unbroken fault lines.   

    
  She stated that the help and support that had been received so far from the 

people of the United Kingdom was sincerely appreciated, but given the 
magnitude of the disaster, more support was required.  As students from 
Turkey, they felt anxious being away from their loved ones, and in order to ease 
their worries and show. solidarity, they had organised fundraising activities.  As 
well as emergency support, continuing support would be needed in the longer 
term in order to rebuild the country, including safer buildings, better planned 
cities, better policies and well-educated citizens to implement these changes. 
Multi-layered cities with rich historic culture must be resurrected, such as Hatay, 
where members of different religions and ethnicities have lived together in 
peace for centuries, but where 80% of Hatay was heavily damaged, including its 
unique historic urban fabric. The population needed to heal from the traumas 

Page 329



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 4 of 66 
 

while rebuilding their country. 
    
  She commented that it was vital to raise awareness about the situation in 

Turkey and in Syria and encourage people to donate to the relief efforts.  There 
were several charities and organisations, such as Turkey Ministry Of Interior 
Disaster And Emergency Management Presidency (AFAD), UNICEF, British 
Red Cross and Save the Children, as well as many others, to where donations 
could be directed.  Each of those organisations have been working on the 
ground in Turkey to provide critical aid to the earthquake victims.  There was 
also the local community fundraising campaign, through the University of 
Sheffield Turkish Society. Donations would make a difference to the lives of 
those affected by the disaster. 

    
  She stated that, as the rebuilding of the country will take many years, it was 

hoped that long-term partnerships could be established between Turkish and 
British organisations, such as bridging local “angels” from both countries to 
provide emotional support to the affected communities and alleviate isolation.  
She suggested that Sheffield City Council may wish to consider adopting a 
sister city in the earthquake zone in the future to provide direct support and 
foster cultural aid exchange.  The disaster required collective efforts and any 
support would be appreciated. 

    
  She concluded her contribution by reiterating that Turkey and Syria required 

urgent and continued support and she urged people to help the earthquake 
emergency appeal by donating to an organisation of their choice and spreading 
the word to their wider networks by sharing donation links and fundraising 
campaign information on social media and other communication channels.  She 
also expressed appreciation for the Council’s support for the University’s 
fundraising campaign and its dissemination throughout Sheffield. Additionally, 
she requested the Council to help efforts to establish partnerships between 
local Turkish and British organisations. 

    
  The Lord Mayor thanked the students for attending the meeting, and stated that 

collections had been held by the political groups on the Council and a further 
collection would be made at this meeting, and these would be donated to the 
Disaster Emergencies Committee Earthquake Appeal with the Government 
having promised to provide match funding against funds raised from the public.   

    
4.3 Petitions and Public Questions 
    
  The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) reported that six petitions 

and questions from six members of the public had been received prior to the 
published deadline for submission of petitions and questions for this meeting.  
Representations were to be made on behalf of the petitioners on four of the 
petitions and the other two petitions would be received in the absence of a 
speaker. 

    
4.4 Petitions 
    
  

Page 330



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 5 of 66 
 

4.4.1 Petition Requesting the Council’s Support for the Treaty for the Prohibition of 
Nuclear Weapons 

    
  The Council received a petition containing 62 signatures requesting the 

Council’s support for the Treaty for the Prohibition of Nuclear Weapons. 
    
  Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by June Cattell and 

Hilary Smith.   
    
  June Cattell 
    
  Ms. Cattell stated that she was representing Sheffield Creative Action for Peace 

which is a group affiliated to Yorkshire CND.  She commented that prior to 
presenting this petition, the group had sent a letter and email to all Members of 
the Council explaining the issue, a copy of the Nuclear Ban Communities 
pledge for Members to sign and a book-mark which was hoped would provide a 
continual reminder to campaign for the banning of nuclear weapons. 

    
  She commented that the petition called for Sheffield City Council to sign the 

pledge showing that this Council supports the Treaty on the Prohibition of 
Nuclear Weapons (TPNW) and calling on the British Government to also sign it. 
She reported that the pledge can also be signed by individual Councillors and 
added that all Members will have received a copy for them to sign and return. 

    
  Ms. Cattell stated that she was sure that everyone in the Council Chamber 

would be against nuclear weapons. Any one of the politicians or political groups 
on the Council could submit a notice of motion for the Council to discuss and 
vote on this important issue of banning nuclear weapons, and hopefully add the 
Council’s name to the list of 27 other councils, including neighbouring 
authorities of Leeds and Manchester, who have already signed the petition for 
the banning of nuclear weapons, alongside the Welsh Assembly, the Scottish 
Parliament and our twin city, Bochum in Germany. 

    
  She stated that the Treaty for the Prohibition of Nuclear Weapons is a 

significant milestone in the abolition of nuclear weapons.  122 countries (over 
two thirds of the world’s nations) have voted to adopt the Treaty. 69 countries 
have now signed the Treaty and their governments have ratified it. Civil 
societies (ordinary people like us) throughout the world have also campaigned 
for it. United Nations treaties like the TPNW do have an impact and they can 
gradually change people’s views and governments’ views about nuclear 
weapons, just as they did in regards to chemical weapons.  She added that, to 
its shame, Britain, like other nuclear states, did not even take part in the 
discussions at the United Nations. 

    
  Ms. Cattell stated that Sheffield has a proud history in anti-nuclear campaigning. 

In 1980 it declared itself a nuclear free zone, along with many other local 
authorities. There was even a postcard to celebrate it. Sheffield is also, to its 
credit, a member of Mayors for Peace, and signing the pledge is therefore 
entirely consistent with this. 

    

Page 331



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 6 of 66 
 

  She asked that Members of the Council sign the pledge as an individual, and 
that any of the political groups on the Council bring forward a motion so that you 
can, as a Council, sign the pledge and be able to say that Sheffield City Council 
is against nuclear weapons.  

    
  She added that this would be entirely consistent with public views.  In 2021, a 

poll indicated that 59% of people favoured signing the TPNW and 77% of 
people supported a total ban on nuclear weapons. 

    
  Ms. Cattell concluded her representations by stating that everyone knows the 

horrors of nuclear war, such as occurred at Nagasaki, and therefore urged the 
Council to sign the pledge in the interests of protecting the citizens of Sheffield. 

    
  Hilary Smith 
    
  Ms. Smith stated that not signing the Treaty is not a neutral act. It would mean 

that you are content that there were no credible international initiatives to 
reduce and eliminate nuclear weapons, and that you were content that Britain 
was increasing its nuclear weapons capability. It would also ignore the views of 
the 122 countries which have signed the Treaty, of which many were located in 
the global south, and thus, ignoring the Treaty would represent old, imperialist 
attitudes.  She commented that not supporting the Treaty ignores the fact that 
nuclear weapons take lives and ruin lives every day through the legacy of 
development, of testing and of use, and she added that this Treaty was the first 
to enact a credible plan for reparations and for remediation for those suffering 
the consequences.  Ms. Smith stated that not supporting the Treaty means that 
you accept the reality that Sheffield people could not be protected in the event 
of a nuclear attack or accident, and that not signing the Treaty means that you 
are not interested in the fact that all nuclear weapons production, like all military 
production, is exempt from the Paris protocol on climate change. 

    
  Ms. Smith concluded her representations by stating that every political party 

claims to support multi-lateral nuclear disarmament, and that this is exactly what 
this Treaty does, as it engages all countries in carefully thought out processes, 
of firstly removing nuclear weapons from active readiness, through to their 
destruction.  She commented that the UK should actively participate to listen 
and engage in the discussions about the work and development of the Treaty 
and stated that the people of Sheffield deserve the Council’s active support in 
calling on the Government to do so. 

    
  The petition was referred to the Leader of the Council (Councillor Terry Fox) to 

respond.  Councillor Fox thanked Ms. Cattell and Ms. Smith for submitting the 
petition and referred to a recent visit to the city by the Mayor and Deputy Mayor 
of Khmelnytskyi, Ukraine, who told the Council about the horrific circumstances 
being faced by citizens of Ukraine as part of the ongoing conflict with Russia, 
and this highlighted the horrors from deployment of military weapons of any 
form.  Councillor Fox said that he was proud to spend some time with them and 
discuss the issues they were dealing with on a day-to-day basis.  He added 
that, ultimately, this was a matter for the UK Government, but that the Council 
would be happy to receive and debate any Notice of Motion that was put 

Page 332



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 7 of 66 
 

forward on the matter by one of the political groups on the Council, although it 
would now be several months until the next opportunity to do so.  He urged the 
petitioners to continue with their campaign. 

    
  The Council noted the petition and response from Councillor Fox. 
    
4.4.2 Petition Requesting the Council to Speed Up its Response to the Climate 

Change Emergency 
    
  The Council received an electronic petition containing 339 signatures, 

requesting the Council to speed up its response to the climate change 
emergency. 

    
  Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Geoffrey Cox, Chair 

of the South Yorkshire Climate Alliance.  Mr Cox stated that the petition drew 
attention to this month being the fourth anniversary of Sheffield City Council 
declaring a climate emergency.  He stated that this should have been an 
occasion to celebrate all the progress that had been made – four years of 
concerted effort on carbon reductions, four years of concerted effort on nature 
recovery, four years of concerted effort in engaging with the city’s residents on 
what more needs to be done. Sadly, however, it had been four years where 
precious little concrete action had been taken.  He commented that a clear 
agenda had been set out in the Arup Report in early 2021, but was not acted 
upon directly.  A slim 10-point plan was unveiled 15 months ago, but had still 
not resulted in a single route map being produced, and no report had yet been 
produced on the meeting with the city’s voluntary and community groups held at 
St Mary’s Church a full three months ago.  He stated that there had been plenty 
of words and promises, but no urgency whatsoever in delivery. 

    
  Mr. Cox commented that urgency was what the petition called for.  The 

petitioners have seen how the city responded to an emergency in the case of 
the Covid pandemic, and believe that is the scale and pace of the response 
needed now to achieve the City’s 2030 target – but, unfortunately, they don’t 
see that urgency at all.   

    
  He added that the petitioners fully recognise that the Government has failed to 

produce the policies, the infrastructure and the funding needed to allow 
Sheffield and other councils to properly play their part in the response to the 
international climate emergency effort – and he reported that the Climate 
Alliance, along with other climate groups, will be making their voices heard at 
the national climate demonstration in London in April, on behalf of Sheffield and 
South Yorkshire, to make that exact point that the Government needs to give 
local authorities the tools with which to act. 

    
  Mr. Cox commented that he also needed to point out that other local authorities 

facing the same financial difficulties to Sheffield have done more.  On several 
occasions, the Climate Alliance has drawn the Council’s attention to the studies 
carried out by Friends of the Earth and by the Ashden Research Group on case 
studies of what other local authorities have done, showing good practice, and 
the Alliance again wishes to recommend those studies to the Council. 

Page 333



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 8 of 66 
 

    
  He concluded his representations by stating that the petition therefore calls on 

the City Council to accelerate its response to the climate emergency – and that 
this accelerated response needs to be in the form of concrete actions, not just 
words. 

    
  The petition was referred to Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Co-Chair of the Transport, 

Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee) to respond.  Councillor Iqbal 
stated that he absolutely agreed that we must work together as a city to have 
any chance of achieving the scale and the pace of change that is required to 
meet the size of the challenge.  He commented that Sheffield’s CVP report, 
submission and a score of A- for 2022 demonstrates the wide range of 
mitigations and adaptation actions that the Council is taking in response to the 
climate emergency declaration 

    
  Councillor Iqbal acknowledged the frustrations that many people feel at the slow 

rate of progress.  He confirmed that the Council was working to produce 
decarbonisation route maps, covering five themed areas this year and stated 
that a cross party task group had been established and met two weeks ago to 
help progress this. The five themed areas this year include Our Council, the 
Way We Travel, Energy, Business and Industry, and Housing. Councillor Iqbal 
added, however, that the fact remains that without game changing investment 
and financial support from central Government, the private sector and other 
funding sources, the Council’s budget, as acknowledged by Mr. Cox, was totally 
inadequate to meet the resource for the action that is required. 

    
  He reported that the city-wide event held last November demonstrated the 

extensive support for taking climate action amongst a huge range of city 
partners, the public, and the private and voluntary sectors and he confirmed that 
the Council wished to harness that enthusiasm and expertise, and he hoped 
that all these potential partners would want to be involved in the development 
and delivery of the route maps for many years. 

    
  Councillor Iqbal concluded by expressing his thanks for the reaffirmation of the 

support of the South Yorkshire Climate Alliance in helping to make these 
changes happen and stated that he looked forward to continuing to work with 
the Alliance to address these urgent priorities. 

    
  The Council noted the petition and response from Councillor Iqbal. 
    
4.4.3 Petitions Regarding the Proposed Designation within the Draft Sheffield Plan of 

Certain Sites in Beighton as Travellers and Industrial Sites  
    
  The Council received (a) an electronic petition containing 263 signatures, 

opposing the proposed industrial and traveller sites in the Draft Sheffield Plan, 
on Eckington Way, (b) an electronic petition containing 654 signatures, 
opposing the proposed traveller site on Eckington Way, (c) an electronic petition 
containing 635 signatures, requesting the Council to change the decision to 
place an industrial site in the Draft Sheffield Plan behind Springwell Grove and 
(d) an electronic petition containing 2,823 signatures, requesting the Council to 

Page 334



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 9 of 66 
 

remove the proposed travellers site in the Draft Sheffield Plan from Beighton, 
and relocate it to a more suitable location in the city. 

    
  There were no speakers for the petitions referred to in (a) and (b) above, but in 

relation to the petitions referred to in (c) and (d) above, representations on 
behalf of the petitioners were made by Michael Chilton. 

    
  Michael Chilton said he wanted to take this opportunity to address full Council 

on the concerns around the proposed site off Eckington Way that has been 
designated for industrial use and a Travellers' site in the Draft Local Plan. He 
stated that, having spent the time talking to residents in the immediate 
communities, he knew this was a particularly charged issue, but one that did 
need to be addressed.  He wished to make it clear, for those persons that may 
not be familiar with Eckington Way and the surrounding road network, that this 
issue was primarily about traffic and congestion in the area. Anyone travelling 
through the area could see this for themselves. He did, however, recognise that 
some may have misunderstood the intention of the petitions, which was never 
to indicate that the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities should not have 
appropriate sites, but to raise concerns about whether this particular site was 
appropriate and on the lack of consultation surrounding it, both for the GRT 
community and the wider community. 

    
  Mr. Chilton commented that he was sure that everyone recognised that the 

Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities still face discrimination in our society, 
but that reinforces just why consultation was so important, and we need to 
make sure we get these decisions right, which he did not believe had happened 
here.  This was clearly reflected in the Council's own 2019 report that 
highlighted the Redmires traveller site and the praise it had received from all 
involved, including the Traveller community, and Mr. Chilton added that the aim 
should be to repeat that success across the city on similar sites, but that had 
not happened with this proposal. 

    
  He stated that he had spoken to local residents who had told him how simple 

ten-minute journeys had now become half an hour or more as they tried to 
negotiate the traffic on and around Eckington Way, often crawling along just to 
get to the shops. This should not be happening.  He added that the last 
completed studies into the traffic and air pollution around the area were nearly a 
decade old and therefore there was a need to recognise that we cannot base 
current planning developments using out of date data. What he and the 
thousands of concerned residents who have signed the petitions want to see is 
new studies undertaken in both these areas and a proper substantial proposal 
to deal with the traffic problems before this site is earmarked for any kind of 
development. 

    
  In concluding his representations, Mr. Chilton stated that it was disappointing to 

hear that the three Beighton Councillors did not take the opportunity to object or 
amend this site last year when they found out about it in July, nor did they take 

the opportunity to act at the full Council meeting on 14th December, when they 

had the chance to do so. He added that this whole issue could have been 
avoided had this happened and we could be focusing on the positives of the 

Page 335



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 10 of 66 
 

Local Plan rather than this site. He hoped that common sense would now 
prevail and suitable alternatives could be found for this development which 
would not compound traffic in an area where it was already suffering 
considerable pressure. 

    
  He wished to thank full Council for the opportunity to speak and looked forward 

to how we can find solutions going forward. 
    
  The four petitions were referred to Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Co-Chair of the 

Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee) to respond. 
    
  Councillor Iqbal said that the Council’s Labour Group believes that, not only as 

a council but as a city, we should be proud to celebrate the rich histories and 
diverse culture of the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities and provide 
traveller sites in full consultation with those communities.  He then referred to 
the comments made by the petitioner regarding the Beighton Ward Councillors, 
and stated that he had seen an email which one of the Ward Councillors had 
sent to local residents, in which it stated that the local Ward Councillors had not 
been involved in drawing up the plans regarding the proposed traveller site on 
Eckington Way, and that it was clear there had been an overall lack of 
communication and consultation from those who had put the plans together.  
Councillor Iqbal firmly believed that to be a misleading statement and very 
unhelpful.  He reported that a cross party working group had been meeting for 
the past two years, comprising Councillors from all political groups on the 
Council, offering the opportunity for everyone to be able to put forward their 
point of view.  He said that the working group had worked on developing the 
Plan over the past two years, and that it was this Council that agreed that the 
Local Plan should go out for consultation and the only amendment proposed by 
the Liberal Democrat Group was around hot food takeaways.  

    
  Councillor Iqbal thanked the petitioners for submitting the petitions.  In relation 

to the petitions regarding proposed Site Allocation SES03 – land off Eckington 
Way - in the Draft Sheffield Plan, he reported that the proposal was to allocate 
5.35 hectares of the site for Industry and 1.5 hectares as a Traveller Site.  The 
Draft Plan makes clear that the industrial use would be limited to those uses 
that can be carried out in a residential area without causing harm to the 
residential amenity of the area.  He stated that the Plan had not been finalised 
yet.  Indeed, the consultation period on the Draft Plan would close today (20th 
February), and the issues raised in the petitions will therefore be taken into 
account along with other comments submitted as part of the public consultation 
process. 

    
  Councillor Iqbal commented that it was clear there were significant concerns 

about the impact this proposal would have on already high traffic levels and 
congestion in the area, and he reported that further transport modelling work 
was being undertaken to look at the impact on traffic levels and to assess 
whether any adverse impacts can be adequately mitigated. 

    
  He also noted the concern of residents of Springwell Grove about the potential 

for any new industrial buildings to overshadow their homes.  He stated that, at 

Page 336



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 11 of 66 
 

this stage, it was worth highlighting to the petitioners that matters such as 
design, landscaping and site access would be matters to be considered as part 
of any subsequent planning application, but that any planning application would 
only follow if the allocation is confirmed in the final adopted Plan.  Officers do, 
however, advise that a significant environmental buffer strip would be needed 
as part of a detailed design to separate the housing from the proposed uses. 

    
  He wished to also emphasise that the Council has a legal duty to meet the 

housing needs of Gypsies and Travellers.  The Plan must provide enough land 
to meet future employment needs. He stated that all the issues will be 
reappraised in light of the consultation comments and any new evidence, and 
he added that an alternative site (or sites) would need to be provided if the 
proposed site SES03 was to be removed. 

    
  Councillor Iqbal confirmed that following the completion of the public 

consultation exercise on the Draft Sheffield Plan, officers will review all the 
comments that have been made (including the petitions) and will advise 
Members on whether any amendments to the Plan should be proposed.  Any 
amendments would be submitted to the Government alongside the Draft 
Sheffield Plan.  He stated that he would be happy to visit the site and meet with 
the petitioners following the conclusion of the public consultation exercise. 

    
  He concluded his response by stating that any proposed amendments would be 

considered by the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee, taking into 
account recommendations to be made by the Transport, Regeneration and 
Climate Policy Committee, and that the final decision would be taken by full 
Council.  Prior to then, the cross party working group will start to meet regularly 
again, starting in early March, to consider the issues highlighted from the 
consultation and to develop recommendations for consideration by the Policy 
Committees. 

    
  The Council noted the four petitions and response from Councillor Iqbal. 
    
4.5 Public Questions 
    
4.5.1 Question From Paul Wade 
    
  Paul Wade stated that his question related to safety in the pedestrianised areas 

of Fargate and The Moor, commenting that he had observed cyclists riding 
through those areas at great speed, which represented a safety risk, particularly 
for young children and the elderly, and he asked when will the Council promote 
the safety of pedestrians in these areas by introducing measures to stop cyclists 
travelling at speed in those locations? 

    
  In response, Councillor Joe Otten (Chair of the Waste and Streetscene Policy 

Committee) stated that it wasn’t clear from the content of the written question 
submitted by Mr. Wade that his safety concerns related to cyclists, and instead 
he had prepared a response relating to hostile vehicle mitigations and the 
measures put around the city to prevent terrorist attacks using vehicles within 
pedestrian areas.  He would therefore arrange for a response to Mr. Wade’s 

Page 337



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 12 of 66 
 

question to be provided to him in writing and published on the Council’s 
website. 

    
4.5.2 Question From Abdul Raheem 
    
  Abdul Raheem referred to the Council’s proposals in relation to its introduction 

of a clean air zone in Sheffield, and asked why the Council was not being 
considerate to the struggles of working-class people. He stated that Rotherham 
Council’s proposals differed from Sheffield Council’s proposals and a non-
compliant vehicle would not be charged for being driven in Rotherham but 
would be charged for being driven in Sheffield.  He added that the Government 
allowed local authorities to choose the type of clean air zone to be introduced 
and he queried why Sheffield City Council had chosen to target working-class 
people already struggling from the impact of the covid pandemic. 

    
  Mr. Raheem also referred to the situation regarding the licensing of Hackney 

Carriages and asked that the Council seek evidence from vehicle dealerships, 
as there was currently a shortage in vehicle availability due to supply chain 
issues resulting from the pandemic which was impacting on the manufacturing 
industry, and he expressed concern that numbers of Hackney Carriage vehicles 
operating in the city would reduce significantly as a result of this.  He suggested 
that the Council should follow the example in Leeds and Bradford where saloon 
cars were being allowed to operate as Hackney Carriages, and which would 
assist Sheffield’s taxi drivers to continue to work and support their families.  He 
commented that the clean air zone charges would mean an additional cost of 
£3,600 per annum, which he could not afford, especially in view of the current 
cost of living crisis where the cost of energy, mortgages and food were 
becoming more expensive. 

    
  Mr. Raheem concluded by asking the Council to be considerate to its working 

class citizens, and he expressed concern that the clean air zone charges would 
further impact on the future viability of the city centre. 

    
  In response, Councillor Joe Otten (Chair of the Waste and Streetscene Policy 

Committee) stated that the questions regarding the clean air zone would need 
to be answered by the Co-Chair of the Transport, Regeneration and Climate 
Policy Committee, but he would answer the questions regarding taxis.  He 
stated that he recognised the concerns raised over the cost of hackney 
carriages and that the taxi trade had made this clear to the Waste and 
Streetscene Policy Committee. In response, the Policy Committee, at its 

meeting on 15th February, had revised the Council’s Hackney Carriage Vehicle 

Policy  to allow for rear loading vehicles to be used, which were substantially 
cheaper, and to extend the age of vehicles from first registration, from five years 
to seven and a half years.  It was expected that those two changes combined 
would substantially increase the range of vehicles that Hackney Carriage 
drivers would be able to buy and use that would be of Euro 6 standard and be 
able to be operated in the clean air zone without incurring charges. 

    
  Councillor Otten also recognised the danger, as pointed out by Mr. Raheem, 

that if large numbers of Hackney Carriage vehicles were not replaced, with 

Page 338



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 13 of 66 
 

drivers not willing to pay the charges, a significant loss of the fleet may result, 
and he commented that the Council had agreed to introduce a clean air zone 
scheme that did not include private vehicles but would include taxis, light-goods 
vehicles and buses, and he did wonder in hindsight whether this placed a 
particularly high burden on just a relatively few vehicles to achieve the clean air 
targets that the city needed to achieve. 

    
  Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Co-Chair of the Transport, Regeneration and Climate 

Policy Committee) added that the Government had been successfully taken to 
Court on three occasions by Client Earth, an international environmental 
campaign group, seeking clean air improvements in the UK and, in response to 
the Court’s rulings, the Government had hurriedly issued a policy without 
consulting local authorities.  This had led to different options being taken by 
individual local authorities.  He commented that Sheffield City Council had 
decided to choose an option which would not charge private vehicles and 
motorbikes.  Councillor Iqbal reported that the exemption of private vehicles had 
been referenced by the Green Group within one of its amendments proposed at 
today’s meeting, and he commented that if anyone were to ask any local 
authority around the country, it would be clear that the amount of financial 
support provided by the Government to local councils to implement clean air 
zones, was inadequate.  He added that, if the financial support was adequate, 
the Waste and Streetscene Policy Committee may not have needed to meet 
last week to consider how the Hackney Carriage Vehicle Policy could be 
revised in order to help address the needs of taxi drivers. 

    
  Councillor Iqbal reported that the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy 

Committee had established a cross-party group of Members to meet on a 
weekly basis to consider issues that were emerging in relation to the clean air 
zone, such as the ones mentioned by Mr. Raheem, and he confirmed that one 
of the major issues was not only the affordability, but also the lack of availability, 
of new hackney carriage vehicles, and he confirmed that there was now a 
watching brief by Councillors on this matter.   

    
  Councillor Iqbal added that there was a public health emergency, with poor air 

quality levels across the city, and air pollution exceeding Government limits, and 
the introduction of the clean air zone would be the quickest way to reduce those 
harmful levels. He stated that the Labour Group on the City Council had been 
lobbying the Government, asking it to improve the financial support it was 
making available, in order to assist the self-employed and small businesses 
across the city who were having to find additional resources at a time when the 
cost of living was also increasing significantly. 

    
  He concluded his response by indicating that information was available on the 

Council’s website in relation to the clean air zone and the support that was 
available. 

    
4.5.3 Question From Julie Pearn 
    
  Prior to inviting Julie Pearn to ask her question, the Lord Mayor (Councillor 

Sioned-Mair Richards) invited the Interim Director of Legal and Governance to 

Page 339



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 14 of 66 
 

speak, and he advised the questioner that some of the preamble to the written 
question submitted by Ms. Pearn raises issues which were, arguably, contrary 
to the Council’s adopted definition of antisemitism and he suggested that Ms. 
Pearn should therefore limit her contribution to just asking her question. 

    
  Julie Pearn commented that Sheffield Labour Friends of Palestine welcome the 

twinning agreement recently signed between Sheffield City Council and the 
Ukrainian city of Khmelnytskyi, and fully supports the City Council showing this 
stand for international law and degree of empathy and international solidarity to 
a people who are victims of military aggression and invasion, resulting in 
creation of refugees, assaults on children, etc.  She stated that the same level 
of empathy should be extended to other victims of military aggression, invasion, 
bombing and ethnic cleansing, and wished to remind the Council that an 
invitation to twin was made by the Mayor of Nablus in April 2019 and that the 
Council has not even acknowledged that invitation. 

    
  She asked can we please have advice from the Council as to how we may get a 

reciprocal response from the City to the Mayor of Nablus’ invitation and achieve 
a twinning relationship, an aim which is supported by individuals and 
organisations all over Sheffield? 

    
  In response, the Leader of the Council (Councillor Terry Fox) referred to 

PalFest Sheffield, a festival of friendship and solidarity with Palestine which had 
taken place a couple of years ago and which had celebrated the rich and 
diverse culture of the region. He commented that he hadn’t been aware of the 
offer from the Mayor of Nablus, but that, when he was looking at the invitation 
received from Khmelnytskyi, it had become evident that the Council had no 
clear policy regarding town twinning, and this was something that was now 
being addressed.  He reported that during the time he had been Leader of the 
Council, there had been a number of offers received for town twinning which he 
had wanted to be considered under a proper process, which allowed for input 
from all Members of the Council.  He stated that a clear policy was now 
emerging and would be submitted to the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee for approval within the next few months. Councillor Fox said that out 
of common decency, he would make sure that a response would be sent to the 
Mayor of Nablus, and he stated that he welcomed the Mayor’s offer. 

    
  The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) added that the Reverend 

Hugh Thomas had contacted her after the city had twinned with Khmelnytskyi, 
saying that he could remember the Nablus offer being submitted and had sent 
her the information about it, which she believed was when former Councillor 
Magid Magid was Lord Mayor of Sheffield, but that it appeared that no action 
had been taken at that time. 

    
4.5.4 (NOTES: 1. The questions which had been submitted by Carrie Hedderwick and 

Ruth Hubbard, but which had not been asked at the meeting due to their 
absence, would receive a written response from the Chairs of the relevant 
Policy Committees and be published on the website; and 
  
2. Two of the three questions relating to the deployment of wireless masts for 

Page 340



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 15 of 66 
 

5G use in Sheffield, which had been submitted by Michael Mullin, but which had 
not been asked at the meeting due to his absence, would receive a written 
response from the Chair of the relevant Policy Committee and be published on 
the website.  The other question, which related directly to a named officer of the 
Council, was not accepted by the Lord Mayor as she deemed it to be 
disrespectful to that named officer.) 

    
  
 
5.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

5.1 Urgent Business 
    
  With the permission of the Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards), 

Councillor Ben Miskell asked the following questions relating to urgent business, 
under the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 16.6(ii):- 

    
  Following the shocking murder of Brianna Ghey, what is Sheffield City Council’s 

Community Safety Team and South Yorkshire Police doing to provide extra 
support, reassurance, and protection to the trans community? 

    
  Will the Committee Chair ensure that a meeting will be convened with the trans 

and LGBT+ community, the City Council and senior South Yorkshire Police 
officers in order to provide assurance and also ensure that support and safety is 
provided? 

    
  In response, Councillor Richard Williams (Chair of the Communities, Parks and 

Leisure Policy Committee) expressed his shock regarding the murder of Brianna 
Ghey, especially as the perpetrators are so young. 

    
  He also reported that at this time, the Council was not aware of the final 

outcome of the police investigation, so was unable to comment further on this 
particular case. 

    
  He stated that Sheffield City Council, South Yorkshire Police and our partners, 

work together to make sure the city is a welcoming and safe place for local 
people and visitors to enjoy. The Safer Sheffield Partnership has a statutory 
duty to address and reduce community safety issues in the city and one of our 
key priorities is to protect vulnerable people. 

    
  He added that the Government had introduced the Serious Violence Duty on 

31st January 2023. This duty was intended to create the right conditions for 

authorities to collaborate and communicate, using existing partnerships where 
possible, to share information and take coordinated action to tackle serious 
violence. 

    
  Councillor Williams stated that he would be happy to meet with representatives 

of the transgender community alongside representatives from South Yorkshire 
Police, who had already indicated that they would be happy to do so, and he 
would report back on the outcome. 

Page 341



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 16 of 66 
 

    
  In response to a supplementary question from Councillor Miskell, Councillor 

Williams confirmed that he would also be happy to attend a meeting of the Hate 
Crime Board. 

    
5.2 South Yorkshire Joint and Combined Authorities 
    
  There were no questions relating to the discharge of the functions of the South 

Yorkshire Joint Authorities for Fire and Rescue and Pensions and of the South 
Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority, under the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 16.6(i). 

    
5.3 Written Questions 
    
  A schedule of questions to Chairs of Policy Committees, submitted in 

accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16, and which contained written 
answers, was circulated.  Supplementary questions, under the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 16.4, were asked and were answered by the 
appropriate Policy Committee Chairs. 

    
  
 
6.   
 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) BUSINESS PLAN AND HRA 
BUDGET 2023-24 
 

6.1 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Terry Fox, seconded by Councillor 
Shaffaq Mohammed, that, in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 4 
(Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules) and 11 (Motions 
which may be moved without notice), Council Procedure Rule 17.6 be 
suspended to remove the 25-minute time limit for this item of business and a 
new time limit of 40-minutes be set for the item. 

    
6.2 It was moved by Councillor Douglas Johnson, and seconded by Councillor 

Terry Fox, that, in accordance with the resolution passed by the Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee at its meeting held on 7th February 2023 relating 
to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan and HRA Budget 2023-
24, it be – 

    
  RESOLVED: That:- 
    
  (a)      the HRA Business Plan report for 2023-24, as set out in the Financial 

Appendix to the report, be approved; 
    
  (b)      the HRA Revenue Budget 2023-24, as set out in the Financial Appendix 

to the report, be approved; 
    
  (c)      rents for council dwellings be increased by 7% from April 2023, in line 

with the Regulator of Social Housing’s Rent Standard; 
    
  (d)      rents for temporary accommodation be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 

Page 342



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 17 of 66 
 

    
  (e)      garage rents for garage plots and garage sites be increased by 7% from 

April 2023; 
    
  (f)       the sheltered housing charge be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 
    
  (g)      the burglar alarm charge be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 
    
  (h)      the furnished accommodation charge be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 
    
  (i)       the Hardship Fund be increased by a further £300,000 for 2023/24, to 

£450,000; and 
    
  (j)       no increase be made to the community heating charge at this time. 
    
6.3 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Fran Belbin, and seconded by 

Councillor Denise Fox, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by the addition of new paragraphs (k) to (q) as follows:- 

    
  This Council:- 
    
  (k)      regrets that the report plans to reduce the Stock Increase Programme 

(SIP) to 2,310, from the previous target of 3,100 new council homes by 
2029 as set by the previous Labour administration, and believes that all 
options – including prudential borrowing, re-capitalisation/re-profiling, and 
different ownership models - must instead be considered to not only 
retain the figure of 3,100 but to go further still; 

    
  (l)       believes that tenants need to be much more engaged and empowered 

within decision-making and service delivery, and welcomes Labour’s 
proposals to develop Housing Advisory Panels, bringing together all 
residents and linked directly into the Local Area Committees (LACs) and 
including a greater working relationship with all Registered Private 
Providers of Social Housing (Housing Associations), to make the Council 
more responsive and accountable to local needs; 

    
  (m)     believes that the Council should not accept a sub-standard repairs 

service, and that radical action is needed to deliver what is required, and, 
therefore, believes that investing more now to upgrade homes is not only 
the right thing to do for tenants, but will ultimately prove cost effective in 
bringing down the long-term repairs bill; 

    
  (n)      believes that the Council needs to be working in anticipation of a new 

change of government within the next 18 months, and a new Decent 
Homes standard this could bring; which will certainly require 
improvements to tackle damp and mould and ensure homes are warm 
and heated affordably; 

    
  (o)      notes that the Council is investing in existing homes to make sure that 

tenants live in warm and safe homes, including £62 million being spent to 

Page 343



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 18 of 66 
 

retrofit homes, including decarbonisation and bringing all homes up to at 
least EPC C Energy standard, helping residents to save on energy costs 
and contributing to net zero targets; and believes that, whilst this is 
hugely welcome, the total spend on Heating, Energy and Carbon 
Reduction should ideally be more ambitious and that options including 
securing external funding, recapitalisation, reprofiling and prudential 
borrowing, should be considered with the aim of increasing investment to 
£100 million, and that the additional investment must complement a 
programme of skills and job development; 

    
  (p)      believes the Council is faced with a stark choice between two options – 

either be ambitious with investment and deliver for Sheffield, or accept a 
managed decline with less council homes delivered to a poorer standard, 
and believes that only the former is an acceptable proposition for the city; 
and 

    
  (q)      believes that, in contrast with the current Government, the Council will 

always prioritise support for neighbourhoods and put housing needs at 
the top of our agenda to produce the strong, thriving neighbourhoods that 
Sheffield deserves. 

    
6.4 It was then moved by Councillor Penny Baker, seconded by Councillor Sophie 

Thornton, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by the 
addition of the following text after the words “RESOLVED: That”, and that the 
original paragraphs (a) to (j) be re-lettered as new paragraphs (o) to (x):- 

    
  This Council:- 
    
  (a)      thanks all the officers who have worked hard to formulate the Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) business plan; 
    
  (b)      notes that this HRA business plan and budget is the first to have been 

put together under the new committee system, that all members of the 
Housing Policy Committee have been involved in this process and that 
regular briefings have taken place between the Chair, Deputy Chair and 
Spokesperson on the proposals; 

    
  (c)      believes that increasing the city’s affordable housing provision is crucial 

to tackling the Cost of Living crisis, reducing the numbers of people 
suffering from homelessness, and ensure that Sheffield remains an 
excellent place to live; 

    
  (d)      condemns the continuance of the Right to Buy scheme and the extension 

of the scheme to housing association tenants last year by the 
Government, believes that the scheme massively disincentivises the 
building of new social homes and has led to many former social homes 
later becoming private rented sector homes, and supports the national 
Liberal Democrat policy of devolving control of Right to Buy to local 
authorities; 

    

Page 344



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 19 of 66 
 

  (e)      notes the unfortunate reduction in the Stock Increase Programme target 
from 3,100 to 2,310, as a result of extremely high building cost inflation, 
and believes that the severe inflation of £2.4m on the Newstead site 
before construction has begun is illustrative of the challenges facing new 
build projects; 

    
  (f)       believes that increasing Council stock is not the only way to increase 

affordable housing provision in the city, and believes that with the 
regrettable reductions in the Stock Increase Programme, the Council 
must think imaginatively to provide affordable housing, which may 
involve:- 

    
  (i)       considering how the Council’s general fund could contribute to, or 

reduce the cost of, new homes and increased use of Sheffield 
Housing Company for affordable housing new build delivery; and 

    
  (ii)       increasing the SIP target through shared ownership schemes 

such as the Owlthorpe scheme, which would provide affordable 
housing while reducing maintenance and financing charges to the 
HRA; 

    
  (g)      believes that previous Council administrations between May 2011 and 

May 2021 have not been up to the task of delivering affordable housing, 
as:- 

    
  (i)       between 2019 and 2022, there was an estimated shortfall in 

affordable housing delivery of 2,251 units; 
    
  (ii)       between 2016 and 2020, affordable housing units in the city 

suffered a net reduction, as completions were outstripped by right 
to buy sales; and 

    
  (iii)      due to the failings in the Council’s Housing Repair Service since 

insourcing, the current void rate is 3.4%, equating to roughly 1,300 
homes – more than the reduction in the Stock Increase 
Programme target; 

    
  (h)      believes that while increasing council housing stock is crucial, the fastest 

way to improve the social housing provision in the city is to bring vacant 
council properties into a suitable state to be let, increasing capital 
investment to improve quality of existing homes to reduce high cost 
repairs and that cutting housing repairs to fund housebuilding is a false 
economy; 

    
  (i)       further notes that the continued high void rate places further pressure on 

the HRA budget through the loss of £1.2m in Council Tax payments on 
empty properties; 

    
  (j)       believes that improving the Housing Repair Service is central to ensuring 

that our tenants are not put in danger from overdue gas inspections, out 

Page 345



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 20 of 66 
 

of control damp and mould, and delayed fire safety repairs; 
    
  (k)      therefore welcomes the proposed increase in budget for the Housing 

Repairs Service, but notes that this must be met with improved results on 
customer satisfaction and reducing repair call volumes and voids; 

    
  (l)       reaffirms its support for the creation of an Alternative Disrepair Resolution 

Scheme (which will allow tenants to receive full compensation for 
disrepair claims) and its support of council tenants to directly employ 
contractors if a repair has been delayed, and urges the Housing Policy 
Committee to consider these proposals favourably when they come to 
Committee; 

    
  (m)     welcomes the positive engagement that has taken place with our 

Tenants’ and Residents’ Associations, and encourages the Housing 
Policy Committee to continue extending tenant engagement where 
possible; 

    
  (n)      believes that there are no easy answers when it comes to increasing 

affordable housing in the city, and that all parties must work together 
over the next year to tackle the housing crisis through proposals that are 
imaginative but realistic, and therefore resolves that:- 

    
6.5 After contributions from ten other Members, and following a right of reply from 

Councillor Douglas Johnson, the amendment moved by Councillor Fran Belbin 
was put to the vote and was carried. 

    
6.5.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 71 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. Although Liberal Democrat Group Members 
voted for, they voted against paragraph (n) of the amendment. Although 
Councillor Lewis Chinchen voted for, he abstained from voting on paragraph (n) 
and voted against paragraph (q) of the amendment.) 

    
6.6 The amendment moved by Councillor Penny Baker was then put to the vote 

and was carried, but in part. Paragraphs (a) to (c) and (e) to (n) of the 
amendment were carried, and paragraph (d) of the amendment was lost. 

    
6.6.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 38 Members; AGAINST - 34 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. Although Green Group Members and 
Councillor Lewis Chinchen voted for, they voted against paragraph (d) of the 
amendment.) 

    
6.7 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    

    
  RESOLVED:  That:- 
    
  This Council:- 
    

Page 346



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 21 of 66 
 

  (a)      thanks all the officers who have worked hard to formulate the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA) business plan; 

    
  (b)      notes that this HRA business plan and budget is the first to have been 

put together under the new committee system, that all members of the 
Housing Policy Committee have been involved in this process and that 
regular briefings have taken place between the Chair, Deputy Chair and 
Spokesperson on the proposals; 

    
  (c)      believes that increasing the city’s affordable housing provision is crucial 

to tackling the Cost of Living crisis, reducing the numbers of people 
suffering from homelessness, and ensure that Sheffield remains an 
excellent place to live; 

    
  (d)      notes the unfortunate reduction in the Stock Increase Programme target 

from 3,100 to 2,310, as a result of extremely high building cost inflation, 
and believes that the severe inflation of £2.4m on the Newstead site 
before construction has begun is illustrative of the challenges facing new 
build projects; 

    
  (e)      believes that increasing Council stock is not the only way to increase 

affordable housing provision in the city, and believes that with the 
regrettable reductions in the Stock Increase Programme, the Council 
must think imaginatively to provide affordable housing, which may 
involve:- 

    
  (i)       considering how the Council’s general fund could contribute to, or 

reduce the cost of, new homes and increased use of Sheffield 
Housing Company for affordable housing new build delivery; and 

    
  (ii)       increasing the SIP target through shared ownership schemes 

such as the Owlthorpe scheme, which would provide affordable 
housing while reducing maintenance and financing charges to the 
HRA; 

    
  (f)       believes that previous Council administrations between May 2011 and 

May 2021 have not been up to the task of delivering affordable housing, 
as:- 

    
  (i)       between 2019 and 2022, there was an estimated shortfall in 

affordable housing delivery of 2,251 units; 
    
  (ii)       between 2016 and 2020, affordable housing units in the city 

suffered a net reduction, as completions were outstripped by right 
to buy sales; and 

    
  (iii)      due to the failings in the Council’s Housing Repair Service since 

insourcing, the current void rate is 3.4%, equating to roughly 1,300 
homes – more than the reduction in the Stock Increase 
Programme target; 

Page 347



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 22 of 66 
 

    
  (g)      believes that while increasing council housing stock is crucial, the fastest 

way to improve the social housing provision in the city is to bring vacant 
council properties into a suitable state to be let, increasing capital 
investment to improve quality of existing homes to reduce high cost 
repairs and that cutting housing repairs to fund housebuilding is a false 
economy; 

    
  (h)      further notes that the continued high void rate places further pressure on 

the HRA budget through the loss of £1.2m in Council Tax payments on 
empty properties; 

    
  (i)       believes that improving the Housing Repair Service is central to ensuring 

that our tenants are not put in danger from overdue gas inspections, out 
of control damp and mould, and delayed fire safety repairs; 

    
  (j)       therefore welcomes the proposed increase in budget for the Housing 

Repairs Service, but notes that this must be met with improved results on 
customer satisfaction and reducing repair call volumes and voids; 

    
  (k)      reaffirms its support for the creation of an Alternative Disrepair Resolution 

Scheme (which will allow tenants to receive full compensation for 
disrepair claims) and its support of council tenants to directly employ 
contractors if a repair has been delayed, and urges the Housing Policy 
Committee to consider these proposals favourably when they come to 
Committee; 

    
  (l)       welcomes the positive engagement that has taken place with our 

Tenants’ and Residents’ Associations, and encourages the Housing 
Policy Committee to continue extending tenant engagement where 
possible; 

    
  (m)     believes that there are no easy answers when it comes to increasing 

affordable housing in the city, and that all parties must work together 
over the next year to tackle the housing crisis through proposals that are 
imaginative but realistic, and therefore resolves that:- 

    
  (n)      the HRA Business Plan report for 2023-24, as set out in the Financial 

Appendix to the report, be approved; 
    
  (o)      the HRA Revenue Budget 2023-24, as set out in the Financial Appendix 

to the report, be approved; 
    
  (p)      rents for council dwellings be increased by 7% from April 2023, in line 

with the Regulator of Social Housing’s Rent Standard; 
    
  (q)      rents for temporary accommodation be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 
    
  (r)       garage rents for garage plots and garage sites be increased by 7% from 

April 2023; 

Page 348



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 23 of 66 
 

    
  (s)      the sheltered housing charge be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 
    
  (t)       the burglar alarm charge be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 
    
  (u)      the furnished accommodation charge be increased by 7% for 2023-24; 
    
  (v)      the Hardship Fund be increased by a further £300,000 for 2023/24, to 

£450,000; 
    
  (w)      no increase be made to the community heating charge at this time. 
    
  This Council:- 
    
  (x)      regrets that the report plans to reduce the Stock Increase Programme 

(SIP) to 2,310, from the previous target of 3,100 new council homes by 
2029 as set by the previous Labour administration, and believes that all 
options – including prudential borrowing, re-capitalisation/re-profiling, and 
different ownership models - must instead be considered to not only 
retain the figure of 3,100 but to go further still; 

    
  (y)      believes that tenants need to be much more engaged and empowered 

within decision-making and service delivery, and welcomes Labour’s 
proposals to develop Housing Advisory Panels, bringing together all 
residents and linked directly into the Local Area Committees (LACs) and 
including a greater working relationship with all Registered Private 
Providers of Social Housing (Housing Associations), to make the Council 
more responsive and accountable to local needs; 

    
  (z)      believes that the Council should not accept a sub-standard repairs 

service, and that radical action is needed to deliver what is required, and, 
therefore, believes that investing more now to upgrade homes is not only 
the right thing to do for tenants, but will ultimately prove cost effective in 
bringing down the long-term repairs bill; 

    
  (aa)    believes that the Council needs to be working in anticipation of a new 

change of government within the next 18 months, and a new Decent 
Homes standard this could bring; which will certainly require 
improvements to tackle damp and mould and ensure homes are warm 
and heated affordably; 

    
  (bb)    notes that the Council is investing in existing homes to make sure that 

tenants live in warm and safe homes, including £62 million being spent to 
retrofit homes, including decarbonisation and bringing all homes up to at 
least EPC C Energy standard, helping residents to save on energy costs 
and contributing to net zero targets; and believes that, whilst this is 
hugely welcome, the total spend on Heating, Energy and Carbon 
Reduction should ideally be more ambitious and that options including 
securing external funding, recapitalisation, reprofiling and prudential 
borrowing, should be considered with the aim of increasing investment to 

Page 349



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 24 of 66 
 

£100 million, and that the additional investment must complement a 
programme of skills and job development; 

    
  (cc)     believes the Council is faced with a stark choice between two options – 

either be ambitious with investment and deliver for Sheffield, or accept a 
managed decline with less council homes delivered to a poorer standard, 
and believes that only the former is an acceptable proposition for the city; 
and 

    
  (dd)    believes that, in contrast with the current Government, the Council will 

always prioritise support for neighbourhoods and put housing needs at 
the top of our agenda to produce the strong, thriving neighbourhoods that 
Sheffield deserves. 

    

    
6.7.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 73 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. Although Liberal Democrat Group Members 
voted for, they voted against paragraph (aa) of the Substantive Motion. 
Although Councillor Lewis Chinchen voted for, he abstained from voting on 
paragraph (aa) and voted against paragraph (dd) of the Substantive Motion.) 

    
  
 
7.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "DRIVING FORWARD THE HERITAGE 
STRATEGY FOR SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR JANET RIDLER 
AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR TOM HUNT 
 

7.1 At this point in the proceedings (5.20 p.m.), the time for terminating the meeting 
(5.30 p.m.) was approaching, meaning that all unfinished business would be 
voted on without debate.  Prior to the commencement of this item of business, it 
was moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed, and seconded by Councillor Joe 
Otten, that in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 4 (Suspension and 
Amendment of Council Procedure Rules) and 11 (Motions which may be moved 
without notice), the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 5.5 be suspended and 
the termination of the meeting be extended by 30 minutes. On being put to the 
vote, the motion was negatived. 

    
7.2 It was then moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed, and seconded by 

Councillor Joe Otten, that in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9.1, the 
order of business as published on the Council Summons be altered by taking 
item 8 (Notice of Motion Regarding “The Local Plan in Beighton”) as the next 
item of business. On being put to the vote, the motion was negatived. 

    
7.3 It was moved by Councillor Janet Ridler, and seconded by Councillor Tom Hunt, 

that this Council:- 
    
  (a)      believes the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield is unique in being a 

community-led strategy, created from the ground up by grass roots 
organisations; 

    

Page 350



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 25 of 66 
 

  (b)      notes that this Council has been involved in driving the Heritage Strategy 
forward since its earliest stages, welcoming the completed Strategy in 
January 2021, and subsequently joining the Heritage Partnership Board 
in February 2021 as a first step towards implementation; 

    
  (c)      believes that the aim of a Heritage Strategy is to protect and enhance a 

city’s heritage and invigorate interest and development; believing that 
Sheffield’s heritage is defined in its widest sense including not only 
physical assets such as historic buildings and structures, archaeological 
sites, historic townscapes and landscapes, scheduled monuments, 
registered parks and gardens, but also museums and art galleries and 
their collections, archives, libraries, public art, natural habitats, people 
and communities, spoken stories and much more; 

    
  (d)      further, believes that Sheffield’s unique heritage is particularly inclusive, 

embracing the customs, traditions and skills developed locally, such as 
the 107 languages spoken, radicalism, anti-slavery campaigning, music, 
our working men’s clubs, and Sheffield as the Home of Football; 

    
  (e)      notes the importance of Heritage to our city and recognises its social, 

environmental, educational and well-being benefits and its economic 
potential; 

    
  (f)       celebrates and champions Sheffield's diverse heritage; 
    
  (g)      notes that Sheffield hosts the largest Heritage Open Days festival in the 

country; 
    
  (h)      believes that the Heritage sector is an important source of economic 

prosperity and growth with a total GVA (Gross Value Added) of £36bn, 
supporting over 500,000 jobs nationally; 

    
  (i)       also believes that the impact of Heritage as a means to stimulate 

investment is evident in the huge success of the Kelham Island 
development and the redevelopment of the City Centre;   

    
  (j)       further, believes adopting the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield will 

demonstrate the Council’s strategic approach and commitment to 
Heritage, and that having this strategic approach will greatly improve the 
Council’s ability to attract external funding for a wide range of heritage 
projects; 

    
  (k)      notes that this city’s heritage does not belong to the city council, but to 

the people of Sheffield; and 
    
  (l)       resolves, therefore, to ask the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 

to add the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield to its work programme and 
request that, within the next 3 months, the Committee calls upon the 
Sheffield Heritage Partnership Board to report on progress and co-
develop a programme of actions which will drive forward the 

Page 351



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 26 of 66 
 

implementation of the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield. 
    
7.4 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Barbara Masters, and seconded by 

Councillor Ian Auckland, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

    
  1.       the addition of new paragraphs (j) to (n) as follows, and the re-lettering of 

original paragraphs (j) to (l) as new paragraphs (o) to (q):- 
    
  (j)       believes that strong partnership between local business, the 

Council and heritage organisations is vital to Sheffield’s economic 
future, and especially welcomes the third aim of the Heritage 
Strategy to build on the contribution of Sheffield’s heritage to the 
city’s economic wellbeing; 

    
  (k)      notes the adoption by the Economic Development and Skills Policy 

Committee of the Sheffield Culture Collective Strategy last 
September, and the work currently being undertaken to develop a 
full city Culture Strategy, and welcomes the critical role this will 
play in securing future Arts funding for Sheffield; 

    
  (l)       believes that there are many cases where the City’s industrial and 

craft heritage have been neglected, such as the loss of industrial 
heritage and craft trades for housing development in Kelham 
Island, and the continuing threat to heritage as demonstrated by 
the recent demolition of the Plough Inn, the continuing neglect of 
the Old Town Hall and Crown Court, and the repeated delays to 
the Castlegate site, and actively supports local listing of heritage 
assets; 

    
  (m)     believes that previous administrations have failed to develop and 

implement a coherent and economically viable plan for the Graves 
building, and requests that the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee considers adding this issue to its work programme; 

    
  (n)      notes that the Council has left many buildings it owns which are of 

heritage value to fall into a poor state of repair, such as Birley Spa 
Bath House and the Rose Garden Café, and believes that the 
Council must invest more in proactive maintenance in order to 
protect heritage buildings in its possession; 

    
  2.       the addition of a new paragraph (r) as follows:- 
    
  (r)       believes that the recently listed John Lewis building is another 

critically important Heritage asset, believes that it is incredibly 
important to ensure that the right decision is taken on its future 
and to avoid poor project outcomes such as those seen in the 
Fargate Container project, and requests that the Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee considers whether public 
consultation on any proposal would be beneficial to achieve this. 

Page 352



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 27 of 66 
 

    
7.5 It was then moved by Councillor Brian Holmshaw, seconded by Councillor 

Angela Argenzio, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

    
  1.       the deletion of paragraphs (b), (g) and (l), and the re-lettering of 

paragraphs (c), (d), (e), (f), (h), (i), (j) and (k) as new paragraphs (b) to 
(i); and 

    
  2.       the addition of new paragraphs (j) to (r) as follows:- 
    
  (j)       notes the positive tone of this motion, congratulates the volunteers 

at Joined Up Heritage Sheffield on their long standing efforts to 
place heritage at the centre of our cultural landscape and 
applauds the long-overdue emphasis finally being placed on the 
power of heritage to do good in the city; 

    
  (k)      welcomes the significant shift in attitude towards heritage since the 

Cabinet Member described heritage disparagingly as a “barrier to 
development” in 2019; 

    
  (l)       believes that Sheffield City Council needs to:- 
    
  (i)       abandon its risk-averse approach to heritage in the city and 

embrace the environmental, social, cultural and economic 
benefits of heritage in all its forms; and 

    
  (ii)       nurture better working relationships with the Heritage 

Lottery Fund, Historic England and other large-scale 
national and regional funding bodies, as an essential part of 
being able to fund the type of heritage projects the city has 
missed out on over the years; 

    
  (m)     requests that the Governance Committee look at the place of 

heritage within the committee system within their Governance 
Review; 

    
  (n)      requests that whichever committee is responsible for heritage 

considers establishing a cross-party task and finish working group 
to work with Sheffield Heritage Partnership Board, and make 
recommendations to the relevant Policy Committees or to this 
Council on the implementation of the grassroots Joined Up 
Heritage Sheffield Heritage Strategy; 

    
  (o)      recommends that if a task and finish working group is established, 

that its programme of work includes looking at the possibilities 
for:- 

    
  (i)       providing financial and organisational support for the work 

of the Sheffield Heritage Open Days volunteers who, with 

Page 353



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 28 of 66 
 

over 130 free walks, talks, tours and exhibitions across the 
Sheffield region between 9 – 18 September 2022, have 
made the festival one of the biggest and best in the 
country; and 

    
  (ii)       employing additional SCC conservation staff, community 

heritage officers and planning enforcement officers to 
support the implementation of the heritage strategy; 

    
  (p)      affirms support for the inspiring Harmony Works project team in 

their bid for national public funds to move the Music Hub to a 
heritage building in Castlegate in the heart of the city; 

    
  (q)      recommends that relevant Committees should use the mechanism 

of the Corporate Opportunities Register to identify and put in 
funding bids and establish partnerships to support heritage in the 
city; and 

    
  (r)       requests that the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy 

Committee adds the future of the city’s paused Conservation 
Areas, such as the one at Castlegate, to its work programme, as 
this Council believes they can bring positive economic, social, 
environmental and cultural benefits, together with heritage 
funding, to the communities they serve. 

    
7.6 Following a right of reply from Councillor Janet Ridler, the amendment moved 

by Councillor Barbara Masters was put to the vote and was carried. 
    
7.6.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 70 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. Although Labour Group Members voted for, they 
voted against paragraphs (l) to (n) in Part 1 of the amendment.) 

    
7.7 The amendment moved by Councillor Brian Holmshaw was then put to the vote 

and was carried, but in part.  Part 1 of the amendment was lost, and Part 2 of 
the amendment was carried. 

    
7.7.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 12 Members; AGAINST - 33 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 24 Members. Although Labour Group Members 
voted against, they voted for paragraphs (j) and (l) to (r) in Part 2 of the 
amendment. Liberal Democrat Group Members abstained from voting on 
paragraphs (l) to (o) and (r) in Part 2 of the amendment, but voted for 
paragraphs (j), (k), (p) and (q) in Part 2 of the amendment, and voted against 
Part 1 of the amendment.) 

    
7.8 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    

Page 354



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 29 of 66 
 

  (a) believes the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield is unique in being a 
community-led strategy, created from the ground up by grass roots 
organisations; 

      
  (b) notes that this Council has been involved in driving the Heritage 

Strategy forward since its earliest stages, welcoming the completed 
Strategy in January 2021, and subsequently joining the Heritage 
Partnership Board in February 2021 as a first step towards 
implementation; 

      
  (c) believes that the aim of a Heritage Strategy is to protect and enhance 

a city’s heritage and invigorate interest and development; believing 
that Sheffield’s heritage is defined in its widest sense including not 
only physical assets such as historic buildings and structures, 
archaeological sites, historic townscapes and landscapes, scheduled 
monuments, registered parks and gardens, but also museums and art 
galleries and their collections, archives, libraries, public art, natural 
habitats, people and communities, spoken stories and much more; 

      
  (d) further, believes that Sheffield’s unique heritage is particularly 

inclusive, embracing the customs, traditions and skills developed 
locally, such as the 107 languages spoken, radicalism, anti-slavery 
campaigning, music, our working men’s clubs, and Sheffield as the 
Home of Football; 

      
  (e) notes the importance of Heritage to our city and recognises its social, 

environmental, educational and well-being benefits and its economic 
potential; 

      
  (f) celebrates and champions Sheffield's diverse heritage; 
      
  (g) notes that Sheffield hosts the largest Heritage Open Days festival in 

the country; 
      
  (h) believes that the Heritage sector is an important source of economic 

prosperity and growth with a total GVA (Gross Value Added) of £36bn, 
supporting over 500,000 jobs nationally; 

      
  (i) also believes that the impact of Heritage as a means to stimulate 

investment is evident in the huge success of the Kelham Island 
development and the redevelopment of the City Centre; 

      
  (j) believes that strong partnership between local business, the Council 

and heritage organisations is vital to Sheffield’s economic future, and 
especially welcomes the third aim of the Heritage Strategy to build on 
the contribution of Sheffield’s heritage to the city’s economic 
wellbeing; 

      
  (k) notes the adoption by the Economic Development and Skills Policy 

Committee of the Sheffield Culture Collective Strategy last September, 

Page 355



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 30 of 66 
 

and the work currently being undertaken to develop a full city Culture 
Strategy, and welcomes the critical role this will play in securing future 
Arts funding for Sheffield; 

      
  (l) believes that there are many cases where the City’s industrial and 

craft heritage have been neglected, such as the loss of industrial 
heritage and craft trades for housing development in Kelham Island, 
and the continuing threat to heritage as demonstrated by the recent 
demolition of the Plough Inn, the continuing neglect of the Old Town 
Hall and Crown Court, and the repeated delays to the Castlegate site, 
and actively supports local listing of heritage assets; 

      
  (m) believes that previous administrations have failed to develop and 

implement a coherent and economically viable plan for the Graves 
building, and requests that the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee considers adding this issue to its work programme; 

      
  (n) notes that the Council has left many buildings it owns which are of 

heritage value to fall into a poor state of repair, such as Birley Spa 
Bath House and the Rose Garden Café, and believes that the Council 
must invest more in proactive maintenance in order to protect heritage 
buildings in its possession; 

      
  (o) further, believes adopting the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield will 

demonstrate the Council’s strategic approach and commitment to 
Heritage, and that having this strategic approach will greatly improve 
the Council’s ability to attract external funding for a wide range of 
heritage projects; 

      
  (p) notes that this city’s heritage does not belong to the city council, but to 

the people of Sheffield; 
      
  (q) resolves, therefore, to ask the Strategy and Resources Policy 

Committee to add the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield to its work 
programme and request that, within the next 3 months, the Committee 
calls upon the Sheffield Heritage Partnership Board to report on 
progress and co-develop a programme of actions which will drive 
forward the implementation of the Heritage Strategy for Sheffield; 

      
  (r) believes that the recently listed John Lewis building is another critically 

important Heritage asset, believes that it is incredibly important to 
ensure that the right decision is taken on its future and to avoid poor 
project outcomes such as those seen in the Fargate Container project, 
and requests that the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 
considers whether public consultation on any proposal would be 
beneficial to achieve this; 

      
  (s) notes the positive tone of this motion, congratulates the volunteers at 

Joined Up Heritage Sheffield on their long standing efforts to place 
heritage at the centre of our cultural landscape and applauds the long-

Page 356



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 31 of 66 
 

overdue emphasis finally being placed on the power of heritage to do 
good in the city; 

      
  (t) welcomes the significant shift in attitude towards heritage since the 

Cabinet Member described heritage disparagingly as a “barrier to 
development” in 2019; 

      
  (u) believes that Sheffield City Council needs to:- 

  
(i)        abandon its risk-averse approach to heritage in the city and 

embrace the environmental, social, cultural and economic 
benefits of heritage in all its forms; and 

  
(ii)       nurture better working relationships with the Heritage Lottery 

Fund, Historic England and other large-scale national and 
regional funding bodies, as an essential part of being able to 
fund the type of heritage projects the city has missed out on 
over the years; 

      
  (v) requests that the Governance Committee look at the place of heritage 

within the committee system within their Governance Review; 
      
  (w) requests that whichever committee is responsible for heritage 

considers establishing a cross-party task and finish working group to 
work with Sheffield Heritage Partnership Board, and make 
recommendations to the relevant Policy Committees or to this Council 
on the implementation of the grassroots Joined Up Heritage Sheffield 
Heritage Strategy; 

      
  (x) recommends that if a task and finish working group is established, that 

its programme of work includes looking at the possibilities for:- 
  
(i)        providing financial and organisational support for the work of 

the Sheffield Heritage Open Days volunteers who, with over 
130 free walks, talks, tours and exhibitions across the Sheffield 
region between 9 – 18 September 2022, have made the 
festival one of the biggest and best in the country; and 

  
(ii)       employing additional SCC conservation staff, community 

heritage officers and planning enforcement officers to support 
the implementation of the heritage strategy; 

      
  (y) affirms support for the inspiring Harmony Works project team in their 

bid for national public funds to move the Music Hub to a heritage 
building in Castlegate in the heart of the city; 

      
  (z) recommends that relevant Committees should use the mechanism of 

the Corporate Opportunities Register to identify and put in funding 
bids and establish partnerships to support heritage in the city; and 

      

Page 357



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 32 of 66 
 

  (aa) requests that the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy 
Committee adds the future of the city’s paused Conservation Areas, 
such as the one at Castlegate, to its work programme, as this Council 
believes they can bring positive economic, social, environmental and 
cultural benefits, together with heritage funding, to the communities 
they serve. 

    

    
7.8.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 69 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  Although Liberal Democrat Group Members 
voted for, they abstained on paragraphs (u) to (x) and (aa) of the Substantive 
Motion. Although Green Group Members voted for, they voted against 
paragraphs (b), (g) & (q) of the Substantive Motion.) 

    
  
 
8.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "THE LOCAL PLAN IN BEIGHTON" - 
GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR KURTIS CROSSLAND AND TO BE SECONDED 
BY COUNCILLOR GAIL SMITH 
 

8.1 It was formally moved by Councillor Kurtis Crossland, and formally seconded by 
Councillor Gail Smith, that this Council:- 

    
  (a)      welcomes the approval of the emerging Local Plan to go forward to public 

consultation, given at the December meeting of Full Council, however:- 
    
  (i)       regrets that the process of developing the emerging Local Plan 

has been held back by numerous delays on the part of previous 
Council administrations between May 2011 and May 2021; and 

    
  (ii)       believes that, as a result of delays to the emerging Local Plan, this 

Council has been left unable to oppose controversial housing 
developments such as the site at Hollin Busk Road, which was 
recommended by Full Council to be removed from the Local Plan 
as a Housing Site on the 14th of December, and despite this, 
plans for the development of 75 houses were approved at a 
Planning Committee meeting on the 10th of January; 

    
  (b)      believes that local residents know what is best for their own communities, 

and as such, welcomes the numerous representations, feedback, and 
petitions from members of the public concerning allocations and policies 
in the emerging Local Plan; 

    
  (c)      regrets that engaged local democracy is only now possible at this 

relatively late stage, and regrets that Local Area Committees and local 
councillors have had limited formal input into the plan development 
process; 

    
  (d)      believes that local residents of South East Sheffield have made their 

voices clear on the issue of the site east of Eckington Way (referred to in 

Page 358



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 33 of 66 
 

the Emerging Local Plan as site SES 03), which has been allocated for 
use as a ‘General Employment and Traveller Site’, and notes that a 
petition opposing the proposed site has received 2,773 signatures as of 
the 8th of February; 

    
  (e)      notes that democratic discussion of how the Council should discharge its 

duty to provide Gypsy and Traveller accommodation can regrettably 
sometimes attract discriminatory and racist views and therefore 
condemns in the strongest terms all forms of racism and discrimination 
against Gypsy, Traveller, Roma, and Travelling Showpeople 
communities, and especially any use of discriminatory stereotypes within 
political campaigning; 

    
  (f)       notes there has been significant concerns raised about the suitability of 

the site for use as industrial employment and traveller pitches, for the 
following reasons:- 

    
  (i)       congestion on Eckington Way is a significant issue, as:- 
    
  (A)      the site is very close to the Crystal Peaks shopping centre 

and Drakehouse Retail Park; 
    
  (B)      there have been 13 collisions on the road and roundabout 

in the last five years, 5 of them serious; 
    
  (C)      Ward members regularly receive complaints from 

constituents regarding the large volume of congestion on 
Eckington Way; and 

    
  (D)      the site’s proposed use for employment and travelling 

showpeople, with Eckington Way as its only access point, 
would significantly add to congestion on this street; and 

    
  (ii)       the site is not appropriate for industrial or traveller development, 

as:- 
    
  (A)      it is in very close proximity to current residential 

development, which is likely to be adversely affected by an 
industrial and traveller site through noise and pollution; 

    
  (B)      the site is on a Green Belt boundary, is of a substantially 

similar quality to the site adjacent which is included in the 
Green Belt (both were rated 13/20 in the 2020 Green Belt 
Review), and is only delineated from the section within the 
Green Belt by a footpath; 

    
  (C)      a high pressure gas pipe is present on the site, which 

raises safety concerns around its proposed use as an 
industrial site; 

    

Page 359



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 34 of 66 
 

  (D)      it is possible that the site may be protected as Grade 3a 
farming land at a future date, putting the Council in 
noncompliance with its legal obligation to provide Gypsy 
and Traveller accommodation; and 

    
  (E)      industrial land use adjacent to housing has previously been 

shown to disturb the local community, such as at the Abbey 
Glen site nearby, where hundreds of residents have 
campaigned against the smell and noise created by the 
laundry service’s industrial activities; and 

    
  (g)      therefore resolves that officers are requested to include a reappraisal of 

SES 03 as an industrial and traveller site in the Local Plan, taking into 
account the views of this Council and the responses to the consultation, 
when officers present the ‘schedule of suggested amendments’ to the 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee and subsequently to Full 

Council, as agreed on 14th December 2022. 

    
8.1.1 (NOTE: With the agreement of the Council and at the request of the mover of 

the Motion (Councillor Kurtis Crossland), the Motion as published on the 
agenda was altered by (1) the removal of 10 words from paragraph (e) of the 
Motion – with those words also having been removed from the published 
record, at the request of the Council’s Monitoring Officer, on the grounds that 
they were likely to identify an individual and (2) the replacement, in paragraph 
(f) of the Motion, of the words “believes that the site in question is not suitable 
for use as” by the words “notes there has been significant concerns raised 
about the suitability of the site for use as”.) 

    
8.2 Whereupon, it was formally moved by Councillor Karen McGowan, and formally 

seconded by Councillor Tony Downing, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by the addition of new paragraphs (f) to (k) as follows, 
and the re-lettering of original paragraphs (f) and (g) as new paragraphs (l) & 
(m):- 

    
  (f)       believes that, not only as a council but as a city, we should be proud to 

celebrate the rich histories and diverse cultures of the Gypsy, Roma and 
Traveller communities, and provide traveller sites in full consultation with 
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities; 

    
  (g)      notes that the site allocation list for Beighton, and the whole of the South-

East, was put to councillors on 11th July 2022; 

    
  (h)      believes that this whole process was completely transparent and notes 

that, following these briefings and discussions within political groups, the 

whole Council met on 14th December 2022 to vote on the Local Plan, 

and all parties – Labour, Liberal Democrat, Conservative and Green – 
approved the plans; 

    
  (i)       notes that the Local Plan was delivered cross-party, and notes that were 

Page 360



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 35 of 66 
 

any traveller site removed from the current Plan, an alternative site would 
need to be found in order to meet recognised need; 

    
  (j)       notes that while an alternative site, instead of site SES 03, may be 

required, it would not be appropriate to determine this until the public 
consultation has completed – and Members need to consider all 
representations (including from the gypsy and traveller community) as 
well as any further evidence, around all sites in the city; 

    
  (k)      believes that the Local Plan is for all of Sheffield – all of its people and 

different communities, without prejudice – and that this Council needs to 
balance all considerations in the final approved report, including issues 
around traffic mitigation, supporting infrastructure, environmental 
protection, the standard of homes, and economic growth; 

    
8.3 It was then formally moved by Councillor Alexi Dimond, and formally seconded 

by Councillor Henry Nottage, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted 
be amended by:- 

    
  1.       the deletion of paragraphs (a) to (d) and (f) and (g) and the re-lettering of 

paragraph (e) as a new paragraph (a); and 
    
  2.       the addition of new paragraphs (b) to (h) as follows:- 
    
  (b)      notes that following the Race Equality Commission, and in the 

past, Sheffield Council has committed to working towards 
becoming an anti-racist city; 

    
  (c)      believes that, as the two biggest parties in the Council, both 

Labour and the Liberal Democrats have a responsibility to this 
commitment and should not be campaigning against one of the 
most marginalised and demonised groups in the UK; 

    
  (d)      notes that the Labour Party’s nominated candidate for the 

Beighton Ward has set up a petition against the proposed traveller 
site in Beighton, and believes this is a cynical attempt to win votes 
in the local election; 

    
  (e)      affirms that the Council has a legal and moral obligation to provide 

traveller sites in Sheffield; 
    
  (f)       notes that no objections to the proposed site in Eckington were 

made at Full Council when the draft local plan was unanimously 
agreed in December 2022; 

    
  (g)      notes that many areas of Sheffield have high levels of traffic and 

pollution, and believes that, if councillors were really concerned 
about this, they would support measures to reduce car use in 
favour of public transport, such as a Workplace Parking Levy, 
better bus routes and introducing more parking schemes, and 

Page 361



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 36 of 66 
 

more effective enforcement of parking schemes and policies that 
already exist; and 

    
  (h)      notes that Labour and Liberal Democrat Councillors have 

previously supported traffic-increasing developments, such as 
Meadowhall expansion, the IKEA shopping centre, free parking at 
Christmas and to exclude private cars from the Clean Air Zone. 

    
8.4 The amendment moved by Councillor Karen McGowan was put to the vote and 

was carried. 
    
8.4.1 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:- 
    
  For paragraphs (f) and (k) of 

the Amendment (70) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 

Richards), the Deputy Lord Mayor 
(Councillor Colin Ross)  and Councillors 
Richard Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Bob 
McCann, Kurtis Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, 
Denise Fox, Bryan Lodge, Karen McGowan, 
Angela Argenzio, Brian Holmshaw, Talib 
Hussain, Mark Jones, Safiya Saeed, 
Douglas Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin 
Phipps, Tim Huggan, Minesh Parekh, Ruth 
Milsom, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, Joe Otten, 
Martin Smith, Vic Bowden, Alan Woodcock, 
Roger Davison, Barbara Masters, Shaffaq 
Mohammed, Fran Belbin, Abdul Khayum, 
Abtisam Mohamed, Sue Alston, Andrew 
Sangar, Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul 
Turpin, Ian Auckland, Sue Auckland, Steve 
Ayris, Christine Gilligan Kubo, Henry 
Nottage, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, Kevin 
Oxley, Gail Smith, Peter Garbutt, Nighat 
Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela Mowlana, 
David Barker, Dianne Hurst, Dawn Dale, 
Peter Price, Garry Weatherall, Mike Chaplin, 
Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Richard 
Williams, Lewis Chinchen, Julie Grocutt, 
Janet Ridler, Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Alan 
Hooper, Mike Levery, Ann Whitaker, Mick 
Rooney and Jackie Satur. 

        
  Against paragraphs (f) and 

(k) of the Amendment (0) 
- Nil 

        
  Abstained from voting on 

paragraphs (f) and (k) of the 
Amendment (0) 

- Nil 

        

Page 362



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 37 of 66 
 

  For paragraphs (g) to (j) of 
the Amendment (45) 

- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 
Richards) and Councillors Denise Fox, 
Bryan Lodge, Karen McGowan, Angela 
Argenzio, Brian Holmshaw, Talib Hussain, 
Mark Jones, Safiya Saeed, Douglas 
Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin Phipps, 
Minesh Parekh, Ruth Milsom, Mary Lea, 
Zahira Naz, Fran Belbin, Abdul Khayum, 
Abtisam Mohamed, Alexi Dimond, 
Marieanne Elliot, Paul Turpin, Christine 
Gilligan Kubo, Henry Nottage, Terry Fox, 
Tony Downing, Peter Garbutt, Nighat 
Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela Mowlana, 
David Barker, Dianne Hurst, Dawn Dale, 
Peter Price, Garry Weatherall, Mike 
Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Lewis 
Chinchen, Julie Grocutt, Janet Ridler, Ben 
Curran, Tom Hunt, Mick Rooney and Jackie 
Satur. 

        
  Against paragraphs (g) to (j) 

of the Amendment (25) 
- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin 

Ross) and Councillors Richard Shaw, 
Sophie Thornton, Bob McCann, Kurtis 
Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, Tim Huggan, 
Joe Otten, Martin Smith, Vic Bowden, Alan 
Woodcock, Roger Davison, Barbara 
Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, Sue Alston, 
Andrew Sangar, Ian Auckland, Sue 
Auckland, Steve Ayris, Kevin Oxley, Gail 
Smith, Richard Williams, Alan Hooper, Mike 
Levery and Ann Whitaker. 

        
  Abstained from voting on 

paragraphs (g) to (j) of the 
Amendment (0) 

- Nil 

        
8.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Alexi Dimond was then put to the vote 

and was carried in part.  Part 1 and paragraphs (g) and (h) in Part 2 of the 
amendment were lost, and paragraphs (b) to (f) in Part 2 of the amendment 
were carried. 

    
8.5.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 11 Members; AGAINST - 58 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  Although Labour Group Members 
voted against, they voted for paragraphs (b), (e) and (f) in Part 2 of the 
amendment, and abstained from voting on paragraphs (c) and (h) in Part 2 of 
the amendment. Although Liberal Democrat Members voted against, they voted 
for paragraphs (b) to (d) in Part 2 of the amendment. Although Councillor Lewis 
Chinchen voted against, he voted for paragraphs (b) and (e) in Part 2 of the 
amendment.) 

    

Page 363



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 38 of 66 
 

8.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 
following form:- 

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (a) welcomes the approval of the emerging Local Plan to go forward to 

public consultation, given at the December meeting of Full Council, 
however:- 

      
    (i)       regrets that the process of developing the emerging Local Plan 

has been held back by numerous delays on the part of previous 
Council administrations between May 2011 and May 2021; and 

      
    (ii)       believes that, as a result of delays to the emerging Local Plan, 

this Council has been left unable to oppose controversial housing 
developments such as the site at Hollin Busk Road, which was 
recommended by Full Council to be removed from the Local Plan as a 
Housing Site on the 14th of December, and despite this, plans for the 
development of 75 houses were approved at a Planning Committee 
meeting on the 10th of January; 

      
  (b) believes that local residents know what is best for their own 

communities, and as such, welcomes the numerous representations, 
feedback, and petitions from members of the public concerning 
allocations and policies in the emerging Local Plan; 

      
  (c) regrets that engaged local democracy is only now possible at this 

relatively late stage, and regrets that Local Area Committees and 
local councillors have had limited formal input into the plan 
development process; 

      
  (d) believes that local residents of South East Sheffield have made their 

voices clear on the issue of the site east of Eckington Way (referred 
to in the Emerging Local Plan as site SES 03), which has been 
allocated for use as a ‘General Employment and Traveller Site’, and 
notes that a petition opposing the proposed site has received 2,773 
signatures as of the 8th of February; 

      
  (e) notes that democratic discussion of how the Council should discharge 

its duty to provide Gypsy and Traveller accommodation can 
regrettably sometimes attract discriminatory and racist views and 
therefore condemns in the strongest terms all forms of racism and 
discrimination against Gypsy, Traveller, Roma, and Travelling 
Showpeople communities, and especially any use of discriminatory 
stereotypes within political campaigning; 

      
  (f) believes that, not only as a council but as a city, we should be proud 

to celebrate the rich histories and diverse cultures of the Gypsy, 
Roma and Traveller communities, and provide traveller sites in full 
consultation with Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities; 

Page 364



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 39 of 66 
 

      
  (g) notes that the site allocation list for Beighton, and the whole of the 

South-East, was put to councillors on 11th July 2022; 

      
  (h) believes that this whole process was completely transparent and 

notes that, following these briefings and discussions within political 

groups, the whole Council met on 14th December 2022 to vote on the 

Local Plan, and all parties – Labour, Liberal Democrat, Conservative 
and Green – approved the plans; 

      
  (i) notes that the Local Plan was delivered cross-party, and notes that 

were any traveller site removed from the current Plan, an alternative 
site would need to be found in order to meet recognised need; 

      
  (j) notes that while an alternative site, instead of site SES 03, may be 

required, it would not be appropriate to determine this until the public 
consultation has completed – and Members need to consider all 
representations (including from the gypsy and traveller community) as 
well as any further evidence, around all sites in the city; 

      
  (k) believes that the Local Plan is for all of Sheffield – all of its people and 

different communities, without prejudice – and that this Council needs 
to balance all considerations in the final approved report, including 
issues around traffic mitigation, supporting infrastructure, 
environmental protection, the standard of homes, and economic 
growth; 

      
  (l) notes there has been significant concerns raised about the suitability 

of the site for use as industrial employment and traveller pitches, for 
the following reasons:- 
  
(i)        congestion on Eckington Way is a significant issue, as:- 
  

(A)    the site is very close to the Crystal Peaks shopping 
centre and Drakehouse Retail Park; 

  
(B)    there have been 13 collisions on the road and 

roundabout in the last five years, 5 of them serious; 
  
(C)   Ward members regularly receive complaints from 

constituents regarding the large volume of congestion on 
Eckington Way; and 

  
(D)   the site’s proposed use for employment and travelling 

showpeople, with Eckington Way as its only access point, 
would significantly add to congestion on this street; and 

  
(ii)       the site is not appropriate for industrial or traveller 

development, as:- 
  

Page 365



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 40 of 66 
 

(A)    it is in very close proximity to current residential 
development, which is likely to be adversely affected by 
an industrial and traveller site through noise and 
pollution; 

  
(B)    the site is on a Green Belt boundary, is of a substantially 

similar quality to the site adjacent which is included in the 
Green Belt (both were rated 13/20 in the 2020 Green Belt 
Review), and is only delineated from the section within 
the Green Belt by a footpath; 

  
(C)   a high pressure gas pipe is present on the site, which 

raises safety concerns around its proposed use as an 
industrial site; 

  
(D)   it is possible that the site may be protected as Grade 3a 

farming land at a future date, putting the Council in 
noncompliance with its legal obligation to provide Gypsy 
and Traveller accommodation; and 

  
(E)    industrial land use adjacent to housing has previously 

been shown to disturb the local community, such as at 
the Abbey Glen site nearby, where hundreds of residents 
have campaigned against the smell and noise created by 
the laundry service’s industrial activities; 

      
  (m) therefore resolves that officers are requested to include a reappraisal 

of SES 03 as an industrial and traveller site in the Local Plan, taking 
into account the views of this Council and the responses to the 
consultation, when officers present the ‘schedule of suggested 
amendments’ to the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee and 

subsequently to Full Council, as agreed on 14th December 2022; 

      
  (n) notes that following the Race Equality Commission, and in the past, 

Sheffield Council has committed to working towards becoming an 
anti-racist city; 

      
  (o) believes that, as the two biggest parties in the Council, both Labour 

and the Liberal Democrats have a responsibility to this commitment 
and should not be campaigning against one of the most marginalised 
and demonised groups in the UK; 

      
  (p) notes that the Labour Party’s nominated candidate for the Beighton 

Ward has set up a petition against the proposed traveller site in 
Beighton, and believes this is a cynical attempt to win votes in the 
local election; 

      
  (q) affirms that the Council has a legal and moral obligation to provide 

traveller sites in Sheffield; and 
      

Page 366



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 41 of 66 
 

  (r) notes that no objections to the proposed site in Eckington were made 
at Full Council when the draft local plan was unanimously agreed in 
December 2022. 

    
8.7 On being put to the vote, the Substantive Motion was carried, except for 

paragraphs (a) and (c) which were lost. 
    
8.7.1 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:- 
    
  For paragraphs (a) and (c) of 

the Substantive Motion (26) 
- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin 

Ross) and Councillors Richard Shaw, 
Sophie Thornton, Bob McCann, Kurtis 
Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, Tim Huggan, 
Joe Otten, Martin Smith, Vic Bowden, Alan 
Woodcock, Roger Davison, Barbara 
Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, Sue Alston, 
Andrew Sangar, Ian Auckland, Sue 
Auckland, Steve Ayris, Kevin Oxley, Gail 
Smith, Richard Williams, Lewis Chinchen, 
Alan Hooper, Mike Levery and Ann 
Whitaker. 

        
  Against paragraphs (a) and 

(c) of the Substantive Motion 
(41) 

- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 
Richards) and Councillors Denise Fox, 
Bryan Lodge, Karen McGowan, Angela 
Argenzio, Brian Holmshaw, Mark Jones, 
Safiya Saeed, Douglas Johnson, Ruth 
Mersereau, Martin Phipps, Minesh Parekh, 
Ruth Milsom, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, Fran 
Belbin, Abdul Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed, 
Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul Turpin, 
Christine Gilligan Kubo, Henry Nottage, 
Terry Fox, Tony Downing, Peter Garbutt, 
Nighat Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela 
Mowlana, David Barker, Dianne Hurst, 
Dawn Dale, Mike Chaplin, Tony Damms, 
Jayne Dunn, Julie Grocutt, Janet Ridler, 
Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Mick Rooney and 
Jackie Satur. 

        
  Abstained from voting on 

paragraphs (a) and (c) of the 
Substantive Motion (2) 

- Councillors Talib Hussain and Peter Price. 

        
  For paragraph (b), (d), (l) and 

(m) of the Substantive Motion 
(51) 

- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 
Richards), the Deputy Lord Mayor 
(Councillor Colin Ross)  and Councillors 
Richard Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Bob 
McCann, Kurtis Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, 

Page 367



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 42 of 66 
 

Denise Fox, Karen McGowan, Mark Jones, 
Safiya Saeed, Tim Huggan, Minesh Parekh, 
Ruth Milsom, Joe Otten, Martin Smith, Vic 
Bowden, Alan Woodcock, Roger Davison, 
Barbara Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, Fran 
Belbin, Abdul Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed, 
Sue Alston, Andrew Sangar, Ian Auckland, 
Sue Auckland, Steve Ayris, Terry Fox, Tony 
Downing, Kevin Oxley, Gail Smith, Nighat 
Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela Mowlana, 
David Barker, Dawn Dale, Mike Chaplin, 
Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Richard 
Williams, Lewis Chinchen, Julie Grocutt, 
Janet Ridler, Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Alan 
Hooper, Mike Levery, Ann Whitaker and 
Jackie Satur. 

        
  Against paragraphs (b), (d), 

(l) and (m) of the Substantive 
Motion (16) 

- Councillors Bryan Lodge, Angela Argenzio, 
Brian Holmshaw, Douglas Johnson, Ruth 
Mersereau, Martin Phipps, Mary Lea, Zahira 
Naz, Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul 
Turpin, Christine Gilligan Kubo, Henry 
Nottage, Peter Garbutt, Dianne Hurst and 
Mick Rooney. 

        
  Abstained from voting on 

paragraphs (b), (d), (l) and 
(m) of the Substantive Motion 
(2) 

- Councillors Talib Hussain and Peter Price. 

        
  For paragraphs (e), (f), (k), 

(n), (o) and (p) of the 
Substantive Motion (62) 

- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 
Richards), the Deputy Lord Mayor 
(Councillor Colin Ross)  and Councillors 
Richard Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Bob 
McCann, Kurtis Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, 
Denise Fox, Karen McGowan, Angela 
Argenzio, Brian Holmshaw, Mark Jones, 
Safiya Saeed, Douglas Johnson, Ruth 
Mersereau, Martin Phipps, Tim Huggan, 
Minesh Parekh, Ruth Milsom, Joe Otten, 
Martin Smith, Vic Bowden, Alan Woodcock, 
Roger Davison, Barbara Masters, Shaffaq 
Mohammed, Fran Belbin, Abdul Khayum, 
Abtisam Mohamed, Sue Alston, Andrew 
Sangar, Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, 
Paul Turpin, Ian Auckland, Sue Auckland, 
Steve Ayris, Christine Gilligan Kubo, Henry 
Nottage, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, Kevin 
Oxley, Gail Smith, Peter Garbutt, Nighat 
Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela Mowlana, 

Page 368



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 43 of 66 
 

David Barker, Dawn Dale, Mike Chaplin, 
Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Richard 
Williams, Lewis Chinchen, Julie Grocutt, 
Janet Ridler, Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Alan 
Hooper, Mike Levery, Ann Whitaker and 
Jackie Satur. 

        
  Against paragraphs (e), (f), 

(k), (n), (o) and (p) of the 
Substantive Motion (5) 

- Councillors Bryan Lodge, Mary Lea, Zahira 
Naz, Dianne Hurst and Mick Rooney. 

        
  Abstained from voting on 

paragraphs (e), (f), (k), (n), 
(o) and (p) of the Substantive 
Motion (2) 

- Councillors Talib Hussain and Peter Price. 

        
  For paragraphs (g) to (j), (q) 

& (r) of the Substantive 
Motion (37) 

- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 
Richards) and Councillors Denise Fox, 
Karen McGowan, Angela Argenzio, Brian 
Holmshaw, Mark Jones, Safiya Saeed, 
Douglas Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin 
Phipps, Minesh Parekh, Ruth Milsom, Fran 
Belbin, Abdul Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed, 
Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul Turpin, 
Christine Gilligan Kubo, Henry Nottage, 
Terry Fox, Tony Downing, Peter Garbutt, 
Nighat Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela 
Mowlana, David Barker, Dawn Dale, Mike 
Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Lewis 
Chinchen, Julie Grocutt, Janet Ridler, Ben 
Curran, Tom Hunt and Jackie Satur. 

        
  Against paragraphs (g) to (j), 

(q) & (r) of the Substantive 
Motion (30) 

- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin 
Ross) and Councillors Richard Shaw, 
Sophie Thornton, Bob McCann, Kurtis 
Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, Bryan Lodge, 
Tim Huggan, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, Joe 
Otten, Martin Smith, Vic Bowden, Alan 
Woodcock, Roger Davison, Barbara 
Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, Sue Alston, 
Andrew Sangar, Ian Auckland, Sue 
Auckland, Steve Ayris, Kevin Oxley, Gail 
Smith, Dianne Hurst, Richard Williams, Alan 
Hooper, Mike Levery, Ann Whitaker and 
Mick Rooney. 

        
  Abstained from voting on 

paragraphs (g) to (j), (q) & (r) 
of the Substantive Motion (2) 

- Councillors Talib Hussain and Peter Price. 

        

Page 369



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 44 of 66 
 

    
8.8 Accordingly, the resolution passed by the Council was as follows:- 
    

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (a) believes that local residents know what is best for their own 

communities, and as such, welcomes the numerous representations, 
feedback, and petitions from members of the public concerning 
allocations and policies in the emerging Local Plan; 

      
  (b) believes that local residents of South East Sheffield have made their 

voices clear on the issue of the site east of Eckington Way (referred 
to in the Emerging Local Plan as site SES 03), which has been 
allocated for use as a ‘General Employment and Traveller Site’, and 
notes that a petition opposing the proposed site has received 2,773 
signatures as of the 8th of February; 

      
  (c) notes that democratic discussion of how the Council should discharge 

its duty to provide Gypsy and Traveller accommodation can 
regrettably sometimes attract discriminatory and racist views and 
therefore condemns in the strongest terms all forms of racism and 
discrimination against Gypsy, Traveller, Roma, and Travelling 
Showpeople communities, and especially any use of discriminatory 
stereotypes within political campaigning; 

      
  (d) believes that, not only as a council but as a city, we should be proud 

to celebrate the rich histories and diverse cultures of the Gypsy, 
Roma and Traveller communities, and provide traveller sites in full 
consultation with Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities; 

      
  (e) notes that the site allocation list for Beighton, and the whole of the 

South-East, was put to councillors on 11th July 2022; 

      
  (f) believes that this whole process was completely transparent and 

notes that, following these briefings and discussions within political 

groups, the whole Council met on 14th December 2022 to vote on the 

Local Plan, and all parties – Labour, Liberal Democrat, Conservative 
and Green – approved the plans; 

      
  (g) notes that the Local Plan was delivered cross-party, and notes that 

were any traveller site removed from the current Plan, an alternative 
site would need to be found in order to meet recognised need; 

      
  (h) notes that while an alternative site, instead of site SES 03, may be 

required, it would not be appropriate to determine this until the public 
consultation has completed – and Members need to consider all 
representations (including from the gypsy and traveller community) as 
well as any further evidence, around all sites in the city; 

Page 370



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 45 of 66 
 

      
  (i) believes that the Local Plan is for all of Sheffield – all of its people and 

different communities, without prejudice – and that this Council needs 
to balance all considerations in the final approved report, including 
issues around traffic mitigation, supporting infrastructure, 
environmental protection, the standard of homes, and economic 
growth; 

      
  (j) notes there has been significant concerns raised about the suitability 

of the site for use as industrial employment and traveller pitches, for 
the following reasons:- 
  
(i)        congestion on Eckington Way is a significant issue, as:- 
  

(A)    the site is very close to the Crystal Peaks shopping 
centre and Drakehouse Retail Park; 

  
(B)    there have been 13 collisions on the road and 

roundabout in the last five years, 5 of them serious; 
  
(C)   Ward members regularly receive complaints from 

constituents regarding the large volume of congestion on 
Eckington Way; and 

  
(D)   the site’s proposed use for employment and travelling 

showpeople, with Eckington Way as its only access 
point, would significantly add to congestion on this street; 
and 

  
(ii)       the site is not appropriate for industrial or traveller 

development, as:- 
  

(A)    it is in very close proximity to current residential 
development, which is likely to be adversely affected by 
an industrial and traveller site through noise and 
pollution; 

  
(B)    the site is on a Green Belt boundary, is of a substantially 

similar quality to the site adjacent which is included in the 
Green Belt (both were rated 13/20 in the 2020 Green Belt 
Review), and is only delineated from the section within 
the Green Belt by a footpath; 

  
(C)   a high pressure gas pipe is present on the site, which 

raises safety concerns around its proposed use as an 
industrial site; 

  
(D)   it is possible that the site may be protected as Grade 3a 

farming land at a future date, putting the Council in 
noncompliance with its legal obligation to provide Gypsy 

Page 371



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 46 of 66 
 

and Traveller accommodation; and 
  
(E)    industrial land use adjacent to housing has previously 

been shown to disturb the local community, such as at 
the Abbey Glen site nearby, where hundreds of residents 
have campaigned against the smell and noise created by 
the laundry service’s industrial activities; 

      
  (k) therefore resolves that officers are requested to include a reappraisal 

of SES 03 as an industrial and traveller site in the Local Plan, taking 
into account the views of this Council and the responses to the 
consultation, when officers present the ‘schedule of suggested 
amendments’ to the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee and 

subsequently to Full Council, as agreed on 14th December 2022; 

      
  (l) notes that following the Race Equality Commission, and in the past, 

Sheffield Council has committed to working towards becoming an 
anti-racist city; 

      
  (m) believes that, as the two biggest parties in the Council, both Labour 

and the Liberal Democrats have a responsibility to this commitment 
and should not be campaigning against one of the most marginalised 
and demonised groups in the UK; 

      
  (n) notes that the Labour Party’s nominated candidate for the Beighton 

Ward has set up a petition against the proposed traveller site in 
Beighton, and believes this is a cynical attempt to win votes in the 
local election; 

      
  (o) affirms that the Council has a legal and moral obligation to provide 

traveller sites in Sheffield; and 
      
  (p) notes that no objections to the proposed site in Eckington were made 

at Full Council when the draft local plan was unanimously agreed in 
December 2022. 

    

    
  
 
9.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "MARKING THE SUCCESS OF THE 
COMMITTEE SYSTEM IN SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ANGELA 
ARGENZIO AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR BERNARD LITTLE 
 

9.1 It was formally moved by Councillor Angela Argenzio, and formally seconded by 
Councillor Christine Gilligan Kubo:- 

    
  That this Council notes:- 
    
  (a)      the successful campaign by the “It’s Our City” group to establish a 

Committee system and remove the “Strong Leader” model in Sheffield, 

Page 372



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 47 of 66 
 

with 65% of voters supporting the committee model in the referendum; 
    
  (b)      Sheffield is one of the first cities in the country to adopt the Committee 

system; 
    
  (c)      the greater collaboration between Councillors across political groups in 

policy formulation and in the decision-making processes of the Council; 
    
  (d)      the Committee system’s role in helping overcome party political tribalism 

to achieve positive outcomes; 
    
  (e)      the involvement of a wider number of Councillors in the decision-making 

of the Council; 
    
  (f)       the greater accountability of Councillors to the electorate due to their 

involvement in decision-making; 
    
  (g)      that autocratic top-down decision-making is reduced by the Committee 

system; 
    
  (h)      that the possibility of the Council making decisions that are misjudged, 

due to the lack of involvement of a wider number of members and 
political groups, is diminished; 

    
  (i)       the successful work, across the committees, to address the Council’s 

current financial crisis, with Councillors having worked together to reach 
an understanding of the issues and consensus over the ways to address 
them; 

    
  (j)       that part of the reasoning behind moving to a committee system was 

greater involvement of communities in decision making, and more work 
should be done to achieve this by the committees; 

    
  That this Council believes:- 
    
  (k)      the Council being in “no overall control” has been good for the Council 

and the people of Sheffield, and that this, combined with the new modern 
committee system, has led to improved cross-party working and better 
outcomes for our city; 

    
  (l)       the change in culture needed across political groups to embed the 

benefits of the Committee system is still “work in progress” and all groups 
should embrace this positive new way of governing the Council to realise 
its benefits fully; 

    
  (m)     that the Committee Chair’s role is not the equivalent of the old style 

Cabinet Member’s role and work is still needed to ensure that this is 
understood by Councillors and Officers and the public to deliver more 
collaborative and consensual working across political groups; 

    

Page 373



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 48 of 66 
 

  (n)      that greater clarity is needed on which decisions are made by which 
committees as this is sometimes unclear; 

    
  That this Council resolves to:- 
    
  (o)      affirm its support for the Committee System in Sheffield; 
    
  (p)      work together across political groups to build on the successes we have 

already seen the committee system achieve; 
    
  (q)      promote a greater understanding of how the committee system works 

among the public, members and officers; 
    
  (r)       achieve greater involvement of the public in Council decision-making, 

such as by committees making more extensive use of the engagement 
toolkit; 

    
  (s)      develop protocols to be clear about the way committee decisions are 

made in a no overall control context; and 
    
  (t)       encourage a culture in the Council that matches the new cooperative way 

of working needed in a committee system. 
    
9.1.1 (NOTE: In response to a Point of Order raised by Councillor Dianne Hurst under 

Council Procedure Rule 17.15(b), regarding the accuracy of paragraph (b) of 
the Motion, the Lord Mayor accepted that the Motion as published on the 
agenda should be altered by the replacement, in paragraph (b) of the Motion, of 
the words “Sheffield is the first city in the country to adopt the Committee 
system” by the words “Sheffield is one of the first cities in the country to adopt 
the Committee system”.) 

    
9.2 Whereupon, it was formally moved by Councillor Sue Alston, and formally 

seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by:- 

    
  1.       the deletion of paragraphs (d), (g), (h) and (i) and the re-lettering of the 

original paragraphs (e) and (f) as new paragraphs (d) and (e). 
    
  2.       the addition of new paragraphs (f) and (g) as follows:- 
    
  (f)       that the Liberal Democrat group has advocated for this 

governance change for several years, and that a motion in support 
of moving to a Committee system was proposed by Councillor 
Shaffaq Mohammed in June 2018; 

    
  (g)      that the committee system involves a greater number of 

councillors across the different political groups and enables higher 
quality debate on decisions, but believes that it is too early to 
judge whether this has resulted in improved decision making, 
particularly as the effect of the council being in Labour-led No 

Page 374



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 49 of 66 
 

Overall Control will also influence this process; 
    
  3.       the re-lettering of paragraph (j) as a new paragraph (h). 
    
  4.       the addition (within the section “That this Council believes”) of new 

paragraphs (i) and (j) as follows:- 
    
  (i)       that more work is needed to move away from the ‘strong leader’ 

culture, and believes that its continuing influence can be seen in 
several areas, for example the repeated delays to the publication 
of the Leisure Strategy; 

    
  (j)       that more work is also needed to ensure that work programmes 

are not officer led and that policy committees are involved in the 
early stages of policy development, as the engagement findings of 
the Governance Review reported; 

    
  5.       the deletion of paragraph (k) and the addition of a new paragraph (k) as 

follows:- 
    
  (k)      that effective scrutiny of decisions relies on active challenge and 

debate by the policy committees to ensure that decisions are 
made in the best interests of the city; 

    
  6.       the deletion of paragraph (s) and the addition of a new paragraph (s) as 

follows:- 
    
  (s)      improve the understanding and clarity of the role of all committees 

to make decisions as envisaged when the system was developed, 
including committees being involved in the early stages of policy 
development, in order to reduce the number of decisions taken 
back to the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee; and 

    
9.3 On being put to the vote, the amendment was carried, but in part. Parts 1, 3, 5 

and 6 and paragraph (j) in Part 4 of the amendment were carried, and Part 2 
and paragraph (i) in Part 4 of the amendment were lost. 

    
9.3.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 60 Members; AGAINST - 10 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  Although Labour Group Members 
voted for, they voted against Part 2 and paragraph (i) in Part 4 of the 
amendment.) 

    
9.4 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    

    
  RESOLVED: 
    
  That this Council notes:- 
    

Page 375



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 50 of 66 
 

  (a) the successful campaign by the “It’s Our City” group to establish a 
Committee system and remove the “Strong Leader” model in 
Sheffield, with 65% of voters supporting the committee model in the 
referendum; 

      
  (b) Sheffield is one of the first cities in the country to adopt the Committee 

system; 
      
  (c) the greater collaboration between Councillors across political groups 

in policy formulation and in the decision-making processes of the 
Council; 

      
  (d) the involvement of a wider number of Councillors in the decision-

making of the Council; 
      
  (e) the greater accountability of Councillors to the electorate due to their 

involvement in decision-making; 
      
  (f) that part of the reasoning behind moving to a committee system was 

greater involvement of communities in decision making, and more 
work should be done to achieve this by the committees; 

    
  That this Council believes:- 
    
  (g) that more work is also needed to ensure that work programmes are 

not officer led and that policy committees are involved in the early 
stages of policy development, as the engagement findings of the 
Governance Review reported; 

      
  (h) that effective scrutiny of decisions relies on active challenge and 

debate by the policy committees to ensure that decisions are made in 
the best interests of the city; 

      
  (i) the change in culture needed across political groups to embed the 

benefits of the Committee system is still “work in progress” and all 
groups should embrace this positive new way of governing the Council 
to realise its benefits fully; 

      
  (j) that the Committee Chair’s role is not the equivalent of the old style 

Cabinet Member’s role and work is still needed to ensure that this is 
understood by Councillors and Officers and the public to deliver more 
collaborative and consensual working across political groups; 

      
  (k) that greater clarity is needed on which decisions are made by which 

committees as this is sometimes unclear; 
    
  That this Council resolves to:- 
    
  (l) affirm its support for the Committee System in Sheffield; 
      

Page 376



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 51 of 66 
 

  (m) work together across political groups to build on the successes we 
have already seen the committee system achieve; 

      
  (n) promote a greater understanding of how the committee system works 

among the public, members and officers; 
      
  (o) achieve greater involvement of the public in Council decision-making, 

such as by committees making more extensive use of the 
engagement toolkit; 

      
  (p) improve the understanding and clarity of the role of all committees to 

make decisions as envisaged when the system was developed, 
including committees being involved in the early stages of policy 
development, in order to reduce the number of decisions taken back 
to the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee; and 

      
  (q) encourage a culture in the Council that matches the new cooperative 

way of working needed in a committee system. 
    

    
9.4.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 69 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 1 Member.  Although Green Group Members voted for, they 
voted against paragraphs (h) and (p) of the Substantive Motion.) 

    
  
 
10.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "LEVELLING-UP - WHY WE NEED TO 
TAKE BACK CONTROL FROM WHITEHALL TO DELIVER ECONOMIC 
GROWTH FOR SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR MINESH PAREKH 
AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR BEN MISKELL 
 

10.1 It was formally moved by Councillor Minesh Parekh, and formally seconded by 
Councillor Ben Miskell, that this Council:- 

    
  (a)      believes that too many places across the country have had nothing but 

crumbs from the Government’s table in the latest round of ‘levelling-up’ 
funding; 

    
  (b)      notes that many communities in great need have lost out in the recent 

round of funding, and believes that the way this funding is distributed 
pits communities against one another, forced to compete in a contest 
where Whitehall Ministers pick winners and losers; 

    
  (c)      notes that the total cost of work producing bids for levelling-up funding 

for councils in England is at least £27 million, with the vast majority 
seeing no return on this spending; 

    
  (d)      notes that of the 80 successful bids to the second round of levelling-up 

funding in England, only half are in the 100 most deprived areas of the 
country; 

Page 377



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 52 of 66 
 

    
  (e)      notes that, compared to the first round of funding, Yorkshire and the 

Humber has seen its share drop by 5.3%, the West Midlands drop 
4.1%, the East Midlands by 3.5%; and the North East’s share drop 
0.7%; 

    
  (f)       believes South Yorkshire’s transport offer is being badly let down by this 

Government, noting that both bids to the Levelling-up Fund from the 
South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority for support for the bus 
network have been rejected, and from March, Government bus cuts 
could see a third of services lost; 

    
  (g)      believes that this is unacceptable, and notes that this Council has called 

for bus franchising to be enacted as quickly as possible to bring buses 
under greater public ownership, and that the Labour Group is 
committed to seeing Sheffield buses and trams under full public 
ownership; 

    
  (h)      believes it takes extraordinary arrogance from the Government to 

expect gratitude for their failed ‘levelling-up’ policies and the marginal 
funding associated with this, when they have decimated vital local 
services like childcare, buses and social care; 

    
  (i)       notes that the Council has had to endure huge cuts for thirteen years; 

with the annual grant the Council receives from the Government now 
£288m less in real terms than in 2010, with a staggering £2.1billion 
being lost, in real terms, over the same period, which is around £9,000 
per household in Sheffield; 

    
  (j)       notes the Parliamentary Digital, Culture, Media and Sport Committee 

calls for the Government to take steps to level up cultural opportunities 
and production across the country, and explicitly incorporate support for 
local arts and culture into the Government's First Statement for 
Levelling-Up Missions; and believes support for cultural industries must 
be included in levelling up efforts; 

    
  (k)      believes that Britain isn’t working - after 13 years of virtually no growth 

our cherished public services are strained, our high streets are still 
boarded up, transport is getting worse, crime is on the rise and work 
simply doesn’t pay sufficiently for many; 

    
  (l)       believes that the Government’s only answer is an ineffectual system of 

short-term, competitive pots of money that pits communities against 
each other, and believes that this is the kind of sticking plaster politics 
that the Leader of the Opposition, Sir Keir Starmer, has promised to 
end; 

    
  (m)     notes that the Labour Party has proposed the biggest ever transfer of 

power out of Westminster through the Take Back Control Act, so local 
leaders can harness the skills and assets in their area to drive growth, 

Page 378



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 53 of 66 
 

and believes that this Council should support this as a means of not 
only providing a greater say for our communities, but delivering 
essential support to public services and bringing vital economic growth; 

    
  (n)      believes that the Labour Party’s proposed Take Back Control Bill would 

help deliver real economic growth and a redistribution of power to 
communities from Whitehall, and that the Council must proactively plan 
as to how we can best utilise this; 

    
  (o)      believes, however, that we cannot simply wait for a change of 

government and must continue to do what we can, right now, at a local 
level to deliver clean, inclusive economic growth, supporting both old 
and new industries; 

    
  (p)      further believes as part of this, that we must consider how best to 

safeguard and strengthen our city’s economic drivers; 
    
  (q)      notes that Sheffield’s economic power was initially built on the back of 

the steel industry and believes Sheffield still occupies a unique position 
as the heart of Britain’s steel industry, and can set the course for its 
own future; 

    
  (r)       notes that Governments around the world have committed to their 

domestic industries with long-term strategic investment in green steel 
production, but believes the UK Government has failed to invest in the 
transition, have attempted to weaken safeguards that protect our 
steelmakers from being undercut by cheap steel imports, and have 
splashed tens of millions on imported steel to build British schools and 
hospitals; 

    
  (s)      believes that climate justice is indivisible from social and economic 

justice; that employing a ‘just transition’ approach to decarbonisation - 
protecting the livelihoods of those working in polluting industries, and 
transitioning these workers into well-paid, green jobs - is essential to 
ensure a green transition does not harm workers and their communities; 

    
  (t)       supports, therefore, TUC calls for the Government to set-up a national 

Just Transition Commission, to provide a worker-centred transition to a 
low carbon economy; with a Just Transition Commission helping to 
coordinate investment, boost learning skills agenda, support local 
manufacturing, and to work closely alongside local authorities in 
delivering this; 

    
  (u)      supports further, TUC Yorkshire and Humberside’s calls for a regional 

Just Transition Commission to coordinate investment, learning skills 
agenda, changing procurement rules to support local manufacturing, 
and regional leadership on climate targets, as well as the work by the 
Yorkshire and Humber Climate Commission in supporting the just 
transition agenda; and 

    

Page 379



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 54 of 66 
 

  (v)      believes that we need a radically different approach in the country to 
provide not only economic growth, but inclusive clean growth that 
benefits everyone, and secures a prosperous future for industries old 
and new. 

    
10.1.1 (NOTE: With the agreement of the Council and at the request of the mover of 

the Motion (Councillor Minesh Parekh), the Motion as published on the agenda 
was altered by the addition, in paragraph (t) of the Motion, of the word “carbon” 
between the words “low” and “economy”.) 

    
10.2 Whereupon, it was formally moved by Councillor Tim Huggan, and formally 

seconded by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed, as an amendment, that the 
Motion now submitted be amended by:- 

    
  1.       the deletion of paragraphs (g) to (n), and the re-lettering of paragraphs 

(o) to (q) as new paragraphs (g) to (i); 
    
  2.       the deletion of paragraphs (r) to (v); and 
    
  3.       the addition of new paragraphs (j) to (r) as follows:- 
    
  (j)       believes that Sheffield’s steel industry only grew to such heights 

due to strong trading and export links, and that to rebuild green 
industry will similarly require a strong private sector and positive 
trading relationships; 

    
  (k)      believes that governments since 2016 have weakened the UK’s 

trading position in the world through pursuing a disastrous hard 
Brexit and protectionist trade barriers, and believes that the UK 
must take immediate action to rebuild trade links with our 
European neighbours; 

    
  (l)       believes that Sheffield has an enormous opportunity to contribute 

to reaching the net zero target and creating a circular economy, 
but that this can only be achieved through resolving the UK’s 
chronic low productivity and slow growth; 

    
  (m)     condemns the decision by the Government to award no money to 

local authorities that had received funding from Round One of 
the Levelling Up Fund, and believes that not publishing this 
decision during the bid process led to a significant waste of 
officer resources; 

    
  (n)      believes that this Council must practice what it preaches when it 

comes to local decision making, and that it cannot decry the 
hoarding of power in Whitehall while seeking to hoard power in 
the Town Hall; 

    
  (o)      reaffirms its commitment to ensuring the success of the Local 

Area Committees, welcomes the good work that has been done 

Page 380



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 55 of 66 
 

locally across the whole city, and believes that truly local politics 
will be essential to building a circular economy; 

    
  (p)      believes that Local Area Committees have improved local 

decision making power for communities, and have made great 
progress on schemes which are tackling fly tipping and antisocial 
behaviour, beautifying local communities, and addressing the 
cost of living crisis; 

    
  (q)      believes that the LACs require significantly more powers in order 

to successfully deliver for their communities, including powers on 
local transport initiatives, parks and leisure, and social care, and 
believes that increasing the power of the LACs will go a 
significant way towards ensuring the success of the Committee 
system; and 

    
  (r)       believes that if localism is to be fully embraced, LACs must be 

empowered to make decisions which run contrary to the Town 
Hall’s wishes. 

    
10.3 It was then formally moved by Councillor Ruth Mersereau, and formally 

seconded by Councillor Paul Turpin, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by the addition of new paragraphs (w) to (cc) as 
follows:- 

    
  (w)      believes that a proportional voting system is necessary to truly "Take 

Back Control" by making all votes matter, noting that since 1935 not 
one of the single party majority governments elected by our current First 
Past The Post voting system received a majority of the votes; 

    
  (x)      notes that under First Past The Post voting system the amount of votes 

taken to elect an MP differs by party, and this historically favours the 
Conservative Party: the Green Party received 866,000 votes in the 
2019 general election and elected one MP, the Liberal Democrat Party 
received 336,000 votes per MP elected, the Labour Party received 
51,000 votes per MP elected and the Conservative Party only had to 
receive an average of 38,000 votes to elect an MP; 

    
  (y)      believes that under the current system the largest two parties appeal to 

voters in "swing seats", taking votes in "safe seats" for granted, and 
notes that proportional representation weighs all votes equally - if a 
party received 20% of the votes then they would receive approximately 
20% of the seats; 

    
  (z)      believes that an electoral system returning results that match how the 

electorate voted is not only key to taking back control from Whitehall, 
but to democracy; 

    
  (aa)    notes that 40 out of 43 European countries use a form of proportional 

representation to elect MPs, with UK and Belarus the only countries 

Page 381



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 56 of 66 
 

using First Past The Post; 
    
            This Council resolves:- 
    
  (bb)    to support proportional representation and the Councils For PR 

campaign; and 
    
  (cc)     to request that the Chief Executive writes to the Prime Minister, the Rt. 

Hon. Rishi Sunak MP, and the Leader Of The Opposition, the Rt. Hon. 
Sir Keir Starmer MP, requesting the Government changes to use 
proportional representation in local, national and regional elections, 
attaching a copy of this motion. 

    
10.4 The amendment moved by Councillor Tim Huggan was put to the vote and 

was carried, but in part. Paragraphs (j) and (l) to (r) in Part 3 of the amendment 
were carried, and Parts 1 and 2 and paragraph (k) in Part 3 of the amendment 
were lost. 

    
10.4.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 27 Members; AGAINST - 42 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  Although Labour Group Members 
voted against, they voted for paragraphs (j) and (l) to (r) in Part 3 of the 
amendment. Although Councillor Lewis Chinchen voted for, he voted against 
paragraphs (k) to (m) in Part 3 of the amendment.) 

    
10.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Ruth Mersereau was then put to the 

vote and was carried. 
    
10.5.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 36 Members; AGAINST - 34 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.) 
    
10.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form:- 
    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (a) believes that too many places across the country have had nothing 

but crumbs from the Government’s table in the latest round of 
‘levelling-up’ funding; 

      
  (b) notes that many communities in great need have lost out in the recent 

round of funding, and believes that the way this funding is distributed 
pits communities against one another, forced to compete in a contest 
where Whitehall Ministers pick winners and losers; 

      
  (c) notes that the total cost of work producing bids for levelling-up 

funding for councils in England is at least £27 million, with the vast 
majority seeing no return on this spending; 

      
  (d) notes that of the 80 successful bids to the second round of levelling-

up funding in England, only half are in the 100 most deprived areas of 

Page 382



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 57 of 66 
 

the country; 
      
  (e) notes that, compared to the first round of funding, Yorkshire and the 

Humber has seen its share drop by 5.3%, the West Midlands drop 
4.1%, the East Midlands by 3.5%; and the North East’s share drop 
0.7%; 

      
  (f) believes South Yorkshire’s transport offer is being badly let down by 

this Government, noting that both bids to the Levelling-up Fund from 
the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority for support for the 
bus network have been rejected, and from March, Government bus 
cuts could see a third of services lost; 

      
  (g) believes that this is unacceptable, and notes that this Council has 

called for bus franchising to be enacted as quickly as possible to 
bring buses under greater public ownership, and that the Labour 
Group is committed to seeing Sheffield buses and trams under full 
public ownership; 

      
  (h) believes it takes extraordinary arrogance from the Government to 

expect gratitude for their failed ‘levelling-up’ policies and the marginal 
funding associated with this, when they have decimated vital local 
services like childcare, buses and social care; 

      
  (i) notes that the Council has had to endure huge cuts for thirteen years; 

with the annual grant the Council receives from the Government now 
£288m less in real terms than in 2010, with a staggering £2.1billion 
being lost, in real terms, over the same period, which is around 
£9,000 per household in Sheffield; 

      
  (j) notes the Parliamentary Digital, Culture, Media and Sport Committee 

calls for the Government to take steps to level up cultural 
opportunities and production across the country, and explicitly 
incorporate support for local arts and culture into the Government's 
First Statement for Levelling-Up Missions; and believes support for 
cultural industries must be included in levelling up efforts; 

      
  (k) believes that Britain isn’t working - after 13 years of virtually no 

growth our cherished public services are strained, our high streets are 
still boarded up, transport is getting worse, crime is on the rise and 
work simply doesn’t pay sufficiently for many; 

      
  (l) believes that the Government’s only answer is an ineffectual system 

of short-term, competitive pots of money that pits communities 
against each other, and believes that this is the kind of sticking 
plaster politics that the Leader of the Opposition, Sir Keir Starmer, 
has promised to end; 

      
  (m) notes that the Labour Party has proposed the biggest ever transfer of 

power out of Westminster through the Take Back Control Act, so local 

Page 383



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 58 of 66 
 

leaders can harness the skills and assets in their area to drive growth, 
and believes that this Council should support this as a means of not 
only providing a greater say for our communities, but delivering 
essential support to public services and bringing vital economic 
growth; 

      
  (n) believes that the Labour Party’s proposed Take Back Control Bill 

would help deliver real economic growth and a redistribution of power 
to communities from Whitehall, and that the Council must proactively 
plan as to how we can best utilise this; 

      
  (o) believes, however, that we cannot simply wait for a change of 

government and must continue to do what we can, right now, at a 
local level to deliver clean, inclusive economic growth, supporting 
both old and new industries; 

      
  (p) further believes as part of this, that we must consider how best to 

safeguard and strengthen our city’s economic drivers; 
      
  (q) notes that Sheffield’s economic power was initially built on the back of 

the steel industry and believes Sheffield still occupies a unique 
position as the heart of Britain’s steel industry, and can set the course 
for its own future; 

      
  (r) notes that Governments around the world have committed to their 

domestic industries with long-term strategic investment in green steel 
production, but believes the UK Government has failed to invest in 
the transition, have attempted to weaken safeguards that protect our 
steelmakers from being undercut by cheap steel imports, and have 
splashed tens of millions on imported steel to build British schools 
and hospitals; 

      
  (s) believes that climate justice is indivisible from social and economic 

justice; that employing a ‘just transition’ approach to decarbonisation - 
protecting the livelihoods of those working in polluting industries, and 
transitioning these workers into well-paid, green jobs - is essential to 
ensure a green transition does not harm workers and their 
communities; 

      
  (t) supports, therefore, TUC calls for the Government to set-up a 

national Just Transition Commission, to provide a worker-centred 
transition to a low carbon economy; with a Just Transition 
Commission helping to coordinate investment, boost learning skills 
agenda, support local manufacturing, and to work closely alongside 
local authorities in delivering this; 

      
  (u) supports further, TUC Yorkshire and Humberside’s calls for a regional 

Just Transition Commission to coordinate investment, learning skills 
agenda, changing procurement rules to support local manufacturing, 
and regional leadership on climate targets, as well as the work by the 

Page 384



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 59 of 66 
 

Yorkshire and Humber Climate Commission in supporting the just 
transition agenda; 

      
  (v) believes that we need a radically different approach in the country to 

provide not only economic growth, but inclusive clean growth that 
benefits everyone, and secures a prosperous future for industries old 
and new; 

      
  (w) believes that Sheffield’s steel industry only grew to such heights due 

to strong trading and export links, and that to rebuild green industry 
will similarly require a strong private sector and positive trading 
relationships; 

      
  (x) believes that Sheffield has an enormous opportunity to contribute to 

reaching the net zero target and creating a circular economy, but that 
this can only be achieved through resolving the UK’s chronic low 
productivity and slow growth; 

      
  (y) condemns the decision by the Government to award no money to 

local authorities that had received funding from Round One of the 
Levelling Up Fund, and believes that not publishing this decision 
during the bid process led to a significant waste of officer resources; 

      
  (z) believes that this Council must practice what it preaches when it 

comes to local decision making, and that it cannot decry the hoarding 
of power in Whitehall while seeking to hoard power in the Town Hall; 

      
  (aa) reaffirms its commitment to ensuring the success of the Local Area 

Committees, welcomes the good work that has been done locally 
across the whole city, and believes that truly local politics will be 
essential to building a circular economy; 

      
  (bb) believes that Local Area Committees have improved local decision 

making power for communities, and have made great progress on 
schemes which are tackling fly tipping and antisocial behaviour, 
beautifying local communities, and addressing the cost of living crisis; 

      
  (cc) believes that the LACs require significantly more powers in order to 

successfully deliver for their communities, including powers on local 
transport initiatives, parks and leisure, and social care, and believes 
that increasing the power of the LACs will go a significant way 
towards ensuring the success of the Committee system; 

      
  (dd) believes that if localism is to be fully embraced, LACs must be 

empowered to make decisions which run contrary to the Town Hall’s 
wishes; 

      
  (ee) believes that a proportional voting system is necessary to truly "Take 

Back Control" by making all votes matter, noting that since 1935 not 
one of the single party majority governments elected by our current 

Page 385



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 60 of 66 
 

First Past The Post voting system received a majority of the votes; 
      
  (ff) notes that under First Past The Post voting system the amount of 

votes taken to elect an MP differs by party, and this historically 
favours the Conservative Party: the Green Party received 866,000 
votes in the 2019 general election and elected one MP, the Liberal 
Democrat Party received 336,000 votes per MP elected, the Labour 
Party received 51,000 votes per MP elected and the Conservative 
Party only had to receive an average of 38,000 votes to elect an MP; 

      
  (gg) believes that under the current system the largest two parties appeal 

to voters in "swing seats", taking votes in "safe seats" for granted, 
and notes that proportional representation weighs all votes equally - if 
a party received 20% of the votes then they would receive 
approximately 20% of the seats; 

      
  (hh) believes that an electoral system returning results that match how the 

electorate voted is not only key to taking back control from Whitehall, 
but to democracy; 

      
  (ii) notes that 40 out of 43 European countries use a form of proportional 

representation to elect MPs, with UK and Belarus the only countries 
using First Past The Post; 

    
  That this Council resolves:- 
    
  (jj) to support proportional representation and the Councils For PR 

campaign; and 
      
  (kk) to request that the Chief Executive writes to the Prime Minister, the 

Rt. Hon. Rishi Sunak MP, and the Leader Of The Opposition, the Rt. 
Hon. Sir Keir Starmer MP, requesting the Government changes to 
use proportional representation in local, national and regional 
elections, attaching a copy of this motion. 

    
10.7 On being put to the vote, the Substantive Motion was carried, except for 

paragraphs (m) and (n) which were lost. 
    
10.7.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 68 Members; AGAINST - 1 Member; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  Although Labour Group Members voted for, 
they voted against paragraphs (ee) to (kk) of the Substantive Motion. Although 
Liberal Democrat Group Members voted for, they voted against paragraphs (g) 
to (n) and (r) to (v) of the Substantive Motion. Although Green Group Members 
voted for, they voted against paragraphs (m) and (n) of the Substantive 
Motion. Although Councillor Lewis Chinchen voted against, he voted for 
paragraphs (j), (p), (q), (s) to (u), (w) and (z) to (dd) of the Substantive Motion.) 

    
10.8 Accordingly, the resolution passed by the Council was as follows:- 
  
 

Page 386



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 61 of 66 
 

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (a) believes that too many places across the country have had nothing 

but crumbs from the Government’s table in the latest round of 
‘levelling-up’ funding; 

      
  (b) notes that many communities in great need have lost out in the recent 

round of funding, and believes that the way this funding is distributed 
pits communities against one another, forced to compete in a contest 
where Whitehall Ministers pick winners and losers; 

      
  (c) notes that the total cost of work producing bids for levelling-up 

funding for councils in England is at least £27 million, with the vast 
majority seeing no return on this spending; 

      
  (d) notes that of the 80 successful bids to the second round of levelling-

up funding in England, only half are in the 100 most deprived areas of 
the country; 

      
  (e) notes that, compared to the first round of funding, Yorkshire and the 

Humber has seen its share drop by 5.3%, the West Midlands drop 
4.1%, the East Midlands by 3.5%; and the North East’s share drop 
0.7%; 

      
  (f) believes South Yorkshire’s transport offer is being badly let down by 

this Government, noting that both bids to the Levelling-up Fund from 
the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority for support for the 
bus network have been rejected, and from March, Government bus 
cuts could see a third of services lost; 

      
  (g) believes that this is unacceptable, and notes that this Council has 

called for bus franchising to be enacted as quickly as possible to 
bring buses under greater public ownership, and that the Labour 
Group is committed to seeing Sheffield buses and trams under full 
public ownership; 

      
  (h) believes it takes extraordinary arrogance from the Government to 

expect gratitude for their failed ‘levelling-up’ policies and the marginal 
funding associated with this, when they have decimated vital local 
services like childcare, buses and social care; 

      
  (i) notes that the Council has had to endure huge cuts for thirteen years; 

with the annual grant the Council receives from the Government now 
£288m less in real terms than in 2010, with a staggering £2.1billion 
being lost, in real terms, over the same period, which is around 
£9,000 per household in Sheffield; 

      
  (j) notes the Parliamentary Digital, Culture, Media and Sport Committee 

calls for the Government to take steps to level up cultural 

Page 387



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 62 of 66 
 

opportunities and production across the country, and explicitly 
incorporate support for local arts and culture into the Government's 
First Statement for Levelling-Up Missions; and believes support for 
cultural industries must be included in levelling up efforts; 

      
  (k) believes that Britain isn’t working - after 13 years of virtually no 

growth our cherished public services are strained, our high streets are 
still boarded up, transport is getting worse, crime is on the rise and 
work simply doesn’t pay sufficiently for many; 

      
  (l) believes that the Government’s only answer is an ineffectual system 

of short-term, competitive pots of money that pits communities 
against each other, and believes that this is the kind of sticking 
plaster politics that the Leader of the Opposition, Sir Keir Starmer, 
has promised to end; 

      
  (m) believes, however, that we cannot simply wait for a change of 

government and must continue to do what we can, right now, at a 
local level to deliver clean, inclusive economic growth, supporting 
both old and new industries; 

      
  (n) further believes as part of this, that we must consider how best to 

safeguard and strengthen our city’s economic drivers; 
      
  (o) notes that Sheffield’s economic power was initially built on the back of 

the steel industry and believes Sheffield still occupies a unique 
position as the heart of Britain’s steel industry, and can set the course 
for its own future; 

      
  (p) notes that Governments around the world have committed to their 

domestic industries with long-term strategic investment in green steel 
production, but believes the UK Government has failed to invest in 
the transition, have attempted to weaken safeguards that protect our 
steelmakers from being undercut by cheap steel imports, and have 
splashed tens of millions on imported steel to build British schools 
and hospitals; 

      
  (q) believes that climate justice is indivisible from social and economic 

justice; that employing a ‘just transition’ approach to decarbonisation - 
protecting the livelihoods of those working in polluting industries, and 
transitioning these workers into well-paid, green jobs - is essential to 
ensure a green transition does not harm workers and their 
communities; 

      
  (r) supports, therefore, TUC calls for the Government to set-up a 

national Just Transition Commission, to provide a worker-centred 
transition to a low carbon economy; with a Just Transition 
Commission helping to coordinate investment, boost learning skills 
agenda, support local manufacturing, and to work closely alongside 
local authorities in delivering this; 

Page 388



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 63 of 66 
 

      
  (s) supports further, TUC Yorkshire and Humberside’s calls for a regional 

Just Transition Commission to coordinate investment, learning skills 
agenda, changing procurement rules to support local manufacturing, 
and regional leadership on climate targets, as well as the work by the 
Yorkshire and Humber Climate Commission in supporting the just 
transition agenda; 

      
  (t) believes that we need a radically different approach in the country to 

provide not only economic growth, but inclusive clean growth that 
benefits everyone, and secures a prosperous future for industries old 
and new; 

      
  (u) believes that Sheffield’s steel industry only grew to such heights due 

to strong trading and export links, and that to rebuild green industry 
will similarly require a strong private sector and positive trading 
relationships; 

      
  (v) believes that Sheffield has an enormous opportunity to contribute to 

reaching the net zero target and creating a circular economy, but that 
this can only be achieved through resolving the UK’s chronic low 
productivity and slow growth; 

      
  (w) condemns the decision by the Government to award no money to 

local authorities that had received funding from Round One of the 
Levelling Up Fund, and believes that not publishing this decision 
during the bid process led to a significant waste of officer resources; 

      
  (x) believes that this Council must practice what it preaches when it 

comes to local decision making, and that it cannot decry the hoarding 
of power in Whitehall while seeking to hoard power in the Town Hall; 

      
  (y) reaffirms its commitment to ensuring the success of the Local Area 

Committees, welcomes the good work that has been done locally 
across the whole city, and believes that truly local politics will be 
essential to building a circular economy; 

      
  (z) believes that Local Area Committees have improved local decision 

making power for communities, and have made great progress on 
schemes which are tackling fly tipping and antisocial behaviour, 
beautifying local communities, and addressing the cost of living crisis; 

      
  (aa) believes that the LACs require significantly more powers in order to 

successfully deliver for their communities, including powers on local 
transport initiatives, parks and leisure, and social care, and believes 
that increasing the power of the LACs will go a significant way 
towards ensuring the success of the Committee system; 

      
  (bb) believes that if localism is to be fully embraced, LACs must be 

empowered to make decisions which run contrary to the Town Hall’s 

Page 389



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 64 of 66 
 

wishes; 
      
  (cc) believes that a proportional voting system is necessary to truly "Take 

Back Control" by making all votes matter, noting that since 1935 not 
one of the single party majority governments elected by our current 
First Past The Post voting system received a majority of the votes; 

      
  (dd) notes that under First Past The Post voting system the amount of 

votes taken to elect an MP differs by party, and this historically 
favours the Conservative Party: the Green Party received 866,000 
votes in the 2019 general election and elected one MP, the Liberal 
Democrat Party received 336,000 votes per MP elected, the Labour 
Party received 51,000 votes per MP elected and the Conservative 
Party only had to receive an average of 38,000 votes to elect an MP; 

      
  (ee) believes that under the current system the largest two parties appeal 

to voters in "swing seats", taking votes in "safe seats" for granted, 
and notes that proportional representation weighs all votes equally - if 
a party received 20% of the votes then they would receive 
approximately 20% of the seats; 

      
  (ff) believes that an electoral system returning results that match how the 

electorate voted is not only key to taking back control from Whitehall, 
but to democracy; 

      
  (gg) notes that 40 out of 43 European countries use a form of proportional 

representation to elect MPs, with UK and Belarus the only countries 
using First Past The Post; 

    
  That this Council resolves:- 
    
  (hh) to support proportional representation and the Councils For PR 

campaign; and 
      
  (ii) to request that the Chief Executive writes to the Prime Minister, the 

Rt. Hon. Rishi Sunak MP, and the Leader Of The Opposition, the Rt. 
Hon. Sir Keir Starmer MP, requesting the Government changes to 
use proportional representation in local, national and regional 
elections, attaching a copy of this motion. 

    

    
  
 
11.   
 

APPOINTMENTS TO CHIEF OFFICER POSTS - APPROVAL OF SALARY 
PACKAGES 
 

11.1 RESOLVED: On the motion formally moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed 
and formally seconded by Councillor Douglas Johnson, that this Council:- 

  
    

Page 390



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 65 of 66 
 

  (a)      notes the information contained in the reports now submitted on the 
recruitment exercises for certain Chief Officer posts; 

    
  (b)      approves the salary packages for the posts of Chief Operating Officer 

and Strategic Director of Children’s Services, in the range £118,693 to 
£130,461; and 

    
  (c)      approves a market supplement payment of £8,539, lifting the total 

remuneration of the Chief Operating Officer to £139,000. 
    
11.1.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote on the motion was FOR - 36 Members; 

AGAINST - 0 Members; ABSTENTIONS – 32 Members.) 
    
  
 
12.   
 

CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 

12.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that this Council:- 

    
  (a)      approves the changes to the various Parts of the Constitution, as 

outlined in sections 3.1 to 3.7 of the report of the Interim Director of 
Legal and Governance and as set out in appendices B to J; and 

    
  (b)      notes the minor change to the Council Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the 

Constitution that had been made by the Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance, as outlined in section 4 of the report and as set out in 
appendix K. 

    
  
 
13.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 

13.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that (a) the 

minutes of the special and ordinary meetings of the Council held on 14th 

December 2022 be approved as true and accurate records and (b) the minutes 
of the ordinary meeting be amended by the alteration of the result of the vote 
set out at paragraph 5.4.1 of the minutes, to incorporate a change of Councillor 
Peter Price’s vote from “for” to “against”. 

    
   
 
14.   
 

MEMBERSHIPS OF COUNCIL BODIES AND REPRESENTATIVES TO 
SERVE ON OTHER BODIES 
 

14.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that:- 

    
  (a) it be noted that, in accordance with the authority given by the City Council at 

Page 391



Council 20.02.2023 

Page 66 of 66 
 

its annual meeting held on 18th May 2022, the Monitoring Officer had 
authorised the following appointments, with effect from the dates shown:- 

    
  Strategy and Resources 

Policy Committee 
- Councillor Dawn Dale to replace Councillor 

Mick Rooney, with effect from 23rd January 

2023. 
        
  Charity Trustee Sub-

Committee 
- Councillor Dawn Dale to replace Councillor 

Mick Rooney, with effect from 23rd January 

2023. 
        
  Senior Officer Employment 

Committee 
- Councillor Mary Lea to replace Councillor 

Dianne Hurst, with effect from 8th February 

2023. 
    
  (b) Councillor Tom Hunt be appointed as Deputy Chair of the Audit and 

Standards Committee, in place of Councillor Ben Curran; 
    
  (c) approval be given to the following changes to the memberships of 

Committees, Boards, etc.:- 
    
  Waste and Street Scene 

Policy Committee 
- Councillor Maroof Raouf to replace Councillor 

Brian Holmshaw as a substitute member of the 
Committee. 

        
  Senior Officer Employment 

Committee 
- Councillor Dawn Dale to replace Councillor 

Mick Rooney 
        
  Sheffield Health and 

Wellbeing Board 
- Councillor Dawn Dale to replace Councillor 

Mick Rooney. 
    
  (d) representatives be appointed to serve on other bodies as follows:- 
    
  Sheffield Football Trust - Councillor Denise Fox to fill a vacancy. 
        
  Sheffield Co-Operative 

Development Group 
- Councillor Denise Fox to fill a vacancy. 

        
  Sheffield Theatres Trust - Councillor Peter Price to fill a vacancy. 
    
  (e) it be noted that the Senior Officer Employment Sub-Committee, at its 

meeting held on 30th January, 2023, appointed (i) Catherine Bunton to the post 

of Assistant Director, Commissioning & Partnerships, within the Adult Social 

Care Service, and that Ms. Bunton started in post on 6th February, 2023 and (ii) 

Jo Pass to the post of Assistant Director, Living & Ageing Well, within the Adult 

Social Care Service, and that Ms. Pass started in post on 6th February, 2023. 

    
  

Page 392



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH, on Wednesday 1 March 2023, at 2.00 pm, 
pursuant to notice duly given and Summonses duly served. 

 
PRESENT 

 
THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Colin Ross) 

 
1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Richard Shaw 
Sophie Thornton 
 

 Vic Bowden 
Craig Gamble Pugh 
Alan Woodcock 
 

 Nighat Basharat 
Maroof Raouf 
 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne 
 Kurtis Crossland 

Ann Woolhouse 
 

 Roger Davison 
Barbara Masters 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
 

 Ben Miskell 
Nabeela Mowlana 
 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Fran Belbin 
Abdul Khayum 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 David Barker 
Mike Drabble 
Dianne Hurst 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Angela Argenzio 

Brian Holmshaw 
 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Peter Price 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Safiya Saeed 
 

 Alexi Dimond 
Marieanne Elliot 
Paul Turpin 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Ruth Mersereau 
Martin Phipps 
 

 Ian Auckland 
Sue Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
 

 Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Richard Williams 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 

 Tim Huggan 
Ruth Milsom 
Minesh Parekh 
 

 Christine Gilligan Kubo 
George Lindars-Hammond 
Henry Nottage 
 

 Lewis Chinchen 
Janet Ridler 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Terry Fox 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
 

 Ben Curran 
Tom Hunt 
Bernard Little 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 Tony Downing 
Kevin Oxley 
Gail Smith 
 

 Alan Hooper 
Mike Levery 
Ann Whitaker 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Mick Rooney 

Jackie Satur 
Paul Wood 
 

 

Page 393



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 2 of 88 
 

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Peter Garbutt, Julie 
Grocutt, Maleiki Haybe, Mark Jones, Bob McCann and Sophie Wilson. 

    
  
 
2.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST OR INABILITY TO VOTE ON THE SETTING 
OF THE COUNCIL TAX CHARGE 
 

2.1 No Members declared an inability to vote on the setting of the Council Tax 
charge on the grounds of having Council Tax arrears of at least two months. 

    
2.2 Immediately prior to the commencement of the urgent item of business which 

was added to the agenda as item 9 – Members’ Allowances : Report of the 
Independent Remuneration Panel (item 8 of the minutes), Councillor Ruth 
Milsom declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in the item on the grounds 
that she would be the beneficiary of the proposed new special responsibility 
allowance for the Chair of the Health Scrutiny Sub-Committee. Councillor 
Milsom did not speak or vote on that item of business. 

    
  
 
3.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

3.1 Lord Mayor’s Communications 
    
  The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) reported that an amount just 

over £400 had been raised from the collection in support of the Turkey/Syria 

Earthquake Appeal, held at the meeting of the Council on 20th February, and 

that the collection would be forwarded to the Disasters Emergency Committee 
Earthquake Appeal, with the Government having promised to provide match 
funding against funds raised from the public. 

    
  The Lord Mayor then referred to the reading sessions for schoolchildren held at 

least once a week in the Lord Mayor’s Parlour in the Town Hall, whereby a 
class from a different school on each occasion is invited to visit to talk about 
books, to read and be read to, and to eat cake and learn about the office of the 
Lord Mayor.  She reported that she had recently received several letters from 
pupils of Brunswick Community School offering thanks and feedback on the 
highlights of their visit, and she read out several of these at the meeting, which 
provided an often humorous insight on the pupil’s experiences of those reading 
sessions.   

    
  The Lord Mayor also referred to her comments, made at the previous meeting 

of the Council on 20th February, that she had attended the opening night’s 

performance of “Standing at the Skye’s Edge” at the National Theatre, London, 
which had been an amazing experience, and she reported that the show had 
recently been nominated for eight Olivier Awards, which was the maximum 

Page 394



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 3 of 88 
 

number of nominations that could be received by one show. 
    
  She concluded her communications by reporting that Dan Johnstone, a teacher 

in Sheffield operating from the Red Tape Studios, had recently won 
Instrumental Teacher of the Year at the National Music and Drama Awards, and 
she extended her congratulations to Dan on behalf of the City Council. 

    
3.2 Petitions and Public Questions 
    
  The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) reported that questions from 

two members of the public had been received prior to the published deadline for 
submission of petitions and questions for this meeting.  No petitions had been 
received.  She invited each questioner to ask their question. 

    
3.2.1 Question From Dylan Lewis-Creser 
    
  Dylan Lewis-Creser asked the following question - Given the increase in 

LGBTIQA+ hate incidents and hate crimes, with an increase of 41% on the 
basis of sexual orientation and 56% on the basis of transgender identity 
according to the UK government, what is the Council doing to protect 
LGBTIQA+ residents of Sheffield and how is the Council engaging with 
LGBTIQA+ groups in the city to work collaboratively in the interests of all 
residents? 

    
  In response, Councillor Richard Williams (Chair of the Communities, Parks and 

Leisure Policy Committee) stated that Sheffield City Council, South Yorkshire 
Police and our partners, work together to make sure the city is a welcoming and 
safe place for all local people and for visitors to enjoy. The Safer Sheffield 
Partnership has a statutory duty to address and reduce community safety 
issues in the city and one of our key priorities is to protect vulnerable people. 

    
  The Government introduced the Serious Violence Duty on 31st January, 2023. 

This duty was intended to create the right conditions for authorities to 
collaborate and communicate, using existing partnerships where possible to 
share information and take coordinated action to tackle serious violence. 

    
  Councillor Williams said that, following the similar question asked by a Member 

of the Council at the previous Council meeting, he had agreed to meet, as soon 
as practical, with members of the transgender community to discuss issues of 
concerns. 

    
  He added that Sheffield City Council supports the Equality Partnership which 

aims to bring together groups who share protected characteristics under the 
Equality Act to amplify underrepresented voices from our diverse communities.  

    
  As part of that, the Council funds LGBT Sheffield to coordinate an LGBT+ 

partnership (as one of 7). We also work with and fund SAYiT to support 
LGBTQ+ young people in the city. Additionally, we support several awareness 
raising events within the city throughout the year, for example, Pinknic, LGBT+ 
History Month, Trans Day of Remembrance and IDAHOBiT (International Day 

Page 395



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 4 of 88 
 

Against Homophobia, Biphobia and Transphobia, which will be held this year on 

17th May). 

    
3.2.2 Questions From Annie O’Gara 
    
  Annie O’Gara asked the following questions - In 2019, this Council voted to 

recognise the State of Palestine. This was a welcome symbolic step, signalling 
the Council’s commitment to international justice and its solidarity with a people 
under occupation.   
  
And yet, at the last Council meeting we all witnessed the silencing of the 
legitimate concerns of a Sheffield citizen as she attempted to read out a 
question regarding proposed twinning between the citizens of Sheffield and 
those of the city of Nablus, in occupied Palestine.  
  

•       Will the Council Leader apologise to the Mayor of Nablus for the 
Council's lack of courtesy in failing to respond to the Mayor’s letter for 
over three years? 

•       Will the Leader acknowledge that Sheffield citizens have a legitimate 

right to speak out about the oppression of the Palestinian people, 
including referring to the perpetrators of that oppression, the Israeli 
Government?  

•       Before making his intervention in the last Council meeting, did the Legal 
Officer consider the requirements of Article 10 of the European 
Convention on Human Rights, which is legally binding, and which 
protects freedom of expression within the law?  Why did the non-legally 
binding IHRA policy take precedence over Article 10? 

  
Finally, the Council will be aware that the “Israeli Government” is NOT the same 
as “Jewish people”. Indeed, many Jewish people in this city are emphatically 
opposed to the actions which the Israeli Government takes against the 
Palestinian people. 

    
  In response, the Leader of the Council (Councillor Terry Fox) stated that in 

relation to the question regarding the Council failing to respond to the Mayor of 
Nablus’ letter, he would be signing a letter later this day responding to the 
Mayor’s letter, on behalf of himself and the Council.  On the point regarding 
engagement, he stated that the Council took an active part in Palfest (Palestine 
Festival of Literature) last year and spoke with several community organisations 
on matters such as culture, education, dance, etc., taking the opportunity to 
engage with community groups across the city.  As regards the question 
regarding the advice provided at the previous Council meeting by the Council’s 
legal officer, Councillor Fox stated that it would not be appropriate for him to 
respond at the meeting to public questions relating to Council officers, but 
instead he would provide a written response to Ms. O’Gara which would 
respond to the matters raised within her second and third questions.   He added 
that he and all other Members of the Council were obliged to take cognisance of 
the Lord Mayor, as chair of the Council meetings, and to comply with rulings 
and requests made by the chair in relation to the proceedings of the meeting.  
He concluded his response by stating that he would ensure that the written 

Page 396



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 5 of 88 
 

response would address all the issues raised in Ms. O’Gara’s questions.  
    
3.2.3 The Lord Mayor reported that a question from another member of the public had 

been received after the published deadline for submission of petitions and 
questions for this meeting and, on this occasion, she had not given permission 
for the question to be asked.  The subject matter of that question was the 
proposed introduction of red lines on Ecclesall Road, which was currently the 
subject of a consultation exercise, and could therefore be raised as part of that 
process. 

    
  
 
4.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS RELATING TO URGENT BUSINESS 
 

4.1 There were no questions relating to urgent business under the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 16.6(ii). 

    
  
 
5.   
 

STREET TRADING IN THE CITY CENTRE - PROPOSAL FOR A NEW 
STREET TRADING RESOLUTION 
 

5.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion moved by Councillor Joe Otten 
and seconded by Councillor Mike Chaplin, that this Council, in accordance with 
the details set out in the report of the Executive Director, Operational Services 
now submitted, redesignates the whole of the city centre (everything within the 
inner ring road) as Prohibited Streets, and confirms that the rest of the city shall 
remain as Consent Streets as they are currently designated. 

    
  
 
6.   
 

REVENUE BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2023-24 
 

6.1 RESOLVED: On the motion formally moved by Councillor Dianne Hurst, and 
formally seconded by Councillor Martin Phipps, that, in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 4 (Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules) 
and 11 (Motions which may be moved without notice):- 
  
(a) Council Procedure Rule 17.5 (Content and length of speeches) be 
suspended to remove the 2-minute time limit on the speeches of the movers 
and seconders of amendments and a new time limit be set whereby a total of 20 
minutes will be shared by the mover and seconder of each amendment; 
  
(b) Council Procedure Rule 17.6 (Time limit for debate) be suspended to 
remove the 25-minute time limit for the item of business; 
  
(c) Council Procedure Rule 17.7 (Procedure for debate) be suspended to allow 
the Chairs of each of the Policy Committees to speak immediately after the 
motion has been seconded and prior to the first amendment being moved; and  
  

Page 397



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 6 of 88 
 

(c) Council Procedure Rule 17.8 (When a member may speak again) be 
suspended to allow, for example, a Policy Committee Chair to also move or 
second an amendment, or otherwise to speak in the debate. 

    
6.2 It was then moved by Councillor Terry Fox, and formally seconded by Councillor 

Bryan Lodge, that, as recommended by the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee at its meeting held on 21 February 2023, as relates to the City 
Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 2023/24, it is:- 

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (1) requests the Interim Director of Finance and Commercial Services to 

implement the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
2023/24 in accordance with the details set out in the reports on the 
Revenue Budget and Capital Programme now submitted; 

      
  (2) delegates authority to the relevant Director to increase fees and 

charges where they have been considered by a Policy Committee as 
part of the budget process and are included in Appendix 2 - Committee 
Savings of the Sheffield City Council Revenue Budget 2023/24; 

      
  (3) approves the contents of the Capital Strategy and the specific projects 

included in the years 2023/24 to 2027/28, and that block allocations are 
included within the programme for noting at this stage and detailed 
proposals will be brought back for separate Member approval as part of 
the monthly monitoring procedures; 

      
  (4) approves the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2027/28, 

as per Appendix C2 of the Capital Strategy report; 
      
  (5) after noting the joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services now submitted on the 
Revenue Budget 2023/24, approves and adopts a net Revenue Budget 
for 2023/24 amounting to £500.762m, as set out in Appendix 3 of that 
report, as follows:- 

      
  
 
 
    

  
Restated 

2022/23 
    

Summary Revenue Budget 
  

2023/24 
            
  £000       £000 
      Portfolio budgets:     
  140,825   Adult Health & Social Care   141,949 
  40,377   Communities, Parks and Leisure   35,483 
  8,085   Economic Development and Skills   8,216 
  113,832   Education, Children and Families   117,805 
  5,214   Housing   5,264 

Page 398



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 7 of 88 
 

  56,730   Strategy and Resources (Excluding Corporate)   61,467 
  23,189   Transport, Regeneration and Climate   25,449 
  53,130   Waste & Street Scene   64,336 

  441,382       459,969 
            
      Corporate Budgets:     

            
      Specific Grants     
  -3,435   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   -2,692 
  -7,804   22/23 Services Grant   -5,624 
  0   Social Care Grant held Centrally   -9,858 
  -941   Lower Tier Services Grant   0 
            
      Corporate Items     
  5,500   Redundancy Provision   5,500 
  1,593   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   0 
  420   ITA Levy   0 
  0   Change Budget   4,300 
  0   Budget Inflation Contingency   4,000 
  0   Social Care Contingency   9,858 
  420   Other   -781 
            
      Capital Financing Costs     
  11,662   General Capital Financing Costs   11,662 
  7,873   Heart of the City 2   7,173 
  12,025   Streets Ahead Investment   11,663 
  7,339   MSF Capital Financing Costs   8,259 
            
      Reserves Movements     
  -32,211   Contribution to / (from) Reserves   -2,667 
            

  443,823   Total Expenditure   500,762 

            
      Financing of Net Expenditure     
  -38,865   Revenue Support Grant   -43,611 
  -167,584   Business Rates Income (Including Grants)   -185,047 
  -221,637   Council Tax income   -232,855 
  13,883   Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit   -4,303 
  -29,620   Social Care Precept   -34,946 
            

  -443,823   Total Financing   -500,762 

            
   
  (6) approves a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,840.69 for City 

Council services, i.e. an increase of 4.99% (2.99% City Council 
increase and 2% national arrangement for the social care precept); 

      
  (7) notes that the Section 151 Officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 
accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, and 

Page 399



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 8 of 88 
 

that further details can be found in Appendix 4 of the report and within 
the Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 
Level of Reserves from paragraph 2 of the Revenue Budget report;  

      
  (8) notes that, if overspends against the agreed budgets emerge, then 

Executive Directors and Directors will be required to develop and 
implement plans to mitigate fully any overspend, within 2023/24, in 
consultation with elected Members; 

      
  (9) approves the savings as set out in Appendix 2 of the Revenue Budget 

report; 
      
  (10) approves the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as 

set out in Appendix 3a of the Revenue Budget report; 
      
  (11) approves the Treasury Management and Annual Investment 

Strategies set out in Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report and the 
recommendations contained therein; 

      
  (12) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report, which takes into account 
the revisions proposed for 2023/24 onwards; 

      
  (13) agrees that authority be delegated to the Interim Director of Finance 

and Commercial Services to undertake Treasury Management activity, 
to create and amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice 
Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury Management 
activity on the terms set out in these documents; 

      
  (14) approves a Pay Policy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 7 of the 

Revenue Budget report; 
      
  (15) (i) agrees that the Members Allowances Scheme introduced in 

2022/23 be implemented for 2023/24 and (ii) notes that the 
Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme after the 
committee system has been in operation for 12 months, to make sure 
the Scheme supports the new governance structure and the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members; 

      
  (16) notes the precepts issued by local parish councils which add £660,954 

to the calculation of the budget requirement in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992; 

      
  (17) notes the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & 
Rescue Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall 
amount of Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area; and 

      
  (18) notes that, based on the estimated expenditure level of £500.762m set 

out in paragraph (5) above, the amounts shown in Appendix 5b below 

Page 400



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 9 of 88 
 

would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2023/24, in 
accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992:- 

      
  
   Appendix 5 
    

CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
CALCULATION OF RECOMMENDED COUNCIL TAX FOR 2023/24 REVENUE 

BUDGET 
    
The Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 
    
1. It be noted that on 15th January 2023, the Council calculated the Council Tax 

Base 2023/24 
    
  (a)   for the whole Council area as : 
  145,489.5620 (item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")); 
and 

    
  (b)   for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 

the attached Appendix 5c. 
    
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 

2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is: 
  £267,800,596. 
    
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in accordance 

with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 
    
(a) £1,588,867,117 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

      
(b) £1,320,405,567 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 
      
(c) £268,461,550 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (item R in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act). 

      
(d) £1,845.2289 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by item 

T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish Precepts). 

      

Page 401



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 10 of 88 
 

(e) £660,954 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 
precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Appendix 6b). 

      
(f) £1,840.6860 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 

dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 

      
4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire and Rescue 

Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the 
Council's area as indicated in the table overleaf. 

    
5. £35,171,200 The amount set by the authority at 2 above, under Section 

30 of the Act, includes an amount attributable to the adult 
social care precept. 

    
6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the 
tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2023/24 for each part of its area 
and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

   
Sheffield City Council (Non-Parish Areas) 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

   
Bradfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 28.49 33.24 37.99 42.74 52.24 61.73 71.23 85.48 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

Page 402



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 11 of 88 
 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

  
  
Ecclesfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 19.60 22.86 26.13 29.40 35.93 42.46 48.99 58.79 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

  
  
Stocksbridge Town Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 22.56 26.32 30.08 33.84 41.37 48.89 56.41 67.69 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
    
7. The Council's basic amount of Council Tax is not excessive in accordance with 

the principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, therefore no referendum is required. 

    
  

Appendix 5b 

Page 403



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 12 of 88 
 

Council Tax Schedule 2023/24 
  

  Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority 

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Total charge 
for non-parish 
areas of 
Sheffield 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  

Appendix 5c 
Parish Council Precepts 
  

Parish 
Council 

2022/23   2023/24 

Tax 
Base 
(£) 

Council  
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£)   Tax Base 

Council 
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Increase 

Bradfield 5,906.50 252,431 42.7378   5,973.09 255,277 42.7378 0.00% 

Ecclesfield 9,259.69 272,192 29.3954   9,346.90 274,756 29.3954 0.00% 

Stockbridge 3,846.17 130,171 33.8443   3,868.34 130,921 33.8443 0.00% 

Total/Average 19,012.36 654,794 105.98   19,188.34 660,954 105.98   

  
  
    
6.3 Contributions were then made by the Chair (or a Co-Chair) of each of the 

Policy Committees, as follows:- 
  

•       Councillor Angela Argenzio (Co-Chair of the Adult Health and Social 
Care Policy Committee) 

•       Councillor Richard Williams (Chair of the Communities, Parks and 
Leisure Policy Committee) 

•       Councillor Martin Smith (Chair of the Economic Development and Skills 
Policy Committee) 

•       Councillor Dawn Dale (Co-Chair of the Education, Children and Families 

Page 404



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 13 of 88 
 

Policy Committee) 

•       Councillor Douglas Johnson (Chair of the Housing Policy Committee) 

•       Councillor Mazher Iqbal (Co-Chair of the Transport, Regeneration and 
Climate Policy Committee) 

•       Councillor Joe Otten (Chair of the Waste and Streetscene Policy 
Committee) 

    
6.4 It was then moved by Councillor Bryan Lodge, seconded by Councillor Zahira 

Naz, as an amendment, that the Motion to approve the recommendations of the 
Strategy and Resources Policy Committee at its meeting held on 21 February 
2023, as relates to the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 
2023/24, be amended by the substitution of the following resolution:- 

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (1) notes that the Budget will continue to maintain its critical services for 

the citizens of Sheffield, such as looking after older people, 
safeguarding vulnerable children, maintaining the city’s streets, 
pavements and verges, and providing the services on which we all 
depend, such as waste collection, parks and environmental health 
services, provide excellent quality care and education to those who 
need it and improve our roads, transport links and connectivity; 

      
  (2) believes that the budget shows the Council’s commitment to tackling 

the climate emergency and delivering clean growth – reducing our 
carbon footprint, protecting our green spaces, lowering bills and 
emissions for council homes, and creating the jobs of the future; 

      
  (3) believes that all committees must work to deliver efficiencies and to do 

everything they can to provide value for money for our residents; 
      
  (4) believes that a key underpinning of the entire budget is a commitment 

to tackling inequalities and levelling-up the city, but in a uniquely 
Sheffield way with targeted support, rather than the Government’s 
spurious ‘levelling-up’ agenda; 

      
  (5) believes that whilst there is a big challenge ahead of us, we must 

remain ambitious for the future of the city; supporting our residents, 
communities, and businesses to thrive, and to work together closely, 
with openness and purpose, towards a bright future Sheffield; 

      
  (6) believes, however, that there is always more that we should be looking 

to do and given that Sheffielders are continuing to face a cost-of-living 
crisis, we must do everything we can to support our neighbourhoods, 
prioritise prevention and early intervention services, focus on healthy 
living, create safe and cohesive neighbourhoods, root services at a 
more local level through empowered Local Area Committees and 
deliver more sustainable, connected communities for the here and 
now, and longer-term; 

      

Page 405



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 14 of 88 
 

  (7) believes, therefore, that the following should be added to the Budget:- 
      
    Neighbourhood Investment Fund (£1.4 million) 
      
    Building sustainability for community organisations.  Two aspects to 

this:- 
      
    •        One-off small pot fund (£200K)  

•         One-off investment fund (£1.2m) 
      
    A one-off small pot fund (£200K) – linked to ward pots to help 

smaller community organisations with small funding requests. 
      
    Criteria to place a strong emphasis on Indices of Multiple Deprivation 

(IMD) and targeted at seldom heard communities. 
      
    A one-off investment fund (£1.2m) – to help medium-sized 

community centres/organisations, often based in Council 
owned/leased premises, become sustainable long-term - 

      
    •         Eligible organisations will be those who deliver valuable services 

and benefits for Sheffield communities but may struggle to raise 
the investment needed to keep buildings in a good state of repair. 

      
    •         This is about delivering sustainability with funding linked to 

business plans which would help organisations generate extra 
income. Funding would also be utilised to support organisations to 
develop business plans, funding strategies and assist with bid-
writing – to help draw down external funding. 

      
    •         There’s a crucial role within this for the Local Area Committees, 

working together to represent communities who live and work 
across the city, in providing oversight and accountability for the 
delivery. 

      
    •         This will complement funds allocated for similar purposes under 

the Shared Prosperity Fund, if approved by the Government, 
allowing SCC to work more deeply and with more medium-sized 
organisations. 

      
    Feasibility study for bus services across the city (£50K) 
      
    We believe our public transport system in Sheffield is broken; a legacy 

of failed privatisation and national underinvestment, and that our 
communities are suffering as a result. 

      
    Labour has a plan to bring public transport back under public control – 

nationally, regionally and locally. We've begun the work to make 
this happen – bringing the tram into public control and public 
ownership, accelerating the bus franchising assessment, and 

Page 406



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 15 of 88 
 

introducing the first general fare caps since privatisation - but fixing 
public transport will take time. 

      
    The Council will carry out feasibility studies – in coordination with the 

Mayoral Combined Authority as transport authority - to see what more 
could be achieved in the short and long-term in Sheffield, and how we 
can replace or supplement vital services cut by private operators, 
including:- 

      
    •         The Number 10 - a key circular route that took people to the 

Hallamshire Hospital. 
    •         The Number 52A – which has cut Wisewood off from Hillsborough. 
    •         The Number 32 bus - connecting communities across North East 

and the Northern General Hospital. 
    •         Supertram link bus (SL1 & SL1A) that affects the whole Upper Don 

Corridor. 
      
    As part of this funding, we will also explore the feasibility of extending 

the council-run Sheffield Connect Bus (‘Clipper’) to Abbeydale Road 
and Ecclesall Road. 

      
    Local Food Access Plan (£101K) 
      
    Building on the work delivered via last year’s successful budget 

amendments to provide extra support to help develop a food access 
plan, including increasing food sustainability and supporting luncheon 
clubs. 

      
    The Plan has significantly helped Sheffielders during the cost-of-living 

crisis, and additional funding would be an expedient way of targeting 
further support and straightforward to implement. 

      
    Crucially, new funding would develop further the infrastructure for the 

collaborative work that is already happening. This is to help make food 
support more sustainable and increase resilience activity – such as 
social eating etc. 

      
    People Keeping Well (£300K) 
      
    'People Keeping Well’ is community-based prevention activity that can 

help to prevent and delay people needing to access health and social 
care services. It is one of Sheffield's approaches to Social Prescribing. 

      
    It is doing terrific work in our communities. We want it to go further still 

with additional investment to add to the £1.5 million already being 
delivered as part of the Council’s budget. 

      
    This would mitigate difficulties faced by organisations who deliver the 

contract but who cannot claim full cost recovery, meaning several 
smaller organisations run these important activities at a loss. 

Page 407



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 16 of 88 
 

      
    PKW is already established and funding would be an expedient way of 

not only targeting support during the cost of living crisis but support 
residents to lead healthy lives. 

      
    Bike Library (£150K) 
      
    Cycling should be for everyone, but there is a huge discrepancy 

between cycling usage between richer and less well-off 
neighbourhoods. £150K should be provided to support our network of 
community buildings provide a Bike Library. 

      
    The initial trial would focus on the city’s four less well-off wards. This 

would also work as a Kickstarter for donations as well to the Bike 
Library, working with all agencies – such as police, charities and 
education institutions. 

      
    Feasibility study looking at expanding the District Heating 

Networks (£100K) 
      
    Study into how we keep the excess energy from the district heating 

network, mine water and ground source heat, and explore options 
around energy storage facility. 

      
    Develop plans to expand the network run heating into other 

communities, beginning with communities of high IMD. 
      
    Work would also explore how the network can link in with the Biomass 

plants and expand further on the city’s Hydro power. 
      
    Local Area Committees - Community Enforcement and Cohesion 

Funding (£400K) 
      
    To support the multi-agency working and professional information 

gathering within neighbourhoods in supporting community cohesion. 
      
    To provide additional community safety support/sustainable 

neighbourhood officers, with earmarked and targeted support for areas 
of IMD. 

      
    Funding would also help areas to establish their own Neighbourhood 

Action Groups should they wish to. 
      
    Funding would also be used to provide one off year funding to develop 

and establish Housing Advisory Panels. 
      
    £700K for Local Area Committees (£25K per local ward) 
      
    We are committed to local area committees and further devolving 

power away from Town Hall into neighbourhoods. 

Page 408



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 17 of 88 
 

      
    Local Area Committees are about much more than spending alone – 

they are about giving a greater voice to communities and rooting the 
delivery of services at a more local level. 

      
    The Council’s approved Housing Revenue Account will root housing 

services at a more local level, but we need to go further still. 
      
    Going forward, LACs need to play a fundamental role in education and 

developing skills. 
      
    Transport plays a fundamental role in neighbourhood safety and 

connectivity, and going forward the Local Area Committees need 
devolved powers to oversee traffic schemes in their own areas. 

      
    Alongside radical service redesign, additional one-off spending 

amounting to £25,000 per ward, overseen by ward councillors and 
spent in line with ward priorities, and delivered through the Local Area 
Committees process. 

      
  (8) therefore requests the Interim Director of Finance and Commercial 

Services to implement the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme 2023/24 in accordance with the details set out in the 
reports on the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme now 
submitted, but with the following amendments:- 

  
  
Revenue Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Non-recurrent (One Off)   Non-recurrent (One Off)   
        
Review of EU grant provision 1,100 Feasibility study on providing 

bus services across the city, to 
link in with lost bus routes 

50 

        
22/23 Collection Fund Surplus 1,300 Local food access plan 101 
        
Revenue contribution to 
capital 

-1,400 People Keeping Well 300 

        
Amber Savings (One-off) *   Bike Library  150 
        
AHSC: Prevention and Early 
Help Strategic Review 
(Integrated Commissioning)  

375 District Heating Networks 
feasibility study 

100 

        
Communities: Alternative 
funding found for "Team around 
the Person" (TAP) 

220 Local Area Committees: 
Community enforcement and 
cohesion 

400 

Page 409



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 18 of 88 
 

        
Merge CC Ambassadors with 
Neighbourhoods ASB 

25 Local Area Committees (25K 
per local ward) 

700 

        
Housing related support - 
contract reductions 

181     

        

Savings Total 1,801 Spending Total 1,801 

  
* The savings that were considered amber by one or more of the Member Groups and would 
need to be agreed to release funding in 2023/24.  The full year impact of these savings will 
be first call against the 2024/25 budget pressures. 
  
  
Capital Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Non-Recurrent (One Off)   Non-Recurrent (One Off)   
        
Revenue contribution to capital 1,400 Neighbourhood investment fund 1,400 
        
Financing of Capital 
Proposals 

1,400 Capital Spending Proposals 1,400 

        
    Deficit/(surplus) 0 
        

  
  
  (9) delegates authority to the relevant Director to increase fees and 

charges where they have been considered by a Policy Committee as 
part of the budget process and are included in Appendix 2 - 
Committee Savings of the Sheffield City Council Revenue Budget 
2023/24; 

      
  (10) approves the contents of the Capital Strategy and the specific projects 

included in the years 2023/24 to 2027/28, subject to the amendments 
outlined in paragraph (8) above, and that block allocations are 
included within the programme for noting at this stage and detailed 
proposals will be brought back for separate Member approval as part 
of the monthly monitoring procedures; 

      
  (11) approves the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2027/28, 

as per Appendix C2 of the Capital Strategy report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (8) above; 

      
  (12) after noting the joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services now submitted on the 
Revenue Budget 2023/24, approves and adopts a net Revenue 
Budget for 2023/24 amounting to £500.762m, as set out in Appendix 3 

Page 410



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 19 of 88 
 

of that report, and subsequently amended in the light of paragraph (8) 
above, as follows:- 

      
  
    

  
Restated 

2022/23 
    

Summary Revenue Budget 
  

2023/24 
            
  £000       £000 
      Portfolio budgets:     
  140,825   Adult Health & Social Care   141,874 
  40,377   Communities, Parks and Leisure   37,289 
  8,085   Economic Development and Skills   8,216 
  113,832   Education, Children and Families   117,805 
  5,214   Housing   5,083 

  56,730   
Strategy and Resources (Excluding 
Corporate) 

  62,317 

  23,189   Transport, Regeneration and Climate   25,449 
  53,130   Waste & Street Scene   64,336 

  441,382       462,369 
            
      Corporate Budgets:     

            
      Specific Grants     
  -3,435   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   -2,692 
  -7,804   22/23 Services Grant   -5,624 
  0   Social Care Grant held Centrally   -9,858 
  -941   Lower Tier Services Grant   0 
            
      Corporate Items     
  5,500   Redundancy Provision   5,500 
  1,593   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   0 
  420   ITA Levy   0 
  0   Change Budget   4,300 
  0   Budget Inflation Contingency   4,000 
  0   Social Care Contingency   9,858 
  420   Other   -781 
            
      Capital Financing Costs     
  11,662   General Capital Financing Costs   11,662 
  7,873   Heart of the City 2   7,173 
  12,025   Streets Ahead Investment   11,663 
  7,339   MSF Capital Financing Costs   8,259 
            
      Reserves Movements     
  -32,211   Contribution to / (from) Reserves   -5,067 
            

  443,823   Total Expenditure   500,762 

            
      Financing of Net Expenditure     

Page 411



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 20 of 88 
 

  -38,865   Revenue Support Grant   -43,611 
  -167,584   Business Rates Income (Including Grants)   -185,047 
  -221,637   Council Tax income   -232,855 
  13,883   Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit   -4,303 
  -29,620   Social Care Precept   -34,946 
            

  -443,823   Total Financing   -500,762 

            
  
  
  (13) approves a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,840.69 for City 

Council services, i.e. an increase of 4.99% (2.99% City Council 
increase and 2% national arrangement for the social care precept); 

      
  (14) notes that the Section 151 Officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 
accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, and 
that further details can be found in Appendix 4 of the report and within 
the Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 
Level of Reserves from paragraph 2 of the Revenue Budget report;  

      
  (15) notes that, if overspends against the agreed budgets emerge, then 

Executive Directors and Directors will be required to develop and 
implement plans to mitigate fully any overspend, within 2023/24, in 
consultation with elected Members; 

      
  (16) approves the savings as set out in Appendix 2 of the Revenue Budget 

report, subject to the amendments outlined in paragraph (8) above; 
      
  (17) approves the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as 

set out in Appendix 3a of the Revenue Budget report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (8) above; 

      
  (18) approves the Treasury Management and Annual Investment 

Strategies set out in Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report and the 
recommendations contained therein; 

      
  (19) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report, which takes into account 
the revisions proposed for 2023/24 onwards; 

      
  (20) agrees that authority be delegated to the Interim Director of Finance 

and Commercial Services to undertake Treasury Management activity, 
to create and amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice 
Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury Management 
activity on the terms set out in these documents; 

      
  (21) approves a Pay Policy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 7 of the 

Revenue Budget report; 
      

Page 412



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 21 of 88 
 

  (22) (i) agrees that the Members Allowances Scheme introduced in 
2022/23 be implemented for 2023/24 and (ii) notes that the 
Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme after the 
committee system has been in operation for 12 months, to make sure 
the Scheme supports the new governance structure and the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members; 

      
  (23) notes the precepts issued by local parish councils which add £660,954 

to the calculation of the budget requirement in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992; 

      
  (24) notes the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & 
Rescue Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall 
amount of Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area; and 

      
  (25) notes that, based on the estimated expenditure level of £500.762m set 

out in paragraph (12) above, the amounts shown in Appendix 5b 
below would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2023/24, in 
accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992:- 

      
  

Appendix 5 
  

CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
CALCULATION OF RECOMMENDED COUNCIL TAX FOR 2023/24 REVENUE 

BUDGET 
    
The Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 
    
1. It be noted that on 15th January 2023, the Council calculated the Council Tax 

Base 2023/24 
    
  (a)   for the whole Council area as : 
  145,489.5620 (item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")); 
and 

    
  (b)   for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 

the attached Appendix 5c. 
    
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 

2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is: 
  £267,800,596. 
    
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in accordance 

with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 
    
(a) £1,591,487,116 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

Page 413



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 22 of 88 
 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

      
(b) £1,323,025,567 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 
      
(c) £268,461,550 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (item R in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act). 

      
(d) £1,845.2289 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by item 

T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish Precepts). 

      
(e) £660,954 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 

precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Appendix 6b). 

      
(f) £1,840.6860 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 

dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 

      
4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire and Rescue 

Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the 
Council's area as indicated in the table overleaf. 

    
5. £35,171,200 The amount set by the authority at 2 above, under Section 

30 of the Act, includes an amount attributable to the adult 
social care precept. 

    
6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the 
tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2023/24 for each part of its area 
and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 414



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 23 of 88 
 

Sheffield City Council (Non-Parish Areas) 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

  
  
Bradfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 28.49 33.24 37.99 42.74 52.24 61.73 71.23 85.48 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

  
  
Ecclesfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 19.60 22.86 26.13 29.40 35.93 42.46 48.99 58.79 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Page 415



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 24 of 88 
 

  
 Stocksbridge Town Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 22.56 26.32 30.08 33.84 41.37 48.89 56.41 67.69 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  
7. The Council's basic amount of Council Tax is not excessive in accordance with 

the principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, therefore no referendum is required. 

    
 

Appendix 5b 
Council Tax Schedule 2023/24 
  

  Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority 

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Total charge 
for non-parish 
areas of 
Sheffield 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  
 

Page 416



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 25 of 88 
 

Appendix 5c 
Parish Council Precepts 
  

Parish 
Council 

2022/23   2023/24 

Tax 
Base 
(£) 

Council  
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£)   Tax Base 

Council 
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Increase 

Bradfield 5,906.50 252,431 42.7378   5,973.09 255,277 42.7378 0.00% 

Ecclesfield 9,259.69 272,192 29.3954   9,346.90 274,756 29.3954 0.00% 

Stockbridge 3,846.17 130,171 33.8443   3,868.34 130,921 33.8443 0.00% 

Total/Average 19,012.36 654,794 105.98   19,188.34 660,954 105.98   

  
     
6.5 It was then moved by Councillor Mike Levery, seconded by Councillor Shaffaq 

Mohammed, as an amendment, that the Motion to approve the 
recommendations of the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee at its 
meeting held on 21 February 2023, as relates to the City Council’s Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme 2023/24, be amended by the substitution of the 
following resolution:- 

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (1) would like to thank the staff who have been so effective, 

knowledgeable, and accommodating during this budget setting 
process; 

      
  (2) believes all of Sheffield City Council’s staff continue to work hard for 

the people of Sheffield and have done so especially during these 
unprecedented times; 

      
  (3) notes that at month three of this year’s budget, the projected BIP 

(Budget Implementation Plans) overspend was £20.6m, and believes 
that it is to the credit of budget holders throughout the Council that this 
figure has been reduced to £10.8m since July; 

      
  (4) believes that the Red / Amber / Green approval system for budget 

savings that was introduced to accommodate No Overall Control 
worked very effectively in bringing forward a balanced budget, and 
thanks officers for their hard work in developing the system; 

      
  (5) believes this budget amendment sets out a positive liberal vision for 

Sheffield that will support employment and business recovery, improve 
our natural environment, and cut emissions; 

      
  (6) believes this budget also sets out a Liberal vision for Sheffield that will 

truly devolve power and decision-making to local communities, 
working alongside the committee structure to make Sheffield a leading 
light for involvement, participation, and accountability in its political 
systems; 

Page 417



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 26 of 88 
 

      
  (7) believes that Liberal Democrat leadership within the new committee 

system has led to positive results for the people of Sheffield, and in 
particular:- 

      
    (a)      welcomes the decision to introduce the Sheffield Connect bus 

service, as was proposed in the Liberal Democrats budget 
amendment last year; and 

      
    (b)      welcomes the success of the Food Waste Trial under Lib Dem 

chairing of the Waste and Street Scene Committee, notes that 
during the course of the trial over 100 tonnes of food was 
recycled, and welcomes the planned future implementation of 
food waste recycling city wide; 

      
  (8) believes that previous administrations have failed to address the 

significant budget challenges over the last three years;  
      
  (9) notes that £19.8m of reserves were used to cover the 21/22 budget 

overspend, that £15m of reserves were used to balance the 22/23 
budget, and that as of Month 10, £10.8m of reserves have been used 
to cover the shortfalls in BIP implementation in the 22/23 budget; 

      
  (10) believes that the failure to implement £10.8m worth of BIPs should 

have been anticipated when the 22/23 budget was set, especially in 
the case of £2m savings relating to a new secure children’s unit, for 
which planning permission had not been secured; 

      
  (11) notes that as a result of this, the Liberal Democrats have prioritised 

BIP delivery throughout the budget setting process for this budget, and 
have ensured that all BIPs specify the quarter that they will be 
introduced; 

      
  (12) is concerned by the high level of £63m capital borrowing to fund 

maintenance on existing leisure facilities, which requires a return on 
investment, notes that £19.2m of this is already committed, and 
believes that any return on investment should be ringfenced for future 
capital repairs; 

      
  (13) believes that whichever operator is contracted to operate the Major 

Sporting Facilities should be the decision maker over how these 
facilities are refurbished to deliver best value for this Council;  

      
  (14) is similarly concerned that the Council’s current estate requires around 

£200m of future maintenance investment over the next 5 years, of 
which £48m has been highlighted as critical and essential 
maintenance; and that an estimated £300m will be needed to maintain 
our current estate over the next 10 years,  

      
  (15) notes that with this level of borrowing, the cost of financing this debt 

Page 418



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 27 of 88 
 

will have a significant impact on future revenue budgets; 
      
  (16) notes that many of this Council’s Heritage, Parks and Community 

Assets are either in disrepair or are leased to community groups who 
cannot afford significant refurbishment costs; 

      
  (17) believes therefore that this Council should establish a Heritage, Parks 

and Community Assets maintenance fund, for which a proportion of 
capital receipts should be set aside to meet the critical and essential 
maintenance requirements of these assets over the next two years, 
such as:- 

      
    (a)      The Rose Garden Café in Graves Park  
      
    (b)      The Birley Spa Bath House in Hackenthorpe 
      
    (c)      Stannington Pavilion in Stannington Park 
      
  (18) believes that the Council’s previous approach of deferring 

maintenance until it is critically needed (such in the case of the Rose 
Garden Café) must change, before more buildings deteriorate to a 
similar condition; 

      
  (19) remains concerned that public finances will undoubtedly be under 

huge strain in the years ahead, but believes that investment in our 
local public services is critical to our national recovery over the next 
few years; 

      
  (20) believes that uncertainty around future funding forces local authorities 

to raise regressive Council Tax, instead of funding local government 
more fairly out of general taxation and replacing Business Rates in 
England with a commercial landowner levy based on value of 
commercial site; 

      
  (21) believes that decisions of the Chancellor in the Autumn Statement 

have forced local authorities into raising Council Tax by a larger 
amount than previous years, placing the responsibility for 
implementing tax hikes onto local government;   

      
  (22) particularly condemns the current Government’s approach to funding 

the NHS and Adult Social Care, and believes that a new long term 
funding settlement for social care is desperately needed to sustain 
vital services, particularly for places like Sheffield which has a 
relatively low Council Tax base but a high level of need; 

      
  (23) believes that the Liberal Democrat proposal for central Government to 

create a new Social Care Tax would make progress in meeting this 
need for a long-term funding settlement and greatly relieve the 
pressure on adult social care and the NHS; 

      

Page 419



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 28 of 88 
 

  (24) believes that Sheffield City Council’s financial situation has been 
aggravated by the impact of Brexit, and on the capacity of both the 
local and national economy to generate the resources that our public 
services badly need; 

      
  (25) believes that Sheffield City Council's financial situation is aggravated 

by the ineptness of previous decisions made by South Yorkshire 
Labour leaders who have deprived Sheffield of automatic early access 
to £10’s of millions of central government funding; 

      
  (26) specifically calls upon the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined 

Authority to more urgently take action to improve our local public 
transport networks, despite failing to begin implementing the 
franchising process until 2022, whereas Greater Manchester are now 
implementing their new franchising arrangements and calls on central 
government to provide significant long-term funding to revitalize local 
transport and aid Covid recovery; 

      
  (27) believes that although the Council is facing financially difficult times, 

previous Labour-led Administrations have still had choices about 
where to spend our money, and have often made the wrong choices 
over the past ten years, for example:- 

      
    (a)      protecting taxpayer subsidies for Trade Unions whilst slashing 

funding to local communities; 
      
    (b)      vanity projects such as the Fargate shipping containers; 
      
    (c)      failing to set capital funding aside to maintain our assets; and 
      
    (d)      failing to include capital maintenance in the Sheffield City Trust 

arrangements, resulting in a capital bill of £100m, and ongoing 
use of reserves to maintain Sheffield City Trust’s operations; 

      
  (28) further believes that this city still suffers from the poor choices made 

by the previous Labour Administrations, particularly the financial 
burden of the remaining debt from the major sports facilities 
associated with the financially disastrous World Student Games, even 
after Don Valley Stadium has now been demolished; 

      
  (29) believes that Sheffield needs investment and a wide range of 

businesses to improve our prosperity and enable us to compete on 
equal terms with other major UK cities; 

      
  (30) believes that bringing inward investment and jobs to the city 

supporting people to start their own business should always be a 
priority for the Council; 

      
  (31) believes that by making Sheffield a greener place to live and 

supporting community projects, we can improve people’s health and 

Page 420



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 29 of 88 
 

well-being across the city; 
      
  (32) condemns what we believe was previous Labour administrations’ 

mismanagement of the ‘Streets Ahead’ contract, particularly with a 
view to the felling of healthy street trees, and that for more than three 
years whilst, we believe, the Council refused to engage with residents 
about the implementation of the ‘Streets Ahead’ contract, trees were 
felled; 

      
  (33) asserts that the purpose of this Council is to represent, work for and 

be the voice of the people of Sheffield, and that it is important that our 
decision making reflects the interests of the city as a whole and 
always putting people at the forefront of our choices;  

      
  (34) notes that we are in a Climate Emergency and if we do not act now to 

reduce carbon emissions, we will soon be in a Climate Catastrophe;  
      
  (35) expresses serious concern over the slow development of the 

Decarbonisation Routemaps, and believes that this must receive 
significantly more focus from the Transport, Regeneration and Climate 
Policy Committee in the next financial year; 

      
  (36) believes the Liberal Democrats are the only party with a full plan to 

tackle climate change and this budget includes proposals that will help 
Sheffield achieve its target of carbon zero by 2030 by increasing 
Sheffield’s tree cover, making recycling easier, and investing in 
infrastructure that will help to mitigate climate change; 

      
  (37) believes that the devolved Local Area Committees (LACs) have 

demonstrated the value of bringing decision making away from the 
Town Hall and into local communities, and have delivered valuable 
programmes of public art, initiatives tackling fly tipping and antisocial 
behaviour, and increased funding for charities responding to the Cost 
of Living Crisis; 

      
  (38) believes that despite this, the LACs have not been provided with 

enough powers or funding to fully embed themselves in their 
communities, and as such is proposing an additional £50k per LAC for 
revenue projects, as detailed below; 

      
  (39) understands the huge financial strain this Council has been put under 

by central government cuts to local government; 
      
  (40) however, believes that there is a better, different way for a city council 

to operate and that this budget amendment demonstrates that it is 
possible, even in difficult times, to be responsive and work with local 
people;  

      
  (41) asserts that, by making some simple savings and spending the same 

money differently, the Liberal Democrat alternative budget would 

Page 421



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 30 of 88 
 

provide – 
      
    A Listening Council, by:- 
      
    (a)      increasing the neighbourhood portion of CIL (Community 

Infrastructure Levy) from 15% to 30% for use by local 
communities to spend money on infrastructure and fully 
compensate them for the disruption and pressures that come 
from big developments in their area; 

      
    (b)      providing funding of £150,000 for each LAC, representing an 

increase of £50,000 on the 2022/23 LAC funding; and 
      
    (c)      allowing each LAC to spend this extra money how they wish on 

the needs and priorities of local people and communities, rather 
than being decided in the Town Hall, for example, items that 
each LAC may wish to fund, depending on local circumstances 
and choices, could include the following:- 

      
    (i)       increasing the city’s current tree planting target; 
      
    (ii)       providing for community “Bring Out Your Rubbish” days 

in areas where there is typically low car ownership; 
residents will be provided with a skip for large items of 
rubbish from their homes, to help reduce fly tipping in our 
local areas; 

      
    (iii)      cleaning up Sheffield by investing in a task force to crack 

down on litter, fly tipping, graffiti, and dog mess; 
      
    (iv)      investigating the organisation of volunteer graffiti teams 

so residents who want to help clean up graffiti in their 
areas are supported to do so; 

      
    (v)      starting a climate warden scheme, giving local people the 

support to clear icy footpaths and roads in their local 
communities, support communities in times of severe 
flooding, and help with adapting to a changing climate; 

      
    (vi)      encouraging wildlife by planting wildflowers and 

rewilding areas to improve Sheffield’s natural 
environment;  

      
    (vii)     putting aside extra funding for more school crossing 

wardens to help children get to school safely; 
      
    (viii)    providing money to community groups who provide 

sports activities;  
      
    (ix)      investing in road safety schemes; such as, traffic 

Page 422



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 31 of 88 
 

systems, pedestrian crossings and school crossing 
patrols, paying particular attention to where the 
community have made a call for a particular scheme in 
their area; and 

      
    (x)      reinstating and expanding ward luncheon clubs;  
      
    City Regeneration, by:- 
      
    (a)      doubling Council funding for the Launchpad business support 

programme, with particular emphasis on young people who 
want to start their own business and introducing a grant/award 
scheme to support the above; 

      
    (b)      supporting Associate Libraries and their volunteers by providing 

£61k worth of professional librarian support;  
      
    (c)      over the medium term, using a target of 10% of the unallocated 

community infrastructure levy (CIL) money to support small 
business infrastructure to allow the city’s independent 
businesses to flourish by amending the Regulation 123 list 
which governs how CIL can be spent; 

      
    (d)      over the medium term, using a target of 20% of city-wide CIL for 

infrastructure that will help to mitigate the effects of climate 
change, such as planting trees, flood defences and improved 
moorland management;           

      
    (e)      expanding the use of city centre ambassadors by merging the 

service with Community Resilience Wardens, creating one 
common street resource; 

      
    (f)       creating a new ‘Heritage, Parks and Community Assets capital 

maintenance fund’, which will fund the repair of public buildings 
which have been neglected by the Council such as the Rose 
Garden Café; and 

      
    (g)      providing £100k to fund enforcement work on fly tipping, litter, 

graffiti and pest control; 
      
    Transport that works, by:- 
      
    (a)      ensuring that 10% of CIL is invested over the medium term in 

major active travel schemes to encourage walking, the uptake 
of cycling and to improve safety for cyclists and pedestrians in 
our city; and 

      
    (b)      providing businesses with E-cargo bikes to reduce congestion 

emissions by vans across Sheffield;  
      

Page 423



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 32 of 88 
 

    Achieving our Net Zero target and making Sheffield a great place for 
everyone to live, by:- 

      
    (a)      investigating options to support workplaces to install electric 

vehicle charging points in their employee parking spaces; 
      
    (b)      increasing the capacity of the popular Low Carbon Audit 

programme, which provides free audits of carbon usage and 
carbon reduction measures for small businesses, aiding SMEs 
in lowering their running costs and carbon emissions;  

      
    (c)      investigating mid terrace passageway (gennel) insulation to 

make Sheffield housing more energy efficient;  
      
    (d)      investigating a reverse vending recycling system where people 

will receive a cash reward for recycling cans and plastic bottles; 
      
    (e)      creating a £50k fund available to local communities from a 

‘Greener Sheffield’ pot, an additional pot of money to decide 
how best they would like to invest in their environment; 

      
    (f)       looking into innovative bin strategies used at other local 

authorities to find ways of encouraging more recycling and less 
fly-tipping; and 

      
    (g)      investing £347k in increasing the size of the blue bin so the first 

5% of households in Sheffield who request them are able to 
recycle cardboard and paper more easily; 

      
    Support for Sheffield’s people, by:- 
      
    (a)      supporting Sheffield’s foster carers, who look after some of our 

city’s most challenging and vulnerable children, and 
encouraging more people to sign up to become foster families 
with a discretionary reimbursement of Council Tax; this has the 
potential to save the Council significant sums in reducing the 
amount spent on agency foster placements; 

      
    (b)      investing £103k in Sheffield Young Carers so they can provide 

their service users’ free bus travel across Sheffield; 
      
    (c)      supporting Citizen’s Advice Bureau with an increase of £50k in 

grant funding to support increased face to face working; 
      
    (d)      investing in extra members of staff in the Council’s Private 

Sector Housing team to deal with some of the problems in the 
city’s fast growing private housing sector; and 

      
    (e)      funding repairs and improvements to the city’s family centres, to 

support the Family Hubs programme; 

Page 424



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 33 of 88 
 

      
  (42) believes that the people of Sheffield deserve a City Council that 

provides good value for money for all residents of Sheffield, is open for 
business, is responsive to and works with the people of Sheffield and 
protects our natural environment and heritage which make our city 
such a great place to live; 

      
  (43) therefore requests the Interim Director of Finance and Commercial 

Services to implement the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme 2023/24 in accordance with the details set out in the 
reports on the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme now 
submitted, but with the following amendments:- 

  
  
Revenue Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Recurrent       
        
Reduction of taxpayer subsidy 
to Trade Unions 

216 Private Housing Sector Officers 
(1.5 FTE at Grade 5)  

54 

        
    Additional collection costs for the 

larger blue bins - first 5% of 
households who request them 

135 

        
Recurrent Savings 216 Recurrent Spend 189 
        
Non-recurrent (one off)       
        
Reallocation of Invest in 
Sheffield fund 

406 Additional Delegated Fund to be 
utilised by the LACs for revenue 
spend, such as: 
•       Grants for local sports and 

community clubs/groups 
•       A “clean Up Sheffield task 

force” 
•       Young People 
•       Community Safety  
•       Community Allotments 
•       Below standard school 

crossings 
•       Community recycling and food 

waste collection services 
•       Residents parking outside the 

city centre 
•       Bring out your rubbish days 
•       Wildflowers, tree planting 
•       Fly tipping 
•       Graffiti and snow wardens 

1,050 

Page 425



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 34 of 88 
 

•       Ward based luncheon clubs 
        
    Environmental enforcement – one 

off funding to target fly tipping, 
litter, graffiti and pest control. 

100 

        
Review of EU grant provision 1,100 100% Council tax relief for Foster 

Carers (up to Band D) 
468 

        
22/23 Collection Fund Surplus 1,300 Free bus pass for members of 

Sheffield Young Carers Group 
103 

        
Amber Savings (one-off)*       
        
Reduce manned security at 
sites through investment in 
additional CCTV and other 
security measures 

25 Increase grant to CAB for face to 
face meetings (for example, 
outreach projects to service users 
at food banks).  

50 

        
Merge City Centre 
ambassadors with 
Neighbourhoods ASB 

25 Support young people who want to 
start their own business in 
Sheffield, through increasing 
funding to Launchpad 

103 

        
AHSC – Prevention and Early 
Help Strategic Review 
(Integrated Commissioning) 

375 Provide additional professional 
librarian support for associate 
libraries (1.5 FTE @ Grade 6) (Full 
Year) 

61 

        
Communities: Alternative 
funding for “Team Around the 
Person” 

220 Create a Greener Sheffield Fund  50 

        
Housing Related Support – 
Contract Reductions 

181 Investigate reverse vending 
machines  

25 

        
Revenue contribution to 
Capital 

-1,346 Increased blue bin capacity 
collection – revenue costs of 
providing bigger blue bins to the 
first 5% of households who 
request them 

100 

        
    Investigate mid terrace 

passageway (gennel) insulation 
50 

        
    Investigate innovative bin 

strategies used at other LA's 
50 

        
    Increasing the capacity of low 

carbon audits for small businesses 
53 

        
    A feasibility study on supporting 

workplaces to install EV charging 
points in their employee parking 
areas 

50 

Page 426



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 35 of 88 
 

        
Non Recurrent Savings 2,286 Non Recurrent Spend 2,313 
        

Savings total 2,502 Spending total 2,502 

  
* The savings that were considered amber by one or more of the Member Groups and would 
need to be agreed to release funding in 2023/24.  The full year impact of these savings will 
be first call against the 2024/25 budget pressures. 
  
  
Capital Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Revenue contribution to Capital 1,346 Heritage, Parks and Community 

Assets fund 
649 

        
    Including a capital fund to 

improve family centre buildings, 
to support the Family Hub 
programme. 

300 

        
    E-Cargo Bikes (Grants) 50 
        
    Provide bigger blue bins to the 

first 5% of households that 
request them 

347 

        
Over the medium term, ensure at 
least 40% of CIL is devoted to 
these proposals, which would be 
in addition to any spend 
subsequently agreed via TCF, 
Active Travel Fund, Road Safety 
Fund etc. 

Cost 
Neutral 

Environmental and Climate 
Infrastructure (20%), Walking, 
Cycling and Active Travel 
Schemes (10%), Small Business 
Infrastructure (10%) 

Cost 
Neutral 

        
Subject to satisfying any statutory 
restrictions, and as CIL becomes 
available, devote 30% of CIL to 
neighbourhoods.  

Cost 
Neutral 

Increase neighbourhood portion 
of CIL from 15% to 30%  

Cost 
Neutral 

        

Capital Savings 1,346 Capital Spend 1,346 

  
  
  (44) delegates authority to the relevant Director to increase fees and 

charges where they have been considered by a Policy Committee as 
part of the budget process and are included in Appendix 2 - 
Committee Savings of the Sheffield City Council Revenue Budget 
2023/24; 

      

Page 427



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 36 of 88 
 

  (45) approves the contents of the Capital Strategy and the specific projects 
included in the years 2023/24 to 2027/28, subject to the amendments 
outlined in paragraph (43) above, and that block allocations are 
included within the programme for noting at this stage and detailed 
proposals will be brought back for separate Member approval as part 
of the monthly monitoring procedures; 

      
  (46) approves the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2027/28, 

as per Appendix C2 of the Capital Strategy report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (43) above; 

      
  (47) after noting the joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services now submitted on the 
Revenue Budget 2023/24, approves and adopts a net Revenue 
Budget for 2023/24 amounting to £501.168m, as set out in Appendix 3 
of that report, and subsequently amended in the light of paragraph 
(43) above, as follows:- 

      
  
    

  
Restated 

2022/23 
    

Summary Revenue Budget 
  

2023/24 
            
  £000       £000 
      Portfolio budgets:     
  140,825   Adult Health & Social Care   141,574 
  40,377   Communities, Parks and Leisure   35,973 
  8,085   Economic Development and Skills   8,369 
  113,832   Education, Children and Families   118,676 
  5,214   Housing   5,137 
  56,730   Strategy and Resources (Excluding Corporate)   62,300 
  23,189   Transport, Regeneration and Climate   25,652 
  53,130   Waste & Street Scene   65,094 

  441,382       462,775 
            
      Corporate Budgets:     

            
      Specific Grants     
  -3,435   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   -2,692 
  -7,804   22/23 Services Grant   -5,624 
  0   Social Care Grant held Centrally   -9,858 
  -941   Lower Tier Services Grant   0 
            
      Corporate Items     
  5,500   Redundancy Provision   5,500 
  1,593   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   0 
  420   ITA Levy   0 
  0   Change Budget   4,300 
  0   Budget Inflation Contingency   4,000 
  0   Social Care Contingency   9,858 

Page 428



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 37 of 88 
 

  420   Other   -781 
            
      Capital Financing Costs     
  11,662   General Capital Financing Costs   11,662 
  7,873   Heart of the City 2   7,173 
  12,025   Streets Ahead Investment   11,663 
  7,339   MSF Capital Financing Costs   8,259 
            
      Reserves Movements     
  -32,211   Contribution to / (from) Reserves   5,067 
            

  443,823   Total Expenditure   501,168 

            
      Financing of Net Expenditure     
  -38,865   Revenue Support Grant   -43,611 
  -167,584   Business Rates Income (Including Grants)   -185,453 
  -221,637   Council Tax income   -232,855 
  13,883   Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit   -4,303 
  -29,620   Social Care Precept   -34,946 
            

  -443,823   Total Financing   -501,168 

            
  
  
  (48) approves a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,840.69 for City 

Council services, i.e. an increase of 4.99% (2.99% City Council 
increase and 2% national arrangement for the social care precept); 

      
  (49) notes that the Section 151 Officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 
accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, and 
that further details can be found in Appendix 4 of the report and within 
the Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 
Level of Reserves from paragraph 2 of the Revenue Budget report;  

      
  (50) notes that, if overspends against the agreed budgets emerge, then 

Executive Directors and Directors will be required to develop and 
implement plans to mitigate fully any overspend, within 2023/24, in 
consultation with elected Members; 

      
  (51) approves the savings as set out in Appendix 2 of the Revenue Budget 

report, subject to the amendments outlined in paragraph (43) above; 
      
  (52) approves the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as 

set out in Appendix 3a of the Revenue Budget report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (43) above; 

      
  (53) approves the Treasury Management and Annual Investment 

Strategies set out in Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report and the 
recommendations contained therein; 

Page 429



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 38 of 88 
 

      
  (54) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report, which takes into account 
the revisions proposed for 2023/24 onwards; 

      
  (55) agrees that authority be delegated to the Interim Director of Finance 

and Commercial Services to undertake Treasury Management activity, 
to create and amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice 
Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury Management 
activity on the terms set out in these documents; 

      
  (56) approves a Pay Policy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 7 of the 

Revenue Budget report; 
      
  (57) (i) agrees that the Members Allowances Scheme introduced in 

2022/23 be implemented for 2023/24 and (ii) notes that the 
Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme after the 
committee system has been in operation for 12 months, to make sure 
the Scheme supports the new governance structure and the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members; 

      
  (58) notes the precepts issued by local parish councils which add £660,954 

to the calculation of the budget requirement in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992; 

      
  (59) notes the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & 
Rescue Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall 
amount of Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area; and 

      
  (60) notes that, based on the estimated expenditure level of £501.168m set 

out in paragraph (47) above, the amounts shown in Appendix 5b 
below would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2023/24, in 
accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992:- 

  
  
  Appendix 5 
    

CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
CALCULATION OF RECOMMENDED COUNCIL TAX FOR 2023/24 REVENUE 

BUDGET 
    
The Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 
    
1. It be noted that on 15th January 2023, the Council calculated the Council Tax 

Base 2023/24 
    
  (a)   for the whole Council area as : 
  145,489.5620 (item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local 

Page 430



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 39 of 88 
 

Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")); 
and 

    
  (b)   for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 

the attached Appendix 5c. 
    
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 

2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is: 
  £267,800,596. 
    
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in accordance 

with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 
    
(a) £1,591,893,117 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

      
(b) £1,323,431,567 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 
      
(c) £268,461,550 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (item R in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act). 

      
(d) £1,845.2289 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by item 

T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish Precepts). 

      
(e) £660,954 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 

precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Appendix 6b). 

      
(f) £1,840.6860 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 

dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 

      
4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire and Rescue 

Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the 
Council's area as indicated in the table overleaf. 

    
5. £35,171,200 The amount set by the authority at 2 above, under Section 

30 of the Act, includes an amount attributable to the adult 

Page 431



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 40 of 88 
 

social care precept. 
    
6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the 
tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2023/24 for each part of its area 
and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

  
  
Sheffield City Council (Non-Parish Areas) 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

  
  
Bradfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 28.49 33.24 37.99 42.74 52.24 61.73 71.23 85.48 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

  
  
Ecclesfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 19.60 22.86 26.13 29.40 35.93 42.46 48.99 58.79 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Page 432



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 41 of 88 
 

  
  
Stocksbridge Town Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 22.56 26.32 30.08 33.84 41.37 48.89 56.41 67.69 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
 
7. The Council's basic amount of Council Tax is not excessive in accordance 

with the principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, therefore no referendum is required. 

    
  

Appendix 5b 
Council Tax Schedule 2023/24 
  

  Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority 

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Total charge 
for non-parish 
areas of 
Sheffield 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  

Page 433



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 42 of 88 
 

  
Appendix 5c 

Parish Council Precepts 
  

Parish 
Council 

2022/23   2023/24 

Tax 
Base 
(£) 

Council  
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£)   Tax Base 

Council 
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Increase 

Bradfield 5,906.50 252,431 42.7378   5,973.09 255,277 42.7378 0.00% 

Ecclesfield 9,259.69 272,192 29.3954   9,346.90 274,756 29.3954 0.00% 

Stockbridge 3,846.17 130,171 33.8443   3,868.34 130,921 33.8443 0.00% 

Total/Average 19,012.36 654,794 105.98   19,188.34 660,954 105.98   

  
  
    
6.6 It was then moved by Councillor Angela Argenzio, seconded by Councillor 

Douglas Johnson, as an amendment, that the Motion to approve the 
recommendations of the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee at its 
meeting held on 21 February 2023, as relates to the City Council’s Revenue 
Budget and Capital Programme 2023/24, be amended by the substitution of 
the following resolution:- 

 
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (1) understands this is one of the most challenging budget situations 

ever, with a total budget gap to be filled of £80m, even after a decade 
of government cutbacks on essential council services; 

      
  (2) believes that the committee system, together with the Council being in 

no overall control, has played a very positive role in making parties 
work together to agree the vast majority of the Council’s budget this 
year, as noted in the peer review; 

      
  (3) notes that the bulk of the core budget was agreed between all party 

groups by December 2022, something that has not previously been 
achieved; 

      
  (4) conveys its gratitude to all this Council’s direct and indirect workforce, 

as well as its partners in the voluntary, community, faith and 
commercial sectors, for their actions in making Sheffield a better 
place in the face of the huge financial challenges that have had an 
impact on everyone in the workforce and in the city over the last 
decade; 

      
  (5) believes that austerity was a political choice made by the bigger 

political parties and that the massive government intervention to 
address Covid demonstrates how the money is available if the 
political will is there; 

      

Page 434



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 43 of 88 
 

  (6) believes that, instead of cuts to public services, real investment is 
desperately needed to address inequality and urgently decarbonise 
our country to address the climate and nature emergency, which is an 
existential threat described by the Intergovernmental Panel on 
Climate Change as 'Code Red for Humanity' and is already affecting 
food supply and causing extreme weather events, in particular in the 
Global South; 

      
  (7) believes, however, that long-term, outsourced contracts with big 

private businesses have not taken an equivalent share of the cuts to 
Council services over the last 12 years; and that long-term costs of 
finance stretch into Sheffield’s future until 2057; 

      
  (8) therefore, believes it is the duty of all elected members to take on the 

responsibility of running this Council in the best interests of Sheffield’s 
residents, prioritising the available resources to protect communities 
and the most vulnerable, and working towards a more equitable and 
resilient city; 

      
  (9) welcomes the all-party agreement on the financial proposals for the 

Housing Revenue Account, as voted on unanimously at Full Council 
on 20 February 2023;  

      
  (10) welcomes this year’s new approach to recognising the need for 

structural change and the allocation of £4.3 million revenue funding 
for a Transformation Investment Budget; 

      
  (11) notes that in line with the decision of Strategy and Resources Policy 

Committee this funding is for the 2023/24 Delivery Programme to 
ensure in year budget delivery and covering many of the Council’s 
services to ensure that the changes required for that purpose are 
delivered in a consistent and coherent way and the 2023/24 Design 
Programme which is developing the work that will need to be done 
over the subsequent few years to deliver the Council’s longer term 
ambition; 

      
  (12) believes that in line with those purposes and having sufficiently 

secured delivery of the Business Improvement Plans, then to ensure 
the long-term revenue and financial stability options should be 
considered to promote:- 

      
    (a)      substantial investment in the city’s transport through an 

Employers Workplace Parking Levy; 
    (b)      methods to address health, warm homes and the cost of living 

through large-scale housing retrofitting and energy generation 
schemes; 

    (c)      recognition of the importance of local authority ecology work in 
view of the Nature Emergency and new and forthcoming duties 
under the Environment Act 2021, together with the prospects 
of generating revenue by promoting the natural assets uniquely 

Page 435



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 44 of 88 
 

available to the Council; 
    (d)      developing a model of community care co-operatives to reduce 

reliance on profit-making staffing agencies by removing the 
profit motive from the care sector; 

    (e)      improved services to householders, such as gardening, 
household repairs, heating system servicing and replacement 
and retrofit works, through a model like Oxford Direct Services, 
which could provide services that local people need and value 
whilst also providing a useful income stream for the Council; 

    (f)       external training and support to promote the use of Plain 
English in council reports, thus aiding effective decision-
making and monitoring; and 

    (g)      external experts to commission a review of the use of Equality 
Impact Assessments; 

      
  (13) believes that the principle of encouraging renewable energy 

generation means the council should develop a climate- and inflation-
beating offer to householders and will therefore carry out a feasibility 
study into providing a solar panel offer to owner-occupiers and private 
landlords to unlock the city’s private capital in a significant 
contribution to tackling climate change;  

      
  (14) in order to take advantage of new and innovative technologies, will 

carry out a feasibility study into the newly developed “electric 
wallpaper” using graphene for more effective space heating of our 
tenants’ homes; 

      
  (15) recognises that promoting safe and affordable walking, cycling and 

public transport over private car use is critical to both the climate 
emergency and the deep-rooted inequality in our city; 

      
  (16) therefore, will provide funds to revitalise the former Walking Forum 

(including updating the website) and shape it in order to make 
Sheffield an Active Travel city; 

      
  (17) will support the school streets initiative and especially those where 

parents take part in staffing the street closures to make their children 
safe, by providing camera enforcement at 4 schools;  

      
  (18) will act on regular complaints of illegal and dangerous parking by 

creating 6 new jobs in parking enforcement; 
      
  (19) recognises that many more people would cycle if they had 

somewhere secure to keep a bike and will therefore begin an annual 
programme of investing in secure cycle storage in residential areas, 
beginning on the Council’s own housing estate; 

      
  (20) wishes to promote the uptake of public transport and will therefore 

subsidise free buses and trams on both Saturdays and Sundays in 
the 4 weeks running up to Christmas; 

Page 436



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 45 of 88 
 

      
  (21) will increase parking fees in order to fund these improvements; 
      
  (22) will develop proposals to introduce a workplace parking levy for larger 

employers, in order to generate additional long-term revenue to invest 
in the city’s public transport, whilst improving air quality and 
encouraging more active forms of travel to work, noting that the 
smaller city of Nottingham raises £9 million a year to invest in public 
transport improvements, active travel and grants to businesses; 

      
  (23) welcomes the take-up of the e-cargo bikes promoted in the Green 

Group’s earlier budget proposals and the development of a zero-
emission last-mile distribution hub, and will seek to expand this idea 
through working up further ideas to create to allow the Council, 
businesses and organisations to deliver goods around the city in a 
cleaner, quieter, more sustainable way; 

      
  (24) recognises the need to address congestion, blocked pavements and 

access caused by home deliveries, taxis and street clutter and so will 
commission an investigation into finding solutions that will benefit 
residents and businesses alike; 

      
  (25) recognises the importance of expert ecologists in the local authority 

and will therefore invest in a further post of a leading ecologist to drive 
forward the Council’s work in this area; 

      
  (26) will initiate a feasibility study to develop a tree nursery, hence 

supporting our long-term growing programme, helping address the 
ecological emergency and being a potential source of future income 
to the Council; 

      
  (27) will reallocate the funding for so-called “green” electricity into a skills 

and training programme to train a new generation of apprentices in 
skills for the future such as renewable energy, installing solar panels 
and heat pumps; 

      
  (28) recognises the benefits of locally produced energy and will therefore 

commit to the initial work to investigate the potential for a large-scale 
solar farm, including looking at locations such as park and rides; 

      
  (29) recognises that the school pupils of today are the citizens of tomorrow 

and that a demonstration of renewable technologies should be 
provided for maintained schools in Sheffield to give them hope for the 
future, showing them that renewable energy helps power their school, 
be it from wind, solar or other renewables; 

      
  (30) therefore, will promote energy efficiency schemes and renewable 

generation in maintained schools with £500,000, making this a 
positive for learning as well as providing a source of sustainable 
energy; 

Page 437



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 46 of 88 
 

      
  (31) will set aside an additional £500,000 to create a Carbon Reduction 

Investment Fund, to complete new sustainability projects that reduce 
carbon consumption in order to avoid unnecessary delay in achieving 
our 2030 net carbon zero target; 

      
  (32) recognises the power of local councillors being able to support their 

communities with relatively small sums of local spending and 
therefore will increase ward pot sums, for this year, by an average of 
£10,000 per ward, but allocated in proportion to levels of social 
deprivation; 

      
  (33) will also create a Parks Safety Improvements Fund for improvements 

such as new lighting, to enable all, especially women and 
marginalised groups, to feel safer to use parks during winter and 
evenings, such funds to be spent following open consultation; 

      
  (34) recognises growing concern about the negative impact of alcohol 

abuse on physical health, mental health and on crime levels and 
violence, so supports a feasibility study into introducing a night-time 
levy on licensed premises to provide support on alcohol recovery and 
addressing addiction; 

      
  (35) welcomes the increase of the Council Tax Hardship Fund, in line with 

previous Green Group budget amendment proposals, together with 
the tripling of the hardship fund available in the Housing Revenue 
Account; 

      
  (36) furthermore, will directly tackle the impact of the cost-of-living crisis by 

providing additional £200,000 funding to Citizens’ Advice for this 
financial year; 

      
  (37) therefore requests the Interim Director of Finance and Commercial 

Services to implement the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme 2023/24 in accordance with the details set out in the 
reports on the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme now 
submitted, but with the following amendments:- 

  
  
Revenue Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Recurrent       
        
Increase fees for On-Street & Off-
Street parking, Parking Permits, 
Bay Suspensions and Parking 
Permit Zones by up to 40p/hour 

819 Free bus & tram travel on 4 
weekends before Christmas 

885 

        

Page 438



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 47 of 88 
 

Increase parking fees in parks to 
£1.50 per hour 

56 Recruitment of 6 extra parking 
enforcement officers at net £4.5k 
each 

27 

        
    Programme of delivering secure 

cycle storage facilities on housing 
estates 

117 

        
Stop greenwashing by ending 
purchase of REGOs 

200 Investment in apprentice training 
and resources in modern careers 
such as renewable energy, fitting 
heat pumps, solar panels, etc 

200 

        
Resource freed from external 
funding of "Team around the 
Person" (TAP)* 

220 1 FTE additional Ecology Officer 
working on planning and assisting 
potential income generation - 
assumed Grade 10 for now 

66 

        
  1,295   1,295 
        
Non-recurrent (One Off)       
        
Review of EU grant provision 1,100     
        
22/23 Collection Fund Surplus 1,300 Feasibility study to address 

highway congestion and 
pavement parking caused by 
home deliveries and meeting the 
needs of business for servicing 
(One Off) 

50 

        
    Workplace Parking Levy Study 

(incl. Grade 8 post to develop 
work) (One Off) 

100 

        
    Feasibility study on expanding a 

zero-emission last-mile delivery 
hub (One Off) 

50 

        
    2 Development workers in Adult 

Social Care for one year working 
on community care co-operatives 
(Grade 9) (One Off) 

118 

        
    Feasibility into establishing a late 

night levy on licensed premises to 
fund alcohol support activity and 
Mental Health support for people 
living on the streets (One Off) 

50 

        
    Feasibility study on a Warrington-

style solar farm (One Off), 
including on car parks 

100 

    
        

Page 439



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 48 of 88 
 

    Feasibility Study on a solar panel 
offer for the private sector (One 
Off) 

50 

        
    Additional funds for ward pots 280 
        
    One-off boost for support for 

Citizens' Advice (cost of living) 
200 

        
    Feasibility into "electric wallpaper" 

(graphene heating) for home 
space heating 

50 

        
    Tree nursery feasibility 50 
        
    Support for Walking Forum (one-

off), & update website 
25 

        
  2,400   1,123 
        
Revenue Contribution to Capital -1,277     
        

Savings Total  2,418 Spending Total  2,418 

  
* The savings that were considered amber by one or more of the Member Groups and would 
need to be agreed to release funding in 2023/24.  The full year impact of these savings will be 
first call against the 2024/25 budget pressures. 
  
  
Capital Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Non-recurrent (One Off)       
        
Revenue Contribution to Capital 1,277 Creation of a Carbon Reduction 

Investment Fund (One Off) 
477 

        
    Parking enforcement cameras at 4 

Schools (One Off) 
100 

        
    Parks Safety Improvements Fund 

(One Off) 
200 

        
    Energy efficiency & renewables for 

maintained schools (One Off) 
500 

        

Financing of Capital 
Proposals 

1,277 Capital Spending Proposals 1,277 

  
  

Page 440



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 49 of 88 
 

  (38) delegates authority to the relevant Director to increase fees and 
charges where they have been considered by a Policy Committee as 
part of the budget process and are included in Appendix 2 - 
Committee Savings of the Sheffield City Council Revenue Budget 
2023/24; 

      
  (39) approves the contents of the Capital Strategy and the specific 

projects included in the years 2023/24 to 2027/28, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (37) above, and that block 
allocations are included within the programme for noting at this stage 
and detailed proposals will be brought back for separate Member 
approval as part of the monthly monitoring procedures; 

      
  (40) approves the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 

2027/28, as per Appendix C2 of the Capital Strategy report, subject to 
the amendments outlined in paragraph (37) above; 

      
  (41) after noting the joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services now submitted on the 
Revenue Budget 2023/24, approves and adopts a net Revenue 
Budget for 2023/24 amounting to £500.762m, as set out in Appendix 
3 of that report, and subsequently amended in the light of paragraph 
(37) above, as follows:- 

  
    

  
Restated 

2022/23 
    

Summary Revenue Budget 
  

2023/24 
            
  £000       £000 
      Portfolio budgets:     
  140,825   Adult Health & Social Care   142,067 
  40,377   Communities, Parks and Leisure   35,723 
  8,085   Economic Development and Skills   8,216 
  113,832   Education, Children and Families   118,505 
  5,214   Housing   5,264 
  56,730   Strategy and Resources (Excluding Corporate)   61,547 
  23,189   Transport, Regeneration and Climate   27,153 
  53,130   Waste & Street Scene   63,894 

  441,382       462,369 
            
      Corporate Budgets:     

            
      Specific Grants     
  -3,435   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   -2,692 
  -7,804   22/23 Services Grant   -5,624 
  0   Social Care Grant held Centrally   -9,858 
  -941   Lower Tier Services Grant   0 
            
      Corporate Items     
  5,500   Redundancy Provision   5,500 

Page 441



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 50 of 88 
 

  1,593   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   0 
  420   ITA Levy   0 
  0   Change Budget   4,300 
  0   Budget Inflation Contingency   4,000 
  0   Social Care Contingency   9,858 
  420   Other   -781 
            
      Capital Financing Costs     
  11,662   General Capital Financing Costs   11,662 
  7,873   Heart of the City 2   7,173 
  12,025   Streets Ahead Investment   11,663 
  7,339   MSF Capital Financing Costs   8,259 
            
      Reserves Movements     
  -32,211   Contribution to / (from) Reserves   -5,067 
            

  443,823   Total Expenditure   500,762 

  
          

  
      Financing of Net Expenditure     
  -38,865   Revenue Support Grant   -43,611 
  -167,584   Business Rates Income (Including Grants)   -185,047 
  -221,637   Council Tax income   -232,855 
  13,883   Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit   -4,303 
  -29,620   Social Care Precept   -34,946 
            

  -443,823   Total Financing   -500,762 

            
  
  
  (42) approves a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,840.69 for City 

Council services, i.e. an increase of 4.99% (2.99% City Council 
increase and 2% national arrangement for the social care precept); 

      
  (43) notes that the Section 151 Officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 
accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, and 
that further details can be found in Appendix 4 of the report and within 
the Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 
Level of Reserves from paragraph 2 of the Revenue Budget report;  

      
  (44) notes that, if overspends against the agreed budgets emerge, then 

Executive Directors and Directors will be required to develop and 
implement plans to mitigate fully any overspend, within 2023/24, in 
consultation with elected Members; 

      
  (45) approves the savings as set out in Appendix 2 of the Revenue Budget 

report, subject to the amendments outlined in paragraph (37) above; 
      
  (46) approves the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as 

Page 442



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 51 of 88 
 

set out in Appendix 3a of the Revenue Budget report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (37) above; 

      
  (47) approves the Treasury Management and Annual Investment 

Strategies set out in Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report and the 
recommendations contained therein; 

      
  (48) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report, which takes into account 
the revisions proposed for 2023/24 onwards; 

      
  (49) agrees that authority be delegated to the Interim Director of Finance 

and Commercial Services to undertake Treasury Management activity, 
to create and amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice 
Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury Management 
activity on the terms set out in these documents; 

      
  (50) approves a Pay Policy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 7 of the 

Revenue Budget report; 
      
  (51) (i) agrees that the Members Allowances Scheme introduced in 

2022/23 be implemented for 2023/24 and (ii) notes that the 
Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme after the 
committee system has been in operation for 12 months, to make sure 
the Scheme supports the new governance structure and the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members; 

      
  (52) notes the precepts issued by local parish councils which add £660,954 

to the calculation of the budget requirement in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992; 

      
  (53) notes the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & 
Rescue Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall 
amount of Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area; and 

      
  (54) notes that, based on the estimated expenditure level of £500.762m set 

out in paragraph (41) above, the amounts shown in Appendix 5b 
below would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2023/24, in 
accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992:- 

  
 

Appendix 5 
  

CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
CALCULATION OF RECOMMENDED COUNCIL TAX FOR 2023/24 REVENUE 

BUDGET 
    
The Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 

Page 443



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 52 of 88 
 

    
1. It be noted that on 15th January 2023, the Council calculated the Council Tax 

Base 2023/24 
    
  (a)   for the whole Council area as : 
  145,489.5620 (item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")); 
and 

    
  (b)   for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 

the attached Appendix 5c. 
    
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 

2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is: 
  £267,800,596. 
    
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in accordance 

with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 
    
(a) £1,592,362,116 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

      
(b) £1,323,900,567 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 
      
(c) £268,461,550 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (item R in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act). 

      
(d) £1,845.2289 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by item 

T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish Precepts). 

      
(e) £660,954 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 

precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Appendix 6b). 

      
(f) £1,840.6860 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 

dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 

   
      

Page 444



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 53 of 88 
 

4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire and Rescue 
Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the 
Council's area as indicated in the table overleaf. 

    
5. £35,171,200 The amount set by the authority at 2 above, under Section 

30 of the Act, includes an amount attributable to the adult 
social care precept. 

    
6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the 
tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2023/24 for each part of its area 
and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

  
  
Sheffield City Council (Non-Parish Areas) 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

  
  
Bradfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 28.49 33.24 37.99 42.74 52.24 61.73 71.23 85.48 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

  
  
 

Page 445



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 54 of 88 
 

Ecclesfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 19.60 22.86 26.13 29.40 35.93 42.46 48.99 58.79 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

  
  
Stocksbridge Town Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 22.56 26.32 30.08 33.84 41.37 48.89 56.41 67.69 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  
7. The Council's basic amount of Council Tax is not excessive in accordance with 

the principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, therefore no referendum is required. 

    
  

Appendix 5b 
Council Tax Schedule 2023/24 
  

  Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority 

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

Page 446



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 55 of 88 
 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Total charge 
for non-parish 
areas of 
Sheffield 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  

Appendix 5c 
Parish Council Precepts 
  

Parish 
Council 

2022/23   2023/24 

Tax 
Base 
(£) 

Council  
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£)   Tax Base 

Council 
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Increase 

Bradfield 5,906.50 252,431 42.7378   5,973.09 255,277 42.7378 0.00% 

Ecclesfield 9,259.69 272,192 29.3954   9,346.90 274,756 29.3954 0.00% 

Stockbridge 3,846.17 130,171 33.8443   3,868.34 130,921 33.8443 0.00% 

Total/Average 19,012.36 654,794 105.98   19,188.34 660,954 105.98   

  
  
    
6.7 It was then moved by Councillor Lewis Chinchen, and formally seconded by the 

Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards), as an amendment, that the 
Motion to approve the recommendations of the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee at its meeting held on 21 February 2023, as relates to the City 
Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 2023/24, be amended by 
the substitution of the following resolution:- 

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (1) recognises the challenges we face as a city – including the 

regeneration of our local high streets, improving our transport network 
and supporting individuals and businesses with the cost of living – but 
believes these issues also create an opportunity for a step change in 
local decision-making; 

      
  (2) believes that the Government has taken robust and decisive action to 

support people with the cost of living in this period of high inflation 
caused by the tragic war in Ukraine and post-pandemic supply 
pressures; 

Page 447



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 56 of 88 
 

      
  (3) notes the financial support that the Government has put in place for 

Sheffield residents, including:-  
    (a)      Energy Price Guarantee to reduce the unit cost of gas and 

electricity; 
    (b)      £400 discount on energy bills for households; 
    (c)      £650 payment to those on means-tested benefits; 
    (d)      £150 payment to those on disability benefits; 
    (e)      £300 payment for pensioners in addition to winter fuel 

payments; 
    (f)       £150 rebate for low-income households through the Warm 

Home Discount; 
    (g)      £150 Council Tax rebate; and 
    (h)      increases to the Household Support Fund, meaning Sheffield’s 

allocation will now total over £26 million; 
      
  (4) notes that, despite the pressure this has put on the public finances, 

the Government was still able to provide a funding uplift for this 
Council of approximately £23 million; 

      
  (5) however, believes that significant amounts of taxpayers’ money is 

wasted by this Council, including the estimated £600,000 cost of the 
failed container park on Fargate; 

      
  (6) believes that with the current pressure on public finances, it is more 

important than ever that this Council ensures it delivers value for 
money on all its spending decisions; 

      
  (7) believes that despite the Labour Group’s constant complaints about 

Government funding, it is telling that their Party is failing to commit to 
increasing expenditure on local government; 

      
  (8) believes that rather than scoring political points, the Government is 

getting on with the job of levelling up communities in Sheffield, 
including approving projects worth £24.1 million in Stocksbridge;  

      
  (9) also believes that we need a Council that represents the people of this 

city rather than embarking on ideological ventures that have little 
public support; 

      
  (10) believes the red line proposals on Ecclesall Road and Abbeydale 

Road is a perfect example of the Council pursuing a scheme that goes 
against the wishes of many local businesses; 

      
  (11) believes we need a fundamental change in our strategy and decision-

making if we are to restore public confidence and remove the belief of 
many that the Council is ‘anti-business’;  

      
  (12) commits to increasing the local portion of the Community 

Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to 35% and ensure that 40% of the strategic 

Page 448



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 57 of 88 
 

portion is spent on strengthening our transport network; 
      
  (13) believes it is right that more funding is directed to communities where 

large numbers of houses are being built in order to mitigate the impact 
of development;  

      
  (14) believes that our transport network requires significant investment and 

both the local and strategic portions of CIL are important tools that we 
can use to achieve this; 

      
  (15) notes that road safety is often a key priority for local communities and 

commits to £1.8m of funding to provide more traffic-calming and road 
safety measures that are based on risk and local intelligence, rather 
than just accident statistics; 

      
  (16) believes that one of the most effective ways to increase footfall on our 

local high streets is to make them more attractive places to visit and 
therefore proposes £1 million for developing more urban green 
spaces, pocket parks and general street scene improvements; 

      
  (17) believes that fly-tipping is a scourge that requires action from many 

different angles, however one tool the Council can use is to incentivise 
legal methods of waste disposal and therefore proposes to reduce 
bulky waste collection charges by 20%; 

      
  (18) provides funding for an additional session at every youth centre in the 

city to support our young people and help bring communities together; 
      
  (19) also proposes an additional £150,000 for community-based mobile 

sport provision that will target parts of the city where there are gaps in 
provision so all young people – no matter where they live – can 
participate in local sport; 

      
  (20) believes we need to be at the forefront of developing technology that 

enables us to overcome the challenges we face as a city; 
      
  (21) believes that Sheffield has fallen behind in developing on-street 

electric vehicle (EV) charging technology and therefore allocates 
funding to progress plans for the installation of this infrastructure; 

      
  (22) believes that our current roadwork permit system is not working in 

certain cases and proposes funding to look into a system of lane 
rental where those carrying out roadworks on major roads are charged 
based on the time taken and are therefore incentivised to complete 
the work as fast as possible; 

      
  (23) believes a lane rental system will help reduce congestion on major 

roads in our city and improve the efficiency and reliability of buses 
whose timetables are often disrupted by such work; 

      

Page 449



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 58 of 88 
 

  (24) notes that Jaguar Land Rover (JLR) has previously worked with 
Coventry City Council to see how sensor data from cars could be 
shared with councils so highways authorities can fix potholes, broken 
manhole covers and other defects faster; 

      
  (25) therefore, allocates funding to work with car manufacturers to develop 

such technology and real-time data sharing which may not only 
reduce the risk of injury and damage to cyclists and motorists but also 
save the Council significant sums of money on manual road 
inspections and fewer legal claims; 

      
  (26) notes the free broadband pilot scheme in Southey Green to address 

digital exclusion and improve access to online public services as well 
as education and employment opportunities; 

      
  (27) allocates additional funding of £150,000 for the further rollout of such 

projects in the most deprived areas; 
      
  (28) proposes to balance these spending proposals with sensible and 

moderate savings;  
      
  (29) believes that the Council must always support trade unions and their 

representatives, and give them adequate time off to fulfil their duties;  
      
  (30) however, believes that protecting taxpayer subsidies to trade unions – 

which amount to well over £200,000 – at the expense of frontline 
services can never be justified; 

      
  (31) does not believe that political groups on the Council should have 

Policy Officers, which are essentially political ‘spin’ roles, at the 
taxpayer’s expense, and proposes that political groups on the Council 
carry out their own research;  

      
  (32) also believes that we need to carefully consider senior officer pay for 

future appointments and that although we need to recruit the best 
talent to lead this Council, we also need to ensure taxpayers’ money is 
spent responsibly; 

      
  (33) believes that this budget amendment delivers on the priorities of the 

people of Sheffield by making the city more prosperous and our 
communities stronger;  

      
  (34) therefore requests the Interim Director of Finance and Commercial 

Services to implement the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme 2023/24 in accordance with the details set out in the 
reports on the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme now 
submitted, but with the following amendments:- 

      
  
 

Page 450



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 59 of 88 
 

Revenue Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Recurrent       
        
Remove 2 senior management 
positions through restructuring 
(Grade 11) (Half Year) 

73 Additional youth club session for 
all youth clubs in the city (Half 
Year Cost) 

301 

        
Reduction of taxpayer subsidy to 
the Council’s trade unions (Half 
Year) 

216 Reduce bulky waste collection 
charges by 20% 

50 

        
Remove all political group policy 
officers (Half Year) 

88     

  377   351 
        
Non-recurrent (One Off)       
        
2022/23 Collection Fund Surplus 1,300 Additional community-based 

mobile sports provision (One Off) 
150 

        
Review of EU grant provision 1,100 Investigate (pilot scheme) on-

street electric car charging / 
technology (One Off) 

50 

        
    Investigate lane rental schemes 

as a way to reduce congestion on 
major roads where companies 
undertaking roadworks are 
charged based on the time taken 
to complete the work (One Off) 

50 

Revenue Contribution to Capital -2,777     
    Work with car manufacturers to 

develop road defect identification 
technology and real-time data 
sharing with Sheffield City 
Council (One Off) 

50 

Amber Savings (One-Off)*       
        
AHSC: Prevention and Early Help 
Strategic Review (Integrated 
Commissioning) 

375 Further rollout of social housing 
free broadband projects (One 
Off) 

150 

        
Housing related support - 
contract reductions 

181     

        
Communities: Alternative funding 
for "Team around the Person" 
(TAP) 

220     

    
        

Page 451



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 60 of 88 
 

Reduce manned security at sites 
through investment in additional 
CCTV and other security 
measures 

25     

        
  425   450 
        

Savings Total 801 Spending Total 801 

        
Recurrent 377   351 

  
* The savings that were considered amber by one or more of the Member Groups and would 
need to be agreed to release funding in 2023/24.  The full year impact of these savings will be 
first call against the 2024/25 budget pressures. 
  
  
Capital Budget Proposals 
  
  2023/24   2023/24 
Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 
        
Non-recurrent (One Off)       
        
    Develop urban green spaces, 

pocket parks and general street 
scene improvements (One Off) 

1,000 

        
Revenue Contribution to Capital 2,777 Preventative road safety budget 

based on risk and intelligence 
(One Off) 

1,777 

        
Over the medium term, ensure 
at least 40% of the strategic 
portion of CIL is devoted to 
these proposals, which would 
be in addition to any spend 
subsequently agreed via TCF, 
Active Travel Fund, Road 
Safety Fund, etc. 

Cost 
Neutral 

Transport projects Cost 
Neutral 

        
Subject to satisfying any 
statutory restrictions, and as 
CIL becomes available, devote 
35% of CIL to neighbourhoods 

Cost 
Neutral 

Increase the local portion of CIL to 
35% (providing the additional 
funds are spent or earmarked for 
a project within 12 months) 

Cost 
Neutral 

        

Financing of Capital 
Proposals 

2,777 Capital Spending 
Proposals 

2,777 

        
    Deficit/(Surplus) 0 

  
  

Page 452



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 61 of 88 
 

  (35) delegates authority to the relevant Director to increase fees and 
charges where they have been considered by a Policy Committee as 
part of the budget process and are included in Appendix 2 - 
Committee Savings of the Sheffield City Council Revenue Budget 
2023/24; 

      
  (36) approves the contents of the Capital Strategy and the specific projects 

included in the years 2023/24 to 2027/28, subject to the amendments 
outlined in paragraph (34) above, and that block allocations are 
included within the programme for noting at this stage and detailed 
proposals will be brought back for separate Member approval as part 
of the monthly monitoring procedures; 

      
  (37) approves the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2027/28, 

as per Appendix C2 of the Capital Strategy report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (34) above; 

      
  (38) after noting the joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services now submitted on the 
Revenue Budget 2023/24, approves and adopts a net Revenue 
Budget for 2023/24 amounting to £500.762m, as set out in Appendix 3 
of that report, and subsequently amended in the light of paragraph 
(34) above, as follows:- 

      
  
    

  
Restated 

2022/23 
    

Summary Revenue Budget 
  

2023/24 
            
  £000       £000 
      Portfolio budgets:     
  140,825   Adult Health & Social Care   141,574 
  40,377   Communities, Parks and Leisure   36,714 
  8,085   Economic Development and Skills   8,216 
  113,832   Education, Children and Families   117,805 
  5,214   Housing   5,233 

  
56,730 

  
Strategy and Resources (Excluding 
Corporate) 

  
61,090 

  23,189   Transport, Regeneration and Climate   27,375 
  53,130   Waste & Street Scene   64,361 

  441,382       462,369 
            
      Corporate Budgets:     

            

      Specific Grants     
  -3,435   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   -2,692 
  -7,804   22/23 Services Grant   -5,624 
  0   Social Care Grant held Centrally   -9,858 
  -941   Lower Tier Services Grant   0 
            

Page 453



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 62 of 88 
 

      Corporate Items     
  5,500   Redundancy Provision   5,500 
  1,593   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   0 
  420   ITA Levy   0 
  0   Change Budget   4,300 
  0   Budget Inflation Contingency   4,000 
  0   Social Care Contingency   9,858 
  420   Other   -781 
            
      Capital Financing Costs     
  11,662   General Capital Financing Costs   11,662 
  7,873   Heart of the City 2   7,173 
  12,025   Streets Ahead Investment   11,663 
  7,339   MSF Capital Financing Costs   8,259 
            
      Reserves Movements     
  -32,211   Contribution to / (from) Reserves   -5,067 
            

  443,823   Total Expenditure   500,762 

            
      Financing of Net Expenditure     
  -38,865   Revenue Support Grant   -43,611 
  -167,584   Business Rates Income (Including Grants)   -185,047 
  -221,637   Council Tax income   -232,855 
  13,883   Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit   -4,303 
  -29,620   Social Care Precept   -34,946 
            

  -443,823   Total Financing   -500,762 

            
  
  
  (39) approves a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,840.69 for City 

Council services, i.e. an increase of 4.99% (2.99% City Council 
increase and 2% national arrangement for the social care precept); 

      
  (40) notes that the Section 151 Officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 
accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, and 
that further details can be found in Appendix 4 of the report and within 
the Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 
Level of Reserves from paragraph 2 of the Revenue Budget report;  

      
  (41) notes that, if overspends against the agreed budgets emerge, then 

Executive Directors and Directors will be required to develop and 
implement plans to mitigate fully any overspend, within 2023/24, in 
consultation with elected Members; 

      
  (42) approves the savings as set out in Appendix 2 of the Revenue Budget 

report, subject to the amendments outlined in paragraph (34) above; 
      

Page 454



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 63 of 88 
 

  (43) approves the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as 
set out in Appendix 3a of the Revenue Budget report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (34) above; 

      
  (44) approves the Treasury Management and Annual Investment 

Strategies set out in Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report and the 
recommendations contained therein; 

      
  (45) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report, which takes into account 
the revisions proposed for 2023/24 onwards; 

      
  (46) agrees that authority be delegated to the Interim Director of Finance 

and Commercial Services to undertake Treasury Management activity, 
to create and amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice 
Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury Management 
activity on the terms set out in these documents; 

      
  (47) approves a Pay Policy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 7 of the 

Revenue Budget report; 
      
  (48) (i) agrees that the Members Allowances Scheme introduced in 

2022/23 be implemented for 2023/24 and (ii) notes that the 
Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme after the 
committee system has been in operation for 12 months, to make sure 
the Scheme supports the new governance structure and the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members; 

      
  (49) notes the precepts issued by local parish councils which add £660,954 

to the calculation of the budget requirement in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992; 

      
  (50) notes the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & 
Rescue Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall 
amount of Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area; and 

      
  (51) notes that, based on the estimated expenditure level of £500.762m set 

out in paragraph (38) above, the amounts shown in Appendix 5b 
below would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2023/24, in 
accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992:- 

      
  
  Appendix 5 
    

CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
CALCULATION OF RECOMMENDED COUNCIL TAX FOR 2023/24 REVENUE 

BUDGET 
    

Page 455



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 64 of 88 
 

The Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 
    
1. It be noted that on 15th January 2023, the Council calculated the Council Tax 

Base 2023/24 
    
  (a)   for the whole Council area as : 
  145,489.5620 (item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")); 
and 

    
  (b)   for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 

the attached Appendix 5c. 
    
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 

2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is: 
  £267,800,596. 
    
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in accordance 

with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 
    
(a) £1,591,437,116 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

      
(b) £1,322,975,567 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 
      
(c) £268,461,550 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (item R in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act). 

      
(d) £1,845.2289 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by item 

T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish Precepts). 

      
(e) £660,954 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 

precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Appendix 6b). 

      
(f) £1,840.6860 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 

dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 

      

Page 456



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 65 of 88 
 

4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire and Rescue 
Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the 
Council's area as indicated in the table overleaf. 

    
5. £35,171,200 The amount set by the authority at 2 above, under Section 

30 of the Act, includes an amount attributable to the adult 
social care precept. 

    
6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the 
tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2023/24 for each part of its area 
and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

  
  
Sheffield City Council (Non-Parish Areas) 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

  
  
Bradfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 28.49 33.24 37.99 42.74 52.24 61.73 71.23 85.48 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

  
  
 

Page 457



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 66 of 88 
 

Ecclesfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 19.60 22.86 26.13 29.40 35.93 42.46 48.99 58.79 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

  
  
Stocksbridge Town Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 22.56 26.32 30.08 33.84 41.37 48.89 56.41 67.69 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  
7. The Council's basic amount of Council Tax is not excessive in accordance 

with the principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, therefore no referendum is required. 

    
    

Appendix 5b 
Council Tax Schedule 2023/24 
  

  Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 

Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority 

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

Page 458



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 67 of 88 
 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Total charge 
for non-parish 
areas of 
Sheffield 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  

Appendix 5c 
Parish Council Precepts 
  

Parish 
Council 

2022/23   2023/24 

Tax 
Base 
(£) 

Council  
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£)   Tax Base 

Council 
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Increase 

Bradfield 5,906.50 252,431 42.7378   5,973.09 255,277 42.7378 0.00% 

Ecclesfield 9,259.69 272,192 29.3954   9,346.90 274,756 29.3954 0.00% 

Stockbridge 3,846.17 130,171 33.8443   3,868.34 130,921 33.8443 0.00% 

Total/Average 19,012.36 654,794 105.98   19,188.34 660,954 105.98   

  
  
     
6.8 After contributions from 28 Members, and following a right of reply from the 

mover of the Motion (Councillor Terry Fox), the amendment moved by 
Councillor Bryan Lodge was put to the vote and was lost.  

     
6.8.1 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:-  
     
  For the amendment 

(35) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 

Richards) and Councillors Denise Fox, Bryan 
Lodge, Karen McGowan, Talib Hussain, Safiya 
Saeed, Minesh Parekh, Ruth Milsom, Mazher 
Iqbal, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, Craig Gamble Pugh, 
Fran Belbin, Abdul Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed, 
George Lindars-Hammond, Terry Fox, Tony 
Downing, Nighat Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela 
Mowlana, David Barker, Mike Drabble, Dianne 
Hurst, Dawn Dale, Peter Price, Garry Weatherall, 
Mike Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Janet 
Ridler, Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Jackie Satur and 

Page 459



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 68 of 88 
 

Paul Wood. 
        
  Against the 

amendment (41) 
- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin Ross)  

and Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Richard 
Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Kurtis Crossland, Ann 
Woolhouse, Angela Argenzio, Brian Holmshaw, 
Douglas Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin 
Phipps, Tim Huggan, Joe Otten, Martin Smith, Vic 
Bowden, Alan Woodcock, Roger Davison, 
Barbara Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, Sue 
Alston, Andrew Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, Alexi 
Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul Turpin, Ian 
Auckland, Sue Auckland, Steve Ayris, Christine 
Gilligan Kubo, Henry Nottage, Kevin Oxley, Gail 
Smith, Maroof Raouf, Penny Baker, Vickie 
Priestley, Richard Williams, Lewis Chinchen, 
Bernard Little, Alan Hooper, Mike Levery and Ann 
Whitaker. 

        
  Abstained from voting 

on the amendment (0) 
- Nil 

    
  

6.9 The amendment moved by Councillor Mike Levery was then put to the vote and 
was lost.  

     
6.9.1 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:-  
     
  For the amendment 

(28) 
- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin Ross) 

and Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Richard 
Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Kurtis Crossland, Ann 
Woolhouse, Tim Huggan, Joe Otten, Martin 
Smith, Vic Bowden, Alan Woodcock, Roger 
Davison, Barbara Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, 
Sue Alston, Andrew Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, Ian 
Auckland, Sue Auckland, Steve Ayris, Kevin 
Oxley, Gail Smith, Penny Baker, Vickie Priestley, 
Richard Williams, Alan Hooper, Mike Levery and 
Ann Whitaker.  

        
  Against the 

amendment (48) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 

Richards) and Councillors Denise Fox, Bryan 
Lodge, Karen McGowan, Angela Argenzio, Brian 
Holmshaw, Talib Hussain, Safiya Saeed, Douglas 
Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin Phipps, Minesh 
Parekh, Ruth Milsom, Mazher Iqbal, Mary Lea, 
Zahira Naz, Craig Gamble Pugh, Fran Belbin, 
Abdul Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed, Alexi 
Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul Turpin, Christine 

Page 460



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 69 of 88 
 

Gilligan Kubo, George Lindars-Hammond, Henry 
Nottage, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, Maroof 
Raouf, Nighat Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela 
Mowlana, David Barker, Mike Drabble, Dianne 
Hurst, Dawn Dale, Peter Price, Garry Weatherall, 
Mike Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Lewis 
Chinchen, Janet Ridler, Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, 
Bernard Little, Jackie Satur and Paul Wood. 

        
  Abstained from voting 

on the amendment (0) 
- Nil 

        
6.10 The amendment moved by Councillor Angela Argenzio was then put to the vote 

and was lost.  
     
6.10.1 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:-  
     
  For the amendment 

(12) 
- Councillors Angela Argenzio, Brian Holmshaw, 

Douglas Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin 
Phipps, Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul 
Turpin, Christine Gilligan Kubo, Henry Nottage, 
Maroof Raouf and Bernard Little.  

        
  Against the 

amendment (64) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 

Richards), the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor 
Colin Ross)  and Councillors Simon Clement-
Jones, Richard Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Kurtis 
Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, Denise Fox, Bryan 
Lodge, Karen McGowan, Talib Hussain, Safiya 
Saeed, Tim Huggan, Minesh Parekh, Ruth 
Milsom, Mazher Iqbal, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, Joe 
Otten, Martin Smith, Vic Bowden, Craig Gamble 
Pugh, Alan Woodcock, Roger Davison, Barbara 
Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, Fran Belbin, Abdul 
Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed, Sue Alston, Andrew 
Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, Ian Auckland, Sue 
Auckland, Steve Ayris, George Lindars-
Hammond, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, Kevin 
Oxley, Gail Smith, Nighat Basharat, Ben Miskell, 
Nabeela Mowlana, David Barker, Mike Drabble, 
Dianne Hurst, Dawn Dale, Peter Price, Garry 
Weatherall, Mike Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne 
Dunn, Penny Baker, Vickie Priestley, Richard 
Williams, Lewis Chinchen, Janet Ridler, Ben 
Curran, Tom Hunt, Alan Hooper, Mike Levery, 
Ann Whitaker, Jackie Satur and Paul Wood. 

        
  Abstained from voting 

on the amendment (0) 
- Nil 

Page 461



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 70 of 88 
 

        
6.11 The amendment moved by Councillor Lewis Chinchen was then put to the vote 

and was lost.  
     
6.11.1 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:-  
      
  For the amendment (1) - Councillor Lewis Chinchen 
        
  Against the 

amendment (75) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 

Richards), the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor 
Colin Ross)  and Councillors Simon Clement-
Jones, Richard Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Kurtis 
Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, Denise Fox, Bryan 
Lodge, Karen McGowan, Angela Argenzio, Brian 
Holmshaw, Talib Hussain, Safiya Saeed, Douglas 
Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin Phipps, Tim 
Huggan, Minesh Parekh, Ruth Milsom, Mazher 
Iqbal, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, Joe Otten, Martin 
Smith, Vic Bowden, Craig Gamble Pugh, Alan 
Woodcock, Roger Davison, Barbara Masters, 
Shaffaq Mohammed, Fran Belbin, Abdul Khayum, 
Abtisam Mohamed, Sue Alston, Andrew Sangar, 
Cliff Woodcraft, Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, 
Paul Turpin, Ian Auckland, Sue Auckland, Steve 
Ayris, Christine Gilligan Kubo, George Lindars-
Hammond, Henry Nottage, Terry Fox, Tony 
Downing, Kevin Oxley, Gail Smith, Maroof Raouf, 
Nighat Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela Mowlana, 
David Barker, Mike Drabble, Dianne Hurst, Dawn 
Dale, Peter Price, Garry Weatherall, Mike 
Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Penny 
Baker, Vickie Priestley, Richard Williams, Janet 
Ridler, Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Bernard Little, 
Alan Hooper, Mike Levery, Ann Whitaker, Jackie 
Satur and Paul Wood. 

        
  Abstained from voting 

on the amendment (0) 
- Nil 

        
6.12 Following a short adjournment, it was then RESOLVED: On the motion formally 

moved by Councillor Dianne Hurst, and formally seconded by Councillor Joe 
Otten, that, in accordance with Council Procedure Rules 4 (Suspension and 
Amendment of Council Procedure Rules) and 11 (Motions which may be 
moved without notice):- 
  
(a) in accordance with the provisions of Council Procedure Rule 11(a)(ii), an 
additional amendment be considered at this point in the proceedings; and 
  
(b) Council Procedure Rule 5.5 be suspended to enable the duration of the 

Page 462



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 71 of 88 
 

meeting to be extended to allow for the additional amendment to be moved, 
seconded and debated.  

    
6.13 It was then moved by Councillor Mary Lea, seconded by Councillor Andrew 

Sangar, as an amendment, that the Motion to approve the recommendations of 
the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee at its meeting held on 21 
February 2023, as relates to the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme 2023/24, be amended by the substitution of the following 
resolution:-  

     
  RESOLVED: That this Council:-  
     
  (1) reaffirms our commitment to further devolving power away from the 

Town Hall into neighbourhoods;  
       
  (2) believes that rooting service delivery at a local level and giving a 

greater voice to communities will benefit all of Sheffield and support the 
workload of the new committee system;  

      
  (3) resolves that alongside service redesign, additional spending 

amounting to £25,000 per ward, overseen by ward councillors and 
delivered through the Local Area Committees process, is provided as 
an additional spend for 2023/24;  

      
  (4) resolves to put an extra £400k into the LACs, which will be additional 

ring-fenced spending to address the cost of living crisis, and allocated 
by Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD);  

       
  (5) therefore requests the Interim Director of Finance and Commercial 

Services to implement the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme 2023/24 in accordance with the details set out in the 
reports on the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme now 
submitted, but with the following amendments:-  

   
       
  Revenue Budget Proposals  
  

    2023/24   2023/24 

  Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 

          

  Non-recurrent (One Off)       

          

  22/23 Collection Fund 
Surplus 

1,100 Ward Pots (£25k per Ward) 700 

          

      Local Area Committee (LAC) 
funding distributed based on 
indices of multiple deprivation 
(IMD) 

400 

          

Page 463



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 72 of 88 
 

  Savings Total 1,100 Spending Total 1,100 

  
  
  (6) delegates authority to the relevant Director to increase fees and 

charges where they have been considered by a Policy Committee as 
part of the budget process and are included in Appendix 2 - Committee 
Savings of the Sheffield City Council Revenue Budget 2023/24; 

      
  (7) approves the contents of the Capital Strategy and the specific projects 

included in the years 2023/24 to 2027/28, and that block allocations 
are included within the programme for noting at this stage and detailed 
proposals will be brought back for separate Member approval as part 
of the monthly monitoring procedures; 

      
  (8) approves the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2027/28, 

as per Appendix C2 of the Capital Strategy report; 
      
  (9) after noting the joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services now submitted on the 
Revenue Budget 2023/24, approves and adopts a net Revenue 
Budget for 2023/24 amounting to £500.762m, as set out in Appendix 3 
of that report, and subsequently amended in the light of paragraph (5) 
above, as follows:- 

      
  
    

  
Restated 

2022/23 
    

Summary Revenue Budget 
  

2023/24 
            
  £000       £000 
      Portfolio budgets:     
  140,825   Adult Health & Social Care   141,949 
  40,377   Communities, Parks and Leisure   35,483 
  8,085   Economic Development and Skills   8,216 
  113,832   Education, Children and Families   117,805 
  5,214   Housing   5,264 
  56,730   Strategy and Resources (Excluding Corporate)   62,567 
  23,189   Transport, Regeneration and Climate   25,449 
  53,130   Waste & Street Scene   64,336 

  441,382       461,069 
            
      Corporate Budgets:     

            
      Specific Grants     
  -3,435   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   -2,692 
  -7,804   22/23 Services Grant   -5,624 
  0   Social Care Grant held Centrally   -9,858 
  -941   Lower Tier Services Grant   0 
            

Page 464



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 73 of 88 
 

      Corporate Items     
  5,500   Redundancy Provision   5,500 
  1,593   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   0 
  420   ITA Levy   0 
  0   Change Budget   4,300 
  0   Budget Inflation Contingency   4,000 
  0   Social Care Contingency   9,858 
  420   Other   -781 
            
      Capital Financing Costs     
  11,662   General Capital Financing Costs   11,662 
  7,873   Heart of the City 2   7,173 
  12,025   Streets Ahead Investment   11,663 
  7,339   MSF Capital Financing Costs   8,259 
            
      Reserves Movements     
  -32,211   Contribution to / (from) Reserves   -3,767 
            

  443,823   Total Expenditure   500,762 

            
      Financing of Net Expenditure     
  -38,865   Revenue Support Grant   -43,611 
  -167,584   Business Rates Income (Including Grants)   -185,047 
  -221,637   Council Tax income   -232,855 
  13,883   Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit   -4,303 
  -29,620   Social Care Precept   -34,946 
            

  -443,823   Total Financing   -500,762 

            
  
 
  (10) approves a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,840.69 for City 

Council services, i.e. an increase of 4.99% (2.99% City Council 
increase and 2% national arrangement for the social care precept); 

      
  (11) notes that the Section 151 Officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 
accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, and 
that further details can be found in Appendix 4 of the report and within 
the Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 
Level of Reserves from paragraph 2 of the Revenue Budget report;  

      
  (12) notes that, if overspends against the agreed budgets emerge, then 

Executive Directors and Directors will be required to develop and 
implement plans to mitigate fully any overspend, within 2023/24, in 
consultation with elected Members; 

      
  (13) approves the savings as set out in Appendix 2 of the Revenue Budget 

report, subject to the amendments outlined in paragraph (5) above; 
      

Page 465



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 74 of 88 
 

  (14) approves the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as 
set out in Appendix 3a of the Revenue Budget report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (5) above; 

      
  (15) approves the Treasury Management and Annual Investment 

Strategies set out in Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report and the 
recommendations contained therein; 

      
  (16) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report, which takes into account 
the revisions proposed for 2023/24 onwards; 

      
  (17) agrees that authority be delegated to the Interim Director of Finance 

and Commercial Services to undertake Treasury Management activity, 
to create and amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice 
Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury Management 
activity on the terms set out in these documents; 

      
  (18) approves a Pay Policy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 7 of the 

Revenue Budget report; 
      
  (19) (i) agrees that the Members Allowances Scheme introduced in 

2022/23 be implemented for 2023/24 and (ii) notes that the 
Independent Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme after the 
committee system has been in operation for 12 months, to make sure 
the Scheme supports the new governance structure and the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members; 

      
  (20) notes the precepts issued by local parish councils which add £660,954 

to the calculation of the budget requirement in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992; 

      
  (21) notes the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & 
Rescue Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall 
amount of Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area; and 

      
  (22) notes that, based on the estimated expenditure level of £500.762m set 

out in paragraph (9) above, the amounts shown in Appendix 5b below 
would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2023/24, in 
accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992:- 

  
 

Appendix 5 
  

CITY OF SHEFFIELD 
CALCULATION OF RECOMMENDED COUNCIL TAX FOR 2023/24 REVENUE 

BUDGET 
    

Page 466



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 75 of 88 
 

The Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 
    
1. It be noted that on 15th January 2023, the Council calculated the Council Tax 

Base 2023/24 
    
  (a)   for the whole Council area as : 
  145,489.5620 (item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the "Act")); 
and 

    
  (b)   for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept relates as in 

the attached Appendix 5c. 
    
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own purposes for 

2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is: 
  £267,800,596. 
    
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in accordance 

with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 
    
(a) £1,589,967,117 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 
taking into account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils. 

      
(b) £1,321,505,567 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council 

estimates for the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act. 
      
(c) £268,461,550 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) above 

exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, calculated by the 
Council in accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act as its 
Council Tax requirement for the year (item R in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Act). 

      
(d) £1,845.2289 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided by item 

T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish Precepts). 

      
(e) £660,954 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Parish 

precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act (as per the 
attached Appendix 6b). 

      
(f) £1,840.6860 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given by 

dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) above), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the 
year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
Parish precept relates. 

      

Page 467



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 76 of 88 
 

4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire and Rescue 
Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the 
Council's area as indicated in the table overleaf. 

    
5. £35,171,200 The amount set by the authority at 2 above, under Section 

30 of the Act, includes an amount attributable to the adult 
social care precept. 

    
6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in the 
tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2023/24 for each part of its area 
and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

  
  
Sheffield City Council (Non-Parish Areas) 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

  
  
Bradfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 28.49 33.24 37.99 42.74 52.24 61.73 71.23 85.48 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

  
  

Page 468



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 77 of 88 
 

Ecclesfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 19.60 22.86 26.13 29.40 35.93 42.46 48.99 58.79 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

  
  
Stocksbridge Town Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 22.56 26.32 30.08 33.84 41.37 48.89 56.41 67.69 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  
7. The Council's basic amount of Council Tax is not excessive in accordance 

with the principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, therefore no referendum is required. 

  
Appendix 5b 

Council Tax Schedule 2023/24 
  

  Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority 

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Total charge 
for non-parish 
areas of 
Sheffield 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

Page 469



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 78 of 88 
 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
  

Appendix 5c 
Parish Council Precepts 
  

Parish 
Council 

2022/23   2023/24 

Tax 
Base 
(£) 

Council  
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£)   Tax Base 

Council 
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Increase 

Bradfield 5,906.50 252,431 42.7378   5,973.09 255,277 42.7378 0.00% 

Ecclesfield 9,259.69 272,192 29.3954   9,346.90 274,756 29.3954 0.00% 

Stockbridge 3,846.17 130,171 33.8443   3,868.34 130,921 33.8443 0.00% 

Total/Average 19,012.36 654,794 105.98   19,188.34 660,954 105.98   

  
  
6.14 After contributions from two Members, the amendment moved by Councillor 

Mary Lea was put to the vote and was carried.  
     
6.14.1 The votes on the amendment were ordered to be recorded and were as 

follows:-  
    
  For the amendment 

(76) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 

Richards), the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor 
Colin Ross)  and Councillors Simon Clement-
Jones, Richard Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Kurtis 
Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, Denise Fox, Bryan 
Lodge, Karen McGowan, Angela Argenzio, Brian 
Holmshaw, Talib Hussain, Safiya Saeed, Douglas 
Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin Phipps, Tim 
Huggan, Minesh Parekh, Ruth Milsom, Mazher 
Iqbal, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, Joe Otten, Martin 
Smith, Vic Bowden, Craig Gamble Pugh, Alan 
Woodcock, Roger Davison, Barbara Masters, 
Shaffaq Mohammed, Fran Belbin, Abdul Khayum, 
Abtisam Mohamed, Sue Alston, Andrew Sangar, 
Cliff Woodcraft, Alexi Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, 
Paul Turpin, Ian Auckland, Sue Auckland, Steve 
Ayris, Christine Gilligan Kubo, George Lindars-
Hammond, Henry Nottage, Terry Fox, Tony 
Downing, Kevin Oxley, Gail Smith, Maroof Raouf, 
Nighat Basharat, Ben Miskell, Nabeela Mowlana, 
David Barker, Mike Drabble, Dianne Hurst, Dawn 
Dale, Peter Price, Garry Weatherall, Mike Chaplin, 

Page 470



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 79 of 88 
 

Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Penny Baker, Vickie 
Priestley, Richard Williams, Lewis Chinchen, Janet 
Ridler, Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Bernard Little, Alan 
Hooper, Mike Levery, Ann Whitaker, Jackie Satur 
and Paul Wood. 

        
  Against the 

amendment (0) 
- Nil 

        
  Abstained from voting 

on the amendment 
(0) 

- Nil 

 
6.15 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (1) reaffirms our commitment to further devolving power away from the 

Town Hall into neighbourhoods; 
      
  (2) believes that rooting service delivery at a local level and giving a 

greater voice to communities will benefit all of Sheffield and support 
the workload of the new committee system; 

      
  (3) resolves that alongside service redesign, additional spending 

amounting to £25,000 per ward, overseen by ward councillors and 
delivered through the Local Area Committees process, is provided as 
an additional spend for 2023/24; 

      
  (4) resolves to put an extra £400k into the LACs, which will be additional 

ring-fenced spending to address the cost of living crisis, and allocated 
by Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD); 

      
  (5) therefore requests the Interim Director of Finance and Commercial 

Services to implement the City Council’s Revenue Budget and Capital 
Programme 2023/24 in accordance with the details set out in the 
reports on the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme now 
submitted, but with the following amendments:- 

      
  Revenue Budget Proposals 
  

 

    2023/24   2023/24 

  Savings Proposals (£'000) Spending Proposals (£'000) 

          

  Non-recurrent (One Off)       

  
 

      

  22/23 Collection Fund 
Surplus 

1,100 Ward Pots (£25k per Ward) 700 

Page 471



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 80 of 88 
 

          

      Local Area Committee (LAC) funding 
distributed based on indices of 
multiple deprivation 
(IMD) 

400 

          

  Savings Total 1,100 Spending Total 1,100 

      
      
  (6) delegates authority to the relevant Director to increase fees and 

charges where they have been considered by a Policy Committee as 
part of the budget process and are included in Appendix 2 - 
Committee Savings of the Sheffield City Council Revenue Budget 
2023/24; 

      
  (7) approves the contents of the Capital Strategy and the specific 

projects included in the years 2023/24 to 2027/28, and that block 
allocations are included within the programme for noting at this stage 
and detailed proposals will be brought back for separate Member 
approval as part of the monthly monitoring procedures; 

      
  (8) approves the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 

2027/28, as per Appendix C2 of the Capital Strategy report; 
      
  (9) after noting the joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim 

Director of Finance and Commercial Services now submitted on the 
Revenue Budget 2023/24, approves and adopts a net Revenue 
Budget for 2023/24 amounting to £500.762m, as set out in Appendix 
3 of that report, and subsequently amended in the light of paragraph 
(5) above, as follows:- 

      
    

  
Restated 

2022/23 
    

Summary Revenue Budget 
  

2023/24 
            
  £000       £000 
      Portfolio budgets:     
  140,825   Adult Health & Social Care   141,949 
  40,377   Communities, Parks and Leisure   35,483 
  8,085   Economic Development and Skills   8,216 
  113,832   Education, Children and Families   117,805 
  5,214   Housing   5,264 
  56,730   Strategy and Resources (Excluding Corporate)   62,567 
  23,189   Transport, Regeneration and Climate   25,449 
  53,130   Waste & Street Scene   64,336 

  441,382       461,069 
            
      Corporate Budgets:     

            

Page 472



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 81 of 88 
 

      Specific Grants     
  -3,435   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   -2,692 
  -7,804   22/23 Services Grant   -5,624 
  0   Social Care Grant held Centrally   -9,858 
  -941   Lower Tier Services Grant   0 
            
      Corporate Items     
  5,500   Redundancy Provision   5,500 
  1,593   New Homes Bonus (CIF)   0 
  420   ITA Levy   0 
  0   Change Budget   4,300 
  0   Budget Inflation Contingency   4,000 
  0   Social Care Contingency   9,858 
  420   Other   -781 
            
      Capital Financing Costs     
  11,662   General Capital Financing Costs   11,662 
  7,873   Heart of the City 2   7,173 
  12,025   Streets Ahead Investment   11,663 
  7,339   MSF Capital Financing Costs   8,259 
            
      Reserves Movements     
  -32,211   Contribution to / (from) Reserves   -3,767 
            

  443,823   Total Expenditure   500,762 

            
      Financing of Net Expenditure     
  -38,865   Revenue Support Grant   -43,611 
  -167,584   Business Rates Income (Including Grants)   -185,047 
  -221,637   Council Tax income   -232,855 
  13,883   Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit   -4,303 
  -29,620   Social Care Precept   -34,946 
            

  -443,823   Total Financing   -500,762 

            
     
 (10) approves a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,840.69 for City 

Council services, i.e. an increase of 4.99% (2.99% City Council 
increase and 2% national arrangement for the social care precept); 

     
 (11) notes that the Section 151 Officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 
accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, and 
that further details can be found in Appendix 4 of the report and within 
the Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 
Level of Reserves from paragraph 2 of the Revenue Budget report;  

     
 (12) notes that, if overspends against the agreed budgets emerge, then 

Executive Directors and Directors will be required to develop and 
implement plans to mitigate fully any overspend, within 2023/24, in 

Page 473



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 82 of 88 
 

consultation with elected Members; 
     
 (13) approves the savings as set out in Appendix 2 of the Revenue Budget 

report, subject to the amendments outlined in paragraph (5) above; 
     
 (14) approves the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as 

set out in Appendix 3a of the Revenue Budget report, subject to the 
amendments outlined in paragraph (5) above; 

     
 (15) approves the Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategies 

set out in Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report and the 
recommendations contained therein; 

     
 (16) approves the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 6 of the Revenue Budget report, which takes into account 
the revisions proposed for 2023/24 onwards; 

     
 (17) agrees that authority be delegated to the Interim Director of Finance 

and Commercial Services to undertake Treasury Management activity, 
to create and amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice 
Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury Management 
activity on the terms set out in these documents; 

     
 (18) approves a Pay Policy for 2023/24 as set out in Appendix 7 of the 

Revenue Budget report; 
     
 (19) (i) agrees that the Members Allowances Scheme introduced in 2022/23 

be implemented for 2023/24 and (ii) notes that the Independent 
Remuneration Panel will review the Scheme after the committee 
system has been in operation for 12 months, to make sure the Scheme 
supports the new governance structure and the roles and 
responsibilities of elected members; 

     
 (20) notes the precepts issued by local parish councils which add £660,954 

to the calculation of the budget requirement in accordance with 
Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992; 

     
 (21) notes the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police and Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 
Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall amount of 
Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area; and 

     
 (22) notes that, based on the estimated expenditure level of £500.762m set 

out in paragraph (9) above, the amounts shown in Appendix 5b below 
would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2023/24, in 
accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992:- 

     
  

Page 474



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 83 of 88 
 

 
Appendix 5 

  
CITY OF SHEFFIELD 

CALCULATION OF RECOMMENDED COUNCIL TAX FOR 2023/24 
REVENUE BUDGET 

    
The Council is recommended to resolve as follows: 
    
1. It be noted that on 15th January 2023, the Council calculated the Council 

Tax Base 2023/24 
    
  (a)   for the whole Council area as : 
  145,489.5620 (item T in the formula in Section 31B of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, as amended (the 
"Act")); and 

    
  (b)   for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish precept 

relates as in the attached Appendix 5c. 
    
2. Calculate that the Council Tax requirement for the Council's own 

purposes for 2023/24 (excluding Parish precepts) is: 
  £267,800,596. 
    
3. That the following amounts be calculated for the year 2023/24 in 

accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act: 
    
(a) £1,589,967,117 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 

Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A(2) of the Act taking into account all precepts 
issued to it by Parish Councils. 

      
(b) £1,321,505,567 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 

Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A(3) of the Act. 

      
(c) £268,461,550 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) 

above exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, 
calculated by the Council in accordance with Section 
31A(4) of the Act as its Council Tax requirement for 
the year (item R in the formula in Section 31B of the 
Act). 

      
(d) £1,845.2289 being the amount at 3(c) above (Item R), all divided 

by item T (1(a) above), calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the basic 
amount of its Council Tax for the year (including 
Parish Precepts). 

   
      

Page 475



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 84 of 88 
 

(e) £660,954 being the aggregate amount of all special items 
(Parish precepts) referred to in Section 34(1) of the 
Act (as per the attached Appendix 6b). 

      
(f) £1,840.6860 being the amount at 3(d) above less the result given 

by dividing the amount at 3(e) above by Item T (1(a) 
above), calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of 
its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those 
parts of its area to which no Parish precept relates. 

      
4. To note that the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Fire and Rescue 

Authority have issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 
40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of 
dwellings in the Council's area as indicated in the table overleaf. 

    
5. £35,171,200 The amount set by the authority at 2 above, under 

Section 30 of the Act, includes an amount 
attributable to the adult social care precept. 

    
6. That the Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts 
shown in the tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2023/24 for 
each part of its area and for each of the categories of dwellings. 

    
  
Sheffield City Council (Non-Parish Areas) 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

   
Bradfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 28.49 33.24 37.99 42.74 52.24 61.73 71.23 85.48 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Page 476



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 85 of 88 
 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

   
Ecclesfield Parish Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 19.60 22.86 26.13 29.40 35.93 42.46 48.99 58.79 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

   
Stocksbridge Town Council 

  
Valuation Band 

A B C D E F G H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 22.56 26.32 30.08 33.84 41.37 48.89 56.41 67.69 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority  

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police & Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Aggregate of 
Council Tax 
Requirements 

1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

  
    
7. The Council's basic amount of Council Tax is not excessive in accordance 

with the principles approved under Section 52ZB of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, therefore no referendum is required. 

    
  

Appendix 5b 
Council Tax Schedule 2023/24 
  

  Band A Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 
Sheffield City 
Council 1,227.12 1,431.64 1,636.17 1,840.69 2,249.73 2,658.77 3,067.81 3,681.37 

South 
Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue 
Authority 

55.05 64.23 73.40 82.58 100.93 119.28 137.63 165.16 

South 
Yorkshire 
Police and 
Crime 
Commissioner 

158.69 185.14 211.59 238.04 290.93 343.83 396.73 476.08 

Page 477



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 86 of 88 
 

Total charge 
for non-parish 
areas of 
Sheffield 

1,440.86 1,681.01 1,921.16 2,161.31 2,641.59 3,121.88 3,602.17 4,322.61 

Bradfield 
Parish Council 1,469.35 1,714.25 1,959.15 2,204.05 2,693.83 3,183.61 3,673.40 4,408.09 

Ecclesfield 
Parish Council 1,460.46 1,703.87 1,947.29 2,190.71 2,677.52 3,164.34 3,651.16 4,381.40 

Stocksbridge 
Town Council 1,463.42 1,707.33 1,951.24 2,195.15 2,682.96 3,170.77 3,658.58 4,390.30 

   
Appendix 5c 

Parish Council Precepts 
  

Parish 
Council 

2022/23   2023/24 

Tax 
Base 
(£) 

Council  
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£)   Tax Base 

Council 
Tax 

Income 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Band D 
(£) 

Council 
Tax 

Increase 

Bradfield 5,906.50 252,431 42.7378   5,973.09 255,277 42.7378 0.00% 

Ecclesfield 9,259.69 272,192 29.3954   9,346.90 274,756 29.3954 0.00% 

Stockbridge 3,846.17 130,171 33.8443   3,868.34 130,921 33.8443 0.00% 

Total/Average 19,012.36 654,794 105.98   19,188.34 660,954 105.98   

  
     
6.15.1 The votes on the Substantive Motion were ordered to be recorded and were 

as follows:-  
     
  For the Substantive 

Motion (76) 
- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair 

Richards), the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor 
Colin Ross)  and Councillors Simon Clement-
Jones, Richard Shaw, Sophie Thornton, Kurtis 
Crossland, Ann Woolhouse, Denise Fox, Bryan 
Lodge, Karen McGowan, Angela Argenzio, Brian 
Holmshaw, Talib Hussain, Safiya Saeed, 
Douglas Johnson, Ruth Mersereau, Martin 
Phipps, Tim Huggan, Minesh Parekh, Ruth 
Milsom, Mazher Iqbal, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, 
Joe Otten, Martin Smith, Vic Bowden, Craig 
Gamble Pugh, Alan Woodcock, Roger Davison, 
Barbara Masters, Shaffaq Mohammed, Fran 
Belbin, Abdul Khayum, Abtisam Mohamed, Sue 
Alston, Andrew Sangar, Cliff Woodcraft, Alexi 
Dimond, Marieanne Elliot, Paul Turpin, Ian 
Auckland, Sue Auckland, Steve Ayris, Christine 
Gilligan Kubo, George Lindars-Hammond, Henry 
Nottage, Terry Fox, Tony Downing, Kevin Oxley, 
Gail Smith, Maroof Raouf, Nighat Basharat, Ben 
Miskell, Nabeela Mowlana, David Barker, Mike 
Drabble, Dianne Hurst, Dawn Dale, Peter Price, 
Garry Weatherall, Mike Chaplin, Tony Damms, 

Page 478



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 87 of 88 
 

Jayne Dunn, Penny Baker, Vickie Priestley, 
Richard Williams, Lewis Chinchen, Janet Ridler, 
Ben Curran, Tom Hunt, Bernard Little, Alan 
Hooper, Mike Levery, Ann Whitaker, Jackie 
Satur and Paul Wood. 

        
  Against the 

Substantive Motion (0) 
- Nil 

        
  Abstained from voting 

on the Substantive 
Motion (0) 

- Nil 

    
  
 
7.   
 

MEMBERSHIPS OF COUNCIL BODIES, REPRESENTATIVES TO SERVE 
ON OTHER BODIES AND RELATED ISSUES 
 

7.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that:- 

     
(a) approval be given to the following changes to the memberships of 
Committees, Boards, etc.:- 

    
  Senior Officer Employment 

Committee 
- Councillors Paul Wood and Richard Williams 

to replace Councillors Steve Ayris and George 
Lindars-Hammond. 

    
  (b) representatives be appointed to serve on other bodies as follows:- 
    
  Emergency Planning Joint 

Committee 
- Councillors Mike Chaplin and Joe Otten to 

replace Councillors Mike Levery and Bryan 
Lodge. 

        
  
 
8.   
 

URGENT ITEM OF BUSINESS - MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES: REPORT OF 
THE INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
 

8.1 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) stated that Council 
Procedure Rule 26 states that “An item of business may be considered at a 
meeting of the Council as a matter of urgency, where it has not been possible 
to give five clear working days’ notice, on the recommendation of the Chair, but 
the reason for such urgency must be recorded in the minutes”.   

    
8.2 The Lord Mayor stated that it was proposed that the Council considers the 

recommendations made by its Independent Remuneration Panel in relation to 
the introduction of a new Special Responsibility Allowance within the Members’ 
Allowances Scheme.  The Independent Panel met three working days prior to 
the publication of the agenda for this meeting, and this had not provided 

Page 479



Council 01.03.2023 

Page 88 of 88 
 

sufficient time for officers to complete the necessary liaison with all the political 
groups on the Council prior to the publication of the agenda.   To not deal with 
the matter as an urgent item of business at this meeting would delay the 
business for more than two months, until the next scheduled Council meeting. 

    
8.3 The Lord Mayor added that a report on this matter had been produced and was 

circulated to all Members of the Council on 27th February 2023 and had been 
published on the Council’s website. Copies of the report were available at the 
meeting. 

    

8.4 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Martin Phipps, that this 
Council, in accordance with the details set out in the report of the Interim 
Director of Legal and Governance now submitted and as recommended by its 
Independent Remuneration Panel, approves the introduction of:- 

    
  (a)      a Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) for the Chair of the Health 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee at Band C (£7,803 per annum) and that the 
allowance be backdated to the start of the Municipal Year 2022/23; and 

    
  (b)      an SRA at Band C (£7,803 per annum) for the Chair of any additional 

Sub-Committees that are established, subject to the requirement that no 
Councillor shall be entitled to receive more than one payment by way of 
an SRA as detailed in The Local Authorities (Members Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003. 

    

    
  
 
 

Page 480



 
Minutes of the Extraordinary Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH, on Wednesday 10 May 2023, at 2.00 pm, pursuant to notice duly 
given and Summonses duly served. 
 

PRESENT 
 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Colin Ross) 

 
1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Richard Shaw 
Sophie Thornton 
 

 Craig Gamble Pugh 
Alan Woodcock 
Robert Reiss 
 

 Nighat Basharat 
Ibby Ullah 
 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne 
 Kurtis Crossland 

Ann Woolhouse 
Ian Horner 
 

 Roger Davison 
Barbara Masters 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
 

 Ben Miskell 
Nabeela Mowlana 
Sophie Wilson 
 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
   

 
 Fran Belbin 

Abdul Khayum 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 David Barker 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Angela Argenzio 

Maleiki Haybe 
Brian Holmshaw 
 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Mark Jones 
Safiya Saeed 
 

 Alexi Dimond 
Marieanne Elliot 
Paul Turpin 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Ruth Mersereau 
Martin Phipps 
 

 Ian Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
Mohammed Mahroof 
 

 Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Richard Williams 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 

 Tim Huggan 
Ruth Milsom 
Minesh Parekh 
 

 Christine Gilligan Kubo 
Henry Nottage 
Toby Mallinson 
 

 Lewis Chinchen 
Janet Ridler 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Sioned-Mair Richards 
Laura Moynahan 
 

 Tom Hunt 
Bernard Little 
Laura McClean 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 Tony Downing 
Gail Smith 
Glynis Chapman 
 

 Alan Hooper 
Mike Levery 
Ann Whitaker 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Mick Rooney 

Alison Norris 
 

 

Page 481



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 2 of 12 
 

 
 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Tony Damms, Mike 
Drabble, Denise Fox, Terry Fox, Julie Grocutt, Dianne Hurst, Bryan Lodge, 
Karen McGowan, Peter Price, Maroof Raouf, Garry Weatherall and Paul 
Wood. 

  
 
2.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

2.1 There were no declarations of interest made by Members of the Council. 
  
 
3.   
 

TO CONSIDER THE IMPLICATIONS OF THE STREET TREE INQUIRY 
ON THE CITY, SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL AND ON COUNCILLORS 
INVOLVED IN THE DECISION MAKING AT THAT TIME. 
 

3.1 The Lord Mayor welcomed everyone to the Extraordinary General Meeting 
and explained that, though formalities would be kept where appropriate, the 
meeting would follow a different format that would include a session led by 
an independent facilitator to enable Members and the public to have an 
open and honest discussion.  

    
3.2 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Fran Belbin, seconded by 

Councillor Joe Otten, that, in accordance with Council Procedural Rules 4 
(Suspension and Amendment of Council Procedure Rules) and 11 (Motions 
which may be moved without notice):- 
  

(a)  Council Procedure Rule 17.6 (Time limit for debate) be suspended to 
remove the 25-minute time limit for the item of business; and 
  

(b)  it be noted that, at this Extraordinary Meeting, members of the public 
have been invited to submit comments, questions, or statements 
relevant to the issues being discussed on the agenda and that these 
will be responded to as part of the meeting today. 

    
3.3 Presentation from Sir Mark Lowcock regarding the Sheffield Street Trees 

Inquiry Report 
    
3.3.1 The Council received a presentation from Sir Mark Lowcock, author of the 

Sheffield Street Trees Inquiry Report, who attended the meeting via video 
link. Sir Mark thanked everyone who had contributed to the inquiry and 
noted that the report had been accepted by the Chief Executive and Leader 
of the Council promptly and unequivocally. Amey had recently issued a 
statement apologising for their role in the dispute and acknowledging their 
responsibility in finding and resourcing solutions to address issues within 
the Streets Ahead programme. Sir Mark also welcomed a statement issued 
by Sheffield Tree Action Group (STAG) apologising for distress or harm 
arising from the behaviour of the campaigners. 

Page 482



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 3 of 12 
 

    
3.3.2 Sir Mark explained that, when determining the recommendations, the 

emphasis was on reconciliation, recovery from the dispute and learning 
lessons. The recommendations focussed on providing accountability and 
solutions for the future. 

    
3.3.3 The inquiry found that the Council had got many things wrong and had not 

used its authority in a proportionate or appropriate way; however, it had not 
found that the Council had exceeded the use of its authority, undertaken 
criminal conduct, committed contempt of court or breached professional 
standards. 

    
3.3.4 Sir Mark concluded by stating that he did not believe relitigating events that 

took place during the dispute or commissioning further investigations would 
be beneficial. Sir Mark explained that learning lessons to make 
improvements in the future should be the focus, adding that, to learn 
lessons successfully, discussion that broadened understanding and 
developed agreement on moving forwards was required. 

    
3.4 Statement from the Lord Mayor 

    
3.4.1 The Lord Mayor gave an apology on behalf of all councillors, acknowledging 

that the street tree dispute was a dark period for Sheffield that was 
avoidable. The Lord Mayor stated that, during the design and 
implementation of the Streets Ahead contract, there was a sustained failure 
of strategic leadership and a series of mistakes and significant errors of 
judgment.  

    
3.4.3 The Lord Mayor explained that the Council had fully accepted all the 

recommendations and conclusions in the inquiry report and had committed 
to implementing the recommendations, including making personal apologies 
where needed. The Council had taken immediate action to drop all 
remaining financial claims and all campaigners had been reimbursed. 

    
3.4.4 The Chief Executive had been commissioned to bring a report to the 

Strategy and Resources Policy Committee in June 2023 setting out how the 
Council would fulfil each recommendation and describing, in detail, the 
process that the Council would undertake to ensure that lessons were truly 
and properly learned. 

    
3.5 Statement from the Chief Executive 
    
3.5.1 The Chief Executive thanked all those involved in organising the 

Extraordinary General Meeting and welcomed the opportunity to approach 
Council meetings in a new way.  

    
3.5.2 The Chief Executive stated that the Council was committed to making good 

on the promises made immediately after the publication of the inquiry report. 
The Leader and the Chief Executive had issued initial apologies and a full 
apology, in line with Sir Mark’s recommendations, would be presented to 

Page 483



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 4 of 12 
 

the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee in June 2023. 
    
3.5.3 The Chief Executive stated that learning the lessons of the inquiry meant 

listening to the Council’s staff, valuing their insight and treating them with 
kindness and respect, particularly at times of stress. 

    
3.5.4 The report to the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee in June 2023 

would set out how the Council would address the recommendations with 
actions, timescales and monitoring. The Chief Executive concluded by 
stating that the new senior officer leadership team was determined to work 
collaboratively in service to the city. 

    
3.6 Public Comments, Questions or Statements 
    
3.6.1 Statement From Sheffield Tree Action Group (STAG)  

  
‘The Sheffield Tree Action Group (STAG) welcomes Sir Mark Lowcock’s 
findings. We do not need to revisit his very serious conclusions in this 
statement. Sir Mark showed us a devastating failure in leadership and a 
culture that, demonstrates a deep crisis, beyond the tree dispute, of 
leadership, accountability, openness, deep-seated hostility to challenge and 
a failure to regulate standards in public life. Leading politicians’ aggressive 
responses to ANY criticism, reveals a deeply inappropriate culture. 
  
‘Councillors now have a historic opportunity to champion enduring cultural 
change. The recommendations in the Lowcock Report provide a framework 
for such change, as well as a focus for efforts towards reconciliation. 
  
‘Green spaces where people live are vital assets in our growing crises of 
health and biodiversity. We said that frequently throughout the dispute. As 
we move forward, the Local Plan and other policies must recognise the 
importance of street trees and green spaces right where people live and 
work. They will play an increasing role in the city’s response to the health 
and nature crises and there must be a clear recognition of the ways in which 
street trees enhance well-being and amenity across the city. STAG will 
continue to promote these issues through the Street Tree Partnership and 
through our support for environmental education about the contribution of 
street trees in the public domain. 
  
‘The reach of the Lowcock Report goes way beyond the street trees 
dispute. That bitter dispute was symptomatic of a deeper cultural and 
governance crisis. Let’s recognise that crisis and make it a driver for change 
and new confidence at all levels in the city, in the conduct of politics and 
administration of our affairs. Sheffield cannot afford to remain deaf to the 
legitimate concerns of its citizens. Public consultations must be meaningful. 
Decisions must be timely, transparent and well evidenced.   
  
‘Our city’s reputation was damaged by the street trees dispute. Let’s 
promote respectful debate and consensus and never again use othering 
and conflict as political tools. We ask the full Council to accept the findings 

Page 484



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 5 of 12 
 

of the Lowcock Report and acknowledge their failings. Councillors must 
accept collective responsibility for ensuring that there is a comprehensive 
plan to implement all the Lowcock recommendations. That process must 
engage with stakeholders. STAG remains a committed contributor, ready to 
provide positive and well-informed perspectives to the change process.’ 
  
In response, the Lord Mayor said that the comments from the STAG Elected 
Committee had been noted and would help to inform the positive and 
forward-looking discussions during the meeting. 

    
3.6.2 Question from Calvin Payne 

 
‘I would like to ask a question relating to the committal hearings against tree 
protesters; did the leader of the council support the attempts to imprison 
eight Sheffield tree protesters in 2017/18, and does he now think it was right 
for Sheffield City Council to do so?’ 
  
In response, the Lord Mayor said that the Council had apologised publicly 
for the decision to pursue committal proceedings against tree protestors in 
2017/18 and would build on this in the forthcoming report to the Strategy 
and Resources Policy Committee. The Council had dropped outstanding 
financial claims against the protestors and had gone further than Sir Mark’s 
recommendation by repaying those who had already settled their claims. 

    
3.6.3 Question from Benoit Compin 

 
‘Now that the elections are out of the way, I'd like to know when this council 
will want to schedule any movement towards the reversion of my case at 
court. It would certainly be easier for me to claim a compensation out of 
public funds (council or police) for 2 counts of wrongful arrest and lies under 
oath at court from council officials I was subjected to. But I believe this 
council can help bringing justice to this matter in brief delays.  
  
I would suggest that a meeting between myself and the legal department 
should be arranged at the earliest possible date.’ 
  
In response, the Lord Mayor advised that the Council would meet with Mr 
Compin outside of the meeting to determine how best to resolve this issue.  

    
3.6.4 Question from Russell Johnson 

 
1.       ‘Does the current leadership regret that SCC sought to illegitimately 

imprison citizens during the Street Tree Scandal? Will it make 
appropriate reparations to those harmed?  

2.       ‘Why has SCC failed, after many months, to respond to a formal 
complaint by the 'undertakers'? This was concerning intimidatory 
behaviour by SCC as evidenced by Lowcock. What is SCC's intention? 

3.       ‘Would the Council encourage or welcome a Police investigation into 
possible Misuse of Public Monies, malfeasance or misfeasance or other 
criminality based on Lowcock and other evidence? 

Page 485



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 6 of 12 
 

4.       ‘Does it remain the Council's view that the most effective way to 
address challenge is to ignore and obfuscate? 

5.       ‘Does the current leadership regret that SCC sought to illegitimately 
imprison citizens during the Street Tree Scandal? Will it make 
appropriate reparations to those harmed? Would whoever is acting as 
Leader please say whether there can be real change in this Council 
whilst [name of Councillor redacted] and [name of Councillor redacted] 
remain as Members?’ 

  
The Lord Mayor responded that the Council had publicly apologised for the 
decision to pursue committal proceedings against tree protestors in 2017/18 
and would build on this further in the forthcoming report to Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee. The Council had dropped outstanding 
financial claims against the protestors and had gone further than Sir Mark’s 
recommendation by repaying those who had already settled their claims. 
  
In relation to the complaint by the undertakers, the Council was still in the 
process of considering the complaint and the Council’s response would be 
part of the report to the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee in June; 
those who had made the complaint would be kept informed of proposals.  
  
Sir Mark’s report was clear that there were no matters that needed to be 
considered by the Police and the Council had accepted Sir Mark’s view that 
there was no criminality or misuse of public money. 
  
The Council had committed publicly to being open and honest at all times, 
to engaging positively and proactively with the public and to hearing all 
perspectives and views before coming to a decision. 
  
The final question would need to be addressed to the Councillors directly.  

    
3.6.5 Question from Justin Buxton 

 
Justin Buxton had submitted the following questions: 
  

1. Will all citizens intimidated with accusations and threats of legal 
action receive a personal and detailed apology? 

2. Will the Council also publish a public apology recognising and 
unconditionally acknowledging the wrongful use of power resulting in 
misconduct by Sheffield City Council when purposefully intimidating 
individuals with demonstrably illegitimate legal threats of ‘damages’? 

  
The Lord Mayor responded that the Strategy and Resources Policy 
Committee report would set out how members of the public who were 
harmed during the street trees dispute would be able to come forward. 
Those individuals who are known to the Council would be contacted directly 
to apologise. 
  
As part of the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee report, the Council 
would make a full apology for the things that the Council got wrong during 

Page 486



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 7 of 12 
 

the dispute in line with the recommendations that Sir Mark made in his 
report. 

    
3.6.6 Question from Isabel O’Leary 

 
Isabel O’Leary asked if the Council had already commissioned, or was 
going to commission, from the Council’s auditors, a Public Interest Report to 
identify all the legal, financial and accountability implications of the Lowcock 
Report? This is needed so that the council can begin to systematically 
ensure that accountability is delivered. Will the Council install a plaque in 
the Town Hall to commemorate those who were affected by the Street 
Trees dispute? 
  
The Lord Mayor responded that the report to the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee would set out all the actions to be taken both in the short 
and long term with associated timeframes. 

    
3.7 Motion to Change the Order of Council Business 
    
3.7.1 It was moved by Councillor Sue Alston and seconded by Councillor Martin 

Phipps that the agenda be reordered to move the debate on the motion to 
before the workshop discussions. On being put to the vote, conducted by a 
show of hands, the motion was carried. 

    
3.7.2 At this point in the proceedings, the meeting was adjourned to allow officers 

to arrange the distribution of the proposed motion and amendments. The 
meeting reconvened at approximately 4.30 p.m. 

    
3.8 It was then formally moved by the Lord Mayor, and formally seconded by 

the Deputy Lord Mayor, that this Council:- 
  

1.     accepts:  
  
(a)  all the conclusions of the inquiry;  

  
(b)  all the recommendations of the inquiry; 

  
(c)   that we can all use this as a moment in time to reflect upon the 

broader implications for new ways of working across the Council;  
  

2.     believes the committee system is fundamentally different from the 
cabinet system and requires that committee chairs abide by the rules and 
spirit of new open, transparent and democratic ways of working and 
accepts the decision of the people of Sheffield expressed through the 
governance referendum;  
  

3.     commits to co-creation of solutions in relation to the inquiry including but 
not limited to:  

  
(a)  mechanisms that will provide better accountability for actions of 

Page 487



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 8 of 12 
 

councillors, officers and other stakeholders; 
  

(b)  actions which meet each recommendation in the Inquiry Report;  
  

4.    resolves that Strategy and Resources Policy Committee; Audit and 
Standards Committee, Governance Committee and other committees as 
appropriate will be used as vehicles to drive this process in an open and 
transparent way. 

    
3.9 Whereupon it was moved by Councillor Paul Turpin and seconded by 

Councillor Bernard Little as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted 
be amended by the addition of new paragraphs 5 to 9 as follows:- 
  

5.     notes the Lowcock report was commissioned as part of negotiations that 
took place in forming the Co-Operative Executive between Greens and 
Labour in 2021-2022 and that no-overall-control has been instrumental in 
introducing new ways of collaboration; 
  

6.     believes without the Council being in no-overall-control, the Lowcock 
report would not have been commissioned;  
  

7.     notes the Streets Ahead contract was a missed opportunity to redesign 
Sheffield's transport infrastructure when the decision to replace the 
infrastructure on a like-for-like basis was made and believes that many of 
the failings in policy within the contract can be attributed to a cabinet 
system that isolates an individual cabinet member; 
  

8.     requests Strategy and Resources Policy Committee install a plaque in 
the entrance of the Town Hall (alongside the Kinder Scout mass trespass 
plaque) in recognition of those who fought for our environmental heritage 
and were vindicated, and to serve as a reminder to all elected members 
that this failure of leadership will never happen again; and 
  

9.     requests that a timescale for implementing all actions arising from this 
EGM will be published no later than the end of June 2023. 

    
3.10 It was then moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed and seconded by 

Councillor Penny Baker as an amendment, that the motion now submitted 
be amended by the addition of new paragraphs 5 to 7 as follows:- 
  

5.     believes the committee system is an important part of a necessary broad 
cultural transformation, and in particular:- 

  
(a)  accepts and welcomes the decision of the people of Sheffield 

expressed through the governance referendum; 
  

(b)  expects committee chairs and others to abide by the rules and spirit 
of new, open, transparent and democratic ways of working; 
  

(c)   believes that the Nolan principles apply equally to both the cabinet 

Page 488



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 9 of 12 
 

and committee system, and governance and culture should ensure 
that the Nolan principles are upheld; and 
  

(d)  believes that following the vindication of concerned citizens who were 
stonewalled, accused of lying and subject to legal action, this Council 
must understand how processes, culture and individual actions led to 
these abuses of power, in order to ensure that accountable 
individuals take full responsibility and that the Council’s processes 
and culture prevent such abuses in future.  

  
6.     condemns the harms identified by Sir Mark Lowcock, such as:- 
  

(a)  the distressing experience of being arrested for protestors, many of 
whom experienced feelings of grief, anger and a lack of safety in the 
months and years afterwards;  
  

(b)  the Council’s wider hostile approach to protestors, which was 
dishonest, bullying, and destructive of public trust, caused significant 
distress, and was the “fuel that drove the protests”; 
  

(c)   the damage to Sheffield’s reputation nationally and internationally, 
which was not understood by cabinet members at the time and 
continues to negatively influence perceptions of Sheffield; and 
  

(d)  the harm to Council members of staff and Amey contractors, 
including to their career progression, mental and physical health, 
harassment in and out of work, and personal relationships, and notes 
that this was exacerbated by a lack of coordination and “political 
decisions quietly being blamed on officers” and questions whether 
the Council fulfilled its statutory duty of care to its employees; and 

  
7.     believes that for individuals who were council cabinet members in the 

civic years 2015/16 to 2017/18, resignation from public office would be an 
appropriate indication of acceptance of responsibility for the harms 
caused. 

    
3.11 After contributions from nine other Members, the amendment moved by 

Councillor Paul Turpin was put to the vote and was carried. 
    
3.11.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR – 71 Members; AGAINST – 0 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. Although the Liberal Democrat 
Group Members voted for, they voted against Part 7 of the amendment. 
Although Councillor Sophie Wilson voted for, she abstained on Part 7 of the 
amendment.) 

    
3.12 The amendment moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed was then put to 

the vote and was carried. 
    
3.12.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR – 71 Members; AGAINST – 0 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. Although the Labour Group 

Page 489



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 10 of 12 
 

Members and Councillor Sophie Wilson voted for, they voted against Part 7 
of the amendment.) 

    
3.13 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in 

the following form and carried:- 
    
  RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
    

  1. accepts:  
  

(a)  all the conclusions of the inquiry;  
  

(b)  all the recommendations of the inquiry;  
  

(c)   that we can all use this as a moment in time to reflect upon 
the broader implications for new ways of working across the 
Council; 

      
  2. believes the committee system is fundamentally different from the 

cabinet system and requires that committee chairs abide by the 
rules and spirit of new open, transparent and democratic ways of 
working and accepts the decision of the people of Sheffield 
expressed through the governance referendum; 

      
  3. commits to co-creation of solutions in relation to the inquiry 

including but not limited to:  
  

(a)  mechanisms that will provide better accountability for actions 
of councillors, officers and other stakeholders; and 
  

(b)  actions which meet each recommendation in the Inquiry 
Report; 

      
  4. resolves that Strategy and Resources Policy Committee; Audit and 

Standards Committee, Governance Committee and other 
committees as appropriate will be used as vehicles to drive this 
process in an open and transparent way;  

      
  5. notes the Lowcock report was commissioned as part of 

negotiations that took place in forming the Co-Operative Executive 
between Greens and Labour in 2021-2022 and that no-overall-
control has been instrumental in introducing new ways of 
collaboration; 

      
  6. believes without the Council being in no-overall-control, the 

Lowcock report would not have been commissioned; 
      
  7. notes the Streets Ahead contract was a missed opportunity to 

redesign Sheffield's transport infrastructure when the decision to 
replace the infrastructure on a like-for-like basis was made and 

Page 490



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 11 of 12 
 

believes that many of the failings in policy within the contract can 
be attributed to a cabinet system that isolates an individual cabinet 
member; 

      
  8. requests Strategy and Resources Policy Committee install a plaque 

in the entrance of the Town Hall (alongside the Kinder Scout mass 
trespass plaque) in recognition of those who fought for our 
environmental heritage and were vindicated, and to serve as a 
reminder to all elected members that this failure of leadership will 
never happen again; 

      
  9. requests that a timescale for implementing all actions arising from 

this EGM will be published no later than the end of June 2023; 
      
  10. believes the committee system is an important part of a necessary 

broad cultural transformation, and in particular:- 
  

(a)  accepts and welcomes the decision of the people of 
Sheffield expressed through the governance referendum; 
  

(b)  expects committee chairs and others to abide by the rules 
and spirit of new, open, transparent and democratic ways of 
working; 
  

(c)   believes that the Nolan principles apply equally to both the 
cabinet and committee system, and governance and culture 
should ensure that the Nolan principles are upheld; and 
  

(d)  believes that following the vindication of concerned citizens 
who were stonewalled, accused of lying and subject to legal 
action, this Council must understand how processes, culture 
and individual actions led to these abuses of power, in order 
to ensure that accountable individuals take full responsibility 
and that the Council’s processes and culture prevent such 
abuses in future;  

      
  11. condemns the harms identified by Sir Mark Lowcock, such as:- 

  
(a)  the distressing experience of being arrested for protestors, 

many of whom experienced feelings of grief, anger and a 
lack of safety in the months and years afterwards;  
  

(b)  the Council’s wider hostile approach to protestors, which 
was dishonest, bullying, and destructive of public trust, 
caused significant distress, and was the “fuel that drove the 
protests”; 
  

(c)   the damage to Sheffield’s reputation nationally and 
internationally, which was not understood by cabinet 
members at the time and continues to negatively influence 

Page 491



Council 10.05.2023 

Page 12 of 12 
 

perceptions of Sheffield; and 
  

(d)  the harm to Council members of staff and Amey contractors, 
including to their career progression, mental and physical 
health, harassment in and out of work, and personal 
relationships, and notes that this was exacerbated by a lack 
of coordination and “political decisions quietly being blamed 
on officers” and questions whether the Council fulfilled its 
statutory duty of care to its employees; and 

      
  12. believes that for individuals who were council cabinet members in 

the civic years 2015/16 to 2017/18, resignation from public office 
would be an appropriate indication of acceptance of responsibility 
for the harms caused. 

    
3.13.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 71 Members; AGAINST – 0 

Member; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. Although Councillor Sophie Wilson 
voted for, she voted against Part 12 and abstained from Part 7 of the 
Substantive Motion. Although the Labour Group Members voted for, they 
voted against Part 12 of the Substantive Motion. 

  
 
 

Page 492



Minutes of the Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber, Town 
Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH, on Wednesday 17 May 2023, at 11.30 am, pursuant to 
notice duly given and Summonses duly served. 

 
PRESENT 

 
THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Colin Ross) 

 
1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Richard Shaw 
Sophie Thornton 
 

 Craig Gamble Pugh 
Robert Reiss 
Alan Woodcock 
 

 Nighat Basharat 
Ibby Ullah 
 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne 
 Kurtis Crossland 

Ian Horner 
Ann Woolhouse 
 

 Roger Davison 
Barbara Masters 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
 

 Ben Miskell 
Nabeela Mowlana 
Sophie Wilson 
 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Fran Belbin 
Abdul Khayum 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 David Barker 
Mike Drabble 
Dianne Hurst 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Angela Argenzio 

Maleiki Haybe 
Brian Holmshaw 
 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Peter Price 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Mark Jones 
Safiya Saeed 
 

 Alexi Dimond 
Marieanne Elliot 
Paul Turpin 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Ruth Mersereau 
Martin Phipps 
 

 Ian Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
Mohammed Mahroof 
 

 Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Richard Williams 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 
 Tim Huggan 

Ruth Milsom 
Minesh Parekh 
 

 Christine Gilligan Kubo 
Toby Mallinson 
Henry Nottage 
 

 Lewis Chinchen 
Julie Grocutt 
Janet Ridler 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Terry Fox 
Laura Moynahan 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
 

 Tom Hunt 
Bernard Little 
Laura McClean 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 Glynis Chapman 
Tony Downing 
Gail Smith 
 

 Alan Hooper 
Mike Levery 
Ann Whitaker 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Alison Norris 

Mick Rooney 
Paul Wood 

 

Page 493



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 2 of 36 
 

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 At the recommencement of the meeting following the lunch break, an apology 
for absence from Councillor Maroof Raouf was reported to the meeting. 

    
  
 
2.   
 

TO ELECT A LORD MAYOR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

2.1 Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards, the retiring Lord Mayor, took the Chair and the 
Chief Executive announced that the first business to be transacted was the 
appointment of a Lord Mayor for the ensuing year. 

    
2.2 Whereupon it was:- 
    
2.3 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY:  On the motion of Councillor Martin Smith, 

seconded by Councillor Ben Miskell, that Councillor Colin Ross be appointed 
Lord Mayor of the City of Sheffield for the Municipal Year 2023-24. 

    
2.4 The Council adjourned briefly whilst the Lord Mayor Elect was robed and, 

together with the Lady Mayoress (Mrs. Susan Ross), invested with their Chains 
of Office. 

    
2.5 On resuming, Councillor Colin Ross, the Lord Mayor Elect, then made and 

subscribed to the declaration required by law to qualify him to act as Lord 
Mayor. 

    
2.6 Whereupon the retiring Lord Mayor vacated the Chair, which was then taken by 

Councillor Colin Ross, the Lord Mayor.  The Lord Mayor addressed the Council. 
    
2.7 Later in the meeting, after the appointment of the Deputy Lord Mayor, the Lord 

Mayor’s Chaplain, Mr. Mike Reeder, was invested with his Badge of Office and 
Mr. Reeder then addressed the Council. 

    
  
 
3.   
 

TO MOVE A VOTE OF THANKS TO THE RETIRING LORD MAYOR 
 

3.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion of Councillor David Barker, 
seconded by Councillor Cliff Woodcraft, that the best of thanks of this Council 
under the Common Seal be presented to Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards and 
former Councillor Jackie Satur, for the able and very satisfactory manner in 
which they have performed their various official duties as Lord Mayor and Lady 
Mayoress of this City during the past year. 

    
3.2 The Lord Mayor then presented an ex-Lord Mayor’s Badge to the retiring Lord 

Mayor, Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards, who then addressed the Council. 
    
  

Page 494



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 3 of 36 
 

3.3 The Lord Mayor also presented an ex-Lady Mayoress’ Badge to the retiring 
Lady Mayoress, former Councillor Jackie Satur, who then addressed the 
Council. 

    
  
 
4.   
 

TO ELECT A DEPUTY LORD MAYOR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

4.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY:  On the motion of Councillor Nabeela Mowlana, 
seconded by Councillor Roger Davison, that Councillor Jayne Dunn be 
appointed Deputy Lord Mayor of the City of Sheffield for the Municipal Year 
2023-24. 

    
4.2 Councillor Jayne Dunn (the Deputy Lord Mayor Elect) was invested with her 

Badge of Office and then made and subscribed to the declaration required by 
law to qualify her to act as Deputy Lord Mayor. 

    
    
  At this point in the proceedings, the meeting was adjourned to provide a lunch 

break.  The meeting reconvened at approximately 2.30 p.m. 
    
  
 
5.   
 

INTRODUCTION OF NEWLY ELECTED COUNCILLORS 
 

5.1 The nine new Members of the Council elected in the recent Municipal elections 
(Councillors Ian Horner, Robert Reiss, Mohammed Mahroof, Toby Mallinson, 
Laura Moynahan, Glynis Chapman, Ibby Ullah, Laura McClean and Alison 
Norris) were introduced to the Council. 

    
  
 
6.   
 

MINUTE'S SILENCE FOR FORMER COUNCILLORS MIKE PYE AND JAN 
FIORE 
 

6.1 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin Ross) reported with sadness, the death, on 
4th April 2023, of former Councillor Mike Pye who had served as a Member of 
the Council from 1984 to 2001 and then again from 2002 to 2010, and who was 
Lord Mayor during the Municipal Year 2004-05. 

    
6.2 The Lord Mayor also reported with sadness, the death, on 11th April 2023, of 

former Councillor Jan Fiore who had served as a Member of the Council from 
1980 to 2007. 

    
6.3 Members of the Council observed a minute’s silence in memory of former 

Councillors Pye and Fiore, and, at a later point during the meeting, several 
Members of the Council spoke to pay tribute to them. 

    
  
 

Page 495



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 4 of 36 
 

7.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

7.1 There were no declarations of interest made by Members of the Council. 
    
  
 
8.   
 

SIX-MONTH REVIEW OF GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 

8.1 It was moved by Councillor Julie Grocutt, seconded by Councillor Sue Alston, 
that, as recommended in the report of the Director of Policy and Democratic 

Engagement circulated to all Members of the Council on 15th May and 

published on the Council’s website on 16th May 2023, this Council:- 

    
  (a) agrees the final report and recommendations as attached at Appendix 1, 

comprising recommendations from the Full Council Working Group, as 
set out in section 4 of the Appendix 1 and from the 6 Month Review of 
Governance Arrangements, namely:- 

      
    (1) note that action to improve how we explain and support the 

committee system is underway through the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan, and progress will be monitored by 
Governance Committee; 

        
    (2) the role of the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee and 

senior officers in early identification of cross-cutting issues and 
directing them to the most appropriate Policy Committee needs 
to be re-emphasised – including the role of Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee in maintaining an oversight of 
Policy Committee work programmes. This should be actioned 
through the Governance Review Implementation Plan; 

        
    (3) as part of ongoing work to develop the role of LACs, 

consideration should be given to devolving decisions and 
budgets on minor local transport and highways issues to Local 
Area Committees. The Policy Committee should provide overall 
strategy within which local areas make decisions to meet local 
need; and remain the decision maker for strategic transport 
issues and major schemes; 

        
    (4) the lead committee for Children and Young People should have 

the necessary oversight of the statutory functions of the Director 
of Children's Services to ensure there is robust political 
accountability via the Chair of the Education, Children and 
Families Policy Committee, as designated Lead Member for 
Children’s Services; 

        
    (5) where Policy Committees are developing regulatory policies, 

they shall form a working group with members of the relevant 
regulatory committee to inform the process; 

        

Page 496



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 5 of 36 
 

    (6) the Job Share Chair Protocol should be adhered to by co-chairs, 
and promoted amongst officers and members to help develop a 
greater understanding of the role; 

        
    (7) co-chairing arrangements should not be permitted for sub-

committees; 
        
    (8) where there are co-chairs in place, only the member nominated 

to attend Strategy and Resources Policy Committee should 
attend the Strategy and Resources briefing meetings; the other 
Co-Chair may not attend briefing sessions for Strategy and 
Resources members unless appointed to that Committee in 
another capacity (including as a substitute member for the 
specific meeting); 

        
    (9) substitutes should be permitted at the Strategy and Resources 

Policy Committee. Where the committee member is chair of a 
policy committee the substitute must have sufficient knowledge 
of their committee's work, and political proportionality must be 
maintained;  

        
    (10) briefing practises must enable all members of a policy committee 

to be adequately briefed for formal decision making. This should 
include arrangements for substitute members. All members 
should also have the opportunity to develop their knowledge and 
engage in policy and work programme development. Committee 
members and officers should work together to identify where it is 
appropriate for these briefings to be all member / whole 
committee / chair, deputy, group spokesperson / political group. 
Guidance on this should be produced as part of the Governance 
Review Implementation Plan; 

        
    (11) Policy Committees should continue to meet formally 6 times a 

year, with informal space diarised on the month where no formal 
meetings take place. This should enable committees to carry out 
policy development activities as per their work programmes. This 
should not add to member and officer workloads, but reduce the 
need for additional, ad-hoc briefing sessions and workshops; 

        
    (12) current guidance states that Policy Committees should only 

operate one task and finish group at a time. This should be 
revised to provide a more ‘enabling’ approach to policy 
development. Policy Committees should be able to carry out 
work as required, subject to sufficient officer and member 
capacity; 

        
    (13) an action should be added to the Governance Review 

Implementation Plan, to develop and promote a ‘Policy 
Development Toolkit’ for officers and members that sets out best 
practice for developing policy in a committee system, to be used 

Page 497



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 6 of 36 
 

alongside the existing ‘Engagement Toolkit; 
        
    (14) arrangements should be put in place that enable early 

conversations post-AGM, between Chairs, their Committees and 
Senior Officers, to develop work programmes that address 
corporate, service plan and Member priorities, resulting in a 
balanced programme of decision making, policy development 
and scrutiny and evaluation. Guidance for members and officers 
should be produced as part of the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan; 

        
    (15) Governance Committee should continue into 2023/24 as a forum 

for ongoing review and maintenance of the constitution and 
governance arrangements, as well as Member development. 
Key priorities for the Governance Committee’s work programme 
in 2023/24 should include:-  

•     Citizen and Stakeholder Engagement (see recommendation 
16) 

•     Monitoring progress of the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan 

•     Developing a performance framework and metrics, enabling 
us to measure progress as the committee system develops 
further 

•     Take a holistic approach to reviewing committee remits (see 
section 3.2.3 of the Governance Review Report); and 

        
    (16) Governance Committee sets up task and finish groups to look at: 

  
(A)      Public Questions - ensuring the process for citizens to 
ask public questions is clear, that public questions are triaged in 
a way that directs them to the most appropriate forum and that 
those forums are easy to access. Considering processes for 
responding to public questions, ensuring a consistent approach 
that is fit for purpose in the committee system.  
  
(B)      Citizen Engagement and Involvement – consider how 
we can drive progress in realising our ambitions for community 
involvement and engagement, taking learning from recent 
reviews including Involve, the LGA Peer Challenge, the Race 
Equality Commission Report. 
  
These task and finish groups will actively seek feedback from, 
and test proposals with, citizens and stakeholders; and report 
into the Governance Committee; 

      
  (b) approves the findings and recommendations of the Governance Review; 
      
  (c) notes that action is underway to implement recommendations 1, 2, 6, 

11, 13 and 16, and elements of 10 and 14, through the Governance 
Review Implementation Plan; 

Page 498



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 7 of 36 
 

      
  (d) agrees the necessary changes to the Council’s Constitution to 

implement recommendations 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 14 and 15 and 
proposed changes to the operation of Full Council Meetings; and 

      
  (e) notes that the frequency of the ordinary meetings of the Council in the 

Municipal Year 2023-24, will be determined at item 15 on the agenda for 
this annual meeting of the Council, specifically whether to (i) retain the 
current approach of 6 ordinary meetings, plus the Annual and Budget 
Meetings or (ii) reduce the number to 4 ordinary meetings, plus the 
Annual and Budget Meetings. 

    
8.2 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Ian Auckland, seconded by Councillor 

Richard Williams, as an amendment, that the motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

    
  1.       the addition of the following words at the beginning of paragraph (a):- 
    
  “subject to recommendation (4) being removed and referred back to the 

Governance Committee for further consideration of where specific functions sit 
between policy committees,” 

    
  2.       the addition of a new paragraph (f) as follows:- 
    
  (f)       consider that the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee be abolished, and 

decisions of the Council as charitable trustee, including but not limited to 
disposals of and other dealings with charitable land, be transferred to the 
relevant Area Committees that each charitable trust falls within, and request 
officers prepare the necessary constitutional changes for approval at a future 
Council meeting. 

    
8.3 It was then moved by Councillor Angela Argenzio, seconded by Councillor 

Christine Gilligan Kubo, as an amendment, that the motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

    
  1.       the addition of the following words at the beginning of paragraph (a):- 
    
  “with the exception of recommendation (3),” 
    
  2.       the addition of a new paragraph (f) as follows:- 
    
  (f)       (i) recognising that the Group Spokesperson role requires the same time 

and work commitment as that of a Deputy Chair, believes that group 
spokespeople should receive the equivalent SRA; and  

            (ii) requests that Governance Committee look at the matter and make a 
recommendation on a group spokespeople SRA for consideration at the 
next ordinary meeting of Full Council, such recommendation to include 
an appropriate start date for any SRA recommended. 

    
8.4 After contributions from eight other Members, and following a right of reply from 

Page 499



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 8 of 36 
 

Councillor Julie Grocutt, the amendment moved by Councillor Ian Auckland was 
put to the vote and was carried, but in part. Part 1 of the amendment was lost 
and part 2 of the amendment was carried. 

    
8.4.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 63 Members; AGAINST - 14 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 1 Member. Although Labour Group Members 
voted for, they voted against part 1 of the amendment.) 

    
8.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Angela Argenzio was then put to the vote 

and was lost. 
    
8.5.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 13 Members; AGAINST - 66 

Members; ABSTENTIONS – 1 Member.) 
    
8.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    

    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (a) agrees the final report and recommendations as attached at Appendix 1, 

comprising recommendations from the Full Council Working Group, as 
set out in section 4 of the Appendix 1 and from the 6 Month Review of 
Governance Arrangements, namely:- 

      
    (1) note that action to improve how we explain and support the 

committee system is underway through the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan, and progress will be monitored by 
Governance Committee; 

        
    (2) the role of the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee and 

senior officers in early identification of cross-cutting issues and 
directing them to the most appropriate Policy Committee needs 
to be re-emphasised – including the role of Strategy and 
Resources Policy Committee in maintaining an oversight of 
Policy Committee work programmes. This should be actioned 
through the Governance Review Implementation Plan. 

        
    (3) as part of ongoing work to develop the role of LACs, 

consideration should be given to devolving decisions and 
budgets on minor local transport and highways issues to Local 
Area Committees. The Policy Committee should provide overall 
strategy within which local areas make decisions to meet local 
need; and remain the decision maker for strategic transport 
issues and major schemes; 

        
    (4) the lead committee for Children and Young People should have 

the necessary oversight of the statutory functions of the Director 
of Children's Services to ensure there is robust political 
accountability via the Chair of the Education, Children and 

Page 500



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 9 of 36 
 

Families Policy Committee, as designated Lead Member for 
Children’s Services; 

        
    (5) where Policy Committees are developing regulatory policies, 

they shall form a working group with members of the relevant 
regulatory committee to inform the process; 

        
    (6) the Job Share Chair Protocol should be adhered to by co-chairs, 

and promoted amongst officers and members to help develop a 
greater understanding of the role; 

        
    (7) co-chairing arrangements should not be permitted for sub-

committees; 
        
    (8) where there are co-chairs in place, only the member nominated 

to attend Strategy and Resources Policy Committee should 
attend the Strategy and Resources briefing meetings. The other 
Co-Chair may not attend briefing sessions for Strategy and 
Resources members unless appointed to that Committee in 
another capacity (including as a substitute member for the 
specific meeting); 

        
    (9) substitutes should be permitted at the Strategy and Resources 

Policy Committee. Where the committee member is Chair of a 
Policy Committee the substitute must have sufficient knowledge 
of their committee's work, and political proportionality must be 
maintained;  

        
    (10) briefing practises must enable all members of a policy 

committee to be adequately briefed for formal decision making. 
This should include arrangements for substitute members. All 
Members should also have the opportunity to develop their 
knowledge and engage in policy and work programme 
development. Committee Members and officers should work 
together to identify where it is appropriate for these briefings to 
be all member / whole committee / chair, deputy, group 
spokesperson / political group. Guidance on this should be 
produced as part of the Governance Review Implementation 
Plan; 

        
    (11) Policy Committees should continue to meet formally 6 times a 

year, with informal space diarised on the month where no formal 
meetings take place. This should enable Committees to carry 
out policy development activities as per their work programmes. 
This should not add to member and officer workloads, but 
reduce the need for additional, ad hoc briefing sessions and 
workshops; 

        
    (12) current guidance states that Policy Committees should only 

operate one task and finish group at a time. This should be 

Page 501



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 10 of 36 
 

revised to provide a more ‘enabling’ approach to policy 
development. Policy Committees should be able to carry out 
work as required, subject to sufficient officer and member 
capacity; 

        
    (13) an action should be added to the Governance Review 

Implementation Plan, to develop and promote a ‘Policy 
Development Toolkit’ for officers and members that sets out best 
practice for developing policy in a committee system, to be used 
alongside the existing ‘Engagement Toolkit; 

        
    (14) arrangements should be put in place that enable early 

conversations post-AGM, between Chairs, their Committees and 
Senior Officers, to develop work programmes that address 
corporate, service plan and Member priorities, resulting in a 
balanced programme of decision making, policy development 
and scrutiny and evaluation. Guidance for members and officers 
should be produced as part of the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan; 

        
    (15) Governance Committee should continue into 2023/24 as a forum 

for ongoing review and maintenance of the constitution and 
governance arrangements, as well as Member development. 
Key priorities for the Governance Committee’s work programme 
in 2023/24 should include:-  

•     Citizen and Stakeholder Engagement (see recommendation 
16) 

•     Monitoring progress of the Governance Review 
Implementation Plan 

•     Developing a performance framework and metrics, enabling 
us to measure progress as the committee system develops 
further 

•     Take a holistic approach to reviewing committee remits (see 
section 3.2.3 of the Governance Review Report); and 

        
    (16) Governance Committee sets up task and finish groups to look 

at:- 
  
(A)      Public Questions - ensuring the process for citizens to 
ask public questions is clear, that public questions are triaged in 
a way that directs them to the most appropriate forum and that 
those forums are easy to access. Considering processes for 
responding to public questions, ensuring a consistent approach 
that is fit for purpose in the committee system.  
  
(B)      Citizen Engagement and Involvement – consider how 
we can drive progress in realising our ambitions for community 
involvement and engagement, taking learning from recent 
reviews including Involve, the LGA Peer Challenge, the Race 
Equality Commission Report. 

Page 502



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 11 of 36 
 

  
These task and finish groups will actively seek feedback from, 
and test proposals with, citizens and stakeholders; and report 
into the Governance Committee; 

      
  (b) approves the findings and recommendations of the Governance Review; 
      
  (c) notes that action is underway to implement recommendations 1, 2, 6, 

11, 13 and 16, and elements of 10 and 14, through the Governance 
Review Implementation Plan; 

      
  (d) agrees the necessary changes to the Council’s Constitution to 

implement recommendations 3, 4, 5, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 14 and 15 and 
proposed changes to the operation of Full Council Meetings; 

      
  (e) notes that the frequency of the ordinary meetings of the Council in the 

Municipal Year 2023-24, will be determined at item 15 on the agenda for 
this annual meeting of the Council, specifically whether to (i) retain the 
current approach of 6 ordinary meetings, plus the Annual and Budget 
Meetings or (ii) reduce the number to 4 ordinary meetings, plus the 
Annual and Budget Meetings; and 

      
  (f) consider that the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee be abolished, and 

decisions of the Council as charitable trustee, including but not limited to 
disposals of and other dealings with charitable land, be transferred to 
the relevant Area Committees that each charitable trust falls within, and 
request officers prepare the necessary constitutional changes for 
approval at a future Council meeting. 

      

    
8.6.1 (NOTE: Although the Green Group Members voted for the Substantive Motion, 

they voted against recommendation (3) in paragraph (a).) 
    
  
 
9.   
 

CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION 
 

9.1 In view of the late circulation of the report to be considered under this item of 
business; the size and complexity of the report; the corrections needed to be 
made to it as now reported by the Interim General Council; and the query now 
raised by Councillor Sue Alston pertaining to the remits of the Policy 
Committees, it was:- 

    
9.2 RESOLVED: That approval of the recommendations in the report be deferred 

to the next meeting of the Council. 
  
  
    
  
 

Page 503



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 12 of 36 
 

10.   
 

TO APPOINT A LEADER OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 
2023-24 
 

10.1 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin Ross) sought nominations for the position of 
Leader of the Council for the Municipal Year 2023-24. 

    
10.2 Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards nominated Councillor Tom Hunt to serve as 

Leader of the Council.  That nomination was seconded by Councillor Paul 
Wood.  Councillor Hunt was deemed to be Candidate 1. 

    
10.3 Councillor Joe Otten nominated Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed to serve as 

Leader of the Council.  That nomination was seconded by Councillor Sue 
Alston.  Councillor Mohammed was deemed to be Candidate 2. 

    
10.4 Councillor Angela Argenzio nominated Councillor Douglas Johnson to serve as 

Leader of the Council.  That nomination was seconded by Councillor Martin 
Phipps.  Councillor Johnson was deemed to be Candidate 3. 

    
10.5 The nomination of Candidate 1 (Councillor Tom Hunt) was put to the vote and 

was lost.  The result of the vote was FOR - 38 Members; AGAINST - 42 
Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. 

    
10.6 The nomination of Candidate 2 (Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed) was then put 

to the vote and was also lost.  The result of the vote was FOR - 28 Members; 
AGAINST - 52 Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. 

    
10.7 The nomination of Candidate 3 (Councillor Douglas Johnson) was then put to 

the vote and was also lost.  The result of the vote was FOR - 13 Members; 
AGAINST - 67 Members; ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members. 

    
10.8 The Lord Mayor stated that, as none of the candidates received more votes 

‘for’ than they did votes ‘against’, a Leader of the Council had not been 
appointed during that stage of voting.  Accordingly, he would now move to the 
next stage of the voting process, whereby the candidate who received the 
lowest number of votes ‘for’ would be eliminated and one final vote would be 
held where Members of the Council would choose between the remaining two 
candidates. 

    
10.9 The Lord Mayor confirmed that Candidate 3 (Councillor Douglas Johnson) had 

received the lowest number of votes ‘for’ and was therefore eliminated.  
Members of the Council would now vote to choose between Candidate 1 
(Councillor Tom Hunt) and Candidate 2 (Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed) and 
the candidate that receives the higher number of votes will be appointed to the 
position of Leader of the Council.  

    
10.10 On being put to the vote, the result was that Candidate 1 received 38 votes; 

Candidate 2 received 28 votes; and 14 Members abstained from voting. 
    
10.11 The Lord Mayor stated that Candidate 1 (Councillor Tom Hunt) had received 

the most votes and therefore, it was:- 

Page 504



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 13 of 36 
 

    
  RESOLVED: That Councillor Tom Hunt be appointed Leader of the Council for 

the Municipal Year 2023-24, serving until the date of the next Annual Meeting 
of the Council in 2024. 

    
  
 
11.   
 

TO APPOINT A DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

11.1 The Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin Ross) sought nominations for the position of 
Deputy Leader of the Council for the Municipal Year 2023-24. 

    
11.2 Councillor Ruth Milsom nominated Councillor Fran Belbin to serve as Deputy 

Leader of the Council.  That nomination was seconded by Councillor Nabeela 
Mowlana. 

    
11.3 Councillor Martin Phipps proposed that co-Deputy Leaders of the Council be 

appointed, and he nominated Councillors Douglas Johnson and Shaffaq 
Mohammed to serve as co-Deputy Leaders. 

    
11.4 Following a short adjournment to allow the Lord Mayor to receive legal advice 

from the Monitoring Officer, the Lord Mayor reported that the Council’s 
Constitution was clear that a Deputy Leader was required to be appointed and 
there was no provision for co- or joint appointments to the position of Deputy 
Leader. 

    
11.5 No further nominations for the position of Deputy Leader were received. 
    
11.6 Accordingly, the Lord Mayor put the nomination of Councillor Fran Belbin to 

the vote, whereupon it was:- 
    
  RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That Councillor Fran Belbin be appointed 

Deputy Leader of the Council for the Municipal Year 2023-24, serving until the 
date of the next Annual Meeting of the Council in 2024. 

    
  
 
12.   
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

12.1 The newly appointed Leader of the Council (Councillor Tom Hunt) addressed 
the Council and stated that he was honoured to be elected to lead the 
Council.  This was a tough time for lots of people in the city, and it was a duty 
for all 84 City Councillors to do all they could to make life better for people.  He 
was convinced that there was a shared commitment to doing this. 

    
 12.2 Councillor Hunt stated that whilst the votes cast at the Municipal Election on 

4th May 2023, gave no single party a majority, no-one voted for nothing to get 

done for the next year.  Since the Election, Members from all parties have held 
open conversations over the last few days about the way forward and, whilst 

Page 505



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 14 of 36 
 

Members did not always agree, and won’t always agree, it was clear that there 
were many things that Members have in common.  These included a shared 
commitment to helping people with the cost of living crisis; fixing the public 
transport and making it easier to get around our city; securing new investment 
in the City; ensuring that every pound of public money is always spent wisely; 
investing in the City’s neighbourhoods and devolving power to communities; 
doing more to tackle the climate emergency; and ensuring that politics in 
Sheffield is conducted in a competent, open and transparent way. 

    
 12.3 Councillor Hunt stressed that the last point above was critical, and stated that 

now, as Council Leader, together with his new colleagues, he would do all he 
could to rebuild trust, to work with fellow Members in the cross-party 
committees, to bring about the changes that people in Sheffield need, and to 
make sure Sheffield Council was 100% focused on meeting people’s priorities. 

    
  
 
13.   
 

DATES OF COUNCIL AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS IN THE MUNICIPAL 
YEAR 2023-24 
 

13.1 RESOLVED: On the motion of Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards and seconded 
by Councillor Joe Otten, that, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9.1, 
the order of business as published on the Council Summons be altered by 
taking items 15 (Dates of Council And Committee Meetings In The Municipal 
Year 2023-24), then 16 (Notices Of Motion At Council Meetings In The 
Municipal Year 2023-24) and then 17 (Vote Of Thanks To Former Councillors) 
as the next three items of business. 

    
13.2 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 

Joe Otten, seconded by Councillor Martin Phipps, that:- 
    
  (a)      further to item 7 on the agenda for this meeting (Six-Month Review of 

Governance Arrangements) and the recommendation of the 
Governance Committee that full Council should determine whether (in 
addition to the Annual and Budget meetings) to retain the current 
approach of 6 ordinary Council meetings in 2023-24 or reduce the 
number to 4 ordinary meetings, it be agreed that there will be six 
ordinary meetings of Full Council in the Municipal Year 2023-24 and 
these be held at 2.00 p.m. on the following Wednesdays:- 

    
            5th July 2023; 6th September 2023; 4th October 2023; 1st November 

2023; 6th December 2023; and 7th February 2024; 
    
  (b)      the special meeting of the Council for the purposes of approving a 

Revenue Budget and Capital Programme and setting the Council Tax 
for the Financial Year 2024-25 be held on Wednesday, 6th March 2024 
at 2.00 p.m.; 

    
  (c)      the annual meeting of the Council in 2024 be held on Wednesday, 15th 

May 2024 at 11.30 a.m.;  

Page 506



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 15 of 36 
 

    
  (d)      ordinary meetings of the Council be held, provisionally, on either or both 

Wednesdays 5th June and 3rd July 2024 (to be confirmed at the annual 
meeting in 2024); and 

    
  (e)      approval be given to the schedule of Council and Committee meetings 

for the Municipal Year 2023-24, as set out in the schedule circulated at 
the meeting. 

    
13.3 (NOTE: Following a proposal made at the meeting by Councillor Fran Belbin, 

that one of the six ordinary meetings of the Council be given over to the Youth 
Council to bring their own motions for debate by full Council, the Lord Mayor 
(Councillor Colin Ross) suggested that the Council’s Governance Committee 
be asked to consider how best to accommodate that proposal.)  

    
  
 
14.   
 

NOTICES OF MOTION AT COUNCIL MEETINGS IN THE MUNICIPAL 
YEAR 2023-24 
 

14.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Sioned-Mair Richards, and formally seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that:- 

    
  Further to Council Procedure Rule 10.2, the order in which Notices of Motion 

shall be listed on the Summons for the six ordinary meetings of the Council in 
the Municipal Year 2023-24 shall be as follows:- 

    
  July 2023 – Labour / LibDem / Green / Labour 
    
  September – LibDem / Labour / LibDem / Other (Cons)  
    
  October – Labour / Green / LibDem / Labour 
    
  November – Green / Labour / LibDem / Labour 
    
  December – LibDem / Labour / LibDem / Other (Ind) 
    
  February 2024 – Labour / LibDem / Green / Labour 
    
  
 
15.   
 

VOTE OF THANKS TO FORMER COUNCILLORS 
 

15.1 RESOLVED: On the Motion of the Lord Mayor (Councillor Colin Ross), 
seconded by the Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Jayne Dunn), that this 
Council places on record its thanks and appreciation to former Councillors Sue 
Auckland, Vic Bowden, Ben Curran, Peter Garbutt, George Lindars-
Hammond, Bob McCann, Kevin Oxley and Jackie Satur, who had either 
retired or had not been re-elected at the Municipal elections held in May 2023, 
for their hard work and service to the City of Sheffield. 

Page 507



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 16 of 36 
 

    
15.2 It was noted that the Lord Mayor would write to each of those former 

Councillors to thank them for their service. 
    
  
 
16.   
 

ESTABLISHMENT OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES FOR THE MUNICIPAL 
YEAR 2023-24 AND APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS TO SERVE ON THOSE 
COMMITTEES 
 

16.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Sioned-Mair Richards, and seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that:- 

    
  (a)      the information contained in the report be noted; 
    
  (b)      the terms of reference of the Council’s Committees for 2023-24, be as 

currently set out in the Council’s Constitution, but with the incorporation 
of the changes outlined in paragraphs 3.1.6 and 3.2.1 of the report 
(relating to the Policy Committees and to the Governance Committee, 
respectively), and the Monitoring Officer be authorised to amend the 
Constitution accordingly; 

    
  (c)      the sizes of individual committees to be subject to proportional balance 

and the proportional allocation of seats on those committees, as set out 
in the schedule circulated at the meeting (and set out in these minutes), 
be approved; 

    
  (d)      approval be given to the appointment of Members to Council 

Committees in the Municipal Year 2023-24 to reflect the arrangements 
now agreed and the wishes of the political groups, in accordance with 
the schedule circulated at the meeting (and including substitutes where 
appropriate) (and set out in these minutes), and, for the purposes of 
Council Procedure Rule 25.6, the consent of the Council be given in 
any case where a Member chooses not to be appointed to serve on any 
Policy or Regulatory Committee; 

    
  (e)      as respects the appointment of Members to serve on Council 

Committees, where vacancies exist or in cases of urgency to ensure 
quoracy or representation, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with 
the relevant political group whip, be authorised to appoint Members to 
serve on such Committees, as necessary, on the understanding that 
details of such appointments will be reported to the next or subsequent 
meetings of the Council; 

    
  (f)       approval be given to continue to disapply proportionality to the Senior 

Officer Employment Sub-Committees and the Appeals and Collective 
Disputes Sub-Committees for the reasons set out in paragraph 3.2.3 of 
the report; and 

    
  (g)      it be noted that in the event of any changes to the political composition 

Page 508



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 17 of 36 
 

of the Council occurring during the Municipal Year, political 
proportionality will be reviewed by the Council as soon as practicable 
thereafter. 

    
  
  

 

Schedule to item 12

Proposed allocation of committee seats, in accordance with proportionality rules

Total entitlement to seats on 

politically proportionate committees 180 84 62 30 2 2

Overall allocation of seats on 

politically proportionate committees 180 83.571 84 62.143 62 30 30 2.1429 2 2.1429 2

Cttee name Cttee size

exact 

entitlement 

on 

committee

proposed 

allocation 

on 

committee

exact 

entitlement 

on 

committee

proposed 

allocation 

on 

committee

exact 

entitlement 

on 

committee

proposed 

allocation 

on 

committee

exact 

entitlement 

on 

committee

proposed 

allocation 

on 

committee

exact 

entitlement 

on 

committee

proposed 

allocation 

on 

committee

Strategy & Resources 

Policy Committee
11 5.11 5 3.80 4 1.83 2 0.13 0 0.13 0

Adult Health & Social 

Care Policy Committee
9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Communities Parks & 

Leisure Policy 

Committee

9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Education, Children & 

Families Policy 

Committee

9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Economic Development 

& Skills Policy 

Committee

9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Housing Policy 

Committee
9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Transport, Regeneration 

& Climate Policy 

Committee

9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Waste & Streetscene 

Policy Committee
9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Finance Committee 9 4.18 4 3.11 3 1.50 2 0.11 0 0.11 0

Health Scrutiny Sub-

Committee
9 4.18 5 3.11 3 1.50 1 0.11 0 0.11 0

Charitable Trusts Sub-

Committee
5 2.32 2 1.73 2 0.83 1 0.06 0 0.06 0

Planning & Highways 

Committee
13 6.04 6 4.49 5 2.17 1 0.15 0 0.15 1

Licensing Committee 15 6.96 7 5.18 5 2.50 2 0.18 1 0.18 0

Audit & Standards Cttee 7 3.25 3 2.42 3 1.17 1 0.08 0 0.08 0

Governance Committee 11 5.11 6 3.80 4 1.83 1 0.13 0 0.13 0

Admissions Cttee 7 3.25 4 2.42 2 1.17 1 0.08 0 0.08 0

Senior Officer 

Employment Cttee
15 6.96 7 5.18 5 2.50 2 0.18 0 0.18 1

Appeals and Collective 

Disputes Cttee
15 6.96 7 5.18 5 2.50 2 0.18 1 0.18 0

Arrows show which seats per committee have been reallocated between Groups in order to meet the primary requirement 

for overall proportionality

1

Lewis Chinchen 

(Con)

Sophie Wilson 

(Ind)

1

Group name --> Labour
Liberal 

Democrat
Green

Seats on Council --> 39 29 14

 
 
  

Page 509



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 18 of 36 
 

  
MEMBERSHIP OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES 2023-24 

  

POLICY COMMITTEES 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

Strategy & 
Resources Policy 
Committee  
11 seats in 2023/24 
Split 5:4:2:0 
(Chairs of Policy 
Committees plus 
sufficient other 
Members to 
achieve 
proportionality) 

  
Vacancy (Leader) 

Vacancy (Deputy Leader) 
Vacancies x 9 

  
Finance Policy 
Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:3:2:0 
  

Cllr Mike 
Chaplin 
Cllr Mary Lea 
Cllr Zahira Naz 
Cllr Ibby Ullah 

Cllr Glynis 
Chapman 
Cllr Mike 
Levery 
Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 

Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 
Cllr Toby 
Mallinson 

  

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Joe Otten 
Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 
Cllr Martin 
Smith 

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 
Cllr Martin 
Phipps 

  

  
Adult Health and 
Social Care Policy 
Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:3:2:0 

Cllr Ruth Milsom 
Cllr Laura 
McClean 
Cllr Mick 
Rooney 
Cllr Laura 
Moynahan 

Cllr Steve Ayris 
Cllr Gail Smith 
Cllr Sophie 
Thornton 

Cllr Angela 
Argenzio 
Cllr Martin 
Phipps 

  

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Glynis 
Chapman 
Cllr Alan 
Woodcock 
Cllr Ann 
Woolhouse 

Cllr Maleiki 
Haybe 
Cllr Bernard 
Little 
Vacancy 

  

  
Communities, 
Parks and Leisure 
Policy Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:3:2:0 

Cllr Nighat 
Basharat 
Cllr Denise Fox 
Cllr Janet Ridler 
Cllr Tony 
Downing 

Cllr Alan 
Hooper 
Cllr Robert 
Reiss 
Cllr Richard 
Williams 

Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 
Cllr Bernard 
Little 

  

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Mohammed 

Cllr Brian 
Holmshaw 

  

Page 510



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 19 of 36 
 

Mahroof 
Cllr Barbara 
Masters 

Cllr Christine 
Gilligan Kubo 
Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau 

  
Economic 
Development and 
Skills Policy 
Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:3:2:0 

Cllr Abdul 
Khayum 
Cllr Minesh 
Parekh 
Cllr Peter Price 
Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 

Cllr Kurtis 
Crossland 
Cllr Barbara 
Masters 
Cllr Martin 
Smith 

Cllr Henry 
Nottage 
Cllr Brian 
Holmshaw 

  

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Simon 
Clement-Jones 
Cllr Mohammed 
Mahroof 
Cllr Robert 
Reiss 

Cllr Bernard 
Little 
Cllr Martin 
Phipps 
Vacancy 

  

  
Education, 
Children and 
Families Policy 
Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:3:2:0 
  
(Chair is also the 
Statutory Lead 
Member for 
Children’s Services) 

Cllr Nighat 
Basharat 
Cllr Dawn Dale 
Cllr Mike 
Drabble 
Cllr Abtisam 
Mohamed 

Cllr Ian Horner 
Cllr Mohammed 
Mahroof 
Cllr Ann 
Whitaker 

Cllr Maroof 
Raouf 
Cllr Maleiki 
Haybe 

  

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Gail Smith 
Cllr Ann 
Woolhouse 

Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 
Cllr Paul Turpin 
Vacancy 

  

  
Housing Policy 
Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:3:2:0 

Cllr Paul Wood 
Cllr Bryan 
Lodge 
Cllr Nabeela 
Mowlana 
Cllr Alison 
Norris 

Cllr Penny 
Baker 
Cllr Barbara 
Masters 
Cllr Alan 
Woodcock 

Cllr Paul Turpin 
Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 

  

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Kurtis 
Crossland 
Cllr Robert 
Reiss 
Cllr Sophie 
Thornton 

Cllr Alexi 
Dimond 
Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 
Cllr Christine 
Gilligan Kubo 

  

  
Transport, 
Regeneration and 
Climate Policy 
Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 

Cllr David 
Barker 
Cllr Craig 
Gamble Pugh 
Cllr Ben Miskell 

Cllr Ian 
Auckland 
Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 
Cllr Richard 

Cllr Christine 
Gilligan Kubo 
Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau 

  

Page 511



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 20 of 36 
 

Split 4:3:2:0 Cllr Safiya 
Saeed 

Shaw 

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Kurtis 
Crossland 
Cllr Barbara 
Masters 
Cllr Cliff 
Woodcraft 

Cllr Alexi 
Dimond 
Cllr Maroof 
Raouf 
Cllr Paul Turpin 

  

  
Waste and Street 
Scene Policy 
Committee 
9 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:3:2:0 

Cllr Dianne 
Hurst 
Cllr Talib 
Hussain 
Cllr Mazher 
Iqbal 
Cllr Mark Jones 

Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Tim 
Huggan 
Cllr Joe Otten 

Cllr Alexi 
Dimond 
Cllr Christine 
Gilligan Kubo 

  

Named 
Substitutes 

3 Vacancies Cllr Ian Horner 
Cllr Barbara 
Masters 
Cllr Cliff 
Woodcraft 

Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau 
Cllr Henry 
Nottage 
Cllr Maroof 
Raouf 

  

  
  

STATUTORY/REGULATORY COMMITTEES 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

Planning and 
Highways 
Committee 
13 seats in 2023/24 
Split 6:5:1:1 
  

Cllr Mike Chaplin 
Cllr Mike Drabble 
Cllr Nighat 
Basharat 
Cllr Tony 
Downing 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Peter Price 

Cllr Glynis 
Chapman 
Cllr Roger 
Davison 
Cllr Barbara 
Masters 
Cllr Alan 
Woodcock 
Cllr Cliff 
Woodcraft 

Cllr Bernard 
Little 

Cllr Sophie 
Wilson 

Planning and 
Highways 
Committee 
Substitute 
Members 

Cllr Tony Damms 
Cllr Jayne Dunn 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
2 Vacancies 

Cllr Ian 
Auckland  
Cllr Tim 
Huggan 
Cllr Joe Otten 
Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 
Cllr Richard 
Williams 

Cllr Christine 
Gilligan Kubo 
Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 
Cllr Henry 
Nottage 
2 Vacancies 

  

  
Licensing 
Committee 
15 seats in 2023/24 
Split 7:5:2:1 

Cllr David Barker 
Cllr Mike Drabble 
Cllr Denise Fox 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Talib Hussain 
Cllr Abdul 

Cllr Roger 
Davison 
Cllr Ian Horner 
Cllr Vickie 
Priestley 
Cllr Cliff 

Cllr Henry 
Nottage 
Cllr Maroof 
Raouf 

Cllr Lewis 
Chinchen 

Page 512



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 21 of 36 
 

Khayum 
Cllr Paul Wood 

Woodcraft 
Cllr Ann 
Woolhouse 

  
Governance 
Committee 
11 seats in 2023/24 
Split 6:4:1:0 

Cllr Nighat 
Basharat 
Cllr Fran Belbin 
Cllr Craig Gamble 
Pugh 
Cllr Ruth Milsom 
Cllr Alison Norris 
Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 

Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Simon 
Clement-Jones 
Cllr Mike 
Levery 
Cllr Joe Otten 

Cllr Paul Turpin   

Governance 
Committee 
Substitute 
Members 

2 Vacancies Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 
Cllr Richard 
Williams 

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 
Vacancy 

  

  
Audit and 
Standards 
Committee 
7 seats in 2023/24 
Split 3:3:1:0 
  

Cllr Fran Belbin 
Cllr Laura 
McClean 
Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 

Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Simon 
Clement-Jones 
Cllr Mohammed 
Mahroof 

Cllr Henry 
Nottage 

  

Independent Co-Optees: 
Alison Howard (to May 2024) and (2 vacancies) 
When Standards matters are to be considered, a representative of the 
Parish and Town Councils would also be able to attend. 

Standards 
Consideration 
Sub-Committee 

3 Members of the Audit and Standards Committee and 1 Non-voting Co-
Opted Member 
(Where a Parish or Town Council matter is being considered, a 
representative of the Parish or Town Councils should also be present) 

Standards 
Hearing Sub-
Committee 

3 Members of the Audit and Standards Committee and 1 Non-voting Co-
Opted Member (Where a Parish or Town Council matter is being 
considered, a representative of the Parish or Town Councils should also 
be present) 

  
Admissions 
Committee 
7 seats in 2023/24 
Split 4:2:1:0 
(Substitute 
Members to be 
appointed by the 
Chief Executive in 
consultation with 
the Chair or 
Spokesperson of 
the relevant Policy 
Committee, as 
appropriate) 

Cllr Karen 
McGowan 
Cllr Safiya Saeed 
Cllr Garry 
Weatherall 
Vacancy 

Cllr Ann 
Whitaker 
Cllr Ann 
Woolhouse 

Cllr Maleiki 
Haybe 

  

  
Senior Officer 
Employment 
Committee 

Cllr Fran Belbin 
Cllr Dawn Dale 
Cllr Tom Hunt 

Cllr Penny 
Baker 
Cllr Mike 

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 
Vacancy 

Cllr Sophie 
Wilson 

Page 513



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 22 of 36 
 

15 seats in 2023/24 
Split 7:5:2:1 
  

Cllr Ben Miskell 
Cllr Abtisam 
Mohamed 
Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 
Cllr Zahira Naz 

Levery 
Cllr Mohammed 
Mahroof 
Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 
Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 

  
Appeals and 
Collective 
Disputes 
Committee 
15 seats in 2023/24 
Split 7:5:2:1 

Cllr David Barker 
Cllr Denise Fox 
Cllr Mazher Iqbal 
Cllr Karen 
McGowan 
Cllr Zahira Naz 
Cllr Peter Price 
Cllr Garry 
Weatherall 

Cllr Alan 
Hooper 
Cllr Ian Horner 
Cllr Tim 
Huggan 
Cllr Gail Smith 
Cllr Ann 
Woolhouse 

Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 
Cllr Maroof 
Raouf 

Cllr Lewis 
Chinchen 

          

Sheffield Health 
and Wellbeing 
Board 
3 seats in 2023/24 
(Chairs of Adult 
Health and Social 
Care Policy 
Committee, 
Education, Children 
and Families Policy 
Committee and 
Housing Policy 
Committee) 

  
3 Vacancies 

  
Independent 
Remuneration 
Panel 

      Mark Power 
(Chair) (to 
6/2/25) 
Stephen 
Bennett (to 
1/11/25) 
Michael 
Heselton (to 
1/11/25) 
Janet Hickey 
(to 1/11/25) 
David White 
(to 1/11/25) 

  
  

LOCAL AREA COMMITTEES 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

Central Local Area 
Committee 

Cllr Tom Hunt 
Cllr Laura 

  Cllr Angela 
Argenzio 

  

Page 514



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 23 of 36 
 

McClean Cllr Christine 
Gilligan Kubo 
Cllr Maleiki 
Haybe 
Cllr Brian 
Holmshaw 
Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 
Cllr Bernard 
Little 
Cllr Toby 
Mallinson 
Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau 
Cllr Henry 
Nottage 
Cllr Martin 
Phipps 

East Local Area 
Committee 

Cllr David Barker 
Cllr Mike Drabble 
Cllr Terry Fox 
Cllr Dianne Hurst 
Cllr Mazher Iqbal 
Cllr Mary Lea 
Cllr Ben Miskell 
Cllr Nabeela 
Mowlana 
Cllr Laura 
Moynahan 
Cllr Zahira Naz 
Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 

    Cllr Sophie 
Wilson 

North Local Area 
Committee 

Cllr Craig Gamble 
Pugh 
Cllr Julie Grocutt 
Cllr Janet Ridler 

Cllr Penny Baker 
Cllr Robert 
Reiss 
Cllr Alan Hooper  
Cllr Mike Levery 
Cllr Vickie 
Priestley  
Cllr Ann 
Whitaker 
Cllr Richard 
Williams 
Cllr Alan 
Woodcock 

  Cllr Lewis 
Chinchen 

North East Local 
Area Committee 

Cllr Fran Belbin  
Cllr Mike Chaplin 
Cllr Dawn Dale 
Cllr Tony Damms 
Cllr Jayne Dunn 
Cllr Talib Hussain  
Cllr Mark Jones 
Cllr Abdul Khayum 
Cllr Abtisam 

      

Page 515



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 24 of 36 
 

Mohamed 
Cllr Peter Price 
Cllr Safiya Saeed 
Cllr Garry 
Weatherall 

South Local Area 
Committee 

Cllr Nighat 
Basharat 
Cllr Ibby Ullah 

Cllr Ian 
Auckland 
Cllr Steve Ayris 
Cllr Simon 
Clement-Jones 
Cllr Mohammed 
Mahroof 
Cllr Richard 
Shaw 
Cllr Sophie 
Thornton 

Cllr Alexi 
Dimond 
Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 
Cllr Maroof 
Raouf 
Cllr Paul Turpin 

  

South East Local 
Area Committee 

Cllr Tony Downing 
Cllr Denise Fox 
Cllr Bryan Lodge 
Cllr Karen 
McGowan 
Cllr Alison Norris 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
Cllr Paul Wood 

Cllr Glynis 
Chapman 
Cllr Kurtis 
Crossland 
Cllr Ian Horner 
Cllr Gail Smith 
Cllr Ann 
Woolhouse 

    

South West Local 
Area Committee 

Cllr Ruth Milsom 
Cllr Minesh 
Parekh 

Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Roger 
Davison 
Cllr Tim Huggan 
Cllr Barbara 
Masters 
Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 
Cllr Joe Otten 
Cllr Colin Ross 
Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 
Cllr Martin Smith 
Cllr Cliff 
Woodcraft 

    

      
16.2 (NOTE: The above appointments incorporate the additions to the 

schedule of appointments circulated to the meeting, which were reported 
to the meeting by Councillor Joe Otten.) 

  

      
  
 
17.   
 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRS AND DEPUTY CHAIRS OF CERTAIN 
COMMITTEES FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

17.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Sioned-Mair Richards, and seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that:- 

    
  (a)      each Councillor named in the schedule circulated at the meeting (and 

Page 516



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 25 of 36 
 

set out in these minutes) be appointed Chair or Deputy Chair of the 
Policy Committee, Regulatory Committee or other Council Committee 
indicated by that schedule, for the Municipal Year 2023-24; 

    
  (b)      the Groups’ Spokespersons on each Policy Committee, as set out in the 

schedule circulated at the meeting (and set out in these minutes), be 
noted; and 

    
  (c)      delegation be made to the appropriate Committee to appoint their own 

Chairs or Deputy Chairs in all cases where the Full Council has not 
made such an appointment before the first scheduled meeting of that 
Committee. 

  
 
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRS & DEPUTY CHAIRS OF CERTAIN COMMITTEES & 

THEIR SUB-COMMITTEES FOR 2023-24 
  

POLICY COMMITTEES 

Committee Chair Deputy Chair 
Group 
Spokespersons 

Strategy and 
Resources Policy 
Committee 
  

Leader of the Council Deputy Leader of the 
Council 

Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 
Cllr Douglas Johnson 

Finance Committee 
  

Cllr Zahira Naz Cllr Mike Levery 
  

Cllr Toby Mallinson 

Adult Health and 
Social Care Policy 
Committee 
  

Cllr Angela Argenzio Cllr Sophie Thornton Cllr Laura Moynahan 

Education, Children 
and Families Policy 
Committee 
  

Cllr Dawn Dale Cllr Maroof Raouf Cllr Mohammed 
Mahroof 
  

Housing Policy 
Committee 
  

Cllr Douglas Johnson Cllr Penny Baker Cllr Nabeela Mowlana 

Transport, 
Regeneration and 
Climate Policy 
Committee 
  

Cllr Ben Miskell Cllr Christine Gilligan 
Kubo 

Cllr Andrew Sangar 

Economic 
Development and 
Skills Policy 
Committee 
  

Cllr Martin Smith Cllr Minesh Parekh Cllr Henry Nottage 

Waste and Street 
Scene Policy 
Committee 
  

Cllr Joe Otten Cllr Mark Jones Cllr Alexi Dimond 

Page 517



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 26 of 36 
 

Communities, Parks 
and Leisure Policy 
Committee 
  

Cllr Richard Williams Cllr Janet Ridler 
  

Cllr Marieanne Elliot 
  

  

STATUTORY/REGULATORY COMMITTEES 

Committee/ 
Sub Committee Joint Chair Joint Chair 
Planning and Highways 
Committee 
  

Cllr Mike Chaplin Cllr Alan Woodcock 

Licensing Committee 
  

Cllr David Barker Cllr Abdul Khayum 

  

OTHER COUNCIL COMMITTEES 

Committee/ 
Sub Committee 

Chair Deputy Chair 

Governance Committee 
  

Cllr Fran Belbin Cllr Sue Alston 

Audit and Standards 
Committee 
  

Cllr Mohammed Mahroof Cllr Sioned-Mair Richards 

Admissions Committee 
  

Cllr Maleiki Haybe 
  

Vacancy 

Senior Officer Employment 
Committee 
  

Cllr Ben Miskell Cllr Tom Hunt 

Appeals and Collective 
Disputes Committee 
  

Vacancy Vacancy 

  
17.2 (NOTE: The above appointments incorporate the additions and clarifications to 

the schedule of appointments circulated to the meeting, which were reported 
to the meeting by Councillors Joe Otten and Martin Phipps.) 

    
  
 
18.   
 

APPOINTMENTS TO COUNCIL PANELS, GROUPS, ETC. AND TO 
EXTERNAL BODIES FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24 
 

18.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion moved by Councillor Sioned-
Mair Richards, and seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that:- 

    
  (a)      approval be given to the establishment, with the suggested 

memberships shown, of the Council panels, working groups etc for the 
Municipal Year 2023-24, set out in the schedule circulated at the 
meeting (and set out in these minutes);  

    
  (b)      approval be given to the appointment of Members to serve on external 

Page 518



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 27 of 36 
 

bodies in the Municipal Year 2023-24, also as set out in the schedule 
now circulated (and set out in these minutes); 

    
  (c)      as respects the appointment of Members to its various bodies, where 

vacancies exist or in cases of urgency to ensure representation, the 
Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the relevant political group whip, 
be authorised to appoint Members to serve on such bodies, as 
necessary, on the understanding that details of such appointments will 
be reported to the next or subsequent meetings of the Council; and 

    
  (d)      as respects the appointment of representatives to serve on outside 

bodies, where vacancies exist or in cases of urgency to ensure 
representation, the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the relevant 
political group whip, be authorised to nominate representatives to serve 
on such bodies, as necessary, on the understanding that details of such 
nominations will be reported to the next or subsequent meetings of the 
Council. 

    
  

APPOINTMENTS TO OTHER COUNCIL BODIES  
AND EXTERNAL BODIES 2023/24 

  

OTHER COUNCIL PANELS 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

Access Liaison 
Group (x5) 
  

Vacancy 
Vacancy 

Cllr Gail Smith 
Cllr Cliff 
Woodcraft 

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 
  

  

Allotments and 
Leisure Gardens 
Advisory Group 
(x5) 

Cllr Talib Hussain Cllr Barbara 
Masters 
Cllr Cliff 
Woodcraft 

Cllr Brian 
Holmshaw 
Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 
  

  

Community 
Covenant 
Partnership Board 
(x3) 
  

Cllr Tony Damms Cllr Penny Baker   Mr Clive 
Skelton 

Complaints 
Review Panel 

      1 independent 
Chair and 2 
further 
independent 
members 
  

Corporate Joint 
Committee with 
Trade Unions 
(Policy Committee 
Chairs) 
  

Vacancy (Leader) 
Vacancy (Deputy Leader) 

Vacancies x 9 (Policy Committee Chairs) 

Page 519



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 28 of 36 
 

Corporate 
Members Group 
(Leader, Deputy 
Leader & Whip of 
each Group) 

Cllr Tom Hunt 
Cllr Fran Belbin 
Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 

Cllr Penny Baker 
Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 
Cllr Joe Otten 

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 
Cllr Angela 
Argenzio 
Cllr Martin 
Phipps 
  

  

Corporate 
Parenting Board 
(x10) 

Cllr Dawn Dale 
Cllr Denise Fox 
Cllr Craig Gamble 
Pugh 
Cllr Peter Price 
Cllr Mick Rooney 
  

Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Ian Horner 
Cllr Ann 
Whitaker 

Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau 
Cllr Toby 
Mallinson 

  

Cycle Forum (x3) 
  

Cllr Peter Price Cllr Richard 
Shaw 

Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau 
  

  

Heritage 
Champion (x1) 
(on behalf of the 
Transport, 
Regeneration and 
Climate Policy 
Committee) 
  

Cllr Janet Ridler       

Housing and 
Neighbourhoods 
Advisory Panel 
(x2) 
(Housing Policy 
Committee Chair & 
Deputy) 
  

  
Vacancy (Housing Policy Committee Chair) 

Vacancy (Housing Policy Committee Deputy Chair) 

Local Area 
Committee Chairs 
Group (x8) 
(7 LAC Chairs, plus 
Lead Member) 
  

3 Vacancies 3 Vacancies Vacancy   

Vacancy (Lead Member)  
Monitoring and 
Advisory Board 
(Adult Services) 
(x4) 
  

Vacancy 
Vacancy 

Cllr Sophie 
Thornton 

Vacancy   

Policy Working 
Group (Labour) 
  

All Members of 
the Group 

      

Policy Working 
Group (Liberal 
Democrat) 
  

  All Members of 
the Group 

    

Policy Working     All Members of   

Page 520



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 29 of 36 
 

Group (Green) 
  

the Group 

Sheffield 
Conservation 
Advisory Group 
(x2) 
  

Cllr Janet Ridler   Vacancy   

Standing Advisory 
Council for 
Religious 
Education (x2) 
  

Cllr Garry 
Weatherall 

Cllr Cliff 
Woodcraft 

    

Walking Forum 
  

Vacancy Vacancy Vacancy   

  
  

PORTFOLIO JOINT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEES 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

People Services 
(x2) 
  

Vacancy   Cllr Angela 
Argenzio 
  

  

Schools (x1) 
  

Vacancy       

Place (x4) 
  

Vacancy Cllr Joe Otten 
Cllr Richard 
Williams 
  

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 

  

Resources/CEX 
(x1) 
  

Vacancy       

  
  

JOINT COMMITTEES AND PARTNERSHIPS BOARDS 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

South Yorkshire 
Fire & Rescue 
Authority (x5) 
  

Cllr Tony Damms 
Cllr Janet Ridler 
  

Cllr Sue Alston 
Cllr Steve Ayris 

Cllr Marieanne 
Elliot 

  

South Yorkshire 
Pensions 
Authority (x5) 

Cllr Jayne Dunn 
Cllr Ben Miskell 

Cllr Simon 
Clement-Jones 
Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 
  

Cllr Alexi 
Dimond 

  

South Yorkshire 
Local Pension 
Board (x1)  
No appointment for 
Sheffield until 

Barnsley to appoint for 2023/24 
Doncaster to appoint for 2024/25 and 2025/26 
Rotherham to appoint for 2023/24 and 2024/25 
Sheffield to appoint for 2025/26 and 2026/27 

Page 521



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 30 of 36 
 

2025/26 
  
South Yorkshire 
Police and Crime 
Panel (x4) 
  

Cllr Craig Gamble 
Pugh 
Cllr Ben Miskell 
  

Cllr Roger 
Davison 

Cllr Maleiki 
Haybe 

  

South Yorkshire, 
Derbyshire and 
Nottinghamshire 
Joint Health 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee (x1) 
(Chair of Health 
Scrutiny Sub-Cttee, 
or nominee) 
  

Vacancy (Chair of 
Health Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee) 

      

Emergency 
Planning Shared 
Services Joint 
Committee 
(Rotherham and 
Sheffield) (x2) 
  

Cllr Bryan Lodge Cllr Joe Otten     

Joint Advisory 
Committee for the 
South Yorkshire 
Archaeology 
Service (x2) 
  

Cllr Janet Ridler Cllr Barbara 
Masters 

    

South Yorkshire 
Joint Advisory 
Committee on 
Archives (x2) 
  

Cllr Janet Ridler   Cllr Brian 
Holmshaw 

  

  
  

SOUTH YORKSHIRE MAYORAL COMBINED AUTHORITY EXECUTIVE BOARDS 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

South Yorkshire 
Mayoral 
Combined 
Authority Board 
2023/24 
•     Leader 
•     Substitute for the 

Leader 

•     One additional 

rotational 
member 

  

  
Vacancy (Leader) 

Substitute vacancy (Deputy Leader) 
Rotational Member vacancy 

Page 522



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 31 of 36 
 

Overview and 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
2023/24 
Two Labour, one 
Lib Dem, and one 
Green, and a 
named substitute of 
the same party for 
each 

Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 
Cllr Zahira Naz 
Cllr David Barker 
(substitute 
member) 
Vacancy 
(substitute 
member) 
  

Cllr Tim Huggan 
Cllr Joe Otten 
(substitute 
member) 

Vacancy 
Vacancy 
(substitute 
member) 

  

Audit, Standards 
and Risk 
Committee 
2023/24 
One Lib Dem 
member and one 
Lib Dem substitute 
  

  Cllr Ian Auckland 
Vacancy 
(substitute 
member) 

    

Local Enterprise 
Partnership Board 

As a result of the ongoing governance review at the Mayoral 
Combined Authority, they are not seeking nominations to any of 

these boards at this time. 

Business 
Recovery and 
Growth Board 
Education, Skills 
and Employability 
Board 
Housing and 
Infrastructure 
Board 
Transport and the 
Environment 
Board 

  
  

EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS: CHARITIES/EDUCATIONAL FOUNDATIONS 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

Ann Reresby 
Trust, High Green 
(x1) 
  

  Cllr Ann Whitaker     

Beighton Relief in 
Need Charity (x1) 
  

      Mr Ian 
Saunders 

The Bradfield 
Feoffee Charity 
(x1) 
  

  Cllr Vickie 
Priestley 

    

Church 
Burgesses 
Educational 
Foundation (x1) 

Cllr Craig Gamble 
Pugh 

      

Page 523



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 32 of 36 
 

  
Norton 
Educational 
Foundation and 
United Non-
Educational 
Charities (x5) 
  

  Cllr Steve Ayris   Mr Greg 
Unwin 
Mr Roy Munn 
Mr Phillip 
Shaddock 
Vacancy -
Appointment 
tbc 
  

Poors Land 
(Ecclesall Bierlow 
Charity) (x4) 
  

Cllr Peter Price Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 

  Mr Michael 
Waters  
Vacancy -
Appointment 
tbc 
  

  
  

EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS: HOUSING STOCK TRANSFER ASSOCIATIONS 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

ACIS Local 
Management 
Committee (x2) 
(x1 Sub) 
  

Cllr Tom Hunt 
Cllr Fran Belbin 
Vacancy 
(Substitute 
member) 
  

      

Great Places: 
Sheffield Housing 
Board (x2) 
  

Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 
Cllr Alison Norris 
  

      

Sanctuary 
Housing: 
Shiregreen 
Community 
Committee (x2) 
  

Cllr Dawn Dale 
Cllr Peter Price 

      

  
  

OTHER EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 

Title/Post Labour 
Liberal 
Democrat Green Other 

Learning 
Disabilities 
Partnership Board 
(x2) 
  

Vacancy Cllr Gail Smith     

Local Access 
Forum (x2) 
  

Cllr Peter Price Cllr Richard 
Williams 

    

Page 524



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 33 of 36 
 

Local 
Government 
Association 
General Assembly 
(x4) 
  

Cllr Tom Hunt 
Cllr Paul Wood 

Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 

  

Manor and Castle 
Development 
Trust (x2) 
  

Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 
Cllr Laura 
Moynahan 
  

      

National 
Association of 
British Market 
Authorities (x2)  
  

  Cllr Joe Otten   Mr Chris 
Rosling-
Josephs 

Parking and 
Traffic 
Regulations 
Outside London 
(PATROL) Joint 
Committee (x1) 
  

    Cllr Henry 
Nottage 

  

Peak District 
National Park 
Authority (x1) 
  

Cllr Mike Chaplin       

Reserve and 
Cadet Forces 
Association – 
Yorkshire and 
Humber (and 
Armed Forces 
Champion) 
(x1) (plus 
substitute) 
  

Cllr Tony 
Downing 
Cllr Denise Fox 
(substitute 
member) 

      

River Stewardship 
Company (x1) 
  

    Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 

  

Sheffield Adult 
Safeguarding 
Partnership 
(SASP) Board (x1) 
  

    Cllr Angela 
Argenzio 
  

  

Sheffield 
Business 
Improvement 
District Board (x1) 
(Chair of Waste 
and Streetscene 
Policy Committee) 
  

  
Vacancy 

Page 525



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 34 of 36 
 

Sheffield Carers 
and Young Carers 
Board (x2) 
  

Cllr Dawn Dale Cllr Gail Smith     

Sheffield City 
Partnership Board 
(x3) 
  

Cllr Tom Hunt Cllr Shaffaq 
Mohammed 

Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 

  

Sheffield City 
Trust 
(x1 Observer) 
  

Cllr Bryan Lodge       

Sheffield Co-
Operative 
Development 
Group - Board 
(x1) 
  

Cllr Denise Fox       

Sheffield Football 
Trust (x1) 
  

Vacancy       

Sheffield Futures 
Board (x1) 
  

Cllr Denise Fox       

Sheffield Health 
and Social Care 
Foundation Trust 
- Council of 
Governors (x3) 
  

Cllr Garry 
Weatherall 

Cllr Steve Ayris 
(to 4/7/23) 

Cllr Martin 
Phipps 

  

Sheffield 
International 
Venues Ltd – 
Board of 
Directors (x1) 
  

  
No members to be appointed until further notice 

Sheffield Lyceum 
Theatre Trust Ltd 
– Directors and 
Members (x3) 
  

Vacancy Cllr Roger 
Davison 

  Ms Veronica 
Hardstaff 

Sheffield Media 
and Exhibition 
Centre Ltd – 
Directors and 
Members (x1) 
  

    Cllr Ruth 
Mersereau 

  

Sheffield 
Museums Trust - 
Directors and 
Members (x2) 

 
  

  Cllr Roger 
Davison 

  Ms Cate 
McDonald 

Page 526



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 35 of 36 
 

Sheffield Safer 
and Sustainable 
Communities 
Partnership (x2)  
  

Cllr Tony 
Downing 

Cllr Alan Hooper     

Sheffield 
Teaching 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 
(x1)  
  

    Vacancy   

Sheffield Theatres 
Trust – Directors 
and Members (x3) 
  

Cllr Peter Price 
Cllr Sioned-Mair 
Richards 
  

    Ms Ruth 
McDonald 

Sheffield Tobacco 
Control 
Programme 
Accountable 
Board (x2) 
  

Vacancy Cllr Andrew 
Sangar 

    

Sheffield 
Transport Users 
Group (x1) 
  

Cllr Abdul 
Khayum 

      

Sheffield 
Waterways 
Strategy Group 
(x1) 
  

  Cllr Barbara 
Masters 

    

South Yorkshire 
Leaders’ Group 
(x1) 
  

  
Vacancy (Leader) 

SOAR Community 
(x4) 

Cllr Fran Belbin 
Cllr Mike Chaplin 
Cllr Abdul 
Khayum 
Cllr Peter Price 
  

      

South Yorkshire 
Sub-Regional 
Migration Group 
(x1) 
  

    Cllr Alexi 
Dimond 

  

Special Interest 
Group of 
Municipal 
Authorities (x1) 
  

Cllr Bryan Lodge       

Transport 4 All 
(x3) 
  

Cllr Abdul 
Khayum 

Cllr Ian Auckland Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 

  

Page 527



Council 17.05.2023 

Page 36 of 36 
 

University 
Technical College 
Trust Board (x1) 
  

Cllr Mike Drabble       

Upperthorpe and 
Netherthorpe 
Healthy Living 
Centre Trust (x1) 
  

Cllr Tom Hunt       

Voluntary Action 
Sheffield (x1) 
  

  Cllr Gail Smith     

Yorkshire and 
Humber 
Employers 
Committee (x1) 
  

Cllr Bryan Lodge       

Yorkshire 
Regional Flood 
and Coastal 
Committee (x1) 
  

    Cllr Douglas 
Johnson 

  

  
18.2 (NOTES: 1. The above appointments incorporate the additions and 

clarifications to the schedule of appointments circulated to the meeting, which 
were reported to the meeting by Councillors Sioned-Mair Richards and Martin 
Phipps. 

    
  2. Following comments made at the meeting by Councillor Joe Otten 

indicating that he had submitted counter proposals relating to the 
appointments to be made to the Sheffield Theatres Trust, which were to 
appoint himself and Councillor Roger Davison, but these had not been 
incorporated within the schedule circulated at the meeting, the Lord Mayor 
(Councillor Colin Ross) suggested that the Council approve the appointments 
as set out in the schedule but that the Whips then discuss the matter and 
report back to the next meeting of the Council for final resolution.) 

    
  
 

Page 528


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	11 Audit and Standards Committee - Standards Report 2022
	Annual Standards Report 2022 - Covering Report for Audit and Standards Cttee
	Annual Standards Report 2022

	12 Changes To The Constitution
	Changes To The Constitution - Report to Council 5 July 2023
	Financial & Commercial Implications
	Legal Implications

	Appendix 1 Part 1A - Summary and Explanation July 2023
	Appendix 2 Part 2O - Article 15 - Finance, Contracts and Legal Matters July 2023
	Appendix 3 Part 2P - Article 16 - Review and Revision of the Constitution July 2023
	Appendix 4 Part 2Q - Article 17 - Suspension, Interpretation and Publication of the
	Appendix 5 Part 3C - 3.3 Matters Delegated to Committees July 2023
	Appendix 6 Part 3D - 3.4 Joint Arrangements July 2023
	Appendix 7 Part 3E - 3.5 Delegation to Officers July 2023
	Appendix 8 Part 4A - Council Procedure Rules July 2023
	Appendix 9 Part 4B - Contracts Standing Orders July 2023
	Appendix 10 Part 4C - Access to Information Procedure Rules July 2023
	Appendix 11 Part 4E Financial Regulations July 2023
	Appendix 12 Part 4F - Officer Employment Procedure Rules July 2023
	Appendix 13 Part 4G - Area Committee Procedure Rules July 2023
	Appendix 14 Part 5B - Monitoring Officer Protocol July 2023
	Appendix 15 Part 5C - Officers' Code of Conduct July 2023
	Appendix 16 Part 5D - Protocol for  Member Officer Relations July 2023
	Appendix 17 Part 5H Chair Job Share Protocol July 2023
	Appendix 18 Part 5I - Protocol for Use of the Coat of Arms July 2023
	Appendix 19 Part 7A - Statutory_Proper Officers July 2023
	Appendix 20 Part 7B - Management Structure July 2023

	13 Minutes Of Previous Council Meetings
	Budget Council Minutes - 1 March 2023
	Council Minutes - 10 May 2023 (Extraordinary Meeting)
	Council AGM Minutes - 17 May 2023


